
Accommodation for Physical Impairments: In order to accommodate persons with physical impairments, please notify the City of any special physical 
or language accommodations you may require as far in advance of the meeting as possible.  To make arrangements, Contact City Hall at 541-782-2258. 
For the hearing impaired, the City’s TTD Number is 541-782-4232.

June 03, 2021 
6:30 pm City Council Meeting 
Audio/Video Teleconference 
Willamette Activity Center Room 8 
47674 School Street 
Oakridge OR, 97463 

REGULAR / WORK SESSION 

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Roll Call
**WORK SESSION**
Volunteer Program and Application
**END WORK SESSION**

4. Additions, Corrections or Adjustments to the Agenda

5. Public Comment– 30 Minutes
Individual speakers must be recognized by the presiding officer, provide their name and address, and will be allowed 
up to 3 minutes or less with Council approval. The Council will not engage in any discussion or make any decisions 
based public comment at this time.  The Council may take comments under advisement for discussion and action at 
a future Council meeting.  The Mayor may direct the City Administrator to follow up on comments received. 

6. Mayor Comments / Announcements / Proclamation

7. Council Comments / Announcements

8. Consent Agenda
8.1 Approval of minutes from May 20. 

9. Business from the City Council

9.1 Action from Work Session - City Volunteer Program

10. Business from the City Administrator

10.1 Westfir Fire Protection Intergovernmental Agreement 
10.2 Event Street Closure Request

10.3 Property Rental Fee Waiver

10.4 Intent to Award Approval

10.5 Speed Sign Intergovernmental Agreement

10.6 LTD RAISE Application Endorsement

10.7 Alcohol Permit Extension

10.8 Lane County Dispatch Contract

10.9 Water Rate Adjustment

11. Reports of Boards, Commissions and Committees

11.1 Parks and Community Services Committee
11.1.1 Osprey Park Proposal 

12. Items Removed from the Consent Agenda

13. Ordinances, Resolutions and Public Comments

14. Public Hearings

15. Appointments

15.1 Oakridge Economic Development Advisory Committee

16. Public Comment

17. Adjourn



 

Accommodation for Physical Impairments: In order to accommodate persons with physical impairments, please notify the City of any special physical 
or language accommodations you may require as far in advance of the meeting as possible.  To make arrangements, Contact City Hall at 541-782-2258.  
For the hearing impaired, the City’s TTD Number is 541-782-4232. 

This will be a remote participation meeting. Citizens have four ways of attending and commenting: 

1. Use your computer, tablet or smartphone and go to: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/3664311610, meeting ID: 3664311610. 

2. Use your telephone and dial: +1 669 900 9128. Meeting ID: 366 431 1610.  

3. Send comments by email to: cityadministrator@ci.oakridge.or.us by 2pm the day of the meeting.  

4. It is discouraged due to COVID precautions, but citizens may can attend in person at the Willamette Activity Center, Room 8. There will be an audio 

and video feed.   

Detailed instructions are available at City Hall, on the city website, and the city Facebook page. 

mailto:cityadministrator@ci.oakridge.or.us


City of Oakridge

Volunteer Policy Manual

Introduction

The City of Oakridge is committed to the delivery of effective courteous, and responsive services.

Citizens and employees are treated with fairness, dignity, and respect.  Civic and employee pride  are

accomplished through constant pursuit of excellence and a workforce that values and reflects the

diversity of the Oakridge community.  The volunteer program reflects our value of communicating and

working as a team, and partnering with the community to solve problems.

Thank you for your interest in volunteering.   Volunteers play a vital role in delivering services to our City.

It is important to offer volunteer experiences that benefit both the volunteer and the community.

Oakridge understands volunteering allows citizens to give back to their community in meaningful ways

and is a critical resource to the organization. Your service is highly valued and appreciated.

Oakridge is firmly committed to the safety of our volunteers. We make every reasonable effort to

provide a safe and healthful workplace that is free from recognized or known potential hazards.

Note:  Volunteers to the Oakridge Fire Department or Police Reserves are not covered in this Manual.

Please see the City Administrator for direction.

Volunteer Definition

A volunteer is any person who donates service in a Council Committee or the Helping Hands sponsored

volunteer program without expectation of pay or remuneration, other than reimbursement of approved

incidental expenses for those services rendered. Types of volunteers include:

● Elected officials

● Members of council directed committees

● Individuals who perform a service to the landscape, parks, buildings, city infrastructure or city

owned facilities.

● City of Oakridge employees may volunteer if (unless prohibited by resolution):

o The volunteer position is with an established Oakridge volunteer program,

1



o Duties of the position are outside the employee’s normal work duties,

o No work time is used to perform the volunteer duties,

o The volunteer duties are performed solely at the option of the employee and there is no

expectation, direct or implied, that the employee performs volunteer service, and

o The employee signs a waiver indicating that the decision to volunteer is entirely his/her

own and no payment for the work will be rendered.

Volunteers under the age of 18 are not eligible for volunteer service unless the volunteer registration

form is signed and approved by the city administrator and a parent or guardian.

Who is Not considered a Volunteer ?

● Work release inmates.

● Community service workers.

● Persons not approved by the city Administrator and or City City Council for volunteer service.

● Individuals under the age of 18 without a registration form signed and approved by parent or

guardian.

● Individuals or groups that are volunteering for another agency are not covered by the City of

Oakridge. Example: Boys Scouts performing services at a public event or volunteers of another

entity responding in a mutual aid agreement.

● Volunteers to the Oakridge Fire Department

● Reserve officers to the Oakridge Police Department

Policies and Procedures to Become a

Volunteer

Registration/Application

Potential volunteers must contact the City Administrator prior to performing a volunteer project or job.

The City Administrator oversees the Volunteer Program and will assist potential volunteers by directing

the applicant to either Council Committee process or the Helping Hands process.

All volunteers must complete and sign the Volunteer Registration Form and waiver form, and return the

completed forms for approval. Emergency contact information will be obtained from the Volunteer

Registration Form in the event of an emergency.

2



Screening Process

Interviews may be conducted for certain positions prior to selection. Background, experience, and skills

are carefully reviewed to match volunteers to appropriate assignments. Certain volunteer positions may

require an additional Authorization to Release information to be completed for a background check.

Approval

Volunteers to council committees must apply through City Hall and be interviewed by the city council.

Their approval must be by vote of the council.  Helping Hands volunteers apply to City Hall and the City

Administrator will interview and approve/deny the application.

Job Description and Physical Requirements

A job description for each volunteer position or project will be provided detailing the duties, scope, and

physical requirements of the work. Volunteers should carefully review the requirements and check with

their personal physician if there are any questions about their physical ability to perform the duties.

Some positions may require medical release prior to volunteer work.

Vehicle Policy

Volunteers may be cleared to drive as part of their volunteer work. The volunteer must complete and

submit an approved driving history release form (in some departments the DMV Motor Vehicle check is

performed as part of the criminal history check) prior to driving for [ENTITY NAME]. A valid driver’s

license and an acceptable driving record are required before a volunteer will be permitted to drive while

performing duties as a volunteer on behalf of [ENTITY NAME].

Volunteers operating public vehicles must have an acceptable driving record that meets Oakridge’s

requirements for acceptable driving (or as outlined in the [ENTITY NAME]’s Fleet Policy). Accidents must

be reported immediately to [CONTACT NAME] and an incident report and accident investigation form

should be completed as soon as possible.

Volunteers who drive personal vehicles are required to provide proof of insurance that meets statutory

requirements* or Oakridge’s fleet policy, whichever is higher.

● The owner of the personal vehicle’s auto liability insurance is the primary payer. Oakridge’s

insurance is secondary to private coverage.

● Proof of current coverage must be provided each renewal by a copy of the vehicle owner’s policy

declaration page or certificate of insurance.

*Oregon statutory requirements (ORS 806.010):  $25,000 per person; $50,000 per crash for bodily injury

to others; and $20,000 per crash for damage to others property.

3



Orientation

After approval and prior to the onset of volunteer work, the volunteer receives a departmental and

job-specific review of procedures, duties, and scope of volunteer activities from supervisor. Any required

personal protective equipment will be reviewed and provided. Safe work rules and rules of conduct are

reviewed along with the volunteer policy and Fleet Policy, if applicable. All personnel and safety rules

apply to volunteer workers. Failure to comply with safety and personnel rules can terminate the

volunteer relationship.

Safety Requirements

No volunteer will be required to perform work that he or she believes to be unsafe or likely to cause

injury or health risk to themselves or others. Volunteers are encouraged to report unsafe conditions or

hazards and must report incidents/accidents immediately to supervisor. Training, if required, will be

provided for operation of specific equipment, machinery, or tools. Additionally, OR-OSHA training may be

required to perform some volunteer duties

Volunteers are required to follow all safety and security procedures while performing volunteer duties,

on or off Oakridge’s premises. Volunteers are required to wear appropriate protective equipment,

clothing, and footwear at all times.

Emergency Procedures

Emergency procedures for each volunteer worksite will be documented and provided to supervisors and

to volunteer staff at time of orientation. Procedures will include:

● Emergency contact numbers for Fire/Police/Ambulance (especially if 911 service is not available

in the area),

● A map showing the location and routes to emergency exits,

● The location of first aid supplies and equipment, and

● Actions to take in the event of a medical emergency or accident.

Incident and Accident Reporting

Injuries and accidents must be reported immediately to a supervisor and an incident and accident

investigation form completed, if applicable. If appropriate, secure the scene for investigation and

documentation of the incident.

Insurance Coverage

Normally, volunteers are considered “agents” and are covered by Oakridge’s general liability insurance

while they are acting within the scope of their duties. Insurance coverage is not provided for personal

4



property, equipment, or vehicles owned by volunteer workers. For work related injuries, Oakridge

provides workers compensation insurance.

Record Keeping

Volunteer workers must track and submit hours on a weekly basis to their supervisor using the approved

form. This is an Oregon statutory requirement. A record of volunteer hours is used to demonstrate when

a volunteer is on the job for accident claims, and can be used to verify work experience for job

references. It is required to compile the Oakridge annual workers’ compensation premium audit.

Performance Management

Evaluation and feedback of the performance of volunteer duties should be provided regularly, including

recognition for volunteer service. For the Helping Hands program the City Administrator should monitor

and take disciplinary action including and up to termination of volunteer relationship when policy or

work practices are unacceptable. Council Committee volunteers performance or comportment is

governed by resolution.

Forms

The forms listed below, if applicable to the position, are required to be retained in the office of the City

Administrator.

● Volunteer registration/application form

● Release for driving record and background check

● Job description

● Proof of vehicle insurance

● Volunteer agreement/acknowledgement

● Volunteer waiver(s)

● Parent or guardian authorization for minors

● Emergency contact Information

● Volunteer check list (for non-public safety volunteers)

● Completed time cards or rosters

● Vehicle use policy (if applicable)

5



VOLUNTEER POLICY FOR THE CITY OF OAKRIDGE

The Oakridge Volunteer program meets or exceeds the volunteer program format suggested by our insurance company.

Volunteering for Helping Hands for Oakridge

The city administrator directs individuals or groups who
wish to assist the city in grounds upkeep, park and open

spaces upkeep and improvement, specific projects,
building maintenance etc.  These individuals do not need
council approval.  Each volunteer will be required to fill

out the council approved forms as listed below.  The city
administrator will ensure that all the required forms are

filled out.
Applicants whose volunteer service may include contact

with minors will be subject to a background check. All
background checks will be treated with confidentiality

and will not be subject to review by city council.
Background checks will be reviewed with the applicant by
the city administrator. The city administrator will provide
to the Parks and Community Services committee a report

of the volunteers and volunteer projects and will keep
track of volunteer hours..

Volunteering for Council Committees

The city council directs the appointment of individuals
wishing to serve on council committees.  After an

application is submitted to the City Administrator, the
applicant will present themselves to the council for
introductions and interviews.  Upon approval of an

application by the city council, the City Administrator will
ensure that all the required forms are filled out.

Applicants whose volunteer service may include contact
with minors will be subject to a background check. All
background checks will be treated with confidentiality

and will not be subject to review by city council.
Background checks will be reviewed with the applicant by

the city administrator.

Forms required:
● Volunteer registration/application form
● Volunteer agreement/acknowledgement
● Volunteer waiver(s)
● Job description or project description
● Parent or guardian authorization for minors
● Emergency contact Information
● Background check if working with or will have

contact with minors.
● Time cards or rosters

If applicable
● Vehicle use policy (if applicable)
● Release for driving
● Proof of vehicle insurance

Forms required:
● Volunteer registration/application form
● Volunteer agreement/acknowledgement
● Volunteer waiver(s)
● Job description or project description
● Parent or guardian authorization for minors
● Emergency contact Information
● Background check if working with or will have

contact with minors.
● Time cards or rosters

If applicable
● Vehicle use policy (if applicable)
● Release for driving
● Proof of vehicle insurance

Annual Recognition:

Annually, the city council will recognize the contribution of all volunteers through proclamation during, but not limited

to, Volunteer Appreciation Week in the month of April.



5/27/2021   1 

  

City of Oakridge 
Volunteer Application and Placement Form 

 
Return completed application to: City Administrator, Oakridge City Hall, 48318 E 1st St.  
 

Name  Daytime Phone 
 
 

Address  Evening Phone 
 
 

City/Zip   Email 
 
 

 
Are you under 18 years of age? (circle one) YES  NO 
 

Current Employer 
or School 

  Phone   

Education, Work, or Volunteer Experience 

Skills or Certifications 

 
Languages that you speak: ___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Languages that you write: ____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
List the hours you are available or prefer: 

Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 

              

 

Personal Reference (not related) 

Name   Phone   Relationship   

Address   City/State/Zip   

 

Volunteer or Employer Reference 

Name   Phone   Relationship   

Address   City/State/Zip   

 
I give my permission for the named references to be contacted either verbally or in writing. I also understand that information 
obtained will be used only in conjunction with a City of Oakridge volunteer position. All of the information on this application 
is true to the best of my knowledge. 
 
Signature: _____________________________________________ Date: ____________________________ 
For Internal Use Only 
 
Volunteer Name: _______________________________ 



5/27/2021   2 

  

 
Referred to or Placed: 

Department & Staff Volunteer Position 
Copies 
Sent by 

Date 

    

    

    

 
Enter Date Completed (if applicable) 

Application  Interview 
 

Reference Check  Job Description Provided 
 

Background Check  
Volunteer Orientation & 
Certification 

 

DMV Check   
Insurance Coverage & 
Waiver 

 

Parental Consent Form  
Auto and General Liability 
Waivers 

 

 
Comments 

 

 



5/27/2021   1 
 

City of Oakridge 
Volunteer Waiver 

 

As a volunteer working at the City of Oakridge, you need to understand the extent to which you are covered by 

insurance for liability and personal injury or illness. Please read the following carefully and sign below. 
 
TORT LIABILITY 

The City of Oakridge will indemnify and defend you against civil actions for injuries or damage to the person or 

property of others, subject to the following general conditions: 
 

• You are working on a task assigned by an authorized City of Oakridge supervisor for the benefit of the 
City of Oakridge. 

• You limit your actions to the duties assigned (defined in the assigned duties section below). 

• You perform your assigned duties in good faith, and do not act in a manner that is reckless or with 

the intent to unlawfully inflict harm to others. 
 
The conditions and limits of this protection are stated in the Oregon Tort Claims Act, ORS 30.260 – 30.300. 
 
MOTOR VEHICLE LIABILITY 

If you use a personally owned vehicle in the course of your duties, you are required to have automobile liability 

insurance in accordance with Oregon law. Your personal insurance will provide your primary coverage for any 

accidents involving the personally owned vehicle you are driving. State provided automobile liability coverage 

may apply on a limited basis only after your primary coverage limits have been used and only where the 

indemnification conditions set forth above are applicable. You MUST possess a valid driver’s license. 
 
VOLUNTEER INJURY COVERAGE (VIC) 
 
The City of Oakridge provides workers’ compensation coverage for volunteers. It is limited to injuries resulting 

from the volunteer acting within the course and scope of his/her assigned duties.  

 

REPORTING RESPONSIBILITY 
 
Any time you are involved in any accident or injury to person or property while performing assigned duties, 
you MUST inform your immediate supervisor as soon as possible. 
 
WAIVER OF LIABILITY 
 
As an authorized volunteer for the City of Oakridge, I understand that the City of Oakridge will provide workers’ 

compensation coverage for me in the event I suffer injury due to an accident while performing authorized volunteer 

duties. In exchange for the coverage, I, for myself, my heirs, executors, administrators and assigns, release 

and forever discharge the City of Oakridge from any and all demands or claims for damage or injury, from any 

cause of suit or action, known or unknown, that I may have against the City of Oakridge or its officers, elected 

officials, agents or employees, and from all liability under the Oregon Tort Claims Act, ORS 30.260 – 30.300, 

for any and all harm or damage to my health in any matter resulting from or arising out of my volunteer activities. 

This release does not extend to or waive any rights I may have under the Oregon Tort Claims Act, ORS 30.260 

–30.300 to defense and indemnification from any demand, claim, suit or action brought against me, or liability 

I may be subject to, or arising out of my authorized volunteer activities. 

 



5/27/2021   2 
 

I  HAVE  READ  AND  UNDERSTAND  THE  ABOVE  CONDITIONS  OF  VOLUNTEER  SERVICE  AND  WAIVER  

OF LIABILITY. I CERTIFY THAT ANY PERSONALLY OWNED VEHICLE USED IN THE COURSE OF MY 

VOLUNTEER DUTIES ARE INSURED IN ACCORDANCE WITH OREGON INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS.   

I AGREE AND ACKNOWLEDGE THAT MY PARTICIPATION AS A VOLUNTEER FOR THE CITY OF 

OAKRIDGE IS COMPLETELY VOLUNTARY AND THAT I HAVE NEITHER RECEIVED NOR EXPECT TO 

RECEIVE ANY COMPENSATION OR OTHER BENEFIT FOR MY PARTICIPATION AS A VOLUNTEER.  

I UNDERSTAND THAT IN ORDER TO RECEIVE THE PROTECTIONS SET FORTH IN THIS AGREEMENT; THE 

FOLLOWING MUST BE COMPLETED AND APPROVED BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF THE CITY 

OF OAKRIDGE. 

Name  Home Phone 
 
 

Address  Alt. Phone 
 
 

City/ST/Zip   Email 
 
 

Driver’s 
License 
Number 

 
Auto Insurance 
Company/Policy 
No. 

 

Signature  Date  

Supervisor 
Name 

 Phone  

 

REQUIRED FOR ALL MINORS: 
 

PARENT OR GUARDIAN’S AUTHORIZATION FOR MEDICAL CARE AND CONSENT TO AGREEMENT 
 
I,                                                               , as parent or legal guardian hereby grant permission for                                           

to do volunteer work for the City of Oakridge. In the event of an emergency, accident, or illness, I authorize the 

City of Oakridge and its employees to administer emergency medical care to my child and/or, if deemed 

necessary, to secure emergency medical services and incur expenses for which I will be responsible for 

payment. My signature below hereby represents that I have read, understand, and consent to this agreement. 
 

Signature: _________________________________________________ Date: ________________________                                                                                    
 
 

Note: Complete a new form each year for volunteer service that continues into the next fiscal year, 

when volunteering for a different activity, or when volunteer duties change. 



May 20, 2021 City Council Minutes Page 1 of 5 

 T+  
                                                            
 
 
 

 
May 20, 2021 

City Council Meeting (Via Zoom) 

Willamette Activity Center Room 8 
47674 School Street 

7:00 p.m. 

 

MINUTES 
 

 
1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER- 7:00 pm 
 
Council Present: Mayor Holston, Councilors Bobbie Whitney Dawn Kinyon, Michele Coker, Melissa Bjarnson, Audy 

Spliethof and Chrissy Hollett 
 

Staff Present: City Administrator Bryan Cutchen, Finance Director Eric Kytola, Police Chief Kevin Martin and City 
Recorder Jackie Sims 

 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
3. Roll Call – all present 
  
4. Additions, corrections or adjustments to the agenda 
 
Bryan-add 10.1.6 RTMP Allocation 
 
Councilor Kinyon-added discussion regarding having a table at the Firewise event 
 
5. Public Comment 
 
Sarah Altemus-Pope-from the SWFC spoke about the upcoming Wildfire safety event at Greenwaters Park 
 
Deb Borton- Is in support of the Osprey Park Disc Golf expansion. 
 
6. Mayor Comments / Announcements / Proclamations 
 
Mayor Holston- reminded everyone about the Firewise event on Friday at Greenwaters Park.  We will not have a table there this 
year, we didn’t have time to get it organized.  If any councilors go please identify yourselves as councilors. 
 
Thanked UBRA for the flowers baskets uptown. 
 
The Johnson & Johnson vaccine clinic is on May 26, 2021, you need to register in advance. 
 
7. Council Comments / Announcements 
 
Councilor Kinyon-Did we get a copy of the original ODOT contract?  Did we sell or lease another lot out at the OIP? 
 



May 20, 2021 City Council Minutes Page 2 of 5 

Bryan- he already sent out the original contract, he has been in contact with Jim Gamble at ODOT and he is not comfortable with 
the back payments.  Under the new contact we can file for fiscal year 2021 immediately and for fiscal 2022 in July. 
 
We have a short-term lease of Lot 7 with Cascadia Lumber Works, the owner is Tim Wooley, he sells online and is interested in 
joining the chamber.   
 
Councilor Hollett- a few meetings back there was a motion to decrease the water rate increase, has there been any movement 
on that? 
 
Councilor Kinyon- no and that is on her. 
 
Bryan- he had Eric research this, he does have information but he is not ready to bring to the council yet. 
 
Councilor Kinyon- she wants to add the allocation of the COVID money to the next agenda. 
 
Bryan- we have a 150-page document to review, discussion is fine, but we have a lot to get through. 
 
Councilor Kinyon-it’s ok if it goes to the next meeting, she just wants to make sure the city council has a chance to go through 
and make the decisions.   
 
Bryan-it is on the treasury website, we don’t have to be in a rush to spend this, we have until 2026, and it is very specific to what 
we can spend it on.  
 
8. Consent Agenda 
 
 8.1 Approval of minutes from May 6, 2021 
 
Motion:  Councilor Whitney moved to approve the consent agenda.  Councilor Coker seconded the motion. 
 
Mayor Holston (aye), Coker (aye), Hollett (aye), Kinyon (aye), Bjarnson (aye), Whitney (aye), Spliethof (aye).  Motion passed 7-0 
 
9. Business from the City Council  
 
 9.1 Volunteer Program – Councilor Spliethof 
.   
Mayor Holston- read the issue. The template was sent to council along with a policy for the council to go over and she hopes you 
all looked at it, it is on Google drive forms. 
 
Skipped ahead to 15.1 - appointments 
 
Could not do appointment, applicant lost connection.  
 
Councilor Kinyon- in the policy it says something about a person that leads the volunteer program, potential volunteers must 
contact (blank) prior to performing volunteer projects or jobs, how do we want to fill that in? 
 
Mayor Holston- she is a little frustrated because the documents she sent out to the council were all filled in so we could talk 
about them and see what was missing and wasn’t. 
 
Bryan- suggested bringing this back to the next meeting instead of going line by line right now. 
 
 9.2 Charter Review Commission- Councilor Kinyon 
 
Councilor Kinyon- the council needs to decide whether or not the Admin committee will be taking on the task of a Charter review 
and update the Charter. The Admin committee can solicit and form a sub-committee of citizens to work along with us to update 
the Charter.  The council will decide the size of the committee.  The Admin committee along with Councilor Kinyon would like to 
take on the Charter update.   
 
Mayor Holston- do we want to leave this in the hands of the Admin committee? 



May 20, 2021 City Council Minutes Page 3 of 5 

 
Councilor Whitney- this should be a citizen only committee, ex-parte contact could come into play, the council can provide 
direction on issues that we have seen come up. 
 
Councilor Hollett- disagrees with Councilor Whitney, ex-parte contact has nothing to do with this. She thinks Councilor Kinyon or 
any other Councilor would be an asset to the committee. 
 
Mayor Holston- read what the charter manual recommends.   
 
Councilor Coker- a separate citizen committee would be better, we could have a councilor on the board, but it should be a 
separate board.   
 
Councilor Bjarnson- she doesn’t like the idea of a city councilor deciding who sits on the committee that gives them too much 
sway. 
 
Mayor Holston- is in agreement of putting a citizen charter committee together, vetted by the city council.  This will be a very 
long and slow process. We don’t need to have a councilor on the committee, we have people who don’t want to work with 
councilors.  It is important that the charter review be separate from the council.   
 
Councilor Kinyon- she agrees it should be a citizen only committee, the city council passed to have the admin committee do a 
charter review, she advocates for the admin committee to form a sub-committee. 
 
Mayor Holston- League of Oregon Cities and LCOG can help guide us through the process.   
 
Motion:  Councilor Hollett moved to form a Charter Review Committee as a sub-committee under the Admin Committee.  
Councilor Bjarnson seconded the motion.   
 
Mayor Holston- she disagrees with this process, she doesn’t disagree with the charter review, she has spoken on how important 
this is, and we will rely on our resources.   
 
Whitney (nay), Spliethof (aye), Bjarnson (aye), Hollett (aye), Coker (nay), Mayor Holston (nay), Kinyon (aye).  Motion passed 4-3 
  
10. Business from the City Administrator  
 
 10.1 City Administrator Update 
 
  10.1.1 Nuisance Ordinance Review for Fire Safety 
 
Bryan- introduced Leslie Neu  
 
Leslie Neu- gave a wild fire mitigation presentation. 
 
Councilor Whitney- gives this a stamp of approval, what would be the appropriate next step? 
 
Mayor Holston- we can put this on a different agenda for a later discussion. 
 
  10.1.2 Chamber of Commerce TRT Request 
 
Bryan- read the issue and he gave the council a briefing sheet on the balances of what we have in the TRT fund. Bryan introduced 
Lynda Kamerrer from the Chamber of Commerce 
  
Lynda- introduced herself and explained what the Chamber does for the community.   
 
Councilor Kinyon- recommends postponing making any decisions on this until the council has had time to review and revise our 
policy and distribution of our TRT funds. 
 
Mayor Holston- we are not revising our TRT funds we are looking at revising our RTMP funds. 
 



May 20, 2021 City Council Minutes Page 4 of 5 

Councilor Kinyon- disagrees. 
 
Motion:  Councilor Kinyon moved to postpone discussions for TRT until we make a TRT decision.  Councilor Spliethof seconded 
the motion. 
 
Councilor Whitney-we are always receiving emails from the Chamber updating us on different things they are doing or just 
keeping us informed on what is going on in the city.  She supports this, they are vital to our community. 
 
Mayor Holston-this is not something we should postpone, we have had this in our packet for some time.  The Chamber has done 
an outstanding job during Covid helping our businesses.  We have a pot of money in our TRT and it behooves us to use it and use 
it wisely.  This is another example of the council’s inability to make a decision and she is saddened by this motion. 
 
Councilor Hollett-she does not disagree about the Chamber, they have really stepped up.  She does believe Dawn is correct and 
we agreed that we are not going to be issuing money out of this fund. 
 
Councilor Spliethof-he appreciates what the Chamber is doing, we agreed to look at this and we haven’t done that. 
 
Bryan- his concern is the speed at which this council deliberates, it could be many, many months before you get to have a 
consolidated and approved TRT program.  Like you said it is on the council for dragging their feet and you are going to penalize a 
very vital member of our economic development community.  
 
Councilor Bjarnson- we shouldn’t penalize the Chamber for our failures, she thinks we should award this and what they do is 
important. 
 
Councilor Kinyon- she wanted to let Lynda and Jason know she does support the chamber, she just feels really strongly with 
council following through with their procedures.  They didn’t know you were going to apply and she is sorry and she is not trying 
to postpone something here. 
 
Mayor Holston (nay), Hollett (nay), Coker (nay), Spliethof (aye), Whitney (nay), Bjarnson (nay), Kinyon (aye).  Motion failed 2-5 
 
Motion:  Councilor Whitney moved that we grant the Oakridge/Westfir Area Chamber of Commerce $15,360 in Transient Room 
Tax funds for FY 21-22.  Councilor Coker seconded the motion. 
 
Mayor Holston (aye), Whitney (aye), Coker (aye), Spliethof (nay), Hollett (aye), Kinyon (nay), Bjarnson (aye).  Motion passed 5-2 
 
  10.1.3 OLCC Permit 
 
Bryan- read the issue 
 
Motion:  Councilor Kinyon moved we recommend the OLCC liquor license for the Campfire restaurant be approved.  Councilor 
Spliethof seconded the motion. 
 
Mayor Holston (aye), Whitney (aye), Coker (aye), Spliethof (aye), Hollett (aye), Kinyon (aye), Bjarnson (aye).  Motion passed 7-0 
 
  10.1.4 Fee Waiver 
 
Motion:  Councilor Kinyon moved we recommend the fee waiver for Greenwaters Park rental to conduct the National Flag Day 
retirement ceremony be approved.  Councilor Coker seconded the motion. 
 
Coker (aye), Hollett (aye) Spliethof (aye), Kinyon (aye), Mayor Holston (aye), Whitney (aye), Bjarnson (aye).  Motion passed 7-0 
 
*Went straight to public comment due to time restraints 
 
  10.1.5 Oakridge-Westfir Fire Protection IGA 
 
  10.1.6 RTMP Allocation 
 
 10.2 Finance Director Update-  



May 20, 2021 City Council Minutes Page 5 of 5 

 
  10.2.1 April Financial Report 
 
 10.3 Economic Development Update 
 10.4 Police Update 
 10.5 Fire Department Update 
 10.6 Public Works/Community Services Update 
 
  10.6.1 Water Quality Status Report 
  
11. Reports of Boards, Commissions and Committees-skipped due to time restraints 
 
 11.1 Parks and Community Services Committee 
 
  11.1.1 Osprey Park Disc Golf Proposal 
  
12. Items Removed from the Consent Agenda-none 
  
13. Ordinances, Resolutions and Public Comments-None 
 
14.  Public Hearings- None 
 
15. Appointments 
 
 15.1 RTMP (OEDAC) Committee-applicant lost connection 
 
16. Public Comment 
 
Trudy Hammond- Charter review committee, we need to all work together. 
 
Sarah Altemus-Pope-thoughts on the Charter discussion, should be a citizen led committee. 
 
 
17. Adjourn-9:27 p.m. 
 
 
Signed:  _______________________________ 
               Kathy Holston, Mayor 
 
Signed:  _______________________________ 
               Jackie Sims, City Recorder 
 



   

 
 
 
 
                                          
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ISSUE: Councilor Spliethof requested council address the volunteer form use while awaiting the 
CIS HR review. When presented with the form it was decided there needed to be an 
accompanying volunteer policy/program directive. Drafts for both were reviewed in a city 
council work session.   
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Staff time.  
 
 
OPTIONS: (1) Approve the program and forms for the staff to implement. 
                   (2) Approve the program and forms with modifications.  
                   (3) Reject the program and forms.  
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends option (1).  
 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION: I move we approve the volunteer program and forms for the city 
staff to develop into a City of Oakridge directive.  
 

Business of the City Council 
City of Oakridge, Oregon 

June 3, 2021 
 

Agenda Title:  Volunteer Program and 
Forms Approval 
 

 

 

 

Proposed Council Action: A motion from 
the floor to approve. 

Agenda Item No: 9.1 
 
Exhibit: None 
 
Agenda Bill Author: Bryan Cutchen 
City Administrator: Bryan Cutchen 



   

 
 
 
 
                                          
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ISSUE: The City of Oakridge currently provides fire protection services to the City of Westfir. 
The agreement is reviewed annually to updates. This is the proposed agreement for FY22 which 
includes an increase in the fee equal to the CPI-W, making the new total $16,800, billed in 
quarterly installments.     
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: $16,800 in revenue.  
 
 
OPTIONS: (1) Approve the IGA. 
                   (2) Modify or reject the IGA.  
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends option (1).  
 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION: I move we approve the intergovernmental agreement to provide 
fire protection services to the City of Westfir at a cost of $16,800 for fiscal year 2022.   
 

Business of the City Council 
City of Oakridge, Oregon 

June 3, 2021 
 

Agenda Title:  Approval of Fire Protection 
Intergovernmental Agreement 
 

 

 

Proposed Council Action: A motion from 
the floor to approve. 

Agenda Item No: 10.1 
 
Exhibit: (1) IGA 
                                 
 
Agenda Bill Author: Bryan Cutchen 
City Administrator: Bryan Cutchen 









   

 
 
 
 
                                          
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ISSUE: On June 12, 2021, the Sasquatch Duro Gravel Cycling event is taking place in the 
Oakridge Westfir area. The event organizers request a closure of 1st Street between Pine and 
Cedar streets from 6am to 6pm.      
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: N/A  
 
 
OPTIONS: (1) Approve the street closure. 
                   (2) Disapprove the street closure.   
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends option (1).  
 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION: I move we approve the closure of 1st Street between Pine and Cedar 
streets on June 12, 2021 from 6am to 6pm.   
 

Business of the City Council 
City of Oakridge, Oregon 

June 3, 2021 
 

Agenda Title:  Approval of Street Closure 
for Sasquatch Duro Event 
 

 

 

Proposed Council Action: A motion from 
the floor to approve. 

Agenda Item No: 10.2 
 
Exhibit: (1) Event Application 
                                 
 
Agenda Bill Author: Bryan Cutchen 
City Administrator: Bryan Cutchen 





   

 
 
 
 
                                          
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ISSUE: On April 30, 2021, the Tree Planting Princess event occurred at the Greenwaters 
Amphitheater. The organizers neglected to seek a fee waiver prior to the event and are 
requesting a retroactive waiver of the fee.      
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: $100  
 
 
OPTIONS: (1) Approve the fee waiver. 
                   (2) Disapprove the fee waiver.   
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: None. 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION: I move we approve / disapprove the property rental fee waiver for 
the Tree Planting Princess event.    
 

Business of the City Council 
City of Oakridge, Oregon 

June 3, 2021 
 

Agenda Title:  Property Rental Retroactive 
Fee Waiver 
 

 

 

Proposed Council Action: A motion from 
the floor to approve. 

Agenda Item No: 10.3 
 
Exhibit: (1) Event Application 
                                 
 
Agenda Bill Author: Bryan Cutchen 
City Administrator: Bryan Cutchen 





ISSUE: The city published an RFP in April for the street overlay of Berry Street and Garden Road. 
Bids were due on May 18, 2021 at 2pm. Three bids were received, and a recommended 
selection has been made. City Council must approve the contract award.  

The projects are funded through the ODOT Small Cities Allotment program. There is no cost 
share but the city is responsible for any expenditures in excess of the grant. The city was 
awarded two grants of $100,000 each.     

FISCAL IMPACT: $97,642 of grant revenue. 

OPTIONS: (1) Approve the Intent to Award. 
(2) Disapprove the Intent to Award.

RECOMMENDATION: None. 

RECOMMENDED MOTION: I move we approve / disapprove the Intent to Award to RiverBend 
Construction, Inc.     

Business of the City Council 
City of Oakridge, Oregon 

June 3, 2021 

Agend a Title:   Intent to Award Approval

Proposed Council Action: A motion from 
the floor to approve. 

Agenda Item No: 10.4 

Exhibit: (1) Intent to Award 
(2) Request for Proposal (RFP)

Agenda Bill Author: Bryan Cutchen 
City Administrator: Bryan Cutchen 









Contract Documents, General Conditions, & Technical Specifications 

CITY OF Oakridge 

CURRAN-McLEOD, INC., Consulting Engineers 
6655 SW Hampton Street, Suite 210 

Portland, OR 97223 

April 2021 

Lane County, Oregon 

2021 STREET OVERLAY 
Berry Street & Garden Road 







 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
     



i 
 

City of Oakridge 

2021 STREET OVERLAY - BERRY STREET & 
GARDEN ROAD 

             

 TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 PAGE    
 
Notice to Contractors .................................................................................................................1 
 
Instructions to Bidders ...............................................................................................................3 
 
Bid Proposal .............................................................................................................................13 
 
Bid Bond ................................................................................................................................. 17 
 
First-Tier Subcontractor Disclosure Form ...............................................................................19 
 
Contract for Construction ........................................................................................................21 
 
Construction Performance Bond ..............................................................................................27 
 
Construction Payment Bond ....................................................................................................31 
 
General Conditions of the Construction Contract ....................................................................35 
 
Supplementary General Conditions .........................................................................................69 
 
Prevailing Wage Rate Determination ......................................................................................75 
 
TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS 
 
 DIVISION 1 – GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 
 01000  General Requirements 
 01500  Contractor Facilities and Temporary Controls 
 01600  Measurement & Payment 
 01700  Project Closeout 
 
 DIVISION 2 – SITE WORK 
 02100    Site Preparation 
 02200    Earthwork 
 02500  Paving and Surfacing 
         
 Construction Plans Sheets C1 through C7            
 
 



 

ii 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 This Page Intentionally Left Blank 
 
 
  



 NOTICE TO CONTRACTORS 



NOTICE TO CONTRACTORS 



1 

 

NOTICE TO CONTRACTORS  
 
Sealed bids for 2021 Street Overlay - Berry Street & Garden Road will be received the City 
Administrator of the City of Oakridge until 2:00 P.M on Tuesday, May 18, 2021 at which time 
bidding will be closed. 
      
Pursuant to ORS 279C.370(2), within two (2) working hours of the Bid Closing all Bidders shall 
submit to the City a disclosure form as furnished with these bid documents identifying any first-
tier subcontractors (those Entities that would be contracting directly with the prime contractor) that 
will be furnishing labor or materials on the Contract, if awarded, whose subcontract value would 
be equal to or greater than: 
 
   Five percent of the total Contract Price, but at least $15,000, or 
   $350,000 regardless of the percentage of the total Contract Price.  
  
Bids and disclosure forms shall be addressed to Mr. Bryan Cutchen, City Administrator, City of 
Oakridge, PO Box 1410, Oakridge, Oregon 97463. At 2:00 P.M., bids will be opened and read 
aloud in the City Council Chambers, Oakridge, Oregon. Only bids for which a disclosure form has 
been submitted within two (2) working hours of the Bid Closing date and time will be considered 
responsive. 
 
The scope of work generally consists of a 2” street overlay on Berry Street from Rainbow Road to 
Rock Road, a length of approximately 625 feet and a 2” street overlay on Garden Road from 
Riverview Street to the end of Horton Park, a length of approximately 585 feet.  In addition to the 
overlays, the work will also include limited areas of road restoration including sub-base placement 
and asphalt patching on both roadways prior to overlay.     
   
Specifications are available at the offices of CURRAN-McLEOD, INC., Consulting Engineers, 
6655 S.W. Hampton Street, Suite 210, Portland, Oregon, 97223, telephone: (503) 684-3478. All 
questions related to the project shall be directed to Edward Hodges of CURRAN-McLEOD, INC.   
Electronic PDF copies are available without charge for contractors and material suppliers upon 
registration with the Engineer. (Please email cmi@curran-mcleod.com to register and request an 
electronic copy). A thirty- dollar ($30.00) non-refundable fee is required with each request for hard 
copies. Specifications may be examined at the following locations: 
 
City of Oakridge 48318 E 1st St Oakridge, OR 
Central Oregon Builders Exchange 1902 NE 4th Bend, OR 
Daily Journal of Commerce – OR Electronic Only - (503) 274-0624 Portland, OR 
Eugene Builders Exchange 2460 West 11th Eugene, OR 
McGraw-Hill Construction/Dodge 3461 NW Yeon Ave Portland, OR 
Oregon Contractor Plan Center 5468 SE International Way Clackamas, OR 
Salem Contractors Exchange 2256 Judson St. S.E. Salem, OR 
SW Washington Contractors Assoc. 7017 N.E. Hwy 99, #214 Vancouver, WA 
Willamette Valley Bid Center 33862 SE Eastgate Cr. Corvallis, OR 
 
Bidders must be pre-qualified to bid on this project. Bidders not currently pre-qualified by the 
Owner, Engineer or the Oregon Department of Transportation may apply for pre-qualification with 
the Owner or Engineer prior to the bid opening on forms available or similar to those available 
from the Oregon Department of Transportation. 
 



 

2 

 

No bid shall be received or considered unless the Bidder is registered with the Construction 
Contractors Board as required by ORS chapter 701.021.  
 
To be considered, bids must be completed on the bidding forms provided, in the manner prescribed 
in the bidding documents and accompanied by a 5% bid security in favor of the City of Oakridge. 
Each bidder must indicate in the space provided on the Bid Form, whether they are a Resident or 
Non-Resident Bidder pursuant to ORS 279A.120. 
 
This public works project is subject to the provisions of ORS 279C.800 to ORS 279C.870.  By 
submission of a bid, each bidder certifies that Oregon Prevailing Wage Rates are included in the 
bid prices. Contractors need not be licensed for asbestos handling per ORS 468A.720 to complete 
this project. A pre-bid conference will not be held for this project. 
 
The City of Oakridge reserves the right to reject any or all bids not in compliance with all 
prescribed public bidding procedures and requirements, may reject for good cause any and all bids 
upon a finding of the agency it is in the public interest to do so, and may waive all informalities. 
No bidder may withdraw or modify his bid prior to the lapse of thirty (30) days after bid opening. 
 
By Order of the City Council of the City of Oakridge. 
  



 INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 



INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 



 

3 

 

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS  
 
 
ARTICLE 1 - DEFINED TERMS 
 

1.1  Terms used in these Instructions to Bidders which are defined in the 
Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract (No. C-700, 2018 
Ed.) have the meanings assigned to them in the General Conditions.  The 
term "Bidder" means one who submits a Bid directly to OWNER, as distinct 
from a sub-bidder, who submits a bid to a Bidder.  The term "Successful 
Bidder" means the lowest, qualified, responsible and responsive Bidder to 
whom OWNER (on the basis of OWNER'S evaluation as hereinafter 
provided) makes an award.  The term "Bidding Documents" includes the 
Advertisement or Invitation to Bid, Instructions to Bidders, the Bid Form, 
and the proposed Contract Documents (including all Addenda issued prior 
to receipt of Bids). 

 
 
ARTICLE 2 - COPIES OF BIDDING DOCUMENTS 
 

2.1  Complete sets of Bidding Documents in the number and for the sum, if any, 
stated in the Advertisement or Invitation to Bid may be obtained from 
ENGINEER.   

 
2.2  Complete sets of Bidding Documents must be used in preparing Bids.  

Neither OWNER nor ENGINEER assume any responsibility for errors or 
misinterpretations resulting from the use of incomplete sets of Bidding 
Documents. 

 
2.3  OWNER and ENGINEER in making copies of Bidding Documents 

available on the above terms do so only for the purpose of obtaining Bids on 
the Work and do not confer a license or grant for any other use.  

 
 
ARTICLE 3 - QUALIFICATIONS OF BIDDERS 
 

3.1  Bidders must be pre-qualified to bid on this project.  Bidders not currently 
pre-qualified for this Contract by the OWNER, ENGINEER or the Oregon 
State Department of Transportation may apply for pre-qualification by filing 
a completed pre-qualification statement with the ENGINEER on a form 
prescribed by the Oregon State Department of Transportation.  Bidders 
filing pre-qualification applications with the ENGINEER should file the 
statement no later than the scheduled date for receipt of Bids. 

 
ARTICLE 4 - EXAMINATION OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND SITE 
 

4.1  It is the responsibility of each Bidder before submitting a Bid, to (a) 
examine the Contract Documents thoroughly, (b) visit the site to become 
familiar with local conditions that may affect cost, progress, performance, or 
furnishing of the Work, (c) consider Federal, State and Local Laws and 



 

4 

 

Regulations that may affect cost, progress, performance or furnishing of the 
Work, (d) study and carefully correlate Bidder's observations with the 
Contract Documents, and (e) notify ENGINEER of all conflicts, errors, or 
discrepancies in the Contract Documents. 

 
4.2  Information and data reflected in the Contract Documents with respect to 

Underground Facilities at or contiguous to the site is based upon information 
and data furnished to OWNER and ENGINEER by owners of such 
Underground Facilities or others, and OWNER does not assume 
responsibility for the accuracy or completeness thereof unless it is expressly 
provided otherwise in the Supplementary Conditions. 

 
4.3  Provisions concerning responsibilities for the adequacy of data furnished to 

prospective Bidders on subsurface conditions, underground facilities and 
other physical conditions, and possible changes in the Contract Documents 
due to differing conditions appear in Article 5 of the General Conditions. 

 
4.4  Before submitting a Bid each Bidder will be responsible to make or obtain 

such explorations, tests, and data concerning physical conditions (surface, 
subsurface, and Underground Facilities) at or contiguous to the site, or 
otherwise which may affect cost, progress, performance, or furnishing of the 
Work and which Bidder deems necessary to determine its Bid for 
performing and furnishing the Work in accordance with the time, price, and 
other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents. 

 
4.5  On request in advance, OWNER will provide each bidder access to the site 

to conduct such explorations and tests as Bidder deems necessary for 
submission of a Bid.  Bidder shall fill all holes, clean up, and restore the site 
to its former condition upon completion of such explorations. 

 
4.6  The lands upon which the Work is to be performed, rights-of-way and 

easements for access thereto and other land designated for use by the 
Contractor in performing the Work are identified in the Contract 
Documents.  All additional lands and access thereto required for temporary 
construction facilities or storage of materials and equipment are to be 
provided by Contractor.  Easements for permanent structures or permanent 
changes in existing structures are to be obtained and paid for by OWNER 
unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents. 

 
4.7  The submission of a bid will constitute an incontrovertible representation by 

Bidder that Bidder has complied with every requirement of this ARTICLE 
4, that without exception the Bid is premised upon performing and 
furnishing the Work required by the Contract Documents and such means, 
methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction as may be 
indicated in or required by the Contract Documents, and that the Contract 
Documents are sufficient in scope and detail to indicate and convey 
understanding of all terms and conditions for performance and furnishing of 
the Work to complete the project. 

 
  



 

5 

 

ARTICLE 5 - INTERPRETATIONS AND ADDENDA 
 
 5.1  All questions about the meaning or intent of the Contract Documents are to 

be directed to the ENGINEER.  Interpretations or clarifications considered 
necessary by the ENGINEER in response to such questions will be issued 
by Addenda mailed or delivered to all parties recorded by ENGINEER as 
having received the Bidding Documents.  Questions received less than three 
days prior to the date for the opening of Bids may not be answered.  Only 
questions answered by formal written Addenda will be binding.  Oral and 
other interpretations or clarifications will be without legal effect. 

 
 5.2  Addenda may also be issued to modify the Bidding Documents as deemed 

advisable by OWNER or ENGINEER. 
 
 
ARTICLE 6 - BID SECURITY 
 
 6.1  Bid Security in the amount of five percent (5%) of the Base Bid must 

accompany each Bid proposal.  Bid Security may be in the form of a surety 
bond or cashier's check, but if it is a surety bond, it must comply with the 
requirements of Article 6 of the General Conditions.  If a surety bond is 
submitted as Bid Security, it shall be written on EJCDC NO. C-430, Bid 
Bond, or similar instrument, and the attorney-in-fact who executes the bond 
shall affix to the bond a current copy of his power of attorney.  Surety 
companies executing bonds must appear on the U.S. Treasury Department’s 
most current list (Circular 570 as amended) and be authorized to transact 
business in the state where the project is located.  

 
 6.2  The Bid security of the top three Bidder will be retained until the successful 

Bidder has executed the Agreement and furnished the required contract 
security, whereupon the Bid Securities will be returned.  If the Successful 
Bidder fails to execute and deliver the Agreement and furnish the required 
contract security within ten (10) days after the Notice of Award, OWNER 
may annul the Notice of Award and the Bid Security of that Bidder will be 
forfeited.  The Bid Security of other Bidders whom the OWNER believes to 
have a reasonable chance of receiving the award` may be retained by the 
OWNER until the earlier of the seventh day (7th) day after the Effective 
Date of the Agreement or the thirty first (31st) day after the Bid opening, 
whereupon Bid Security furnished by such Bidders will be returned.  Bid 
Security and Bids which are not competitive will be returned within seven 
(7) days after the Bid opening. 

 
 
ARTICLE 7 - CONTRACT TIME 
    

7.1  The number of days within which, or the dates by which, the Work is to be 
substantially completed and also completed and ready for final payment (the 
Contract Time) are set forth in the Agreement. 

 
 



 

6 

 

ARTICLE 8 - LIQUIDATED DAMAGES 
 
 8.1  Provisions for liquidated damages are set forth in the Agreement. Delay 

damages will be assessed for failure to achieve substantial completion 
AND/OR final completion as defined in the General Conditions. Liquidated 
damages shall be paid by the Contractor to the Owner or the OWNER may 
withhold damages from any amounts due to the Contractor. 

 
 
ARTICLE 9 - SUBSTITUTING "OR-EQUAL" ITEMS 
 
 9.1  The materials and equipment described in the Bidding Documents establish 

a standard of required function, dimension, appearance, and quality to be 
met by any proposed substitution.  All materials and equipment shall be as 
specified "or equal", without regard to the presence or lack of "or equal" 
verbiage in the specific specification unless noted otherwise.  No 
substitution will be considered unless written request for approval has been 
submitted by the Bidder and has been received by the ENGINEER at least 
seven (7) days prior to the date for receipt of Bids.  Each such request shall 
include the name of the material or equipment for which it is to be 
substituted and a complete description of the proposed substitute, including 
drawings, cuts, performance and test data and any other information 
necessary for an evaluation.  A statement setting forth any changes in other 
materials, equipment, or Work that incorporation of the substitution would 
require shall be included.  The burden of proof of the merit of the proposed 
substitution is upon the Bidder.  The ENGINEER'S decision of approval or 
disapproval of a proposed substitution shall be final.  If ENGINEER 
approves any proposed substitution, such approval will be set forth in an 
Addendum issued to all prospective Bidders.  Bidders shall not rely upon 
approvals made in any other manner. 

 
 
ARTICLE 10 - SUBCONTRACTORS, SUPPLIERS AND OTHERS 

 
10.1 The OWNER may require the identity of certain Subcontractors, Suppliers, and 

other persons and organizations (including those who are to furnish the principal 
items of material and equipment) to be submitted to OWNER in advance of the 
Notice of Award.  The apparent Successful Bidder, and any other Bidder if 
requested shall within seven (7) days after the Bid opening submit to the OWNER a 
list of all such Subcontractors, Suppliers, and other persons and organizations 
proposed for those portions of the Work for which such identification is required.  
Such list shall be accompanied by an experience statement with pertinent 
information regarding similar projects and other evidence of qualification of each 
such Subcontractor, Supplier, person or organization if requested by the OWNER.   

 
 10.2 If OWNER or ENGINEER after due investigation has reasonable objection to any 

proposed Subcontractor, Supplier, other person or organization, either may before 
the Notice of Award is given request the apparent Successful Bidder to submit an 
acceptable substitute in which case the apparent Successful Bidder shall submit an 
acceptable substitute, that Bidder's bid price will be increased (or decreased) by the 



 

7 

 

difference in cost occasioned by such substitution and OWNER may consider such 
price adjustment in evaluating Bids and making the contract award.  If apparent 
Successful Bidder declines to make any such substitution, OWNER may award the 
contract to the next lowest Bidder that proposes to use acceptable Subcontractors, 
Suppliers, and other persons and organizations.  The declining to make requested 
substitutions will not constitute grounds for sacrificing the Bid Security of any 
Bidder.   

 
 10.3 Any Subcontractor, Supplier, other person or organization listed and to whom 

OWNER or ENGINEER does not make written objection prior to the giving of the 
Notice of Award will be deemed acceptable to OWNER and ENGINEER, subject 
to revocation of such acceptance after the Effective Date of the Agreement as 
provided in Paragraph 7.06 of the General Conditions. 

 
 10.4 CONTRACTOR shall not be required to employ any Subcontractor, Supplier, 

individual, or entity against whom CONTRACTOR has reasonable objection. 
 
 
ARTICLE 11 - BID FORM 
 
 11.1 The Bid Form is included within the Contract Documents. 
 

11.2 Bid Forms must be completed in ink or by typewriter.  The Bid price of each item 
on the form must be stated in numerals. 

 
 11.3 Bids by corporations must be executed in the corporate name by the president or a 

vice-president (or other corporate officer accompanied by evidence of authority to 
sign) and the corporate seal must be affixed and attested by the secretary or an 
assistant secretary.  The corporate address and state of incorporation must be shown 
below the signature. 

 
11.4 Bids by partnerships must be executed in the partnership name and signed by a 

partner, whose title must appear under the signature and the official address of the 
partnership must be shown below the signature. 

 
 11.5 A Bid by a limited liability company shall be executed in the name of the firm by a 

member and accompanied by evidence of authority to sign. The state of formation 
of the firm and the official address of the firm must be shown below the signature. 

 
 11.6 A Bid by an individual shall show the Bidder’s name and official address.  
 
 11.7. A Bid by a joint venture shall be executed by each joint venture in the manner 

indicated on the Bid form. The official address of the joint venture must be shown 
below the signature. 

 
11.8 All names must be typed or printed below the signature. 

 
11.9 The bid shall contain an acknowledgment of receipt of all Addenda (the numbers of 

which must be filled in on the Bid Form). 
 



 

8 

 

11.10 The CCB Registration, business address and telephone number for communications 
regarding the Bid must be shown. 

 
 
ARTICLE 12 - SUBMISSION OF BIDS 
 
 12.1 To be responsive, bids shall be submitted at the time and place identified in the 

Advertisement or Invitation to Bid, be executed as detailed in these Instructions to 
Bidders and shall be enclosed in an opaque sealed envelope, marked with the 
Project Title (and, if applicable, the designated portion of the Project for which the 
Bid is submitted) and name and address of the Bidder and accompanied by the Bid 
Security and other required documents.  If the Bid is sent through the mail or other 
delivery system, the sealed envelope shall be enclosed in a separate envelope with 
the notation "BID ENCLOSED" on the face of it. 

 
12.2 To be responsive CONTRACTOR must complete, sign and submit the following 

documents: 
 
   a. Bid Proposal 
   b. Bid Bond 

c. First Tier Disclosure 
 
 
ARTICLE 13 - MODIFICATION AND WITHDRAWAL OF BIDS 
 

13.1 Bids may be modified or withdrawn by an appropriate document duly executed (in 
the manner that a Bid must be executed) and delivered to the place where the Bids 
are to be submitted at any time prior to the opening of Bids. 

 
13.2 If, within twenty-four hours after Bids are opened, any Bidder files a duly signed, 

written notice with OWNER and promptly thereafter demonstrates to the reasonable 
satisfaction of OWNER that there was a material and substantial mistake in the 
preparation of its Bid, that Bidder may withdraw its Bid and the Bid Security will 
be returned.  Thereafter, that Bidder will be disqualified from further bidding on the 
Work to be provided under the Contract Documents. 

 
 
ARTICLE 14 - OPENING OF BIDS 
 
 14.1 Bids will be opened and read aloud publicly.  An abstract of the amounts of the base 

Bids and major alternates (if any) may be made available to Bidders after the 
opening of the Bids. 

 
 
ARTICLE 15 - BIDS TO REMAIN SUBJECT TO ACCEPTANCE 
 
 15.1 All bids will remain subject to acceptance for thirty (30) days after the day of the 

Bid opening, but OWNER may, in its sole discretion, release any Bid and return the 
Bid Security prior to that date. 

 



 

9 

 

 
ARTICLE 16 - AWARD OF CONTRACT 
 

16.1 OWNER reserves the right to reject any and all Bids, to waive any and all 
informalities not involving price, time, or changes in the Work and to negotiate 
contract terms with the Successful Bidder, and the right to disregard all 
nonconforming, non-responsive, unbalanced, or conditional Bids.  Also, OWNER 
reserves the right to reject the Bid of any Bidder if OWNER determines the Bid to 
be non-responsive per ORS 279B.110.  In the event of discrepancy between the 
written and numerical amounts the written prices will govern.  Discrepancies in the 
multiplication of units of Work and unit price will be resolved in favor of the unit 
prices.  Discrepancies between the indicated sum of any column of figures and the 
correct sum thereof will be resolved in favor of the correct sum. 

 
16.2 In evaluating Bids, OWNER will consider the qualifications of the Bidders, whether 

or not the Bids comply with the prescribed requirements, and such alternates, unit 
prices, and other data, as may be requested in the Bid Form or prior to the Notice of 
Award. 

 
16.3 OWNER may consider the qualifications and experience of Subcontractors, 

Suppliers, and other persons and organizations proposed for those portions of the 
Work as to which the identity of Subcontractors, Suppliers, and other persons and 
organizations must be submitted as provided in the Supplementary Conditions. 

 
 OWNER also may consider the operating costs, maintenance requirements, 

performance data, and guarantees of major items of materials and equipment 
proposed for incorporation in the Work when such data is required to be submitted 
prior to the Notice of Award. 

 
16.4 OWNER may conduct such investigations as OWNER deems necessary to assist in 

the evaluation of any Bid and to establish the responsibility, qualifications and 
financial ability of Bidders, proposed Subcontractors, Suppliers, and other persons 
and organizations to perform and furnish the Work in accordance with the Contract 
Documents to OWNER'S satisfaction within the prescribed time. 

 
16.5 If the contract is to be awarded, the award will be based upon the lowest 

responsive/responsible bid for the total of the Basic Bid and such alternatives that in 
the sole judgement of the OWNER will best serve its interests. 

 
16.6 If the contract is to be awarded, OWNER will give the Successful Bidder a Notice 

of Award within thirty (30) days after the Bid opening. 
 
 16.7 More than one Bid for the same Work from an individual or entity under the same 

or different names will not be considered. Reasonable grounds for believing that 
any Bidder has an interest in more than one Bid for the Work may be cause for 
disqualification of that Bidder and the rejection of all Bids in which that Bidder has 
an interest. 

 
 



 

10 

 

ARTICLE 17 - CONTRACT SECURITY 
 
 17.1 Prior to execution of the Contract, the Bidder shall furnish separate bonds covering 

the faithful performance of the Contract and the payment of all obligations arising 
thereunder, each in an amount equal to 100 percent of the Contract Sum.  The cost 
of the furnishing of such bonds shall be included in the Bid.  The Surety issuing 
such bonds shall be licensed to issue bonds in the State of Oregon.  Such bonds 
shall comply with the provisions of Article 6 of the General Conditions. 

 
 
ARTICLE 18 - SIGNING OF AGREEMENT 
 
 18.1 When OWNER gives a Notice of Award to the Successful Bidder, it will be 

accompanied by three unsigned counterparts of the Agreement with all other written 
Contract Documents attached. Within ten (10) days thereafter, Contractor shall sign 
and deliver the counterparts of the Agreement and attached documents to OWNER 
with the required Bonds. Within twenty-five (25) days thereafter, OWNER shall 
deliver one fully signed counterpart to Contractor. Each counterpart shall include a 
complete set of Drawings attached by reference. 

 
 
ARTICLE 19 - CONFERENCES 
 
 19.1 PRE-BID CONFERENCE 
 
  If a pre-bid conference is specified in the Notice to Contractors, it shall be non-

mandatory. If so scheduled, representatives of OWNER and ENGINEER will be 
present to discuss the Project. Bidders are encouraged to attend and participate in 
the conference. ENGINEER will transmit to all prospective Bidders of record such 
Addenda as ENGINEER considers necessary in response to questions arising at the 
conference. Oral statements may not be relied upon and will not be binding or 
legally effective.  The time and date of the pre-bid meeting will be provided by the 
Engineer. 

 
 

19.2 PRECONSTRUCTION CONFERENCE 
 
  Either before or soon after the actual award of the Contract (but in any event prior 

to the start of Work at the site), the Contractor or his representative, and his 
subcontractors, shall attend a Preconstruction Conference with representatives of 
the OWNER, the funding agencies and the ENGINEER.  The Conference will be 
held for review and acceptance of schedules referred to in paragraph 2.04 of the 
General Conditions, to establish procedures for handling shop drawings and other 
submittal and for processing applications for payment, and to acquaint the 
participants with the general plan of contract administration and requirements under 
which the construction operation is to proceed.  The date, time, and place of the 
Conference will be furnished to the Contractor by the OWNER.  The Contractor 
will notify his subcontractors of the Conference and require their attendance. 

 
 



 

11 

 

ARTICLE 20 - IDENTIFICATION 
 

20.1 The word "OWNER" as used herein refers to the CITY OF OAKRIDGE, as 
identified in the proposal, with whom the CONTRACTOR will enter into an 
agreement for the work.  The OWNER shall be responsible for actions requested by 
the ENGINEER including payment in accordance with the terms of the Contract. 

 
20.2 The word "ENGINEER" as used throughout these documents refers to the firm of 

CURRAN-McLEOD, INC. Consulting Engineers. All correspondence, notifications 
and requests of the OWNER by the CONTRACTOR shall be through the 
ENGINEER. 

 
20.3 The word "CONTRACTOR" refers to the corporation, partnership or sole 

proprietorship which enters into a contractual obligation with the OWNER to 
complete the work.  Subcontractors shall not be recognized. 

 
    
ARTICLE 21 - FIRST -TIER SUBCONTRACTOR DISCLOSURE 
 
 21.1  Within two working hours after the date and time of the deadline when bids are due 

to a contracting agency for a public improvement contract, a bidder shall submit to 
the contracting agency a disclosure of the first-tier subcontractors that: 

 
(A) Will be furnishing labor or will be furnishing labor and materials in 

connection with the public improvement contract; and 
 

(B) Will have a contract value that is equal to or greater than five percent 
of the total project bid, or $15,000, whichever is greater, or $350,000 
regardless of the percentage of the total project bid. 

 
  
 21.2 The disclosure of first-tier subcontractors under this subsection must include the 

name of each subcontractor, the category of work that each subcontractor will 
perform and the dollar value of each subcontract.  The information shall be 
disclosed in the form provided in this bid document. 

 
 21.3 If the Bidder will not be using any Subcontractors that are subject to the above 

disclosure requirements, you are required to indicate “NONE” on the accompanying 
form. 

 
 21.4 THE OWNER MUST REJECT A BID IF THE BIDDER FAILS TO SUBMIT 

THE DISCLOSURE FORM WITH THIS INFORMATION BY THE STATED 
DEADLINE, EVEN IF NO SUBCONTRACTORS ARE LARGE ENOUGH TO 
BE DISCLOSED PER OAR 125-249-0360. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

12 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 
 

  



 BID PROPOSAL



BID PROPOSAL 



 

13 

 

BID PROPOSAL  
 
TO:     Mr. Bryan Cutchen. __________________, 2021 

City Administrator 

City of Oakridge 

PO Box 1410 

Oakridge, OR 97463 
 
The undersigned is a (indicate one): 
 
   RESIDENT  NON-RESIDENT 
 
bidder as defined by ORS 279A.120, structured as (check one of the following and insert 
information requested): 
 
  a. A Corporation organized and existing under laws of the State of                    ; or 
 
  b. A Partnership registered under the laws of the State of                                ; or 
 
  c. An individual doing business under an assumed name registered under the laws of the State 

of                                 . 
 
The undersigned bidder declares that the only persons or parties interested in this proposal are 
those named herein, that this proposal is in all respects fair and without fraud and that it is made 
without collusion with any representatives of the OWNER. 
 
The bidder further declares that: a) he has examined the plans, specifications, and other proposed 
contract documents; b) he has determined the extent, character, and location of the proposed Work, 
the nature and type of excavation to be done, the location and condition of existing streets and 
roadways giving access to the site of the Work, and topography of the site of the Work; and c) he 
has personally inspected the site of the Work and has satisfied himself as to the conditions of the 
Work and understands the listing of materials as included herein is brief and is intended only to 
associate the said quantities with detailed requirements of the contract documents. 
 
The bidder does hereby propose to furnish all materials, tools, equipment, and appliances, and to 
perform all labor and work necessary to construct and complete the project entitled: 
 

City of Oakridge 
2021 STREET OVERLAY - BERRY STREET & GARDEN ROAD 

 
and all specified work appurtenant thereto, and in connection with this project for the OWNER 
with the time limit specified, and in accordance with plans, specifications and change order 
documents prepared by the ENGINEER for the sums set forth in the following schedule of prices, 
it being understood that the unit prices are independent of the exact quantities involved and that 
they represent a true measure of the labor and materials required to perform the Work. 
 
The successful bidder agrees that if this proposal is accepted, bidder will execute the required 
documents and supply the required submittal information as specified herein, within the time 
frames established herein. 



 

14 

 

 
The successful bidder agrees to be substantially complete with all work within 60 days of the 
Notice to Proceed and achieve final completion within 10 calendar days after issuance of the 
Certificate of Substantial Completion including punch list items.  All work must be completed by 
July 21, 2021.   
 
In the event the successful bidder fails to achieve Substantial Completion or Final Completion of 
the project within the time limits specified or extended time limits as agreed upon, liquidated 
damages shall be paid to the OWNER or deducted from amounts due the Contractor, at the rate of 
Four Hundred Dollars ($400.00) per calendar day until Substantial Completion is achieved, and/or 
until Final Completion is achieved. Sundays and legal holidays shall be excluded in determining 
the number of days in default. The Project will be awarded based on the low responsive bid for all 
the work listed in the combination of basic bid Schedule A and B below.  
 
BASIC BID SCHEDULE – BERRY ST. & GARDEN RD. ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS: 
 
SCHEDULE A – BERRY STREET 
 

 
Item 

No. 

 
Description 

 
Quantity 

 
Unit 

 
Unit Price 

 
Total 

 
  A.   Site Preparation 
 
A.1 

 
Mobilization  

 
All 

 
LS   

 
A.2 

 
Temporary Protect & Direction of Traffic Erosion Control  

 
All 

 
LS   

 
A.3 

 
Saw Cut AC & Concrete  224 

 
LF   

 
A.4 

 
Common Excavation  100 

 
CY   

 
Subtotal 

 
 

 
  B.   Paving and Surfacing   
 
B.1 1” Minus Crushed Rock Base (12” Deep) 

 
250 

 
SY   

 
B.2 

 
2" Dense Mix AC Pavement, Level 2 For 2" Overlay 

 
175 Tons   

B.3 2” Dense Mix AC Pavement, Level 2 For Base Repair 25 Tons   
 

B.4 Geotextile Fabric 
 

1,350 SY   

B.5 Minor Manhole Adjustment 
 

1 
 

LS   
 

Subtotal  

Total Schedule A 
 

 



 

15 

 

SCHEDULE B – GARDEN ROAD 
 

 
Item 

No. 

 
Description 

 
Quantity 

 
Unit 

 
Unit Price 

 
Total 

 
  A.   Site Preparation 
 
A.1 

 
Mobilization  

 
All 

 
LS   

 
A.2 

 
Temporary Protect & Direction of Traffic Erosion Control  

 
All 

 
LS   

 
A.3 

 
Saw Cut AC & Concrete  180 

 
LF   

 
A.4 

 
Common Excavation  200 

 
CY   

 
Subtotal 

 
 

 
  B.   Paving and Surfacing   
 
B.1 1” Minus Crushed Rock Base (12” Deep) 

 
350 

 
SY   

 
B.2 

 
2" Dense Mix AC Pavement, Level 2 For 2" Overlay 

 
215 Tons   

B.3 2” Dense Mix AC Pavement, Level 2 For Base Repair 40 Tons   
 

B.4 Geotextile Fabric 
 

1,775 SY   

B.5 Minor Manhole Adjustment 1 LS   
 

Subtotal  

Total Schedule B 
 

 
 

GRAND TOTAL BASIC BID - SCHEDULE A AND SCHEDULE B: 
 

GRAND TOTAL BASIC BID 
    

   

 
Accompanying herewith is Bid Security which is equal to five percent (5%) of the total amount of 
the Basic Bid. 
 
  



 

16 

 

The undersigned agrees, if awarded the Contract, to execute and deliver to the OWNER within 

fifteen (15) days after receiving the Contract forms, an Agreement and satisfactory Construction 

Performance and Construction Payment Bonds each in an amount equal to one hundred percent 

(100%) of the Contract sum, using forms provided therefor by the OWNER.  The Surety requested 

to issue the Construction Performance Bond will be: 

   
 (Name of Surety Company) 

   
 (Agent Name & Phone Number) 
 
The undersigned hereby authorizes said Surety to disclose any information to the OWNER concerning 
the undersigned's ability to supply a Construction Performance Bond in the amount of the Contract. 
 
The undersigned certifies that (1) this Bid has been arrived at independently and is being submitted 
without collusion with, and without any agreement, understanding, or planned common course of 
action with, any other vendor of materials, supplies, equipment, or services described in the 
Advertisement for Bids designed to limit independent bidding or competition, (2) the contents of this 
Bid have not been communicated by the undersigned or its employees or agents to any person not an 
employee or agent of the undersigned or its surety on any bond furnished with the Bid and will not be 
communicated to such person prior to the official opening of the bids, and (3) if awarded the Contract, 
he will commence work within ten (10) calendar days after the date of  Notice to Proceed and that he 
will complete the Work within the specified number of days set forth in the Agreement. 
 
The undersigned certifies that he has received and duly considered the following Addenda to the 
specifications. 
 
Addenda:     No.                to No.                inclusive. 
 
The undersigned agrees if awarded the Contract, that he will comply with the provisions of the Contract 
Documents and will comply with the provisions of ORS 279C.800 and Oregon Prevailing Wage Rates. 
 
Name of Firm               
 
Signature               
 
Name                
 
Address               
 
Telephone No. & Email Address             
 
Construction Contractors Board No.   #          
 
If Corporation, 
Attest:                
      Secretary of Corporation 
 
*If bid is by a partnership, then one of the partners must sign the bid. 



 BID BOND 



BID BOND 



PENAL SUM FORM 

EJCDC® C-430, Bid Bond (Penal Sum Form). Published 2013. 
Prepared by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee.  

Page 1 of 2 

 

BID BOND 

Any singular reference to Bidder, Surety, Owner or other party shall be considered plural where applicable. 

BIDDER (Name and Address): 
  

  

  

SURETY (Name, and Address of Principal Place of Business): 
  

  

  

OWNER (Name and Address): 
  

  

  

BID 
 Bid Due Date:  

 Description (Project Name— Include Location): 
  

BOND 

 Bond Number:  

 Date:  

 Penal sum  $ 

  (Words)  (Figures) 
Surety and Bidder, intending to be legally bound hereby, subject to the terms set forth below, do each cause 
this Bid Bond to be duly executed by an authorized officer, agent, or representative. 
BIDDER SURETY 

 (Seal)  (Seal) 

Bidder’s Name and Corporate Seal Surety’s Name and Corporate Seal 
 

By:  By:  

 Signature  Signature (Attach Power of Attorney) 
   

    

 Print Name  Print Name 
   

    

 Title  Title 
 

Attest:  Attest:  

 Signature  Signature 
   

 Title  Title 

Note: Addresses are to be used for giving any required notice. 
 Provide execution by any additional parties, such as joint venturers, if necessary.  



PENAL SUM FORM 

EJCDC® C-430, Bid Bond (Penal Sum Form). Published 2013. 
Prepared by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee.  

Page 2 of 2 

 

1. Bidder and Surety, jointly and severally, bind themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and 
assigns to pay to Owner upon default of Bidder the penal sum set forth on the face of this Bond.  Payment of the 
penal sum is the extent of Bidder’s and Surety’s liability.  Recovery of such penal sum under the terms of this Bond 
shall be Owner’s sole and exclusive remedy upon default of Bidder.  

2. Default of Bidder shall occur upon the failure of Bidder to deliver within the time required by the Bidding 
Documents (or any extension thereof agreed to in writing by Owner) the executed Agreement required by the Bidding 
Documents and any performance and payment bonds required by the Bidding Documents. 

3. This obligation shall be null and void if: 

3.1 Owner accepts Bidder’s Bid and Bidder delivers within the time required by the Bidding Documents (or any 
extension thereof agreed to in writing by Owner) the executed Agreement required by the Bidding 
Documents and any performance and payment bonds required by the Bidding Documents, or 

3.2 All Bids are rejected by Owner, or 

3.3 Owner fails to issue a Notice of Award to Bidder within the time specified in the Bidding Documents (or any 
extension thereof agreed to in writing by Bidder and, if applicable, consented to by Surety when required 
by Paragraph 5 hereof). 

4. Payment under this Bond will be due and payable upon default of Bidder and within 30 calendar days after 
receipt by Bidder and Surety of written notice of default from Owner, which notice will be given with reasonable 
promptness, identifying this Bond and the Project and including a statement of the amount due. 

5. Surety waives notice of any and all defenses based on or arising out of any time extension to issue Notice of 
Award agreed to in writing by Owner and Bidder, provided that the total time for issuing Notice of Award including 
extensions shall not in the aggregate exceed 120 days from the Bid due date without Surety’s written consent. 

6. No suit or action shall be commenced under this Bond prior to 30 calendar days after the notice of default 
required in Paragraph 4 above is received by Bidder and Surety and in no case later than one year after the Bid due 
date. 

7. Any suit or action under this Bond shall be commenced only in a court of competent jurisdiction located in the 
state in which the Project is located. 

8. Notices required hereunder shall be in writing and sent to Bidder and Surety at their respective addresses shown 
on the face of this Bond. Such notices may be sent by personal delivery, commercial courier, or by United States 
Registered or Certified Mail, return receipt requested, postage pre-paid, and shall be deemed to be effective upon 
receipt by the party concerned. 

9. Surety shall cause to be attached to this Bond a current and effective Power of Attorney evidencing the authority 
of the officer, agent, or representative who executed this Bond on behalf of Surety to execute, seal, and deliver such 
Bond and bind the Surety thereby. 

10. This Bond is intended to conform to all applicable statutory requirements. Any applicable requirement of any 
applicable statute that has been omitted from this Bond shall be deemed to be included herein as if set forth at 
length. If any provision of this Bond conflicts with any applicable statute, then the provision of said statute shall 
govern and the remainder of this Bond that is not in conflict therewith shall continue in full force and effect. 

11. The term “Bid” as used herein includes a Bid, offer, or proposal as applicable. 



 FIRST-TIER DISCLOSURE STATEMENT 



FIRST-TIER DISCLOSURE STATEMENT 



W
H

-1
7
9
 (

0
8
-1

0
-1

0
) 

F
IR

S
T

-T
IE

R
 S

U
B

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R

 D
IS

C
L

O
S

U
R

E
 

 
 

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 N
A

M
E

: 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
B

ID
 #

: 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
B

ID
 C

L
O

S
IN

G
: 

D
a

te
: 

 
 
 
 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

T
im

e
: 
 
 
 
 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
  

T
h
is

 f
o
rm

 m
u
s
t 
b
e
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 a

t 
th

e
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n

 s
p
e
c
if
ie

d
 i
n
 t
h
e

 I
n

v
it
a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 B

id
 o

n
 t

h
e
 a

d
v
e
rt

is
e
d
 b

id
 c

lo
s
in

g
 d

a
te

 a
n

d
 w

it
h
in

 t
w

o
 w

o
rk

in
g
 h

o
u
rs

 a
ft

e
r 

th
e
 a

d
v
e
rt

is
e

d
 b

id
 

c
lo

s
in

g
 t
im

e
. 

  L
is

t 
b

e
lo

w
 t
h

e
 n

a
m

e
 o

f 
e
a
c
h
 s

u
b
c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
th

a
t 

w
ill

 b
e
 f

u
rn

is
h
in

g
 l
a

b
o
r 

o
r 

w
ill

 b
e
 f

u
rn

is
h
in

g
 l
a
b

o
r 

a
n

d
 m

a
te

ri
a
ls

 a
n
d

 t
h
a
t 

is
 r

e
q
u

ir
e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 d

is
c
lo

s
e
d

, 
th

e
 c

a
te

g
o
ry

 o
f 

w
o
rk

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 s

u
b
c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
w

ill
 b

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

in
g
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

 d
o
lla

r 
v
a

lu
e
 o

f 
th

e
 s

u
b
c
o

n
tr

a
c
t.
 E

n
te

r 
“N

O
N

E
” 

if
 t
h
e
re

 a
re

 n
o
 s

u
b
c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

rs
 t
h
a
t 

n
e
e
d

 t
o
 b

e
 d

is
c
lo

s
e

d
. 

(A
T

T
A

C
H

 A
D

D
IT

IO
N

A
L

 S
H

E
E

T
S

 I
F

 N
E

E
D

E
D

.)
 

N
A

M
E

 
D

O
L

L
A

R
 V

A
L

U
E

 
C

A
T

E
G

O
R

Y
 O

F
 W

O
R

K
 

(1
) 

 
 
 
 

 
  
  

$
  

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

(2
) 

 
 
 
 

 
  
  

$
  

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

(3
) 

 
 
 
 

 
  
  

$
  

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

(4
) 

 
 
 
 

 
  
  

$
  

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

(5
) 

 
 
 
 

 
  
  

$
  

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

(6
) 

 
 
 
 

 
  
  

$
  

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

(7
) 

 
 
 
 

 
  
  

$
  

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

(8
) 

 
 
 
 

 
  
  

$
  

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

(9
) 

 
 
 
 

 
  
  

$
  

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

F
a
ilu

re
 t

o
 s

u
b
m

it
 t

h
is

 f
o
rm

 b
y
 t

h
e
 d

is
c
lo

s
u
re

 d
e
a

d
lin

e
 w

ill
 r

e
s
u
lt
 i
n

 a
 n

o
n

-r
e
s
p

o
n

s
iv

e
 b

id
. 

A
 n

o
n

-r
e

s
p
o

n
s
iv

e
 b

id
 w

ill
 n

o
t 

b
e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 f

o
r 

a
w

a
rd

. 
 F

o
rm

 s
u

b
m

it
te

d
 b

y
 (

b
id

d
e

r 
n

a
m

e
):

 
 
 
 
 
 

 C
o

n
ta

c
t 
n

a
m

e
: 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
P

h
o
n

e
 n

o
.:
 (

 
 
 
) 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

O
R

S
 2

7
9
C

.3
7
0
 F

ir
s
t-

ti
e
r 

s
u

b
c

o
n

tr
a
c
to

r 
d

is
c
lo

s
u

re
. 

(1
)(

a
) 

W
it
h
in

 t
w

o
 w

o
rk

in
g
 h

o
u
rs

 a
ft

e
r 

th
e
 d

a
te

 a
n
d
 t

im
e
 o

f 
th

e
 d

e
a
d
lin

e
 w

h
e
n
 b

id
s
 a

re
 d

u
e
 t

o
 a

 c
o
n
tr

a
c
ti
n

g
 a

g
e
n
c
y
 f

o
r 

a
 p

u
b
lic

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
t,
 

a
 b

id
d
e
r 

s
h
a
ll 

s
u
b
m

it
 t

o
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
ti
n

g
 a

g
e
n
c
y
 a

 d
is

c
lo

s
u
re

 o
f 
th

e
 f

ir
s
t-

ti
e

r 
s
u
b
c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

rs
 t

h
a
t:

 
(A

) 
W

ill
 b

e
 f
u
rn

is
h
in

g
 l
a

b
o
r 

o
r 

w
ill

 b
e
 f
u
rn

is
h
in

g
 l
a

b
o
r 

a
n
d
 m

a
te

ri
a

ls
 i
n

 c
o
n
n
e
c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 p

u
b
lic

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
t;
 a

n
d

 
(B

) 
W

ill
 h

a
v
e
 a

 c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
v
a
lu

e
 t

h
a
t 

is
 e

q
u
a
l 
to

 o
r 

g
re

a
te

r 
th

a
n
 f
iv

e
 p

e
rc

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 t
o
ta

l 
p
ro

je
c
t 
b
id

 o
r 

$
1
5
,0

0
0
, 
w

h
ic

h
e
v
e
r 

is
 g

re
a
te

r,
 o

r 
$
3
5
0
,0

0
0
 r

e
g
a

rd
le

s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 t

o
ta

l 
p
ro

je
c
t 

b
id

. 
 

(b
) 

F
o

r 
e
a
c
h
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

to
 w

h
ic

h
 t

h
is

 s
u
b
s
e
c
ti
o

n
 a

p
p
lie

s
, 

th
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
ti
n

g
 a

g
e
n
c
y
 s

h
a
ll 

d
e
s
ig

n
a
te

 a
 d

e
a
d
lin

e
 f

o
r 

s
u
b
m

is
s
io

n
 o

f 
b
id

s
 t

h
a
t 

h
a
s
 a

 d
a
te

 o
n
 a

 T
u

e
s
d
a
y
, 

W
e
d
n
e
s
d
a
y
 o

r 
T

h
u
rs

d
a
y
 a

n
d
 a

 t
im

e
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 2

 p
.m

. 
a
n
d
 5

 p
.m

.,
 e

x
c
e
p
t 

th
a
t 
th

is
 p

a
ra

g
ra

p
h
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 
a
p
p
ly

 t
o
 p

u
b
lic

 c
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 f
o
r 

m
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 o

r 
c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
h
ig

h
w

a
y
s
, 

b
ri

d
g
e
s
 o

r 
o
th

e
r 

tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt

a
ti
o

n
 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
. 

 
(c

) 
T

h
is

 s
u
b
s
e
c
ti
o

n
 a

p
p
lie

s
 o

n
ly

 t
o
 p

u
b
lic

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 (
“
p
ro
je
c
ts
”
) 

w
it
h
 a

 v
a
lu

e
, 

e
s
ti
m

a
te

d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
ti
n

g
 a

g
e
n
c
y
, 
o
f 
m

o
re

 t
h
a
n
 $

1
0
0
,0

0
0
. 

 
(d

) 
T

h
is

 s
u
b
s
e
c
ti
o

n
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 
a
p
p
ly

 t
o
 p

u
b
lic

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 t
h
a
t 
h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 e

x
e
m

p
te

d
 f

ro
m

 c
o
m

p
e
ti
ti
v
e
 b

id
d
in

g
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 u
n
d
e
r 

O
R

S
 2

7
9
C

.3
3
5
 (

2
).

 
(2

) 
T

h
e
 d

is
c
lo

s
u
re

 o
f 

fi
rs

t-
ti
e

r 
s
u
b
c
o
n

tr
a
c
to

rs
 u

n
d
e
r 

s
u
b
s
e
c
ti
o

n
 (

1
) 

o
f 

th
is

 s
e
c
ti
o

n
 m

u
s
t 

in
c
lu

d
e
 t

h
e
 n

a
m

e
 o

f 
e
a
c
h
 s

u
b
c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r,
 t

h
e
 c

a
te

g
o
ry

 o
f 

w
o
rk

 t
h
a
t 

e
a
c
h
 s

u
b
c
o
n
tr

a
c

to
r 

w
ill

 p
e

rf
o
rm

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 d

o
lla

r 
v
a
lu

e
 o

f 
e
a
c
h
 s

u
b
c
o
n
tr

a
c
t.
 T

h
e
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 s

h
a
ll 

b
e
 d

is
c
lo

s
e
d
 i
n
 s

u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a

lly
 t
h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 [

a
b
o
v
e
] 

fo
rm

: 
 

(3
) 

A
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
ti
n

g
 a

g
e
n
c
y
 s

h
a
ll 

a
c
c
e
p
t 

th
e
 s

u
b
c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
d
is

c
lo

s
u
re

. 
T

h
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
ti
n

g
 a

g
e
n
c
y
 s

h
a
ll 

c
o
n
s
id

e
r 

th
e
 b

id
 o

f 
a
n
y
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
th

a
t 

d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 

s
u
b
m

it
 a

 s
u
b
c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
d
is

c
lo

s
u
re

 t
o
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
ti
n

g
 

a
g
e
n
c
y
 t

o
 b

e
 a

 n
o

n
-r

e
s
p
o
n
s
iv

e
 b

id
 a

n
d
 m

a
y
 n

o
t 

a
w

a
rd

 t
h
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

to
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r.
 A

 c
o
n
tr

a
c
ti
n

g
 a

g
e
n
c
y
 i

s
 n

o
t 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 t

o
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 t

h
e
 a

c
c
u
ra

c
y
 o

r 
th

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
n
e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 s

u
b
c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
d
is

c
lo

s
u
re

. 
(4

) 
A

ft
e
r 

th
e
 b

id
s
 a

re
 o

p
e
n
e
d
, 
th

e
 s

u
b
c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
d
is

c
lo

s
u
re

s
 m

u
s
t 

b
e
 m

a
d
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

p
u
b
lic

 i
n

s
p
e
c
ti
o

n
. 

(5
) 

A
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
m

a
y
 s

u
b
s
ti
tu

te
 a

 f
ir
s
t-

ti
e

r 
s
u
b
c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
u
n
d
e
r 

th
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
s
 o

f 
O

R
S

 2
7
9
C

.5
8
5
. 

(6
) 

A
 s

u
b
c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
m

a
y
 f
ile

 a
 c

o
m

p
la

in
t 

u
n
d
e
r 

O
R

S
 2

7
9
C

.5
9
0
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 d

is
c
lo

s
u
re

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 
s
u
b
s
e
c
ti
o

n
 (

1
) 

o
f 

th
is

 s
e
c
ti
o

n
. 

 

 



This Page Intentionally Left Blank



 CONTRACT FOR CONSTRUCTION 



CONTRACT FOR CONSTRUCTION 



 

21 

 

CONTRACT FOR CONSTRUCTION 

 

 

THIS AGREEMENT is dated as of the ____ day of ___________ in the year 2021 by and between 

 

 CITY OF OAKRIDGE   

      (hereinafter called OWNER) and  

 

                                                        

            (hereinafter called CONTRACTOR) 

 

 

OWNER and CONTRACTOR, in consideration of the mutual covenants hereinafter set forth, 

agree as follows: 

 

 

ARTICLE 1 - WORK 

 

CONTRACTOR shall complete all Work as specified or indicated in the Contract 

Documents: 

 

City of Oakridge 

2021 Street Overlay - Berry Street & Garden Road 
 
The scope of work generally consists of a 2” street overlay on Berry Street from Rainbow Road to 
Rock Road, a length of approximately 625 feet and a 2” street overlay on Garden Road from 
Riverview Street to the end of Horton Park, a length of approximately 585 feet.  In addition to the 
overlays, the work will also include limited areas of road restoration including sub-base placement 
and asphalt patching on both roadways prior to overlay.  
            

ARTICLE 2 - ENGINEER 

 

The Project has been designed by CURRAN-McLEOD, INC., Consulting Engineers, who is 

hereinafter called ENGINEER and who will assume all duties and responsibilities and will 

have the rights and authority assigned to ENGINEER in the Contract Documents in 

connection with completion of the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents. 

 

 

ARTICLE 3 - CONTRACT TIME 

 

 3.1 The Work will be substantially completed within 60 calendar days after the date 

when the Contract Time commences to run as provided in paragraph 4.01 of the 

General Conditions and completed and ready for final payment in accordance with 

Paragraph 15.06 of the General Conditions within 10 days after the date when the 

issuance of the Certificate of Substantial Completion including punch list items.  

All work must be completed by July 21, 2021. 

 



 

22 

 

 3.2 Liquidated Damages:  OWNER and CONTRACTOR recognize that time is of the 

essence of this Agreement and that OWNER will suffer financial loss if the Work is 

not substantially complete within the time specified in paragraph 3.1 above, plus 

any extensions thereof allowed in accordance with Article 12 of the General 

Conditions.  They also recognize the delays, expense and difficulties involved in 

proving in a legal proceeding the actual loss suffered by OWNER if the Work is not 

substantially complete on time. 

 

   Accordingly, instead of requiring any such proof, OWNER and CONTRACTOR 

agree that as liquidated damages for delay (but not as a penalty) CONTRACTOR 

shall pay OWNER or the OWNER may withhold from amounts due the 

CONTRACTOR Four Hundred Dollars ($400.00) for each day that expires after the 

time specified in paragraph 3.1. for Substantial Completion until the Work is 

substantially complete AND/OR for each day of delay beyond the deadline for 

Final Completion.  

 

 

ARTICLE 4 - CONTRACT PRICE 

 

 4.1 OWNER shall pay CONTRACTOR for performance of the Work in accordance 

with the Contract Documents in current funds by check, an amount totaling  

 

  ____________________________________ Dollars 

 

   ($  ) as shown in the attached Bid Proposal. 

 

 

ARTICLE 5 - PAYMENT PROCEDURES 

 

CONTRACTOR shall submit Applications for Payment in accordance with Article 15 of the 

General Conditions.  Applications for Payment will be processed by ENGINEER as provided 

in the General Conditions. 

 

 5.1 Progress Payments:  OWNER shall make progress payments on account of the 

Contract Price on the basis of CONTRACTOR'S Applications for Payment as 

recommended by ENGINEER, on or about the 25th day of each month during 

construction as provided below.  All progress payments will be on the basis of the 

progress of the Work measured by the schedule of values provided for in paragraph 

2.03 of the General Conditions. 

 

  5.1.1 Prior to Substantial Completion progress payments will be in an amount equal to: 

 

(a) 95 % of the Work completed; and 

    (b) 95 % of materials and equipment not incorporated in the Work but delivered 

and suitably stored, less in each case the aggregate of payments previously 

made. 

 



 

23 

 

  5.1.2 Upon Substantial Completion, OWNER shall pay an amount sufficient to increase 

total payments to CONTRACTOR to 95% of the value of the Contract Work 

completed, less such amounts as ENGINEER shall determine in accordance with 

paragraph 15.01 of the General Conditions. 

 

 5.2 Final Payment:  Upon final completion and acceptance of the Work in accordance 

with paragraph 15.06 of the General Conditions, OWNER shall pay the remainder 

of the value of the Contract Work completed, as recommended by ENGINEER as 

provided in said paragraph 15.06. 

 

 

ARTICLE 6 - INTEREST 

 

All monies not paid when due hereunder shall bear interest at the maximum rate allowed by 

law at the place of the Project, when requested in accordance with ORS 279C.570  

 

 

ARTICLE 7 - CONTRACTOR'S REPRESENTATIONS 

 

In order to induce OWNER to enter into this Agreement CONTRACTOR makes the 

following representations: 

 

 7.1 CONTRACTOR has familiarized himself with the nature and extent of the Contract 

Documents, Work, locality, and with all local conditions and federal, state and local 

laws, ordinances, rules and regulations that in any manner may affect cost, progress 

or performance of the Work. 

 

 7.2 CONTRACTOR has studied carefully all reports of investigations and tests of 

subsurface and latent physical conditions at the site or otherwise affecting cost, 

progress or performance of the Work which were relied upon by ENGINEER in the 

preparation of the Drawings and Specifications and which have been identified in 

the Supplementary Conditions. 

 7.3 CONTRACTOR has made or caused to be made examinations, investigations and 

tests and studies of such reports and related data in addition to those referred to in 

paragraph 7.2 as he deems necessary for the performance of the Work at the 

Contract Price, within the Contract Time and in accordance with the other terms 

and conditions of the Contract Documents; and no additional examinations, 

investigations, tests, reports or similar data are or will be required by 

CONTRACTOR for such purposes. 

 

 7.4 CONTRACTOR has correlated the results of all such observations, examinations, 

investigations, tests, reports and data with the terms and conditions of the Contract 

Documents. 

 

 7.5 CONTRACTOR has given ENGINEER written notice of all conflicts, errors or 

discrepancies that he has discovered in the Contract Documents and the written 

resolution thereof by ENGINEER is acceptable to CONTRACTOR. 



 

24 

 

 

ARTICLE 8 - CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

 

 8.1 This Agreement 

 

 8.2 Exhibits to this Agreement. 

 

8.3 Performance and other Bonds 

 

8.4 Notice of Award. 

 

8.5 General Conditions of the Construction Contract 

 

8.6 Supplementary Conditions 

 

8.7 Technical Specifications as listed in the Table of Contents. 
 

8.8 Drawings & Specifications bearing the following general title: 

     

City of Oakridge 

2021 STREET OVERLAY - BERRY STREET & GARDEN ROAD 

  

8.9 Addenda numbers          . 

 

 8.10 CONTRACTOR'S Bid   

 

 8.11 Any Modification, including Change Orders, duly delivered after execution of 

Agreement. 

 

There are no Contract Documents other than those listed above in this ARTICLE 8.  The 

Contract Documents may only be altered, amended or repealed by a Modification (as defined 

in Article 1 of the General Conditions). 

 

ARTICLE 9 - MISCELLANEOUS 

 

9.1 Terms used in this Agreement which are defined in Article 1 of the General 

Conditions shall have the meanings indicated in the General Conditions. 

 

9.2 No assignment by a party hereto of any rights under or interests in the Contract 

Documents will be binding on another party hereto without the written consent of 

the party sought to be bound; and specifically by without limitation, moneys that 

may become due and moneys that are due may not be assigned without such 

consent (except to the extent that the effect of this restriction may be limited by 

law), and unless specifically stated to the contrary in any written consent to an 

assignment no assignment will release or discharge the assignor from any duty or 

responsibility under the Contract Documents. 

 



 

25 

 

 9.3 OWNER and CONTRACTOR each binds himself, his partners, successors, assigns 

and legal representatives to the other party hereto, his partners, successors, assigns 

and legal representatives in respect to all covenants, agreements and obligations 

contained in the Contract Documents. 

 

 9.4 In the event a suit, arbitration or other legal action is required by either the OWNER 

or the CONTRACTOR to enforce any provisions of this Agreement, the prevailing 

parties shall be entitled to all reasonable costs and reasonable attorney's fees upon 

trial or subsequent appeal. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have signed three counterparts of this Agreement. 

 

This Agreement will be effective on      ,2021. 

 

OWNER:  CONTRACTOR: 

City of Oakridge    

48318 East 1st Street, PO Box 1410   
 

Oakridge, OR  97463   

   

By:   By:  

   

Name/Title:   Name/Title:  

   

Name/Title:    

   

  Attest:  

   

  Address for giving notices: 

 

_________________________________

_________________________________

_________________________________ 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

26 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

  



 CONSTRUCTION PERFORMANCE BOND 



CONSTRUCTION PERFORMANCE BOND 



 

EJCDC® C-610, Performance Bond 

Copyright © 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 
and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.          1 of 3 

 

 

                                    PERFORMANCE BOND 

CONTRACTOR (name and address): 

 
 
 
 

SURETY (name and address of principal place of business): 

 
 
 

OWNER (name and address): 
 
 
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT 

Effective Date of the Agreement: 
Amount: 
Description (name and location):  

BOND 
Bond Number: 
Date (not earlier than the Effective Date of the Agreement of the Construction Contract): 

Amount: 
Modifications to this Bond Form:            None               See Paragraph 16 

 

Surety and Contractor, intending to be legally bound hereby, subject to the terms set forth below, do each cause 
this Performance Bond to be duly executed by an authorized officer, agent, or representative. 

CONTRACTOR AS PRINCIPAL  SURETY 

  (seal)    (seal) 
Contractor’s Name and Corporate Seal  Surety’s Name and Corporate Seal 
 
By:     By:   
       Signature   Signature (attach power of attorney) 
 
        
Print Name    Print Name 
 
        
Title    Title 
 
Attest:    Attest:    
 Signature   Signature  
 
        
Title    Title 
 

Notes: (1) Provide supplemental execution by any additional parties, such as joint venturers. (2) Any singular reference to 

Contractor, Surety, Owner, or other party shall be considered plural where applicable. 



 

EJCDC® C-610, Performance Bond 

Copyright © 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 
and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.          2 of 3 

 

1.  The Contractor and Surety, jointly and severally, bind 
themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and 
assigns to the Owner for the performance of the Construction 
Contract, which is incorporated herein by reference. 

2.  If the Contractor performs the Construction Contract, the Surety 
and the Contractor shall have no obligation under this Bond, except 
when applicable to participate in a conference as provided in 
Paragraph 3. 

3.  If there is no Owner Default under the Construction Contract, 
the Surety’s obligation under this Bond shall arise after: 

3.1  The Owner first provides notice to the Contractor and 
the Surety that the Owner is considering declaring a Contractor 
Default. Such notice shall indicate whether the Owner is 
requesting a conference among the Owner, Contractor, and 
Surety to discuss the Contractor’s performance.  If the Owner 
does not request a conference, the Surety may, within five (5) 
business days after receipt of the Owner’s notice, request such a 
conference.  If the Surety timely requests a conference, the 
Owner shall attend.  Unless the Owner agrees otherwise, any 
conference requested under this Paragraph 3.1 shall be held 
within ten (10) business days of the Surety’s receipt of the 
Owner’s notice.  If the Owner, the Contractor, and the Surety 
agree, the Contractor shall be allowed a reasonable time to 
perform the Construction Contract, but such an agreement shall 
not waive the Owner’s right, if any, subsequently to declare a 
Contractor Default;  

3.2  The Owner declares a Contractor Default, terminates 
the Construction Contract and notifies the Surety; and 

3.3  The Owner has agreed to pay the Balance of the 
Contract Price in accordance with the terms of the Construction 
Contract to the Surety or to a contractor selected to perform the 
Construction Contract. 

4.  Failure on the part of the Owner to comply with the notice 
requirement in Paragraph 3.1 shall not constitute a failure to comply 
with a condition precedent to the Surety’s obligations, or release the 
Surety from its obligations, except to the extent the Surety 
demonstrates actual prejudice. 

5.  When the Owner has satisfied the conditions of Paragraph 3, the 
Surety shall promptly and at the Surety’s expense take one of the 
following actions: 

5.1  Arrange for the Contractor, with the consent of the 
Owner, to perform and complete the Construction Contract; 

5.2  Undertake to perform and complete the Construction 
Contract itself, through its agents or independent contractors; 

5.3  Obtain bids or negotiated proposals from qualified 
contractors acceptable to the Owner for a contract for 
performance and completion of the Construction Contract, 
arrange for a contract to be prepared for execution by the 

Owner and a contractor selected with the Owners concurrence, 
to be secured with performance and payment bonds executed 
by a qualified surety equivalent to the bonds issued on the 
Construction Contract, and pay to the Owner the amount of 
damages as described in Paragraph 7 in excess of the Balance of 
the Contract Price incurred by the Owner as a result of the 
Contractor Default; or 

5.4  Waive its right to perform and complete, arrange for 
completion, or obtain a new contractor, and with reasonable 
promptness under the circumstances: 

5.4.1  After investigation, determine the amount for 
which it may be liable to the Owner and, as soon as 
practicable after the amount is determined, make payment 
to the Owner; or 

5.4.2  Deny liability in whole or in part and notify the 
Owner, citing the reasons for denial. 

6. If the Surety does not proceed as provided in Paragraph 5 with 
reasonable promptness, the Surety shall be deemed to be in default 
on this Bond seven days after receipt of an additional written notice 
from the Owner to the Surety demanding that the Surety perform its 
obligations under this Bond, and the Owner shall be entitled to 
enforce any remedy available to the Owner.  If the Surety proceeds as 
provided in Paragraph 5.4, and the Owner refuses the payment or the 
Surety has denied liability, in whole or in part, without further notice 
the Owner shall be entitled to enforce any remedy available to the 
Owner. 

7. If the Surety elects to act under Paragraph 5.1, 5.2, or 5.3, then 
the responsibilities of the Surety to the Owner shall not be greater 
than those of the Contractor under the Construction Contract, and 
the responsibilities of the Owner to the Surety shall not be greater 
than those of the Owner under the Construction Contract.  Subject to 
the commitment by the Owner to pay the Balance of the Contract 
Price, the Surety is obligated, without duplication for: 

7.1  the responsibilities of the Contractor for correction of 
defective work and completion of the Construction Contract; 

7.2  additional legal, design professional, and delay costs 
resulting from the Contractor’s Default, and resulting from the 
actions or failure to act of the Surety under Paragraph 5; and 

7.3 liquidated damages, or if no liquidated damages are 
specified in the Construction Contract, actual damages caused by 
delayed performance or non-performance of the Contractor. 

8. If the Surety elects to act under Paragraph 5.1, 5.3, or 5.4, the 
Surety’s liability is limited to the amount of this Bond. 

9. The Surety shall not be liable to the Owner or others for 
obligations of the Contractor that are unrelated to the Construction 
Contract, and the Balance of the Contract Price shall not be reduced 
or set off on account of any such unrelated obligations.  No right of 
action shall accrue on this Bond to any person or entity other than 



 

EJCDC® C-610, Performance Bond 

Copyright © 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 
and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.          3 of 3 

 

the Owner or its heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and 
assigns. 

10. The Surety hereby waives notice of any change, including 
changes of time, to the Construction Contract or to related 
subcontracts, purchase orders, and other obligations.  

11. Any proceeding, legal or equitable, under this Bond may be 
instituted in any court of competent jurisdiction in the location in 
which the work or part of the work is located and shall be instituted 
within two years after a declaration of Contractor Default or within 
two years after the Contractor ceased working or within two years 
after the Surety refuses or fails to perform its obligations under this 
Bond, whichever occurs first.  If the provisions of this paragraph are 
void or prohibited by law, the minimum periods of limitations 
available to sureties as a defense in the jurisdiction of the suit shall be 
applicable. 

12. Notice to the Surety, the Owner, or the Contractor shall be 
mailed or delivered to the address shown on the page on which their 
signature appears. 

13. When this Bond has been furnished to comply with a statutory 
or other legal requirement in the location where the construction was 
to be performed, any provision in this Bond conflicting with said 
statutory or legal requirement shall be deemed deleted herefrom and 
provisions conforming to such statutory or other legal requirement 
shall be deemed incorporated herein.  When so furnished, the intent 
is that this Bond shall be construed as a statutory bond and not as a 
common law bond. 

14. Definitions 

14.1  Balance of the Contract Price: The total amount 
payable by the Owner to the Contractor under the Construction 
Contract after all proper adjustments have been made including 

allowance for the Contractor for any amounts received or to be 
received by the Owner in settlement of insurance or other claims 
for damages to which the Contractor is entitled, reduced by all 
valid and proper payments made to or on behalf of the 
Contractor under the Construction Contract. 

14.2  Construction Contract: The agreement between the 
Owner and Contractor identified on the cover page, including all 
Contract Documents and changes made to the agreement and 
the Contract Documents. 

14.3  Contractor Default: Failure of the Contractor, which 
has not been remedied or waived, to perform or otherwise to 
comply with a material term of the Construction Contract. 

14.4  Owner Default: Failure of the Owner, which has not 
been remedied or waived, to pay the Contractor as required 
under the Construction Contract or to perform and complete or 
comply with the other material terms of the Construction 
Contract. 

14.5  Contract Documents: All the documents that comprise 
the agreement between the Owner and Contractor. 

15. If this Bond is issued for an agreement between a contractor and 
subcontractor, the term Contractor in this Bond shall be deemed to 
be Subcontractor and the term Owner shall be deemed to be 
Contractor. 

16. Modifications to this Bond are as follows: 

 

 

 

 

 



 CONSTRUCTION PAYMENT BOND 



CONSTRUCTION PAYMENT BOND 



EJCDC® C-615, Payment Bond 

Copyright © 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 
and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.          1 of 3 

 

                                            PAYMENT BOND 

CONTRACTOR (name and address):  

 

 

 

SURETY (name and address of principal place of business): 

 

 

 

OWNER (name and address): 

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT 

Effective Date of the Agreement: 
Amount: 
Description (name and location): 

 
BOND 

Bond Number: 
Date (not earlier than the Effective Date of the Agreement of the Construction Contract): 

Amount: 
Modifications to this Bond Form:            None              See Paragraph 18 

 
  

Surety and Contractor, intending to be legally bound hereby, subject to the terms set forth below, do each cause 

this Payment Bond to be duly executed by an authorized officer, agent, or representative. 

CONTRACTOR AS PRINCIPAL SURETY 

  (seal)    (seal) 

Contractor’s Name and Corporate Seal  Surety’s Name and Corporate Seal 

 

By:     By:                                                                

 Signature  Signature (attach power of attorney) 

 

      

Print Name   Print Name 

 

      

Title   Title 

 

Attest:     Attest:    

 Signature   Signature  

 

        

Title   Title 

 

Notes:  (1) Provide supplemental execution by any additional parties, such as joint venturers. (2) Any singular reference 

to Contractor, Surety, Owner, or other party shall be considered plural where applicable. 



EJCDC® C-615, Payment Bond 

Copyright © 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 
and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.          2 of 3 

 

1. The Contractor and Surety, jointly and severally, bind 
themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators, 
successors, and assigns to the Owner to pay for labor, 
materials, and equipment furnished for use in the 
performance of the Construction Contract, which is 
incorporated herein by reference, subject to the following 
terms. 

2. If the Contractor promptly makes payment of all sums due 
to Claimants, and defends, indemnifies, and holds 
harmless the Owner from claims, demands, liens, or suits 
by any person or entity seeking payment for labor, 
materials, or equipment furnished for use in the 
performance of the Construction Contract, then the Surety 
and the Contractor shall have no obligation under this 
Bond. 

3.  If there is no Owner Default under the Construction 
Contract, the Surety’s obligation to the Owner under this 
Bond shall arise after the Owner has promptly notified the 
Contractor and the Surety (at the address described in 
Paragraph 13) of claims, demands, liens, or suits against 
the Owner or the Owner’s property by any person or 
entity seeking payment for labor, materials, or equipment 
furnished for use in the performance of the Construction 
Contract, and tendered defense of such claims, demands, 
liens, or suits to the Contractor and the Surety. 

4. When the Owner has satisfied the conditions in Paragraph 
3, the Surety shall promptly and at the Surety’s expense 
defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the Owner against a 
duly tendered claim, demand, lien, or suit. 

5. The Surety’s obligations to a Claimant under this Bond 
shall arise after the following: 

5.1  Claimants who do not have a direct contract with 
the Contractor, 

 
5.1.1 have furnished a written notice of non-

payment to the Contractor, stating with 
substantial accuracy the amount claimed 
and the name of the party to whom the 
materials were, or equipment was, 
furnished or supplied or for whom the 
labor was done or performed, within 
ninety (90) days after having last 
performed labor or last furnished 
materials or equipment included in the 
Claim; and 

 
5.1.2 have sent a Claim to the Surety (at the 

address described in Paragraph 13). 

5.2  Claimants who are employed by or have a direct 
contract with the Contractor have sent a Claim to 
the Surety (at the address described in Paragraph 
13). 

6. If a notice of non-payment required by Paragraph 5.1.1 is 
given by the Owner to the Contractor, that is sufficient to 
satisfy a Claimant’s obligation to furnish a written notice of 
non-payment under Paragraph 5.1.1. 

7. When a Claimant has satisfied the conditions of Paragraph 
5.1 or 5.2, whichever is applicable, the Surety shall 
promptly and at the Surety’s expense take the following 
actions: 

7.1 Send an answer to the Claimant, with a copy to the 
Owner, within sixty (60) days after receipt of the 
Claim, stating the amounts that are undisputed and 
the basis for challenging any amounts that are 
disputed; and 

7.2 Pay or arrange for payment of any undisputed 
amounts. 

7.3 The Surety’s failure to discharge its obligations 
under Paragraph 7.1 or 7.2 shall not be deemed to 
constitute a waiver of defenses the Surety or 
Contractor may have or acquire as to a Claim, 
except as to undisputed amounts for which the 
Surety and Claimant have reached agreement.  If, 
however, the Surety fails to discharge its 
obligations under Paragraph 7.1 or 7.2, the Surety 
shall indemnify the Claimant for the reasonable 
attorney’s fees the Claimant incurs thereafter to 
recover any sums found to be due and owing to 
the Claimant. 

8. The Surety’s total obligation shall not exceed the amount 
of this Bond, plus the amount of reasonable attorney’s 
fees provided under Paragraph 7.3, and the amount of this 
Bond shall be credited for any payments made in good 
faith by the Surety. 

9.  Amounts owed by the Owner to the Contractor under the 
Construction Contract shall be used for the performance 
of the Construction Contract and to satisfy claims, if any, 
under any construction performance bond.  By the 
Contractor furnishing and the Owner accepting this Bond, 
they agree that all funds earned by the Contractor in the 
performance of the Construction Contract are dedicated 
to satisfy obligations of the Contractor and Surety under 
this Bond, subject to the Owner’s priority to use the funds 
for the completion of the work. 

10. The Surety shall not be liable to the Owner, Claimants, or 
others for obligations of the Contractor that are unrelated 
to the Construction Contract.  The Owner shall not be 
liable for the payment of any costs or expenses of any 
Claimant under this Bond, and shall have under this Bond 
no obligation to make payments to or give notice on 
behalf of Claimants, or otherwise have any obligations to 
Claimants under this Bond. 

11. The Surety hereby waives notice of any change, including 
changes of time, to the Construction Contract or to related 
subcontracts, purchase orders, and other obligations. 



EJCDC® C-615, Payment Bond 

Copyright © 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 
and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.          3 of 3 

12. No suit or action shall be commenced by a Claimant under 
this Bond other than in a court of competent jurisdiction in 
the state in which the project that is the subject of the 
Construction Contract is located or after the expiration of 
one year from the date (1) on which the Claimant sent a 
Claim to the Surety pursuant to Paragraph 5.1.2 or 5.2, or 
(2) on which the last labor or service was performed by 
anyone or the last materials or equipment were furnished 
by anyone under the Construction Contract, whichever of 
(1) or (2) first occurs.  If the provisions of this paragraph 
are void or prohibited by law, the minimum period of 
limitation available to sureties as a defense in the 
jurisdiction of the suit shall be applicable. 

13. Notice and Claims to the Surety, the Owner, or the 
Contractor shall be mailed or delivered to the address 
shown on the page on which their signature appears.  
Actual receipt of notice or Claims, however accomplished, 
shall be sufficient compliance as of the date received. 

14. When this Bond has been furnished to comply with a 
statutory or other legal requirement in the location where 
the construction was to be performed, any provision in 
this Bond conflicting with said statutory or legal 
requirement shall be deemed deleted herefrom and 
provisions conforming to such statutory or other legal 
requirement shall be deemed incorporated herein.  When 
so furnished, the intent is that this Bond shall be construed 
as a statutory bond and not as a common law bond. 

15. Upon requests by any person or entity appearing to be a 
potential beneficiary of this Bond, the Contractor and 
Owner shall promptly furnish a copy of this Bond or shall 
permit a copy to be made. 

16. Definitions 

16.1  Claim: A written statement by the Claimant 
including at a minimum: 

1.  The name of the Claimant; 
2.  The name of the person for whom the labor 

was done, or materials or equipment 
furnished;  

3. A copy of the agreement or purchase order 
pursuant to which labor, materials, or 
equipment was furnished for use in the 
performance of the Construction Contract; 

4.  A brief description of the labor, materials, or 
equipment furnished; 

5.  The date on which the Claimant last 
performed labor or last furnished materials or 
equipment for use in the performance of the 
Construction Contract; 

6. The total amount earned by the Claimant for 
labor, materials, or equipment furnished as of 
the date of the Claim; 

7. The total amount of previous payments 
received by the Claimant; and 

8. The total amount due and unpaid to the 
Claimant for labor, materials, or equipment 
furnished as of the date of the Claim. 

16.2  Claimant: An individual or entity having a direct 
contract with the Contractor or with a 
subcontractor of the Contractor to furnish labor, 
materials, or equipment for use in the performance 
of the Construction Contract. The term Claimant 
also includes any individual or entity that has 
rightfully asserted a claim under an applicable 
mechanic’s lien or similar statute against the real 
property upon which the Project is located. The 
intent of this Bond shall be to include without 
limitation in the terms of “labor, materials, or 
equipment” that part of the water, gas, power, 
light, heat, oil, gasoline, telephone service, or 
rental equipment used in the Construction 
Contract, architectural and engineering services 
required for performance of the work of the 
Contractor and the Contractor’s subcontractors, 
and all other items for which a mechanic’s lien may 
be asserted in the jurisdiction where the labor, 
materials, or equipment were furnished. 

16.3  Construction Contract: The agreement between 
the Owner and Contractor identified on the cover 
page, including all Contract Documents and all 
changes made to the agreement and the Contract 
Documents. 

16.4  Owner Default: Failure of the Owner, which has 
not been remedied or waived, to pay the 
Contractor as required under the Construction 
Contract or to perform and complete or comply 
with the other material terms of the Construction 
Contract. 

16.5  Contract Documents: All the documents that 
comprise the agreement between the Owner and 
Contractor. 

17.  If this Bond is issued for an agreement between a 
contractor and subcontractor, the term Contractor in this 
Bond shall be deemed to be Subcontractor and the term 
Owner shall be deemed to be Contractor. 

18. Modifications to this Bond are as follows: 



STANDARD GENERAL CONDITIONS OF THE CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT 



STANDARD GENERAL CONDITIONS OF THE CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT 



EJ
CD

C®
 C

-7
00

, S
ta

nd
ar

d 
G

en
er

al
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 
Co

py
rig

ht
©

 2
01

8 
N

at
io

na
l S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rs
, A

m
er

ic
an

 C
ou

nc
il 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Co

m
pa

ni
es

, 
an

d 
Am

er
ic

an
 S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
s.

 A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
 

Th
is

 d
oc

um
en

t h
as

 im
po

rt
an

t l
eg

al
 c

on
se

qu
en

ce
s;

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

w
ith

 a
n 

at
to

rn
ey

 is
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

d 
w

ith
 re

sp
ec

t t
o 

its
 u

se
 o

r 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n.
 T

hi
s 

do
cu

m
en

t 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

ad
ap

te
d 

to
 t

he
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

 c
irc

um
st

an
ce

s 
of

 t
he

 c
on

te
m

pl
at

ed
 P

ro
je

ct
 a

nd
 t

he
 

co
nt

ro
lli

ng
 L

aw
s 

an
d 

Re
gu

la
tio

ns
. 

ST
AN

D
AR

D
 G

EN
ER

AL
 C

O
N

D
IT

IO
N

S 
O

F 
TH

E 
CO

N
ST

RU
CT

IO
N

 C
O

N
TR

A
CT

 

Pr
ep

ar
ed

 B
y 

                     

En
do

rs
ed

 B
y 

     

EJ
CD

C®
 C

-7
00

, S
ta

nd
ar

d 
G

en
er

al
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 
Co

py
rig

ht
©

 2
01

8 
N

at
io

na
l S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rs
, A

m
er

ic
an

 C
ou

nc
il 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Co

m
pa

ni
es

, 
an

d 
Am

er
ic

an
 S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
s.

 A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
 

Co
py

rig
ht

©
 2

01
8 

N
at

io
na

l S
oc

ie
ty

 o
f P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l E

ng
in

ee
rs

 

14
20

 K
in

g 
St

re
et

, A
le

xa
nd

ria
, V

A 
22

31
4-

27
94

 

(7
03

) 6
84

-2
88

2 

w
w

w
.n

sp
e.

or
g 

Am
er

ic
an

 C
ou

nc
il 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Co

m
pa

ni
es

 

10
15

 1
5t

h 
St

re
et

 N
.W

., 
W

as
hi

ng
to

n,
 D

C 
20

00
5 

(2
02

) 3
47

-7
47

4 

w
w

w
.a

ce
c.

or
g 

Am
er

ic
an

 S
oc

ie
ty

 o
f C

iv
il 

En
gi

ne
er

s 

18
01

 A
le

xa
nd

er
 B

el
l D

riv
e,

 R
es

to
n,

 V
A 

20
19

1-
44

00
 

(8
00

) 5
48

-2
72

3 

w
w

w
.a

sc
e.

or
g 

Th
e 

co
py

rig
ht

 f
or

 t
hi

s 
EJ

CD
C 

do
cu

m
en

t 
is

 o
w

ne
d 

jo
in

tly
 b

y 
th

e 
th

re
e 

sp
on

so
rin

g 
or

ga
ni

za
tio

ns
 li

st
ed

 
ab

ov
e.

 T
he

 N
at

io
na

l 
So

ci
et

y 
of

 P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l 
En

gi
ne

er
s 

is 
th

e 
Co

py
rig

ht
 A

dm
in

is
tr

at
or

 f
or

 t
he

 E
JC

D
C 

do
cu

m
en

ts
; p

le
as

e 
di

re
ct

 a
ll 

in
qu

iri
es

 re
ga

rd
in

g 
EJ

CD
C 

co
py

rig
ht

s t
o 

N
SP

E.
 

N
O

TE
: 

EJ
CD

C 
pu

bl
ic

at
io

ns
 m

ay
 b

e 
pu

rc
ha

se
d 

at
 w

w
w

.e
jc

dc
.o

rg
, 

or
 f

ro
m

 a
ny

 o
f 

th
e 

sp
on

so
rin

g 
or

ga
ni

za
tio

ns
 a

bo
ve

. 

 



EJ
CD

C®
 C

-7
00

, S
ta

nd
ar

d 
G

en
er

al
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 
Co

py
rig

ht
©

 2
01

8 
N

at
io

na
l S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rs
, A

m
er

ic
an

 C
ou

nc
il 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Co

m
pa

ni
es

, 
an

d 
Am

er
ic

an
 S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
s.

 A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
 

G
ui

de
lin

es
 P

ag
e 

1 
of

 2
 

G
U

ID
EL

IN
ES

 F
O

R 
U

SE
 O

F 
EJ

CD
C®

 C
-7

00
, 

ST
AN

D
AR

D
 G

EN
ER

AL
 C

O
N

D
IT

IO
N

S 
O

F 
TH

E 
CO

N
ST

RU
CT

IO
N

 C
O

N
TR

A
CT

 

1.
0 

PU
RP

O
SE

 A
N

D 
IN

TE
N

DE
D 

U
SE

 O
F 

TH
E 

D
O

CU
M

EN
T 

EJ
CD

C®
 C

-7
00

, 
St

an
da

rd
 G

en
er

al
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f 

th
e 

Co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 (
20

18
), 

is 
th

e 
fo

un
da

tio
n 

do
cu

m
en

t 
fo

r 
th

e 
EJ

CD
C 

Co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

Se
rie

s.
 

Th
e 

Ge
ne

ra
l 

Co
nd

iti
on

s 
de

fin
e 

th
e 

ba
si

c 
rig

ht
s,

 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s,
 ri

sk
 a

llo
ca

tio
ns

, a
nd

 c
on

tr
ac

tu
al

 re
la

tio
ns

hi
p 

of
 th

e 
O

w
ne

r a
nd

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r, 

an
d 

es
ta

bl
ish

 
ho

w
 th

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 is

 to
 b

e 
ad

m
in

ist
er

ed
. 

2.
0 

O
TH

ER
 D

O
CU

M
EN

TS
 

EJ
CD

C 
do

cu
m

en
ts

 a
re

 in
te

nd
ed

 to
 b

e 
us

ed
 a

s 
a 

sy
st

em
 a

nd
 c

ha
ng

es
 in

 o
ne

 E
JC

DC
 d

oc
um

en
t m

ay
 re

qu
ire

 
a 

co
rr

es
po

nd
in

g 
ch

an
ge

 in
 o

th
er

 d
oc

um
en

ts
. O

th
er

 E
JC

DC
 d

oc
um

en
ts

 m
ay

 a
lso

 s
er

ve
 a

s 
a 

re
fe

re
nc

e 
to

 
pr

ov
id

e 
in

si
gh

t o
r g

ui
da

nc
e 

fo
r t

he
 p

re
pa

ra
tio

n 
of

 th
is 

do
cu

m
en

t. 

Th
es

e 
G

en
er

al
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 h
av

e 
be

en
 p

re
pa

re
d 

fo
r 

us
e 

w
ith

 e
ith

er
 E

JC
D

C®
 C

-5
20

, A
gr

ee
m

en
t 

Be
tw

ee
n 

O
w

ne
r a

nd
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r f
or

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 (S

tip
ul

at
ed

 P
ric

e)
, o

r E
JC

D
C®

 C
-5

25
, A

gr
ee

m
en

t B
et

w
ee

n 
O

w
ne

r 
an

d 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 f
or

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 (C

os
t-

Pl
us

-F
ee

) (
20

18
 E

di
tio

ns
). 

Th
e 

pr
ov

isi
on

s 
of

 t
he

 
G

en
er

al
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 a
nd

 th
e 

Ag
re

em
en

t a
re

 in
te

rr
el

at
ed

, a
nd

 a
 ch

an
ge

 in
 o

ne
 m

ay
 n

ec
es

sit
at

e 
a 

ch
an

ge
 in

 
th

e 
ot

he
r. 

To
 

pr
ep

ar
e 

su
pp

le
m

en
ta

ry
 

co
nd

iti
on

s 
th

at
 

ar
e 

co
or

di
na

te
d 

w
ith

 
th

e 
Ge

ne
ra

l 
Co

nd
iti

on
s,

 
us

e 
EJ

CD
C®

 C
-8

00
, S

up
pl

em
en

ta
ry

 C
on

di
tio

ns
 o

f t
he

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 (2

01
8)

. 

Th
e 

fu
ll 

EJ
CD

C 
Co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
se

rie
s 

of
 d

oc
um

en
ts

 is
 d

is
cu

ss
ed

 in
 t

he
 E

JC
DC

® 
C-

00
1,

 C
om

m
en

ta
ry

 o
n 

th
e 

20
18

 E
JC

DC
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Do
cu

m
en

ts
 (2

01
8)

. 

3.
0 

O
RG

AN
IZ

AT
IO

N
 O

F 
IN

FO
RM

AT
IO

N
 

Al
l p

ar
tie

s 
in

vo
lv

ed
 in

 a
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

pr
oj

ec
t 

be
ne

fit
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

tly
 f

ro
m

 a
 s

ta
nd

ar
di

ze
d 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 in
 t

he
 

lo
ca

tio
n 

of
 s

ub
je

ct
 m

at
te

r t
hr

ou
gh

ou
t t

he
 d

oc
um

en
ts

. E
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

co
nf

irm
s t

he
 d

an
ge

r o
f a

dd
re

ss
in

g 
th

e 
sa

m
e 

su
bj

ec
t m

at
te

r i
n 

m
or

e 
th

an
 o

ne
 lo

ca
tio

n;
 d

oi
ng

 so
 fr

eq
ue

nt
ly

 le
ad

s t
o 

co
nf

us
io

n 
an

d 
un

an
tic

ip
at

ed
 

le
ga

l 
co

ns
eq

ue
nc

es
. 

Ca
re

fu
l 

at
te

nt
io

n 
sh

ou
ld

 
be

 
gi

ve
n 

to
 

th
e 

gu
id

an
ce

 
pr

ov
id

ed
 

in
 

EJ
CD

C®
 N

-1
22

/A
IA

® 
A5

21
, U

ni
fo

rm
 Lo

ca
tio

n 
of

 S
ub

je
ct

 M
at

te
r (

20
12

 E
di

tio
n)

 w
he

n 
pr

ep
ar

in
g 

do
cu

m
en

ts
. 

EJ
CD

C®
 N

-1
22

/A
IA

® 
A5

21
 is

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
at

 n
o 

ch
ar

ge
 fr

om
 th

e 
EJ

CD
C 

w
eb

si
te

, w
w

w
.e

jc
dc

.o
rg

, a
nd

 fr
om

 th
e 

io
ns

. 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 d

oc
um

en
t 

nu
m

be
r 

(e
.g

., 
un

de
r 

00
 1

1 
00

, A
dv

er
tis

em
en

ts
 a

nd
 In

vi
ta

tio
ns

), 
an

d 
ac

co
rd

in
gl

y 
nu

m
be

r t
he

 d
oc

um
en

t a
nd

 it
s p

ag
es

. 

4.
0 

ED
IT

IN
G

 T
H

IS
 D

O
CU

M
EN

T 

Re
m

ov
e 

th
es

e 
G

ui
de

lin
es

 fo
r U

se
. S

om
e 

us
er

s m
ay

 a
lso

 p
re

fe
r t

o 
re

m
ov

e 
th

e 
tw

o 
co

ve
r p

ag
es

. 

Al
th

ou
gh

 it
 is

 p
er

m
is

sib
le

 to
 re

vi
se

 th
e 

St
an

da
rd

 E
JC

DC
 T

ex
t o

f C
-7

00
 (t

he
 c

on
te

nt
 b

eg
in

ni
ng

 a
t p

ag
e 

1 
an

d 
co

nt
in

ui
ng

 t
o 

th
e 

en
d)

, 
it 

is
 c

om
m

on
 p

ra
ct

ic
e 

to
 le

av
e 

th
e 

St
an

da
rd

 E
JC

D
C 

Te
xt

 o
f 

C-
70

0 
in

ta
ct

 a
nd

 
un

al
te

re
d,

 w
ith

 m
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 a
nd

 s
up

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 C

-
 C

-8
00

, 
Su

pp
le

m
en

ta
ry

 C
on

di
tio

ns
 o

f t
he

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 (2

01
8)

. I
f t

he
 S

ta
nd

ar
d 

Te
xt

 it
se

lf 
is

 re
vi

se
d,

 th
e 

EJ
CD

C®
 C

-7
00

, S
ta

nd
ar

d 
G

en
er

al
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 
Co

py
rig

ht
©

 2
01

8 
N

at
io

na
l S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rs
, A

m
er

ic
an

 C
ou

nc
il 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Co

m
pa

ni
es

, 
an

d 
Am

er
ic

an
 S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
s.

 A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
 

G
ui

de
lin

es
 P

ag
e 

2 
of

 2
 

us
er

 m
us

t c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 th
e 

te
rm

s o
f t

he
 Li

ce
ns

e 
Ag

re
em

en
t, 

Pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
4.

0,
 D

oc
um

en
t-

Sp
ec

ifi
c P

ro
vi

sio
ns

, 
co

nc
er

ni
ng

 t
he

 t
ra

ck
in

g 
or

 h
ig

hl
ig

ht
in

g 
of

 r
ev

is
io

ns
. T

he
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

is 
a 

su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 th
e 

re
le

va
nt

 L
ic

en
se

 
Ag

re
em

en
t p

ro
vi

sio
ns

: 

1.
 

-7
00

 re
fe

rs
 to

 a
ll 

te
xt

 p
re

pa
re

d 
by

 E
JC

D
C 

in
 th

e 
m

ai
n 

bo
dy

 
of

 t
he

 d
oc

um
en

t. 
D

oc
um

en
t 

co
ve

rs
, 

lo
go

s,
 f

oo
te

rs
, i

ns
tr

uc
tio

ns
, o

r 
co

py
rig

ht
 n

ot
ic

es
 a

re
 n

ot
 

St
an

da
rd

 E
JC

DC
 T

ex
t f

or
 th

is 
pu

rp
os

e.
 

2.
 

D
ur

in
g 

th
e 

dr
af

tin
g 

or
 n

eg
ot

ia
tin

g 
pr

oc
es

s 
fo

r 
C-

70
0,

 it
 is

 im
po

rt
an

t 
th

at
 t

he
 t

w
o 

co
nt

ra
ct

in
g 

pa
rt

ie
s 

ar
e 

bo
th

 a
w

ar
e 

of
 a

ny
 c

ha
ng

es
 th

at
 h

av
e 

be
en

 m
ad

e 
to

 th
e 

St
an

da
rd

 E
JC

D
C 

Te
xt

. T
hu

s,
 if

 
a 

dr
af

t 
or

 v
er

sio
n 

of
 C

-7
00

 p
ur

po
rt

s 
to

 b
e 

or
 a

pp
ea

rs
 t

o 
be

 a
n 

EJ
CD

C 
do

cu
m

en
t, 

th
e 

us
er

 m
us

t 
pl

ai
nl

y 
sh

ow
 a

ll 
hi

gh
lig

ht
in

g,
 o

r o
th

er
 m

ea
ns

 o
f c

le
ar

ly
 in

di
ca

tin
g 

ad
di

tio
ns

 a
nd

 d
el

et
io

ns
. 

3.
 

If 
C-

70
0 

ha
s 

be
en

 r
ev

is
ed

 o
r 

al
te

re
d 

an
d 

is
 s

ub
se

qu
en

tly
 p

re
se

nt
ed

 t
o 

th
ird

 p
ar

tie
s 

(s
uc

h 
as

 
po

te
nt

ia
l b

id
de

rs
, g

ra
nt

 a
ge

nc
ie

s,
 le

nd
er

s,
 o

r 
su

re
tie

s)
 a

s 
an

 E
JC

D
C 

do
cu

m
en

t, 
th

en
 th

e 
ch

an
ge

s 
to

 th
e 

St
an

da
rd

 E
JC

DC
 T

ex
t m

us
t b

e 
sh

ow
n,

 o
r t

he
 th

ird
 p

ar
tie

s 
m

us
t r

ec
ei

ve
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 a
 v

er
sio

n 
th

at
 s

ho
w

s t
he

 c
ha

ng
es

. 

4.
 

O
nc

e 
th

e 
do

cu
m

en
t i

s r
ea

dy
 to

 b
e 

fin
al

ize
d 

(a
nd

 if
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

 e
xe

cu
te

d 
by

 th
e 

co
nt

ra
ct

in
g 

pa
rt

ie
s)

, 
it 

is 
no

 lo
ng

er
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 to
 c

on
tin

ue
 to

 s
ho

w
 c

ha
ng

es
 to

 th
e 

St
an

da
rd

 E
JC

DC
 T

ex
t. 

Th
e 

us
er

 m
ay

 
pr

od
uc

e 
a 

fin
al

 v
er

si
on

 o
f t

he
 d

oc
um

en
t i

n 
a 

fo
rm

at
 in

 w
hi

ch
 a

ll 
ch

an
ge

s 
ar

e 
ac

ce
pt

ed
, a

nd
 t

he
 

do
cu

m
en

t 
at

 t
h

hi
gh

lig
ht

in
g,

 o
r o

th
er

 in
di

ca
tio

n 
of

 a
dd

iti
on

s 
an

d 
de

le
tio

ns
 to

 th
e 

St
an

da
rd

 E
JC

DC
 T

ex
t. 

5.
0 

LI
CE

N
SE

 A
G

RE
EM

EN
T 

Th
is

 d
oc

um
en

t 
is

 s
ub

je
ct

 t
o 

th
e 

te
rm

s 
an

d 
co

nd
iti

on
s 

of
 t

he
 L

ic
en

se
 A

gr
ee

m
en

t, 
20

18
 E

JC
D

C®
 

Co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

Se
rie

s 
D

oc
um

en
ts

. A
 c

op
y 

of
 th

e 
Li

ce
ns

e 
Ag

re
em

en
t w

as
 fu

rn
is

he
d 

at
 th

e 
tim

e 
of

 p
ur

ch
as

e 
of

 t
hi

s 
do

cu
m

en
t, 

an
d 

is 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

fo
r r

ev
ie

w
 a

t 
w

w
w

.e
jc

dc
.o

rg
 

or
ga

ni
za

tio
ns

. 

 



 

EJ
CD

C®
 C

-7
00

, S
ta

nd
ar

d 
G

en
er

al
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 
Co

py
rig

ht
©

 2
01

8 
N

at
io

na
l S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rs
, A

m
er

ic
an

 C
ou

nc
il 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Co

m
pa

ni
es

, 
an

d 
Am

er
ic

an
 S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
s.

 A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
 

TO
C 

Pa
ge

 1
 o

f 5
 

ST
AN

D
AR

D
 G

EN
ER

AL
 C

O
N

D
IT

IO
N

S 
O

F 
TH

E 
CO

N
ST

RU
CT

IO
N

 C
O

N
TR

A
CT

 

TA
BL

E 
O

F 
CO

N
TE

N
TS

 

Pa
ge

 

Ar
tic

le
 1

De
fin

iti
on

s a
nd

 T
er

m
in

ol
og

y .
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
. 1

 

1.
01

 
D

ef
in

ed
 T

er
m

s .
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
 1

 

1.
02

 
Te

rm
in

ol
og

y .
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

 6
 

Ar
tic

le
 2

Pr
el

im
in

ar
y 

M
at

te
rs

 ...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
 7 

2.
01

 
D

el
iv

er
y 

of
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 a

nd
 P

ay
m

en
t B

on
ds

; E
vi

de
nc

e 
of

 In
su

ra
nc

e.
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

. 7
 

2.
02

 
Co

pi
es

 o
f D

oc
um

en
ts

 ..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
 7

 

2.
03

 
Be

fo
re

 S
ta

rt
in

g 
Co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 7

 

2.
04

 
Pr

ec
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
Co

nf
er

en
ce

; D
es

ig
na

tio
n 

of
 A

ut
ho

riz
ed

 R
ep

re
se

nt
at

iv
es

 ...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
. 8

 

2.
05

 
Ac

ce
pt

an
ce

 o
f S

ch
ed

ul
es

 ..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
 8

 

2.
06

 
El

ec
tr

on
ic

 T
ra

ns
m

itt
al

s 
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.. 8
 

Ar
tic

le
 3

Co
nt

ra
ct

 D
oc

um
en

ts
: I

nt
en

t, 
Re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
, R

eu
se

 ...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.. 9
 

3.
01

 
In

te
nt

 ...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
 9

 

3.
02

 
Re

fe
re

nc
e 

St
an

da
rd

s .
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 9

 

3.
03

 
Re

po
rt

in
g 

an
d 

Re
so

lv
in

g 
D

isc
re

pa
nc

ie
s .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

. 1
0 

3.
04

 
Re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f t
he

 C
on

tr
ac

t D
oc

um
en

ts
 ...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

 10
 

3.
05

 
Re

us
e 

of
 D

oc
um

en
ts

 ..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.. 1
1 

Ar
tic

le
 4

Co
m

m
en

ce
m

en
t a

nd
 P

ro
gr

es
s o

f t
he

 W
or

k 
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
 11

 

4.
01

 
Co

m
m

en
ce

m
en

t o
f C

on
tr

ac
t T

im
es

; N
ot

ic
e 

to
 P

ro
ce

ed
 ...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
. 1

1 

4.
02

 
St

ar
tin

g 
th

e 
W

or
k .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 1

1 

4.
03

 
Re

fe
re

nc
e 

Po
in

ts
 ..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 1

1 

4.
04

 
Pr

og
re

ss
 S

ch
ed

ul
e .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
. 1

2 

4.
05

 
 ..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

 1
2 

Ar
tic

le
 5

Si
te

; S
ub

su
rf

ac
e 

an
d 

Ph
ys

ic
al

 C
on

di
tio

ns
; H

az
ar

do
us

 E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l C
on

di
tio

ns
 ..

...
...

...
...

...
...

 13
 

5.
01

 
Av

ai
la

bi
lit

y 
of

 L
an

ds
 ..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

 13
 

5.
02

 
U

se
 o

f S
ite

 a
nd

 O
th

er
 A

re
as

 ...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.. 1
4 

5.
03

 
Su

bs
ur

fa
ce

 a
nd

 P
hy

si
ca

l C
on

di
tio

ns
 ...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 1

5 

5.
04

 
D

iff
er

in
g 

Su
bs

ur
fa

ce
 o

r P
hy

si
ca

l C
on

di
tio

ns
 ..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 1

6 

 

EJ
CD

C®
 C

-7
00

, S
ta

nd
ar

d 
G

en
er

al
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 
Co

py
rig

ht
©

 2
01

8 
N

at
io

na
l S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rs
, A

m
er

ic
an

 C
ou

nc
il 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Co

m
pa

ni
es

, 
an

d 
Am

er
ic

an
 S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
s.

 A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
 

TO
C 

Pa
ge

 2
 o

f 5
 

5.
05

 
U

nd
er

gr
ou

nd
 F

ac
ili

tie
s .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
 17

 

5.
06

 
H

az
ar

do
us

 E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l C
on

di
tio

ns
 a

t S
ite

 ..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

 19
 

Ar
tic

le
 6

Bo
nd

s a
nd

 In
su

ra
nc

e .
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.. 2
1 

6.
01

 
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
, P

ay
m

en
t, 

an
d 

O
th

er
 B

on
ds

 ...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
. 2

1 

6.
02

 
In

su
ra

nc
e

G
en

er
al

 P
ro

vi
sio

ns
 ...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

 2
2 

6.
03

 
 ...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

. 2
4 

6.
04

 
 ...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
 25

 

6.
05

 
Pr

op
er

ty
 L

os
se

s;
 S

ub
ro

ga
tio

n 
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.. 2
5 

6.
06

 
Re

ce
ip

t a
nd

 A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

of
 P

ro
pe

rt
y 

In
su

ra
nc

e 
Pr

oc
ee

ds
 ..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.. 2
7 

Ar
tic

le
 7

 ..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

 2
7 

7.
01

 
Co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 2

7 

7.
02

 
Su

pe
rv

is
io

n 
an

d 
Su

pe
rin

te
nd

en
ce

 ..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 2

7 

7.
03

 
La

bo
r; 

W
or

ki
ng

 H
ou

rs
 ..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
 27

 

7.
04

 
Se

rv
ic

es
, M

at
er

ia
ls

, a
nd

 E
qu

ip
m

en
t .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

 28
 

7.
05

 
 ...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

. 2
8 

7.
06

 
Su

bs
tit

ut
es

 ..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 2

9 

7.
07

 
Co

nc
er

ni
ng

 S
ub

co
nt

ra
ct

or
s a

nd
 S

up
pl

ie
rs

 ...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
. 3

1 

7.
08

 
Pa

te
nt

 F
ee

s 
an

d 
Ro

ya
lti

es
 ...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.. 3
2 

7.
09

 
Pe

rm
its

 ..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 3

3 

7.
10

 
Ta

xe
s .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

 33
 

7.
11

 
La

w
s 

an
d 

Re
gu

la
tio

ns
 ...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
 33

 

7.
12

 
Re

co
rd

 D
oc

um
en

ts
 ...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

. 3
3 

7.
13

 
Sa

fe
ty

 a
nd

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 3

4 

7.
14

 
H

az
ar

d 
Co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
Pr

og
ra

m
s .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
 35

 

7.
15

 
Em

er
ge

nc
ie

s .
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
. 3

5 

7.
16

 
Su

bm
itt

al
s .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
. 3

5 

7.
17

 
 ..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 3

8 

7.
18

 
In

de
m

ni
fic

at
io

n .
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 3

9 

7.
19

 
D

el
eg

at
io

n 
of

 P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l D
es

ig
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

 ..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
 39

 

Ar
tic

le
 8

O
th

er
 W

or
k 

at
 th

e 
Si

te
 ...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

 40
 

8.
01

 
O

th
er

 W
or

k 
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

 40
 

8.
02

 
Co

or
di

na
tio

n 
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
. 4

1 

8.
03

 
Le

ga
l R

el
at

io
ns

hi
ps

 ...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
. 4

1 



 

EJ
CD

C®
 C

-7
00

, S
ta

nd
ar

d 
G

en
er

al
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 
Co

py
rig

ht
©

 2
01

8 
N

at
io

na
l S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rs
, A

m
er

ic
an

 C
ou

nc
il 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Co

m
pa

ni
es

, 
an

d 
Am

er
ic

an
 S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
s.

 A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
 

TO
C 

Pa
ge

 3
 o

f 5
 

Ar
tic

le
 9

 ...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

 42
 

9.
01

 
Co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 to

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

. 4
2 

9.
02

 
Re

pl
ac

em
en

t o
f E

ng
in

ee
r .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 4

2 

9.
03

 
Fu

rn
is

h 
Da

ta
 ...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 4

2 

9.
04

 
Pa

y 
W

he
n 

Du
e .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
. 4

2 

9.
05

 
La

nd
s 

an
d 

Ea
se

m
en

ts
; R

ep
or

ts
, T

es
ts

, a
nd

 D
ra

w
in

gs
 ...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.. 4
3 

9.
06

 
In

su
ra

nc
e .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

 43
 

9.
07

 
Ch

an
ge

 O
rd

er
s 

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
. 4

3 

9.
08

 
In

sp
ec

tio
ns

, T
es

ts
, a

nd
 A

pp
ro

va
ls

 ...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 4

3 

9.
09

 
 ..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 4

3 

9.
10

 
U

nd
is

cl
os

ed
 H

az
ar

do
us

 E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l C
on

di
tio

n .
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

 43
 

9.
11

 
Ev

id
en

ce
 o

f F
in

an
ci

al
 A

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 ...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

. 4
3 

9.
12

 
Sa

fe
ty

 P
ro

gr
am

s .
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
. 4

3 

Ar
tic

le
 1

0
 ..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
. 4

4 

10
.0

1 
 ...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

. 4
4 

10
.0

2 
Vi

sit
s 

to
 S

ite
 ...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.. 4
4 

10
.0

3 
Re

si
de

nt
 P

ro
je

ct
 R

ep
re

se
nt

at
iv

e.
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 4

4 

10
.0

4 
 ..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

. 4
4 

10
.0

5 
De

te
rm

in
at

io
ns

 fo
r U

ni
t P

ric
e 

W
or

k 
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

 45
 

10
.0

6 
De

ci
si

on
s 

on
 R

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

 o
f C

on
tr

ac
t D

oc
um

en
ts

 a
nd

 A
cc

ep
ta

bi
lit

y 
of

 W
or

k 
...

...
...

...
...

...
. 4

5 

10
.0

7 
 ..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
. 4

5 

10
.0

8 
Co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 S

af
et

y 
Pr

og
ra

m
 ...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 4

5 

Ar
tic

le
 1

1
Ch

an
ge

s t
o 

th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 ..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 4

6 

11
.0

1 
Am

en
di

ng
 a

nd
 S

up
pl

em
en

tin
g 

th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 ..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
 46

 

11
.0

2 
Ch

an
ge

 O
rd

er
s 

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

 46
 

11
.0

3 
W

or
k 

Ch
an

ge
 D

ire
ct

iv
es

 ...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
. 4

6 

11
.0

4 
Fi

el
d 

O
rd

er
s .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
. 4

7 

11
.0

5 
O

w
ne

r-
Au

th
or

ize
d 

Ch
an

ge
s i

n 
th

e 
W

or
k .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

. 4
7 

11
.0

6 
U

na
ut

ho
riz

ed
 C

ha
ng

es
 in

 th
e 

W
or

k .
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

 47
 

11
.0

7 
Ch

an
ge

 o
f C

on
tr

ac
t P

ric
e 

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.. 4
7 

11
.0

8 
Ch

an
ge

 o
f C

on
tr

ac
t T

im
es

 ...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

. 4
9 

11
.0

9 
Ch

an
ge

 P
ro

po
sa

ls 
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 4

9 

11
.1

0 
N

ot
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 S
ur

et
y .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

. 5
0 

 

EJ
CD

C®
 C

-7
00

, S
ta

nd
ar

d 
G

en
er

al
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 
Co

py
rig

ht
©

 2
01

8 
N

at
io

na
l S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rs
, A

m
er

ic
an

 C
ou

nc
il 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Co

m
pa

ni
es

, 
an

d 
Am

er
ic

an
 S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
s.

 A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
 

TO
C 

Pa
ge

 4
 o

f 5
 

Ar
tic

le
 1

2
Cl

ai
m

s .
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 5

0 

12
.0

1 
Cl

ai
m

s .
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
. 5

0 

Ar
tic

le
 1

3
Co

st
 o

f t
he

 W
or

k;
 A

llo
w

an
ce

s;
 U

ni
t P

ric
e 

W
or

k .
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

 51
 

13
.0

1 
Co

st
 o

f t
he

 W
or

k .
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 5

1 

13
.0

2 
Al

lo
w

an
ce

s .
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.. 5
5 

13
.0

3 
U

ni
t P

ric
e 

W
or

k .
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

. 5
5 

Ar
tic

le
 1

4
Te

st
s a

nd
 In

sp
ec

tio
ns

; C
or

re
ct

io
n,

 R
em

ov
al

, o
r A

cc
ep

ta
nc

e 
of

 D
ef

ec
tiv

e 
W

or
k 

...
...

...
...

...
...

.. 5
6 

14
.0

1 
Ac

ce
ss

 to
 W

or
k .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 5

6 

14
.0

2 
Te

st
s,

 In
sp

ec
tio

ns
, a

nd
 A

pp
ro

va
ls 

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

. 5
6 

14
.0

3 
D

ef
ec

tiv
e 

W
or

k 
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.. 5
7 

14
.0

4 
Ac

ce
pt

an
ce

 o
f D

ef
ec

tiv
e 

W
or

k.
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.. 5
8 

14
.0

5 
U

nc
ov

er
in

g 
W

or
k 

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.. 5
8 

14
.0

6 
O

w
ne

r M
ay

 S
to

p 
th

e 
W

or
k 

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 5

8 

14
.0

7 
O

w
ne

r M
ay

 C
or

re
ct

 D
ef

ec
tiv

e 
W

or
k .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.. 5
9 

Ar
tic

le
 1

5
Pa

ym
en

ts
 to

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r; 

Se
t-

O
ff

s;
 C

om
pl

et
io

n;
 C

or
re

ct
io

n 
Pe

rio
d 

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
. 5

9 

15
.0

1 
Pr

og
re

ss
 P

ay
m

en
ts

 ...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

 59
 

15
.0

2 
 ..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
. 6

2 

15
.0

3 
Su

bs
ta

nt
ia

l C
om

pl
et

io
n .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
. 6

2 

15
.0

4 
Pa

rt
ia

l U
se

 o
r O

cc
up

an
cy

 ..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
 63

 

15
.0

5 
Fi

na
l I

ns
pe

ct
io

n 
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.. 6
4 

15
.0

6 
Fi

na
l P

ay
m

en
t ..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

 64
 

15
.0

7 
W

ai
ve

r o
f C

la
im

s .
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 6

5 

15
.0

8 
Co

rr
ec

tio
n 

Pe
rio

d .
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
. 6

6 

Ar
tic

le
 1

6
Su

sp
en

sio
n 

of
 W

or
k 

an
d 

Te
rm

in
at

io
n 

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

. 6
7 

16
.0

1 
O

w
ne

r M
ay

 S
us

pe
nd

 W
or

k .
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

. 6
7 

16
.0

2 
O

w
ne

r M
ay

 T
er

m
in

at
e 

fo
r C

au
se

 ...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.. 6
7 

16
.0

3 
O

w
ne

r M
ay

 T
er

m
in

at
e 

fo
r C

on
ve

ni
en

ce
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

 68
 

16
.0

4 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 M
ay

 S
to

p 
W

or
k 

or
 T

er
m

in
at

e .
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
 68

 

Ar
tic

le
 1

7
Fi

na
l R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
of

 D
isp

ut
es

 ..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 6

9 

17
.0

1 
M

et
ho

ds
 a

nd
 P

ro
ce

du
re

s .
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
. 6

9 

Ar
tic

le
 1

8
M

is
ce

lla
ne

ou
s .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

. 6
9 

18
.0

1 
G

iv
in

g 
N

ot
ic

e .
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 6

9 

18
.0

2 
Co

m
pu

ta
tio

n 
of

 T
im

es
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
. 6

9 



 

EJ
CD

C®
 C

-7
00

, S
ta

nd
ar

d 
G

en
er

al
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 
Co

py
rig

ht
©

 2
01

8 
N

at
io

na
l S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rs
, A

m
er

ic
an

 C
ou

nc
il 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Co

m
pa

ni
es

, 
an

d 
Am

er
ic

an
 S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
s.

 A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
 

TO
C 

Pa
ge

 5
 o

f 5
 

18
.0

3 
Cu

m
ul

at
iv

e 
Re

m
ed

ie
s .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

 70
 

18
.0

4 
Li

m
ita

tio
n 

of
 D

am
ag

es
 ..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
. 7

0 

18
.0

5 
N

o 
W

ai
ve

r .
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
 70

 

18
.0

6 
Su

rv
iv

al
 o

f O
bl

ig
at

io
ns

 ..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

. 7
0 

18
.0

7 
Co

nt
ro

lli
ng

 L
aw

 ..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

 70
 

18
.0

8 
As

si
gn

m
en

t o
f C

on
tr

ac
t..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
 70

 

18
.0

9 
Su

cc
es

so
rs

 a
nd

 A
ss

ig
ns

 ..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

 70
 

18
.1

0 
He

ad
in

gs
 ...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

. 7
0 

  

 

EJ
CD

C®
 C

-7
00

, S
ta

nd
ar

d 
G

en
er

al
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 
Co

py
rig

ht
©

 2
01

8 
N

at
io

na
l S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rs
, A

m
er

ic
an

 C
ou

nc
il 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Co

m
pa

ni
es

, 
an

d 
Am

er
ic

an
 S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
s.

 A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
 

Pa
ge

 1
 o

f 7
0 

ST
AN

D
AR

D
 G

EN
ER

AL
 C

O
N

D
IT

IO
N

S 
O

F 
TH

E 
CO

N
ST

RU
CT

IO
N

 C
O

N
TR

A
CT

 

AR
TI

CL
E 

1
D

EF
IN

IT
IO

N
S 

AN
D 

TE
RM

IN
O

LO
G

Y 

1.
01

 
D

ef
in

ed
 T

er
m

s 

A.
 

W
he

re
ve

r 
us

ed
 in

 t
he

 B
id

di
ng

 R
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 o

r 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 D

oc
um

en
ts

, a
 t

er
m

 p
rin

te
d 

w
ith

 

in
di

ca
te

d 
in

 th
e 

de
fin

iti
on

s 
be

lo
w

. I
n 

ad
di

tio
n 

to
 te

rm
s s

pe
ci

fic
al

ly
 d

ef
in

ed
, t

er
m

s w
ith

 in
iti

al
 

ca
pi

ta
l 

le
tt

er
s 

in
 t

he
 C

on
tr

ac
t 

D
oc

um
en

ts
 i

nc
lu

de
 r

ef
er

en
ce

s 
to

 i
de

nt
ifi

ed
 a

rt
ic

le
s 

an
d 

pa
ra

gr
ap

hs
, a

nd
 th

e 
tit

le
s o

f o
th

er
 d

oc
um

en
ts

 o
r f

or
m

s.
 

1.
 

Ad
de

nd
a

W
rit

te
n 

or
 g

ra
ph

ic
 i

ns
tr

um
en

ts
 i

ss
ue

d 
pr

io
r 

to
 t

he
 o

pe
ni

ng
 o

f 
Bi

ds
 w

hi
ch

 
cl

ar
ify

, 
co

rr
ec

t, 
or

 
ch

an
ge

 
th

e 
Bi

dd
in

g 
Re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 

or
 

th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 

D
oc

um
en

ts
. 

2.
 

Ag
re

em
en

t
Th

e 
w

rit
te

n 
in

st
ru

m
en

t, 
ex

ec
ut

ed
 b

y 
O

w
ne

r a
nd

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r, 

th
at

 s
et

s 
fo

rt
h 

th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 P
ric

e 
an

d 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 T

im
es

, 
id

en
tif

ie
s 

th
e 

pa
rt

ie
s 

an
d 

th
e 

En
gi

ne
er

, 
an

d 
de

sig
na

te
s 

th
e 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

ite
m

s 
th

at
 a

re
 C

on
tr

ac
t D

oc
um

en
ts

. 

3.
 

Ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

fo
r P

ay
m

en
t

Th
e 

do
cu

m
en

t p
re

pa
re

d 
by

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r, 

in
 a

 fo
rm

 a
cc

ep
ta

bl
e 

to
 

En
gi

ne
er

, t
o 

re
qu

es
t p

ro
gr

es
s 

or
 fi

na
l p

ay
m

en
ts

, a
nd

 w
hi

ch
 is

 to
 b

e 
ac

co
m

pa
ni

ed
 b

y 
su

ch
 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
do

cu
m

en
ta

tio
n 

as
 is

 re
qu

ire
d 

by
 th

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 D

oc
um

en
ts

. 

4.
 

Bi
d

Th
e 

of
fe

r 
of

 a
 B

id
de

r s
ub

m
itt

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
pr

es
cr

ib
ed

 fo
rm

 s
et

tin
g 

fo
rt

h 
th

e 
pr

ic
es

 fo
r 

th
e 

W
or

k 
to

 b
e 

pe
rf

or
m

ed
. 

5.
 

Bi
dd

er
An

 in
di

vi
du

al
 o

r e
nt

ity
 th

at
 s

ub
m

its
 a

 B
id

 to
 O

w
ne

r. 

6.
 

Bi
dd

in
g 

D
oc

um
en

ts
Th

e 
Bi

dd
in

g 
Re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
, t

he
 p

ro
po

se
d 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 D
oc

um
en

ts
, a

nd
 

al
l A

dd
en

da
. 

7.
 

Bi
dd

in
g 

Re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

Th
e 

Ad
ve

rt
ise

m
en

t 
or

 in
vi

ta
tio

n 
to

 b
id

, I
ns

tr
uc

tio
ns

 t
o 

Bi
dd

er
s,

 
Bi

d 
Bo

nd
 o

r o
th

er
 B

id
 se

cu
rit

y,
 if

 a
ny

, t
he

 B
id

 F
or

m
, a

nd
 th

e 
Bi

d 
w

ith
 a

ny
 a

tt
ac

hm
en

ts
. 

8.
 

Ch
an

ge
 O

rd
er

A 
do

cu
m

en
t w

hi
ch

 is
 s

ig
ne

d 
by

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r a

nd
 O

w
ne

r a
nd

 a
ut

ho
riz

es
 a

n 
ad

di
tio

n,
 d

el
et

io
n,

 o
r r

ev
is

io
n 

in
 th

e 
W

or
k 

or
 a

n 
ad

ju
st

m
en

t i
n 

th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 P
ric

e 
or

 th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 T
im

es
, o

r o
th

er
 re

vi
sio

n 
to

 th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

, i
ss

ue
d 

on
 o

r a
ft

er
 th

e 
Ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

Da
te

 o
f 

th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 

9.
 

Ch
an

ge
 P

ro
po

sa
l

A 
w

rit
te

n 
re

qu
es

t 
by

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r, 

du
ly

 s
ub

m
itt

ed
 in

 c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 
th

e 
pr

oc
ed

ur
al

 re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 se
t f

or
th

 h
er

ei
n,

 se
ek

in
g 

an
 a

dj
us

tm
en

t i
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 P
ric

e 
or

 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 T

im
es

; c
on

te
st

in
g 

an
 in

iti
al

 d
ec

isi
on

 b
y 

En
gi

ne
er

 c
on

ce
rn

in
g 

th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 o
f 

th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 D
oc

um
en

ts
 o

r 
th

e 
ac

ce
pt

ab
ili

ty
 o

f 
W

or
k 

un
de

r 
th

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 D

oc
um

en
ts

; 
ch

al
le

ng
in

g 
a 

se
t-

of
f a

ga
in

st
 p

ay
m

en
ts

 d
ue

; o
r 

se
ek

in
g 

ot
he

r 
re

lie
f 

w
ith

 r
es

pe
ct

 t
o 

th
e 

te
rm

s o
f t

he
 C

on
tr

ac
t. 

10
. 

Cl
ai

m
 

a.
 

A 
de

m
an

d 
or

 a
ss

er
tio

n 
by

 O
w

ne
r d

ire
ct

ly
 to

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r, 

du
ly

 su
bm

itt
ed

 in
 c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
pr

oc
ed

ur
al

 re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 se
t f

or
th

 h
er

ei
n,

 se
ek

in
g 

an
 a

dj
us

tm
en

t o
f C

on
tr

ac
t 

Pr
ic

e 
or

 C
on

tr
ac

t 
Ti

m
es

; c
on

te
st

in
g 

an
 in

iti
al

 d
ec

isi
on

 b
y 

En
gi

ne
er

 c
on

ce
rn

in
g 

th
e 



 

EJ
CD

C®
 C

-7
00

, S
ta

nd
ar

d 
G

en
er

al
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 
Co

py
rig

ht
©

 2
01

8 
N

at
io

na
l S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rs
, A

m
er

ic
an

 C
ou

nc
il 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Co

m
pa

ni
es

, 
an

d 
Am

er
ic

an
 S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
s.

 A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
 

Pa
ge

 2
 o

f 7
0 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 o
f 

th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 D
oc

um
en

ts
 o

r 
th

e 
ac

ce
pt

ab
ili

ty
 o

f 
W

or
k 

un
de

r 
th

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 D

oc
um

en
ts

; 
co

nt
es

ti
se

ek
in

g 
re

so
lu

tio
n 

of
 a

 c
on

tr
ac

tu
al

 is
su

e 
th

at
 E

ng
in

ee
r 

ha
s 

de
cl

in
ed

 t
o 

ad
dr

es
s;

 o
r 

se
ek

in
g 

ot
he

r r
el

ie
f w

ith
 re

sp
ec

t t
o 

th
e 

te
rm

s o
f t

he
 C

on
tr

ac
t. 

b.
 

A 
de

m
an

d 
or

 a
ss

er
tio

n 
by

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r d

ire
ct

ly
 to

 O
w

ne
r, 

du
ly

 su
bm

itt
ed

 in
 co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 

re
ga

rd
in

g 
a 

Ch
an

ge
 P

ro
po

sa
l, 

or
 s

ee
ki

ng
 r

es
ol

ut
io

n 
of

 a
 c

on
tr

ac
tu

al
 i

ss
ue

 t
ha

t 
En

gi
ne

er
 h

as
 d

ec
lin

ed
 to

 a
dd

re
ss

. 

c.
 

A 
de

m
an

d 
or

 a
ss

er
tio

n 
by

 O
w

ne
r 

or
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r, 
du

ly
 s

ub
m

itt
ed

 in
 c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 

th
e 

pr
oc

ed
ur

al
 re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 se

t f
or

th
 h

er
ei

n,
 m

ad
e 

pu
rs

ua
nt

 to
 P

ar
ag

ra
ph

 1
2.

01
.A

.4
, 

co
nc

er
ni

ng
 d

isp
ut

es
 a

ris
in

g 
af

te
r 

En
gi

ne
er

 h
as

 i
ss

ue
d 

a 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 
of

 f
in

al
 

pa
ym

en
t. 

d.
 

A 
de

m
an

d 
fo

r m
on

ey
 o

r s
er

vi
ce

s b
y 

a 
th

ird
 p

ar
ty

 is
 n

ot
 a

 C
la

im
. 

11
. 

Co
ns

tit
ue

nt
 o

f 
Co

nc
er

n
As

be
st

os
, 

pe
tr

ol
eu

m
, 

ra
di

oa
ct

iv
e 

m
at

er
ia

ls,
 p

ol
yc

hl
or

in
at

ed
 

bi
ph

en
yl

s 
(P

CB
s)

, 
le

ad
-b

as
ed

 p
ai

nt
 (

as
 d

ef
in

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
H

U
D/

EP
A 

st
an

da
rd

), 
ha

za
rd

ou
s 

w
as

te
, a

nd
 a

ny
 s

ub
st

an
ce

, p
ro

du
ct

, w
as

te
, o

r 
ot

he
r 

m
at

er
ia

l o
f a

ny
 n

at
ur

e 
w

ha
ts

oe
ve

r 
th

at
 i

s 
or

 b
ec

om
es

 li
st

ed
, 

re
gu

la
te

d,
 o

r 
ad

dr
es

se
d 

pu
rs

ua
nt

 t
o 

La
w

s 
an

d 
Re

gu
la

tio
ns

 
re

gu
la

tin
g,

 r
el

at
in

g 
to

, 
or

 i
m

po
si

ng
 l

ia
bi

lit
y 

or
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 o
f 

co
nd

uc
t 

co
nc

er
ni

ng
, 

an
y 

ha
za

rd
ou

s,
 to

xi
c,

 o
r d

an
ge

ro
us

 w
as

te
, s

ub
st

an
ce

, o
r m

at
er

ia
l. 

12
. 

Co
nt

ra
ct

Th
e 

en
tir

e 
an

d 
in

te
gr

at
ed

 w
rit

te
n 

co
nt

ra
ct

 b
et

w
ee

n 
O

w
ne

r 
an

d 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 
co

nc
er

ni
ng

 th
e 

W
or

k.
 

13
. 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 D
oc

um
en

ts
Th

os
e 

ite
m

s 
so

 d
es

ig
na

te
d 

in
 th

e 
Ag

re
em

en
t, 

an
d 

w
hi

ch
 to

ge
th

er
 

co
m

pr
is

e 
th

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
. 

14
. 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 P
ric

e
Th

e 
m

on
ey

 t
ha

t 
O

w
ne

r 
ha

s 
ag

re
ed

 to
 p

ay
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r 
fo

r 
co

m
pl

et
io

n 
of

 
th

e 
W

or
k 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 D

oc
um

en
ts

. 

15
. 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 T
im

es
Th

e 
nu

m
be

r o
f d

ay
s 

or
 th

e 
da

te
s 

by
 w

hi
ch

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r s

ha
ll:

 (a
) a

ch
ie

ve
 

M
ile

st
on

es
, i

f a
ny

; (
b)

 a
ch

ie
ve

 S
ub

st
an

tia
l C

om
pl

et
io

n;
 a

nd
 (c

) c
om

pl
et

e 
th

e 
W

or
k.

 

16
. 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
Th

e 
in

di
vi

du
al

 o
r e

nt
ity

 w
ith

 w
hi

ch
 O

w
ne

r 
ha

s 
co

nt
ra

ct
ed

 fo
r 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 
of

 th
e 

W
or

k.
 

17
. 

Co
st

 o
f t

he
 W

or
k

Se
e 

Pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
13

.0
1 

fo
r d

ef
in

iti
on

. 

18
. 

D
ra

w
in

gs
Th

e 
pa

rt
 o

f 
th

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 t

ha
t 

gr
ap

hi
ca

lly
 s

ho
w

s 
th

e 
sc

op
e,

 e
xt

en
t, 

an
d 

ch
ar

ac
te

r o
f t

he
 W

or
k 

to
 b

e 
pe

rf
or

m
ed

 b
y 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
. 

19
. 

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
Da

te
 o

f 
th

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
Th

e 
da

te
, 

in
di

ca
te

d 
in

 t
he

 A
gr

ee
m

en
t, 

on
 w

hi
ch

 t
he

 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 b

ec
om

es
 e

ffe
ct

iv
e.

 

20
. 

El
ec

tr
on

ic
 

D
oc

um
en

t
An

y 
Pr

oj
ec

t-
re

la
te

d 
co

rr
es

po
nd

en
ce

, 
at

ta
ch

m
en

ts
 

to
 

co
rr

es
po

nd
en

ce
, d

at
a,

 d
oc

um
en

ts
, d

ra
w

in
gs

, i
nf

or
m

at
io

n,
 o

r 
gr

ap
hi

cs
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 b
ut

 n
ot

 
lim

ite
d 

to
 S

ho
p 

D
ra

w
in

gs
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 S
ub

m
itt

al
s, 

th
at

 a
re

 in
 a

n 
el

ec
tr

on
ic

 o
r d

ig
ita

l f
or

m
at

. 

21
. 

El
ec

tr
on

ic
 M

ea
ns

El
ec

tr
on

ic
 m

ai
l 

(e
m

ai
l),

 u
pl

oa
d/

do
w

nl
oa

d 
fr

om
 a

 s
ec

ur
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

w
eb

si
te

, 
or

 
ot

he
r 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 
m

et
ho

ds
 

th
at

 
al

lo
w

: 
(a

) 
th

e 
tr

an
sm

is
sio

n 
or

 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
of

 E
le

ct
ro

ni
c 

Do
cu

m
en

ts
; 

(b
) 

th
e 

do
cu

m
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 t
ra

ns
m

iss
io

ns
, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
se

nd
in

g 
an

d 
re

ce
ip

t;
 (c

) p
rin

tin
g 

of
 th

e 
tr

an
sm

itt
ed

 E
le

ct
ro

ni
c 

Do
cu

m
en

t b
y 

th
e 

 

EJ
CD

C®
 C

-7
00

, S
ta

nd
ar

d 
G

en
er

al
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 
Co

py
rig

ht
©

 2
01

8 
N

at
io

na
l S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rs
, A

m
er

ic
an

 C
ou

nc
il 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Co

m
pa

ni
es

, 
an

d 
Am

er
ic

an
 S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
s.

 A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
 

Pa
ge

 3
 o

f 7
0 

re
ci

pi
en

t; 
(d

) 
th

e 
st

or
ag

e 
an

d 
ar

ch
iv

in
g 

of
 t

he
 E

le
ct

ro
ni

c 
Do

cu
m

en
t 

by
 s

en
de

r 
an

d 
re

ci
pi

en
t; 

an
d 

(e
) t

he
 u

se
 b

y 
re

ci
pi

en
t o

f t
he

 E
le

ct
ro

ni
c 

Do
cu

m
en

t f
or

 p
ur

po
se

s p
er

m
itt

ed
 

by
 t

hi
s 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 
El

ec
tr

on
ic

 M
ea

ns
 d

oe
s 

no
t 

in
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

us
e 

of
 t

ex
t 

m
es

sa
gi

ng
, o

r 
of

 
Fa

ce
bo

ok
, 

Tw
itt

er
, 

In
st

ag
ra

m
, 

or
 s

im
ila

r 
so

ci
al

 m
ed

ia
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

fo
r 

tr
an

sm
is

sio
n 

of
 

El
ec

tr
on

ic
 D

oc
um

en
ts

. 

22
. 

En
gi

ne
er

Th
e 

in
di

vi
du

al
 o

r e
nt

ity
 n

am
ed

 a
s s

uc
h 

in
 th

e 
Ag

re
em

en
t. 

23
. 

Fi
el

d 
O

rd
er

A 
w

rit
te

n 
or

de
r 

is
su

ed
 b

y 
En

gi
ne

er
 w

hi
ch

 r
eq

ui
re

s 
m

in
or

 c
ha

ng
es

 in
 t

he
 

W
or

k 
bu

t d
oe

s 
no

t c
ha

ng
e 

th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 P
ric

e 
or

 th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 T
im

es
. 

24
. 

H
az

ar
do

us
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l C

on
di

tio
n

Th
e 

pr
es

en
ce

 a
t t

he
 S

ite
 o

f C
on

st
itu

en
ts

 o
f C

on
ce

rn
 

in
 s

uc
h 

qu
an

tit
ie

s 
or

 c
irc

um
st

an
ce

s 
th

at
 m

ay
 p

re
se

nt
 a

 d
an

ge
r 

to
 p

er
so

ns
 o

r 
pr

op
er

ty
 

ex
po

se
d 

th
er

et
o.

 

a.
 

Th
e 

pr
es

en
ce

 a
t t

he
 S

ite
 o

f m
at

er
ia

ls
 th

at
 a

re
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 fo
r t

he
 e

xe
cu

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
W

or
k,

 
or

 th
at

 a
re

 to
 b

e 
in

co
rp

or
at

ed
 in

to
 th

e 
W

or
k,

 a
nd

 th
at

 a
re

 c
on

tr
ol

le
d 

an
d 

co
nt

ai
ne

d 
pu

rs
ua

nt
 t

o 
in

du
st

ry
 p

ra
ct

ic
es

, L
aw

s 
an

d 
Re

gu
la

tio
ns

, a
nd

 t
he

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 o

f t
he

 
Co

nt
ra

ct
, i

s 
no

t a
 H

az
ar

do
us

 E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l C
on

di
tio

n.
 

b.
 

Th
e 

pr
es

en
ce

 o
f C

on
st

itu
en

ts
 o

f C
on

ce
rn

 t
ha

t 
ar

e 
to

 b
e 

re
m

ov
ed

 o
r 

re
m

ed
ia

te
d 

as
 

pa
rt

 o
f t

he
 W

or
k 

is
 n

ot
 a

 H
az

ar
do

us
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l C

on
di

tio
n.

 

c.
 

Th
e 

pr
es

en
ce

 o
f 

Co
ns

tit
ue

nt
s 

of
 C

on
ce

rn
 a

s 
pa

rt
 o

f 
th

e 
ro

ut
in

e,
 a

nt
ic

ip
at

ed
, a

nd
 

ob
vi

ou
s w

or
ki

ng
 c

on
di

tio
ns

 a
t t

he
 S

ite
, i

s n
ot

 a
 H

az
ar

do
us

 E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l C
on

di
tio

n.
 

25
. 

La
w

s 
an

d 
Re

gu
la

tio
ns

; L
aw

s 
or

 R
eg

ul
at

io
ns

An
y 

an
d 

al
l a

pp
lic

ab
le

 la
w

s,
 s

ta
tu

te
s,

 ru
le

s,
 

re
gu

la
tio

ns
, o

rd
in

an
ce

s,
 c

od
es

, a
nd

 b
in

di
ng

 d
ec

re
es

, r
es

ol
ut

io
ns

, a
nd

 o
rd

er
s 

of
 a

ny
 a

nd
 

al
l g

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l b

od
ie

s,
 a

ge
nc

ie
s,

 a
ut

ho
rit

ie
s,

 a
nd

 c
ou

rt
s 

ha
vi

ng
 ju

ris
di

ct
io

n.
 

26
. 

Li
en

s
Ch

ar
ge

s,
 s

ec
ur

ity
 in

te
re

st
s,

 o
r 

en
cu

m
br

an
ce

s 
up

on
 C

on
tr

ac
t-

re
la

te
d 

fu
nd

s,
 r

ea
l 

pr
op

er
ty

, o
r p

er
so

na
l p

ro
pe

rt
y.

 

27
. 

M
ile

st
on

e
A 

pr
in

ci
pa

l e
ve

nt
 in

 th
e 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 W

or
k 

th
at

 th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 re
qu

ire
s 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 t

o 
ac

hi
ev

e 
by

 a
n 

in
te

rm
ed

ia
te

 c
om

pl
et

io
n 

da
te

, 
or

 b
y 

a 
tim

e 
pr

io
r 

to
 

Su
bs

ta
nt

ia
l C

om
pl

et
io

n 
of

 a
ll 

th
e 

W
or

k.
 

28
. 

N
ot

ic
e 

of
 A

w
ar

d
Th

e 
w

rit
te

n 
no

tic
e 

by
 O

w
ne

r t
o 

Bi
d.

 

29
. 

N
ot

ic
e 

to
 P

ro
ce

ed
A 

w
rit

te
n 

no
tic

e 
by

 O
w

ne
r t

o 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 fi
xi

ng
 th

e 
da

te
 o

n 
w

hi
ch

 th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 T
im

es
 w

ill
 c

om
m

en
ce

 to
 ru

n 
an

d 
on

 w
hi

ch
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r s
ha

ll 
st

ar
t t

o 
pe

rf
or

m
 th

e 
W

or
k.

 

30
. 

O
w

ne
r

Th
e 

in
di

vi
du

al
 o

r 
en

tit
y 

w
ith

 w
hi

ch
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r 
ha

s 
co

nt
ra

ct
ed

 r
eg

ar
di

ng
 t

he
 

W
or

k,
 a

nd
 w

hi
ch

 h
as

 a
gr

ee
d 

to
 p

ay
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r f
or

 th
e 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 W

or
k,

 p
ur

su
an

t 
to

 th
e 

te
rm

s o
f t

he
 C

on
tr

ac
t. 

31
. 

Pr
og

re
ss

 S
ch

ed
ul

e
A 

sc
he

du
le

, p
re

pa
re

d 
an

d 
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
by

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r, 

de
sc

rib
in

g 
th

e 

W
or

k 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 T
im

es
. 

32
. 

Pr
oj

ec
t

Th
e 

to
ta

l u
nd

er
ta

ki
ng

 to
 b

e 
ac

co
m

pl
ish

ed
 fo

r O
w

ne
r b

y 
en

gi
ne

er
s,

 c
on

tr
ac

to
rs

, 
an

d 
ot

he
rs

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 p

la
nn

in
g,

 s
tu

dy
, d

es
ig

n,
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n,

 te
st

in
g,

 c
om

m
is

si
on

in
g,

 a
nd

 
st

ar
t-

up
, a

nd
 o

f w
hi

ch
 th

e 
W

or
k 

to
 b

e 
pe

rf
or

m
ed

 u
nd

er
 th

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 D

oc
um

en
ts

 is
 a

 p
ar

t. 



 

EJ
CD

C®
 C

-7
00

, S
ta

nd
ar

d 
G

en
er

al
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 
Co

py
rig

ht
©

 2
01

8 
N

at
io

na
l S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rs
, A

m
er

ic
an

 C
ou

nc
il 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Co

m
pa

ni
es

, 
an

d 
Am

er
ic

an
 S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
s.

 A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
 

Pa
ge

 4
 o

f 7
0 

33
. 

Re
sid

en
t P

ro
je

ct
 R

ep
re

se
nt

at
iv

e
Th

e 
au

th
or

iz
ed

 r
ep

re
se

nt
at

iv
e 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
r a

ss
ig

ne
d 

to
 

as
si

st
 E

ng
in

ee
r a

t t
he

 S
ite

. A
s u

se
d 

he
re

in
, t

he
 te

rm
 R

es
id

en
t P

ro
je

ct
 R

ep
re

se
nt

at
iv

e 
(R

PR
) 

in
cl

ud
es

 a
ny

 a
ss

is
ta

nt
s o

r f
ie

ld
 st

af
f o

f R
es

id
en

t P
ro

je
ct

 R
ep

re
se

nt
at

iv
e.

 

34
. 

Sa
m

pl
es

Ph
ys

ic
al

 
ex

am
pl

es
 

of
 

m
at

er
ia

ls
, 

eq
ui

pm
en

t, 
or

 
w

or
km

an
sh

ip
 

th
at

 
ar

e 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tiv
e 

of
 s

om
e 

po
rt

io
n 

of
 t

he
 W

or
k 

an
d 

th
at

 e
st

ab
lis

h 
th

e 
st

an
da

rd
s 

by
 w

hi
ch

 
su

ch
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

W
or

k 
w

ill
 b

e 
ju

dg
ed

. 

35
. 

Sc
he

du
le

 o
f S

ub
m

itt
al

s
A 

sc
he

du
le

, p
re

pa
re

d 
an

d 
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
by

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r, 

of
 re

qu
ire

d 
 

36
. 

Sc
he

du
le

 o
f 

Va
lu

es
A 

sc
he

du
le

, 
pr

ep
ar

ed
 a

nd
 m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
by

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r, 

al
lo

ca
tin

g 
po

rt
io

ns
 o

f t
he

 C
on

tr
ac

t P
ric

e 
to

 v
ar

io
us

 p
or

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 W

or
k 

an
d 

us
ed

 a
s 

th
e 

ba
sis

 fo
r 

 

37
. 

Sh
op

 D
ra

w
in

gs
Al

l 
dr

aw
in

gs
, 

di
ag

ra
m

s,
 i

llu
st

ra
tio

ns
, 

sc
he

du
le

s,
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 d
at

a 
or

 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
th

at
 a

re
 s

pe
ci

fic
al

ly
 p

re
pa

re
d 

or
 a

ss
em

bl
ed

 b
y 

or
 f

or
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r 
an

d 
su

bm
itt

ed
 b

y 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 to
 il

lu
st

ra
te

 so
m

e 
po

rt
io

n 
of

 th
e 

W
or

k.
 S

ho
p 

Dr
aw

in
gs

, w
he

th
er

 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 o

r n
ot

, a
re

 n
ot

 D
ra

w
in

gs
 a

nd
 a

re
 n

ot
 C

on
tr

ac
t D

oc
um

en
ts

. 

38
. 

Si
te

La
nd

s 
or

 a
re

as
 in

di
ca

te
d 

in
 t

he
 C

on
tr

ac
t 

Do
cu

m
en

ts
 a

s 
be

in
g 

fu
rn

ish
ed

 b
y 

O
w

ne
r 

up
on

 w
hi

ch
 t

he
 W

or
k 

is
 t

o 
be

 p
er

fo
rm

ed
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 r
ig

ht
s-

of
-w

ay
 a

nd
 e

as
em

en
ts

, a
nd

 
su

ch
 o

th
er

 l
an

ds
 o

r 
ar

ea
s 

fu
rn

is
he

d 
by

 O
w

ne
r 

w
hi

ch
 a

re
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
fo

r 
th

e 
us

e 
of

 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

. 

39
. 

Sp
ec

ifi
ca

tio
ns

Th
e 

pa
rt

 o
f 

th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 t
ha

t 
co

ns
is

ts
 o

f 
w

rit
te

n 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 f

or
 

m
at

er
ia

ls,
 e

qu
ip

m
en

t, 
sy

st
em

s, 
st

an
da

rd
s,

 a
nd

 w
or

km
an

sh
ip

 a
s a

pp
lie

d 
to

 th
e 

W
or

k,
 a

nd
 

ce
rt

ai
n 

ad
m

in
is

tr
at

iv
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 a
nd

 p
ro

ce
du

ra
l m

at
te

rs
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

 to
 th

e 
W

or
k.

 

40
. 

Su
bc

on
tr

ac
to

r
An

 in
di

vi
du

al
 o

r 
en

tit
y 

ha
vi

ng
 a

 d
ire

ct
 c

on
tr

ac
t 

w
ith

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r 

or
 w

ith
 

an
y 

ot
he

r S
ub

co
nt

ra
ct

or
 fo

r t
he

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 o
f a

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
 W

or
k.

 

41
. 

Su
bm

itt
al

A 
w

rit
te

n 
or

 g
ra

ph
ic

 d
oc

um
en

t, 
pr

ep
ar

ed
 b

y 
or

 f
or

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r, 

w
hi

ch
 t

he
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 D
oc

um
en

ts
 r

eq
ui

re
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r 
to

 s
ub

m
it 

to
 E

ng
in

ee
r, 

or
 t

ha
t i

s 
in

di
ca

te
d 

as
 a

 
Su

bm
itt

al
 in

 t
he

 S
ch

ed
ul

e 
of

 S
ub

m
itt

al
s 

ac
ce

pt
ed

 b
y 

En
gi

ne
er

. S
ub

m
itt

al
s 

m
ay

 in
cl

ud
e 

Sh
op

 
Dr

aw
in

gs
 

an
d 

Sa
m

pl
es

; 
sc

he
du

le
s;

 
pr

od
uc

t 
da

ta
; 

O
w

ne
r-

de
le

ga
te

d 
de

sig
ns

; 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
de

sig
n 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n;

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

on
 s

pe
ci

al
 p

ro
ce

du
re

s;
 te

st
in

g 
pl

an
s;

 re
su

lts
 

of
 te

st
s 

an
d 

ev
al

ua
tio

ns
, s

ou
rc

e 
qu

al
ity

-c
on

tr
ol

 te
st

in
g 

an
d 

in
sp

ec
tio

ns
, a

nd
 fi

el
d 

or
 S

ite
 

qu
al

ity
-c

on
tr

ol
 

te
st

in
g 

an
d 

in
sp

ec
tio

ns
; 

w
ar

in
st

ru
ct

io
ns

 a
nd

 r
ep

or
ts

; 
re

co
rd

s 
of

 d
el

iv
er

y 
of

 s
pa

re
 p

ar
ts

 a
nd

 t
oo

ls;
 o

pe
ra

tio
ns

 a
nd

 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 d

at
a;

 P
ro

je
ct

 p
ho

to
gr

ap
hi

c 
do

cu
m

en
ta

tio
n;

 r
ec

or
d 

do
cu

m
en

ts
; a

nd
 o

th
er

 
su

ch
 d

oc
um

en
ts

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
by

 t
he

 C
on

tr
ac

t 
Do

cu
m

en
ts

. 
Su

bm
itt

al
s,

 w
he

th
er

 o
r 

no
t 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 o
r 

ac
ce

pt
ed

 b
y 

En
gi

ne
er

, 
ar

e 
no

t 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 D

oc
um

en
ts

. 
Ch

an
ge

 P
ro

po
sa

ls,
 

Ch
an

ge
 O

rd
er

s,
 C

la
im

s,
 n

ot
ic

es
, A

pp
lic

at
io

ns
 fo

r P
ay

m
en

t, 
an

d 
re

qu
es

ts
 fo

r i
nt

er
pr

et
at

io
n 

or
 c

la
rif

ic
at

io
n 

ar
e 

no
t S

ub
m

itt
al

s.
 

42
. 

Su
bs

ta
nt

ia
l C

om
pl

et
io

n
Th

e 
tim

e 
at

 w
hi

ch
 t

he
 W

or
k 

(o
r 

a 
sp

ec
ifi

ed
 p

ar
t 

th
er

eo
f) 

ha
s 

pr
og

re
ss

ed
 to

 th
e 

po
in

t w
he

re
, i

n 
th

e 
op

in
io

n 
of

 E
ng

in
ee

r, 
th

e 
W

or
k 

(o
r 

a 
sp

ec
ifi

ed
 p

ar
t 

th
er

eo
f) 

is
 su

ffi
ci

en
tly

 c
om

pl
et

e,
 in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 D
oc

um
en

ts
, s

o 
th

at
 th

e 
W

or
k 

(o
r a

 sp
ec

ifi
ed

 p
ar

t t
he

re
of

) c
an

 b
e 

ut
ili

ze
d 

fo
r t

he
 p

ur
po

se
s f

or
 w

hi
ch

 it
 is

 in
te

nd
ed

. 

of
 th

e 
W

or
k 

re
fe

r t
o 

Su
bs

ta
nt

ia
l C

om
pl

et
io

n 
of

 s
uc

h 
W

or
k.

 

 

EJ
CD

C®
 C

-7
00

, S
ta

nd
ar

d 
G

en
er

al
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 
Co

py
rig

ht
©

 2
01

8 
N

at
io

na
l S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rs
, A

m
er

ic
an

 C
ou

nc
il 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Co

m
pa

ni
es

, 
an

d 
Am

er
ic

an
 S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
s.

 A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
 

Pa
ge

 5
 o

f 7
0 

43
. 

Su
cc

es
sf

ul
 B

id
de

r
Th

e 
Bi

dd
er

 to
 w

hi
ch

 th
e 

O
w

ne
r m

ak
es

 a
n 

aw
ar

d 
of

 c
on

tr
ac

t. 

44
. 

Su
pp

le
m

en
ta

ry
 C

on
di

tio
ns

Th
e 

pa
rt

 o
f t

he
 C

on
tr

ac
t t

ha
t a

m
en

ds
 o

r 
su

pp
le

m
en

ts
 th

es
e 

G
en

er
al

 C
on

di
tio

ns
. 

45
. 

Su
pp

lie
r

A 
m

an
uf

ac
tu

re
r, 

fa
br

ic
at

or
, 

su
pp

lie
r, 

di
st

rib
ut

or
, 

or
 v

en
do

r 
ha

vi
ng

 a
 d

ire
ct

 
co

nt
ra

ct
 w

ith
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r o
r w

ith
 a

ny
 S

ub
co

nt
ra

ct
or

 to
 fu

rn
is

h 
m

at
er

ia
ls 

or
 e

qu
ip

m
en

t t
o 

be
 in

co
rp

or
at

ed
 in

 th
e 

W
or

k 
by

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r o

r a
 S

ub
co

nt
ra

ct
or

. 

46
. 

Te
ch

ni
ca

l D
at

a 

a.
 

Th
os

e 
ite

m
s 

ex
pr

es
sly

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
as

 T
ec

hn
ic

al
 D

at
a 

in
 th

e 
Su

pp
le

m
en

ta
ry

 C
on

di
tio

ns
, 

w
ith

 re
sp

ec
t t

o 
ei

th
er

 (1
) e

xi
st

in
g 

su
bs

ur
fa

ce
 c

on
di

tio
ns

 a
t o

r a
dj

ac
en

t t
o 

th
e 

Si
te

, o
r 

ex
is

tin
g 

ph
ys

ic
al

 c
on

di
tio

ns
 a

t 
or

 a
dj

ac
en

t 
to

 t
he

 S
ite

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
ex

ist
in

g 
su

rf
ac

e 
or

 
su

bs
ur

fa
ce

 
st

ru
ct

ur
es

 
(e

xc
ep

t 
U

nd
er

gr
ou

nd
 

Fa
ci

lit
ie

s)
 

or
 

(2
) H

az
ar

do
us

 
En

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l C

on
di

tio
ns

 a
t t

he
 S

ite
. 

b.
 

If 
no

 s
uc

h 
ex

pr
es

s 
id

en
tif

ic
at

io
ns

 o
f T

ec
hn

ic
al

 D
at

a 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

m
ad

e 
w

ith
 re

sp
ec

t 
to

 
co

nd
iti

on
s 

at
 th

e 
Si

te
, t

he
n 

Te
ch

ni
ca

l D
at

a 
is

 d
ef

in
ed

, w
ith

 r
es

pe
ct

 t
o 

co
nd

iti
on

s 
at

 
th

e 
Si

te
 u

nd
er

 P
ar

ag
ra

ph
s 5

.0
3,

 5
.0

4,
 a

nd
 5

.0
6,

 a
s 

th
e 

da
ta

 c
on

ta
in

ed
 in

 b
or

in
g 

lo
gs

, 
re

co
rd

ed
 m

ea
su

re
m

en
ts

 o
f s

ub
su

rf
ac

e 
w

at
er

 le
ve

ls,
 a

ss
es

sm
en

ts
 o

f t
he

 c
on

di
tio

n 
of

 
su

bs
ur

fa
ce

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s,
 la

bo
ra

to
ry

 te
st

 re
su

lts
, a

nd
 o

th
er

 fa
ct

ua
l, 

ob
je

ct
iv

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
re

ga
rd

in
g 

co
nd

iti
on

s a
t t

he
 S

ite
 th

at
 a

re
 se

t f
or

th
 in

 a
ny

 g
eo

te
ch

ni
ca

l, 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l, 

or
 o

th
er

 S
ite

 o
r 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
co

nd
iti

on
s 

re
po

rt
 p

re
pa

re
d 

fo
r 

th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

an
d 

m
ad

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

to
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r. 

c.
 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

an
d 

da
ta

 r
eg

ar
di

ng
 t

he
 p

re
se

nc
e 

or
 lo

ca
tio

n 
of

 U
nd

er
gr

ou
nd

 F
ac

ili
tie

s 
ar

e 
no

t 
in

te
nd

ed
 t

o 
be

 c
at

eg
or

iz
ed

, 
id

en
tif

ie
d,

 o
r 

de
fin

ed
 a

s 
Te

ch
ni

ca
l D

at
a,

 a
nd

 
in

st
ea

d 
U

nd
er

gr
ou

nd
 F

ac
ili

tie
s 

ar
e 

sh
ow

n 
or

 in
di

ca
te

d 
on

 th
e 

D
ra

w
in

gs
. 

47
. 

U
nd

er
gr

ou
nd

 
Fa

ci
lit

ie
s

Al
l 

ac
tiv

e 
or

 
no

t-
in

-s
er

vi
ce

 
un

de
rg

ro
un

d 
lin

es
, 

pi
pe

lin
es

, 
co

nd
ui

ts
, d

uc
ts

, e
nc

as
em

en
ts

, c
ab

le
s,

 w
ire

s,
 m

an
ho

le
s,

 v
au

lts
, t

an
ks

, t
un

ne
ls,

 o
r 

ot
he

r 
su

ch
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s o

r s
ys

te
m

s a
t t

he
 S

ite
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 b
ut

 n
ot

 li
m

ite
d 

to
 th

os
e 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s o
r s

ys
te

m
s 

th
at

 p
ro

du
ce

, t
ra

ns
m

it,
 d

is
tr

ib
ut

e,
 o

r 
co

nv
ey

 te
le

ph
on

e 
or

 o
th

er
 c

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
, c

ab
le

 
te

le
vi

si
on

, f
ib

er
 o

pt
ic

 t
ra

ns
m

iss
io

ns
, p

ow
er

, e
le

ct
ric

ity
, l

ig
ht

, h
ea

t, 
ga

se
s,

 o
il,

 c
ru

de
 o

il 
pr

od
uc

ts
, 

liq
ui

d 
pe

tr
ol

eu
m

 p
ro

du
ct

s,
 w

at
er

, 
st

ea
m

, 
w

as
te

, 
w

as
te

w
at

er
, 

st
or

m
 w

at
er

, 
ot

he
r 

liq
ui

ds
 o

r 
ch

em
ic

al
s, 

or
 t

ra
ff

ic
 o

r 
ot

he
r 

co
nt

ro
l s

ys
te

m
s.

 A
n 

ab
an

do
ne

d 
fa

ci
lit

y 
or

 
sy

st
em

 is
 n

ot
 a

n 
U

nd
er

gr
ou

nd
 F

ac
ili

ty
. 

48
. 

U
ni

t P
ric

e 
W

or
k

W
or

k 
to

 b
e 

pa
id

 fo
r o

n 
th

e 
ba

sis
 o

f u
ni

t p
ric

es
. 

49
. 

W
or

k
Th

e 
en

tir
e 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

or
 t

he
 v

ar
io

us
 s

ep
ar

at
el

y 
id

en
tif

ia
bl

e 
pa

rt
s 

th
er

eo
f 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 b

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 u

nd
er

 th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 D
oc

um
en

ts
. W

or
k 

in
cl

ud
es

 a
nd

 is
 th

e 
re

su
lt 

of
 p

er
fo

rm
in

g 
or

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 a

ll 
la

bo
r, 

se
rv

ic
es

, a
nd

 d
oc

um
en

ta
tio

n 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

to
 p

ro
du

ce
 

su
ch

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n;
 fu

rn
is

hi
ng

, i
ns

ta
lli

ng
, a

nd
 in

co
rp

or
at

in
g 

al
l m

at
er

ia
ls 

an
d 

eq
ui

pm
en

t 
in

to
 s

uc
h 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n;

 a
nd

 m
ay

 in
cl

ud
e 

re
la

te
d 

se
rv

ic
es

 s
uc

h 
as

 t
es

tin
g,

 s
ta

rt
-u

p,
 a

nd
 

co
m

m
is

sio
ni

ng
, a

ll 
as

 re
qu

ire
d 

by
 th

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 D

oc
um

en
ts

. 

50
. 

W
or

k 
Ch

an
ge

 D
ire

ct
iv

e
A 

w
rit

te
n 

di
re

ct
iv

e 
to

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r i

ss
ue

d 
on

 o
r a

ft
er

 th
e 

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
D

at
e 

of
 t

he
 C

on
tr

ac
t, 

sig
ne

d 
by

 O
w

ne
r 

an
d 

re
co

m
m

en
de

d 
by

 E
ng

in
ee

r, 
or

de
rin

g 
an

 
ad

di
tio

n,
 d

el
et

io
n,

 o
r r

ev
is

io
n 

in
 th

e 
W

or
k.

 



 

EJ
CD

C®
 C

-7
00

, S
ta

nd
ar

d 
G

en
er

al
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 
Co

py
rig

ht
©

 2
01

8 
N

at
io

na
l S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rs
, A

m
er

ic
an

 C
ou

nc
il 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Co

m
pa

ni
es

, 
an

d 
Am

er
ic

an
 S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
s.

 A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
 

Pa
ge

 6
 o

f 7
0 

1.
02

 
Te

rm
in

ol
og

y 

A.
 

Th
e 

w
or

ds
 a

nd
 te

rm
s 

di
sc

us
se

d 
in

 P
ar

ag
ra

ph
s 1

.0
2.

B,
 C

, D
, a

nd
 E

 a
re

 n
ot

 d
ef

in
ed

 te
rm

s 
th

at
 

re
qu

ire
 i

ni
tia

l 
ca

pi
ta

l 
le

tt
er

s,
 b

ut
, 

w
he

n 
us

ed
 i

n 
th

e 
Bi

dd
in

g 
Re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

r 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 

D
oc

um
en

ts
, h

av
e 

th
e 

in
di

ca
te

d 
m

ea
ni

ng
. 

B.
 

In
te

nt
 o

f C
er

ta
in

 T
er

m
s o

r A
dj

ec
tiv

es

ex
er

ci
se

 o
f 

pr
of

es
si

on
al

 j
ud

gm
en

t 
by

 E
ng

in
ee

r. 
In

 a
dd

it

us
ed

 to
 d

es
cr

ib
e 

an
 a

ct
io

n 
or

 d
et

er
m

in
at

io
n 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
r 

as
 to

 th
e 

W
or

k.
 It

 is
 in

te
nd

ed
 t

ha
t 

su
ch

 e
xe

rc
ise

 o
f p

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l j

ud
gm

en
t, 

ac
tio

n,
 o

r d
et

er
m

in
at

io
n 

w
ill

 b
e 

so
le

ly
 to

 e
va

lu
at

e,
 in

 
ge

ne
ra

l, 
th

e 
W

or
k 

fo
r c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
in

 th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 D
oc

um
en

ts
 a

nd
 w

ith
 

th
e 

de
sig

n 
co

nc
ep

t o
f t

he
 P

ro
je

ct
 a

s a
 fu

nc
tio

ni
ng

 w
ho

le
 a

s s
ho

w
n 

or
 in

di
ca

te
d 

in
 th

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 

D
oc

um
en

ts
 (

un
le

ss
 t

he
re

 is
 a

 s
pe

ci
fic

 s
ta

te
m

en
t 

in
di

ca
tin

g 
ot

he
rw

ise
). 

Th
e 

us
e 

of
 a

ny
 s

uc
h 

te
rm

 o
r a

dj
ec

tiv
e 

is 
no

t i
nt

en
de

d 
to

 a
nd

 s
ha

ll 
no

t b
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
to

 a
ss

ig
n 

to
 E

ng
in

ee
r a

ny
 d

ut
y 

or
 a

ut
ho

rit
y 

to
 s

up
er

vi
se

 o
r d

ire
ct

 th
e 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 W

or
k,

 o
r a

ny
 d

ut
y 

or
 a

ut
ho

rit
y 

to
 

un
de

rt
ak

e 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

co
nt

ra
ry

 to
 th

e 
pr

ov
isi

on
s o

f A
rt

ic
le

 1
0 

or
 a

ny
 o

th
er

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 o

f t
he

 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 D

oc
um

en
ts

. 

C.
 

D
ay

m
id

ni
gh

t. 

D
. 

D
ef

ec
tiv

e
un

sa
tis

fa
ct

or
y,

 fa
ul

ty
, o

r d
ef

ic
ie

nt
 in

 th
at

 it
: 

1.
 

do
es

 n
ot

 c
on

fo
rm

 to
 th

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 D

oc
um

en
ts

; 

2.
 

do
es

 n
ot

 m
ee

t t
he

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 o

f a
ny

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 in

sp
ec

tio
n,

 r
ef

er
en

ce
 s

ta
nd

ar
d,

 te
st

, 
or

 a
pp

ro
va

l r
ef

er
re

d 
to

 in
 th

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 D

oc
um

en
ts

; o
r 

3.
 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
fo

r 
th

e 
pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

th
er

eo
f 

ha
s 

be
en

 a
ss

um
ed

 b
y 

O
w

ne
r 

at
 S

ub
st

an
tia

l 
Co

m
pl

et
io

n 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 P
ar

ag
ra

ph
 1

5.
03

 o
r P

ar
ag

ra
ph

 1
5.

04
). 

E.
 

Fu
rn

is
h,

 In
st

al
l, 

Pe
rf

or
m

, P
ro

vi
de

 

1.
 

m
ea

ns
 to

 s
up

pl
y 

an
d 

de
liv

er
 s

ai
d 

se
rv

ic
es

, m
at

er
ia

ls
, o

r e
qu

ip
m

en
t t

o 
th

e 
Si

te
 (o

r 
so

m
e 

ot
he

r s
pe

ci
fie

d 
lo

ca
tio

n)
 re

ad
y 

fo
r u

se
 o

r i
ns

ta
lla

tio
n 

an
d 

in
 u

sa
bl

e 
or

 o
pe

ra
bl

e 
co

nd
iti

on
. 

2.
 

m
ea

ns
 t

o 
pu

t 
in

to
 u

se
 o

r 
pl

ac
e 

in
 f

in
al

 p
os

iti
on

 s
ai

d 
se

rv
ic

es
, m

at
er

ia
ls,

 o
r 

eq
ui

pm
en

t 
co

m
pl

et
e 

an
d 

re
ad

y 
fo

r i
nt

en
de

d 
us

e.
 

3.
 

eq
ui

pm
en

t, 
m

ea
ns

 to
 fu

rn
ish

 a
nd

 in
st

al
l s

ai
d 

se
rv

ic
es

, m
at

er
ia

ls,
 o

r e
qu

ip
m

en
t c

om
pl

et
e 

an
d 

re
ad

y 
fo

r i
nt

en
de

d 
us

e.
 

4.
 

If 
th

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 D

oc
um

en
ts

 e
st

ab
lis

h 
an

 o
bl

ig
at

io
n 

of
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r w
ith

 re
sp

ec
t t

o 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
se

rv
ic

es
, 

m
at

er
ia

ls,
 o

r 
eq

ui
pm

en
t, 

bu
t 

do
 n

ot
 e

xp
re

ss
ly

 u
se

 a
ny

 o
f 

th
e 

fo
ur

 w
or

ds
 

sa
id

 
se

rv
ic

es
, m

at
er

ia
ls

, o
r e

qu
ip

m
en

t c
om

pl
et

e 
an

d 
re

ad
y 

fo
r i

nt
en

de
d 

us
e.

 

 

EJ
CD

C®
 C

-7
00

, S
ta

nd
ar

d 
G

en
er

al
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 
Co

py
rig

ht
©

 2
01

8 
N

at
io

na
l S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rs
, A

m
er

ic
an

 C
ou

nc
il 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Co

m
pa

ni
es

, 
an

d 
Am

er
ic

an
 S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
s.

 A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
 

Pa
ge

 7
 o

f 7
0 

F.
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 P
ric

e 
or

 C
on

tr
ac

t T
im

es
s 

to
 

(1
) C

on
tr

ac
t 

Pr
ic

e,
 (

2)
 C

on
tr

ac
t 

Ti
m

es
, 

or
 (

3)
 b

ot
h 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 P
ric

e 
an

d 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 T

im
es

, 
as

 
 

G
. 

U
nl

es
s s

ta
te

d 
ot

he
rw

ise
 in

 th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 D
oc

um
en

ts
, w

or
ds

 o
r p

hr
as

es
 th

at
 h

av
e 

a 
w

el
l-k

no
w

n 
te

ch
ni

ca
l o

r 
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
in

du
st

ry
 o

r 
tr

ad
e 

m
ea

ni
ng

 a
re

 u
se

d 
in

 t
he

 C
on

tr
ac

t 
Do

cu
m

en
ts

 in
 

ac
co

rd
an

ce
 w

ith
 su

ch
 re

co
gn

iz
ed

 m
ea

ni
ng

. 

AR
TI

CL
E 

2
PR

EL
IM

IN
AR

Y 
M

AT
TE

RS
 

2.
01

 
D

el
iv

er
y 

of
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 a

nd
 P

ay
m

en
t B

on
ds

; E
vi

de
nc

e 
of

 In
su

ra
nc

e 

A.
 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 a
nd

 P
ay

m
en

t B
on

ds
: W

he
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 d

el
iv

er
s 

th
e 

si
gn

ed
 c

ou
nt

er
pa

rt
s 

of
 t

he
 

Ag
re

em
en

t 
to

 O
w

ne
r, 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 s

ha
ll 

al
so

 d
el

iv
er

 t
o 

O
w

ne
r 

th
e 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 b
on

d 
an

d 
pa

ym
en

t b
on

d 
(if

 th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 re
qu

ire
s 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 to

 fu
rn

is
h 

su
ch

 b
on

ds
). 

B.
 

: W
he

n 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 d
el

iv
er

s t
he

 s
ig

ne
d 

co
un

te
rp

ar
ts

 o
f t

he
 

Ag
re

em
en

t t
o 

O
w

ne
r, 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 s

ha
ll 

al
so

 d
el

iv
er

 to
 O

w
ne

r, 
w

ith
 c

op
ie

s 
to

 e
ac

h 
ad

di
tio

na
l 

in
su

re
d 

(a
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
in

 th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

), 
th

e 
ce

rt
ifi

ca
te

s,
 e

nd
or

se
m

en
ts

, a
nd

 o
th

er
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

of
 

in
su

ra
nc

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 b
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 b
y 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 A
rt

ic
le

 6
, e

xc
ep

t t
o 

th
e 

ex
te

nt
 th

e 
Su

pp
le

m
en

ta
ry

 C
on

di
tio

ns
 e

xp
re

ss
ly

 e
st

ab
lis

h 
ot

he
r 

da
te

s 
fo

r 
de

liv
er

y 
of

 s
pe

ci
fic

 
in

su
ra

nc
e 

po
lic

ie
s.

 

C.
 

: A
fte

r r
ec

ei
pt

 o
f t

he
 si

gn
ed

 co
un

te
rp

ar
ts

 o
f t

he
 A

gr
ee

m
en

t a
nd

 
al

l r
eq

ui
re

d 
bo

nd
s a

nd
 in

su
ra

nc
e 

do
cu

m
en

ta
tio

n,
 O

w
ne

r s
ha

ll 
pr

om
pt

ly
 d

el
iv

er
 to

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r, 

w
ith

 co
pi

es
 to

 e
ac

h 
ad

di
tio

na
l in

su
re

d 
(a

s i
de

nt
ifi

ed
 in

 th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

), 
th

e 
ce

rt
ifi

ca
te

s a
nd

 o
th

er
 

ev
id

en
ce

 o
f i

ns
ur

an
ce

 re
qu

ire
d 

to
 b

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 b

y 
O

w
ne

r u
nd

er
 A

rt
ic

le
 6

. 

2.
02

 
Co

pi
es

 o
f D

oc
um

en
ts

 

A.
 

O
w

ne
r 

sh
al

l f
ur

ni
sh

 t
o 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 f

ou
r 

pr
in

te
d 

co
pi

es
 o

f 
th

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 (

in
cl

ud
in

g 
on

e 
fu

lly
 

si
gn

ed
 c

ou
nt

er
pa

rt
 o

f t
he

 A
gr

ee
m

en
t)

, a
nd

 o
ne

 c
op

y 
in

 e
le

ct
ro

ni
c 

po
rt

ab
le

 d
oc

um
en

t f
or

m
at

 
(P

DF
). 

Ad
di

tio
na

l p
rin

te
d 

co
pi

es
 w

ill
 b

e 
fu

rn
is

he
d 

up
on

 re
qu

es
t a

t t
he

 c
os

t o
f r

ep
ro

du
ct

io
n.

 

B.
 

O
w

ne
r 

sh
al

l 
m

ai
nt

ai
n 

an
d 

sa
fe

gu
ar

d 
at

 l
ea

st
 o

ne
 o

rig
in

al
 p

rin
te

d 
re

co
rd

 v
er

sio
n 

of
 t

he
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

D
ra

w
in

gs
 a

nd
 S

pe
ci

fic
at

io
ns

 s
ig

ne
d 

an
d 

se
al

ed
 b

y 
En

gi
ne

er
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 
de

sig
n 

pr
of

es
sio

na
ls

. O
w

ne
r 

sh
al

l m
ak

e 
su

ch
 o

rig
in

al
 p

rin
te

d 
re

co
rd

 v
er

si
on

 o
f t

he
 C

on
tr

ac
t 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r 

fo
r 

re
vi

ew
. 

O
w

ne
r 

m
ay

 d
el

eg
at

e 
th

e 
re

sp
on

sib
ili

tie
s 

un
de

r 
th

is
 

pr
ov

isi
on

 to
 E

ng
in

ee
r. 

2.
03

 
Be

fo
re

 S
ta

rt
in

g 
Co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 

A.
 

Pr
el

im
in

ar
y S

ch
ed

ul
es

: W
ith

in
 1

0 
da

ys
 a

ft
er

 th
e 

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
D

at
e 

of
 th

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 (o

r a
s o

th
er

w
ise

 
re

qu
ire

d 
by

 th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 D
oc

um
en

ts
), 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 s

ha
ll 

su
bm

it 
to

 E
ng

in
ee

r f
or

 ti
m

el
y 

re
vi

ew
: 

1.
 

a 
pr

el
im

in
ar

y 
Pr

og
re

ss
 S

ch
ed

ul
e 

in
di

ca
tin

g 
th

e 
tim

es
 (

nu
m

be
rs

 o
f 

da
ys

 o
r 

da
te

s)
 f

or
 

st
ar

tin
g 

an
d 

co
m

pl
et

in
g 

th
e 

va
rio

us
 s

ta
ge

s 
of

 t
he

 W
or

k,
 i

nc
lu

di
ng

 a
ny

 M
ile

st
on

es
 

sp
ec

ifi
ed

 in
 th

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
; 

2.
 

a 
pr

el
im

in
ar

y 
Sc

he
du

le
 o

f S
ub

m
itt

al
s;

 a
nd

 

3.
 

a 
pr

el
im

in
ar

y 
Sc

he
du

le
 o

f V
al

ue
s 

fo
r a

ll 
of

 th
e 

W
or

k 
w

hi
ch

 in
cl

ud
es

 q
ua

nt
iti

es
 a

nd
 p

ric
es

 
of

 it
em

s 
w

hi
ch

 w
he

n 
ad

de
d 

to
ge

th
er

 e
qu

al
 th

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 P

ric
e 

an
d 

su
bd

iv
id

es
 t

he
 W

or
k 



 

EJ
CD

C®
 C

-7
00

, S
ta

nd
ar

d 
G

en
er

al
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 
Co

py
rig

ht
©

 2
01

8 
N

at
io

na
l S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rs
, A

m
er

ic
an

 C
ou

nc
il 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Co

m
pa

ni
es

, 
an

d 
Am

er
ic

an
 S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
s.

 A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
 

Pa
ge

 8
 o

f 7
0 

in
to

 c
om

po
ne

nt
 p

ar
ts

 in
 s

uf
fic

ie
nt

 d
et

ai
l t

o 
se

rv
e 

as
 t

he
 b

as
is

 f
or

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
pa

ym
en

ts
 

du
rin

g 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 o

f 
th

e 
W

or
k.

 S
uc

h 
pr

ic
es

 w
ill

 i
nc

lu
de

 a
n 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 a

m
ou

nt
 o

f 
ov

er
he

ad
 a

nd
 p

ro
fit

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 to

 e
ac

h 
ite

m
 o

f W
or

k.
 

2.
04

 
Pr

ec
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
Co

nf
er

en
ce

; D
es

ig
na

tio
n 

of
 A

ut
ho

riz
ed

 R
ep

re
se

nt
at

iv
es

 

A.
 

Be
fo

re
 a

ny
 W

or
k 

at
 th

e 
Si

te
 is

 st
ar

te
d,

 a
 co

nf
er

en
ce

 a
tt

en
de

d 
by

 O
w

ne
r, 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
, E

ng
in

ee
r, 

an
d 

ot
he

rs
 a

s a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 w
ill

 b
e 

he
ld

 to
 e

st
ab

lis
h 

a 
w

or
ki

ng
 u

nd
er

st
an

di
ng

 a
m

on
g 

th
e 

pa
rt

ie
s 

as
 to

 th
e 

W
or

k,
 a

nd
 to

 d
is

cu
ss

 th
e 

sc
he

du
le

s 
re

fe
rr

ed
 to

 in
 P

ar
ag

ra
ph

 2
.0

3.
A,

 p
ro

ce
du

re
s 

fo
r 

ha
nd

lin
g 

Sh
op

 D
ra

w
in

gs
, S

am
pl

es
, a

nd
 o

th
er

 S
ub

m
itt

al
s,

 p
ro

ce
ss

in
g 

Ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 fo
r P

ay
m

en
t, 

el
ec

tr
on

ic
 o

r d
ig

ita
l t

ra
ns

m
itt

al
s,

 a
nd

 m
ai

nt
ai

ni
ng

 re
qu

ire
d 

re
co

rd
s.

 

B.
 

At
 th

is 
co

nf
er

en
ce

 O
w

ne
r a

nd
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r e
ac

h 
sh

al
l d

es
ig

na
te

, i
n 

w
rit

in
g,

 a
 sp

ec
ifi

c 
in

di
vi

du
al

 
to

 a
ct

 a
s 

its
 a

ut
ho

riz
ed

 re
pr

es
en

ta
tiv

e 
w

ith
 re

sp
ec

t t
o 

th
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
nd

 re
sp

on
sib

ili
tie

s 
un

de
r 

th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. S
uc

h 
in

di
vi

du
al

s 
sh

al
l h

av
e 

th
e 

au
th

or
ity

 t
o 

tr
an

sm
it 

an
d 

re
ce

iv
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n,

 
re

nd
er

 d
ec

isi
on

s 
re

la
tiv

e 
to

 t
he

 C
on

tr
ac

t, 
an

d 
ot

he
rw

is
e 

ac
t 

on
 b

eh
al

f 
of

 e
ac

h 
re

sp
ec

tiv
e 

pa
rt

y.
 

2.
05

 
Ac

ce
pt

an
ce

 o
f S

ch
ed

ul
es

 

A.
 

At
 le

as
t 1

0 
da

ys
 b

ef
or

e 
su

bm
is

sio
n 

of
 th

e 
fir

st
 A

pp
lic

at
io

n 
fo

r P
ay

m
en

t a
 co

nf
er

en
ce

, a
tt

en
de

d 
by

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r, 

En
gi

ne
er

, 
an

d 
ot

he
rs

 a
s 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
, w

ill
 b

e 
he

ld
 t

o 
re

vi
ew

 t
he

 s
ch

ed
ul

es
 

su
bm

itt
ed

 i
n 

ac
co

rd
an

ce
 w

ith
 P

ar
ag

ra
ph

 2
.0

3.
A.

 N
o 

pr
og

re
ss

 p
ay

m
en

t 
w

ill
 b

e 
m

ad
e 

to
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 u

nt
il 

ac
ce

pt
ab

le
 sc

he
du

le
s 

ar
e 

su
bm

itt
ed

 to
 E

ng
in

ee
r. 

1.
 

Th
e 

Pr
og

re
ss

 S
ch

ed
ul

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
ac

ce
pt

ab
le

 to
 E

ng
in

ee
r i

f i
t p

ro
vi

de
s a

n 
or

de
rly

 p
ro

gr
es

sio
n 

of
 th

e 
W

or
k 

to
 c

om
pl

et
io

n 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 T
im

es
. S

uc
h 

ac
ce

pt
an

ce
 w

ill
 n

ot
 im

po
se

 
on

 E
ng

in
ee

r 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

fo
r 

th
e 

Pr
og

re
ss

 S
ch

ed
ul

e,
 f

or
 s

eq
ue

nc
in

g,
 s

ch
ed

ul
in

g,
 o

r 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
th

er
ef

or
. 

2.
 

w
or

ka
bl

e 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

t f
or

 re
vi

ew
in

g 
an

d 
pr

oc
es

si
ng

 th
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

su
bm

itt
al

s.
 

3.
 

if 
it 

pr
ov

id
es

 a
 re

as
on

ab
le

 a
llo

ca
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 P
ric

e 
to

 th
e 

co
m

po
ne

nt
 p

ar
ts

 o
f t

he
 

W
or

k.
 

4.
 

If 
a 

sc
he

du
le

 is
 n

ot
 a

cc
ep

ta
bl

e,
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r w
ill

 h
av

e 
an

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 1

0 
da

ys
 t

o 
re

vi
se

 a
nd

 
re

su
bm

it 
th

e 
sc

he
du

le
. 

2.
06

 
El

ec
tr

on
ic

 T
ra

ns
m

itt
al

s 

A.
 

Ex
ce

pt
 a

s 
ot

he
rw

ise
 s

ta
te

d 
el

se
w

he
re

 in
 th

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
, t

he
 O

w
ne

r, 
En

gi
ne

er
, a

nd
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r 
m

ay
 s

en
d,

 a
nd

 s
ha

ll 
ac

ce
pt

, E
le

ct
ro

ni
c 

Do
cu

m
en

ts
 tr

an
sm

itt
ed

 b
y 

El
ec

tr
on

ic
 M

ea
ns

. 

B.
 

If 
th

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 d

oe
s 

no
t e

st
ab

lis
h 

pr
ot

oc
ol

s 
fo

r E
le

ct
ro

ni
c 

M
ea

ns
, t

he
n 

O
w

ne
r, 

En
gi

ne
er

, a
nd

 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 s
ha

ll 
jo

in
tly

 d
ev

el
op

 s
uc

h 
pr

ot
oc

ol
s.

 

C.
 

Su
bj

ec
t 

to
 a

ny
 g

ov
er

ni
ng

 p
ro

to
co

ls
 f

or
 E

le
ct

ro
ni

c 
M

ea
ns

, 
w

he
n 

tr
an

sm
itt

in
g 

El
ec

tr
on

ic
 

D
oc

um
en

ts
 b

y 
El

ec
tr

on
ic

 M
ea

ns
, t

he
 tr

an
sm

itt
in

g 
pa

rt
y 

m
ak

es
 n

o 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 a
s 

to
 lo

ng
-

te
rm

 c
om

pa
tib

ili
ty

, u
sa

bi
lit

y,
 o

r 
re

ad
ab

ili
ty

 o
f 

th
e 

El
ec

tr
on

ic
 D

oc
um

en
ts

 r
es

ul
tin

g 
fr

om
 t

he
 

ar
e 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

pa
ck

ag
es

, o
pe

ra
tin

g 
sy

st
em

s,
 o

r 
co

m
pu

te
r h

ar
dw

ar
e 

di
ffe

rin
g 

fr
om

 th
os

e 
us

ed
 in

 th
e 

dr
af

tin
g 

or
 tr

an
sm

itt
al

 o
f t

he
 E

le
ct

ro
ni

c 
Do

cu
m

en
ts

. 

 

EJ
CD

C®
 C

-7
00

, S
ta

nd
ar

d 
G

en
er

al
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 
Co

py
rig

ht
©

 2
01

8 
N

at
io

na
l S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rs
, A

m
er

ic
an

 C
ou

nc
il 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Co

m
pa

ni
es

, 
an

d 
Am

er
ic

an
 S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
s.

 A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
 

Pa
ge

 9
 o

f 7
0 

AR
TI

CL
E 

3
CO

N
TR

AC
T 

D
O

CU
M

EN
TS

: I
N

TE
N

T,
 R

EQ
U

IR
EM

EN
TS

, R
EU

SE
 

3.
01

 
In

te
nt

 

A.
 

Th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 D
oc

um
en

ts
 a

re
 c

om
pl

em
en

ta
ry

; w
ha

t i
s 

re
qu

ire
d 

by
 o

ne
 C

on
tr

ac
t D

oc
um

en
t i

s 
as

 b
in

di
ng

 a
s 

if 
re

qu
ire

d 
by

 a
ll.

 

B.
 

It 
is 

th
e 

in
te

nt
 o

f t
he

 C
on

tr
ac

t D
oc

um
en

ts
 to

 d
es

cr
ib

e 
a 

fu
nc

tio
na

lly
 c

om
pl

et
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t (

or
 p

ar
t 

th
er

eo
f) 

to
 b

e 
co

ns
tr

uc
te

d 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 D
oc

um
en

ts
. 

C.
 

U
nl

es
s 

ot
he

rw
ise

 s
ta

te
d 

in
 t

he
 C

on
tr

ac
t 

Do
cu

m
en

ts
, i

f 
th

er
e 

is
 a

 d
is

cr
ep

an
cy

 b
et

w
ee

n 
th

e 
el

ec
tr

on
ic

 v
er

sio
ns

 o
f 

th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 D
oc

um
en

ts
 (

in
cl

ud
in

g 
an

y 
pr

in
te

d 
co

pi
es

 d
er

iv
ed

 f
ro

m
 

su
ch

 e
le

ct
ro

ni
c 

ve
rs

io
ns

) 
an

d 
th

e 
pr

in
te

d 
re

co
rd

 v
er

sio
n,

 t
he

 p
rin

te
d 

re
co

rd
 v

er
sio

n 
w

ill
 

go
ve

rn
. 

D
. 

Th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 s
up

er
se

de
s 

pr
io

r 
ne

go
tia

tio
ns

, 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

, 
an

d 
ag

re
em

en
ts

, 
w

he
th

er
 

w
rit

te
n 

or
 o

ra
l. 

E.
 

En
gi

ne
er

 w
ill

 is
su

e 
cl

ar
ifi

ca
tio

ns
 a

nd
 in

te
rp

re
ta

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 C

on
tr

ac
t D

oc
um

en
ts

 a
s 

pr
ov

id
ed

 
he

re
in

. 

F.
 

An
y 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
or

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
 C

on
tr

ac
t D

oc
um

en
ts

 h
el

d 
to

 b
e 

vo
id

 o
r u

ne
nf

or
ce

ab
le

 u
nd

er
 a

ny
 

La
w

 o
r R

eg
ul

at
io

n 
w

ill
 b

e 
de

em
ed

 s
tr

ic
ke

n,
 a

nd
 a

ll 
re

m
ai

ni
ng

 p
ro

vi
si

on
s 

w
ill

 c
on

tin
ue

 t
o 

be
 

va
lid

 a
nd

 b
in

di
ng

 u
po

n 
O

w
ne

r a
nd

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r, 

w
hi

ch
 a

gr
ee

 th
at

 th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 D
oc

um
en

ts
 w

ill
 

be
 r

ef
or

m
ed

 to
 r

ep
la

ce
 s

uc
h 

st
ric

ke
n 

pr
ov

isi
on

 o
r 

pa
rt

 t
he

re
of

 w
ith

 a
 v

al
id

 a
nd

 e
nf

or
ce

ab
le

 
pr

ov
isi

on
 th

at
 co

m
es

 a
s c

lo
se

 a
s p

os
sib

le
 to

 e
xp

re
ss

in
g 

th
e 

in
te

nt
io

n 
of

 th
e 

st
ric

ke
n 

pr
ov

isi
on

. 

G
. 

N
ot

hi
ng

 in
 th

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 D

oc
um

en
ts

 c
re

at
es

: 

1.
 

an
y 

co
nt

ra
ct

ua
l 

re
la

tio
ns

hi
p 

be
tw

ee
n 

O
w

ne
r 

or
 E

ng
in

ee
r 

an
d 

an
y 

Su
bc

on
tr

ac
to

r, 
Su

pp
lie

r, 
or

 o
th

er
 in

di
vi

du
al

 o
r 

en
tit

y 
pe

rf
or

m
in

g 
or

 fu
rn

is
hi

ng
 a

ny
 o

f t
he

 W
or

k,
 fo

r t
he

 
be

ne
fit

 o
f s

uc
h 

Su
bc

on
tr

ac
to

r, 
Su

pp
lie

r, 
or

 o
th

er
 in

di
vi

du
al

 o
r e

nt
ity

; o
r 

2.
 

an
y 

ob
lig

at
io

n 
on

 th
e 

pa
rt

 o
f O

w
ne

r o
r E

ng
in

ee
r 

to
 p

ay
 o

r t
o 

se
e 

to
 t

he
 p

ay
m

en
t o

f a
ny

 
m

on
ey

 d
ue

 a
ny

 su
ch

 S
ub

co
nt

ra
ct

or
, S

up
pl

ie
r, 

or
 o

th
er

 in
di

vi
du

al
 o

r e
nt

ity
, e

xc
ep

t a
s m

ay
 

ot
he

rw
ise

 b
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

by
 L

aw
s 

an
d 

Re
gu

la
tio

ns
. 

3.
02

 
Re

fe
re

nc
e 

St
an

da
rd

s 

A.
 

St
an

da
rd

s S
pe

ci
fic

at
io

ns
, C

od
es

, L
aw

s a
nd

 R
eg

ul
at

io
ns

 

1.
 

Re
fe

re
nc

e 
in

 t
he

 C
on

tr
ac

t 
Do

cu
m

en
ts

 t
o 

st
an

da
rd

 s
pe

ci
fic

at
io

ns
, 

m
an

ua
ls

, 
re

fe
re

nc
e 

st
an

da
rd

s,
 o

r 
co

de
s 

of
 a

ny
 t

ec
hn

ic
al

 s
oc

ie
ty

, o
rg

an
iza

tio
n,

 o
r 

as
so

ci
at

io
n,

 o
r 

to
 L

aw
s 

or
 

Re
gu

la
tio

ns
, w

he
th

er
 s

uc
h 

re
fe

re
nc

e 
be

 s
pe

ci
fic

 o
r 

by
 im

pl
ic

at
io

n,
 m

ea
ns

 t
he

 s
ta

nd
ar

d 
sp

ec
ifi

ca
tio

n,
 m

an
ua

l, 
re

fe
re

nc
e 

st
an

da
rd

, c
od

e,
 o

r 
La

w
s 

or
 R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
 in

 e
ffe

ct
 a

t t
he

 
tim

e 
of

 o
pe

ni
ng

 o
f B

id
s 

(o
r o

n 
th

e 
Ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

D
at

e 
of

 th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 if
 th

er
e 

w
er

e 
no

 B
id

s)
, 

ex
ce

pt
 a

s m
ay

 b
e 

ot
he

rw
ise

 sp
ec

ifi
ca

lly
 st

at
ed

 in
 th

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 D

oc
um

en
ts

. 

2.
 

N
o 

pr
ov

isi
on

 o
f a

ny
 su

ch
 st

an
da

rd
 sp

ec
ifi

ca
tio

n,
 m

an
ua

l, 
re

fe
re

nc
e 

st
an

da
rd

, o
r c

od
e,

 a
nd

 
no

 in
st

ru
ct

io
n 

of
 a

 S
up

pl
ie

r, 
w

ill
 b

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

to
 c

ha
ng

e 
th

e 
du

tie
s 

or
 r

es
po

ns
ib

ili
tie

s 
of

 
O

w
ne

r, 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

, 
or

 E
ng

in
ee

r 
fr

om
 t

ho
se

 s
et

 f
or

th
 i

n 
th

e 
pa

rt
 o

f 
th

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 

D
oc

um
en

ts
 p

re
pa

re
d 

by
 o

r f
or

 E
ng

in
ee

r. 
N

o 
su

ch
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 o
r i

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
sh

al
l b

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

to
 a

ss
ig

n 
to

 O
w

ne
r 

or
 E

ng
in

ee
r 

an
y 

du
ty

 o
r 

au
th

or
ity

 t
o 

su
pe

rv
is

e 
or

 d
ire

ct
 t

he
 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 
of

 
th

e 
W

or
k,

 o
r 

an
y 

du
ty

 o
r 

au
th

or
ity

 
to

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 



 

EJ
CD

C®
 C

-7
00

, S
ta

nd
ar

d 
G

en
er

al
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 
Co

py
rig

ht
©

 2
01

8 
N

at
io

na
l S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rs
, A

m
er

ic
an

 C
ou

nc
il 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Co

m
pa

ni
es

, 
an

d 
Am

er
ic

an
 S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
s.

 A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
 

Pa
ge

 1
0 

of
 7

0 

in
co

ns
is

te
nt

 w
ith

 th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 o

f t
he

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
 C

on
tr

ac
t D

oc
um

en
ts

 p
re

pa
re

d 
by

 o
r f

or
 

En
gi

ne
er

. 

3.
03

 
Re

po
rt

in
g 

an
d 

Re
so

lv
in

g 
Di

sc
re

pa
nc

ie
s 

A.
 

Re
po

rt
in

g 
Di

sc
re

pa
nc

ie
s 

1.
 

s:
 B

ef
or

e 
un

de
rt

ak
in

g 
ea

ch
 

pa
rt

 o
f t

he
 W

or
k,

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r s

ha
ll 

ca
re

fu
lly

 st
ud

y 
th

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 D

oc
um

en
ts

, a
nd

 ch
ec

k 
an

d 
ve

rif
y 

pe
rt

in
en

t 
fig

ur
es

 a
nd

 d
im

en
sio

ns
 t

he
re

in
, p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 w

ith
 r

es
pe

ct
 t

o 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 
fie

ld
 m

ea
su

re
m

en
ts

. C
on

tr
ac

to
r s

ha
ll 

pr
om

pt
ly

 re
po

rt
 in

 w
rit

in
g 

to
 E

ng
in

ee
r a

ny
 c

on
fli

ct
, 

er
ro

r, 
am

bi
gu

ity
, o

r 
di

sc
re

pa
nc

y 
th

at
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r 
di

sc
ov

er
s,

 o
r 

ha
s 

ac
tu

al
 k

no
w

le
dg

e 
of

, 
an

d 
sh

al
l n

ot
 p

ro
ce

ed
 w

ith
 a

ny
 W

or
k 

af
fe

ct
ed

 th
er

eb
y 

un
til

 th
e 

co
nf

lic
t, 

er
ro

r, 
am

bi
gu

ity
, 

or
 d

isc
re

pa
nc

y 
is 

re
so

lv
ed

 b
y 

a 
cl

ar
ifi

ca
tio

n 
or

 i
nt

er
pr

et
at

io
n 

by
 E

ng
in

ee
r, 

or
 b

y 
an

 
am

en
dm

en
t o

r s
up

pl
em

en
t t

o 
th

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 is

su
ed

 p
ur

su
an

t t
o 

Pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
11

.0
1.

 

2.
 

: I
f, 

be
fo

re
 o

r d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 

W
or

k,
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r 
di

sc
ov

er
s 

an
y 

co
nf

lic
t, 

er
ro

r, 
am

bi
gu

ity
, 

or
 d

isc
re

pa
nc

y 
w

ith
in

 t
he

 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 D

oc
um

en
ts

, o
r b

et
w

ee
n 

th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 D
oc

um
en

ts
 a

nd
 (a

) a
ny

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 L

aw
 o

r 
Re

gu
la

tio
n,

 (b
) a

ct
ua

l f
ie

ld
 c

on
di

tio
ns

, (
c)

 a
ny

 s
ta

nd
ar

d 
sp

ec
ifi

ca
tio

n,
 m

an
ua

l, 
re

fe
re

nc
e 

st
an

da
rd

, o
r c

od
e,

 o
r (

d)
 a

ny
 in

st
ru

ct
io

n 
of

 a
ny

 S
up

pl
ie

r, 
th

en
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r 
sh

al
l p

ro
m

pt
ly

 
re

po
rt

 it
 t

o 
En

gi
ne

er
 in

 w
rit

in
g.

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r 

sh
al

l n
ot

 p
ro

ce
ed

 w
ith

 t
he

 W
or

k 
af

fe
ct

ed
 

th
er

eb
y 

(e
xc

ep
t i

n 
an

 e
m

er
ge

nc
y 

as
 re

qu
ire

d 
by

 P
ar

ag
ra

ph
 7

.1
5)

 u
nt

il 
th

e 
co

nf
lic

t, 
er

ro
r, 

am
bi

gu
ity

, o
r d

is
cr

ep
an

cy
 is

 r
es

ol
ve

d,
 b

y 
a 

cl
ar

ifi
ca

tio
n 

or
 in

te
rp

re
ta

tio
n 

by
 E

ng
in

ee
r, 

or
 

by
 a

n 
am

en
dm

en
t o

r s
up

pl
em

en
t t

o 
th

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 is

su
ed

 p
ur

su
an

t t
o 

Pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
11

.0
1.

 

3.
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 sh

al
l n

ot
 b

e 
lia

bl
e 

to
 O

w
ne

r o
r E

ng
in

ee
r f

or
 fa

ilu
re

 to
 re

po
rt

 a
ny

 co
nf

lic
t, 

er
ro

r, 
am

bi
gu

ity
, 

or
 d

is
cr

ep
an

cy
 i

n 
th

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 D

oc
um

en
ts

 u
nl

es
s 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 h

ad
 a

ct
ua

l 
kn

ow
le

dg
e 

th
er

eo
f. 

B.
 

Re
so

lv
in

g 
D

isc
re

pa
nc

ie
s 

1.
 

Ex
ce

pt
 a

s m
ay

 b
e 

ot
he

rw
ise

 sp
ec

ifi
ca

lly
 st

at
ed

 in
 th

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 D

oc
um

en
ts

, t
he

 p
ro

vi
sio

ns
 

of
 t

he
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 C
on

tr
ac

t D
oc

um
en

ts
 p

re
pa

re
d 

by
 o

r 
fo

r 
En

gi
ne

er
 t

ak
e 

pr
ec

ed
en

ce
 in

 
re

so
lv

in
g 

an
y 

co
nf

lic
t, 

er
ro

r, 
am

bi
gu

ity
, o

r 
di

sc
re

pa
nc

y 
be

tw
ee

n 
su

ch
 p

ro
vi

sio
ns

 o
f t

he
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 D
oc

um
en

ts
 a

nd
: 

a.
 

th
e 

pr
ov

isi
on

s o
f a

ny
 st

an
da

rd
 sp

ec
ifi

ca
tio

n,
 m

an
ua

l, 
re

fe
re

nc
e 

st
an

da
rd

, o
r c

od
e,

 o
r 

th
e 

in
st

ru
ct

io
n 

of
 a

ny
 S

up
pl

ie
r (

w
he

th
er

 o
r n

ot
 s

pe
ci

fic
al

ly
 in

co
rp

or
at

ed
 b

y 
re

fe
re

nc
e 

as
 a

 C
on

tr
ac

t D
oc

um
en

t);
 o

r 

b.
 

th
e 

pr
ov

isi
on

s o
f a

ny
 L

aw
s o

r R
eg

ul
at

io
ns

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 to

 th
e 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 W

or
k 

(u
nl

es
s 

su
ch

 a
n 

in
te

rp
re

ta
tio

n 
of

 t
he

 p
ro

vi
si

on
s 

of
 t

he
 C

on
tr

ac
t 

D
oc

um
en

ts
 w

ou
ld

 
re

su
lt 

in
 v

io
la

tio
n 

of
 s

uc
h 

La
w

 o
r R

eg
ul

at
io

n)
. 

3.
04

 
Re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f t
he

 C
on

tr
ac

t D
oc

um
en

ts
 

A.
 

Du
rin

g 
th

e 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 o

f 
th

e 
W

or
k 

an
d 

un
til

 f
in

al
 p

ay
m

en
t, 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 a

nd
 O

w
ne

r 
sh

al
l 

su
bm

it 
to

 th
e 

En
gi

ne
er

 in
 w

rit
in

g 
al

l m
at

te
rs

 in
 q

ue
st

io
n 

co
nc

er
ni

ng
 th

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f t
he

 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 D

oc
um

en
ts

 (s
om

et
im

es
 re

fe
rr

ed
 to

 a
s 

re
qu

es
ts

 fo
r i

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

or
 in

te
rp

re
ta

tio
n

RF
Is

), 
or

 re
la

tin
g 

to
 th

e 
ac

ce
pt

ab
ili

ty
 o

f t
he

 W
or

k 
un

de
r t

he
 C

on
tr

ac
t D

oc
um

en
ts

, a
s 

so
on

 a
s 

po
ss

ib
le

 a
ft

er
 s

uc
h 

m
at

te
rs

 a
ris

e.
 E

ng
in

ee
r w

ill
 b

e 
th

e 
in

iti
al

 in
te

rp
re

te
r o

f t
he

 re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 
of

 th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 D
oc

um
en

ts
, a

nd
 ju

dg
e 

of
 th

e 
ac

ce
pt

ab
ili

ty
 o

f t
he

 W
or

k.
 

 

EJ
CD

C®
 C

-7
00

, S
ta

nd
ar

d 
G

en
er

al
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 
Co

py
rig

ht
©

 2
01

8 
N

at
io

na
l S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rs
, A

m
er

ic
an

 C
ou

nc
il 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Co

m
pa

ni
es

, 
an

d 
Am

er
ic

an
 S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
s.

 A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
 

Pa
ge

 1
1 

of
 7

0 

B.
 

En
gi

ne
er

 w
ill

, w
ith

 r
ea

so
na

bl
e 

pr
om

pt
ne

ss
, r

en
de

r 
a 

w
rit

te
n 

cl
ar

ifi
ca

tio
n,

 in
te

rp
re

ta
tio

n,
 o

r 
de

ci
si

on
 o

n 
th

e 
iss

ue
 s

ub
m

itt
ed

, o
r 

in
iti

at
e 

an
 a

m
en

dm
en

t 
or

 s
up

pl
em

en
t 

to
 t

he
 C

on
tr

ac
t 

bi
nd

in
g 

on
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r, 
un

le
ss

 it
 a

pp
ea

ls 
by

 s
ub

m
itt

in
g 

a 
Ch

an
ge

 P
ro

po
sa

l, 
an

d 
on

 O
w

ne
r, 

un
le

ss
 it

 a
pp

ea
ls 

by
 fi

lin
g 

a 
Cl

ai
m

. 

C.
 

If 
a 

su
bm

itt
ed

 m
at

te
r i

n 
qu

es
tio

n 
co

nc
er

ns
 te

rm
s 

an
d 

co
nd

iti
on

s 
of

 th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 D
oc

um
en

ts
 

th
at

 d
o 

no
t 

in
vo

lv
e 

(1
) 

th
e 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 o
r 

ac
ce

pt
ab

ili
ty

 o
f 

th
e 

W
or

k 
un

de
r 

th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 
D

oc
um

en
ts

, (
2)

 th
e 

de
si

gn
 (a

s 
se

t f
or

th
 in

 th
e 

D
ra

w
in

gs
, S

pe
ci

fic
at

io
ns

, o
r o

th
er

w
ise

), 
or

 (3
) 

ot
he

r 
en

gi
ne

er
in

g 
or

 t
ec

hn
ic

al
 m

at
te

rs
, 

th
en

 E
ng

in
ee

r 
w

ill
 p

ro
m

pt
ly

 n
ot

ify
 O

w
ne

r 
an

d 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 in
 w

rit
in

g 
th

at
 E

ng
in

ee
r i

s u
na

bl
e 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

 d
ec

isi
on

 o
r i

nt
er

pr
et

at
io

n.
 If

 O
w

ne
r 

an
d 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 a

re
 u

na
bl

e 
to

 a
gr

ee
 o

n 
re

so
lu

tio
n 

of
 s

uc
h 

a 
m

at
te

r 
in

 q
ue

st
io

n,
 e

ith
er

 p
ar

ty
 

m
ay

 p
ur

su
e 

re
so

lu
tio

n 
as

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
in

 A
rt

ic
le

 1
2.

 

3.
05

 
Re

us
e 

of
 D

oc
um

en
ts

 

A.
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 a

nd
 it

s S
ub

co
nt

ra
ct

or
s a

nd
 S

up
pl

ie
rs

 s
ha

ll 
no

t: 

1.
 

ha
ve

 o
r a

cq
ui

re
 a

ny
 ti

tle
 to

 o
r o

w
ne

rs
hi

p 
rig

ht
s i

n 
an

y 
of

 th
e 

D
ra

w
in

gs
, S

pe
ci

fic
at

io
ns

, o
r 

ot
he

r d
oc

um
en

ts
 (o

r c
op

ie
s 

of
 a

ny
 th

er
eo

f) 
pr

ep
ar

ed
 b

y 
or

 b
ea

rin
g 

th
e 

se
al

 o
f E

ng
in

ee
r 

or
 i

ts
 c

on
su

lta
nt

s,
 i

nc
lu

di
ng

 e
le

ct
ro

ni
c 

m
ed

ia
 v

er
sio

ns
, 

or
 r

eu
se

 a
ny

 s
uc

h 
Dr

aw
in

gs
, 

Sp
ec

ifi
ca

tio
ns

, o
th

er
 d

oc
um

en
ts

, o
r 

co
pi

es
 t

he
re

of
 o

n 
ex

te
ns

io
ns

 o
f t

he
 P

ro
je

ct
 o

r 
an

y 
ot

he
r 

pr
oj

ec
t 

w
ith

ou
t 

w
rit

te
n 

co
ns

en
t 

of
 O

w
ne

r 
an

d 
En

gi
ne

er
 a

nd
 s

pe
ci

fic
 w

rit
te

n 
ve

rif
ic

at
io

n 
or

 a
da

pt
at

io
n 

by
 E

ng
in

ee
r; 

or
 

2.
 

ha
ve

 o
r a

cq
ui

re
 a

ny
 ti

tle
 o

r o
w

ne
rs

hi
p 

rig
ht

s 
in

 a
ny

 o
th

er
 C

on
tr

ac
t D

oc
um

en
ts

, r
eu

se
 a

ny
 

su
ch

 C
vi

ol
at

e 
an

y 
co

py
rig

ht
s p

er
ta

in
in

g 
to

 su
ch

 C
on

tr
ac

t D
oc

um
en

ts
. 

B.
 

Th
e 

pr
oh

ib
iti

on
s 

of
 t

hi
s 

Pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
3.

05
 w

ill
 s

ur
vi

ve
 f

in
al

 p
ay

m
en

t, 
or

 t
er

m
in

at
io

n 
of

 t
he

 
Co

nt
ra

ct
. 

N
ot

hi
ng

 h
er

ei
n 

pr
ec

lu
de

s 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 f
ro

m
 r

et
ai

ni
ng

 c
op

ie
s 

of
 t

he
 C

on
tr

ac
t 

D
oc

um
en

ts
 fo

r r
ec

or
d 

pu
rp

os
es

. 

AR
TI

CL
E 

4
CO

M
M

EN
CE

M
EN

T 
AN

D
 P

RO
G

RE
SS

 O
F 

TH
E 

W
O

RK
 

4.
01

 
Co

m
m

en
ce

m
en

t o
f C

on
tr

ac
t T

im
es

; N
ot

ic
e 

to
 P

ro
ce

ed
 

A.
 

Th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 T
im

es
 w

ill
 c

om
m

en
ce

 t
o 

ru
n 

on
 t

he
 3

0t
h 

da
y 

af
te

r 
th

e 
Ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

D
at

e 
of

 t
he

 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 o

r, 
if 

a 
N

ot
ic

e 
to

 P
ro

ce
ed

 is
 g

iv
en

, o
n 

th
e 

da
y 

in
di

ca
te

d 
in

 th
e 

N
ot

ic
e 

to
 P

ro
ce

ed
. A

 
N

ot
ic

e 
to

 P
ro

ce
ed

 m
ay

 b
e 

gi
ve

n 
at

 a
ny

 t
im

e 
w

ith
in

 3
0 

da
ys

 a
ft

er
 t

he
 E

ffe
ct

iv
e 

D
at

e 
of

 t
he

 
Co

nt
ra

ct
. I

n 
no

 e
ve

nt
 w

ill
 th

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 T

im
es

 c
om

m
en

ce
 to

 ru
n 

la
te

r t
ha

n 
th

e 
60

th
 d

ay
 a

ft
er

 
th

e 
da

y 
of

 B
id

 o
pe

ni
ng

 o
r 

th
e 

30
th

 d
ay

 a
ft

er
 t

he
 E

ffe
ct

iv
e 

D
at

e 
of

 t
he

 C
on

tr
ac

t, 
w

hi
ch

ev
er

 
da

te
 is

 e
ar

lie
r. 

4.
02

 
St

ar
tin

g 
th

e 
W

or
k 

A.
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 s

ha
ll 

st
ar

t t
o 

pe
rf

or
m

 th
e 

W
or

k 
on

 th
e 

da
te

 w
he

n 
th

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 T

im
es

 c
om

m
en

ce
 

to
 ru

n.
 N

o 
W

or
k 

m
ay

 b
e 

do
ne

 a
t t

he
 S

ite
 p

rio
r t

o 
su

ch
 d

at
e.

 

4.
03

 
Re

fe
re

nc
e 

Po
in

ts
 

A.
 

O
w

ne
r s

ha
ll 

pr
ov

id
e 

en
gi

ne
er

in
g 

su
rv

ey
s t

o 
es

ta
bl

is
h 

re
fe

re
nc

e 
po

in
ts

 fo
r c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

w
hi

ch
 

pr
oc

ee
d 

w
ith

 t
he

 W
or

k.
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 s

ha
ll 

be
 r

es
po

ns
ib

le
 f

or
 l

ay
in

g 
ou

t 
th

e 
W

or
k,

 s
ha

ll 
pr

ot
ec

t 
an

d 
pr

es
er

ve
 t

he
 



 

EJ
CD

C®
 C

-7
00

, S
ta

nd
ar

d 
G

en
er

al
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 
Co

py
rig

ht
©

 2
01

8 
N

at
io

na
l S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rs
, A

m
er

ic
an

 C
ou

nc
il 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Co

m
pa

ni
es

, 
an

d 
Am

er
ic

an
 S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
s.

 A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
 

Pa
ge

 1
2 

of
 7

0 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

re
fe

re
nc

e 
po

in
ts

 a
nd

 p
ro

pe
rt

y 
m

on
um

en
ts

, 
an

d 
sh

al
l 

m
ak

e 
no

 c
ha

ng
es

 o
r 

re
lo

ca
tio

ns
 w

ith
ou

t t
he

 p
rio

r w
rit

te
n 

ap
pr

ov
al

 o
f O

w
ne

r. 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 s
ha

ll 
re

po
rt

 to
 E

ng
in

ee
r 

w
he

ne
ve

r 
an

y 
re

fe
re

nc
e 

po
in

t 
or

 p
ro

pe
rt

y 
m

on
um

en
t 

is
 l

os
t 

or
 d

es
tr

oy
ed

 o
r 

re
qu

ire
s 

re
lo

ca
tio

n 
be

ca
us

e 
of

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 c

ha
ng

es
 in

 g
ra

de
s 

or
 lo

ca
tio

ns
, a

nd
 s

ha
ll 

be
 re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
fo

r 
th

e 
ac

cu
ra

te
 re

pl
ac

em
en

t o
r 

re
lo

ca
tio

n 
of

 s
uc

h 
re

fe
re

nc
e 

po
in

ts
 o

r p
ro

pe
rt

y 
m

on
um

en
ts

 b
y 

pr
of

es
sio

na
lly

 q
ua

lif
ie

d 
pe

rs
on

ne
l. 

4.
04

 
Pr

og
re

ss
 S

ch
ed

ul
e 

A.
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 

sh
al

l 
ad

he
re

 
to

 
th

e 
Pr

og
re

ss
 

Sc
he

du
le

 
es

ta
bl

ish
ed

 
in

 
ac

co
rd

an
ce

 
w

ith
 

Pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
2.

05
 a

s 
it 

m
ay

 b
e 

ad
ju

st
ed

 fr
om

 ti
m

e 
to

 ti
m

e 
as

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
be

lo
w

. 

1.
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 

sh
al

l 
su

bm
it 

to
 

En
gi

ne
er

 
fo

r 
ac

ce
pt

an
ce

 
(t

o 
th

e 
ex

te
nt

 
in

di
ca

te
d 

in
 

Pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
2.

05
) 

pr
op

os
ed

 a
dj

us
tm

en
ts

 in
 t

he
 P

ro
gr

es
s 

Sc
he

du
le

 t
ha

t 
w

ill
 n

ot
 r

es
ul

t 
in

 
ch

an
gi

ng
 th

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 T

im
es

. 

2.
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 a
dj

us
tm

en
ts

 in
 th

e 
Pr

og
re

ss
 S

ch
ed

ul
e 

th
at

 w
ill

 c
ha

ng
e 

th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 T
im

es
 m

us
t 

be
 su

bm
itt

ed
 in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 o
f A

rt
ic

le
 1

1.
 

B.
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 sh

al
l c

ar
ry

 o
n 

th
e 

W
or

k 
an

d 
ad

he
re

 to
 th

e 
Pr

og
re

ss
 S

ch
ed

ul
e 

du
rin

g 
al

l d
is

pu
te

s o
r 

di
sa

gr
ee

m
en

ts
 w

ith
 O

w
ne

r. 
N

o 
W

or
k 

w
ill

 b
e 

de
la

ye
d 

or
 p

os
tp

on
ed

 p
en

di
ng

 re
so

lu
tio

n 
of

 a
ny

 
di

sp
ut

es
 

or
 

di
sa

gr
ee

m
en

ts
, 

or
 

du
rin

g 
an

y 
ap

pe
al

 
pr

oc
es

s,
 

ex
ce

pt
 

as
 

pe
rm

itt
ed

 
by

 
Pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

16
.0

4,
 o

r a
s O

w
ne

r a
nd

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r m

ay
 o

th
er

w
ise

 a
gr

ee
 in

 w
rit

in
g.

 

4.
05

 
 

A.
 

If 
O

w
ne

r, 
En

gi
ne

er
, o

r a
ny

on
e 

fo
r w

ho
m

 O
w

ne
r i

s r
es

po
ns

ib
le

, d
el

ay
s,

 d
isr

up
ts

, o
r i

nt
er

fe
re

s 
w

ith
 t

he
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 o

r 
pr

og
re

ss
 o

f 
th

e 
W

or
k,

 t
he

n 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 s
ha

ll 
be

 e
nt

itl
ed

 t
o 

an
 

eq
ui

ta
bl

e 
ad

ju
st

m
en

t i
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 P
ric

e 
or

 C
on

tr
ac

t T
im

es
. 

B.
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 sh

al
l n

ot
 b

e 
en

tit
le

d 
to

 a
n 

ad
ju

st
m

en
t i

n 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 P

ric
e 

or
 C

on
tr

ac
t T

im
es

 fo
r d

el
ay

, 
di

sr
up

tio
n,

 o
r i

nt
er

fe
re

nc
e 

ca
us

ed
 b

y 
or

 w
ith

in
 t

he
 c

on
tr

ol
 o

f C
on

tr
ac

to
r. 

De
la

y,
 d

is
ru

pt
io

n,
 

an
d 

in
te

rf
er

en
ce

 a
tt

rib
ut

ab
le

 to
 a

nd
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

co
nt

ro
l o

f a
 S

ub
co

nt
ra

ct
or

 o
r S

up
pl

ie
r s

ha
ll 

be
 

de
em

ed
 to

 b
e 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
co

nt
ro

l o
f C

on
tr

ac
to

r. 

C.
 

un
an

tic
ip

at
ed

 ca
us

es
 n

ot
 th

e 
fa

ul
t o

f a
nd

 b
ey

on
d 

th
e 

co
nt

ro
l o

f O
w

ne
r, 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
, a

nd
 th

os
e 

fo
r w

hi
ch

 th
ey

 a
re

 re
sp

on
sib

le
, t

he
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 s

ha
ll 

be
 e

nt
itl

ed
 to

 a
n 

eq
ui

ta
bl

e 
ad

ju
st

m
en

t 

de
la

ys
, d

isr
up

tio
n,

 a
nd

 in
te

rf
er

en
ce

 d
es

cr
ib

ed
 in

 th
is

 p
ar

ag
ra

ph
. C

au
se

s 
of

 d
el

ay
, d

isr
up

tio
n,

 
or

 in
te

rf
er

en
ce

 t
ha

t m
ay

 g
iv

e 
ris

e 
to

 a
n 

ad
ju

st
m

en
t i

n 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 T

im
es

 u
nd

er
 t

hi
s 

pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
in

cl
ud

e 
bu

t a
re

 n
ot

 li
m

ite
d 

to
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g:

 

1.
 

Se
ve

re
 a

nd
 u

na
vo

id
ab

le
 n

at
ur

al
 c

at
as

tr
op

he
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

fir
es

, 
flo

od
s,

 e
pi

de
m

ic
s,

 a
nd

 
ea

rt
hq

ua
ke

s;
 

2.
 

Ab
no

rm
al

 w
ea

th
er

 c
on

di
tio

ns
; 

3.
 

Ac
ts

 o
r f

ai
lu

re
s t

o 
ac

t o
f t

hi
rd

-p
ar

ty
 u

til
ity

 o
w

ne
rs

 o
r o

th
er

 th
ird

-p
ar

ty
 e

nt
iti

es
 (o

th
er

 th
an

 
th

os
e 

th
ird

-p
ar

ty
 u

til
ity

 o
w

ne
rs

 o
r o

th
er

 th
ird

-p
ar

ty
 e

nt
iti

es
 p

er
fo

rm
in

g 
ot

he
r w

or
k 

at
 o

r 
ad

ja
ce

nt
 t

o 
th

e 
Si

te
 a

s 
ar

ra
ng

ed
 b

y 
or

 u
nd

er
 c

on
tr

ac
t 

w
ith

 O
w

ne
r, 

as
 c

on
te

m
pl

at
ed

 in
 

Ar
tic

le
 8

); 
an

d 

4.
 

Ac
ts

 o
f w

ar
 o

r t
er

ro
ris

m
. 

 

EJ
CD

C®
 C

-7
00

, S
ta

nd
ar

d 
G

en
er

al
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 
Co

py
rig

ht
©

 2
01

8 
N

at
io

na
l S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rs
, A

m
er

ic
an

 C
ou

nc
il 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Co

m
pa

ni
es

, 
an

d 
Am

er
ic

an
 S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
s.

 A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
 

Pa
ge

 1
3 

of
 7

0 

D
. 

fo
llo

w
s:

 

1.
 

de
la

y,
 d

isr
up

tio
n,

 o
r 

in
te

rf
er

en
ce

 a
dv

er
se

ly
 a

ffe
ct

in
g 

an
 a

ct
iv

ity
 o

n 
th

e 
cr

iti
ca

l p
at

h 
to

 
co

m
pl

et
io

n 
of

 th
e 

W
or

k,
 a

s o
f t

he
 ti

m
e 

of
 th

e 
de

la
y,

 d
is

ru
pt

io
n,

 o
r i

nt
er

fe
re

nc
e.

 

2.
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 s

ha
ll 

no
t 

be
 e

nt
itl

ed
 t

o 
an

 a
dj

us
tm

en
t 

in
 C

on
tr

ac
t 

Pr
ic

e 
fo

r 
an

y 
de

la
y,

 
di

sr
up

tio
n,

 o
r 

in
te

rf
er

en
ce

 i
f 

su
ch

 d
el

ay
 i

s 
co

nc
ur

re
nt

 w
ith

 a
 d

el
ay

, 
di

sr
up

tio
n,

 o
r 

in
te

rf
er

en
ce

 c
au

se
d 

by
 o

r 
w

ith
in

 t
he

 c
on

tr
ol

 o
f C

on
tr

ac
to

r. 
Su

ch
 a

 c
on

cu
rr

en
t 

de
la

y 
by

 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 s
ha

ll 
no

t 
pr

ec
lu

de
 a

n 
ad

ju
st

m
en

t 
of

 C
on

tr
ac

t 
Ti

m
es

 t
o 

w
hi

ch
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r 
is 

ot
he

rw
ise

 e
nt

itl
ed

. 

3.
 

Ad
ju

st
m

en
ts

 o
f 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 T
im

es
 o

r 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 P

ric
e 

ar
e 

su
bj

ec
t 

to
 t

he
 p

ro
vi

sio
ns

 o
f 

Ar
tic

le
 1

1.
 

E.
 

Ea
ch

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r r

eq
ue

st
 o

r C
ha

ng
e 

Pr
op

os
al

 se
ek

in
g 

an
 in

cr
ea

se
 in

 C
on

tr
ac

t T
im

es
 o

r C
on

tr
ac

t 
Pr

ic
e 

m
us

t b
e 

su
pp

le
m

en
te

d 
by

 su
pp

or
tin

g 
da

ta
 th

at
 se

ts
 fo

rt
h 

in
 d

et
ai

l t
he

 fo
llo

w
in

g:
 

1.
 

Th
e 

ci
rc

um
st

an
ce

s 
th

at
 fo

rm
 th

e 
ba

si
s f

or
 th

e 
re

qu
es

te
d 

ad
ju

st
m

en
t; 

2.
 

Th
e 

da
te

 u
po

n 
w

hi
ch

 e
ac

h 
ca

us
e 

of
 d

el
ay

, d
is

ru
pt

io
n,

 o
r i

nt
er

fe
re

nc
e 

be
ga

n 
to

 a
ffe

ct
 th

e 
pr

og
re

ss
 o

f t
he

 W
or

k;
 

3.
 

Th
e 

da
te

 u
po

n 
w

hi
ch

 e
ac

h 
ca

us
e 

of
 d

el
ay

, d
isr

up
tio

n,
 o

r i
nt

er
fe

re
nc

e 
ce

as
ed

 to
 a

ffe
ct

 th
e 

pr
og

re
ss

 o
f t

he
 W

or
k;

 

4.
 

ca
us

e 
of

 d
el

ay
, d

is
ru

pt
io

n,
 o

r i
nt

er
fe

re
nc

e;
 a

nd
 

5.
 

Th
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

n 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 P

ric
e,

 in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
pr

ov
isi

on
s o

f P
ar

ag
ra

ph
 1

1.
07

. 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 sh

al
l a

lso
 fu

rn
ish

 su
ch

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 su

pp
or

tin
g 

do
cu

m
en

ta
tio

n 
as

 O
w

ne
r o

r E
ng

in
ee

r 
m

ay
 r

eq
ui

re
 i

nc
lu

di
ng

, 
w

he
re

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

, 
a 

re
vi

se
d 

pr
og

re
ss

 s
ch

ed
ul

e 
in

di
ca

tin
g 

al
l 

th
e 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 a
ffe

ct
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

de
la

y,
 d

is
ru

pt
io

n,
 o

r 
in

te
rf

er
en

ce
, a

nd
 a

n 
ex

pl
an

at
io

n 
of

 th
e 

ef
fe

ct
 

of
 th

e 
de

la
y,

 d
is

ru
pt

io
n,

 o
r i

nt
er

fe
re

nc
e 

on
 th

e 
cr

iti
ca

l p
at

h 
to

 c
om

pl
et

io
n 

of
 th

e 
W

or
k.

 

F.
 

De
la

ys
, d

is
ru

pt
io

n,
 a

nd
 in

te
rf

er
en

ce
 t

o 
th

e 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 o

r 
pr

og
re

ss
 o

f t
he

 W
or

k 
re

su
lti

ng
 

fr
om

 t
he

 e
xi

st
en

ce
 o

f 
a 

di
ffe

rin
g 

su
bs

ur
fa

ce
 o

r 
ph

ys
ic

al
 c

on
di

tio
n,

 a
n 

U
nd

er
gr

ou
nd

 F
ac

ili
ty

 
th

at
 w

as
 n

ot
 s

ho
w

n 
or

 in
di

ca
te

d 
by

 th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 D
oc

um
en

ts
, o

r n
ot

 s
ho

w
n 

or
 in

di
ca

te
d 

w
ith

 
re

as
on

ab
le

 a
cc

ur
ac

y,
 a

nd
 t

ho
se

 r
es

ul
tin

g 
fr

om
 H

az
ar

do
us

 E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l 
Co

nd
iti

on
s,

 a
re

 
go

ve
rn

ed
 b

y 
Ar

tic
le

 5
, t

og
et

he
r w

ith
 th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 o
f P

ar
ag

ra
ph

s 4
.0

5.
D 

an
d 

4.
05

.E
. 

G
. 

Pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
8.

03
 a

dd
re

ss
es

 d
el

ay
s,

 d
is

ru
pt

io
n,

 a
nd

 in
te

rf
er

en
ce

 to
 th

e 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 o

r p
ro

gr
es

s 
of

 th
e 

W
or

k 
re

su
lti

ng
 fr

om
 th

e 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 o

f c
er

ta
in

 o
th

er
 w

or
k 

at
 o

r a
dj

ac
en

t t
o 

th
e 

Si
te

. 

AR
TI

CL
E 

5
SI

TE
; 

SU
BS

U
RF

AC
E 

AN
D

 
PH

YS
IC

AL
 

CO
N

D
IT

IO
N

S;
 

H
AZ

AR
D

O
U

S 
EN

VI
RO

N
M

EN
TA

L 
CO

N
D

IT
IO

N
S 

5.
01

 
Av

ai
la

bi
lit

y 
of

 L
an

ds
 

A.
 

O
w

ne
r s

ha
ll 

fu
rn

ish
 th

e 
Si

te
. O

w
ne

r s
ha

ll 
no

tif
y 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 in

 w
rit

in
g 

of
 a

ny
 e

nc
um

br
an

ce
s o

r 
re

st
ric

tio
ns

 n
ot

 o
f g

en
er

al
 a

pp
lic

at
io

n 
bu

t 
sp

ec
ifi

ca
lly

 r
el

at
ed

 t
o 

us
e 

of
 t

he
 S

ite
 w

ith
 w

hi
ch

 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 m
us

t c
om

pl
y 

in
 p

er
fo

rm
in

g 
th

e 
W

or
k.

 



 

EJ
CD

C®
 C

-7
00

, S
ta

nd
ar

d 
G

en
er

al
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 
Co

py
rig

ht
©

 2
01

8 
N

at
io

na
l S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rs
, A

m
er

ic
an

 C
ou

nc
il 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Co

m
pa

ni
es

, 
an

d 
Am

er
ic

an
 S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
s.

 A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
 

Pa
ge

 1
4 

of
 7

0 

B.
 

U
po

n 
re

as
on

ab
le

 w
rit

te
n 

re
qu

es
t, 

O
w

ne
r s

ha
ll 

fu
rn

is
h 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 w

ith
 a

 cu
rr

en
t s

ta
te

m
en

t o
f 

re
co

rd
 le

ga
l t

itl
e 

an
d 

le
ga

l d
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
la

nd
s u

po
n 

w
hi

ch
 p

er
m

an
en

t i
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 a

re
 

or
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

lie
n 

ag
ai

ns
t s

uc
h 

la
nd

s 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 L

aw
s 

an
d 

Re
gu

la
tio

ns
. 

C.
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 s

ha
ll 

pr
ov

id
e 

fo
r a

ll 
ad

di
tio

na
l l

an
ds

 a
nd

 a
cc

es
s 

th
er

et
o 

th
at

 m
ay

 b
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

fo
r 

te
m

po
ra

ry
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s o
r s

to
ra

ge
 o

f m
at

er
ia

ls
 a

nd
 e

qu
ip

m
en

t.
 

5.
02

 
U

se
 o

f S
ite

 a
nd

 O
th

er
 A

re
as

 

A.
 

Li
m

ita
tio

n 
on

 U
se

 o
f S

ite
 a

nd
 O

th
er

 A
re

as
 

1.
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 s

ha
ll 

co
nf

in
e 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

eq
ui

pm
en

t, 
te

m
po

ra
ry

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s,

 t
he

 
st

or
ag

e 
of

 m
at

er
ia

ls
 a

nd
 e

qu
ip

m
en

t, 
an

d 
th

e 
op

er
at

io
ns

 o
f w

or
ke

rs
 to

 th
e 

Si
te

, a
dj

ac
en

t 
ar

ea
s t

ha
t C

on
tr

ac
to

r h
as

 a
rr

an
ge

d 
to

 u
se

 th
ro

ug
h 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

ea
se

m
en

ts
 o

r o
th

er
w

ise
, 

an
d 

ot
he

r a
dj

ac
en

t a
re

as
 p

er
m

itt
ed

 b
y 

La
w

s a
nd

 R
eg

ul
at

io
ns

, a
nd

 s
ha

ll 
no

t u
nr

ea
so

na
bl

y 
en

cu
m

be
r 

th
e 

Si
te

 a
nd

 s
uc

h 
ot

he
r 

ad
ja

ce
nt

 a
re

as
 w

ith
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

eq
ui

pm
en

t o
r o

th
er

 
m

at
er

ia
ls 

or
 e

qu
ip

m
en

t. 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 s
ha

ll 
as

su
m

e 
fu

ll 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

fo
r (

a)
 d

am
ag

e 
to

 th
e 

da
m

ag
e 

to
 a

ny
 o

th
er

 a
dj

ac
en

t l
an

d 
or

 a
re

as
, o

r t
o 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

, s
tr

uc
tu

re
s,

 u
til

iti
es

, o
r 

si
m

ila
r 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
lo

ca
te

d 
at

 s
uc

h 
ad

ja
ce

nt
 la

nd
s 

or
 a

re
as

; a
nd

 (
d)

 f
or

 in
ju

rie
s 

an
d 

lo
ss

es
 

su
st

ai
ne

d 
by

 t
he

 o
w

ne
rs

 o
r 

oc
cu

pa
nt

s 
of

 a
ny

 s
uc

h 
la

nd
 o

r 
ar

ea
s;

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
th

at
 s

uc
h 

da
m

ag
e 

or
 in

ju
rie

s 
re

su
lt 

fr
om

 t
he

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 W

or
k 

or
 f

ro
m

 o
th

er
 a

ct
io

ns
 o

r 
co

nd
uc

t o
f t

he
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r o
r t

ho
se

 fo
r w

hi
ch

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r i

s r
es

po
ns

ib
le

. 

2.
 

If 
a 

da
m

ag
e 

or
 in

ju
ry

 c
la

im
 is

 m
ad

e 
by

 t
he

 o
w

ne
r 

or
 o

cc
up

an
t o

f a
ny

 s
uc

h 
la

nd
 o

r 
ar

ea
 

be
ca

us
e 

of
 th

e 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 o

f t
he

 W
or

k,
 o

r b
ec

au
se

 o
f o

th
er

 a
ct

io
ns

 o
r 

co
nd

uc
t o

f t
he

 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 o
r 

th
os

e 
fo

r 
w

hi
ch

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r 

is 
re

sp
on

sib
le

, 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 s
ha

ll 
(a

) 
ta

ke
 

im
m

ed
ia

te
 c

or
re

ct
iv

e 
or

 re
m

ed
ia

l a
ct

io
n 

as
 re

qu
ire

d 
by

 P
ar

ag
ra

ph
 7

.1
3,

 o
r o

th
er

w
is

e;
 (b

) 
pr

om
pt

ly
 a

tt
em

pt
 t

o 
se

tt
le

 t
he

 c
la

im
 a

s 
to

 a
ll 

pa
rt

ie
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

ne
go

tia
tio

ns
 w

ith
 s

uc
h 

ow
ne

r 
or

 o
cc

up
an

t, 
or

 o
th

er
w

ise
 r

es
ol

ve
 t

he
 c

la
im

 b
y 

ar
bi

tr
at

io
n 

or
 o

th
er

 d
isp

ut
e 

re
so

lu
tio

n 
pr

oc
ee

di
ng

, o
r i

n 
a 

co
ur

t o
f c

om
pe

te
nt

 ju
ris

di
ct

io
n;

 a
nd

 (c
) t

o 
th

e 
fu

lle
st

 e
xt

en
t 

pe
rm

itt
ed

 b
y 

La
w

s 
an

d 
Re

gu
la

tio
ns

, i
nd

em
ni

fy
 a

nd
 h

ol
d 

ha
rm

le
ss

 O
w

ne
r 

an
d 

En
gi

ne
er

, 
an

d 
th

e 
of

fic
er

s,
 d

ire
ct

or
s,

 m
em

be
rs

, 
pa

rt
ne

rs
, 

em
pl

oy
ee

s,
 a

ge
nt

s,
 c

on
su

lta
nt

s 
an

d 
su

bc
on

tr
ac

to
rs

 o
f e

ac
h 

an
d 

an
y 

of
 th

em
, f

ro
m

 a
nd

 a
ga

in
st

 a
ny

 su
ch

 c
la

im
, a

nd
 a

ga
in

st
 a

ll 
co

st
s,

 lo
ss

es
, a

nd
 d

am
ag

es
 (i

nc
lu

di
ng

 b
ut

 n
ot

 li
m

ite
d 

to
 a

ll 
fe

es
 a

nd
 c

ha
rg

es
 o

f e
ng

in
ee

rs
, 

ar
ch

ite
ct

s,
 a

tt
or

ne
ys

, a
nd

 o
th

er
 p

ro
fe

ss
io

na
ls 

an
d 

al
l c

ou
rt

 o
r a

rb
itr

at
io

n 
or

 o
th

er
 d

isp
ut

e 
re

so
lu

tio
n 

co
st

s)
 a

ris
in

g 
ou

t 
of

 o
r 

re
la

tin
g 

to
 a

ny
 c

la
im

 o
r 

ac
tio

n,
 l

eg
al

 o
r 

eq
ui

ta
bl

e,
 

br
ou

gh
t 

by
 a

ny
 s

uc
h 

ow
ne

r 
or

 o
cc

up
an

t 
ag

ai
ns

t 
O

w
ne

r, 
En

gi
ne

er
, 

or
 a

ny
 o

th
er

 p
ar

ty
 

in
de

m
ni

fie
d 

he
re

un
de

r t
o 

th
e 

ex
te

nt
 c

au
se

d 
di

re
ct

ly
 o

r i
nd

ire
ct

ly
, i

n 
w

ho
le

 o
r i

n 
pa

rt
 b

y,
 

co
nd

uc
t o

f t
he

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r o

r t
ho

se
 fo

r w
hi

ch
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r i
s r

es
po

ns
ib

le
. 

B.
 

Re
m

ov
al

 o
f 

D
eb

ris
 D

ur
in

g 
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 o

f 
th

e 
W

or
k:

 D
ur

in
g 

th
e 

pr
og

re
ss

 o
f 

th
e 

W
or

k 
th

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 s
ha

ll 
ke

ep
 t

he
 S

ite
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 a
dj

ac
en

t 
ar

ea
s 

fr
ee

 f
ro

m
 a

cc
um

ul
at

io
ns

 o
f 

w
as

te
 

m
at

er
ia

ls,
 ru

bb
is

h,
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 d
eb

ris
. R

em
ov

al
 a

nd
 d

isp
os

al
 o

f s
uc

h 
w

as
te

 m
at

er
ia

ls,
 ru

bb
ish

, 
an

d 
ot

he
r d

eb
ris

 w
ill

 c
on

fo
rm

 to
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

 L
aw

s a
nd

 R
eg

ul
at

io
ns

. 

C.
 

Cl
ea

ni
ng

: P
rio

r t
o 

Su
bs

ta
nt

ia
l C

om
pl

et
io

n 
of

 th
e 

W
or

k 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 sh
al

l c
le

an
 th

e 
Si

te
 a

nd
 th

e 
W

or
k 

an
d 

m
ak

e 
it 

re
ad

y 
fo

r 
ut

ili
za

tio
n 

by
 O

w
ne

r. 
At

 th
e 

co
m

pl
et

io
n 

of
 th

e 
W

or
k 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 

sh
al

l r
em

ov
e 

fr
om

 th
e 

Si
te

 a
nd

 a
dj

ac
en

t a
re

as
 a

ll 
to

ol
s,

 a
pp

lia
nc

es
, c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

eq
ui

pm
en

t 

 

EJ
CD

C®
 C

-7
00

, S
ta

nd
ar

d 
G

en
er

al
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 
Co

py
rig

ht
©

 2
01

8 
N

at
io

na
l S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rs
, A

m
er

ic
an

 C
ou

nc
il 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Co

m
pa

ni
es

, 
an

d 
Am

er
ic

an
 S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
s.

 A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
 

Pa
ge

 1
5 

of
 7

0 

an
d 

m
ac

hi
ne

ry
, a

nd
 s

ur
pl

us
 m

at
er

ia
ls 

an
d 

sh
al

l r
es

to
re

 to
 o

rig
in

al
 c

on
di

tio
n 

al
l p

ro
pe

rt
y 

no
t 

de
sig

na
te

d 
fo

r a
lte

ra
tio

n 
by

 th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 D
oc

um
en

ts
. 

D
. 

Lo
ad

in
g 

of
 S

tr
uc

tu
re

s:
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r 
sh

al
l n

ot
 lo

ad
 n

or
 p

er
m

it 
an

y 
pa

rt
 o

f a
ny

 s
tr

uc
tu

re
 t

o 
be

 
lo

ad
ed

 in
 a

ny
 m

an
ne

r t
ha

t w
ill

 e
nd

an
ge

r t
he

 s
tr

uc
tu

re
, n

or
 s

ha
ll 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 s

ub
je

ct
 a

ny
 p

ar
t 

of
 th

e 
W

or
k 

or
 a

dj
ac

en
t s

tr
uc

tu
re

s o
r l

an
d 

to
 st

re
ss

es
 o

r p
re

ss
ur

es
 th

at
 w

ill
 e

nd
an

ge
r t

he
m

. 

5.
03

 
Su

bs
ur

fa
ce

 a
nd

 P
hy

sic
al

 C
on

di
tio

ns
 

A.
 

Re
po

rt
s a

nd
 D

ra
w

in
gs

: T
he

 S
up

pl
em

en
ta

ry
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 id
en

tif
y:

 

1.
 

Th
os

e 
re

po
rt

s o
f e

xp
lo

ra
tio

ns
 a

nd
 te

st
s o

f s
ub

su
rf

ac
e 

co
nd

iti
on

s a
t o

r a
dj

ac
en

t t
o 

th
e 

Si
te

 
th

at
 c

on
ta

in
 T

ec
hn

ic
al

 D
at

a;
 

2.
 

Th
os

e 
dr

aw
in

gs
 o

f e
xi

st
in

g 
ph

ys
ic

al
 c

on
di

tio
ns

 a
t o

r a
dj

ac
en

t t
o 

th
e 

Si
te

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 th

os
e 

dr
aw

in
gs

 d
ep

ic
tin

g 
ex

is
tin

g 
su

rf
ac

e 
or

 s
ub

su
rf

ac
e 

st
ru

ct
ur

es
 a

t 
or

 a
dj

ac
en

t 
to

 t
he

 S
ite

 
(e

xc
ep

t U
nd

er
gr

ou
nd

 F
ac

ili
tie

s)
, t

ha
t c

on
ta

in
 T

ec
hn

ic
al

 D
at

a;
 a

nd
 

3.
 

Te
ch

ni
ca

l D
at

a 
co

nt
ai

ne
d 

in
 s

uc
h 

re
po

rt
s 

an
d 

dr
aw

in
gs

. 

B.
 

U
nd

er
gr

ou
nd

 F
ac

ili
tie

s:
 U

nd
er

gr
ou

nd
 F

ac
ili

tie
s 

ar
e 

sh
ow

n 
or

 i
nd

ic
at

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
D

ra
w

in
gs

, 
pu

rs
ua

nt
 t

o 
Pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

5.
05

, 
an

d 
no

t 
in

 t
he

 d
ra

w
in

gs
 r

ef
er

re
d 

to
 i

n 
Pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

5.
03

.A
. 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

an
d 

da
ta

 r
eg

ar
di

ng
 t

he
 p

re
se

nc
e 

or
 lo

ca
tio

n 
of

 U
nd

er
gr

ou
nd

 F
ac

ili
tie

s 
ar

e 
no

t 
in

te
nd

ed
 to

 b
e 

ca
te

go
riz

ed
, i

de
nt

ifi
ed

, o
r d

ef
in

ed
 a

s 
Te

ch
ni

ca
l D

at
a.

 

C.
 

Re
lia

nc
e 

by
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r 
on

 T
ec

hn
ic

al
 D

at
a:

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r 

m
ay

 r
el

y 
up

on
 t

he
 a

cc
ur

ac
y 

of
 t

he
 

Te
ch

ni
ca

l D
at

a 
ex

pr
es

sl
y 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
in

 t
he

 S
up

pl
em

en
ta

ry
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 w
ith

 r
es

pe
ct

 t
o 

su
ch

 
re

po
rt

s a
nd

 d
ra

w
in

gs
, b

ut
 su

ch
 re

po
rt

s a
nd

 d
ra

w
in

gs
 a

re
 n

ot
 C

on
tr

ac
t D

oc
um

en
ts

. I
f n

o 
su

ch
 

ex
pr

es
s 

id
en

tif
ic

at
io

n 
ha

s 
be

en
 m

ad
e,

 t
he

n 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 m
ay

 r
el

y 
up

on
 t

he
 a

cc
ur

ac
y 

of
 t

he
 

Te
ch

ni
ca

l D
at

a 
as

 d
ef

in
ed

 in
 P

ar
ag

ra
ph

 1
.0

1.
A.

46
.b

. 

D
. 

Li
m

ita
tio

ns
 o

f 
O

th
er

 D
at

a 
an

d 
D

oc
um

en
ts

: 
Ex

ce
pt

 f
or

 s
uc

h 
re

lia
nc

e 
on

 T
ec

hn
ic

al
 D

at
a,

 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 m
ay

 n
ot

 r
el

y 
up

on
 o

r m
ak

e 
an

y 
cl

ai
m

 a
ga

in
st

 O
w

ne
r 

or
 E

ng
in

ee
r, 

or
 a

ny
 o

f t
he

ir 
of

fic
er

s,
 d

ire
ct

or
s,

 m
em

be
rs

, p
ar

tn
er

s,
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s,
 a

ge
nt

s,
 c

on
su

lta
nt

s,
 o

r 
su

bc
on

tr
ac

to
rs

, 
w

ith
 re

sp
ec

t t
o:

 

1.
 

no
t 

lim
ite

d 
to

, 
an

y 
as

pe
ct

s 
of

 t
he

 m
ea

ns
, 

m
et

ho
ds

, 
te

ch
ni

qu
es

, 
se

qu
en

ce
s,

 a
nd

 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 o
f 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

to
 b

e 
em

pl
oy

ed
 b

y 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

, a
nd

 s
af

et
y 

pr
ec

au
tio

ns
 a

nd
 

pr
og

ra
m

s i
nc

id
en

t t
he

re
to

; 

2.
 

ot
he

r d
at

a,
 in

te
rp

re
ta

tio
ns

, o
pi

ni
on

s,
 a

nd
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
co

nt
ai

ne
d 

in
 su

ch
 re

po
rt

s o
r s

ho
w

n 
or

 in
di

ca
te

d 
in

 s
uc

h 
dr

aw
in

gs
; 

3.
 

th
e 

co
nt

en
ts

 o
f 

ot
he

r 
Si

te
-r

el
at

ed
 d

oc
um

en
ts

 m
ad

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

to
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r, 
su

ch
 a

s 
re

co
rd

 d
ra

w
in

gs
 

do
cu

m
en

ts
 c

on
ce

rn
in

g 
th

e 
Si

te
; o

r 

4.
 

an
y 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 in

te
rp

re
ta

tio
n 

of
 o

r c
on

cl
us

io
n 

dr
aw

n 
fr

om
 a

ny
 T

ec
hn

ic
al

 D
at

a 
or

 a
ny

 su
ch

 
ot

he
r d

at
a,

 in
te

rp
re

ta
tio

ns
, o

pi
ni

on
s, 

or
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n.
 



 

EJ
CD

C®
 C

-7
00

, S
ta

nd
ar

d 
G

en
er

al
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 
Co

py
rig

ht
©

 2
01

8 
N

at
io

na
l S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rs
, A

m
er

ic
an

 C
ou

nc
il 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Co

m
pa

ni
es

, 
an

d 
Am

er
ic

an
 S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
s.

 A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
 

Pa
ge

 1
6 

of
 7

0 

5.
04

 
D

iff
er

in
g 

Su
bs

ur
fa

ce
 o

r P
hy

si
ca

l C
on

di
tio

ns
 

A.
 

N
ot

ic
e 

by
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r:
 If

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r b

el
ie

ve
s 

th
at

 a
ny

 s
ub

su
rf

ac
e 

or
 p

hy
si

ca
l c

on
di

tio
n 

th
at

 is
 

un
co

ve
re

d 
or

 re
ve

al
ed

 a
t t

he
 S

ite
: 

1.
 

is
 o

f s
uc

h 
a 

na
tu

re
 a

s t
o 

es
ta

bl
ish

 th
at

 a
ny

 T
ec

hn
ic

al
 D

at
a 

on
 w

hi
ch

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r i

s e
nt

itl
ed

 
to

 re
ly

 a
s p

ro
vi

de
d 

in
 P

ar
ag

ra
ph

 5
.0

3 
is 

m
at

er
ia

lly
 in

ac
cu

ra
te

; 

2.
 

is
 o

f s
uc

h 
a 

na
tu

re
 a

s t
o 

re
qu

ire
 a

 c
ha

ng
e 

in
 th

e 
D

ra
w

in
gs

 o
r S

pe
ci

fic
at

io
ns

; 

3.
 

di
ffe

rs
 m

at
er

ia
lly

 fr
om

 th
at

 s
ho

w
n 

or
 in

di
ca

te
d 

in
 th

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 D

oc
um

en
ts

; o
r 

4.
 

is
 o

f a
n 

un
us

ua
l n

at
ur

e,
 a

nd
 d

iff
er

s m
at

er
ia

lly
 fr

om
 co

nd
iti

on
s o

rd
in

ar
ily

 e
nc

ou
nt

er
ed

 a
nd

 
ge

ne
ra

lly
 r

ec
og

ni
ze

d 
as

 in
he

re
nt

 in
 w

or
k 

of
 t

he
 c

ha
ra

ct
er

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
fo

r 
in

 t
he

 C
on

tr
ac

t 
D

oc
um

en
ts

; 

th
en

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r s

ha
ll,

 p
ro

m
pt

ly
 a

ft
er

 b
ec

om
in

g 
aw

ar
e 

th
er

eo
f a

nd
 b

ef
or

e 
fu

rt
he

r d
is

tu
rb

in
g 

th
e 

su
bs

ur
fa

ce
 o

r p
hy

sic
al

 co
nd

iti
on

s o
r p

er
fo

rm
in

g 
an

y 
W

or
k i

n 
co

nn
ec

tio
n 

th
er

ew
ith

 (e
xc

ep
t 

in
 a

n 
em

er
ge

nc
y 

as
 re

qu
ire

d 
by

 P
ar

ag
ra

ph
 7

.1
5)

, n
ot

ify
 O

w
ne

r a
nd

 E
ng

in
ee

r i
n 

w
rit

in
g 

ab
ou

t 
su

ch
 c

on
di

tio
n.

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r 

sh
al

l n
ot

 fu
rt

he
r 

di
st

ur
b 

su
ch

 c
on

di
tio

n 
or

 p
er

fo
rm

 a
ny

 W
or

k 
in

 
co

nn
ec

tio
n 

th
er

ew
ith

 (
ex

ce
pt

 w
ith

 r
es

pe
ct

 t
o 

an
 e

m
er

ge
nc

y)
 u

nt
il 

re
ce

ip
t 

of
 a

 w
rit

te
n 

st
at

em
en

t p
er

m
itt

in
g 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 to

 d
o 

so
. 

B.
 

: A
ft

er
 r

ec
ei

pt
 o

f w
rit

te
n 

no
tic

e 
as

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
by

 t
he

 p
re

ce
di

ng
 p

ar
ag

ra
ph

, 
En

gi
ne

er
 w

ill
 p

ro
m

pt
ly

 r
ev

ie
w

 t
he

 s
ub

su
rf

ac
e 

or
 p

hy
si

ca
l c

on
di

tio
n 

in
 q

ue
st

io
n;

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

w
he

th
er

 it
 is

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 fo

r O
w

ne
r t

o 
ob

ta
in

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 e

xp
lo

ra
tio

n 
or

 te
st

s w
ith

 re
sp

ec
t t

o 
th

e 
co

nd
iti

on
; c

on
cl

ud
e 

w
he

th
er

 t
he

 c
on

di
tio

n 
fa

lls
 w

ith
in

 a
ny

 o
ne

 o
r 

m
or

e 
of

 th
e 

di
ffe

rin
g 

sit
e 

co
nd

iti
on

 c
at

eg
or

ie
s 

in
 P

ar
ag

ra
ph

 5
.0

4.
A;

 o
bt

ai
n 

an
y 

pe
rt

in
en

t c
os

t o
r 

sc
he

du
le

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

of
 W

or
k 

in
 c

on
ne

ct
io

n 
w

ith
 th

e 
su

bs
ur

fa
ce

 o
r p

hy
sic

al
 c

on
di

tio
n 

in
 q

ue
st

io
n 

an
d 

th
e 

ne
ed

 fo
r 

fin
di

ng
s,

 c
on

cl
us

io
ns

, a
nd

 re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

. 

C.
 

: A
ft

er
 re

ce
ip

t o
f E

ng
in

e
fin

di
ng

s,
 c

on
cl

us
io

ns
, 

an
d 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

, 
O

w
ne

r 
sh

al
l 

is
su

e 
a 

w
rit

te
n 

st
at

em
en

t 
to

 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 (
w

ith
 a

 c
op

y 
to

 E
ng

in
ee

r)
 r

eg
ar

di
ng

 t
he

 s
ub

su
rf

ac
e 

or
 p

hy
sic

al
 c

on
di

tio
n 

in
 

qu
es

tio
n,

 a
dd

re
ss

in
g 

th
e 

re
su

m
pt

io
n 

of
 W

or
k 

in
 c

on
ne

ct
io

n 
w

ith
 s

uc
h 

co
nd

iti
on

, i
nd

ic
at

in
g 

w
he

th
er

 a
ny

 c
ha

ng
e 

in
 th

e 
D

ra
w

in
gs

 o
r S

pe
ci

fic
at

io
ns

 w
ill

 b
e 

m
ad

e,
 a

nd
 a

do
pt

in
g 

or
 re

je
ct

in
g 

 

D
. 

Ea
rly

 R
es

um
pt

io
n 

of
 W

or
k:

 If
 a

t a
ny

 ti
m

e 
En

gi
ne

er
 d

et
er

m
in

es
 th

at
 W

or
k 

in
 c

on
ne

ct
io

n 
w

ith
 

ha
s 

be
en

 a
de

qu
at

el
y 

do
cu

m
en

te
d,

 a
nd

 a
na

ly
ze

d 
on

 a
 p

re
lim

in
ar

y 
ba

si
s,

 t
he

n 
th

e 
En

gi
ne

er
 

m
ay

 a
t i

ts
 d

isc
re

tio
n 

in
st

ru
ct

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r t

o 
re

su
m

e 
su

ch
 W

or
k.

 

E.
 

Po
ss

ib
le

 P
ric

e 
an

d 
Ti

m
es

 A
dj

us
tm

en
ts

 

1.
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 s

ha
ll 

be
 e

nt
itl

ed
 t

o 
an

 e
qu

ita
bl

e 
ad

ju
st

m
en

t 
in

 C
on

tr
ac

t 
Pr

ic
e 

or
 C

on
tr

ac
t 

Ti
m

es
, t

o 
th

e
ex

te
nt

 th
at

 th
e 

ex
is

te
nc

e 
of

 a
 d

iff
er

in
g 

su
bs

ur
fa

ce
 o

r p
hy

si
ca

l c
on

di
tio

n,
 o

r 
an

y 
re

la
te

d 
de

la
y,

 d
isr

up
tio

n,
 o

r 
in

te
rf

er
en

ce
, 

ca
us

es
 a

n 
in

cr
ea

se
 o

r 
de

cr
ea

se
 i

n 

 

EJ
CD

C®
 C

-7
00

, S
ta

nd
ar

d 
G

en
er

al
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 
Co

py
rig

ht
©

 2
01

8 
N

at
io

na
l S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rs
, A

m
er

ic
an

 C
ou

nc
il 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Co

m
pa

ni
es

, 
an

d 
Am

er
ic

an
 S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
s.

 A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
 

Pa
ge

 1
7 

of
 7

0 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g:
 

a.
 

Su
ch

 c
on

di
tio

n 
m

us
t 

fa
ll 

w
ith

in
 a

ny
 o

ne
 o

r 
m

or
e 

of
 t

he
 c

at
eg

or
ie

s 
de

sc
rib

ed
 i

n 
Pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

5.
04

.A
; 

b.
 

W
ith

 re
sp

ec
t t

o 
W

or
k 

th
at

 is
 p

ai
d 

fo
r o

n 
a 

un
it 

pr
ic

e 
ba

si
s,

 a
ny

 a
dj

us
tm

en
t i

n 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 

Pr
ic

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
su

bj
ec

t t
o 

th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 o

f P
ar

ag
ra

ph
 1

3.
03

; a
nd

, 

c.
 

pr
ov

isi
on

s o
f P

ar
ag

ra
ph

s 4
.0

5.
D 

an
d 

4.
05

.E
. 

2.
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 sh

al
l n

ot
 b

e 
en

tit
le

d 
to

 a
ny

 a
dj

us
tm

en
t i

n 
th

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 P

ric
e 

or
 C

on
tr

ac
t T

im
es

 
w

ith
 re

sp
ec

t t
o 

a 
su

bs
ur

fa
ce

 o
r p

hy
sic

al
 c

on
di

tio
n 

if:
 

a.
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 k

ne
w

 o
f 

th
e 

ex
is

te
nc

e 
of

 s
uc

h 
co

nd
iti

on
 a

t 
th

e 
tim

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 m
ad

e 
a 

co
m

m
itm

en
t 

to
 O

w
ne

r 
w

ith
 r

es
pe

ct
 t

o 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 P

ric
e 

an
d 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 T
im

es
 b

y 
th

e 
su

bm
is

sio
n 

of
 a

 B
id

 o
r b

ec
om

in
g 

bo
un

d 
un

de
r a

 n
eg

ot
ia

te
d 

co
nt

ra
ct

, o
r o

th
er

w
is

e;
 

b.
 

Th
e 

ex
ist

en
ce

 o
f s

uc
h 

co
nd

iti
on

 re
as

on
ab

ly
 c

ou
ld

 h
av

e 
be

en
 d

is
co

ve
re

d 
or

 re
ve

al
ed

 
as

 a
 re

su
lt 

of
 a

ny
 e

xa
m

in
at

io
n,

 in
ve

st
ig

at
io

n,
 e

xp
lo

ra
tio

n,
 te

st
, o

r s
tu

dy
 o

f t
he

 S
ite

 a
nd

 
co

nt
ig

uo
us

 a
re

as
 e

xp
re

ss
ly

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
by

 t
he

 B
id

di
ng

 R
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 o

r 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 

co
m

m
itm

en
t; 

or
 

c.
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 fa

ile
d 

to
 g

iv
e 

th
e 

w
rit

te
n 

no
tic

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
by

 P
ar

ag
ra

ph
 5

.0
4.

A.
 

3.
 

to
 a

nd
 th

e 
am

ou
nt

 o
r 

ex
te

nt
 o

f 
an

y 
ad

ju
st

m
en

t 
in

 t
he

 C
on

tr
ac

t 
Pr

ic
e 

or
 C

on
tr

ac
t 

Ti
m

es
, 

th
en

 a
ny

 s
uc

h 
ad

ju
st

m
en

t w
ill

 b
e 

se
t f

or
th

 in
 a

 C
ha

ng
e 

O
rd

er
. 

4.
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 m

ay
 s

ub
m

it 
a 

Ch
an

ge
 P

ro
po

sa
l r

eg
ar

di
ng

 it
s 

en
tit

le
m

en
t t

o 
or

 th
e 

am
ou

nt
 o

r 
ex

te
nt

 o
f a

ny
 a

dj
us

tm
en

t i
n 

th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 P
ric

e 
or

 C
on

tr
ac

t T
im

es
, n

o 
la

te
r 

th
an

 3
0 

da
ys

 

su
bs

ur
fa

ce
 o

r p
hy

sic
al

 c
on

di
tio

n 
in

 q
ue

st
io

n.
 

F.
 

U
nd

er
gr

ou
nd

 F
ac

ili
tie

s;
 H

az
ar

do
us

 E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l C
on

di
tio

ns
: P

ar
ag

ra
ph

 5
.0

5 
go

ve
rn

s 
rig

ht
s 

an
d 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s 

re
ga

rd
in

g 
th

e 
pr

es
en

ce
 

or
 

lo
ca

tio
n 

of
 

U
nd

er
gr

ou
nd

 
Fa

ci
lit

ie
s.

 
Pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

5.
06

 g
ov

er
ns

 r
ig

ht
s 

an
d 

re
sp

on
sib

ili
tie

s 
re

ga
rd

in
g 

H
az

ar
do

us
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l 

Co
nd

iti
on

s. 
Th

e 
pr

ov
isi

on
s 

of
 P

ar
ag

ra
ph

s 
5.

03
 a

nd
 5

.0
4 

ar
e 

no
t a

pp
lic

ab
le

 to
 th

e 
pr

es
en

ce
 o

r 
lo

ca
tio

n 
of

 U
nd

er
gr

ou
nd

 F
ac

ili
tie

s,
 o

r t
o 

Ha
za

rd
ou

s E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l C
on

di
tio

ns
. 

5.
05

 
U

nd
er

gr
ou

nd
 F

ac
ili

tie
s 

A.
 

: U
nl

es
s 

it 
is 

ot
he

rw
ise

 e
xp

re
ss

ly
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

in
 th

e 
Su

pp
le

m
en

ta
ry

 
Co

nd
iti

on
s,

 th
e 

co
st

 o
f a

ll 
of

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
ar

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 P
ric

e,
 a

nd
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r 
sh

al
l h

av
e 

fu
ll 

re
sp

on
sib

ili
ty

 fo
r: 

1.
 

re
vi

ew
in

g 
an

d 
ch

ec
ki

ng
 a

ll 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
an

d 
da

ta
 re

ga
rd

in
g 

ex
is

tin
g 

U
nd

er
gr

ou
nd

 F
ac

ili
tie

s 
at

 th
e 

Si
te

; 

2.
 

co
m

pl
yi

ng
 

w
ith

 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 
st

at
e 

an
d 

lo
ca

l 
ut

ili
ty

 
da

m
ag

e 
pr

ev
en

tio
n 

La
w

s 
an

d 
Re

gu
la

tio
ns

; 



 

EJ
CD

C®
 C

-7
00

, S
ta

nd
ar

d 
G

en
er

al
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 
Co

py
rig

ht
©

 2
01

8 
N

at
io

na
l S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rs
, A

m
er

ic
an

 C
ou

nc
il 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Co

m
pa

ni
es

, 
an

d 
Am

er
ic

an
 S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
s.

 A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
 

Pa
ge

 1
8 

of
 7

0 

3.
 

ve
rif

yi
ng

 t
he

 a
ct

ua
l l

oc
at

io
n 

of
 t

ho
se

 U
nd

er
gr

ou
nd

 F
ac

ili
tie

s 
sh

ow
n 

or
 in

di
ca

te
d 

in
 t

he
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 D
oc

um
en

ts
 a

s 
be

in
g 

w
ith

in
 t

he
 a

re
a 

af
fe

ct
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

W
or

k,
 b

y 
ex

po
si

ng
 s

uc
h 

U
nd

er
gr

ou
nd

 F
ac

ili
tie

s d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

co
ur

se
 o

f c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n;
 

4.
 

co
or

di
na

tio
n 

of
 t

he
 W

or
k 

w
ith

 t
he

 o
w

ne
rs

 (
in

cl
ud

in
g 

O
w

ne
r)

 o
f 

su
ch

 U
nd

er
gr

ou
nd

 
Fa

ci
lit

ie
s,

 d
ur

in
g 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n;

 a
nd

 

5.
 

th
e 

sa
fe

ty
 a

nd
 p

ro
te

ct
io

n 
of

 a
ll 

ex
ist

in
g 

U
nd

er
gr

ou
nd

 F
ac

ili
tie

s 
at

 th
e 

Si
te

, a
nd

 re
pa

iri
ng

 
an

y 
da

m
ag

e 
th

er
et

o 
re

su
lti

ng
 fr

om
 th

e 
W

or
k.

 

B.
 

N
ot

ic
e 

by
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r: 
If 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 b

el
ie

ve
s t

ha
t a

n 
U

nd
er

gr
ou

nd
 F

ac
ili

ty
 th

at
 is

 u
nc

ov
er

ed
 o

r 
re

ve
al

ed
 a

t 
th

e 
Si

te
 w

as
 n

ot
 s

ho
w

n 
or

 in
di

ca
te

d 
on

 t
he

 D
ra

w
in

gs
, 

or
 w

as
 n

ot
 s

ho
w

n 
or

 
in

di
ca

te
d 

on
 t

he
 D

ra
w

in
gs

 w
ith

 r
ea

so
na

bl
e 

ac
cu

ra
cy

, t
he

n 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 s
ha

ll,
 p

ro
m

pt
ly

 a
ft

er
 

be
co

m
in

g 
aw

ar
e 

th
er

eo
f 

an
d 

be
fo

re
 f

ur
th

er
 d

is
tu

rb
in

g 
co

nd
iti

on
s 

af
fe

ct
ed

 t
he

re
by

 o
r 

pe
rf

or
m

in
g 

an
y 

W
or

k 
in

 c
on

ne
ct

io
n 

th
er

ew
ith

 (
ex

ce
pt

 i
n 

an
 e

m
er

ge
nc

y 
as

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
by

 
Pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

7.
15

), 
no

tif
y 

O
w

ne
r a

nd
 E

ng
in

ee
r i

n 
w

rit
in

g 
re

ga
rd

in
g 

su
ch

 U
nd

er
gr

ou
nd

 F
ac

ili
ty

. 

C.
 

: E
ng

in
ee

r w
ill

: 

1.
 

pr
om

pt
ly

 r
ev

ie
w

 t
he

 U
nd

er
gr

ou
nd

 F
ac

ili
ty

 a
nd

 c
on

cl
ud

e 
w

he
th

er
 s

uc
h 

U
nd

er
gr

ou
nd

 
Fa

ci
lit

y 
w

as
 n

ot
 s

ho
w

n 
or

 in
di

ca
te

d 
on

 th
e 

Dr
aw

in
gs

, o
r w

as
 n

ot
 sh

ow
n 

or
 in

di
ca

te
d 

w
ith

 
re

as
on

ab
le

 a
cc

ur
ac

y;
 

2.
 

id
en

tif
y 

an
d 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

e 
w

ith
 t

he
 o

w
ne

r 
of

 t
he

 U
nd

er
gr

ou
nd

 
Fa

ci
lit

y;
 p

re
pa

re
 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 t
o 

O
w

ne
r 

(a
nd

 i
f 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
is

su
e 

an
y 

pr
el

im
in

ar
y 

in
st

ru
ct

io
ns

 t
o 

of
 W

or
k 

in
 c

on
ne

ct
io

n 
w

ith
 t

he
 

U
nd

er
gr

ou
nd

 F
ac

ili
ty

 in
 q

ue
st

io
n;

 

3.
 

ob
ta

in
 a

ny
 p

er
tin

en
t c

os
t o

r s
ch

ed
ul

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fr

om
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r; 
de

te
rm

in
e 

th
e 

ex
te

nt
, 

if 
an

y,
 t

o 
w

hi
ch

 a
 c

ha
ng

e 
is 

re
qu

ire
d 

in
 t

he
 D

ra
w

in
gs

 o
r 

Sp
ec

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 t
o 

re
fle

ct
 a

nd
 

do
cu

m
en

t t
he

 c
on

se
qu

en
ce

s o
f t

he
 e

xi
st

en
ce

 o
r l

oc
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
U

nd
er

gr
ou

nd
 F

ac
ili

ty
; a

nd
 

4.
 

 

D
ur

in
g 

su
ch

 t
im

e,
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r 
sh

al
l 

be
 r

es
po

ns
ib

le
 f

or
 t

he
 s

af
et

y 
an

d 
pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

of
 s

uc
h 

U
nd

er
gr

ou
nd

 F
ac

ili
ty

. 

D
. 

w
rit

te
n 

fin
di

ng
s,

 c
on

cl
us

io
ns

, a
nd

 r
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

, O
w

ne
r 

sh
al

l i
ss

ue
 a

 w
rit

te
n 

st
at

em
en

t 
to

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r 

(w
ith

 a
 c

op
y 

to
 E

ng
in

ee
r)

 r
eg

ar
di

ng
 t

he
 U

nd
er

gr
ou

nd
 F

ac
ili

ty
 i

n 
qu

es
tio

n 
ad

dr
es

si
ng

 th
e 

re
su

m
pt

io
n 

of
 W

or
k 

in
 c

on
ne

ct
io

n 
w

ith
 su

ch
 U

nd
er

gr
ou

nd
 F

ac
ili

ty
, i

nd
ic

at
in

g 
w

he
th

er
 a

ny
 c

ha
ng

e 
in

 th
e 

D
ra

w
in

gs
 o

r S
pe

ci
fic

at
io

ns
 w

ill
 b

e 
m

ad
e,

 a
nd

 a
do

pt
in

g 
or

 re
je

ct
in

g 
 a

nd
 re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 in

 w
ho

le
 o

r i
n 

pa
rt

. 

E.
 

Ea
rly

 R
es

um
pt

io
n 

of
 W

or
k:

 If
 a

t a
ny

 ti
m

e 
En

gi
ne

er
 d

et
er

m
in

es
 th

at
 W

or
k 

in
 c

on
ne

ct
io

n 
w

ith
 

is
su

an
ce

 o
f 

its
 s

ta
te

m
en

t 
to

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r, 

be
ca

us
e 

th
e 

U
nd

er
gr

ou
nd

 F
ac

ili
ty

 in
 q

ue
st

io
n 

an
d 

co
nd

iti
on

s 
af

fe
ct

ed
 b

y 
its

 p
re

se
nc

e 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

ad
eq

ua
te

ly
 d

oc
um

en
te

d,
 a

nd
 a

na
ly

ze
d 

on
 a

 
pr

el
im

in
ar

y 
ba

si
s,

 th
en

 th
e 

En
gi

ne
er

 m
ay

 a
t i

ts
 d

isc
re

tio
n 

in
st

ru
ct

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r t

o 
re

su
m

e 
su

ch
 

W
or

k.
 

F.
 

Po
ss

ib
le

 P
ric

e 
an

d 
Ti

m
es

 A
dj

us
tm

en
ts

 

1.
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 s

ha
ll 

be
 e

nt
itl

ed
 to

 a
n 

eq
ui

ta
bl

e 
ad

ju
st

m
en

t i
n 

th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 P
ric

e 
or

 C
on

tr
ac

t 
Ti

m
es

, t
o 

th
e 

ex
te

nt
 th

at
 a

ny
 e

xi
st

in
g 

U
nd

er
gr

ou
nd

 F
ac

ili
ty

 a
t t

he
 S

ite
 th

at
 w

as
 n

ot
 sh

ow
n 

 

EJ
CD

C®
 C

-7
00

, S
ta

nd
ar

d 
G

en
er

al
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 
Co

py
rig

ht
©

 2
01

8 
N

at
io

na
l S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rs
, A

m
er

ic
an

 C
ou

nc
il 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Co

m
pa

ni
es

, 
an

d 
Am

er
ic

an
 S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
s.

 A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
 

Pa
ge

 1
9 

of
 7

0 

or
 in

di
ca

te
d 

on
 th

e 
D

ra
w

in
gs

, o
r 

w
as

 n
ot

 s
ho

w
n 

or
 in

di
ca

te
d 

w
ith

 r
ea

so
na

bl
e 

ac
cu

ra
cy

, 
or

 a
ny

 r
el

at
ed

 d
el

ay
, 

di
sr

up
tio

n,
 o

r 
in

te
rf

er
en

ce
, 

ca
us

es
 a

n 
in

cr
ea

se
 o

r 
de

cr
ea

se
 i

n 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g:
 

a.
 

W
ith

 re
sp

ec
t t

o 
W

or
k 

th
at

 is
 p

ai
d 

fo
r o

n 
a 

un
it 

pr
ic

e 
ba

si
s,

 a
ny

 a
dj

us
tm

en
t i

n 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 

Pr
ic

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
su

bj
ec

t t
o 

th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 o

f P
ar

ag
ra

ph
 1

3.
03

; 

b.
 

pr
ov

isi
on

s o
f P

ar
ag

ra
ph

s 4
.0

5.
D 

an
d 

4.
05

.E
; a

nd
 

c.
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 g

av
e 

th
e 

no
tic

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
in

 P
ar

ag
ra

ph
 5

.0
5.

B.
 

2.
 

ex
te

nt
 o

f 
an

y 
ad

ju
st

m
en

t 
in

 t
he

 C
on

tr
ac

t 
Pr

ic
e 

or
 C

on
tr

ac
t 

Ti
m

es
, 

th
en

 a
ny

 s
uc

h 
ad

ju
st

m
en

t w
ill

 b
e 

se
t f

or
th

 in
 a

 C
ha

ng
e 

O
rd

er
. 

3.
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 m

ay
 s

ub
m

it 
a 

Ch
an

ge
 P

ro
po

sa
l r

eg
ar

di
ng

 it
s 

en
tit

le
m

en
t t

o 
or

 th
e 

am
ou

nt
 o

r 
ex

te
nt

 o
f a

ny
 a

dj
us

tm
en

t i
n 

th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 P
ric

e 
or

 C
on

tr
ac

t T
im

es
, n

o 
la

te
r 

th
an

 3
0 

da
ys

 
t 

to
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r 
re

ga
rd

in
g 

th
e 

U
nd

er
gr

ou
nd

 F
ac

ili
ty

 in
 q

ue
st

io
n.

 

4.
 

Th
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

an
d 

da
ta

 s
ho

w
n 

or
 in

di
ca

te
d 

on
 t

he
 D

ra
w

in
gs

 w
ith

 r
es

pe
ct

 t
o 

ex
is

tin
g 

U
nd

er
gr

ou
nd

 F
ac

ili
tie

s 
at

 th
e 

Si
te

 is
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

an
d 

da
ta

 (a
) f

ur
ni

sh
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

ow
ne

rs
 o

f s
uc

h 
U

nd
er

gr
ou

nd
 F

ac
ili

tie
s,

 o
r b

y 
ot

he
rs

, (
b)

 o
bt

ai
ne

d 
fr

om
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

re
co

rd
s,

 
or

 (c
) g

at
he

re
d 

in
 a

n 
in

ve
st

ig
at

io
n 

co
nd

uc
te

d 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

cu
rr

en
t 

ed
iti

on
 o

f 
AS

CE
 3

8,
 S

ta
nd

ar
d 

G
ui

de
lin

e 
fo

r t
he

 C
ol

le
ct

io
n 

an
d 

D
ep

ic
tio

n 
of

 E
xi

st
in

g 
Su

bs
ur

fa
ce

 U
til

ity
 

D
at

a,
 b

y 
th

e 
Am

er
ic

an
 S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
s.

 If
 s

uc
h 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

or
 d

at
a 

is 
in

co
rr

ec
t 

Pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
5.

05
.F

. 

5.
06

 
H

az
ar

do
us

 E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l C
on

di
tio

ns
 a

t S
ite

 

A.
 

Re
po

rt
s a

nd
 D

ra
w

in
gs

: T
he

 S
up

pl
em

en
ta

ry
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 id
en

tif
y:

 

1.
 

th
os

e 
re

po
rt

s k
no

w
n 

to
 O

w
ne

r r
el

at
in

g 
to

 H
az

ar
do

us
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l C

on
di

tio
ns

 th
at

 h
av

e 
be

en
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

at
 o

r a
dj

ac
en

t t
o 

th
e 

Si
te

; 

2.
 

dr
aw

in
gs

 k
no

w
n 

to
 O

w
ne

r 
re

la
tin

g 
to

 H
az

ar
do

us
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l C

on
di

tio
ns

 t
ha

t 
ha

ve
 

be
en

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
at

 o
r a

dj
ac

en
t t

o 
th

e 
Si

te
; a

nd
 

3.
 

Te
ch

ni
ca

l D
at

a 
co

nt
ai

ne
d 

in
 s

uc
h 

re
po

rt
s 

an
d 

dr
aw

in
gs

. 

B.
 

Re
lia

nc
e 

by
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r o
n 

Te
ch

ni
ca

l D
at

a 
Au

th
or

ize
d:

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r m

ay
 re

ly
 u

po
n 

th
e 

ac
cu

ra
cy

 
of

 t
he

 T
ec

hn
ic

al
 D

at
a 

ex
pr

es
sl

y 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

in
 t

he
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
ry

 C
on

di
tio

ns
 w

ith
 r

es
pe

ct
 t

o 
su

ch
 re

po
rt

s 
an

d 
dr

aw
in

gs
, b

ut
 s

uc
h 

re
po

rt
s 

an
d 

dr
aw

in
gs

 a
re

 n
ot

 C
on

tr
ac

t D
oc

um
en

ts
. I

f n
o 

su
ch

 e
xp

re
ss

 id
en

tif
ic

at
io

n 
ha

s 
be

en
 m

ad
e,

 th
en

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r m

ay
 re

ly
 o

n 
th

e 
ac

cu
ra

cy
 o

f t
he

 
Te

ch
ni

ca
l D

at
a 

as
 d

ef
in

ed
 in

 P
ar

ag
ra

ph
 1

.0
1.

A.
46

.b
. E

xc
ep

t 
fo

r 
su

ch
 r

el
ia

nc
e 

on
 T

ec
hn

ic
al

 
D

at
a,

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r m

ay
 n

ot
 re

ly
 u

po
n 

or
 m

ak
e 

an
y 

cl
ai

m
 a

ga
in

st
 O

w
ne

r o
r E

ng
in

ee
r, 

or
 a

ny
 o

f 
th

ei
r 

of
fic

er
s, 

di
re

ct
or

s,
 

m
em

be
rs

, 
pa

rt
ne

rs
, 

em
pl

oy
ee

s,
 

ag
en

ts
, 

co
ns

ul
ta

nt
s,

 
or

 
su

bc
on

tr
ac

to
rs

, w
ith

 re
sp

ec
t t

o:
 

1.
 

no
t l

im
ite

d 
to

, a
ny

 a
sp

ec
ts

 o
f t

he
 m

ea
ns

, m
et

ho
ds

, t
ec

hn
iq

ue
s,

 se
qu

en
ce

s a
nd

 p
ro

ce
du

re
s 



 

EJ
CD

C®
 C

-7
00

, S
ta

nd
ar

d 
G

en
er

al
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 
Co

py
rig

ht
©

 2
01

8 
N

at
io

na
l S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rs
, A

m
er

ic
an

 C
ou

nc
il 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Co

m
pa

ni
es

, 
an

d 
Am

er
ic

an
 S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
s.

 A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
 

Pa
ge

 2
0 

of
 7

0 

of
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

to
 b

e 
em

pl
oy

ed
 b

y 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

, a
nd

 s
af

et
y 

pr
ec

au
tio

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
gr

am
s 

in
ci

de
nt

 th
er

et
o;

 

2.
 

ot
he

r d
at

a,
 in

te
rp

re
ta

tio
ns

, o
pi

ni
on

s,
 a

nd
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
co

nt
ai

ne
d 

in
 su

ch
 re

po
rt

s o
r s

ho
w

n 
or

 in
di

ca
te

d 
in

 s
uc

h 
dr

aw
in

gs
; o

r 

3.
 

an
y 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 in

te
rp

re
ta

tio
n 

of
 o

r c
on

cl
us

io
n 

dr
aw

n 
fr

om
 a

ny
 T

ec
hn

ic
al

 D
at

a 
or

 a
ny

 su
ch

 
ot

he
r d

at
a,

 in
te

rp
re

ta
tio

ns
, o

pi
ni

on
s o

r i
nf

or
m

at
io

n.
 

C.
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 

sh
al

l 
no

t 
be

 
re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
fo

r 
re

m
ov

in
g 

or
 

re
m

ed
ia

tin
g 

an
y 

Ha
za

rd
ou

s 
En

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l 

Co
nd

iti
on

 e
nc

ou
nt

er
ed

, 
un

co
ve

re
d,

 o
r 

re
ve

al
ed

 a
t 

th
e 

Si
te

 u
nl

es
s 

su
ch

 
re

m
ov

al
 o

r 
re

m
ed

ia
tio

n 
is

 e
xp

re
ss

ly
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

in
 t

he
 C

on
tr

ac
t 

Do
cu

m
en

ts
 t

o 
be

 w
ith

in
 t

he
 

sc
op

e 
of

 th
e 

W
or

k.
 

D
. 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 sh

al
l b

e 
re

sp
on

sib
le

 fo
r c

on
tr

ol
lin

g,
 co

nt
ai

ni
ng

, a
nd

 d
ul

y 
re

m
ov

in
g 

al
l C

on
st

itu
en

ts
 

of
 C

on
ce

rn
 b

ro
ug

ht
 t

o 
th

e 
Si

te
 b

y 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

, S
ub

co
nt

ra
ct

or
s,

 S
up

pl
ie

rs
, o

r 
an

yo
ne

 e
lse

 fo
r 

w
ho

m
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r i
s 

re
sp

on
si

bl
e,

 a
nd

 fo
r a

ny
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
co

st
s;

 a
nd

 fo
r t

he
 c

os
ts

 o
f r

em
ov

in
g 

an
d 

re
m

ed
ia

tin
g 

an
y 

H
az

ar
do

us
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l C

on
di

tio
n 

cr
ea

te
d 

by
 th

e 
pr

es
en

ce
 o

f a
ny

 su
ch

 
Co

ns
tit

ue
nt

s 
of

 C
on

ce
rn

. 

E.
 

If 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 e
nc

ou
nt

er
s,

 u
nc

ov
er

s,
 o

r r
ev

ea
ls

 a
 H

az
ar

do
us

 E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l C
on

di
tio

n 
w

ho
se

 
re

m
ov

al
 o

r r
em

ed
ia

tio
n 

is
 n

ot
 e

xp
re

ss
ly

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
in

 th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 D
oc

um
en

ts
 a

s b
ei

ng
 w

ith
in

 
th

e 
sc

op
e 

of
 th

e 
W

or
k,

 o
r i

f C
on

tr
ac

to
r o

r a
ny

on
e 

fo
r w

ho
m

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r i

s r
es

po
ns

ib
le

 c
re

at
es

 
a 

H
az

ar
do

us
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l 

Co
nd

iti
on

, 
th

en
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r 
sh

al
l 

im
m

ed
ia

te
ly

: 
(1

) 
se

cu
re

 o
r 

ot
he

rw
ise

 is
ol

at
e 

su
ch

 c
on

di
tio

n;
 (2

) s
to

p 
al

l W
or

k 
in

 c
on

ne
ct

io
n 

w
ith

 s
uc

h 
co

nd
iti

on
 a

nd
 in

 
an

y 
ar

ea
 a

ffe
ct

ed
 t

he
re

by
 (e

xc
ep

t 
in

 a
n 

em
er

ge
nc

y 
as

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
by

 P
ar

ag
ra

ph
 7

.1
5)

; a
nd

 (3
) 

no
tif

y 
O

w
ne

r 
an

d 
En

gi
ne

er
 (a

nd
 p

ro
m

pt
ly

 th
er

ea
ft

er
 c

on
fir

m
 s

uc
h 

no
tic

e 
in

 w
rit

in
g)

. O
w

ne
r 

sh
al

l p
ro

m
pt

ly
 c

on
su

lt 
w

ith
 E

ng
in

ee
r c

on
ce

rn
in

g 
th

e 
ne

ce
ss

ity
 fo

r O
w

ne
r t

o 
re

ta
in

 a
 q

ua
lif

ie
d 

ex
pe

rt
 to

 e
va

lu
at

e 
su

ch
 c

on
di

tio
n 

or
 ta

ke
 c

or
re

ct
iv

e 
ac

tio
n,

 if
 a

ny
. P

ro
m

pt
ly

 a
ft

er
 c

on
su

lti
ng

 
w

ith
 E

ng
in

ee
r, 

O
w

ne
r 

sh
al

l t
ak

e 
su

ch
 a

ct
io

ns
 a

s 
ar

e 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

to
 p

er
m

it 
O

w
ne

r 
to

 t
im

el
y 

ob
ta

in
 

re
qu

ire
d 

pe
rm

its
 

an
d 

pr
ov

id
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 

th
e 

w
rit

te
n 

no
tic

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
by

 
Pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

5.
06

.F
. I

f 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 o
r 

an
yo

ne
 f

or
 w

ho
m

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r 

is 
re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
cr

ea
te

d 
th

e 
H

az
ar

do
us

 E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l C
on

di
tio

n 
in

 q
ue

st
io

n,
 th

en
 O

w
ne

r m
ay

 re
m

ov
e 

an
d 

re
m

ed
ia

te
 th

e 
H

az
ar

do
us

 E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l C
on

di
tio

n,
 a

nd
 im

po
se

 a
 s

et
-o

ff 
ag

ai
ns

t 
pa

ym
en

ts
 t

o 
ac

co
un

t 
fo

r 
th

e 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 c
os

ts
. 

F.
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 s

ha
ll 

no
t 

re
su

m
e 

W
or

k 
in

 c
on

ne
ct

io
n 

w
ith

 s
uc

h 
H

az
ar

do
us

 E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l 
Co

nd
iti

on
 o

r i
n 

an
y 

af
fe

ct
ed

 a
re

a 
un

til
 a

fte
r O

w
ne

r h
as

 o
bt

ai
ne

d 
an

y 
re

qu
ire

d 
pe

rm
its

 re
la

te
d 

th
er

et
o,

 a
nd

 d
el

iv
er

ed
 w

rit
te

n 
no

tic
e 

to
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r e
ith

er
 (1

) s
pe

ci
fy

in
g 

th
at

 s
uc

h 
co

nd
iti

on
 

an
d 

an
y 

af
fe

ct
ed

 a
re

a 
is

 o
r 

ha
s 

be
en

 r
en

de
re

d 
sa

fe
 f

or
 t

he
 r

es
um

pt
io

n 
of

 W
or

k,
 o

r 
(2

) 
sp

ec
ify

in
g 

an
y 

sp
ec

ia
l c

on
di

tio
ns

 u
nd

er
 w

hi
ch

 su
ch

 W
or

k 
m

ay
 b

e 
re

su
m

ed
 sa

fe
ly

. 

G
. 

If 
O

w
ne

r a
nd

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r c

an
no

t a
gr

ee
 a

s t
o 

en
tit

le
m

en
t t

o 
or

 o
n 

th
e 

am
ou

nt
 o

r e
xt

en
t, 

if 
an

y,
 

of
 a

ny
 a

dj
us

tm
en

t i
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 P
ric

e 
or

 C
on

tr
ac

t T
im

es
, a

s a
 re

su
lt 

of
 su

ch
 W

or
k 

st
op

pa
ge

, s
uc

h 
sp

ec
ia

l c
on

di
tio

ns
 u

nd
er

 w
hi

ch
 W

or
k 

is 
ag

re
ed

 to
 b

e 
re

su
m

ed
 b

y 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

, o
r a

ny
 c

os
ts

 o
r 

ex
pe

ns
es

 in
cu

rr
ed

 in
 r

es
po

ns
e 

to
 t

he
 H

az
ar

do
us

 E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l C
on

di
tio

n,
 t

he
n 

w
ith

in
 3

0 
n 

no
tic

e 
re

ga
rd

in
g 

th
e 

re
su

m
pt

io
n 

of
 W

or
k,

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r m

ay
 s

ub
m

it 
a 

Ch
an

ge
 P

ro
po

sa
l, 

or
 O

w
ne

r 
m

ay
 im

po
se

 a
 s

et
-o

ff.
 E

nt
itl

em
en

t 
to

 a
ny

 s
uc

h 
ad

ju
st

m
en

t 
is 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
th

e 
pr

ov
isi

on
s o

f P
ar

ag
ra

ph
s 

4.
05

.D
, 4

.0
5.

E,
 1

1.
07

, a
nd

 1
1.

08
. 

H
. 

If,
 a

ft
er

 re
ce

ip
t o

f s
uc

h 
w

rit
te

n 
no

tic
e,

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r d

oe
s n

ot
 a

gr
ee

 to
 re

su
m

e 
su

ch
 W

or
k 

ba
se

d 
on

 a
 re

as
on

ab
le

 b
el

ie
f i

t i
s u

ns
af

e,
 o

r d
oe

s n
ot

 a
gr

ee
 to

 re
su

m
e 

su
ch

 W
or

k 
un

de
r s

uc
h 

sp
ec

ia
l 

 

EJ
CD

C®
 C

-7
00

, S
ta

nd
ar

d 
G

en
er

al
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 
Co

py
rig

ht
©

 2
01

8 
N

at
io

na
l S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rs
, A

m
er

ic
an

 C
ou

nc
il 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Co

m
pa

ni
es

, 
an

d 
Am

er
ic

an
 S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
s.

 A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
 

Pa
ge

 2
1 

of
 7

0 

co
nd

iti
on

s,
 th

en
 O

w
ne

r m
ay

 o
rd

er
 th

e 
po

rt
io

n 
of

 th
e 

W
or

k 
th

at
 is

 in
 th

e 
ar

ea
 a

ffe
ct

ed
 b

y 
su

ch
 

co
nd

iti
on

 t
o 

be
 d

el
et

ed
 f

ro
m

 t
he

 W
or

k,
 f

ol
lo

w
in

g 
th

e 
co

nt
ra

ct
ua

l 
ch

an
ge

 p
ro

ce
du

re
s 

in
 

Ar
tic

le
 

fo
rc

es
 o

r o
th

er
s i

n 
ac

co
rd

an
ce

 w
ith

 A
rt

ic
le

 8
. 

I. 
To

 t
he

 f
ul

le
st

 e
xt

en
t 

pe
rm

itt
ed

 b
y 

La
w

s 
an

d 
Re

gu
la

tio
ns

, O
w

ne
r 

sh
al

l i
nd

em
ni

fy
 a

nd
 h

ol
d 

ha
rm

le
ss

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r, 

Su
bc

on
tr

ac
to

rs
, 

an
d 

En
gi

ne
er

, a
nd

 t
he

 o
ffi

ce
rs

, 
di

re
ct

or
s,

 m
em

be
rs

, 
pa

rt
ne

rs
, e

m
pl

oy
ee

s,
 a

ge
nt

s,
 c

on
su

lta
nt

s,
 a

nd
 s

ub
co

nt
ra

ct
or

s o
f e

ac
h 

an
d 

an
y 

of
 th

em
, f

ro
m

 
an

d 
ag

ai
ns

t 
al

l c
la

im
s,

 c
os

ts
, l

os
se

s,
 a

nd
 d

am
ag

es
 (i

nc
lu

di
ng

 b
ut

 n
ot

 li
m

ite
d 

to
 a

ll 
fe

es
 a

nd
 

ch
ar

ge
s o

f e
ng

in
ee

rs
, a

rc
hi

te
ct

s, 
at

to
rn

ey
s,

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 p

ro
fe

ss
io

na
ls

, a
nd

 a
ll 

co
ur

t, 
ar

bi
tr

at
io

n,
 

or
 o

th
er

 d
is

pu
te

 r
es

ol
ut

io
n 

co
st

s)
 a

ris
in

g 
ou

t 
of

 o
r 

re
la

tin
g 

to
 a

 H
az

ar
do

us
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l 

Co
nd

iti
on

, p
ro

vi
de

d 
th

at
 s

uc
h 

Ha
za

rd
ou

s 
En

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l C

on
di

tio
n 

(1
) 

 w
as

 n
ot

 s
ho

w
n 

or
 

in
di

ca
te

d 
in

 t
he

 D
ra

w
in

gs
, 

Sp
ec

ifi
ca

tio
ns

, 
or

 o
th

er
 C

on
tr

ac
t 

Do
cu

m
en

ts
, 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
as

 
Te

ch
ni

ca
l D

at
a 

en
tit

le
d 

to
 li

m
ite

d 
re

lia
nc

e 
pu

rs
ua

nt
 to

 P
ar

ag
ra

ph
 5

.0
6.

B,
 o

r i
de

nt
ifi

ed
 in

 th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 D
oc

um
en

ts
 to

 b
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
sc

op
e 

of
 th

e 
W

or
k,

 a
nd

 (2
) w

as
 n

ot
 c

re
at

ed
 b

y 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 o
r b

y 
an

yo
ne

 fo
r w

ho
m

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r i

s r
es

po
ns

ib
le

. N
ot

hi
ng

 in
 th

is 
Pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

5.
06

.I 
ob

lig
at

es
 O

w
ne

r t
o 

in
de

m
ni

fy
 a

ny
 in

di
vi

du
al

 o
r e

nt
ity

 fr
om

 a
nd

 a
ga

in
st

 th
e 

co
ns

eq
ue

nc
es

 o
f 

 

J. 
To

 th
e 

fu
lle

st
 e

xt
en

t p
er

m
itt

ed
 b

y 
La

w
s a

nd
 R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
, C

on
tr

ac
to

r s
ha

ll 
in

de
m

ni
fy

 a
nd

 h
ol

d 
ha

rm
le

ss
 O

w
ne

r 
an

d 
En

gi
ne

er
, a

nd
 t

he
 o

ffi
ce

rs
, d

ire
ct

or
s,

 m
em

be
rs

, p
ar

tn
er

s,
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s, 
ag

en
ts

, c
on

su
lta

nt
s,

 a
nd

 su
bc

on
tr

ac
to

rs
 o

f e
ac

h 
an

d 
an

y 
of

 th
em

, f
ro

m
 a

nd
 a

ga
in

st
 a

ll 
cl

ai
m

s, 
co

st
s,

 lo
ss

es
, a

nd
 d

am
ag

es
 (

in
cl

ud
in

g 
bu

t 
no

t 
lim

ite
d 

to
 a

ll 
fe

es
 a

nd
 c

ha
rg

es
 o

f e
ng

in
ee

rs
, 

ar
ch

ite
ct

s,
 a

tt
or

ne
ys

, a
nd

 o
th

er
 p

ro
fe

ss
io

na
ls 

an
d 

al
l c

ou
rt

 o
r 

ar
bi

tr
at

io
n 

or
 o

th
er

 d
is

pu
te

 
re

so
lu

tio
n 

co
st

s)
 a

ris
in

g 
ou

t 
of

 o
r 

re
la

tin
g 

to
 t

he
 f

ai
lu

re
 t

o 
co

nt
ro

l, 
co

nt
ai

n,
 o

r 
re

m
ov

e 
a 

Co
ns

tit
ue

nt
 o

f C
on

ce
rn

 b
ro

ug
ht

 to
 th

e 
Si

te
 b

y 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 o
r b

y 
an

yo
ne

 fo
r w

ho
m

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r 

is
 re

sp
on

sib
le

, o
r t

o 
a 

Ha
za

rd
ou

s E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l C
on

di
tio

n 
cr

ea
te

d 
by

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r o

r b
y 

an
yo

ne
 

fo
r w

ho
m

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r i

s 
re

sp
on

si
bl

e.
 N

ot
hi

ng
 in

 th
is 

Pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
5.

06
.J 

ob
lig

at
es

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r t

o 

en
ce

. 

K.
 

Th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 o

f P
ar

ag
ra

ph
s 

5.
03

, 5
.0

4,
 a

nd
 5

.0
5 

do
 n

ot
 a

pp
ly

 to
 th

e 
pr

es
en

ce
 o

f C
on

st
itu

en
ts

 
of

 C
on

ce
rn

 o
r t

o 
a 

Ha
za

rd
ou

s 
En

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l C

on
di

tio
n 

un
co

ve
re

d 
or

 re
ve

al
ed

 a
t t

he
 S

ite
. 

AR
TI

CL
E 

6
BO

N
D

S 
AN

D 
IN

SU
RA

N
CE

 

6.
01

 
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
, P

ay
m

en
t, 

an
d 

O
th

er
 B

on
ds

 

A.
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 sh

al
l f

ur
ni

sh
 a

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 b
on

d 
an

d 
a 

pa
ym

en
t b

on
d,

 e
ac

h 
in

 a
n 

am
ou

nt
 a

t l
ea

st
 

eq
ua

l 
to

 t
he

 C
on

tr
ac

t 
Pr

ic
e,

 a
s 

se
cu

rit
y 

fo
r 

th
e 

fa
ith

fu
l 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 a
nd

 p
ay

m
en

t 
of

 
 in

 e
ffe

ct
 u

nt
il 

on
e 

ye
ar

 
af

te
r t

he
 d

at
e 

w
he

n 
fin

al
 p

ay
m

en
t b

ec
om

es
 d

ue
 o

r u
nt

il 
co

m
pl

et
io

n 
of

 th
e 

co
rr

ec
tio

n 
pe

rio
d 

sp
ec

ifi
ed

 in
 P

ar
ag

ra
ph

 1
5.

08
, w

hi
ch

ev
er

 is
 la

te
r, 

ex
ce

pt
 a

s 
pr

ov
id

ed
 o

th
er

w
is

e 
by

 L
aw

s 
or

 
Re

gu
la

tio
ns

, t
he

 t
er

m
s 

of
 a

 p
re

sc
rib

ed
 b

on
d 

fo
rm

, t
he

 S
up

pl
em

en
ta

ry
 C

on
di

tio
ns

, o
r 

ot
he

r 
pr

ov
isi

on
s o

f t
he

 C
on

tr
ac

t. 

B.
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 s

ha
ll 

al
so

 fu
rn

ish
 s

uc
h 

ot
he

r b
on

ds
 (i

f a
ny

) a
s 

ar
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

by
 th

e 
Su

pp
le

m
en

ta
ry

 
Co

nd
iti

on
s o

r o
th

er
 p

ro
vi

si
on

s o
f t

he
 C

on
tr

ac
t. 

C.
 

Al
l b

on
ds

 m
us

t b
e 

in
 th

e 
fo

rm
 in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 th
e 

Bi
dd

in
g 

Do
cu

m
en

ts
 o

r 
ot

he
rw

ise
 s

pe
ci

fie
d 

by
 

O
w

ne
r 

pr
io

r 
to

 e
xe

cu
tio

n 
of

 t
he

 C
on

tr
ac

t, 
ex

ce
pt

 a
s 

pr
ov

id
ed

 o
th

er
w

is
e 

by
 L

aw
s 

or
 



 

EJ
CD

C®
 C

-7
00

, S
ta

nd
ar

d 
G

en
er

al
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 
Co

py
rig

ht
©

 2
01

8 
N

at
io

na
l S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rs
, A

m
er

ic
an

 C
ou

nc
il 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Co

m
pa

ni
es

, 
an

d 
Am

er
ic

an
 S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
s.

 A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
 

Pa
ge

 2
2 

of
 7

0 

Ce
rt

ifi
ca

te
s 

of
 A

ut
ho

rit
y 

as
 A

cc
ep

ta
bl

e 
Su

re
tie

s 
on

 F
ed

er
al

 B
on

ds
 a

nd
 a

s 
Ac

ce
pt

ab
le

 

su
pp

le
m

en
te

d)
 b

y 
th

e 
Bu

re
au

 o
f t

he
 F

isc
al

 S
er

vi
ce

, U
.S

. D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f t
he

 T
re

as
ur

y.
 A

 b
on

d 
si

gn
ed

 b
y 

an
 a

ge
nt

 o
r 

at
to

rn
ey

-in
-fa

ct
 m

us
t 

be
 a

cc
om

pa
ni

ed
 b

y 
a 

ce
rt

ifi
ed

 c
op

y 
of

 t
ha

t 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
on

 th
e 

da
te

 th
e 

ag
en

t o
r a

tt
or

ne
y-

in
-fa

ct
 s

ig
ne

d 
th

e 
ac

co
m

pa
ny

in
g 

bo
nd

. 

D
. 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 s

ha
ll 

ob
ta

in
 th

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
bo

nd
s 

fr
om

 s
ur

et
y 

co
m

pa
ni

es
 th

at
 a

re
 d

ul
y 

lic
en

se
d 

or
 

au
th

or
iz

ed
, i

n 
th

e 
st

at
e 

or
 ju

ris
di

ct
io

n 
in

 w
hi

ch
 th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
is 

lo
ca

te
d,

 to
 is

su
e 

bo
nd

s 
in

 t
he

 
re

qu
ire

d 
am

ou
nt

s.
 

E.
 

If 
th

e 
su

re
ty

 o
n 

a 
bo

nd
 fu

rn
is

he
d 

by
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r i
s d

ec
la

re
d 

ba
nk

ru
pt

 o
r b

ec
om

es
 in

so
lv

en
t, 

or
 

th
e 

su
re

ty
 c

ea
se

s 
to

 m
ee

t 
th

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 a

bo
ve

, t
he

n 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 s
ha

ll 
pr

om
pt

ly
 n

ot
ify

 
O

w
ne

r 
an

d 
En

gi
ne

er
 in

 w
rit

in
g 

an
d 

sh
al

l, 
w

ith
in

 2
0 

da
ys

 a
ft

er
 t

he
 e

ve
nt

 g
iv

in
g 

ris
e 

to
 s

uc
h 

no
tif

ic
at

io
n,

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
no

th
er

 b
on

d 
an

d 
su

re
ty

, b
ot

h 
of

 w
hi

ch
 m

us
t c

om
pl

y 
w

ith
 th

e 
bo

nd
 a

nd
 

su
re

ty
 re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 a

bo
ve

. 

F.
 

If 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 h
as

 fa
ile

d 
to

 o
bt

ai
n 

a 
re

qu
ire

d 
bo

nd
, O

w
ne

r m
ay

 e
xc

lu
de

 t
he

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r f

ro
m

 
 1

6.
 

G
. 

U
po

n 
re

qu
es

t t
o 

O
w

ne
r f

ro
m

 a
ny

 S
ub

co
nt

ra
ct

or
, S

up
pl

ie
r, 

or
 o

th
er

 p
er

so
n 

or
 e

nt
ity

 c
la

im
in

g 
to

 h
av

e 
fu

rn
is

he
d 

la
bo

r, 
se

rv
ic

es
, m

at
er

ia
ls,

 o
r 

eq
ui

pm
en

t 
us

ed
 in

 t
he

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 o
f 

th
e 

W
or

k,
 O

w
ne

r s
ha

ll 
pr

ov
id

e 
a 

co
py

 o
f t

he
 p

ay
m

en
t b

on
d 

to
 su

ch
 p

er
so

n 
or

 e
nt

ity
. 

H
. 

U
po

n 
re

qu
es

t 
to

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r 

fr
om

 a
ny

 S
ub

co
nt

ra
ct

or
, 

Su
pp

lie
r, 

or
 o

th
er

 p
er

so
n 

or
 e

nt
ity

 
cl

ai
m

in
g 

to
 h

av
e 

fu
rn

ish
ed

 la
bo

r, 
se

rv
ic

es
, m

at
er

ia
ls,

 o
r e

qu
ip

m
en

t u
se

d 
in

 th
e 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 
of

 th
e 

W
or

k,
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r s
ha

ll 
pr

ov
id

e 
a 

co
py

 o
f t

he
 p

ay
m

en
t b

on
d 

to
 s

uc
h 

pe
rs

on
 o

r e
nt

ity
. 

6.
02

 
In

su
ra

nc
e

G
en

er
al

 P
ro

vi
sio

ns
 

A.
 

O
w

ne
r a

nd
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r 
sh

al
l o

bt
ai

n 
an

d 
m

ai
nt

ai
n 

in
su

ra
nc

e 
as

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
in

 th
is

 a
rt

ic
le

 a
nd

 in
 

th
e 

Su
pp

le
m

en
ta

ry
 C

on
di

tio
ns

. 

B.
 

Al
l 

in
su

ra
nc

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
by

 t
he

 C
on

tr
ac

t 
to

 b
e 

pu
rc

ha
se

d 
an

d 
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
by

 O
w

ne
r 

or
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 s

ha
ll 

be
 o

bt
ai

ne
d 

fr
om

 in
su

ra
nc

e 
co

m
pa

ni
es

 th
at

 a
re

 d
ul

y 
lic

en
se

d 
or

 a
ut

ho
riz

ed
 

in
 t

he
 s

ta
te

 o
r 

ju
ris

di
ct

io
n 

in
 w

hi
ch

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

is 
lo

ca
te

d 
to

 is
su

e 
in

su
ra

nc
e 

po
lic

ie
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

lim
its

 a
nd

 c
ov

er
ag

es
. U

nl
es

s 
a 

di
ffe

re
nt

 s
ta

nd
ar

d 
is 

in
di

ca
te

d 
in

 th
e 

Su
pp

le
m

en
ta

ry
 

Co
nd

iti
on

s,
 a

ll 
co

m
pa

ni
es

 th
at

 p
ro

vi
de

 in
su

ra
nc

e 
po

lic
ie

s 
re

qu
ire

d 
un

de
r 

th
is 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 s
ha

ll 
ha

ve
 a

n 
A.

M
. B

es
t r

at
in

g 
of

 A
-V

II 
or

 b
et

te
r. 

C.
 

Al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

fo
rm

s 
of

 i
ns

ur
an

ce
 c

ov
er

ag
e,

 i
nc

lu
di

ng
 b

ut
 n

ot
 l

im
ite

d 
to

 s
el

f-
in

su
ra

nc
e 

an
d 

th
e 

in
su

ra
nc

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f t
hi

s 
Co

nt
ra

ct
, u

nl
es

s 
ex

pr
es

sl
y 

al
lo

w
ed

 in
 th

e 
Su

pp
le

m
en

ta
ry

 
Co

nd
iti

on
s.

 

D
. 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 s

ha
ll 

de
liv

er
 t

o 
O

w
ne

r, 
w

ith
 c

op
ie

s 
to

 e
ac

h 
ad

di
tio

na
l i

ns
ur

ed
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

in
 t

he
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

, 
ce

rt
ifi

ca
te

s 
of

 i
ns

ur
an

ce
 a

nd
 e

nd
or

se
m

en
ts

 e
st

ab
lis

hi
ng

 t
ha

t 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 h
as

 
ob

ta
in

ed
 a

nd
 i

s 
m

ai
nt

ai
ni

ng
 t

he
 p

ol
ic

ie
s 

an
d 

co
ve

ra
ge

s 
re

qu
ire

d 
by

 t
he

 C
on

tr
ac

t. 
U

po
n 

re
qu

es
t b

y 
O

w
ne

r o
r a

ny
 o

th
er

 in
su

re
d,

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r s

ha
ll 

al
so

 fu
rn

is
h 

ot
he

r e
vi

de
nc

e 
of

 s
uc

h 
re

qu
ire

d 
in

su
ra

nc
e,

 i
nc

lu
di

ng
 b

ut
 n

ot
 l

im
ite

d 
to

 c
op

ie
s 

of
 p

ol
ic

ie
s,

 d
oc

um
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 s
el

f-
in

su
re

d 
re

te
nt

io
ns

 (i
f a

llo
w

ed
) a

nd
 d

ed
uc

tib
le

s,
 fu

ll 
di

sc
lo

su
re

 o
f a

ll 
re

le
va

nt
 

ex
cl

us
io

ns
, 

an
d 

ev
id

en
ce

 o
f 

in
su

ra
nc

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 b
e 

pu
rc

ha
se

d 
an

d 
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
by

 

 

EJ
CD

C®
 C

-7
00

, S
ta

nd
ar

d 
G

en
er

al
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 
Co

py
rig

ht
©

 2
01

8 
N

at
io

na
l S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rs
, A

m
er

ic
an

 C
ou

nc
il 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Co

m
pa

ni
es

, 
an

d 
Am

er
ic

an
 S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
s.

 A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
 

Pa
ge

 2
3 

of
 7

0 

Su
bc

on
tr

ac
to

rs
 o

r S
up

pl
ie

rs
. I

n 
an

y d
oc

um
en

ta
tio

n 
fu

rn
is

he
d 

un
de

r t
hi

s p
ro

vi
sio

n,
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r, 
Su

bc
on

tr
ac

to
rs

, a
nd

 S
up

pl
ie

rs
 m

ay
 b

lo
ck

 o
ut

 (r
ed

ac
t)

 (1
) a

ny
 c

on
fid

en
tia

l p
re

m
iu

m
 o

r p
ric

in
g 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

an
d 

(2
) 

an
y 

w
or

di
ng

 s
pe

ci
fic

 t
o 

a 
pr

oj
ec

t 
or

 j
ur

is
di

ct
io

n 
ot

he
r 

th
an

 t
ho

se
 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 to

 th
is 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 

E.
 

O
w

ne
r 

sh
al

l d
el

iv
er

 t
o 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
, w

ith
 c

op
ie

s 
to

 e
ac

h 
ad

di
tio

na
l i

ns
ur

ed
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

in
 t

he
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

, c
er

tif
ic

at
es

 o
f i

ns
ur

an
ce

 a
nd

 e
nd

or
se

m
en

ts
 e

st
ab

lis
hi

ng
 t

ha
t 

O
w

ne
r 

ha
s 

ob
ta

in
ed

 
an

d 
is 

m
ai

nt
ai

ni
ng

 th
e 

po
lic

ie
s a

nd
 co

ve
ra

ge
s r

eq
ui

re
d 

of
 O

w
ne

r b
y 

th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 (i
f a

ny
). 

U
po

n 
re

qu
es

t b
y 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 o

r a
ny

 o
th

er
 in

su
re

d,
 O

w
ne

r s
ha

ll 
al

so
 p

ro
vi

de
 o

th
er

 e
vi

de
nc

e 
of

 s
uc

h 
re

qu
ire

d 
in

su
ra

nc
e 

(if
 a

ny
), 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
bu

t n
ot

 li
m

ite
d 

to
 c

op
ie

s 
of

 p
ol

ic
ie

s,
 d

oc
um

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 s

el
f-i

ns
ur

ed
 r

et
en

tio
ns

 (
if 

al
lo

w
ed

) 
an

d 
de

du
ct

ib
le

s,
 a

nd
 f

ul
l 

di
sc

lo
su

re
 o

f 
al

l 
re

le
va

nt
 e

xc
lu

sio
ns

. I
n 

an
y 

do
cu

m
en

ta
tio

n 
fu

rn
is

he
d 

un
de

r t
hi

s 
pr

ov
is

io
n,

 O
w

ne
r m

ay
 b

lo
ck

 
ou

t (
re

da
ct

) (
1)

 a
ny

 c
on

fid
en

tia
l p

re
m

iu
m

 o
r p

ric
in

g 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
an

d 
(2

) a
ny

 w
or

di
ng

 s
pe

ci
fic

 
to

 a
 p

ro
je

ct
 o

r j
ur

isd
ic

tio
n 

ot
he

r t
ha

n 
th

os
e 

re
le

va
nt

 to
 th

is
 C

on
tr

ac
t. 

F.
 

Fa
ilu

re
 o

f O
w

ne
r 

or
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r 
to

 d
em

an
d 

su
ch

 c
er

tif
ic

at
es

 o
r 

ot
he

r 
ev

id
en

ce
 o

f t
he

 o
th

er
 

em
en

ts
, o

r f
ai

lu
re

 o
f O

w
ne

r o
r C

on
tr

ac
to

r 
to

 id
en

tif
y 

a 
de

fic
ie

nc
y 

in
 c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
fr

om
 th

e 
ev

id
en

ce
 p

ro
vi

de
d,

 w
ill

 n
ot

 b
e 

co
ns

tr
ue

d 
as

 a
 

 

G
. 

In
 a

dd
iti

on
 t

o 
th

e 
lia

bi
lit

y 
in

su
ra

nc
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 b

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 b

y 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

, t
he

 O
w

ne
r, 

at
 

po
lic

ie
s,

 if
 a

ny
, o

pe
ra

te
 s

ep
ar

at
el

y 
an

d 
in

de
pe

nd
en

tly
 fr

om
 p

ol
ic

ie
s 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 b

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 

by
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r, 
an

 

H
. 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 sh

al
l r

eq
ui

re
: 

1.
 

lia
bi

lit
y,

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 in

su
ra

nc
e 

th
at

 is
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 fo

r t
he

ir 
pa

rt
ic

ip
at

io
n 

in
 th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t, 
an

d 
to

 n
am

e 
as

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 in

su
re

ds
 O

w
ne

r a
nd

 E
ng

in
ee

r (
an

d 
an

y 
ot

he
r i

nd
iv

id
ua

ls
 o

r e
nt

iti
es

 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

in
 th

e 
Su

pp
le

m
en

ta
ry

 C
on

di
tio

ns
 a

s a
dd

iti
on

al
 in

su
re

ds
 o

n 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 

2.
 

Su
pp

lie
rs

 to
 p

ur
ch

as
e 

an
d 

m
ai

nt
ai

n 
in

su
ra

nc
e 

th
at

 is
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 fo

r t
he

ir 
pa

rt
ic

ip
at

io
n 

in
 

th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t. 

I. 
If 

ei
th

er
 p

ar
ty

 d
oe

s 
no

t 
pu

rc
ha

se
 o

r 
m

ai
nt

ai
n 

th
e 

in
su

ra
nc

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
of

 s
uc

h 
pa

rt
y 

by
 t

he
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

, s
uc

h 
pa

rt
y 

sh
al

l n
ot

ify
 th

e 
ot

he
r p

ar
ty

 in
 w

rit
in

g 
of

 su
ch

 fa
ilu

re
 to

 p
ur

ch
as

e 
pr

io
r t

o 
th

e 
st

ar
t 

of
 t

he
 W

or
k,

 o
r 

of
 s

uc
h 

fa
ilu

re
 t

o 
m

ai
nt

ai
n 

pr
io

r 
to

 a
ny

 c
ha

ng
e 

in
 t

he
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

co
ve

ra
ge

. 

J. 
If 

Co
nt

ra
ct

o
to

 e
nt

er
 o

r r
em

ai
n 

at
 th

e 
Si

te
 w

ill
 e

nd
 im

m
ed

ia
te

ly
, a

nd
 O

w
ne

r m
ay

 im
po

se
 a

n 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 
se

t-
of

f 
ag

ai
ns

t 
pa

ym
en

t 
fo

r 
an

y 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 c
os

ts
 (

in
cl

ud
in

g 
bu

t 
no

t 
lim

ite
d 

to
 t

he
 c

os
t 

of
 

Ar
tic

le
 1

6.
 

K.
 

W
ith

ou
t 

pr
ej

ud
ic

e 
to

 a
ny

 o
th

er
 r

ig
ht

 o
r 

re
m

ed
y,

 i
f 

a 
pa

rt
y 

ha
s 

fa
ile

d 
to

 o
bt

ai
n 

re
qu

ire
d 

in
su

ra
nc

e,
 t

he
 o

th
er

 p
ar

ty
 m

ay
 e

le
ct

 (
bu

t 
is 

in
 n

o 
w

ay
 o

bl
ig

at
ed

) 
to

 o
bt

ai
n 

eq
ui

va
le

nt
 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 su

ch
 c

ov
er

ag
e,

 a
nd

 th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 P
ric

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
ad

ju
st

ed
 a

cc
or

di
ng

ly
. 



 

EJ
CD

C®
 C

-7
00

, S
ta

nd
ar

d 
G

en
er

al
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 
Co

py
rig

ht
©

 2
01

8 
N

at
io

na
l S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rs
, A

m
er

ic
an

 C
ou

nc
il 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Co

m
pa

ni
es

, 
an

d 
Am

er
ic

an
 S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
s.

 A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
 

Pa
ge

 2
4 

of
 7

0 

L.
 

O
w

ne
r 

do
es

 n
ot

 r
ep

re
se

nt
 t

ha
t 

in
su

ra
nc

e 
co

ve
ra

ge
 a

nd
 li

m
its

 e
st

ab
lis

he
d 

in
 t

hi
s 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 

re
sp

on
si

bl
e 

fo
r 

de
te

rm
in

in
g 

w
he

th
er

 s
uc

h 
co

ve
ra

ge
 a

nd
 li

m
its

 a
re

 a
de

qu
at

e 
to

 p
ro

te
ct

 it
s 

in
te

re
st

s, 
an

d 
fo

r o
bt

ai
ni

ng
 a

nd
 m

ai
nt

ai
ni

ng
 a

ny
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 in
su

ra
nc

e 
th

at
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r d
ee

m
s 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y.
 

M
. 

Th
e 

in
su

ra
nc

e 
an

d 
in

su
ra

nc
e 

lim
its

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
he

re
in

 w
ill

 n
ot

 b
e 

de
em

ed
 a

s 
a 

lim
ita

tio
n 

on
 

to
 O

w
ne

r a
nd

 o
th

er
 in

di
vi

du
al

s 
an

d 
en

tit
ie

s 
in

 th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 o
r o

th
er

w
ise

. 

N
. 

Al
l t

he
 p

ol
ic

ie
s o

f i
ns

ur
an

ce
 re

qu
ire

d 
to

 b
e 

pu
rc

ha
se

d 
an

d 
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
un

de
r t

hi
s C

on
tr

ac
t w

ill
 

co
nt

ai
n 

a 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

or
 e

nd
or

se
m

en
t 

th
at

 t
he

 c
ov

er
ag

e 
af

fo
rd

ed
 w

ill
 n

ot
 b

e 
ca

nc
el

ed
, 

or
 

re
ne

w
al

 re
fu

se
d,

 u
nt

il 
at

 le
as

t 1
0 

da
ys

 p
rio

r w
rit

te
n 

no
tic

e 
ha

s 
be

en
 g

iv
en

 to
 th

e 
pu

rc
ha

sin
g 

po
lic

yh
ol

de
r. 

W
ith

in
 t

hr
ee

 d
ay

s 
of

 r
ec

ei
pt

 o
f 

an
y 

su
ch

 w
rit

te
n 

no
tic

e,
 t

he
 p

ur
ch

as
in

g 
po

lic
yh

ol
de

r s
ha

ll 
pr

ov
id

e 
a 

co
py

 o
f t

he
 n

ot
ic

e 
to

 e
ac

h 
ot

he
r i

ns
ur

ed
 a

nd
 E

ng
in

ee
r. 

6.
03

 
 

A.
 

Re
qu

ire
d 

In
su

ra
nc

e
Co

m
m

er
ci

al
 G

en
er

al
 L

ia
bi

lit
y,

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 in

su
ra

nc
e 

pu
rs

ua
nt

 to
 th

e 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f 
th

e 
Su

pp
le

m
en

ta
ry

 C
on

di
tio

ns
. 

B.
 

G
en

er
al

 P
ro

vi
si

on
s:

 T
he

 p
ol

ic
ie

s o
f i

ns
ur

an
ce

 re
qu

ire
d 

by
 th

is 
Pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

6.
03

 a
s s

up
pl

em
en

te
d 

m
us

t: 

1.
 

in
cl

ud
e 

at
 le

as
t t

he
 sp

ec
ifi

c 
co

ve
ra

ge
s r

eq
ui

re
d;

 

2.
 

be
 w

rit
te

n 
fo

r n
ot

 le
ss

 th
an

 th
e 

lim
its

 p
ro

vi
de

d,
 o

r t
ho

se
 re

qu
ire

d 
by

 La
w

s o
r R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
, 

w
hi

ch
ev

er
 is

 g
re

at
er

; 

3.
 

re
m

ai
n 

in
 e

ffe
ct

 a
t l

ea
st

 u
nt

il 
th

e 
W

or
k 

is
 c

om
pl

et
e 

(a
s 

se
t 

fo
rt

h 
in

 P
ar

ag
ra

ph
 1

5.
06

.D
), 

an
d 

lo
ng

er
 if

 e
xp

re
ss

ly
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

el
se

w
he

re
 in

 t
hi

s 
Co

nt
ra

ct
, a

nd
 a

t 
al

l t
im

es
 t

he
re

af
te

r 
w

he
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 m

ay
 b

e 
co

rr
ec

tin
g,

 re
m

ov
in

g,
 o

r r
ep

la
ci

ng
 d

ef
ec

tiv
e 

W
or

k 
as

 a
 w

ar
ra

nt
y 

or
 c

or
re

ct
io

n 
ob

lig
at

io
n,

 o
r 

ot
he

rw
is

e,
 o

r 
re

tu
rn

in
g 

to
 t

he
 S

ite
 t

o 
co

nd
uc

t 
ot

he
r 

ta
sk

s 
ar

isi
ng

 fr
om

 th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

; 

4.
 

ap
pl

y 
w

ith
 r

es
pe

ct
 t

o 
th

e 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 o

f 
th

e 
W

or
k,

 w
he

th
er

 s
uc

h 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 is

 b
y 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
, a

ny
 S

ub
co

nt
ra

ct
or

 o
r 

Su
pp

lie
r, 

or
 b

y 
an

yo
ne

 d
ire

ct
ly

 o
r 

in
di

re
ct

ly
 e

m
pl

oy
ed

 
by

 a
ny

 o
f t

he
m

 to
 p

er
fo

rm
 a

ny
 o

f t
he

 W
or

k,
 o

r b
y 

an
yo

ne
 fo

r w
ho

se
 a

ct
s a

ny
 o

f t
he

m
 m

ay
 

be
 li

ab
le

; a
nd

 

5.
 

in
cl

ud
e 

al
l n

ec
es

sa
ry

 e
nd

or
se

m
en

ts
 to

 su
pp

or
t t

he
 s

ta
te

d 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
. 

C.
 

Ad
di

tio
na

l 
In

su
re

ds
: 

Th
e 

C

lia
bi

lit
y 

po
lic

ie
s,

 if
 re

qu
ire

d 
by

 th
is

 C
on

tr
ac

t, 
m

us
t: 

1.
 

in
cl

ud
e 

an
d 

lis
t a

s a
dd

iti
on

al
 in

su
re

ds
 O

w
ne

r a
nd

 E
ng

in
ee

r, 
an

d 
an

y 
in

di
vi

du
al

s o
r e

nt
iti

es
 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
as

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 in

su
re

ds
 in

 th
e 

Su
pp

le
m

en
ta

ry
 C

on
di

tio
ns

; 

2.
 

in
cl

ud
e 

co
ve

ra
ge

 f
or

 t
he

 r
es

pe
ct

iv
e 

of
fic

er
s,

 d
ire

ct
or

s,
 m

em
be

rs
, p

ar
tn

er
s,

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s, 

an
d 

co
ns

ul
ta

nt
s o

f a
ll 

su
ch

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 in

su
re

ds
; 

3.
 

af
fo

rd
 p

rim
ar

y 
co

ve
ra

ge
 t

o 
th

es
e 

ad
di

tio
na

l 
in

su
re

ds
 f

or
 a

ll 
cl

ai
m

s 
co

ve
re

d 
th

er
eb

y 
(in

cl
ud

in
g 

as
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

 th
os

e 
ar

is
in

g 
fr

om
 b

ot
h 

on
go

in
g 

an
d 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 o

pe
ra

tio
ns

); 

 

EJ
CD

C®
 C

-7
00

, S
ta

nd
ar

d 
G

en
er

al
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 
Co

py
rig

ht
©

 2
01

8 
N

at
io

na
l S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rs
, A

m
er

ic
an

 C
ou

nc
il 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Co

m
pa

ni
es

, 
an

d 
Am

er
ic

an
 S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
s.

 A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
 

Pa
ge

 2
5 

of
 7

0 

4.
 

no
t s

ee
k 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

fr
om

 in
su

ra
nc

e 
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
by

 th
e 

ad
di

tio
na

l i
ns

ur
ed

; a
nd

 

5.
 

as
 to

 c
om

m
er

ci
al

 g
en

er
al

 li
ab

ili
ty

 in
su

ra
nc

e,
 a

pp
ly

 to
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 in
su

re
ds

 w
ith

 re
sp

ec
t t

o 

op
er

at
io

ns
. 

6.
04

 
 

A.
 

: U
nl

es
s 

ot
he

rw
is

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 in

 th
e 

Su
pp

le
m

en
ta

ry
 C

on
di

tio
ns

, C
on

tr
ac

to
r 

sh
al

l 
ba

si
s, 

in
 

as
 m

ay
 b

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 in

 th
e 

Su
pp

le
m

en
ta

ry
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
r 

re
qu

ire
d 

by
 L

aw
s 

an
d 

Re
gu

la
tio

ns
). 

an
ce

 a
re

 s
et

 f
or

th
 i

n 
th

e 
Su

pp
le

m
en

ta
ry

 C
on

di
tio

ns
. 

B.
 

Pr
op

er
ty

 In
su

ra
nc

e 
fo

r 
Fa

cil
iti

es
 o

f O
w

ne
r 

W
he

re
 W

or
k 

W
ill

 O
cc

ur
: O

w
ne

r 
is

 re
sp

on
si

bl
e 

fo
r 

ob
ta

in
in

g 
an

d 
m

ai
nt

ai
ni

ng
 p

ro
pe

rt
y 

in
su

ra
nc

e 
co

ve
rin

g 
ea

ch
 e

xi
st

in
g 

st
ru

ct
ur

e,
 b

ui
ld

in
g,

 o
r 

fa
ci

lit
y 

in
 w

hi
ch

 a
ny

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
 W

or
k 

w
ill

 o
cc

ur
, o

r t
o 

w
hi

ch
 a

ny
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 W
or

k 
w

ill
 a

tt
ac

h 
or

 b
e 

ad
jo

in
ed

. S
uc

h 
pr

op
er

ty
 in

su
ra

nc
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

w
rit

te
n 

on
 a

 sp
ec

ia
l p

er
ils

 (a
ll-

ris
k)

 fo
rm

, o
n 

a 
re

pl
ac

em
en

t c
os

t b
as

is,
 p

ro
vi

di
ng

 c
ov

er
ag

e 
co

ns
is

te
nt

 w
ith

 th
at

 re
qu

ire
d 

fo
r t

he
 

in
su

ra
nc

e,
 

an
d 

w
ill

 
be

 
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
un

til
 

th
e 

W
or

k 
is

 
co

m
pl

et
e,

 
as

 
se

t 
fo

rt
h 

in
 

Pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
15

.0
6.

D.
 

C.
 

Pr
op

er
ty

 
In

su
ra

nc
e 

fo
r 

Su
bs

ta
nt

ia
lly

 
Co

m
pl

et
e 

Fa
ci

lit
ie

s:
 

Pr
om

pt
ly

 
af

te
r 

Su
bs

ta
nt

ia
l 

Co
m

pl
et

io
n,

 a
nd

 b
ef

or
e 

ac
tu

al
 o

cc
up

an
cy

 o
r u

se
 o

f t
he

 s
ub

st
an

tia
lly

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 W

or
k,

 O
w

ne
r 

w
ill

 o
bt

ai
n 

pr
op

er
ty

 i
ns

ur
an

ce
 f

or
 s

uc
h 

su
bs

ta
nt

ia
lly

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 W

or
k,

 a
nd

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
su

ch
 

pr
op

er
ty

 in
su

ra
nc

e 
at

 le
as

t u
nt

il 
th

e 
W

or
k 

is 
co

m
pl

et
e,

 a
s s

et
 fo

rt
h 

in
 P

ar
ag

ra
ph

 1
5.

06
.D

. S
uc

h 
pr

op
er

ty
 in

su
ra

nc
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

w
rit

te
n 

on
 a

 s
pe

ci
al

 p
er

ils
 (a

ll-
ris

k)
 fo

rm
, o

n 
a 

re
pl

ac
em

en
t 

co
st

 

su
ch

 p
ro

pe
rt

y 
in

su
ra

nc
e.

 

D
. 

Pa
rt

ia
l O

cc
up

an
cy

 o
r U

se
 b

y 
O

w
ne

r: 
If 

O
w

ne
r w

ill
 o

cc
up

y 
or

 u
se

 a
 p

or
tio

n 
or

 p
or

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 

W
or

k 
pr

io
r t

o 
Su

bs
ta

nt
ia

l C
om

pl
et

io
n 

of
 a

ll 
th

e 
W

or
k,

 a
s 

pr
ov

id
ed

 in
 P

ar
ag

ra
ph

 1
5.

04
, t

he
n 

ris
k 

po
lic

y,
 o

r t
hr

ou
gh

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r)

 w
ill

 

en
do

rs
em

en
t 

co
ns

en
tin

g 
to

 th
e 

co
nt

in
ua

tio
n 

of
 c

ov
er

ag
e 

pr
io

r 
to

 c
om

m
en

ci
ng

 s
uc

h 
pa

rt
ia

l 
oc

cu
pa

nc
y 

or
 u

se
. 

E.
 

In
su

ra
nc

e 
of

 O
th

er
 P

ro
pe

rt
y;

 A
dd

iti
on

al
 In

su
ra

nc
e:

 If
 th

e 
ex

pr
es

s 
in

su
ra

nc
e 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 o

f t
he

 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 d

o 
no

t r
eq

ui
re

 o
r a

dd
re

ss
 th

e 
in

su
ra

nc
e 

of
 a

 p
ro

pe
rt

y i
te

m
 o

r i
nt

er
es

t, 
th

en
 th

e 
en

tit
y 

or
 in

di
vi

du
al

 o
w

ni
ng

 su
ch

 p
ro

pe
rt

y 
ite

m
 w

ill
 b

e 
re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
fo

r i
ns

ur
in

g 
it.

 If
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r e
le

ct
s 

in
su

ra
nc

e 
po

lic
ie

s p
ro

vi
de

d 
un

de
r t

hi
s P

ar
ag

ra
ph

 
 

6.
05

 
Pr

op
er

ty
 L

os
se

s;
 S

ub
ro

ga
tio

n 

A.
 

Th
e 

bu
ild

Pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
6.

04
 (

or
 a

n 
in

st
al

la
tio

n 
flo

at
er

 
po

lic
y 

if 
au

th
or

iz
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

Su
pp

le
m

en
ta

ry
 

Co
nd

iti
on

s)
, w

ill
 c

on
ta

in
 p

ro
vi

sio
ns

 to
 th

e 
ef

fe
ct

 t
ha

t i
n 

th
e 

ev
en

t o
f p

ay
m

en
t o

f a
ny

 lo
ss

 o
r 

da
m

ag
e 

th
e 

in
su

re
r w

ill
 h

av
e 

no
 ri

gh
ts

 o
f r

ec
ov

er
y 

ag
ai

ns
t a

ny
 in

su
re

ds
 th

er
eu

nd
er

, o
r a

ga
in

st
 



 

EJ
CD

C®
 C

-7
00

, S
ta

nd
ar

d 
G

en
er

al
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 
Co

py
rig

ht
©

 2
01

8 
N

at
io

na
l S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rs
, A

m
er

ic
an

 C
ou

nc
il 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Co

m
pa

ni
es

, 
an

d 
Am

er
ic

an
 S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
s.

 A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
 

Pa
ge

 2
6 

of
 7

0 

En
gi

ne
er

 o
r i

ts
 co

ns
ul

ta
nt

s,
 o

r t
he

ir 
of

fic
er

s,
 d

ire
ct

or
s,

 m
em

be
rs

, p
ar

tn
er

s,
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s,
 a

ge
nt

s,
 

co
ns

ul
ta

nt
s,

 o
r s

ub
co

nt
ra

ct
or

s.
 

1.
 

O
w

ne
r 

an
d 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 w

ai
ve

 a
ll 

rig
ht

s 
ag

ai
ns

t 
ea

ch
 o

th
er

 a
nd

 t
he

 r
es

pe
ct

iv
e 

of
fic

er
s, 

di
re

ct
or

s,
 m

em
be

rs
, 

pa
rt

ne
rs

, 
em

pl
oy

ee
s,

 a
ge

nt
s,

 c
on

su
lta

nt
s,

 a
nd

 s
ub

co
nt

ra
ct

or
s 

of
 

ea
ch

 a
nd

 a
ny

 o
f t

he
m

, f
or

 a
ll 

lo
ss

es
 a

nd
 d

am
ag

es
 c

au
se

d 
by

, a
ris

in
g 

ou
t o

f, 
or

 r
es

ul
tin

g 
fr

om
 a

ny
 o

f 
th

e 
pe

ril
s,

 r
isk

s,
 o

r 
ca

us
es

 o
f 

lo
ss

 c
ov

er
ed

 b
y 

su
ch

 p
ol

ic
ie

s 
an

d 
an

y 
ot

he
r 

pr
op

er
ty

 in
su

ra
nc

e 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 to
 th

e 
W

or
k;

 a
nd

, i
n 

ad
di

tio
n,

 w
ai

ve
 a

ll 
su

ch
 ri

gh
ts

 a
ga

in
st

 
En

gi
ne

er
, 

its
 c

on
su

lta
nt

s,
 a

ll 
in

di
vi

du
al

s 
or

 e
nt

iti
es

 i
de

nt
ifi

ed
 i

n 
th

e 
Su

pp
le

m
en

ta
ry

 
Co

nd
iti

on
s 

as
 b

ui
ld

er
m

em
be

rs
, p

ar
tn

er
s,

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s,

 a
ge

nt
s, 

co
ns

ul
ta

nt
s,

 a
nd

 s
ub

co
nt

ra
ct

or
s o

f e
ac

h 
an

d 
an

y 
of

 th
em

, u
nd

er
 s

uc
h 

po
lic

ie
s f

or
 lo

ss
es

 a
nd

 d
am

ag
es

 s
o 

ca
us

ed
. 

2.
 

N
on

e 
of

 th
e 

ab
ov

e 
w

ai
ve

rs
 e

xt
en

ds
 to

 th
e 

rig
ht

s 
th

at
 a

ny
 p

ar
ty

 m
ak

in
g 

su
ch

 w
ai

ve
r m

ay
 

ha
ve

 to
 th

e 
pr

oc
ee

ds
 o

f i
ns

ur
an

ce
 h

el
d 

by
 O

w
ne

r o
r C

on
tr

ac
to

r a
s 

tr
us

te
e 

or
 fi

du
ci

ar
y,

 o
r 

ot
he

rw
ise

 p
ay

ab
le

 u
nd

er
 a

ny
 p

ol
ic

y 
so

 is
su

ed
. 

B.
 

An
y 

pr
op

er
ty

 i
ns

ur
an

ce
 p

ol
ic

y 
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
by

 
O

w
ne

r 
co

ve
rin

g 
an

y 
lo

ss
, 

da
m

ag
e,

 o
r 

th
e 

W
or

k 
w

ill
 o

cc
ur

, o
r 

to
 w

hi
ch

 a
ny

 p
ar

t 
of

 t
he

 W
or

k 
w

ill
 a

tt
ac

h 
or

 a
dj

oi
n;

 t
o 

ad
ja

ce
nt

 
st

ru
ct

ur
es

, b
ui

ld
in

gs
, o

r f
ac

ili
tie

s 
of

 O
w

ne
r; 

or
 to

 p
ar

t o
r a

ll 
of

 th
e 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 o

r s
ub

st
an

tia
lly

 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 W
or

k,
 d

ur
in

g 
pa

rt
ia

l 
oc

cu
pa

nc
y 

or
 u

se
 p

ur
su

an
t 

to
 P

ar
ag

ra
ph

 1
5.

04
, 

af
te

r 
Su

bs
ta

nt
ia

l 
Co

m
pl

et
io

n 
pu

rs
ua

nt
 t

o 
Pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

15
.0

3,
 o

r 
af

te
r 

fin
al

 p
ay

m
en

t 
pu

rs
ua

nt
 t

o 
Pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

15
.0

6,
 w

ill
 c

on
ta

in
 p

ro
vi

si
on

s t
o 

th
e 

ef
fe

ct
 th

at
 in

 th
e 

ev
en

t o
f p

ay
m

en
t o

f a
ny

 lo
ss

 
or

 d
am

ag
e 

th
e 

in
su

re
r 

w
ill

 h
av

e 
no

 r
ig

ht
s 

of
 r

ec
ov

er
y 

ag
ai

ns
t 

an
y 

in
su

re
ds

 t
he

re
un

de
r, 

or
 

ag
ai

ns
t C

on
tr

ac
to

r, 
Su

bc
on

tr
ac

to
rs

, o
r E

ng
in

ee
r, 

or
 th

e 
of

fic
er

s,
 d

ire
ct

or
s,

 m
em

be
rs

, p
ar

tn
er

s,
 

em
pl

oy
ee

s,
 a

ge
nt

s,
 c

on
su

lta
nt

s,
 o

r 
su

bc
on

tr
ac

to
rs

 o
f 

ea
ch

 a
nd

 a
ny

 o
f 

th
em

, a
nd

 t
ha

t 
th

e 

pr
io

r t
o 

th
e 

lo
ss

, d
am

ag
e,

 o
r c

on
se

qu
en

tia
l l

os
s.

 

1.
 

O
w

ne
r 

w
ai

ve
s 

al
l 

rig
ht

s 
ag

ai
ns

t 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

, 
Su

bc
on

tr
ac

to
rs

, 
an

d 
En

gi
ne

er
, 

an
d 

th
e 

of
fic

er
s,

 
di

re
ct

or
s,

 
m

em
be

rs
, 

pa
rt

ne
rs

, 
em

pl
oy

ee
s, 

ag
en

ts
, 

co
ns

ul
ta

nt
s 

an
d 

su
bc

on
tr

ac
to

rs
 o

f e
ac

h 
an

d 
an

y 
of

 th
em

, f
or

 a
ll 

lo
ss

es
 a

nd
 d

am
ag

es
 ca

us
ed

 b
y,

 a
ris

in
g 

ou
t 

of
, o

r 
re

su
lti

ng
 f

ro
m

 f
ire

 o
r 

an
y 

of
 t

he
 p

er
ils

, r
isk

s, 
or

 c
au

se
s 

of
 lo

ss
 c

ov
er

ed
 b

y 
su

ch
 

po
lic

ie
s.

 

C.
 

Th
e 

w
ai

ve
rs

 in
 th

is 
Pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

6.
05

 in
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

w
ai

ve
r o

f r
ig

ht
s 

du
e 

to
 b

us
in

es
s 

in
te

rr
up

tio
n,

 
lo

ss
 o

f u
se

, o
r o

th
er

 c
on

se
qu

en
tia

l l
os

s 
ex

te
nd

in
g 

be
yo

nd
 d

ire
ct

 p
hy

sic
al

 lo
ss

 o
r 

da
m

ag
e 

to
 

pe
rt

y 
or

 th
e 

W
or

k 
ca

us
ed

 b
y,

 a
ris

in
g 

ou
t o

f, 
or

 re
su

lti
ng

 fr
om

 fi
re

 o
r o

th
er

 in
su

re
d 

pe
ril

, r
isk

, o
r c

au
se

 o
f l

os
s.

 

D
. 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 s

ha
ll 

be
 r

es
po

ns
ib

le
 f

or
 a

ss
ur

in
g 

th
at

 e
ac

h 
Su

bc
on

tr
ac

t 
co

nt
ai

ns
 p

ro
vi

si
on

s 
w

he
re

by
 t

he
 S

ub
co

nt
ra

ct
or

 w
ai

ve
s 

al
l r

ig
ht

s 
ag

ai
ns

t 
O

w
ne

r, 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

, 
al

l 
in

di
vi

du
al

s 
or

 
en

tit
ie

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

in
 t

he
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
ry

 C
on

di
tio

ns
 a

s 
in

su
re

ds
, 

th
e 

En
gi

ne
er

 a
nd

 i
ts

 
co

ns
ul

ta
nt

s,
 a

nd
 th

e 
of

fic
er

s,
 d

ire
ct

or
s,

 m
em

be
rs

, p
ar

tn
er

s,
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s,
 a

ge
nt

s,
 c

on
su

lta
nt

s,
 

an
d 

su
bc

on
tr

ac
to

rs
 o

f e
ac

h 
an

d 
an

y 
of

 th
em

, f
or

 a
ll 

lo
ss

es
 a

nd
 d

am
ag

es
 ca

us
ed

 b
y,

 a
ris

in
g 

ou
t 

ris
k 

in
su

ra
nc

e,
 in

st
al

la
tio

n 
flo

at
er

, a
nd

 a
ny

 o
th

er
 p

ro
pe

rt
y 

in
su

ra
nc

e 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 to
 th

e 
W

or
k.

 

 

EJ
CD

C®
 C

-7
00

, S
ta

nd
ar

d 
G

en
er

al
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 
Co

py
rig

ht
©

 2
01

8 
N

at
io

na
l S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rs
, A

m
er

ic
an

 C
ou

nc
il 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Co

m
pa

ni
es

, 
an

d 
Am

er
ic

an
 S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
s.

 A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
 

Pa
ge

 2
7 

of
 7

0 

6.
06

 
Re

ce
ip

t a
nd

 A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

of
 P

ro
pe

rt
y 

In
su

ra
nc

e 
Pr

oc
ee

ds
 

A.
 

Pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
6.

04
 w

ill
 b

e 
ad

ju
st

ed
 a

nd
 se

tt
le

d 
w

ith
 th

e 
na

m
ed

 in
su

re
d 

th
at

 p
ur

ch
as

ed
 th

e 
po

lic
y.

 
Su

ch
 n

am
ed

 in
su

re
d 

sh
al

l a
ct

 a
s f

id
uc

ia
ry

 fo
r t

he
 o

th
er

 in
su

re
ds

, a
nd

 g
iv

e 
no

tic
e 

to
 su

ch
 o

th
er

 
in

su
re

ds
 th

at
 a

dj
us

tm
en

t a
nd

 se
tt

le
m

en
t o

f a
 cl

ai
m

 is
 in

 p
ro

gr
es

s.
 A

ny
 o

th
er

 in
su

re
d 

m
ay

 st
at

e 
its

 p
os

iti
on

 r
eg

ar
di

ng
 a

 c
la

im
 fo

r 
in

su
re

d 
lo

ss
 in

 w
rit

in
g 

w
ith

in
 1

5 
da

ys
 a

ft
er

 n
ot

ic
e 

of
 s

uc
h 

cl
ai

m
. 

B.
 

Pr
oc

ee
ds

 fo
r s

uc
h 

in
su

re
d 

lo
ss

es
 m

ay
 b

e 
m

ad
e 

pa
ya

bl
e 

by
 th

e 
in

su
re

r e
ith

er
 jo

in
tly

 to
 m

ul
tip

le
 

in
su

re
ds

, o
r t

o 
th

e 
na

m
ed

 in
su

re
d 

th
at

 p
ur

ch
as

ed
 th

e 
po

lic
y 

in
 it

s 
ow

n 
rig

ht
 a

nd
 a

s 
fid

uc
ia

ry
 

fo
r o

th
er

 in
su

re
ds

, s
ub

je
ct

 to
 th

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f a
ny

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 m

or
tg

ag
e 

cl
au

se
. A

 n
am

ed
 

re
qu

ire
d 

by
 P

ar
ag

ra
ph

 6
.0

4 
sh

al
l 

m
ai

nt
ai

n 
su

ch
 p

ro
ce

ed
s 

in
 a

 s
eg

re
ga

te
d 

ac
co

un
t, 

an
d 

di
st

rib
ut

e 
su

ch
 p

ro
ce

ed
s 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 s

uc
h 

ag
re

em
en

t a
s 

th
e 

pa
rt

ie
s 

in
 in

te
re

st
 m

ay
 

re
ac

h,
 o

r 
as

 o
th

er
w

ise
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

un
de

r 
th

e 
di

sp
ut

e 
re

so
lu

tio
n 

pr
ov

isi
on

s 
of

 t
hi

s 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 o

r 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 L
aw

s 
an

d 
Re

gu
la

tio
ns

. 

C.
 

If 
no

 o
th

er
 s

pe
ci

al
 a

gr
ee

m
en

t 
is 

re
ac

he
d,

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r 

sh
al

l 
re

pa
ir 

or
 r

ep
la

ce
 t

he
 d

am
ag

ed
 

W
or

k,
 u

sin
g 

al
lo

ca
te

d 
in

su
ra

nc
e 

pr
oc

ee
ds

. 

AR
TI

CL
E 

7
 

7.
01

 
 

A.
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 s

ha
ll 

be
 s

ol
el

y 
re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
fo

r 
th

e 
m

ea
ns

, m
et

ho
ds

, t
ec

hn
iq

ue
s,

 s
eq

ue
nc

es
, a

nd
 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 o

f c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n.
 

B.
 

If 
th

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 D

oc
um

en
ts

 n
ot

e,
 o

r C
on

tr
ac

to
r d

et
er

m
in

es
, t

ha
t p

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l e

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
or

 

m
ea

ns
, m

et
ho

ds
, t

ec
hn

iq
ue

s,
 s

eq
ue

nc
es

, a
nd

 p
ro

ce
du

re
s,

 o
r f

or
 S

ite
 s

af
et

y,
 th

en
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r 
sh

al
l 

ca
us

e 
su

ch
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

to
 b

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 b

y 
a 

pr
op

er
ly

 l
ic

en
se

d 
de

si
gn

 p
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l, 
at

 
-d

el
eg

at
ed

 p
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l d
es

ig
n 

se
rv

ic
es

 
un

de
r 

th
is

 C
on

tr
ac

t, 
an

d 
ne

ith
er

 O
w

ne
r 

no
r 

En
gi

ne
er

 h
as

 a
ny

 r
es

po
ns

ib
ili

ty
 w

ith
 r

es
pe

ct
 t

o 

of
 th

e 
de

si
gn

 p
ro

fe
ss

io
na

ls 
re

ta
in

ed
 o

r e
m

pl
oy

ed
 b

y 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

, (
3)

 th
e 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 o
f s

uc
h 

se
rv

ic
es

, o
r (

4)
 a

ny
 e

rr
or

s,
 o

m
iss

io
ns

, o
r d

ef
ec

ts
 in

 su
ch

 se
rv

ic
es

. 

7.
02

 
Su

pe
rv

is
io

n 
an

d 
Su

pe
rin

te
nd

en
ce

 

A.
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 sh

al
l s

up
er

vi
se

, i
ns

pe
ct

, a
nd

 d
ire

ct
 th

e 
W

or
k 

co
m

pe
te

nt
ly

 a
nd

 e
ffi

ci
en

tly
, d

ev
ot

in
g 

su
ch

 a
tt

en
tio

n 
th

er
et

o 
an

d 
ap

pl
yi

ng
 su

ch
 sk

ill
s a

nd
 e

xp
er

tis
e 

as
 m

ay
 b

e 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

to
 p

er
fo

rm
 

th
e 

W
or

k 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 D
oc

um
en

ts
. 

B.
 

At
 a

ll 
tim

es
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
pr

og
re

ss
 o

f t
he

 W
or

k,
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r 
sh

al
l a

ss
ig

n 
a 

co
m

pe
te

nt
 r

es
id

en
t 

su
pe

rin
te

nd
en

t 
w

ho
 w

ill
 n

ot
 b

e 
re

pl
ac

ed
 w

ith
ou

t 
w

rit
te

n 
no

tic
e 

to
 O

w
ne

r 
an

d 
En

gi
ne

er
 

ex
ce

pt
 u

nd
er

 e
xt

ra
or

di
na

ry
 c

irc
um

st
an

ce
s.

 

7.
03

 
La

bo
r;

 W
or

ki
ng

 H
ou

rs
 

A.
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 s

ha
ll 

pr
ov

id
e 

co
m

pe
te

nt
, s

ui
ta

bl
y 

qu
al

ifi
ed

 p
er

so
nn

el
 t

o 
su

rv
ey

 a
nd

 la
y 

ou
t 

th
e 

W
or

k 
an

d 
pe

rf
or

m
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

as
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

by
 t

he
 C

on
tr

ac
t 

D
oc

um
en

ts
. 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 s

ha
ll 

m
ai

nt
ai

n 
go

od
 d

is
ci

pl
in

e 
an

d 
or

de
r a

t t
he

 S
ite

. 



 

EJ
CD

C®
 C

-7
00

, S
ta

nd
ar

d 
G

en
er

al
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 
Co

py
rig

ht
©

 2
01

8 
N

at
io

na
l S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rs
, A

m
er

ic
an

 C
ou

nc
il 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Co

m
pa

ni
es

, 
an

d 
Am

er
ic

an
 S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
s.

 A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
 

Pa
ge

 2
8 

of
 7

0 

B.
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 s

ha
ll 

be
 f

ul
ly

 r
es

po
ns

ib
le

 t
o 

O
w

ne
r 

an
d 

En
gi

ne
er

 f
or

 a
ll 

ac
ts

 a
nd

 o
m

iss
io

ns
 o

f 

ot
he

r 
in

di
vi

du
al

s 
or

 e
nt

iti
es

 p
er

fo
rm

in
g 

or
 fu

rn
ish

in
g 

an
y 

of
 t

he
 W

or
k,

 ju
st

 a
s 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 is

 
 

C.
 

Ex
ce

pt
 a

s 
ot

he
rw

ise
 re

qu
ire

d 
fo

r t
he

 s
af

et
y 

or
 p

ro
te

ct
io

n 
of

 p
er

so
ns

 o
r t

he
 W

or
k 

or
 p

ro
pe

rt
y 

at
 th

e 
Si

te
 o

r a
dj

ac
en

t t
he

re
to

, a
nd

 e
xc

ep
t a

s o
th

er
w

ise
 st

at
ed

 in
 th

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 D

oc
um

en
ts

, a
ll 

W
or

k 
at

 t
he

 S
ite

 w
ill

 b
e 

pe
rf

or
m

ed
 d

ur
in

g 
re

gu
la

r 
w

or
ki

ng
 h

ou
rs

, M
on

da
y 

th
ro

ug
h 

Fr
id

ay
. 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 w

ill
 n

ot
 p

er
fo

rm
 W

or
k 

on
 a

 S
at

ur
da

y,
 S

un
da

y,
 o

r a
ny

 le
ga

l h
ol

id
ay

. C
on

tr
ac

to
r m

ay
 

pe
rf

or
m

 W
or

k 
ou

ts
id

e 
re

gu
la

r w
or

ki
ng

 h
ou

rs
 o

r o
n 

Sa
tu

rd
ay

s,
 S

un
da

ys
, o

r l
eg

al
 h

ol
id

ay
s o

nl
y 

 

7.
04

 
Se

rv
ic

es
, M

at
er

ia
ls,

 a
nd

 E
qu

ip
m

en
t 

A.
 

U
nl

es
s 

ot
he

rw
is

e 
sp

ec
ifi

ed
 in

 th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 D
oc

um
en

ts
, C

on
tr

ac
to

r s
ha

ll 
pr

ov
id

e 
an

d 
as

su
m

e 
fu

ll 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

fo
r 

al
l s

er
vi

ce
s,

 m
at

er
ia

ls,
 e

qu
ip

m
en

t, 
la

bo
r, 

tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n,
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

eq
ui

pm
en

t 
an

d 
m

ac
hi

ne
ry

, 
to

ol
s,

 a
pp

lia
nc

es
, 

fu
el

, 
po

w
er

, 
lig

ht
, 

he
at

, 
te

le
ph

on
e,

 w
at

er
, 

sa
ni

ta
ry

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s,
 te

m
po

ra
ry

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s,
 a

nd
 a

ll 
ot

he
r f

ac
ili

tie
s a

nd
 in

ci
de

nt
al

s n
ec

es
sa

ry
 fo

r t
he

 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
, t

es
tin

g,
 s

ta
rt

 u
p,

 a
nd

 c
om

pl
et

io
n 

of
 t

he
 W

or
k,

 w
he

th
er

 o
r n

ot
 s

uc
h 

ite
m

s 
ar

e 
sp

ec
ifi

ca
lly

 c
al

le
d 

fo
r i

n 
th

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 D

oc
um

en
ts

. 

B.
 

Al
l m

at
er

ia
ls

 a
nd

 e
qu

ip
m

en
t 

in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 in
to

 t
he

 W
or

k 
m

us
t 

be
 n

ew
 a

nd
 o

f g
oo

d 
qu

al
ity

, 
ex

ce
pt

 a
s 

ot
he

rw
ise

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
in

 t
he

 C
on

tr
ac

t 
Do

cu
m

en
ts

. 
Al

l 
sp

ec
ia

l 
w

ar
ra

nt
ie

s 
an

d 
gu

ar
an

te
es

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
by

 t
he

 S
pe

ci
fic

at
io

ns
 w

ill
 e

xp
re

ss
ly

 r
un

 t
o 

th
e 

be
ne

fit
 o

f 
O

w
ne

r. 
If 

re
qu

ire
d 

by
 E

ng
in

ee
r, 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 s

ha
ll 

fu
rn

ish
 s

at
is

fa
ct

or
y 

ev
id

en
ce

 (
in

cl
ud

in
g 

re
po

rt
s 

of
 

re
qu

ire
d 

te
st

s)
 a

s t
o 

th
e 

so
ur

ce
, k

in
d,

 a
nd

 q
ua

lit
y 

of
 m

at
er

ia
ls 

an
d 

eq
ui

pm
en

t. 

C.
 

Al
l 

m
at

er
ia

ls
 a

nd
 e

qu
ip

m
en

t 
m

us
t 

be
 s

to
re

d,
 a

pp
lie

d,
 i

ns
ta

lle
d,

 c
on

ne
ct

ed
, 

er
ec

te
d,

 
pr

ot
ec

te
d,

 u
se

d,
 c

le
an

ed
, a

nd
 c

on
di

tio
ne

d 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 in
st

ru
ct

io
ns

 o
f t

he
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

 
Su

pp
lie

r, 
ex

ce
pt

 a
s o

th
er

w
ise

 m
ay

 b
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 in
 th

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 D

oc
um

en
ts

. 

7.
05

 
 

A.
 

: 
W

he
ne

ve
r 

an
 i

te
m

 o
f 

eq
ui

pm
en

t 
or

 m
at

er
ia

l i
s 

sp
ec

ifi
ed

 o
r 

de
sc

rib
ed

 i
n 

th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 D
oc

um
en

ts
 b

y 
us

in
g 

th
e 

na
m

es
 o

f 
on

e 
or

 m
or

e 
pr

op
rie

ta
ry

 it
em

s 
or

 s
pe

ci
fic

 S
up

pl
ie

rs
, t

he
 C

on
tr

ac
t 

Pr
ic

e 
ha

s 
be

en
 b

as
ed

 u
po

n 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 
fu

rn
ish

in
g 

su
ch

 it
em

 a
s s

pe
ci

fie
d.

 T
he

 sp
ec

ifi
ca

tio
n 

or
 d

es
cr

ip
tio

n 
of

 su
ch

 a
n 

ite
m

 is
 in

te
nd

ed
 

to
 e

st
ab

lis
h 

th
e 

ty
pe

, f
un

ct
io

n,
 a

pp
ea

ra
nc

e,
 a

nd
 q

ua
lit

y 
re

qu
ire

d.
 U

nl
es

s 
th

e 
sp

ec
ifi

ca
tio

n 
or

 

ite
m

 is
 p

er
m

itt
ed

, C
on

tr
ac

to
r m

ay
 re

qu
es

t t
ha

t E
ng

in
ee

r a
ut

ho
riz

e 
th

e 
us

e 
of

 o
th

er
 it

em
s 

of
 

eq
ui

pm
en

t 
or

 m
at

er
ia

l, 
or

 it
em

s 
fr

om
 o

th
er

 p
ro

po
se

d 
Su

pp
lie

rs
, 

un
de

r 
th

e 
ci

rc
um

st
an

ce
s 

de
sc

rib
ed

 b
el

ow
. 

1.
 

If 
En

gi
ne

er
 i

n 
its

 s
ol

e 
di

sc
re

tio
n 

de
te

rm
in

es
 t

ha
t 

an
 i

te
m

 o
f 

eq
ui

pm
en

t 
or

 m
at

er
ia

l 
pr

op
os

ed
 b

y 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 is
 fu

nc
tio

na
lly

 e
qu

al
 to

 th
at

 n
am

ed
 a

nd
 su

ffi
ci

en
tly

 si
m

ila
r s

o 
th

at
 

th
e 

pu
rp

os
es

 o
f 

th
is 

pa
ra

gr
ap

h,
 a

 p
ro

po
se

d 
ite

m
 o

f 
eq

ui
pm

en
t 

or
 m

at
er

ia
l 

w
ill

 b
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 fu

nc
tio

na
lly

 e
qu

al
 to

 a
n 

ite
m

 so
 n

am
ed

 if
: 

a.
 

in
 th

e 
ex

er
ci

se
 o

f r
ea

so
na

bl
e 

ju
dg

m
en

t E
ng

in
ee

r d
et

er
m

in
es

 th
at

 th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 it
em

: 

1)
 

is 
at

 l
ea

st
 e

qu
al

 i
n 

m
at

er
ia

ls
 o

f 
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n,
 q

ua
lit

y,
 d

ur
ab

ili
ty

, 
ap

pe
ar

an
ce

, 
st

re
ng

th
, a

nd
 d

es
ig

n 
ch

ar
ac

te
ris

tic
s;

 

 

EJ
CD

C®
 C

-7
00

, S
ta

nd
ar

d 
G

en
er

al
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 
Co

py
rig

ht
©

 2
01

8 
N

at
io

na
l S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rs
, A

m
er

ic
an

 C
ou

nc
il 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Co

m
pa

ni
es

, 
an

d 
Am

er
ic

an
 S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
s.

 A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
 

Pa
ge

 2
9 

of
 7

0 

2)
 

w
ill

 r
el

ia
bl

y 
pe

rf
or

m
 a

t 
le

as
t 

eq
ua

lly
 w

el
l t

he
 f

un
ct

io
n 

an
d 

ac
hi

ev
e 

th
e 

re
su

lts
 

im
po

se
d 

by
 th

e 
de

si
gn

 c
on

ce
pt

 o
f t

he
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 P
ro

je
ct

 a
s a

 fu
nc

tio
ni

ng
 w

ho
le

; 

3)
 

ha
s a

 p
ro

ve
n 

re
co

rd
 o

f p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 a
nd

 a
va

ila
bi

lit
y 

of
 re

sp
on

siv
e 

se
rv

ic
e;

 a
nd

 

4)
 

is 
no

t o
bj

ec
tio

na
bl

e 
to

 O
w

ne
r. 

b.
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 c

er
tif

ie
s 

th
at

, i
f t

he
 p

ro
po

se
d 

ite
m

 is
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

an
d 

in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 in
to

 th
e 

W
or

k:
 

1)
 

th
er

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
no

 in
cr

ea
se

 in
 c

os
t t

o 
th

e 
O

w
ne

r o
r i

nc
re

as
e 

in
 C

on
tr

ac
t T

im
es

; a
nd

 

2)
 

th
e 

ite
m

 w
ill

 c
on

fo
rm

 s
ub

st
an

tia
lly

 t
o 

th
e 

de
ta

ile
d 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 o
f 

th
e 

ite
m

 
na

m
ed

 in
 th

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 D

oc
um

en
ts

. 

B.
 

 

C.
 

: 
En

gi
ne

er
 w

ill
 b

e 
al

lo
w

ed
 a

 r
ea

so
na

bl
e 

tim
e 

to
 

-
-

-
is 

co
m

pl
et

e 
-

an
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

Sh
op

 D
ra

w
in

g 
or

 o
th

er
 w

rit
te

n 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

n.
 E

ng
in

ee
r w

ill
 a

dv
ise

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r 

in
 w

rit
in

g 
of

 a
ny

 n
eg

at
iv

e 
de

te
rm

in
at

io
n.

 

D
. 

Ef
fe

ct
 o

f E
ng

in
ee

r
-

-
fin

al
 a

nd
 b

in
di

ng
, a

nd
 m

ay
 n

ot
 b

e 
re

ve
rs

ed
 t

hr
ou

gh
 a

n 
ap

pe
al

 u
nd

er
 a

ny
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 o
f 

th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 

E.
 

Tr
ea

tm
en

t 
as

 a
 S

ub
st

itu
tio

n 
Re

qu
es

t: 
If 

En
gi

ne
er

 d
et

er
m

in
es

 t
ha

t 
an

 it
em

 o
f e

qu
ip

m
en

t 
or

 
-

re
qu

es
t t

ha
t E

ng
in

ee
r c

on
si

de
r t

he
 it

em
 a

 p
ro

po
se

d 
su

bs
tit

ut
e 

pu
rs

ua
nt

 to
 P

ar
ag

ra
ph

 7
.0

6.
 

7.
06

 
Su

bs
tit

ut
es

 

A.
 

: U
nl

es
s t

he
 sp

ec
ifi

ca
tio

n 
or

 d
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

of
 a

n 
ite

m
 o

f 
eq

ui
pm

en
t o

r m
at

er
ia

l r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 b
e 

fu
rn

is
he

d 
un

de
r t

he
 C

on
tr

ac
t D

oc
um

en
ts

 c
on

ta
in

s o
r i

s 
fo

llo
w

ed
 b

y 
w

or
ds

 r
ea

di
ng

 t
ha

t 
no

 s
ub

st
itu

tio
n 

is 
pe

rm
itt

ed
, C

on
tr

ac
to

r 
m

ay
 r

eq
ue

st
 t

ha
t 

En
gi

ne
er

 a
ut

ho
riz

e 
th

e 
us

e 
of

 o
th

er
 it

em
s o

f e
qu

ip
m

en
t o

r m
at

er
ia

l u
nd

er
 th

e 
ci

rc
um

st
an

ce
s 

de
sc

rib
ed

 b
el

ow
. T

o 
th

e 
ex

te
nt

 p
os

sib
le

 su
ch

 re
qu

es
ts

 m
us

t b
e 

m
ad

e 
be

fo
re

 c
om

m
en

ce
m

en
t 

of
 re

la
te

d 
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
at

 th
e 

Si
te

. 

1.
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 s

ha
ll 

su
bm

it 
su

ff
ic

ie
nt

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

as
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

be
lo

w
 t

o 
al

lo
w

 E
ng

in
ee

r 
to

 
de

te
rm

in
e 

if 
th

e 
ite

m
 o

f m
at

er
ia

l o
r e

qu
ip

m
en

t p
ro

po
se

d 
is 

fu
nc

tio
na

lly
 e

qu
iv

al
en

t t
o 

th
at

 
na

m
ed

 a
nd

 a
n 

ac
ce

pt
ab

le
 s

ub
st

itu
te

 t
he

re
fo

r. 
En

gi
ne

er
 w

ill
 n

ot
 a

cc
ep

t 
re

qu
es

ts
 f

or
 

re
vi

ew
 o

f p
ro

po
se

d 
su

bs
tit

ut
e 

ite
m

s 
of

 e
qu

ip
m

en
t o

r 
m

at
er

ia
l f

ro
m

 a
ny

on
e 

ot
he

r 
th

an
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
. 

2.
 

Th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 f
or

 r
ev

ie
w

 b
y 

En
gi

ne
er

 w
ill

 b
e 

as
 s

et
 f

or
th

 i
n 

Pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
7.

06
.B

, 
as

 
su

pp
le

m
en

te
d 

by
 th

e 
Sp

ec
ifi

ca
tio

ns
, a

nd
 a

s E
ng

in
ee

r m
ay

 d
ec

id
e 

is
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 u

nd
er

 th
e 

ci
rc

um
st

an
ce

s.
 



 

EJ
CD

C®
 C

-7
00

, S
ta

nd
ar

d 
G

en
er

al
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 
Co

py
rig

ht
©

 2
01

8 
N

at
io

na
l S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rs
, A

m
er

ic
an

 C
ou

nc
il 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Co

m
pa

ni
es

, 
an

d 
Am

er
ic

an
 S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
s.

 A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
 

Pa
ge

 3
0 

of
 7

0 

3.
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 sh

al
l m

ak
e 

w
rit

te
n 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

to
 E

ng
in

ee
r f

or
 re

vi
ew

 o
f a

 p
ro

po
se

d 
su

bs
tit

ut
e 

ite
m

 o
f e

qu
ip

m
en

t o
r m

at
er

ia
l t

ha
t C

on
tr

ac
to

r s
ee

ks
 to

 fu
rn

is
h 

or
 u

se
. T

he
 a

pp
lic

at
io

n:
 

a.
 

w
ill

 c
er

tif
y 

th
at

 th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 su
bs

tit
ut

e 
ite

m
 w

ill
: 

1)
 

pe
rf

or
m

 a
de

qu
at

el
y 

th
e 

fu
nc

tio
ns

 a
nd

 a
ch

ie
ve

 t
he

 r
es

ul
ts

 c
al

le
d 

fo
r 

by
 t

he
 

ge
ne

ra
l d

es
ig

n;
 

2)
 

be
 si

m
ila

r i
n 

su
bs

ta
nc

e 
to

 th
e 

ite
m

 s
pe

ci
fie

d;
 a

nd
 

3)
 

be
 su

ite
d 

to
 th

e 
sa

m
e 

us
e 

as
 th

e 
ite

m
 s

pe
ci

fie
d.

 

b.
 

w
ill

 st
at

e:
 

1)
 

th
e 

ex
te

nt
, 

if 
an

y,
 t

o 
w

hi
ch

 t
he

 u
se

 o
f 

th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 s
ub

st
itu

te
 i

te
m

 w
ill

 
ne

ce
ss

ita
te

 a
 c

ha
ng

e 
in

 C
on

tr
ac

t T
im

es
; 

2)
 

w
he

th
er

 u
se

 o
f t

he
 p

ro
po

se
d 

su
bs

tit
ut

e 
ite

m
 in

 th
e 

W
or

k 
w

ill
 re

qu
ire

 a
 ch

an
ge

 in
 

an
y 

of
 th

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 D

oc
um

en
ts

 (o
r i

n 
th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 o
f a

ny
 o

th
er

 d
ire

ct
 c

on
tr

ac
t 

w
ith

 O
w

ne
r f

or
 o

th
er

 w
or

k 
on

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t)

 to
 a

da
pt

 th
e 

de
sig

n 
to

 th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 
su

bs
tit

ut
e 

ite
m

; a
nd

 

3)
 

w
he

th
er

 in
co

rp
or

at
io

n 
or

 u
se

 o
f t

he
 p

ro
po

se
d 

su
bs

tit
ut

e 
ite

m
 in

 c
on

ne
ct

io
n 

w
ith

 
th

e 
W

or
k 

is
 su

bj
ec

t t
o 

pa
ym

en
t o

f a
ny

 li
ce

ns
e 

fe
e 

or
 ro

ya
lty

. 

c.
 

w
ill

 id
en

tif
y:

 

1)
 

al
l v

ar
ia

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 p

ro
po

se
d 

su
bs

tit
ut

e 
ite

m
 fr

om
 th

e 
ite

m
 sp

ec
ifi

ed
; a

nd
 

2)
 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
en

gi
ne

er
in

g,
 s

al
es

, m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

, r
ep

ai
r, 

an
d 

re
pl

ac
em

en
t s

er
vi

ce
s.

 

d.
 

w
ill

 c
on

ta
in

 a
n 

ite
m

ize
d 

es
tim

at
e 

of
 a

ll 
co

st
s 

or
 c

re
di

ts
 t

ha
t 

w
ill

 r
es

ul
t 

di
re

ct
ly

 o
r 

in
di

re
ct

ly
 f

ro
m

 u
se

 o
f s

uc
h 

su
bs

tit
ut

e 
ite

m
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 b
ut

 n
ot

 li
m

ite
d 

to
 c

ha
ng

es
 in

 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 P

ric
e,

 s
ha

re
d 

sa
vi

ng
s,

 c
os

ts
 o

f 
re

de
sig

n,
 a

nd
 c

la
im

s 
of

 o
th

er
 c

on
tr

ac
to

rs
 

af
fe

ct
ed

 b
y 

an
y 

re
su

lti
ng

 c
ha

ng
e.

 

B.
 

on
 a

nd
 D

et
er

m
in

at
io

n:
 E

ng
in

ee
r 

w
ill

 b
e 

al
lo

w
ed

 a
 r

ea
so

na
bl

e 
tim

e 
to

 
ev

al
ua

te
 e

ac
h 

su
bs

tit
ut

e 
re

qu
es

t, 
an

d 
to

 o
bt

ai
n 

co
m

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 d

ire
ct

io
n 

fr
om

 O
w

ne
r. 

En
gi

ne
er

 m
ay

 r
eq

ui
re

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r 

to
 f

ur
ni

sh
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 d
at

a 
ab

ou
t 

th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 s
ub

st
itu

te
 

ite
m

. E
ng

in
ee

r w
ill

 b
e 

th
e 

so
le

 ju
dg

e 
of

 a
cc

ep
ta

bi
lit

y.
 N

o 
su

bs
tit

ut
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

or
de

re
d,

 fu
rn

is
he

d,
 

ce
d 

by
 a

 
Fi

el
d 

O
rd

er
 o

r a
 p

ro
po

se
d 

Ch
an

ge
 O

rd
er

 a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

fo
r t

he
 s

ub
st

itu
tio

n 
its

el
f a

nd
 a

ll 
re

la
te

d 
im

pa
ct

s,
 i

nc
lu

di
ng

 c
ha

ng
es

 i
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 P
ric

e 
or

 C
on

tr
ac

t 
Ti

m
es

. 
En

gi
ne

er
 w

ill
 a

dv
ise

 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 in
 w

rit
in

g 
of

 a
ny

 n
eg

at
iv

e 
de

te
rm

in
at

io
n.

 

C.
 

Sp
ec

ia
l G

ua
ra

nt
ee

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 g
ua

ra
nt

ee
 o

r o
th

er
 s

ur
et

y 
w

ith
 re

sp
ec

t t
o 

an
y 

su
bs

tit
ut

e.
 

D
. 

su
bs

tit
ut

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 o

r 
su

bm
itt

ed
 b

y 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

. 
W

he
th

er
 o

r 
no

t 
En

gi
ne

er
 a

pp
ro

ve
s 

a 
su

bs
tit

ut
e 

so
 p

ro
po

se
d 

or
 su

bm
itt

ed
 b

y 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

, C
on

tr
ac

to
r s

ha
ll 

re
im

bu
rs

e 
O

w
ne

r f
or

 th
e 

re
as

on
ab

le
 ch

ar
ge

s o
f E

ng
in

ee
r f

or
 e

va
lu

at
in

g 
ea

ch
 su

ch
 p

ro
po

se
d 

su
bs

tit
ut

e.
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r s
ha

ll 
al

so
 r

ei
m

bu
rs

e 
O

w
ne

r 
fo

r 
th

e 
re

as
on

ab
le

 c
ha

rg
es

 o
f 

En
gi

ne
er

 f
or

 m
ak

in
g 

ch
an

ge
s 

in
 t

he
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 D
oc

um
en

ts
 (o

r i
n 

th
e 

pr
ov

isi
on

s 
of

 a
ny

 o
th

er
 d

ire
ct

 c
on

tr
ac

t w
ith

 O
w

ne
r)

 re
su

lti
ng

 
fr

om
 th

e 
ac

ce
pt

an
ce

 o
f e

ac
h 

pr
op

os
ed

 su
bs

tit
ut

e.
 

 

EJ
CD

C®
 C

-7
00

, S
ta

nd
ar

d 
G

en
er

al
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 
Co

py
rig

ht
©

 2
01

8 
N

at
io

na
l S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rs
, A

m
er

ic
an

 C
ou

nc
il 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Co

m
pa

ni
es

, 
an

d 
Am

er
ic

an
 S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
s.

 A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
 

Pa
ge

 3
1 

of
 7

0 

E.
 

: C
on

tr
ac

to
r s

ha
ll 

pr
ov

id
e 

al
l d

at
a 

in
 s

up
po

rt
 o

f a
ny

 p
ro

po
se

d 
su

bs
tit

ut
e 

 

F.
 

: I
f E

ng
in

ee
r a

pp
ro

ve
s t

he
 su

bs
tit

ut
io

n 
re

qu
es

t, 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 
sh

al
l e

xe
cu

te
 th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 C

ha
ng

e 
O

rd
er

 a
nd

 p
ro

ce
ed

 w
ith

 th
e 

su
bs

ti
de

ni
al

 o
f a

 su
bs

tit
ut

io
n 

re
qu

es
t w

ill
 b

e 
fin

al
 a

nd
 b

in
di

ng
, a

nd
 m

ay
 n

ot
 b

e 
re

ve
rs

ed
 th

ro
ug

h 
an

 
ap

pe
al

 u
nd

er
 a

ny
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 o
f 

th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 m
ay

 c
ha

lle
ng

e 
th

e 
sc

op
e 

of
 

re
im

bu
rs

em
en

t 
co

st
s 

im
po

se
d 

un
de

r 
Pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

7.
06

.D
, 

by
 t

im
el

y 
su

bm
itt

al
 o

f 
a 

Ch
an

ge
 

Pr
op

os
al

. 

7.
07

 
Co

nc
er

ni
ng

 S
ub

co
nt

ra
ct

or
s a

nd
 S

up
pl

ie
rs

 

A.
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 m

ay
 re

ta
in

 S
ub

co
nt

ra
ct

or
s a

nd
 S

up
pl

ie
rs

 fo
r t

he
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 o

f p
ar

ts
 o

f t
he

 W
or

k.
 

Su
ch

 S
ub

co
nt

ra
ct

or
s a

nd
 S

up
pl

ie
rs

 m
us

t b
e 

ac
ce

pt
ab

le
 to

 O
w

ne
r. 

Th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
of

 a
 S

ub
co

nt
ra

ct
or

 o
r 

Su
pp

lie
r 

fo
r 

th
e 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 o
f 

pa
rt

s 
of

 t
he

 W
or

k 
w

ill
 n

ot
 r

el
ie

ve
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 D
oc

um
en

ts
. 

B.
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 s

ha
ll 

re
ta

in
 s

pe
ci

fic
 S

ub
co

nt
ra

ct
or

s 
an

d 
Su

pp
lie

rs
 f

or
 t

he
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 o

f 
de

sig
na

te
d 

pa
rt

s o
f t

he
 W

or
k 

if 
re

qu
ire

d 
by

 th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 to
 d

o 
so

. 

C.
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

, O
w

ne
r m

ay
 n

ot
 re

qu
ire

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r t

o 
re

ta
in

 a
ny

 S
ub

co
nt

ra
ct

or
 o

r S
up

pl
ie

r t
o 

fu
rn

ish
 

or
 p

er
fo

rm
 a

ny
 o

f t
he

 W
or

k 
ag

ai
ns

t w
hi

ch
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r h
as

 re
as

on
ab

le
 o

bj
ec

tio
n.

 

D
. 

Pr
io

r 
to

 e
nt

ry
 in

to
 a

ny
 b

in
di

ng
 s

ub
co

nt
ra

ct
 o

r 
pu

rc
ha

se
 o

rd
er

, C
on

tr
ac

to
r 

sh
al

l s
ub

m
it 

to
 

O
w

ne
r 

th
e 

id
en

tit
y 

of
 t

he
 p

ro
po

se
d 

Su
bc

on
tr

ac
to

r 
or

 S
up

pl
ie

r 
(u

nl
es

s 
O

w
ne

r 
ha

s 
al

re
ad

y 
de

em
ed

 s
uc

h 
pr

op
os

ed
 S

ub
co

nt
ra

ct
or

 o
r 

Su
pp

lie
r a

cc
ep

ta
bl

e 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

bi
dd

in
g 

pr
oc

es
s 

or
 

ot
he

rw
ise

). 
Su

ch
 p

ro
po

se
d 

Su
bc

on
tr

ac
to

r 
or

 S
up

pl
ie

r s
ha

ll 
be

 d
ee

m
ed

 a
cc

ep
ta

bl
e 

to
 O

w
ne

r 
un

le
ss

 O
w

ne
r r

ai
se

s a
 su

bs
ta

nt
iv

e,
 re

as
on

ab
le

 o
bj

ec
tio

n 
w

ith
in

 5
 d

ay
s.

 

E.
 

O
w

ne
r 

m
ay

 r
eq

ui
re

 t
he

 r
ep

la
ce

m
en

t 
of

 a
ny

 S
ub

co
nt

ra
ct

or
 o

r 
Su

pp
lie

r. 
O

w
ne

r 
al

so
 m

ay
 

re
qu

ire
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r t
o 

re
ta

in
 s

pe
ci

fic
 r

ep
la

ce
m

en
ts

; p
ro

vi
de

d,
 h

ow
ev

er
, t

ha
t O

w
ne

r m
ay

 n
ot

 
re

qu
ire

 a
 r

ep
la

ce
m

en
t 

to
 w

hi
ch

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r 

ha
s 

a 
re

as
on

ab
le

 o
bj

ec
tio

n.
 I

f 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 h
as

 
su

bm
itt

ed
 th

e 
id

en
tit

y 
of

 c
er

ta
in

 S
ub

co
nt

ra
ct

or
s 

or
 S

up
pl

ie
rs

 fo
r a

cc
ep

ta
nc

e 
by

 O
w

ne
r, 

an
d 

O
w

ne
r h

as
 a

cc
ep

te
d 

it 
(e

ith
er

 in
 w

rit
in

g 
or

 b
y 

fa
ili

ng
 to

 m
ak

e 
w

rit
te

n 
ob

je
ct

io
n 

th
er

et
o)

, t
he

n 
O

w
ne

r 
m

ay
 s

ub
se

qu
en

tly
 r

ev
ok

e 
th

e 
ac

ce
pt

an
ce

 o
f 

an
y 

su
ch

 S
ub

co
nt

ra
ct

or
 o

r 
Su

pp
lie

r 
so

 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

so
le

ly
 o

n 
th

e 
ba

si
s 

of
 s

ub
st

an
tiv

e,
 r

ea
so

na
bl

e 
ob

je
ct

io
n 

af
te

r 
du

e 
in

ve
st

ig
at

io
n.

 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 s
ha

ll 
su

bm
it 

an
 a

cc
ep

ta
bl

e 
re

pl
ac

em
en

t 
fo

r 
th

e 
re

je
ct

ed
 S

ub
co

nt
ra

ct
or

 o
r 

Su
pp

lie
r.

 

F.
 

If 
O

w
ne

r 
re

qu
ire

s 
th

e 
re

pl
ac

em
en

t o
f a

ny
 S

ub
co

nt
ra

ct
or

 o
r S

up
pl

ie
r 

re
ta

in
ed

 b
y 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 

to
 p

er
fo

rm
 a

ny
 p

ar
t 

of
 t

he
 W

or
k,

 t
he

n 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 s
ha

ll 
be

 e
nt

itl
ed

 t
o 

an
 a

dj
us

tm
en

t 
in

 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 P

ric
e 

or
 C

on
tr

ac
t 

Ti
m

es
, 

w
ith

 r
es

pe
ct

 t
o 

th
e 

re
pl

ac
em

en
t; 

an
d 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 s

ha
ll 

re
pl

ac
em

en
t. 

G
. 

N
o 

ac
ce

pt
an

ce
 b

y 
O

w
ne

r 
of

 a
ny

 s
uc

h 
Su

bc
on

tr
ac

to
r 

or
 S

up
pl

ie
r, 

w
he

th
er

 in
iti

al
ly

 o
r 

as
 a

 
re

pl
ac

em
en

t, 
w

ill
 c

on
st

itu
te

 a
 w

ai
ve

r o
f t

he
 ri

gh
t o

f O
w

ne
r t

o 
th

e 
co

m
pl

et
io

n 
of

 th
e 

W
or

k 
in

 
ac

co
rd

an
ce

 w
ith

 th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 D
oc

um
en

ts
. 



 

EJ
CD

C®
 C

-7
00

, S
ta

nd
ar

d 
G

en
er

al
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 
Co

py
rig

ht
©

 2
01

8 
N

at
io

na
l S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rs
, A

m
er

ic
an

 C
ou

nc
il 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Co

m
pa

ni
es

, 
an

d 
Am

er
ic

an
 S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
s.

 A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
 

Pa
ge

 3
2 

of
 7

0 

H
. 

O
n 

a 
m

on
th

ly
 b

as
is,

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r s

ha
ll 

su
bm

it 
to

 E
ng

in
ee

r a
 c

om
pl

et
e 

lis
t o

f a
ll 

Su
bc

on
tr

ac
to

rs
 

an
d 

Su
pp

lie
rs

 h
av

in
g 

a 
di

re
ct

 c
on

tr
ac

t 
w

ith
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r, 
an

d 
of

 a
ll 

ot
he

r 
Su

bc
on

tr
ac

to
rs

 a
nd

 
Su

pp
lie

rs
 k

no
w

n 
to

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r a

t t
he

 ti
m

e 
of

 s
ub

m
itt

al
. 

I. 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 
sh

al
l 

be
 

so
le

ly
 r

es
po

ns
ib

le
 

fo
r 

sc
he

du
lin

g 
an

d 
co

or
di

na
tin

g 
th

e 
w

or
k 

of
 

Su
bc

on
tr

ac
to

rs
 a

nd
 S

up
pl

ie
rs

. 

J. 
Th

e 
di

vi
sio

ns
 a

nd
 se

ct
io

ns
 o

f t
he

 S
pe

ci
fic

at
io

ns
 a

nd
 th

e 
id

en
tif

ic
at

io
ns

 o
f a

ny
 D

ra
w

in
gs

 d
o 

no
t 

co
nt

ro
l C

on
tr

ac
to

r i
n 

di
vi

di
ng

 th
e 

W
or

k 
am

on
g 

Su
bc

on
tr

ac
to

rs
 o

r S
up

pl
ie

rs
, o

r i
n 

de
lin

ea
tin

g 
th

e 
W

or
k 

to
 b

e 
pe

rf
or

m
ed

 b
y 

an
y 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

tr
ad

e.
 

K.
 

Al
l W

or
k 

pe
rf

or
m

ed
 fo

r 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 b
y 

a 
Su

bc
on

tr
ac

to
r 

or
 S

up
pl

ie
r 

m
us

t 
be

 p
ur

su
an

t 
to

 a
n 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 c

on
tr

ac
tu

al
 a

gr
ee

m
en

t 
th

at
 s

pe
ci

fic
al

ly
 b

in
ds

 t
he

 S
ub

co
nt

ra
ct

or
 o

r 
Su

pp
lie

r 
to

 
th

e 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 te
rm

s a
nd

 c
on

di
tio

ns
 o

f t
he

 C
on

tr
ac

t f
or

 th
e 

be
ne

fit
 o

f O
w

ne
r a

nd
 E

ng
in

ee
r. 

L.
 

O
w

ne
r m

ay
 fu

rn
ish

 t
o 

an
y 

Su
bc

on
tr

ac
to

r o
r 

Su
pp

lie
r, 

to
 t

he
 e

xt
en

t p
ra

ct
ic

ab
le

, i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
ab

ou
t a

m
ou

nt
s 

pa
id

 to
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r f
or

 W
or

k 
pe

rf
or

m
ed

 fo
r 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 b

y 
th

e 
Su

bc
on

tr
ac

to
r 

or
 S

up
pl

ie
r. 

M
. 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 s

ha
ll 

re
st

ric
t a

ll 
Su

bc
on

tr
ac

to
rs

 a
nd

 S
up

pl
ie

rs
 fr

om
 c

om
m

un
ic

at
in

g 
w

ith
 E

ng
in

ee
r 

or
 O

w
ne

r, 
ex

ce
pt

 th
ro

ug
h 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 o

r 
in

 c
as

e 
of

 a
n 

em
er

ge
nc

y,
 o

r a
s 

ot
he

rw
ise

 e
xp

re
ss

ly
 

al
lo

w
ed

 in
 th

is
 C

on
tr

ac
t. 

7.
08

 
Pa

te
nt

 F
ee

s a
nd

 R
oy

al
tie

s 

A.
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 s

ha
ll 

pa
y 

al
l l

ic
en

se
 fe

es
 a

nd
 ro

ya
lti

es
 a

nd
 a

ss
um

e 
al

l c
os

ts
 in

ci
de

nt
 to

 th
e 

us
e 

in
 

th
e 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 o
f 

th
e 

W
or

k 
or

 t
he

 i
nc

or
po

ra
tio

n 
in

 t
he

 W
or

k 
of

 a
ny

 in
ve

nt
io

n,
 d

es
ig

n,
 

pr
oc

es
s,

 p
ro

du
ct

, o
r d

ev
ic

e 
w

hi
ch

 is
 th

e 
su

bj
ec

t o
f p

at
en

t r
ig

ht
s o

r c
op

yr
ig

ht
s h

el
d 

by
 o

th
er

s.
 

If 
an

 in
ve

nt
io

n,
 d

es
ig

n,
 p

ro
ce

ss
, p

ro
du

ct
, o

r d
ev

ic
e 

is
 sp

ec
ifi

ed
 in

 th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 D
oc

um
en

ts
 fo

r 
us

e 
in

 th
e 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 W

or
k 

an
d 

if,
 to

 th
e 

ac
tu

al
 k

no
w

le
dg

e 
of

 O
w

ne
r o

r E
ng

in
ee

r, 
its

 
us

e 
is 

su
bj

ec
t 

to
 p

at
en

t 
rig

ht
s 

or
 c

op
yr

ig
ht

s 
ca

lli
ng

 f
or

 t
he

 p
ay

m
en

t 
of

 a
ny

 li
ce

ns
e 

fe
e 

or
 

ro
ya

lty
 to

 o
th

er
s,

 th
e 

ex
ist

en
ce

 o
f s

uc
h 

rig
ht

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
di

sc
lo

se
d 

in
 th

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 D

oc
um

en
ts

. 

B.
 

To
 t

he
 f

ul
le

st
 e

xt
en

t 
pe

rm
itt

ed
 b

y 
La

w
s 

an
d 

Re
gu

la
tio

ns
, O

w
ne

r 
sh

al
l i

nd
em

ni
fy

 a
nd

 h
ol

d 
ha

rm
le

ss
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r, 
an

d 
its

 o
ffi

ce
rs

, 
di

re
ct

or
s,

 m
em

be
rs

, 
pa

rt
ne

rs
, 

em
pl

oy
ee

s,
 a

ge
nt

s,
 

co
ns

ul
ta

nt
s,

 a
nd

 s
ub

co
nt

ra
ct

or
s,

 f
ro

m
 a

nd
 a

ga
in

st
 a

ll 
cl

ai
m

s,
 c

os
ts

, 
lo

ss
es

, 
an

d 
da

m
ag

es
 

(in
cl

ud
in

g 
bu

t n
ot

 li
m

ite
d 

to
 a

ll 
fe

es
 a

nd
 ch

ar
ge

s o
f e

ng
in

ee
rs

, a
rc

hi
te

ct
s,

 a
tt

or
ne

ys
, a

nd
 o

th
er

 
pr

of
es

sio
na

ls
, a

nd
 a

ll 
co

ur
t o

r a
rb

itr
at

io
n 

or
 o

th
er

 d
isp

ut
e 

re
so

lu
tio

n 
co

st
s)

 a
ris

in
g 

ou
t o

f o
r 

re
la

tin
g 

to
 a

ny
 i

nf
rin

ge
m

en
t 

of
 p

at
en

t 
rig

ht
s 

or
 c

op
yr

ig
ht

s 
in

ci
de

nt
 t

o 
th

e 
us

e 
in

 t
he

 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 o

f t
he

 W
or

k 
or

 re
su

lti
ng

 fr
om

 t
he

 in
co

rp
or

at
io

n 
in

 t
he

 W
or

k 
of

 a
ny

 in
ve

nt
io

n,
 

de
sig

n,
 p

ro
ce

ss
, p

ro
du

ct
, o

r d
ev

ic
e 

sp
ec

ifi
ed

 in
 th

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 D

oc
um

en
ts

, b
ut

 n
ot

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
as

 
be

in
g 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
pa

ym
en

t o
f a

ny
 li

ce
ns

e 
fe

e 
or

 ro
ya

lty
 to

 o
th

er
s 

re
qu

ire
d 

by
 p

at
en

t r
ig

ht
s 

or
 

co
py

rig
ht

s.
 

C.
 

To
 th

e 
fu

lle
st

 e
xt

en
t p

er
m

itt
ed

 b
y 

La
w

s a
nd

 R
eg

ul
at

io
ns

, C
on

tr
ac

to
r s

ha
ll 

in
de

m
ni

fy
 a

nd
 h

ol
d 

ha
rm

le
ss

 O
w

ne
r 

an
d 

En
gi

ne
er

, a
nd

 t
he

 o
ffi

ce
rs

, d
ire

ct
or

s,
 m

em
be

rs
, p

ar
tn

er
s,

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s,

 
ag

en
ts

, c
on

su
lta

nt
s 

an
d 

su
bc

on
tr

ac
to

rs
 o

f e
ac

h 
an

d 
an

y 
of

 th
em

, f
ro

m
 a

nd
 a

ga
in

st
 a

ll 
cl

ai
m

s, 
co

st
s,

 lo
ss

es
, a

nd
 d

am
ag

es
 (

in
cl

ud
in

g 
bu

t 
no

t 
lim

ite
d 

to
 a

ll 
fe

es
 a

nd
 c

ha
rg

es
 o

f e
ng

in
ee

rs
, 

ar
ch

ite
ct

s,
 a

tt
or

ne
ys

, a
nd

 o
th

er
 p

ro
fe

ss
io

na
ls 

an
d 

al
l c

ou
rt

 o
r 

ar
bi

tr
at

io
n 

or
 o

th
er

 d
is

pu
te

 
re

so
lu

tio
n 

co
st

s)
 a

ris
in

g 
ou

t o
f o

r r
el

at
in

g 
to

 a
ny

 in
fr

in
ge

m
en

t o
f p

at
en

t r
ig

ht
s 

or
 c

op
yr

ig
ht

s 
in

ci
de

nt
 to

 th
e 

us
e 

in
 th

e 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 o

f t
he

 W
or

k 
or

 re
su

lti
ng

 fr
om

 th
e 

in
co

rp
or

at
io

n 
in

 th
e 

W
or

k 
of

 a
ny

 i
nv

en
tio

n,
 d

es
ig

n,
 p

ro
ce

ss
, 

pr
od

uc
t, 

or
 d

ev
ic

e 
no

t 
sp

ec
ifi

ed
 i

n 
th

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 

D
oc

um
en

ts
. 

 

EJ
CD

C®
 C

-7
00

, S
ta

nd
ar

d 
G

en
er

al
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 
Co

py
rig

ht
©

 2
01

8 
N

at
io

na
l S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rs
, A

m
er

ic
an

 C
ou

nc
il 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Co

m
pa

ni
es

, 
an

d 
Am

er
ic

an
 S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
s.

 A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
 

Pa
ge

 3
3 

of
 7

0 

7.
09

 
Pe

rm
its

 

A.
 

U
nl

es
s o

th
er

w
is

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 in

 th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 D
oc

um
en

ts
, C

on
tr

ac
to

r s
ha

ll 
ob

ta
in

 a
nd

 p
ay

 fo
r a

ll 
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
pe

rm
its

, l
ic

en
se

s,
 a

nd
 c

er
tif

ic
at

es
 o

f o
cc

up
an

cy
. O

w
ne

r 
sh

al
l a

ss
is

t C
on

tr
ac

to
r, 

w
he

n 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y,

 in
 o

bt
ai

ni
ng

 su
ch

 p
er

m
its

 a
nd

 li
ce

ns
es

. C
on

tr
ac

to
r s

ha
ll 

pa
y 

al
l g

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l 

ch
ar

ge
s 

an
d 

in
sp

ec
tio

n 
fe

es
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 fo
r t

he
 p

ro
se

cu
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

W
or

k 
w

hi
ch

 a
re

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 

n 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 b
ec

am
e 

bo
un

d 
un

de
r a

 
ne

go
tia

te
d 

co
nt

ra
ct

). 
O

w
ne

r 
sh

al
l 

pa
y 

al
l 

ch
ar

ge
s 

of
 u

til
ity

 o
w

ne
rs

 f
or

 c
on

ne
ct

io
ns

 f
or

 
pr

ov
id

in
g 

pe
rm

an
en

t s
er

vi
ce

 to
 th

e 
W

or
k.

 

7.
10

 
Ta

xe
s 

A.
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 s

ha
ll 

pa
y 

al
l s

al
es

, c
on

su
m

er
, u

se
, a

nd
 o

th
er

 s
im

ila
r t

ax
es

 re
qu

ire
d 

to
 b

e 
pa

id
 b

y 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
La

w
s a

nd
 R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
 o

f t
he

 p
la

ce
 o

f t
he

 P
ro

je
ct

 w
hi

ch
 a

re
 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 o

f t
he

 W
or

k.
 

7.
11

 
La

w
s 

an
d 

Re
gu

la
tio

ns
 

A.
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 s

ha
ll 

gi
ve

 a
ll 

no
tic

es
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

by
 a

nd
 s

ha
ll 

co
m

pl
y 

w
ith

 a
ll 

La
w

s 
an

d 
Re

gu
la

tio
ns

 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 to
 th

e 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 o

f t
he

 W
or

k.
 N

ei
th

er
 O

w
ne

r n
or

 E
ng

in
ee

r s
ha

ll 
be

 re
sp

on
si

bl
e 

 

B.
 

If 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 p
er

fo
rm

s a
ny

 W
or

k 
or

 ta
ke

s a
ny

 o
th

er
 a

ct
io

n 
kn

ow
in

g 
or

 h
av

in
g 

re
as

on
 to

 k
no

w
 

th
at

 it
 is

 c
on

tr
ar

y 
to

 L
aw

s 
or

 R
eg

ul
at

io
ns

, C
on

tr
ac

to
r s

ha
ll 

be
ar

 a
ll 

re
su

lti
ng

 c
os

ts
 a

nd
 lo

ss
es

, 
an

d 
sh

al
l 

in
de

m
ni

fy
 a

nd
 h

ol
d 

ha
rm

le
ss

 O
w

ne
r 

an
d 

En
gi

ne
er

, 
an

d 
th

e 
of

fic
er

s,
 d

ire
ct

or
s,

 
m

em
be

rs
, p

ar
tn

er
s,

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s,

 a
ge

nt
s,

 c
on

su
lta

nt
s,

 a
nd

 s
ub

co
nt

ra
ct

or
s 

of
 e

ac
h 

an
d 

an
y 

of
 

th
em

, f
ro

m
 a

nd
 a

ga
in

st
 a

ll 
cl

ai
m

s,
 c

os
ts

, l
os

se
s,

 a
nd

 d
am

ag
es

 (i
nc

lu
di

ng
 b

ut
 n

ot
 li

m
ite

d 
to

 a
ll 

fe
es

 a
nd

 c
ha

rg
es

 o
f e

ng
in

ee
rs

, a
rc

hi
te

ct
s,

 a
tt

or
ne

ys
, a

nd
 o

th
er

 p
ro

fe
ss

io
na

ls 
an

d 
al

l c
ou

rt
 o

r 
ar

bi
tr

at
io

n 
or

 o
th

er
 d

isp
ut

e 
re

so
lu

tio
n 

co
st

s)
 a

ris
in

g 
ou

t o
f o

r r
el

at
in

g 
to

 s
uc

h 
W

or
k 

or
 o

th
er

 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 D
oc

um
en

ts
 is

 in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 L

aw
s 

an
d 

Re
gu

la
tio

ns
, b

ut
 t

hi
s 

do
es

 n
ot

 r
el

ie
ve

 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 o
f i

ts
 o

bl
ig

at
io

ns
 u

nd
er

 P
ar

ag
ra

ph
 3

.0
3.

 

C.
 

O
w

ne
r 

or
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r 
m

ay
 g

iv
e 

w
rit

te
n 

no
tic

e 
to

 t
he

 o
th

er
 p

ar
ty

 o
f 

an
y 

ch
an

ge
s 

af
te

r 
th

e 

ne
go

tia
te

d 
co

nt
ra

ct
) 

in
 L

aw
s 

or
 R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
 h

av
in

g 
an

 e
ffe

ct
 o

n 
th

e 
co

st
 o

r 
tim

e 
of

 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 o

f t
he

 W
or

k,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

bu
t n

ot
 li

m
ite

d 
to

 c
ha

ng
es

 in
 L

aw
s 

or
 R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
 h

av
in

g 
an

 e
ff

ec
t o

n 
pr

oc
ur

in
g 

pe
rm

its
 a

nd
 o

n 
sa

le
s,

 u
se

, v
al

ue
-a

dd
ed

, c
on

su
m

pt
io

n,
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 si
m

ila
r 

ta
xe

s.
 If

 O
w

ne
r 

an
d 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 a

re
 u

na
bl

e 
to

 a
gr

ee
 o

n 
en

tit
le

m
en

t t
o 

or
 o

n 
th

e 
am

ou
nt

 o
r 

ex
te

nt
, 

if 
an

y,
 o

f 
an

y 
ad

ju
st

m
en

t 
in

 C
on

tr
ac

t 
Pr

ic
e 

or
 C

on
tr

ac
t 

Ti
m

es
 r

es
ul

tin
g 

fr
om

 s
uc

h 
ch

an
ge

s,
 t

he
n 

w
ith

in
 3

0 
da

ys
 o

f 
su

ch
 w

rit
te

n 
no

tic
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 m

ay
 s

ub
m

it 
a 

Ch
an

ge
 

Pr
op

os
al

, o
r O

w
ne

r m
ay

 in
iti

at
e 

a 
Cl

ai
m

. 

7.
12

 
Re

co
rd

 D
oc

um
en

ts
 

A.
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 s

ha
ll 

m
ai

nt
ai

n 
in

 a
 s

af
e 

pl
ac

e 
at

 th
e 

Si
te

 o
ne

 p
rin

te
d 

re
co

rd
 c

op
y 

of
 a

ll 
D

ra
w

in
gs

, 
Sp

ec
ifi

ca
tio

ns
, 

Ad
de

nd
a,

 C
ha

ng
e 

O
rd

er
s,

 W
or

k 
Ch

an
ge

 D
ire

ct
iv

es
, 

Fi
el

d 
O

rd
er

s,
 w

rit
te

n 
in

te
rp

re
ta

tio
ns

 a
nd

 c
la

rif
ic

at
io

ns
, a

nd
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

Sh
op

 D
ra

w
in

gs
. C

on
tr

ac
to

r 
sh

al
l k

ee
p 

su
ch

 
re

co
rd

 d
oc

um
en

ts
 i

n 
go

od
 o

rd
er

 a
nd

 a
nn

ot
at

e 
th

em
 t

o 
sh

ow
 c

ha
ng

es
 m

ad
e 

du
rin

g 
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n.
 T

he
se

 re
co

rd
 d

oc
um

en
ts

, t
og

et
he

r w
ith

 a
ll 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 S
am

pl
es

, w
ill

 b
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 E
ng

in
ee

r f
or

 re
fe

re
nc

e.
 U

po
n 

co
m

pl
et

io
n 

of
 th

e 
W

or
k,

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r s

ha
ll 

de
liv

er
 th

es
e 

re
co

rd
 

do
cu

m
en

ts
 to

 E
ng

in
ee

r. 



 

EJ
CD

C®
 C

-7
00

, S
ta

nd
ar

d 
G

en
er

al
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 
Co

py
rig

ht
©

 2
01

8 
N

at
io

na
l S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rs
, A

m
er

ic
an

 C
ou

nc
il 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Co

m
pa

ni
es

, 
an

d 
Am

er
ic

an
 S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
s.

 A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
 

Pa
ge

 3
4 

of
 7

0 

7.
13

 
Sa

fe
ty

 a
nd

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

A.
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 s

ha
ll 

be
 s

ol
el

y 
re

sp
on

sib
le

 f
or

 in
iti

at
in

g,
 m

ai
nt

ai
ni

ng
, a

nd
 s

up
er

vi
sin

g 
al

l s
af

et
y 

pr
ec

au
tio

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
gr

am
s i

n 
co

nn
ec

tio
n 

w
ith

 th
e 

W
or

k.
 S

uc
h 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
do

es
 n

ot
 re

lie
ve

 
Su

bc
on

tr
ac

to
rs

 o
f t

he
ir 

re
sp

on
sib

ili
ty

 fo
r t

he
 sa

fe
ty

 o
f p

er
so

ns
 o

r p
ro

pe
rt

y 
in

 th
e 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 
of

 th
ei

r w
or

k,
 n

or
 fo

r c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 sa

fe
ty

 L
aw

s a
nd

 R
eg

ul
at

io
ns

. 

B.
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 s

ha
ll 

de
si

gn
at

e 
a 

qu
al

ifi
ed

 a
nd

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
ed

 s
af

et
y 

re
pr

es
en

ta
tiv

e 
w

ho
se

 d
ut

ie
s 

an
d 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s 

ar
e 

th
e 

pr
ev

en
tio

n 
of

 W
or

k-
re

la
te

d 
ac

ci
de

nt
s 

an
d 

th
e 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 a
nd

 
su

pe
rv

is
io

n 
of

 s
af

et
y 

pr
ec

au
tio

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
gr

am
s.

 

C.
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 s

ha
ll 

ta
ke

 a
ll 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
pr

ec
au

tio
ns

 f
or

 t
he

 s
af

et
y 

of
, 

an
d 

sh
al

l 
pr

ov
id

e 
th

e 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

pr
ot

ec
tio

n 
to

 p
re

ve
nt

 d
am

ag
e,

 in
ju

ry
, o

r l
os

s t
o:

 

1.
 

al
l p

er
so

ns
 o

n 
th

e 
Si

te
 o

r w
ho

 m
ay

 b
e 

af
fe

ct
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

W
or

k;
 

2.
 

al
l t

he
 W

or
k 

an
d 

m
at

er
ia

ls
 a

nd
 e

qu
ip

m
en

t t
o 

be
 in

co
rp

or
at

ed
 th

er
ei

n,
 w

he
th

er
 in

 st
or

ag
e 

on
 o

r o
ff 

th
e 

Si
te

; a
nd

 

3.
 

ot
he

r 
pr

op
er

ty
 a

t 
th

e 
Si

te
 o

r 
ad

ja
ce

nt
 t

he
re

to
, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
tr

ee
s,

 s
hr

ub
s,

 l
aw

ns
, 

w
al

ks
, 

pa
ve

m
en

ts
, 

ro
ad

w
ay

s,
 s

tr
uc

tu
re

s,
 o

th
er

 w
or

k 
in

 p
ro

gr
es

s, 
ut

ili
tie

s,
 a

nd
 U

nd
er

gr
ou

nd
 

Fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
no

t 
de

sig
na

te
d 

fo
r 

re
m

ov
al

, 
re

lo
ca

tio
n,

 o
r 

re
pl

ac
em

en
t 

in
 t

he
 c

ou
rs

e 
of

 
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n.

D
. 

Al
l 

da
m

ag
e,

 i
nj

ur
y,

 o
r 

lo
ss

 t
o 

an
y 

pr
op

er
ty

 r
ef

er
re

d 
to

 i
n 

Pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
7.

13
.C

.2
 o

r 
7.

13
.C

.3
 

ca
us

ed
, d

ire
ct

ly
 o

r i
nd

ire
ct

ly
, i

n 
w

ho
le

 o
r i

n 
pa

rt
, b

y 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

, a
ny

 S
ub

co
nt

ra
ct

or
, S

up
pl

ie
r, 

or
 a

ny
 o

th
er

 in
di

vi
du

al
 o

r 
en

tit
y 

di
re

ct
ly

 o
r 

in
di

re
ct

ly
 e

m
pl

oy
ed

 b
y 

an
y 

of
 t

he
m

 t
o 

pe
rf

or
m

 
an

y 
of

 th
e 

W
or

k,
 o

r a
ny

on
e 

fo
r w

ho
se

 a
ct

s 
an

y 
of

 th
em

 m
ay

 b
e 

lia
bl

e,
 s

ha
ll 

be
 re

m
ed

ie
d 

by
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 a

t 
its

 e
xp

en
se

 (
ex

ce
pt

 d
am

ag
e 

or
 lo

ss
 a

tt
rib

ut
ab

le
 t

o 
th

e 
fa

ul
t 

of
 D

ra
w

in
gs

 o
r 

Sp
ec

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 o
r t

o 
th

e 
ac

ts
 o

r o
m

is
sio

ns
 o

f O
w

ne
r 

or
 E

ng
in

ee
r o

r 
an

yo
ne

 e
m

pl
oy

ed
 b

y 
an

y 
of

 th
em

, o
r a

ny
on

e 
fo

r w
ho

se
 a

ct
s a

ny
 o

f t
he

m
 m

ay
 b

e 
lia

bl
e,

 a
nd

 n
ot

 a
tt

rib
ut

ab
le

, d
ire

ct
ly

 o
r 

in
di

re
ct

ly
, i

n 
w

ho
le

 o
r i

n 
pa

rt
, t

o 
th

e 
fa

ul
t o

r 
ne

gl
ig

en
ce

 o
f C

on
tr

ac
to

r o
r a

ny
 S

ub
co

nt
ra

ct
or

, 
Su

pp
lie

r, 
or

 o
th

er
 in

di
vi

du
al

 o
r e

nt
ity

 d
ire

ct
ly

 o
r i

nd
ire

ct
ly

 e
m

pl
oy

ed
 b

y 
an

y 
of

 th
em

). 

E.
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 s

ha
ll 

co
m

pl
y 

w
ith

 a
ll 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 L

aw
s 

an
d 

Re
gu

la
tio

ns
 r

el
at

in
g 

to
 t

he
 s

af
et

y 
of

 
pe

rs
on

s o
r p

ro
pe

rt
y,

 o
r t

o 
th

e 
pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

of
 p

er
so

ns
 o

r p
ro

pe
rt

y 
fr

om
 d

am
ag

e,
 in

ju
ry

, o
r l

os
s;

 
an

d 
sh

al
l e

re
ct

 a
nd

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
al

l n
ec

es
sa

ry
 s

af
eg

ua
rd

s f
or

 s
uc

h 
sa

fe
ty

 a
nd

 p
ro

te
ct

io
n.

 

F.
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 s

ha
ll 

no
tif

y 
O

w
ne

r; 
th

e 
ow

ne
rs

 o
f a

dj
ac

en
t p

ro
pe

rt
y;

 th
e 

ow
ne

rs
 o

f U
nd

er
gr

ou
nd

 
Fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

an
d 

ot
he

r u
til

iti
es

 (i
f t

he
 id

en
tit

y 
of

 s
uc

h 
ow

ne
rs

 is
 k

no
w

n 
to

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r)

; a
nd

 o
th

er
 

co
nt

ra
ct

or
s 

an
d 

ut
ili

ty
 o

w
ne

rs
 p

er
fo

rm
in

g 
w

or
k 

at
 o

r 
ad

ja
ce

nt
 t

o 
th

e 
Si

te
, i

n 
w

rit
in

g,
 w

he
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 k

no
w

s 
th

at
 p

ro
se

cu
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

W
or

k 
m

ay
 a

ffe
ct

 t
he

m
, a

nd
 s

ha
ll 

co
op

er
at

e 
w

ith
 

th
em

 in
 t

he
 p

ro
te

ct
io

n,
 r

em
ov

al
, r

el
oc

at
io

n,
 a

nd
 r

ep
la

ce
m

en
t 

of
 t

he
ir 

pr
op

er
ty

 o
r 

w
or

k 
in

 
pr

og
re

ss
. 

G
. 

 a
re

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
or

 in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

e 
Su

pp
le

m
en

ta
ry

 C
on

di
tio

ns
 o

r S
pe

ci
fic

at
io

ns
. 

H
. 

co
m

pl
y 

w
hi

le
 a

t t
he

 S
ite

. 

 

EJ
CD

C®
 C

-7
00

, S
ta

nd
ar

d 
G

en
er

al
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 
Co

py
rig

ht
©

 2
01

8 
N

at
io

na
l S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rs
, A

m
er

ic
an

 C
ou

nc
il 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Co

m
pa

ni
es

, 
an

d 
Am

er
ic

an
 S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
s.

 A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
 

Pa
ge

 3
5 

of
 7

0 

I. 
W

or
k 

is 
co

m
pl

et
ed

, 
En

gi
ne

er
 h

as
 i

ss
ue

d 
a 

w
rit

te
n 

no
tic

e 
to

 O
w

ne
r 

an
d 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 i

n 
ac

co
rd

an
ce

 w
ith

 P
ar

ag
ra

ph
 1

5.
06

.C
 th

at
 th

e 
W

or
k 

is
 a

cc
ep

ta
bl

e,
 a

nd
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r h
as

 le
ft

 th
e 

Si
te

 (e
xc

ep
t a

s 
ot

he
rw

ise
 e

xp
re

ss
ly

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
in

 c
on

ne
ct

io
n 

w
ith

 S
ub

st
an

tia
l C

om
pl

et
io

n)
. 

J. 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 o
r a

ny
 S

ub
co

nt
ra

ct
or

 o
r S

up
pl

ie
r r

et
ur

ns
 to

 th
e 

Si
te

 to
 fu

lfi
ll 

w
ar

ra
nt

y 
or

 co
rr

ec
tio

n 
ob

lig
at

io
ns

, o
r t

o 
co

nd
uc

t o
th

er
 ta

sk
s 

ar
is

in
g 

fr
om

 th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 D
oc

um
en

ts
. 

7.
14

 
H

az
ar

d 
Co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
Pr

og
ra

m
s 

A.
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 sh

al
l b

e 
re

sp
on

sib
le

 fo
r c

oo
rd

in
at

in
g 

an
y 

ex
ch

an
ge

 o
f s

af
et

y 
da

ta
 sh

ee
ts

 (f
or

m
er

ly
 

kn
ow

n 
as

 m
at

er
ia

l s
af

et
y 

da
ta

 s
he

et
s)

 o
r o

th
er

 h
az

ar
d 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 b

e 
m

ad
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 o
r e

xc
ha

ng
ed

 b
et

w
ee

n 
or

 a
m

on
g 

em
pl

oy
er

s a
t t

he
 S

ite
 in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 L
aw

s o
r R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
. 

7.
15

 
Em

er
ge

nc
ie

s 

A.
 

In
 e

m
er

ge
nc

ie
s 

af
fe

ct
in

g 
th

e 
sa

fe
ty

 o
r p

ro
te

ct
io

n 
of

 p
er

so
ns

 o
r t

he
 W

or
k 

or
 p

ro
pe

rt
y 

at
 th

e 
Si

te
 o

r 
ad

ja
ce

nt
 t

he
re

to
, C

on
tr

ac
to

r 
is

 o
bl

ig
at

ed
 t

o 
ac

t 
to

 p
re

ve
nt

 d
am

ag
e,

 in
ju

ry
, o

r 
lo

ss
. 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 sh

al
l g

iv
e 

En
gi

ne
er

 p
ro

m
pt

 w
rit

te
n 

no
tic

e 
if 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 b

el
ie

ve
s t

ha
t a

ny
 si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 
ch

an
ge

s 
in

 t
he

 W
or

k 
or

 v
ar

ia
tio

ns
 f

ro
m

 t
he

 C
on

tr
ac

t 
Do

cu
m

en
ts

 h
av

e 
be

en
 c

au
se

d 
by

 a
n 

de
te

rm
in

es
 th

at
 a

 c
ha

ng
e 

in
 th

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 D

oc
um

en
ts

 is
 re

qu
ire

d 
be

ca
us

e 
of

 a
n 

em
er

ge
nc

y 
or

 
 

7.
16

 
Su

bm
itt

al
s 

A.
 

Sh
op

 D
ra

w
in

g 
an

d 
Sa

m
pl

e 
Re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 

1.
 

Be
fo

re
 s

ub
m

itt
in

g 
a 

Sh
op

 D
ra

w
in

g 
or

 S
am

pl
e,

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r s

ha
ll:

 

a.
 

re
vi

ew
 a

nd
 c

oo
rd

in
at

e 
th

e 
Sh

op
 D

ra
w

in
g 

or
 S

am
pl

e 
w

ith
 o

th
er

 S
ho

p 
D

ra
w

in
gs

 a
nd

 
Sa

m
pl

es
 a

nd
 w

ith
 th

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f t
he

 W
or

k 
an

d 
th

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 D

oc
um

en
ts

; 

b.
 

de
te

rm
in

e 
an

d 
ve

rif
y:

 

1)
 

al
l f

ie
ld

 m
ea

su
re

m
en

ts
, q

ua
nt

iti
es

, d
im

en
si

on
s,

 sp
ec

ifi
ed

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 a
nd

 d
es

ig
n 

cr
ite

ria
, 

in
st

al
la

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

, 
m

at
er

ia
ls,

 c
at

al
og

 n
um

be
rs

, 
an

d 
sim

ila
r 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

w
ith

 re
sp

ec
t t

o 
th

e 
Su

bm
itt

al
; 

2)
 

th
e 

su
ita

bi
lit

y o
f a

ll 
m

at
er

ia
ls

 a
nd

 e
qu

ip
m

en
t o

ff
er

ed
 w

ith
 re

sp
ec

t t
o 

th
e 

in
di

ca
te

d 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n,
 f

ab
ric

at
io

n,
 s

hi
pp

in
g,

 h
an

dl
in

g,
 s

to
ra

ge
, a

ss
em

bl
y,

 a
nd

 in
st

al
la

tio
n 

pe
rt

ai
ni

ng
 to

 th
e 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 W

or
k;

 a
nd

 

3)
 

te
ch

ni
qu

es
, s

eq
ue

nc
es

, a
nd

 p
ro

ce
du

re
s 

of
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n,

 a
nd

 s
af

et
y 

pr
ec

au
tio

ns
 

an
d 

pr
og

ra
m

s i
nc

id
en

t t
he

re
to

; 

c.
 

co
nf

irm
 th

at
 th

e 
Su

bm
itt

al
 is

 c
om

pl
et

e 
w

ith
 re

sp
ec

t t
o 

al
l r

el
at

ed
 d

at
a 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

e 
Su

bm
itt

al
. 

2.
 

Ea
ch

 S
ho

p 
D

ra
w

in
g 

or
 S

am
pl

e 
m

us
t 

be
ar

 a
 s

ta
m

p 
or

 s
pe

ci
fic

 w
rit

te
n 

ce
rt

ifi
ca

tio
n 

th
at

 
 w

ith
 

Su
bm

itt
al

. 



 

EJ
CD

C®
 C

-7
00

, S
ta

nd
ar

d 
G

en
er

al
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 
Co

py
rig

ht
©

 2
01

8 
N

at
io

na
l S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rs
, A

m
er

ic
an

 C
ou

nc
il 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Co

m
pa

ni
es

, 
an

d 
Am

er
ic

an
 S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
s.

 A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
 

Pa
ge

 3
6 

of
 7

0 

3.
 

W
ith

 e
ac

h 
Sh

op
 D

ra
w

in
g 

or
 S

am
pl

e,
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r s
ha

ll 
gi

ve
 E

ng
in

ee
r s

pe
ci

fic
 w

rit
te

n 
no

tic
e 

of
 a

ny
 v

ar
ia

tio
ns

 t
ha

t 
th

e 
Su

bm
itt

al
 m

ay
 h

av
e 

fr
om

 t
he

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 o

f 
th

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 

D
oc

um
en

ts
. T

hi
s 

no
tic

e 
m

us
t b

e 
se

t f
or

th
 in

 a
 w

rit
te

n 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
se

pa
ra

te
 fr

om
 th

e 
Su

bm
itt

al
; a

nd
, i

n 
ad

di
tio

n,
 in

 th
e 

ca
se

 o
f a

 S
ho

p 
D

ra
w

in
g 

by
 a

 s
pe

ci
fic

 n
ot

at
io

n 
m

ad
e 

on
 

th
e 

Sh
op

 D
ra

w
in

g 
its

el
f. 

B.
 

Su
bm

itt
al

 P
ro

ce
du

re
s f

or
 S

ho
p 

Dr
aw

in
gs

 a
nd

 S
am

pl
es

: C
on

tr
ac

to
r s

ha
ll 

la
be

l a
nd

 su
bm

it 
Sh

op
 

D
ra

w
in

gs
 a

nd
 S

am
pl

es
 to

 E
ng

in
ee

r f
or

 re
vi

ew
 a

nd
 a

pp
ro

va
l i

n 
ac

co
rd

an
ce

 w
ith

 th
e 

ac
ce

pt
ed

 
Sc

he
du

le
 o

f S
ub

m
itt

al
s.

 

1.
 

Sh
op

 D
ra

w
in

gs
 

a.
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 sh

al
l s

ub
m

it 
th

e 
nu

m
be

r o
f c

op
ie

s r
eq

ui
re

d 
in

 th
e 

Sp
ec

ifi
ca

tio
ns

. 

b.
 

Da
ta

 s
ho

w
n 

on
 t

he
 S

ho
p 

D
ra

w
in

gs
 m

us
t 

be
 c

om
pl

et
e 

w
ith

 r
es

pe
ct

 t
o 

qu
an

tit
ie

s,
 

di
m

en
sio

ns
, s

pe
ci

fie
d 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 a
nd

 d
es

ig
n 

cr
ite

ria
, m

at
er

ia
ls,

 a
nd

 si
m

ila
r d

at
a 

to
 

sh
ow

 E
ng

in
ee

r 
th

e 
se

rv
ic

es
, 

m
at

er
ia

ls
, 

an
d 

eq
ui

pm
en

t 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 p
ro

po
se

s 
to

 
pr

ov
id

e,
 a

nd
 to

 e
na

bl
e 

En
gi

ne
er

 t
o 

re
vi

ew
 t

he
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 li
m

ite
d 

pu
rp

os
es

 
re

qu
ire

d 
by

 P
ar

ag
ra

ph
 7

.1
6.

C.
 

2.
 

Sa
m

pl
es

 

a.
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 sh

al
l s

ub
m

it 
th

e 
nu

m
be

r o
f S

am
pl

es
 re

qu
ire

d 
in

 th
e 

Sp
ec

ifi
ca

tio
ns

. 

b.
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 s

ha
ll 

cl
ea

rly
 id

en
tif

y 
ea

ch
 S

am
pl

e 
as

 to
 m

at
er

ia
l, 

Su
pp

lie
r, 

pe
rt

in
en

t d
at

a 
su

ch
 a

s 
ca

ta
lo

g 
nu

m
be

rs
, t

he
 u

se
 fo

r w
hi

ch
 in

te
nd

ed
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 d
at

a 
as

 E
ng

in
ee

r m
ay

 
re

qu
ire

 to
 e

na
bl

e 
En

gi
ne

er
 to

 re
vi

ew
 th

e 
Su

bm
itt

al
 fo

r t
he

 li
m

ite
d 

pu
rp

os
es

 re
qu

ire
d 

by
 P

ar
ag

ra
ph

 7
.1

6.
C.

 

3.
 

W
he

re
 a

 S
ho

p 
Dr

aw
in

g 
or

 S
am

pl
e 

is
 re

qu
ire

d 
by

 th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 D
oc

um
en

ts
 o

r t
he

 S
ch

ed
ul

e 

pe
rt

in
en

t s
ub

m
itt

al
 w

ill
 b

e 
at

 th
e 

so
le

 e
xp

en
se

 a
nd

 re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
of

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r. 

C.
 

vi
ew

 o
f S

ho
p 

D
ra

w
in

gs
 a

nd
 S

am
pl

es
 

1.
 

En
gi

ne
er

 w
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 ti
m

el
y 

re
vi

ew
 o

f S
ho

p 
D

ra
w

in
gs

 a
nd

 S
am

pl
es

 in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 

de
te

rm
in

e 
if 

th
e 

ite
m

s 
co

ve
re

d 
by

 th
e 

Su
bm

itt
al

s 
w

ill
, a

ft
er

 in
st

al
la

tio
n 

or
 in

co
rp

or
at

io
n 

in
 t

he
 W

or
k,

 c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 t
he

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 o

f 
th

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 D

oc
um

en
ts

, 
an

d 
be

 
co

m
pa

tib
le

 w
ith

 t
he

 d
es

ig
n 

co
nc

ep
t o

f t
he

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 P

ro
je

ct
 a

s 
a 

fu
nc

tio
ni

ng
 w

ho
le

 a
s 

in
di

ca
te

d 
by

 th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 D
oc

um
en

ts
. 

2.
 

ie
w

 a
nd

 a
pp

ro
va

l 
w

ill
 n

ot
 e

xt
en

d 
to

 m
ea

ns
, 

m
et

ho
ds

, 
te

ch
ni

qu
es

, 
se

qu
en

ce
s,

 o
r p

ro
ce

du
re

s 
of

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n,
 o

r t
o 

sa
fe

ty
 p

re
ca

ut
io

ns
 o

r p
ro

gr
am

s 
in

ci
de

nt
 

th
er

et
o.

 

3.
 

th
e 

as
se

m
bl

y 
in

 w
hi

ch
 th

e 
ite

m
 fu

nc
tio

ns
. 

4.
 

fr
om

 re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
fo

r 
an

y 
va

ria
tio

n 
fr

om
 t

he
 re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f t
he

 C
on

tr
ac

t D
oc

um
en

ts
 

un
le

ss
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r 
ha

s 
co

m
pl

ie
d 

w
ith

 t
he

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 o

f 
Pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

7.
16

.A
.3

 a
nd

 
En

gi
ne

er
 h

as
 g

iv
en

 w
rit

te
n 

ap
pr

ov
al

 o
f e

ac
h 

su
ch

 v
ar

ia
tio

n 
by

 s
pe

ci
fic

 w
rit

te
n 

no
ta

tio
n 

th
er

eo
f 

in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 in
 o

r 
ac

co
m

pa
ny

in
g 

th
e 

Sh
op

 D
ra

w
in

g 
or

 S
am

pl
e.

 E
ng

in
ee

r 
w

ill
 

 

EJ
CD

C®
 C

-7
00

, S
ta

nd
ar

d 
G

en
er

al
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 
Co

py
rig

ht
©

 2
01

8 
N

at
io

na
l S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rs
, A

m
er

ic
an

 C
ou

nc
il 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Co

m
pa

ni
es

, 
an

d 
Am

er
ic

an
 S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
s.

 A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
 

Pa
ge

 3
7 

of
 7

0 

do
cu

m
en

t 
an

y 
su

ch
 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 
va

ria
tio

n 
fr

om
 

th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 
of

 
th

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 

D
oc

um
en

ts
 in

 a
 F

ie
ld

 O
rd

er
 o

r o
th

er
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 C

on
tr

ac
t m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n.
 

5.
 

fr
om

 re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
fo

r c
om

pl
yi

ng
 w

ith
 th

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f P
ar

ag
ra

ph
s 

7.
16

.A
 a

nd
 B

. 

6.
 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 o
f t

he
 C

on
tr

ac
t D

oc
um

en
ts

, w
ill

 n
ot

, u
nd

er
 a

ny
 c

irc
um

st
an

ce
s,

 c
ha

ng
e 

th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 T
im

es
 o

r C
on

tr
ac

t P
ric

e,
 u

nl
es

s s
uc

h 
ch

an
ge

s a
re

 in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 a

 C
ha

ng
e 

O
rd

er
. 

7.
 

w
ill

 re
su

lt 
in

 su
ch

 it
em

 b
ec

om
in

g 
a 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 D
oc

um
en

t. 

8.
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 

sh
al

l 
pe

rf
or

m
 

th
e 

W
or

k 
in

 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 

th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 
an

d 
co

m
m

itm
en

ts
 se

t f
or

th
 in

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
Sh

op
 D

ra
w

in
gs

 a
nd

 S
am

pl
es

, s
ub

je
ct

 to
 th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 
of

 P
ar

ag
ra

ph
 7

.1
6.

C.
4.

 

D
. 

Re
su

bm
itt

al
 P

ro
ce

du
re

s 
fo

r S
ho

p 
Dr

aw
in

gs
 a

nd
 S

am
pl

es
 

1.
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 s

ha
ll 

m
ak

e 
co

rr
ec

tio
ns

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
by

 E
ng

in
ee

r 
an

d 
sh

al
l r

et
ur

n 
th

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
nu

m
be

r o
f c

or
re

ct
ed

 c
op

ie
s 

of
 S

ho
p 

D
ra

w
in

gs
 a

nd
 s

ub
m

it,
 a

s 
re

qu
ire

d,
 n

ew
 S

am
pl

es
 fo

r 
re

vi
ew

 a
nd

 a
pp

ro
va

l. 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 sh
al

l d
ire

ct
 sp

ec
ifi

c a
tt

en
tio

n 
in

 w
rit

in
g 

to
 re

vi
sio

ns
 o

th
er

 
th

an
 th

e 
co

rr
ec

tio
ns

 c
al

le
d 

fo
r b

y 
En

gi
ne

er
 o

n 
pr

ev
io

us
 S

ub
m

itt
al

s.
 

2.
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 s

ha
ll 

fu
rn

is
h 

re
qu

ire
d 

Sh
op

 D
ra

w
in

g 
an

d 
Sa

m
pl

e 
su

bm
itt

al
s 

w
ith

 s
uf

fic
ie

nt
 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

an
d 

ac
cu

ra
cy

 to
 o

bt
ai

n 
re

qu
ire

d 
ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f a
n 

ite
m

 w
ith

 n
o 

m
or

e 
th

an
 tw

o 

re
su

bm
itt

al
 o

f 
a 

Sh
op

 D
ra

w
in

g 
or

 S
am

pl
e,

 a
nd

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r 

sh
al

l 
be

 r
es

po
ns

ib
le

 f
or

 
-o

ff 
ag

ai
ns

t p
ay

m
en

ts
 

du
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 to

 s
ec

ur
e 

re
im

bu
rs

em
en

t f
or

 su
ch

 c
ha

rg
es

. 

3.
 

If 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 r
eq

ue
st

s 
a 

ch
an

ge
 o

f 
a 

pr
ev

io
us

ly
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

Sh
op

 D
ra

w
in

g 
or

 S
am

pl
e,

 

O
w

ne
r m

ay
 im

po
se

 a
 s

et
-o

ff 
ag

ai
ns

t p
ay

m
en

ts
 d

ue
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r t
o 

se
cu

re
 re

im
bu

rs
em

en
t 

fo
r s

uc
h 

ch
ar

ge
s,

 u
nl

es
s 

th
e 

ne
ed

 fo
r s

uc
h 

ch
an

ge
 is

 b
ey

on
d 

th
e 

co
nt

ro
l o

f C
on

tr
ac

to
r. 

E.
 

Su
bm

itt
al

s O
th

er
 th

an
 S

ho
p 

D
ra

w
in

gs
, S

am
pl

es
, a

nd
 O

w
ne

r-
De

le
ga

te
d 

D
es

ig
ns

 

1.
 

Th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 a
pp

ly
 to

 a
ll 

Su
bm

itt
al

s 
ot

he
r t

ha
n 

Sh
op

 D
ra

w
in

gs
, S

am
pl

es
, a

nd
 

O
w

ne
r-

de
le

ga
te

d 
de

sig
ns

: 

a.
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 s

ha
ll 

su
bm

it 
al

l s
uc

h 
Su

bm
itt

al
s 

to
 t

he
 E

ng
in

ee
r 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 t

he
 

Sc
he

du
le

 o
f 

Su
bm

itt
al

s 
an

d 
pu

rs
ua

nt
 t

o 
th

e 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 t
er

m
s 

of
 t

he
 C

on
tr

ac
t 

D
oc

um
en

ts
. 

b.
 

En
gi

ne
er

 w
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 t
im

el
y 

re
vi

ew
 o

f 
al

l s
uc

h 
Su

bm
itt

al
s 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 t

he
 

Sc
he

du
le

 o
f S

ub
m

itt
al

s a
nd

 re
tu

rn
 su

ch
 S

ub
m

itt
al

s w
ith

 a
 n

ot
at

io
n 

of
 e

ith
er

 A
cc

ep
te

d 
or

 N
ot

 A
cc

ep
te

d.
 A

ny
 su

ch
 S

ub
m

itt
al

 th
at

 is
 n

ot
 re

tu
rn

ed
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

tim
e 

es
ta

bl
ish

ed
 

in
 th

e 
Sc

he
du

le
 o

f S
ub

m
itt

al
s w

ill
 b

e 
de

em
ed

 a
cc

ep
te

d.
 

c.
 

Su
bm

itt
al

 is
 a

cc
ep

ta
bl

e 
un

de
r t

he
 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 o
f 

th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 D
oc

um
en

ts
 a

s 
to

 g
en

er
al

 f
or

m
 a

nd
 c

on
te

nt
 o

f 
th

e 
Su

bm
itt

al
. 



 

EJ
CD

C®
 C

-7
00

, S
ta

nd
ar

d 
G

en
er

al
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 
Co

py
rig

ht
©

 2
01

8 
N

at
io

na
l S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rs
, A

m
er

ic
an

 C
ou

nc
il 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Co

m
pa

ni
es

, 
an

d 
Am

er
ic

an
 S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
s.

 A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
 

Pa
ge

 3
8 

of
 7

0 

d.
 

If 
an

y 
su

ch
 S

ub
m

itt
al

 is
 n

ot
 a

cc
ep

te
d,

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r s

ha
ll 

co
nf

er
 w

ith
 E

ng
in

ee
r r

eg
ar

di
ng

 
th

e 
re

as
on

 fo
r t

he
 n

on
-a

cc
ep

ta
nc

e,
 a

nd
 re

su
bm

it 
an

 a
cc

ep
ta

bl
e 

do
cu

m
en

t. 

2.
 

Pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 fo

r 
th

e 
su

bm
itt

al
 a

nd
 a

cc
ep

ta
nc

e 
of

 t
he

 P
ro

gr
es

s 
Sc

he
du

le
, t

he
 S

ch
ed

ul
e 

of
 

Su
bm

itt
al

s,
 a

nd
 th

e 
Sc

he
du

le
 o

f V
al

ue
s a

re
 se

t f
or

th
 in

 P
ar

ag
ra

ph
s 

2.
03

. 2
.0

4,
 a

nd
 2

.0
5.

 

F.
 

O
w

ne
r-

de
le

ga
te

d 
D

es
ig

ns
: S

ub
m

itt
al

s p
ur

su
an

t t
o 

O
w

ne
r-

de
le

ga
te

d 
de

si
gn

s 
ar

e 
go

ve
rn

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
pr

ov
isi

on
s o

f P
ar

ag
ra

ph
 7

.1
9.

 

7.
17

 
 

A.
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 w

ar
ra

nt
s 

an
d 

gu
ar

an
te

es
 t

o 
O

w
ne

r 
th

at
 a

ll 
W

or
k 

w
ill

 b
e 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 D

oc
um

en
ts

 a
nd

 w
ill

 n
ot

 b
e 

w
ar

ra
nt

y 
an

d 
gu

ar
an

te
e.

 

B.
 

 1
5.

08
. T

he
 ti

m
e 

in
 w

hi
ch

 
O

w
ne

r 
m

ay
 e

nf
or

ce
 it

s 
w

ar
ra

nt
y 

an
d 

gu
ar

an
te

e 
rig

ht
s 

un
de

r 
th

is 
Pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

7.
17

 is
 li

m
ite

d 
on

ly
 b

y 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 L
aw

s 
an

d 
Re

gu
la

tio
ns

 re
st

ric
tin

g 
ac

tio
ns

 to
 e

nf
or

ce
 s

uc
h 

rig
ht

s;
 p

ro
vi

de
d,

 
ho

w
ev

er
, t

ha
t a

ft
er

 th
e 

en
d 

of
 th

e 
co

rr
ec

tio
n 

pe
rio

d 
un

de
r P

ar
ag

ra
ph

 1
5.

08
: 

1.
 

O
w

ne
r 

sh
al

l g
iv

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 w
rit

te
n 

no
tic

e 
of

 a
ny

 d
ef

ec
tiv

e 
W

or
k 

w
ith

in
 6

0 
da

ys
 o

f t
he

 
di

sc
ov

er
y 

th
at

 su
ch

 W
or

k 
is 

de
fe

ct
iv

e;
 a

nd
 

2.
 

Su
ch

 n
ot

ic
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

de
em

ed
 t

he
 s

ta
rt

 o
f 

an
 e

ve
nt

 g
iv

in
g 

ris
e 

to
 a

 C
la

im
 u

nd
er

 
Pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

12
.0

1.
B,

 s
uc

h 
th

at
 a

ny
 r

el
at

ed
 C

la
im

 m
us

t 
be

 b
ro

ug
ht

 w
ith

in
 3

0 
da

ys
 o

f t
he

 
no

tic
e.

 

C.
 

 

1.
 

ab
us

e,
 o

r 
im

pr
op

er
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n,
 m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
, 

or
 o

pe
ra

tio
n,

 b
y 

pe
rs

on
s 

ot
he

r 
th

an
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
, 

Su
bc

on
tr

ac
to

rs
, 

Su
pp

lie
rs

, 
or

 a
ny

 o
th

er
 i

nd
iv

id
ua

l 
or

 e
nt

ity
 f

or
 w

ho
m

 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 is
 re

sp
on

si
bl

e;
 o

r 

2.
 

no
rm

al
 w

ea
r a

nd
 te

ar
 u

nd
er

 n
or

m
al

 u
sa

ge
. 

D
. 

D
oc

um
en

ts
 is

 a
bs

ol
ut

e.
 N

on
e 

of
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

w
ill

 c
on

st
itu

te
 a

n 
ac

ce
pt

an
ce

 o
f W

or
k 

th
at

 is
 

w
ar

ra
nt

y 
an

d 
gu

ar
an

te
e 

rig
ht

s u
nd

er
 th

is
 P

ar
ag

ra
ph

 7
.1

7:
 

1.
 

O
bs

er
va

tio
ns

 b
y 

En
gi

ne
er

; 

2.
 

Re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
n 

by
 E

ng
in

ee
r o

r p
ay

m
en

t b
y 

O
w

ne
r o

f a
ny

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
or

 fi
na

l p
ay

m
en

t; 

3.
 

Th
e 

is
su

an
ce

 o
f 

a 
ce

rt
ifi

ca
te

 o
f 

Su
bs

ta
nt

ia
l 

Co
m

pl
et

io
n 

by
 E

ng
in

ee
r 

or
 a

ny
 p

ay
m

en
t 

re
la

te
d 

th
er

et
o 

by
 O

w
ne

r; 

4.
 

U
se

 o
r o

cc
up

an
cy

 o
f t

he
 W

or
k 

or
 a

ny
 p

ar
t t

he
re

of
 b

y 
O

w
ne

r;
 

5.
 

An
y 

re
vi

ew
 a

nd
 a

pp
ro

va
l o

f a
 S

ho
p 

Dr
aw

in
g 

or
 S

am
pl

e 
su

bm
itt

al
; 

6.
 

Th
e 

iss
ua

nc
e 

of
 a

 n
ot

ic
e 

of
 a

cc
ep

ta
bi

lit
y 

by
 E

ng
in

ee
r; 

7.
 

Th
e 

en
d 

of
 th

e 
co

rr
ec

tio
n 

pe
rio

d 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
in

 P
ar

ag
ra

ph
 1

5.
08

; 

8.
 

An
y 

in
sp

ec
tio

n,
 te

st
, o

r a
pp

ro
va

l b
y 

ot
he

rs
; o

r 

 

EJ
CD

C®
 C

-7
00

, S
ta

nd
ar

d 
G

en
er

al
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 
Co

py
rig

ht
©

 2
01

8 
N

at
io

na
l S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rs
, A

m
er

ic
an

 C
ou

nc
il 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Co

m
pa

ni
es

, 
an

d 
Am

er
ic

an
 S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
s.

 A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
 

Pa
ge

 3
9 

of
 7

0 

9.
 

An
y 

co
rr

ec
tio

n 
of

 d
ef

ec
tiv

e 
W

or
k 

by
 O

w
ne

r. 

E.
 

If 
th

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 re

qu
ire

s t
he

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r t

o 
ac

ce
pt

 th
e 

as
sig

nm
en

t o
f a

 co
nt

ra
ct

 e
nt

er
ed

 in
to

 b
y 

O
w

ne
r, 

th
en

 th
e 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

w
ar

ra
nt

ie
s,

 g
ua

ra
nt

ee
s,

 a
nd

 c
or

re
ct

io
n 

ob
lig

at
io

ns
 c

on
ta

in
ed

 in
 th

e 

fo
r t

he
 W

or
k 

de
sc

rib
ed

 in
 th

e 
as

sig
ne

d 
co

nt
ra

ct
. 

7.
18

 
In

de
m

ni
fic

at
io

n 

A.
 

To
 t

he
 f

ul
le

st
 e

xt
en

t 
pe

rm
itt

ed
 b

y 
La

w
s 

an
d 

Re
gu

la
tio

ns
, 

an
d 

in
 a

dd
iti

on
 t

o 
an

y 
ot

he
r 

ob
lig

at
io

ns
 o

f 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 u
nd

er
 t

he
 C

on
tr

ac
t 

or
 o

th
er

w
ise

, C
on

tr
ac

to
r 

sh
al

l i
nd

em
ni

fy
 a

nd
 

ho
ld

 
ha

rm
le

ss
 O

w
ne

r 
an

d 
En

gi
ne

er
, 

an
d 

th
e 

of
fic

er
s,

 
di

re
ct

or
s,

 m
em

be
rs

, 
pa

rt
ne

rs
, 

em
pl

oy
ee

s,
 a

ge
nt

s,
 c

on
su

lta
nt

s 
an

d 
su

bc
on

tr
ac

to
rs

 o
f 

ea
ch

 a
nd

 a
ny

 o
f 

th
em

, f
ro

m
 lo

ss
es

, 
da

m
ag

es
, c

os
ts

, a
nd

 ju
dg

m
en

ts
 (i

nc
lu

di
ng

 b
ut

 n
ot

 li
m

ite
d 

to
 a

ll 
fe

es
 a

nd
 c

ha
rg

es
 o

f e
ng

in
ee

rs
, 

ar
ch

ite
ct

s,
 a

tt
or

ne
ys

, a
nd

 o
th

er
 p

ro
fe

ss
io

na
ls,

 a
nd

 a
ll 

co
ur

t 
or

 a
rb

itr
at

io
n 

or
 o

th
er

 d
isp

ut
e 

re
so

lu
tio

n 
co

st
s)

 a
ris

in
g 

fr
om

 t
hi

rd
-p

ar
ty

 c
la

im
s 

or
 a

ct
io

ns
 r

el
at

in
g 

to
 o

r 
re

su
lti

ng
 fr

om
 t

he
 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 o
r 

fu
rn

ish
in

g 
of

 t
he

 W
or

k,
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

th
at

 a
ny

 s
uc

h 
cl

ai
m

, 
ac

tio
n,

 l
os

s,
 c

os
t, 

ju
dg

m
en

t o
r d

am
ag

e 
is 

at
tr

ib
ut

ab
le

 to
 b

od
ily

 in
ju

ry
, s

ic
kn

es
s,

 d
is

ea
se

, o
r d

ea
th

, o
r t

o 
da

m
ag

e 
to

 o
r 

de
st

ru
ct

io
n 

of
 ta

ng
ib

le
 p

ro
pe

rt
y 

(o
th

er
 th

an
 th

e 
W

or
k 

its
el

f),
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

lo
ss

 o
f u

se
 

re
su

lti
ng

 t
he

re
fr

om
, 

bu
t 

on
ly

 t
o 

th
e 

ex
te

nt
 c

au
se

d 
by

 a
ny

 n
eg

lig
en

t 
ac

t 
or

 o
m

is
sio

n 
of

 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

, a
ny

 S
ub

co
nt

ra
ct

or
, a

ny
 S

up
pl

ie
r, 

or
 a

ny
 in

di
vi

du
al

 o
r e

nt
ity

 d
ire

ct
ly

 o
r 

in
di

re
ct

ly
 

em
pl

oy
ed

 b
y 

an
y 

of
 th

em
 to

 p
er

fo
rm

 a
ny

 o
f t

he
 W

or
k,

 o
r a

ny
on

e 
fo

r w
ho

se
 a

ct
s a

ny
 o

f t
he

m
 

m
ay

 b
e 

lia
bl

e.
 

B.
 

In
 a

ny
 a

nd
 a

ll 
cl

ai
m

s 
ag

ai
ns

t O
w

ne
r o

r E
ng

in
ee

r, 
or

 a
ny

 o
f t

he
ir 

of
fic

er
s,

 d
ire

ct
or

s,
 m

em
be

rs
, 

pa
rt

ne
rs

, e
m

pl
oy

ee
s,

 a
ge

nt
s,

 co
ns

ul
ta

nt
s,

 o
r s

ub
co

nt
ra

ct
or

s,
 b

y 
an

y e
m

pl
oy

ee
 (o

r t
he

 su
rv

iv
or

 
or

 p
er

so
na

l r
ep

re
se

nt
at

iv
e 

of
 su

ch
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

) o
f C

on
tr

ac
to

r, 
an

y 
Su

bc
on

tr
ac

to
r, 

an
y 

Su
pp

lie
r, 

or
 a

ny
 in

di
vi

du
al

 o
r e

nt
ity

 d
ire

ct
ly

 o
r 

in
di

re
ct

ly
 e

m
pl

oy
ed

 b
y 

an
y 

of
 t

he
m

 to
 p

er
fo

rm
 a

ny
 o

f 
th

e 
W

or
k,

 o
r a

ny
on

e 
fo

r w
ho

se
 a

ct
s a

ny
 o

f t
he

m
 m

ay
 b

e 
lia

bl
e,

 th
e 

in
de

m
ni

fic
at

io
n 

ob
lig

at
io

n 
un

de
r P

ar
ag

ra
ph

 7
.1

8.
A 

w
ill

 n
ot

 b
e 

lim
ite

d 
in

 a
ny

 w
ay

 b
y 

an
y 

lim
ita

tio
n 

on
 th

e 
am

ou
nt

 o
r t

yp
e 

of
 

da
m

ag
es

, 
co

m
pe

ns
at

io
n,

 
or

 
be

ne
fit

s 
pa

ya
bl

e 
by

 
or

 
fo

r 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 
or

 
an

y 
su

ch
 

Su
bc

on
t

di
sa

bi
lit

y 
be

ne
fit

 a
ct

s,
 o

r o
th

er
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

 b
en

ef
it 

ac
ts

. 

7.
19

 
D

el
eg

at
io

n 
of

 P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l D
es

ig
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

 

A.
 

O
w

ne
r 

m
ay

 r
eq

ui
re

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 p

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l d

es
ig

n 
se

rv
ic

es
 f

or
 a

 p
or

tio
n 

of
 t

he
 

W
or

k 
by

 e
xp

re
ss

 d
el

eg
at

io
n 

in
 t

he
 C

on
tr

ac
t 

D
oc

um
en

ts
. 

Su
ch

 d
el

eg
at

io
n 

w
ill

 s
pe

ci
fy

 t
he

 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 a

nd
 d

es
ig

n 
cr

ite
ria

 t
ha

t 
su

ch
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

m
us

t 
sa

tis
fy

, 
an

d 
th

e 
Su

bm
itt

al
s 

th
at

 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 m
us

t f
ur

ni
sh

 to
 E

ng
in

ee
r w

ith
 re

sp
ec

t t
o 

th
e 

O
w

ne
r-

de
le

ga
te

d 
de

si
gn

. 

B.
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 s

ha
ll 

ca
us

e 
su

ch
 O

w
ne

r-
de

le
ga

te
d 

pr
of

es
si

on
al

 d
es

ig
n 

se
rv

ic
es

 t
o 

be
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

pu
rs

ua
nt

 t
o 

th
e 

pr
of

es
sio

na
l s

ta
nd

ar
d 

of
 c

ar
e 

by
 a

 p
ro

pe
rly

 l
ic

en
se

d 
de

si
gn

 p
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l, 
w

ho
se

 
sig

na
tu

re
 

an
d 

se
al

 
m

us
t 

ap
pe

ar
 

on
 

al
l 

dr
aw

in
gs

, 
ca

lc
ul

at
io

ns
, 

sp
ec

ifi
ca

tio
ns

, 
ce

rt
ifi

ca
tio

ns
, a

nd
 S

ub
m

itt
al

s 
pr

ep
ar

ed
 b

y 
su

ch
 d

es
ig

n 
pr

of
es

sio
na

l. 
Su

ch
 d

es
ig

n 
pr

of
es

si
on

al
 

m
us

t i
ss

ue
 a

ll 
ce

rt
ifi

ca
tio

ns
 o

f d
es

ig
n 

re
qu

ire
d 

by
 L

aw
s 

an
d 

Re
gu

la
tio

ns
. 

C.
 

If 
a 

Sh
op

 D
ra

w
in

g 
or

 o
th

er
 S

ub
m

itt
al

 re
la

te
d 

to
 th

e 
O

w
ne

r-
de

le
ga

te
d 

de
si

gn
 is

 p
re

pa
re

d 
by

 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

, a
 S

ub
co

nt
ra

ct
or

, o
r o

th
er

s 
fo

r s
ub

m
itt

al
 to

 E
ng

in
ee

r, 
th

en
 s

uc
h 

Sh
op

 D
ra

w
in

g 
or

 

su
bm

itt
ed

 b
y 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 to

 E
ng

in
ee

r. 



 

EJ
CD

C®
 C

-7
00

, S
ta

nd
ar

d 
G

en
er

al
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 
Co

py
rig

ht
©

 2
01

8 
N

at
io

na
l S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rs
, A

m
er

ic
an

 C
ou

nc
il 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Co

m
pa

ni
es

, 
an

d 
Am

er
ic

an
 S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
s.

 A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
 

Pa
ge

 4
0 

of
 7

0 

D
. 

O
w

ne
r a

nd
 E

ng
in

ee
r s

ha
ll 

be
 e

nt
itl

ed
 to

 re
ly

 u
po

n 
th

e 
ad

eq
ua

cy
, a

cc
ur

ac
y,

 a
nd

 c
om

pl
et

en
es

s 
of

 
th

e 
se

rv
ic

es
, 

ce
rt

ifi
ca

tio
ns

, 
an

d 
ap

pr
ov

al
s 

pe
rf

or
m

ed
 

or
 

pr
ov

id
ed

 
by

 
th

e 
de

si
gn

 
pr

of
es

sio
na

ls
 re

ta
in

ed
 o

r e
m

pl
oy

ed
 b

y 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 u
nd

er
 a

n 
O

w
ne

r-
de

le
ga

te
d 

de
sig

n,
 s

ub
je

ct
 

to
 t

he
 p

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l s

ta
nd

ar
d 

of
 c

ar
e 

an
d 

th
e 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 a
nd

 d
es

ig
n 

cr
ite

ria
 s

ta
te

d 
in

 t
he

 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 D

oc
um

en
ts

. 

E.
 

Pu
rs

ua
nt

 t
o 

th
is 

Pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
re

ga
rd

in
g 

de
si

gn
 d

ra
w

in
gs

, c
al

cu
la

tio
ns

, s
pe

ci
fic

at
io

ns
, c

er
tif

ic
at

io
ns

, a
nd

 o
th

er
 S

ub
m

itt
al

s 
fu

rn
ish

ed
 b

y 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 p
ur

su
an

t t
o 

an
 O

w
ne

r-
de

le
ga

te
d 

de
sig

n 
w

ill
 b

e 
on

ly
 fo

r t
he

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
lim

ite
d 

pu
rp

os
es

: 

1.
 

Ch
ec

ki
ng

 fo
r c

on
fo

rm
an

ce
 w

ith
 th

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f t
hi

s P
ar

ag
ra

ph
 7

.1
9;

 

2.
 

Co
nf

irm
in

g 
th

at
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r (
th

ro
ug

h 
its

 d
es

ig
n 

pr
of

es
sio

na
ls

) h
as

 u
se

d 
th

e 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 

an
d 

de
si

gn
 c

rit
er

ia
 sp

ec
ifi

ed
 in

 th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 D
oc

um
en

ts
; a

nd
 

3.
 

Es
ta

bl
is

hi
ng

 th
at

 th
e 

de
sig

n 
fu

rn
ish

ed
 b

y 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 is
 c

on
si

st
en

t w
ith

 th
e 

de
si

gn
 c

on
ce

pt
 

ex
pr

es
se

d 
in

 th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 D
oc

um
en

ts
. 

F.
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 s

ha
ll 

no
t 

be
 r

es
po

ns
ib

le
 f

or
 t

he
 a

de
qu

ac
y 

of
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 o

r 
de

sig
n 

cr
ite

ria
 

sp
ec

ifi
ed

 b
y 

O
w

ne
r o

r E
ng

in
ee

r. 

G
. 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 is

 n
ot

 re
qu

ire
d 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 p

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l s

er
vi

ce
s i

n 
vi

ol
at

io
n 

of
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

 L
aw

s a
nd

 
Re

gu
la

tio
ns

. 

AR
TI

CL
E 

8
O

TH
ER

 W
O

RK
 A

T 
TH

E 
SI

TE
 

8.
01

 
O

th
er

 W
or

k 

A.
 

In
 a

dd
iti

on
 t

o 
an

d 
ap

ar
t 

fr
om

 t
he

 W
or

k 
un

de
r 

th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 D
oc

um
en

ts
, t

he
 O

w
ne

r 
m

ay
 

em
pl

oy
ee

s,
 o

r 
th

ro
ug

h 
co

nt
ra

ct
s 

be
tw

ee
n 

th
e 

O
w

ne
r 

an
d 

th
ird

 p
ar

tie
s.

 O
w

ne
r 

m
ay

 a
lso

 
ar

ra
ng

e 
to

 h
av

e 
th

ird
-p

ar
ty

 u
til

ity
 o

w
ne

rs
 p

er
fo

rm
 w

or
k 

on
 t

he
ir 

ut
ili

tie
s 

an
d 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
at

 o
r 

ad
ja

ce
nt

 to
 th

e 
Si

te
. 

B.
 

r t
hr

ou
gh

 
co

nt
ra

ct
s 

fo
r s

uc
h 

ot
he

r w
or

k,
 th

en
 O

w
ne

r s
ha

ll 
gi

ve
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r w
rit

te
n 

no
tic

e 
th

er
eo

f p
rio

r 
to

 s
ta

rt
in

g 
an

y 
su

ch
 o

th
er

 w
or

k.
 If

 O
w

ne
r h

as
 a

dv
an

ce
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
re

ga
rd

in
g 

th
e 

st
ar

t o
f a

ny
 

th
ird

-p
ar

ty
 u

til
ity

 w
or

k 
th

at
 O

w
ne

r 
ha

s 
ar

ra
ng

ed
 t

o 
ta

ke
 p

la
ce

 a
t 

or
 a

dj
ac

en
t 

to
 t

he
 S

ite
, 

O
w

ne
r s

ha
ll 

pr
ov

id
e 

su
ch

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

to
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r. 

C.
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 s

ha
ll 

af
fo

rd
 p

ro
pe

r 
an

d 
sa

fe
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 th
e 

Si
te

 t
o 

ea
ch

 c
on

tr
ac

to
r 

th
at

 p
er

fo
rm

s 
su

ch
 o

th
er

 w
or

k,
 e

ac
h 

ut
ili

ty
 o

w
ne

r 
pe

rf
or

m
in

g 
ot

he
r 

w
or

k,
 a

nd
 O

w
ne

r, 
if 

O
w

ne
r 

is 

th
e 

in
tr

od
uc

tio
n 

an
d 

st
or

ag
e 

of
 m

at
er

ia
ls

 a
nd

 e
qu

ip
m

en
t 

an
d 

th
e 

ex
ec

ut
io

n 
of

 s
uc

h 
ot

he
r 

w
or

k.
 

D
. 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 s

ha
ll 

do
 a

ll 
cu

tt
in

g,
 f

itt
in

g,
 a

nd
 p

at
ch

in
g 

of
 t

he
 W

or
k 

th
at

 m
ay

 b
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 

pr
op

er
ly

 c
on

ne
ct

 o
r o

th
er

w
ise

 m
ak

e 
its

 s
ev

er
al

 p
ar

ts
 c

om
e 

to
ge

th
er

 a
nd

 p
ro

pe
rly

 in
te

gr
at

e 
w

ith
 s

uc
h 

ot
he

r 
w

or
k.

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r 

sh
al

l 
no

t 
en

da
ng

er
 a

ny
 w

or
k 

of
 o

th
er

s 
by

 c
ut

tin
g,

 
ex

ca
va

tin
g,

 o
r o

th
er

w
ise

 a
lte

rin
g 

su
ch

 w
or

k;
 p

ro
vi

de
d,

 h
ow

ev
er

, t
ha

t C
on

tr
ac

to
r m

ay
 c

ut
 o

r 
al

te
r 

ot
he

rs
' w

or
k 

w
ith

 th
e 

w
rit

te
n 

co
ns

en
t o

f E
ng

in
ee

r 
an

d 
th

e 
ot

he
rs

 w
ho

se
 w

or
k 

w
ill

 b
e 

af
fe

ct
ed

. 

 

EJ
CD

C®
 C

-7
00

, S
ta

nd
ar

d 
G

en
er

al
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 
Co

py
rig

ht
©

 2
01

8 
N

at
io

na
l S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rs
, A

m
er

ic
an

 C
ou

nc
il 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Co

m
pa

ni
es

, 
an

d 
Am

er
ic

an
 S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
s.

 A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
 

Pa
ge

 4
1 

of
 7

0 

E.
 

pe
rf

or
m

ed
 b

y 
ot

he
rs

, 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 s
ha

ll 
in

sp
ec

t 
su

ch
 o

th
er

 w
or

k 
an

d 
pr

om
pt

ly
 r

ep
or

t 
to

 
En

gi
ne

er
 i

n 
w

rit
in

g 
an

y 
de

la
ys

, d
ef

ec
ts

, 
or

 d
ef

ic
ie

nc
ie

s 
in

 s
uc

h 
ot

he
r 

w
or

k 
th

at
 r

en
de

r 
it 

rt
 w

ill
 c

on
st

itu
te

 a
n 

ac
ce

pt
an

ce
 o

f s
uc

h 
ot

he
r 

w
or

k 
as

 fi
t a

nd
 

su
ch

 o
th

er
 w

or
k.

 

F.
 

Th
e 

pr
ov

isi
on

s 
of

 t
hi

s 
ar

tic
le

 a
re

 n
ot

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 t

o 
w

or
k 

th
at

 is
 p

er
fo

rm
ed

 b
y 

th
ird

-p
ar

ty
 

ut
ili

tie
s 

or
 o

th
er

 t
hi

rd
-p

ar
ty

 e
nt

iti
es

 w
ith

ou
t 

a 
co

nt
ra

ct
 w

ith
 O

w
ne

r, 
or

 t
ha

t 
is 

pe
rf

or
m

ed
 

w
ith

ou
t 

ha
vi

ng
 b

ee
n 

ar
ra

ng
ed

 b
y 

O
w

ne
r. 

If 
su

ch
 w

or
k 

oc
cu

rs
, 

th
en

 a
ny

 r
el

at
ed

 d
el

ay
, 

di
sr

up
tio

n,
 o

r 
in

te
rf

er
en

ce
 

in
cu

rr
ed

 
by

 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 
is 

go
ve

rn
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 o

f 
Pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

4.
05

.C
.3

. 

8.
02

 
Co

or
di

na
tio

n 

A.
 

If 
O

w
ne

r i
nt

en
ds

 to
 c

on
tr

ac
t w

ith
 o

th
er

s 
fo

r t
he

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 o
f o

th
er

 w
or

k 
at

 o
r a

dj
ac

en
t t

o 

ar
ra

ng
e 

to
 h

av
e 

ut
ili

ty
 o

w
ne

rs
 p

er
fo

rm
 w

or
k 

at
 o

r a
dj

ac
en

t t
o 

th
e 

Si
te

, t
he

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
w

ill
 b

e 
se

t f
or

th
 in

 th
e 

Su
pp

le
m

en
ta

ry
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
r p

ro
vi

de
d 

to
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r p
rio

r t
o 

th
e 

st
ar

t o
f a

ny
 

su
ch

 o
th

er
 w

or
k:

 

1.
 

Th
e 

id
en

tit
y 

of
 t

he
 i

nd
iv

id
ua

l 
or

 e
nt

ity
 t

ha
t 

w
ill

 h
av

e 
au

th
or

ity
 a

nd
 r

es
po

ns
ib

ili
ty

 f
or

 
co

or
di

na
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 a
m

on
g 

th
e 

va
rio

us
 c

on
tr

ac
to

rs
; 

2.
 

An
 it

em
iza

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
m

at
te

rs
 to

 b
e 

co
ve

re
d 

by
 su

ch
 a

ut
ho

rit
y 

an
d 

re
sp

on
sib

ili
ty

; 
an

d 

3.
 

Th
e 

ex
te

nt
 o

f s
uc

h 
au

th
or

ity
 a

nd
 re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s.
 

B.
 

U
nl

es
s o

th
er

w
ise

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
in

 th
e 

Su
pp

le
m

en
ta

ry
 C

on
di

tio
ns

, O
w

ne
r s

ha
ll 

ha
ve

 so
le

 a
ut

ho
rit

y 
an

d 
re

sp
on

sib
ili

ty
 fo

r s
uc

h 
co

or
di

na
tio

n.
 

8.
03

 
Le

ga
l R

el
at

io
ns

hi
ps

 

A.
 

em
pl

oy
ee

s,
 a

ny
 o

th
er

 c
on

tr
ac

to
r 

w
or

ki
ng

 f
or

 O
w

ne
r, 

or
 a

ny
 u

til
ity

 o
w

ne
r 

th
at

 O
w

ne
r 

ha
s 

ar
ra

ng
ed

 to
 p

er
fo

rm
 w

or
k,

 c
au

se
s d

am
ag

e 
to

 th
e 

W
or

k 
or

 to
 th

e 
pr

op
er

ty
 o

f C
on

tr
ac

to
r o

r i
ts

 
Su

bc
on

tr
ac

to
rs

, o
r 

de
la

ys
, 

di
sr

up
ts

, 
in

te
rf

er
es

 w
ith

, o
r 

in
cr

ea
se

s 
th

e 
sc

op
e 

or
 c

os
t 

of
 t

he
 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 W

or
k,

 th
ro

ug
h 

ac
tio

ns
 o

r i
na

ct
io

n,
 th

en
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r s
ha

ll 
be

 e
nt

itl
ed

 to
 a

n 
eq

ui
ta

bl
e 

ad
ju

st
m

en
t i

n 
th

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 P

ric
e 

or
 th

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 T

im
es

. C
on

tr
ac

to
r m

us
t s

ub
m

it 
an

y 
Ch

an
ge

 P
ro

po
sa

l s
ee

ki
ng

 a
n 

eq
ui

ta
bl

e 
ad

ju
st

m
en

t i
n 

th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 P
ric

e 
or

 th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 T
im

es
 

un
de

r 
th

is 
pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

w
ith

in
 3

0 
da

ys
 o

f 
th

e 
da

m
ag

in
g,

 d
el

ay
in

g,
 d

isr
up

tin
g,

 o
r 

in
te

rf
er

in
g 

ev
en

t. 
Th

e 
en

tit
le

m
en

t t
o,

 a
nd

 e
xt

en
t o

f, 
an

y 
su

ch
 e

qu
ita

bl
e 

ad
ju

st
m

en
t w

ill
 ta

ke
 in

to
 a

cc
ou

nt
 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

(if
 a

ny
) r

eg
ar

di
ng

 su
ch

 o
th

er
 w

or
k t

ha
t w

as
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

to
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r i
n 

th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 
D

oc
um

en
ts

 p
rio

r 
to

 t
he

 s
ub

m
itt

al
 o

f 
th

e 
Bi

d 
or

 t
he

 f
in

al
 n

eg
ot

ia
tio

n 
of

 t
he

 t
er

m
s 

of
 t

he
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

, a
nd

 a
ny

 r
em

ed
ie

s 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

to
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r 
un

de
r 

La
w

s 
or

 R
eg

ul
at

io
ns

 c
on

ce
rn

in
g 

ut
ili

ty
 a

ct
io

n 
or

 in
ac

tio
n.

 W
he

n 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

, a
ny

 s
uc

h 
eq

ui
ta

bl
e 

ad
ju

st
m

en
t 

in
 C

on
tr

ac
t P

ric
e 

co
nt

ra
ct

or
 o

r u
til

ity
 o

w
ne

r w
ith

 re
sp

ec
t t

o 
th

e 
da

m
ag

e,
 d

el
ay

, d
isr

up
tio

n,
 o

r i
nt

er
fe

re
nc

e 
th

at
 

is
 th

e 
Ti

m
es

 o
r C

on
tr

ac
t P

ric
e 

is
 su

bj
ec

t t
o 

th
e 

pr
ov

isi
on

s o
f P

ar
ag

ra
ph

s 
4.

05
.D

 a
nd

 4
.0

5.
E.

 



 

EJ
CD

C®
 C

-7
00

, S
ta

nd
ar

d 
G

en
er

al
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 
Co

py
rig

ht
©

 2
01

8 
N

at
io

na
l S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rs
, A

m
er

ic
an

 C
ou

nc
il 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Co

m
pa

ni
es

, 
an

d 
Am

er
ic

an
 S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
s.

 A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
 

Pa
ge

 4
2 

of
 7

0 

B.
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 s

ha
ll 

ta
ke

 r
ea

so
na

bl
e 

an
d 

cu
st

om
ar

y 
m

ea
su

re
s 

to
 a

vo
id

 d
am

ag
in

g,
 d

el
ay

in
g,

 
di

sr
up

tin
g,

 o
r i

nt
er

fe
rin

g 
w

ith
 th

e 
w

or
k 

of
 O

w
ne

r, 
an

y 
ot

he
r c

on
tr

ac
to

r, 
or

 a
ny

 u
til

ity
 o

w
ne

r 
pe

rf
or

m
in

g 
ot

he
r w

or
k 

at
 o

r a
dj

ac
en

t t
o 

th
e 

Si
te

. 

1.
 

If 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 f
ai

ls
 t

o 
ta

ke
 s

uc
h 

m
ea

su
re

s 
an

d 
as

 a
 r

es
ul

t 
da

m
ag

es
, d

el
ay

s,
 d

isr
up

ts
, o

r 
in

te
rf

er
es

 w
ith

 th
e 

w
or

k 
of

 a
ny

 s
uc

h 
ot

he
r c

on
tr

ac
to

r o
r 

ut
ili

ty
 o

w
ne

r, 
th

en
 O

w
ne

r m
ay

 
im

po
se

 a
 se

t-
of

f a
ga

in
st

 p
ay

m
en

ts
 d

ue
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r, 
an

d 
as

sig
n 

to
 su

ch
 o

th
er

 co
nt

ra
ct

or
 o

r 

of
 th

e 
ob

lig
at

io
ns

 se
t f

or
th

 in
 th

is 
Pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

8.
03

.B
. 

2.
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 sh

al
l b

e 
lia

bl
e 

to
 O

w
ne

r f
or

 d
am

ag
e 

to
 su

ch
 o

th
er

 w
or

k,
 a

nd
 fo

r t
he

 re
as

on
ab

le
 

di
re

ct
 d

el
ay

, 
di

sr
up

tio
n,

 a
nd

 i
nt

er
fe

re
nc

e 
co

st
s 

in
cu

rr
ed

 b
y 

O
w

ne
r 

as
 a

 r
es

ul
t 

of
 

ot
he

r w
or

k.
 In

 r
es

po
ns

e 
to

 s
uc

h 
da

m
ag

e,
 d

el
ay

, d
isr

up
tio

n,
 o

r i
nt

er
fe

re
nc

e,
 O

w
ne

r m
ay

 
im

po
se

 a
 se

t-
of

f a
ga

in
st

 p
ay

m
en

ts
 d

ue
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r. 

C.
 

If 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 d
am

ag
es

, d
el

ay
s,

 d
is

ru
pt

s,
 o

r i
nt

er
fe

re
s 

w
ith

 th
e 

w
or

k 
of

 a
ny

 o
th

er
 c

on
tr

ac
to

r, 

fa
ilu

re
 t

o 
ta

ke
 r

ea
so

na
bl

e 
an

d 
cu

st
om

ar
y 

m
ea

su
re

s 
to

 a
vo

id
 s

uc
h 

im
pa

ct
s,

 o
r 

if 
an

y 
cl

ai
m

 

ad
ja

ce
nt

 to
 th

e 
Si

te
 is

 m
ad

e 
by

 a
ny

 su
ch

 o
th

er
 c

on
tr

ac
to

r o
r u

til
ity

 o
w

ne
r a

ga
in

st
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r, 
O

w
ne

r, 
or

 E
ng

in
ee

r, 
th

en
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r 
sh

al
l (

1)
 p

ro
m

pt
ly

 a
tt

em
pt

 t
o 

se
tt

le
 t

he
 c

la
im

 a
s 

to
 a

ll 
pa

rt
ie

s t
hr

ou
gh

 n
eg

ot
ia

tio
ns

 w
ith

 su
ch

 o
th

er
 co

nt
ra

ct
or

 o
r u

til
ity

 o
w

ne
r, 

or
 o

th
er

w
is

e 
re

so
lv

e 
th

e 
cl

ai
m

 b
y 

ar
bi

tr
at

io
n 

or
 o

th
er

 d
isp

ut
e 

re
so

lu
tio

n 
pr

oc
ee

di
ng

 o
r a

t l
aw

, a
nd

 (2
) i

nd
em

ni
fy

 
an

d 
ho

ld
 h

ar
m

le
ss

 O
w

ne
r 

an
d 

En
gi

ne
er

, 
an

d 
th

e 
of

fic
er

s,
 d

ire
ct

or
s,

 m
em

be
rs

, 
pa

rt
ne

rs
, 

em
pl

oy
ee

s,
 a

ge
nt

s,
 c

on
su

lta
nt

s a
nd

 su
bc

on
tr

ac
to

rs
 o

f e
ac

h 
an

d 
an

y 
of

 th
em

 fr
om

 a
nd

 a
ga

in
st

 
an

y 
su

ch
 c

la
im

s,
 a

nd
 a

ga
in

st
 a

ll 
co

st
s,

 lo
ss

es
, a

nd
 d

am
ag

es
 (i

nc
lu

di
ng

 b
ut

 n
ot

 li
m

ite
d 

to
 a

ll 
fe

es
 a

nd
 c

ha
rg

es
 o

f e
ng

in
ee

rs
, a

rc
hi

te
ct

s,
 a

tt
or

ne
ys

, a
nd

 o
th

er
 p

ro
fe

ss
io

na
ls

 a
nd

 a
ll 

co
ur

t o
r 

ar
bi

tr
at

io
n 

or
 o

th
er

 d
isp

ut
e 

re
so

lu
tio

n 
co

st
s)

 a
ris

in
g 

ou
t o

f o
r r

el
at

in
g 

to
 su

ch
 d

am
ag

e,
 d

el
ay

, 
di

sr
up

tio
n,

 o
r i

nt
er

fe
re

nc
e.

 

AR
TI

CL
E 

9
 

9.
01

 
Co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 to

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r 

A.
 

Ex
ce

pt
 

as
 

ot
he

rw
ise

 
pr

ov
id

ed
 

in
 

th
es

e 
G

en
er

al
 

Co
nd

iti
on

s,
 

O
w

ne
r 

sh
al

l 
is

su
e 

al
l 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 to
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r t
hr

ou
gh

 E
ng

in
ee

r. 

9.
02

 
Re

pl
ac

em
en

t o
f E

ng
in

ee
r 

A.
 

O
w

ne
r 

m
ay

 a
t 

its
 d

is
cr

et
io

n 
ap

po
in

t 
an

 e
ng

in
ee

r 
to

 r
ep

la
ce

 E
ng

in
ee

r, 
pr

ov
id

ed
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r 

st
at

us
 u

nd
er

 th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 D
oc

um
en

ts
 w

ill
 b

e 
th

at
 o

f t
he

 fo
rm

er
 E

ng
in

ee
r.

 

9.
03

 
Fu

rn
is

h 
D

at
a 

A.
 

O
w

ne
r s

ha
ll 

pr
om

pt
ly

 fu
rn

is
h 

th
e 

da
ta

 re
qu

ire
d 

of
 O

w
ne

r u
nd

er
 th

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 D

oc
um

en
ts

. 

9.
04

 
Pa

y 
W

he
n 

Du
e 

A.
 

O
w

ne
r s

ha
ll 

m
ak

e 
pa

ym
en

ts
 to

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r w

he
n 

th
ey

 a
re

 d
ue

 a
s p

ro
vi

de
d 

in
 th

e 
Ag

re
em

en
t. 

 

EJ
CD

C®
 C

-7
00

, S
ta

nd
ar

d 
G

en
er

al
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 
Co

py
rig

ht
©

 2
01

8 
N

at
io

na
l S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rs
, A

m
er

ic
an

 C
ou

nc
il 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Co

m
pa

ni
es

, 
an

d 
Am

er
ic

an
 S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
s.

 A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
 

Pa
ge

 4
3 

of
 7

0 

9.
05

 
La

nd
s 

an
d 

Ea
se

m
en

ts
; R

ep
or

ts
, T

es
ts

, a
nd

 D
ra

w
in

gs
 

A.
 

pe
ct

 to
 p

ro
vi

di
ng

 la
nd

s a
nd

 e
as

em
en

ts
 a

re
 se

t f
or

th
 in

 P
ar

ag
ra

ph
 5

.0
1.

 

B.
 

ar
e 

se
t f

or
th

 in
 P

ar
ag

ra
ph

 4
.0

3.
 

C.
 

Ar
tic

le
 

la
bl

e 
to

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r c

op
ie

s o
f r

ep
or

ts
 o

f 
ex

pl
or

at
io

ns
 a

nd
 te

st
s 

of
 c

on
di

tio
ns

 a
t t

he
 S

ite
, a

nd
 d

ra
w

in
gs

 o
f p

hy
sic

al
 c

on
di

tio
ns

 re
la

tin
g 

to
 e

xi
st

in
g 

su
rf

ac
e 

or
 su

bs
ur

fa
ce

 st
ru

ct
ur

es
 a

t t
he

 S
ite

. 

9.
06

 
In

su
ra

nc
e 

A.
 

ct
 t

o 
pu

rc
ha

sin
g 

an
d 

m
ai

nt
ai

ni
ng

 l
ia

bi
lit

y 
an

d 
pr

op
er

ty
 in

su
ra

nc
e 

ar
e 

se
t f

or
th

 in
 A

rt
ic

le
 6

. 

9.
07

 
Ch

an
ge

 O
rd

er
s 

A.
 

 1
1.

 

9.
08

 
In

sp
ec

tio
ns

, T
es

ts
, a

nd
 A

pp
ro

va
ls 

A.
 

sib
ili

ty
 w

ith
 re

sp
ec

t t
o 

ce
rt

ai
n 

in
sp

ec
tio

ns
, t

es
ts

, a
nd

 a
pp

ro
va

ls
 is

 s
et

 fo
rt

h 
in

 
Pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

14
.0

2.
B.

 

9.
09

 
 

A.
 

Th
e 

O
w

ne
r s

ha
ll 

no
t s

up
er

vi
se

, d
ire

ct
, o

r h
av

e 
co

nt
ro

l o
r 

au
th

or
ity

 o
ve

r, 
no

r 
be

 re
sp

on
sib

le
 

fo
r, 

Co
nt

ra
ct

th
e 

sa
fe

ty
 p

re
ca

ut
io

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
gr

am
s 

in
ci

de
nt

 t
he

re
to

, 
or

 f
or

 a
ny

 f
ai

lu
re

 o
f 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 t

o 
co

m
pl

y 
w

ith
 L

aw
s a

nd
 R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

 to
 th

e 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 o

f t
he

 W
or

k.
 O

w
ne

r w
ill

 n
ot

 

D
oc

um
en

ts
. 

9.
10

 
U

nd
is

cl
os

ed
 H

az
ar

do
us

 E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l C
on

di
tio

n 

A.
 

fo
rt

h 
in

 P
ar

ag
ra

ph
 5

.0
6.

 

9.
11

 
Ev

id
en

ce
 o

f F
in

an
ci

al
 A

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 

A.
 

U
po

n 
re

qu
es

t 
of

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r, 

O
w

ne
r 

sh
al

l 
fu

rn
ish

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r 

re
as

on
ab

le
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

th
at

 

(in
cl

ud
in

g 
ob

lig
at

io
ns

 u
nd

er
 p

ro
po

se
d 

ch
an

ge
s i

n 
th

e 
W

or
k)

. 

9.
12

 
Sa

fe
ty

 P
ro

gr
am

s 

A.
 

 

B.
 

O
w

ne
r s

ha
ll 

fu
rn

is
h 

co
pi

es
 o

f a
ny

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 O

w
ne

r s
af

et
y 

pr
og

ra
m

s t
o 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
. 



 

EJ
CD

C®
 C

-7
00

, S
ta

nd
ar

d 
G

en
er

al
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 
Co

py
rig

ht
©

 2
01

8 
N

at
io

na
l S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rs
, A

m
er

ic
an

 C
ou

nc
il 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Co

m
pa

ni
es

, 
an

d 
Am

er
ic

an
 S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
s.

 A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
 

Pa
ge

 4
4 

of
 7

0 

AR
TI

CL
E 

10
 

10
.0

1 
 

A.
 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

ar
e 

se
t f

or
th

 in
 th

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
. 

10
.0

2 
Vi

si
ts

 to
 S

ite
 

A.
 

En
gi

ne
er

 w
ill

 m
ak

e 
vi

sit
s 

to
 t

he
 S

ite
 a

t 
in

te
rv

al
s 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 t

o 
th

e 
va

rio
us

 s
ta

ge
s 

of
 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

as
 E

ng
in

ee
r 

de
em

s 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

in
 o

rd
er

 t
o 

ob
se

rv
e,

 a
s 

an
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

ed
 a

nd
 

qu
al

ifi
ed

 d
es

ig
n 

pr
of

es
sio

na
l, 

th
e 

pr
og

re
ss

 th
at

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
m

ad
e 

an
d 

th
e 

qu
al

ity
 o

f t
he

 v
ar

io
us

 
sit

s a
nd

 
ob

se
rv

at
io

ns
, E

ng
in

ee
r, 

fo
r 

th
e 

be
ne

fit
 o

f 
O

w
ne

r, 
w

ill
 d

et
er

m
in

e,
 in

 g
en

er
al

, i
f 

th
e 

W
or

k 
is 

pr
oc

ee
di

ng
 in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 t
he

 C
on

tr
ac

t 
D

oc
um

en
ts

. E
ng

in
ee

r 
w

ill
 n

ot
 b

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 
m

ak
e 

ex
ha

us
tiv

e 
or

 c
on

tin
uo

us
 in

sp
ec

tio
ns

 o
n 

th
e 

Si
te

 to
 c

he
ck

 th
e 

qu
al

ity
 o

r q
ua

nt
ity

 o
f t

he
 

co
nf

id
en

ce
 th

at
 th

e 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 W
or

k 
w

ill
 c

on
fo

rm
 g

en
er

al
ly

 to
 th

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 D

oc
um

en
ts

. O
n 

th
e 

ba
si

s o
f s

uc
h 

vi
sit

s a
nd

 o
bs

er
va

tio
ns

, E
ng

in
ee

r w
ill

 k
ee

p 
O

w
ne

r i
nf

or
m

ed
 o

f t
he

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
of

 th
e 

W
or

k 
an

d 
w

ill
 e

nd
ea

vo
r t

o 
gu

ar
d 

O
w

ne
r a

ga
in

st
 d

ef
ec

tiv
e 

W
or

k.
 

B.
 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
se

t f
or

th
 in

 P
ar

ag
ra

ph
 1

0.
07

. P
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly

, b
ut

 w
ith

ou
t l

im
ita

tio
n,

 d
ur

in
g 

or
 a

s 
a 

te
ch

ni
qu

es
, 

se
qu

en
ce

s,
 o

r 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 o
f 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n,

 o
r 

th
e 

sa
fe

ty
 p

re
ca

ut
io

ns
 a

nd
 

pr
og

ra
m

s 
in

ci
de

nt
 t

he
re

to
, 

or
 f

or
 a

ny
 f

ai
lu

re
 o

f 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 t
o 

co
m

pl
y 

w
ith

 L
aw

s 
an

d 
Re

gu
la

tio
ns

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 to

 th
e 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 W

or
k.

 

10
.0

3 
Re

sid
en

t P
ro

je
ct

 R
ep

re
se

nt
at

iv
e 

A.
 

If 
O

w
ne

r 
an

d 
En

gi
ne

er
 

ha
ve

 
ag

re
ed

 
th

at
 

En
gi

ne
er

 
w

ill
 

fu
rn

is
h 

a 
Re

sid
en

t 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
Re

pr
es

en
ta

tiv
e 

to
 re

pr
es

en
t E

ng
in

ee
r a

t t
he

 S
ite

 a
nd

 a
ss

is
t E

ng
in

ee
r i

n 
ob

se
rv

in
g 

th
e 

pr
og

re
ss

 
an

d 
qu

al
ity

 o
f t

he
 W

or
k,

 th
en

 th
e 

au
th

or
ity

 a
nd

 re
sp

on
sib

ili
tie

s 
of

 a
ny

 s
uc

h 
Re

si
de

nt
 P

ro
je

ct
 

Re
pr

es
en

ta
tiv

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
as

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
in

 th
e 

Su
pp

le
m

en
ta

ry
 C

on
di

tio
ns

, a
nd

 li
m

ita
tio

ns
 o

n 
th

e 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s 
th

er
eo

f 
w

ill
 b

e 
as

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
in

 t
he

 S
up

pl
em

en
ta

ry
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 a
nd

 i
n 

Pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
10

.0
7.

 

B.
 

If 
O

w
ne

r 
de

si
gn

at
es

 a
n 

in
di

vi
du

al
 o

r 
en

tit
y 

w
ho

 i
s 

no
t 

En
em

pl
oy

ee
 t

o 
re

pr
es

en
t 

O
w

ne
r 

at
 t

he
 S

ite
, 

th
en

 t
he

 r
es

po
ns

ib
ili

tie
s 

an
d 

au
th

or
ity

 o
f 

su
ch

 
in

di
vi

du
al

 o
r e

nt
ity

 w
ill

 b
e 

as
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

in
 th

e 
Su

pp
le

m
en

ta
ry

 C
on

di
tio

ns
. 

10
.0

4 
 

A.
 

En
gi

ne
er

 h
as

 th
e 

au
th

or
ity

 to
 re

je
ct

 W
or

k 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 A
rt

ic
le

 1
4.

 

B.
 

 7
.1

6.
 

C.
 

ot
he

r S
ub

m
itt

al
s f

ro
m

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r i

n 
re

sp
on

se
 t

pr
of

es
sio

na
l d

es
ig

n 
se

rv
ic

es
, i

s 
se

t f
or

th
 in

 P
ar

ag
ra

ph
 7

.1
9.

 

D
. 

 1
1.

 

 

EJ
CD

C®
 C

-7
00

, S
ta

nd
ar

d 
G

en
er

al
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 
Co

py
rig

ht
©

 2
01

8 
N

at
io

na
l S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rs
, A

m
er

ic
an

 C
ou

nc
il 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Co

m
pa

ni
es

, 
an

d 
Am

er
ic

an
 S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
s.

 A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
 

Pa
ge

 4
5 

of
 7

0 

E.
 

fo
rt

h 
in

 A
rt

ic
le

 1
5.

 

10
.0

5 
D

et
er

m
in

at
io

ns
 fo

r U
ni

t P
ric

e 
W

or
k 

A.
 

En
gi

ne
er

 w
ill

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

th
e 

ac
tu

al
 q

ua
nt

iti
es

 a
nd

 cl
as

sif
ic

at
io

ns
 o

f U
ni

t P
ric

e 
W

or
k 

pe
rf

or
m

ed
 

by
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r a
s s

et
 fo

rt
h 

in
 P

ar
ag

ra
ph

 1
3.

03
. 

10
.0

6 
D

ec
isi

on
s o

n 
Re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f C
on

tr
ac

t D
oc

um
en

ts
 a

nd
 A

cc
ep

ta
bi

lit
y 

of
 W

or
k 

A.
 

En
gi

ne
er

 w
ill

 r
en

de
r 

de
ci

si
on

s 
re

ga
rd

in
g 

th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 o
f t

he
 C

on
tr

ac
t 

Do
cu

m
en

ts
, a

nd
 

ju
dg

e 
th

e 
ac

ce
pt

ab
ili

ty
 o

f t
he

 W
or

k,
 p

ur
su

an
t t

o 
th

e 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 s
et

 fo
rt

h 
he

re
in

 fo
r 

in
iti

al
 i

nt
er

pr
et

at
io

ns
, 

Ch
an

ge
 P

ro
po

sa
ls,

 a
nd

 a
cc

ep
ta

nc
e 

of
 t

he
 W

or
k.

 I
n 

re
nd

er
in

g 
su

ch
 

de
ci

si
on

s 
an

d 
ju

dg
m

en
ts

, E
ng

in
ee

r w
ill

 n
ot

 s
ho

w
 p

ar
tia

lit
y 

to
 O

w
ne

r o
r C

on
tr

ac
to

r, 
an

d 
w

ill
 

no
t 

be
 l

ia
bl

e 
to

 O
w

ne
r, 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
, 

or
 o

th
er

s 
in

 c
on

ne
ct

io
n 

w
ith

 a
ny

 p
ro

ce
ed

in
gs

, 
in

te
rp

re
ta

tio
ns

, d
ec

is
io

ns
, o

r j
ud

gm
en

ts
 c

on
du

ct
ed

 o
r r

en
de

re
d 

in
 g

oo
d 

fa
ith

. 

10
.0

7 
 

A.
 

 1
0 

or
 u

nd
er

 a
ny

 o
th

er
 

pr
ov

isi
on

 o
f t

he
 C

on
tr

ac
t, 

no
r a

ny
 d

ec
is

io
n 

m
ad

e 
by

 E
ng

in
ee

r i
n 

go
od

 fa
ith

 e
ith

er
 to

 e
xe

rc
ise

 
or

 n
ot

 e
xe

rc
is

e 
su

ch
 a

ut
ho

rit
y 

or
 re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

or
 th

e 
un

de
rt

ak
in

g,
 e

xe
rc

ise
, o

r p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
of

 a
ny

 a
ut

ho
rit

y 
or

 re
sp

on
sib

ili
ty

 b
y 

En
gi

ne
er

, w
ill

 c
re

at
e,

 im
po

se
, o

r g
iv

e 
ris

e 
to

 a
ny

 d
ut

y 
in

 
co

nt
ra

ct
, t

or
t, 

or
 o

th
er

w
is

e 
ow

ed
 b

y 
En

gi
ne

er
 to

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r, 

an
y 

Su
bc

on
tr

ac
to

r, 
an

y 
Su

pp
lie

r, 
an

y 
ot

he
r i

nd
iv

id
ua

l o
r e

nt
ity

, o
r t

o 
an

y 
su

re
ty

 fo
r o

r e
m

pl
oy

ee
 o

r a
ge

nt
 o

f a
ny

 o
f t

he
m

. 

B.
 

En
gi

ne
er

 w
ill

 n
ot

 s
up

er
vi

se
, 

di
re

ct
, 

co
nt

ro
l, 

or
 h

av
e 

au
th

or
ity

 o
ve

r 
or

 b
e 

re
sp

on
si

bl
e 

fo
r 

Co
nt

r
sa

fe
ty

 p
re

ca
ut

io
ns

 a
nd

 p
ro

gr
am

s 
in

ci
de

nt
 th

er
et

o,
 o

r f
or

 a
ny

 fa
ilu

re
 o

f C
on

tr
ac

to
r t

o 
co

m
pl

y 
w

ith
 L

aw
s 

an
d 

Re
gu

la
tio

ns
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

 to
 th

e 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 o

f t
he

 W
or

k.
 E

ng
in

ee
r 

w
ill

 n
ot

 b
e 

D
oc

um
en

ts
. 

C.
 

En
gi

ne
er

 w
ill

 n
ot

 b
e 

re
sp

on
sib

le
 f

or
 t

he
 a

ct
s 

or
 o

m
iss

io
ns

 o
f 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 o

r 
of

 a
ny

 
Su

bc
on

tr
ac

to
r, 

an
y 

Su
pp

lie
r, 

or
 o

f a
ny

 o
th

er
 in

di
vi

du
al

 o
r e

nt
ity

 p
er

fo
rm

in
g 

an
y 

of
 th

e 
W

or
k.

 

D
. 

al
l 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 a
nd

 o
pe

ra
tin

g 
in

st
ru

ct
io

ns
, 

sc
he

du
le

s,
 g

ua
ra

nt
ee

s,
 b

on
ds

, 
ce

rt
ifi

ca
te

s 
of

 
in

sp
ec

tio
n,

 t
es

ts
 a

nd
 a

pp
ro

va
ls

, 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

do
cu

m
en

ta
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 b
e 

de
liv

er
ed

 b
y 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 u

nd
er

 P
ar

ag
ra

ph
 1

5.
06

.A
, w

ill
 o

nl
y 

be
 t

o 
de

te
rm

in
e 

ge
ne

ra
lly

 t
ha

t t
he

ir 
co

nt
en

t 
co

m
pl

ie
s 

w
ith

 th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 o
f, 

an
d 

in
 t

he
 c

as
e 

of
 c

er
tif

ic
at

es
 o

f i
ns

pe
ct

io
ns

, t
es

ts
, a

nd
 

ap
pr

ov
al

s,
 th

at
 th

e 
re

su
lts

 c
er

tif
ie

d 
in

di
ca

te
 c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 D

oc
um

en
ts

. 

E.
 

Th
e 

lim
ita

tio
ns

 u
po

n 
au

th
or

ity
 a

nd
 re

sp
on

sib
ili

ty
 s

et
 fo

rt
h 

in
 th

is
 P

ar
ag

ra
ph

 1
0.

07
 a

ls
o 

ap
pl

y 
to

 th
e 

Re
si

de
nt

 P
ro

je
ct

 R
ep

re
se

nt
at

iv
e,

 if
 a

ny
. 

10
.0

8 
Co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 S

af
et

y 
Pr

og
ra

m
 

A.
 

W
hi

le
 

be
en

 in
fo

rm
ed

. 



 

EJ
CD

C®
 C

-7
00

, S
ta

nd
ar

d 
G

en
er

al
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 
Co

py
rig

ht
©

 2
01

8 
N

at
io

na
l S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rs
, A

m
er

ic
an

 C
ou

nc
il 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Co

m
pa

ni
es

, 
an

d 
Am

er
ic

an
 S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
s.

 A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
 

Pa
ge

 4
6 

of
 7

0 

AR
TI

CL
E 

11
CH

AN
G

ES
 T

O
 T

H
E 

CO
N

TR
AC

T 

11
.0

1 
Am

en
di

ng
 a

nd
 S

up
pl

em
en

tin
g 

th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 

A.
 

Th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 m
ay

 b
e 

am
en

de
d 

or
 su

pp
le

m
en

te
d 

by
 a

 C
ha

ng
e 

O
rd

er
, a

 W
or

k 
Ch

an
ge

 D
ire

ct
iv

e,
 

or
 a

 F
ie

ld
 O

rd
er

. 

B.
 

If 
an

 a
m

en
dm

en
t o

r 
su

pp
le

m
en

t 
to

 t
he

 C
on

tr
ac

t i
nc

lu
de

s 
a 

ch
an

ge
 in

 t
he

 C
on

tr
ac

t 
Pr

ic
e 

or
 

th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 T
im

es
, s

uc
h 

am
en

dm
en

t o
r s

up
pl

em
en

t m
us

t b
e 

se
t f

or
th

 in
 a

 C
ha

ng
e 

O
rd

er
. 

C.
 

Al
l c

ha
ng

es
 t

o 
th

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 t

ha
t 

in
vo

lv
e 

(1
) t

he
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 o

r 
ac

ce
pt

ab
ili

ty
 o

f 
th

e 
W

or
k,

 
(2

) t
he

 d
es

ig
n 

(a
s 

se
t 

fo
rt

h 
in

 t
he

 D
ra

w
in

gs
, 

Sp
ec

ifi
ca

tio
ns

, 
or

 o
th

er
w

is
e)

, 
or

 (
3)

 o
th

er
 

en
gi

ne
er

in
g 

or
 

an
d 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 m

ay
 a

m
en

d 
ot

he
r 

te
rm

s 
an

d 
co

nd
iti

on
s 

of
 t

he
 C

on
tr

ac
t 

w
ith

ou
t 

th
e 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
En

gi
ne

er
. 

11
.0

2 
Ch

an
ge

 O
rd

er
s 

A.
 

O
w

ne
r a

nd
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r s
ha

ll 
ex

ec
ut

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 C
ha

ng
e 

O
rd

er
s c

ov
er

in
g:

 

1.
 

Ch
an

ge
s i

n 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 P

ric
e 

or
 C

on
tr

ac
t T

im
es

 w
hi

ch
 a

re
 a

gr
ee

d 
to

 b
y 

th
e 

pa
rt

ie
s, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
an

y 
un

di
sp

ut
ed

 s
um

 o
r a

m
ou

nt
 o

f t
im

e 
fo

r W
or

k 
ac

tu
al

ly
 p

er
fo

rm
ed

 in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 

a 
W

or
k 

Ch
an

ge
 D

ire
ct

iv
e;

 

2.
 

Ch
an

ge
s 

in
 C

on
tr

ac
t 

Pr
ic

e 
re

su
lti

ng
 f

ro
m

 a
n 

O
w

ne
r 

se
t-

of
f, 

un
le

ss
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r 
ha

s 
du

ly
 

co
nt

es
te

d 
su

ch
 se

t-o
ff;

 

3.
 

Ch
an

ge
s 

in
 t

he
 W

or
k 

w
hi

ch
 a

re
: 

(a
) o

rd
er

ed
 b

y 
O

w
ne

r 
pu

rs
ua

nt
 t

o 
Pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

11
.0

5,
 

(b
) 

 1
4.

04
 o

r 
O

w
n

 1
4.

07
, o

r 
(c

) a
gr

ee
d 

to
 b

y 
th

e 

in
vo

lv
es

 th
e 

de
si

gn
 (a

s 
se

t f
or

th
 in

 t
he

 D
ra

w
in

gs
, S

pe
ci

fic
at

io
ns

, o
r 

ot
he

rw
ise

) o
r 

ot
he

r 
en

gi
ne

er
in

g 
or

 te
ch

ni
ca

l m
at

te
rs

; a
nd

 

4.
 

Ch
an

ge
s 

th
at

 
em

bo
dy

 
th

e 
su

bs
ta

nc
e 

of
 

an
y 

fin
al

 
an

d 
bi

nd
in

g 
re

su
lts

 
un

de
r: 

Pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
11

.0
3.

B,
 r

es
ol

vi
ng

 t
he

 im
pa

ct
 o

f 
a 

W
or

k 
Ch

an
ge

 D
ire

ct
iv

e;
 P

ar
ag

ra
ph

 1
1.

09
, 

co
nc

er
ni

ng
 C

ha
ng

e 
Pr

op
os

al
s;

 A
rt

ic
le

 1
2,

 C
la

im
s;

 P
ar

ag
ra

ph
 1

3.
02

.D
, 

fin
al

 a
dj

us
tm

en
ts

 
re

su
lti

ng
 

fr
om

 
al

lo
w

an
ce

s;
 

Pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
13

.0
3.

D,
 

fin
al

 
ad

ju
st

m
en

ts
 

re
la

tin
g 

to
 

de
te

rm
in

at
io

n 
of

 q
ua

nt
iti

es
 fo

r U
ni

t P
ric

e 
W

or
k;

 a
nd

 si
m

ila
r p

ro
vi

sio
ns

. 

B.
 

If 
O

w
ne

r 
or

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r 

re
fu

se
s 

to
 e

xe
cu

te
 a

 C
ha

ng
e 

O
rd

er
 t

ha
t 

is
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

to
 b

e 
ex

ec
ut

ed
 

un
de

r 
th

e 
te

rm
s 

of
 P

ar
ag

ra
ph

 1
1.

02
.A

, i
t w

ill
 b

e 
de

em
ed

 t
o 

be
 o

f f
ul

l f
or

ce
 a

nd
 e

ff
ec

t, 
as

 if
 

fu
lly

 e
xe

cu
te

d.
 

11
.0

3 
W

or
k 

Ch
an

ge
 D

ire
ct

iv
es

 

A.
 

A 
W

or
k 

Ch
an

ge
 D

ire
ct

iv
e 

w
ill

 n
ot

 c
ha

ng
e 

th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 P
ric

e 
or

 t
he

 C
on

tr
ac

t 
Ti

m
es

 b
ut

 is
 

ev
id

en
ce

 t
ha

t 
th

e 
pa

rt
ie

s 
ex

pe
ct

 t
ha

t 
th

e 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
or

de
re

d 
or

 d
oc

um
en

te
d 

by
 a

 W
or

k 
Ch

an
ge

 D
ire

ct
iv

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
in

co
rp

or
at

ed
 i

n 
a 

su
bs

eq
ue

nt
ly

 i
ss

ue
d 

Ch
an

ge
 O

rd
er

, 
fo

llo
w

in
g  

Pr
ic

e 
an

d 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 T

im
es

; o
r, 

if 
ne

go
tia

tio
ns

 a
re

 u
ns

uc
ce

ss
fu

l, 
by

 a
 d

et
er

m
in

at
io

n 
un

de
r 

th
e 

te
rm

s 
of

 
th

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 

Do
cu

m
en

ts
 

go
ve

rn
in

g 
ad

ju
st

m
en

ts
, 

ex
pr

es
sly

 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

Pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
11

.0
7 

re
ga

rd
in

g 
ch

an
ge

 o
f C

on
tr

ac
t P

ric
e.

 

 

EJ
CD

C®
 C

-7
00

, S
ta

nd
ar

d 
G

en
er

al
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 
Co

py
rig

ht
©

 2
01

8 
N

at
io

na
l S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rs
, A

m
er

ic
an

 C
ou

nc
il 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Co

m
pa

ni
es

, 
an

d 
Am

er
ic

an
 S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
s.

 A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
 

Pa
ge

 4
7 

of
 7

0 

B.
 

If 
O

w
ne

r h
as

 is
su

ed
 a

 W
or

k 
Ch

an
ge

 D
ire

ct
iv

e 
an

d:
 

1.
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 b

el
ie

ve
s 

th
at

 a
n 

ad
ju

st
m

en
t i

n 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 T

im
es

 o
r C

on
tr

ac
t P

ric
e 

is
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

, 
th

en
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r 
sh

al
l s

ub
m

it 
an

y 
Ch

an
ge

 P
ro

po
sa

l s
ee

ki
ng

 s
uc

h 
an

 a
dj

us
tm

en
t 

no
 la

te
r 

th
an

 3
0 

da
ys

 a
ft

er
 th

e 
co

m
pl

et
io

n 
of

 th
e 

W
or

k 
se

t o
ut

 in
 th

e 
W

or
k 

Ch
an

ge
 D

ire
ct

iv
e.

 

2.
 

O
w

ne
r b

el
ie

ve
s t

ha
t a

n 
ad

ju
st

m
en

t i
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 T
im

es
 o

r C
on

tr
ac

t P
ric

e 
is

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
, t

he
n 

O
w

ne
r 

sh
al

l s
ub

m
it 

an
y 

Cl
ai

m
 s

ee
ki

ng
 s

uc
h 

an
 a

dj
us

tm
en

t 
no

 la
te

r 
th

an
 6

0 
da

ys
 a

ft
er

 
is

su
an

ce
 o

f t
he

 W
or

k 
Ch

an
ge

 D
ire

ct
iv

e.
 

11
.0

4 
Fi

el
d 

O
rd

er
s 

A.
 

En
gi

ne
er

 m
ay

 a
ut

ho
riz

e 
m

in
or

 c
ha

ng
es

 i
n 

th
e 

W
or

k 
if 

th
e 

ch
an

ge
s 

do
 n

ot
 i

nv
ol

ve
 a

n 
ad

ju
st

m
en

t 
in

 t
he

 C
on

tr
ac

t P
ric

e 
or

 th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 T
im

es
 a

nd
 a

re
 c

om
pa

tib
le

 w
ith

 th
e 

de
si

gn
 

co
nc

ep
t 

of
 t

he
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 P
ro

je
ct

 a
s 

a 
fu

nc
tio

ni
ng

 w
ho

le
 a

s 
in

di
ca

te
d 

by
 t

he
 C

on
tr

ac
t 

D
oc

um
en

ts
. S

uc
h 

ch
an

ge
s w

ill
 b

e 
ac

co
m

pl
ish

ed
 b

y 
a 

Fi
el

d 
O

rd
er

 a
nd

 w
ill

 b
e 

bi
nd

in
g 

on
 O

w
ne

r 
an

d 
al

so
 o

n 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

, w
hi

ch
 s

ha
ll 

pe
rf

or
m

 th
e 

W
or

k 
in

vo
lv

ed
 p

ro
m

pt
ly

. 

B.
 

If 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 b
el

ie
ve

s 
th

at
 a

 F
ie

ld
 O

rd
er

 j
us

tif
ie

s 
an

 a
dj

us
tm

en
t 

in
 t

he
 C

on
tr

ac
t 

Pr
ic

e 
or

 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 T

im
es

, t
he

n 
be

fo
re

 p
ro

ce
ed

in
g 

w
ith

 t
he

 W
or

k 
at

 is
su

e,
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r 
sh

al
l s

ub
m

it 
a 

Ch
an

ge
 P

ro
po

sa
l a

s p
ro

vi
de

d 
he

re
in

. 

11
.0

5 
O

w
ne

r-
Au

th
or

ize
d 

Ch
an

ge
s i

n 
th

e 
W

or
k 

A.
 

W
ith

ou
t i

nv
al

id
at

in
g 

th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 a
nd

 w
ith

ou
t n

ot
ic

e 
to

 a
ny

 s
ur

et
y,

 O
w

ne
r m

ay
, a

t a
ny

 ti
m

e 
or

 fr
om

 ti
m

e 
to

 ti
m

e,
 o

rd
er

 a
dd

iti
on

s,
 d

el
et

io
ns

, o
r r

ev
is

io
ns

 in
 th

e 
W

or
k.

 C
ha

ng
es

 in
vo

lv
in

g 
th

e 
de

si
gn

 (a
s s

et
 fo

rt
h 

in
 th

e 
D

ra
w

in
gs

, S
pe

ci
fic

at
io

ns
, o

r o
th

er
w

is
e)

 o
r o

th
er

 e
ng

in
ee

rin
g 

or
 

m
en

da
tio

n.
 

B.
 

Su
ch

 c
ha

ng
es

 in
 th

e 
W

or
k 

m
ay

 b
e 

ac
co

m
pl

is
he

d 
by

 a
 C

ha
ng

e 
O

rd
er

, i
f O

w
ne

r a
nd

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r 

ha
ve

 a
gr

ee
d 

as
 to

 th
e 

ef
fe

ct
, i

f a
ny

, o
f t

he
 c

ha
ng

es
 o

n 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 T

im
es

 o
r C

on
tr

ac
t P

ric
e;

 o
r b

y 
a 

W
or

k 
Ch

an
ge

 D
ire

ct
iv

e.
 U

po
n 

re
ce

ip
t 

of
 a

ny
 s

uc
h 

do
cu

m
en

t, 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 s
ha

ll 
pr

om
pt

ly
 

pr
oc

ee
d 

w
ith

 t
he

 W
or

k 
in

vo
lv

ed
; o

r, 
in

 t
he

 c
as

e 
of

 a
 d

el
et

io
n 

in
 t

he
 W

or
k,

 p
ro

m
pt

ly
 c

ea
se

 
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 w

ith
 r

es
pe

ct
 t

o 
su

ch
 d

el
et

ed
 W

or
k.

 A
dd

ed
 o

r 
re

vi
se

d 
W

or
k 

m
us

t 
be

 
pe

rf
or

m
ed

 u
nd

er
 th

e 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 c
on

di
tio

ns
 o

f t
he

 C
on

tr
ac

t D
oc

um
en

ts
. 

C.
 

N
ot

hi
ng

 i
n 

th
is 

Pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
11

.0
5 

ob
lig

at
es

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r 

to
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

 w
or

k 
th

at
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r 

ob
lig

at
io

ns
 u

nd
er

 th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 D
oc

um
en

ts
 o

r L
aw

s a
nd

 R
eg

ul
at

io
ns

. 

11
.0

6 
U

na
ut

ho
riz

ed
 C

ha
ng

es
 in

 th
e 

W
or

k 

A.
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 s

ha
ll 

no
t 

be
 e

nt
itl

ed
 t

o 
an

 in
cr

ea
se

 in
 t

he
 C

on
tr

ac
t 

Pr
ic

e 
or

 a
n 

ex
te

ns
io

n 
of

 t
he

 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 T

im
es

 w
ith

 r
es

pe
ct

 t
o 

an
y 

w
or

k 
pe

rf
or

m
ed

 t
ha

t 
is 

no
t 

re
qu

ire
d 

by
 t

he
 C

on
tr

ac
t 

D
oc

um
en

ts
, a

s 
am

en
de

d,
 m

od
ifi

ed
, o

r s
up

pl
em

en
te

d,
 e

xc
ep

t i
n 

th
e 

ca
se

 o
f a

n 
em

er
ge

nc
y 

as
 

pr
ov

id
ed

 
in

 
Pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

7.
15

 
or

 
in

 
th

e 
ca

se
 

of
 

un
co

ve
rin

g 
W

or
k 

as
 

pr
ov

id
ed

 
in

 
Pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

14
.0

5.
C.

2.
 

11
.0

7 
Ch

an
ge

 o
f C

on
tr

ac
t P

ric
e 

A.
 

Th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 P
ric

e 
m

ay
 o

nl
y 

be
 c

ha
ng

ed
 b

y 
a 

Ch
an

ge
 O

rd
er

. A
ny

 C
ha

ng
e 

Pr
op

os
al

 f
or

 a
n 

ad
ju

st
m

en
t 

in
 t

he
 C

on
tr

ac
t 

Pr
ic

e 
m

us
t 

co
m

pl
y 

w
ith

 th
e 

pr
ov

isi
on

s 
of

 P
ar

ag
ra

ph
 1

1.
09

. A
ny

 
Cl

ai
m

 fo
r a

n 
ad

ju
st

m
en

t o
f C

on
tr

ac
t P

ric
e 

m
us

t c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 o

f A
rt

ic
le

 1
2.

 

B.
 

An
 a

dj
us

tm
en

t i
n 

th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 P
ric

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
de

te
rm

in
ed

 a
s 

fo
llo

w
s:

 



 

EJ
CD

C®
 C

-7
00

, S
ta

nd
ar

d 
G

en
er

al
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 
Co

py
rig

ht
©

 2
01

8 
N

at
io

na
l S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rs
, A

m
er

ic
an

 C
ou

nc
il 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Co

m
pa

ni
es

, 
an

d 
Am

er
ic

an
 S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
s.

 A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
 

Pa
ge

 4
8 

of
 7

0 

1.
 

W
he

re
 th

e 
W

or
k 

in
vo

lv
ed

 is
 c

ov
er

ed
 b

y 
un

it 
pr

ic
es

 c
on

ta
in

ed
 in

 th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 D
oc

um
en

ts
, 

th
en

 b
y 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

of
 s

uc
h 

un
it 

pr
ic

es
 to

 th
e 

qu
an

tit
ie

s 
of

 th
e 

ite
m

s 
in

vo
lv

ed
 (s

ub
je

ct
 to

 
th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 o
f P

ar
ag

ra
ph

 1
3.

03
); 

2.
 

W
he

re
 t

he
 W

or
k 

in
vo

lv
ed

 i
s 

no
t 

co
ve

re
d 

by
 u

ni
t 

pr
ic

es
 c

on
ta

in
ed

 i
n 

th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 
D

oc
um

en
ts

, t
he

n 
by

 a
 m

ut
ua

lly
 a

gr
ee

d 
lu

m
p 

su
m

 (w
hi

ch
 m

ay
 in

cl
ud

e 
an

 a
llo

w
an

ce
 fo

r 
ov

er
he

ad
 a

nd
 p

ro
fit

 n
ot

 n
ec

es
sa

ril
y 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 P

ar
ag

ra
ph

 1
1.

07
.C

.2
); 

or
 

3.
 

W
he

re
 t

he
 W

or
k 

in
vo

lv
ed

 i
s 

no
t 

co
ve

re
d 

by
 u

ni
t 

pr
ic

es
 c

on
ta

in
ed

 i
n 

th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 
D

oc
um

en
ts

 a
nd

 th
e 

pa
rt

ie
s 

do
 n

ot
 re

ac
h 

m
ut

ua
l a

gr
ee

m
en

t t
o 

a 
lu

m
p 

su
m

, t
he

n 
on

 th
e 

ba
si

s 
of

 t
he

 C
os

t 
of

 t
he

 W
or

k 
(d

et
er

m
in

ed
 a

s 
pr

ov
id

ed
 i

n 
Pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

13
.0

1)
 p

lu
s 

a 
ro

fit
 (d

et
er

m
in

ed
 a

s 
pr

ov
id

ed
 in

 P
ar

ag
ra

ph
 1

1.
07

.C
). 

C.
 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 a

s f
ol

lo
w

s:
 

1.
 

A 
m

ut
ua

lly
 a

cc
ep

ta
bl

e 
fix

ed
 fe

e;
 o

r 

2.
 

If 
a 

fix
ed

 fe
e 

is
 n

ot
 a

gr
ee

d 
up

on
, t

he
n 

a 
fe

e 
ba

se
d 

on
 t

he
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
s 

of
 t

he
 

va
rio

us
 p

or
tio

ns
 o

f t
he

 C
os

t o
f t

he
 W

or
k:

 

a.
 

Fo
r c

os
ts

 in
cu

rr
ed

 u
nd

er
 P

ar
ag

ra
ph

s 
be

 1
5 

pe
rc

en
t; 

b.
 

Fo
r c

os
ts

 in
cu

rr
ed

 u
nd

er
 P

ar
ag

ra
ph

 1
3.

01
.B

.3
, t

he
 

 

c.
 

W
he

re
 o

ne
 o

r m
or

e 
tie

rs
 o

f s
ub

co
nt

ra
ct

s 
ar

e 
on

 th
e 

ba
si

s 
of

 C
os

t o
f t

he
 W

or
k 

pl
us

 a
 

fe
e 

an
d 

no
 f

ix
ed

 f
ee

 i
s 

ag
re

ed
 u

po
n,

 t
he

 i
nt

en
t 

of
 P

ar
ag

ra
ph

s 
11

.0
7.

C.
2.

a 
an

d 
on

: (
1)

 a
 fe

e 
of

 1
5 

pe
rc

en
t o

f t
he

 
co

st
s 

in
cu

rr
ed

 u
nd

er
 P

ar
ag

ra
ph

s 
13

.0
1.

B.
1 

an
d 

13
.0

1.
B.

2 
by

 t
he

 S
ub

co
nt

ra
ct

or
 th

at
 

ac
tu

al
ly

 p
er

fo
rm

s t
he

 W
or

k,
 a

t w
ha

te
ve

r t
ie

r, 
an

d 
(2

) w
ith

 re
sp

ec
t t

o 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 it
se

lf 
an

d 
to

 a
ny

 S
ub

co
nt

ra
ct

or
s o

f a
 ti

er
 h

ig
he

r t
ha

n 
th

at
 o

f t
he

 S
ub

co
nt

ra
ct

or
 th

at
 a

ct
ua

lly
 

pe
rf

or
m

s 
th

e 
W

or
k,

 a
 f

ee
 o

f 
5 

pe
rc

en
t 

of
 t

he
 a

m
ou

nt
 (

fe
e 

pl
us

 u
nd

er
ly

in
g 

co
st

s 
in

cu
rr

ed
) a

tt
rib

ut
ab

le
 to

 th
e 

ne
xt

 lo
w

er
 ti

er
 S

ub
co

nt
ra

ct
or

; p
ro

vi
de

d,
 h

ow
ev

er
, t

ha
t 

fo
r a

ny
 su

ch
 s

ub
co

nt
ra

ct
ed

 W
or

k 
th

e 
m

ax
im

um
 to

ta
l f

ee
 to

 b
e 

pa
id

 b
y 

O
w

ne
r w

ill
 b

e 
no

 g
re

at
er

 t
ha

n 
27

 p
er

ce
nt

 o
f t

he
 c

os
ts

 in
cu

rr
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

Su
bc

on
tr

ac
to

r 
th

at
 a

ct
ua

lly
 

pe
rf

or
m

s 
th

e 
W

or
k;

 

d.
 

N
o 

fe
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

pa
ya

bl
e 

on
 t

he
 b

as
is

 o
f 

co
st

s 
ite

m
iz

ed
 u

nd
er

 P
ar

ag
ra

ph
s 1

3.
01

.B
.4

, 
13

.0
1.

B.
5,

 a
nd

 1
3.

01
.C

; 

e.
 

Th
e 

am
ou

nt
 o

f c
re

di
t 

to
 b

e 
al

lo
w

ed
 b

y 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 t
o 

O
w

ne
r 

fo
r 

an
y 

ch
an

ge
 w

hi
ch

 
re

su
lts

 in
 a

 n
et

 d
ec

re
as

e 
in

 C
os

t 
of

 t
he

 W
or

k 
w

ill
 b

e 
th

e 
am

ou
nt

 o
f 

th
e 

ac
tu

al
 n

et
 

de
cr

ea
se

 i
n 

Co
st

 o
f 

th
e 

W
or

k 
an

d 
a 

de
du

ct
io

n 
of

 a
n 

ad
di

tio
na

l a
m

ou
nt

 e
qu

al
 t

o 
5 

pe
rc

en
t o

f s
uc

h 
ac

tu
al

 n
et

 d
ec

re
as

e 
in

 C
os

t o
f t

he
 W

or
k;

 a
nd

 

f. 
W

he
n 

bo
th

 a
dd

iti
on

s 
an

d 
cr

ed
its

 a
re

 in
vo

lv
ed

 in
 a

ny
 o

ne
 c

ha
ng

e 
or

 C
ha

ng
e 

Pr
op

os
al

, 

co
st

s 
in

 e
ac

h 
of

 th
e 

co
st

 c
at

eg
or

ie
s 

in
 P

ar
ag

ra
ph

 1
3.

01
.B

 (s
pe

ci
fic

al
ly

, p
ay

ro
ll 

co
st

s,
 

Pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
13

.0
1.

B.
1;

 
in

co
rp

or
at

ed
 

m
at

er
ia

ls 
an

d 
eq

ui
pm

en
t 

co
st

s, 
Pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

13
.0

1.
B.

2;
 S

ub
co

nt
ra

ct
 c

os
ts

, 
Pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

13
.0

1.
B.

3;
 s

pe
ci

al
 c

on
su

lta
nt

s 
co

st
s,

 P
ar

ag
ra

ph
 1

3.
01

.B
.4

; 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

co
st

s,
 P

ar
ag

ra
ph

 1
3.

01
.B

.5
) 

an
d 

ap
pl

yi
ng

 t
o 

ea
ch

 s
uc

h 
co

st
 c

at
eg

or
y 

su
m

 t
he

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 f
ee

 f
ro

m
 P

ar
ag

ra
ph

s 
11

.0
7.

C.
2.

a 
th

ro
ug

h 
11

.0
7.

C.
2.

e,
 in

cl
us

iv
e.

 

 

EJ
CD

C®
 C

-7
00

, S
ta

nd
ar

d 
G

en
er

al
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 
Co

py
rig

ht
©

 2
01

8 
N

at
io

na
l S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rs
, A

m
er

ic
an

 C
ou

nc
il 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Co

m
pa

ni
es

, 
an

d 
Am

er
ic

an
 S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
s.

 A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
 

Pa
ge

 4
9 

of
 7

0 

11
.0

8 
Ch

an
ge

 o
f C

on
tr

ac
t T

im
es

 

A.
 

Th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 T
im

es
 m

ay
 o

nl
y 

be
 c

ha
ng

ed
 b

y 
a 

Ch
an

ge
 O

rd
er

. A
ny

 C
ha

ng
e 

Pr
op

os
al

 fo
r 

an
 

ad
ju

st
m

en
t 

in
 th

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 T

im
es

 m
us

t c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 th
e 

pr
ov

isi
on

s 
of

 P
ar

ag
ra

ph
 1

1.
09

. A
ny

 
Cl

ai
m

 fo
r a

n 
ad

ju
st

m
en

t i
n 

th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 T
im

es
 m

us
t c

om
pl

y 
w

ith
 th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 o
f A

rt
ic

le
 1

2.
 

B.
 

De
la

y,
 d

is
ru

pt
io

n,
 a

nd
 in

te
rf

er
en

ce
 in

 th
e 

W
or

k,
 a

nd
 a

ny
 re

la
te

d 
ch

an
ge

s 
in

 C
on

tr
ac

t T
im

es
, 

ar
e 

ad
dr

es
se

d 
in

 a
nd

 g
ov

er
ne

d 
by

 P
ar

ag
ra

ph
 4

.0
5.

 

11
.0

9 
Ch

an
ge

 P
ro

po
sa

ls 

A.
 

Pu
rp

os
e 

an
d 

Co
nt

en
t:

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r 

sh
al

l s
ub

m
it 

a 
Ch

an
ge

 P
ro

po
sa

l t
o 

En
gi

ne
er

 t
o 

re
qu

es
t 

an
 

ad
ju

st
m

en
t 

in
 t

he
 C

on
tr

ac
t 

Ti
m

es
 o

r 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 P

ric
e;

 c
on

te
st

 a
n 

in
iti

al
 d

ec
is

io
n 

by
 E

ng
in

ee
r 

co
nc

er
ni

ng
 t

he
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

 o
f t

he
 C

on
tr

ac
t 

Do
cu

m
en

ts
 o

r 
re

la
tin

g 
to

 t
he

 a
cc

ep
ta

bi
lit

y 
of

 
th

e 
W

or
k 

un
de

r 
th

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 D

oc
um

en
ts

; c
ha

lle
ng

e 
a 

se
t-

of
f a

ga
in

st
 p

ay
m

en
t d

ue
; o

r 
se

ek
 

ot
he

r 
re

lie
f 

un
de

r 
th

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
. T

he
 C

ha
ng

e 
Pr

op
os

al
 w

ill
 s

pe
ci

fy
 a

ny
 p

ro
po

se
d 

ch
an

ge
 in

 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 T

im
es

 o
r 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 P
ric

e,
 o

r 
ot

he
r 

pr
op

os
ed

 r
el

ie
f, 

an
d 

ex
pl

ai
n 

th
e 

re
as

on
 f

or
 t

he
 

pr
op

os
ed

 c
ha

ng
e,

 w
ith

 c
ita

tio
ns

 t
o 

an
y 

go
ve

rn
in

g 
or

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 p

ro
vi

si
on

s 
of

 t
he

 C
on

tr
ac

t 
D

oc
um

en
ts

. E
ac

h 
Ch

an
ge

 P
ro

po
sa

l w
ill

 a
dd

re
ss

 o
nl

y 
on

e 
iss

ue
, o

r 
a 

se
t 

of
 c

lo
se

ly
 r

el
at

ed
 

is
su

es
. 

B.
 

Ch
an

ge
 P

ro
po

sa
l P

ro
ce

du
re

s 

1.
 

Su
bm

itt
al

: C
on

tr
ac

to
r s

ha
ll 

su
bm

it 
ea

ch
 C

ha
ng

e 
Pr

op
os

al
 to

 E
ng

in
ee

r w
ith

in
 3

0 
da

ys
 a

ft
er

 
th

e 
st

ar
t o

f t
he

 e
ve

nt
 g

iv
in

g 
ris

e 
th

er
et

o,
 o

r a
ft

er
 s

uc
h 

in
iti

al
 d

ec
isi

on
. 

2.
 

Su
pp

or
tin

g 
Da

ta
: T

he
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r 
sh

al
l s

ub
m

it 
su

pp
or

tin
g 

da
ta

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 t

he
 p

ro
po

se
d 

ch
an

ge
 in

 C
on

tr
ac

t 
Pr

ic
e 

or
 C

on
tr

ac
t 

Ti
m

e 
(if

 a
ny

), 
to

 t
he

 E
ng

in
ee

r 
an

d 
O

w
ne

r 
w

ith
in

 
15

 d
ay

s 
af

te
r t

he
 s

ub
m

itt
al

 o
f t

he
 C

ha
ng

e 
Pr

op
os

al
. 

a.
 

Ch
an

ge
 P

ro
po

sa
ls

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
or

 r
el

at
ed

 t
o 

de
la

y,
 in

te
rr

up
tio

n,
 o

r 
in

te
rf

er
en

ce
 m

us
t 

co
m

pl
y 

w
ith

 th
e 

pr
ov

isi
on

s o
f P

ar
ag

ra
ph

s 
4.

05
.D

 a
nd

 4
.0

5.
E.

 

b.
 

Ch
an

ge
 p

ro
po

sa
ls

 re
la

te
d 

to
 a

 c
ha

ng
e 

of
 C

on
tr

ac
t P

ric
e 

m
us

t i
nc

lu
de

 fu
ll 

an
d 

de
ta

ile
d 

ac
co

un
ts

 o
f m

at
er

ia
ls

 in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 in
to

 th
e 

W
or

k 
an

d 
la

bo
r a

nd
 e

qu
ip

m
en

t u
se

d 
fo

r 
th

e 
su

bj
ec

t W
or

k.
 

Th
e 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
da

ta
 m

us
t 

be
 a

cc
om

pa
ni

ed
 b

y 
a 

w
rit

te
n 

st
at

em
en

t 
th

at
 t

he
 s

up
po

rt
in

g 
da

ta
 a

re
 a

cc
ur

at
e 

an
d 

co
m

pl
et

e,
 a

nd
 th

at
 a

ny
 re

qu
es

te
d 

tim
e 

or
 p

ric
e 

ad
ju

st
m

en
t i

s 
th

e 
en

tir
e 

ad
ju

st
m

en
t t

o 
w

hi
ch

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r b

el
ie

ve
s i

t i
s e

nt
itl

ed
 a

s a
 re

su
lt 

of
 s

ai
d 

ev
en

t. 

3.
 

: E
ng

in
ee

r w
ill

 a
dv

is
e 

O
w

ne
r r

eg
ar

di
ng

 th
e 

Ch
an

ge
 P

ro
po

sa
l, 

an
d 

co
ns

id
er

 a
ny

 c
om

m
en

ts
 o

r r
es

po
ns

e 
fr

om
 O

w
ne

r r
eg

ar
di

ng
 th

e 
Ch

an
ge

 P
ro

po
sa

l. 
If 

in
 it

s 
di

sc
re

tio
n 

En
gi

ne
er

 
co

nc
lu

de
s 

th
at

 
ad

di
tio

na
l 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
da

ta
 

is 
ne

ed
ed

 
be

fo
re

 
co

nd
uc

tin
g 

a 
fu

ll 
re

vi
ew

 a
nd

 m
ak

in
g 

a 
de

ci
sio

n 
re

ga
rd

in
g 

th
e 

Ch
an

ge
 P

ro
po

sa
l, 

th
en

 
En

gi
ne

er
 m

ay
 re

qu
es

t t
ha

t C
on

tr
ac

to
r s

ub
m

it 
su

ch
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 s
up

po
rt

in
g 

da
ta

 b
y 

a 
da

te
 

sp
ec

ifi
ed

 b
y 

En
gi

ne
er

, p
rio

r t
o 

En
gi

ne
er

 b
eg

in
ni

ng
 it

s 
fu

ll 
re

vi
ew

 o
f t

he
 C

ha
ng

e 
Pr

op
os

al
. 

4.
 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
da

ta
 (

in
cl

ud
in

g 
an

y 
ad

di
tio

na
l 

da
ta

 r
eq

ue
st

ed
 b

y 
En

gi
ne

er
), 

En
gi

ne
er

 w
ill

 
co

nd
uc

t a
 fu

ll 
re

vi
ew

 o
f e

ac
h 

Ch
an

ge
 P

ro
po

sa
l a

nd
, w

ith
in

 3
0 

da
ys

 a
ft

er
 s

uc
h 

re
ce

ip
t 

of
 

w
ho

le
, o

r 
ap

pr
ov

e 
it 

in
 p

ar
t a

nd
 d

en
y 

it 
in

 p
ar

t. 
Su

ch
 a

ct
io

ns
 m

us
t b

e 
in

 w
rit

in
g,

 w
ith

 a
 

co
py

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
to

 O
w

ne
r a

nd
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r. 
If 

En
gi

ne
er

 d
oe

s 
no

t t
ak

e 
ac

tio
n 

on
 th

e 
Ch

an
ge

 



 

EJ
CD

C®
 C

-7
00

, S
ta

nd
ar

d 
G

en
er

al
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 
Co

py
rig

ht
©

 2
01

8 
N

at
io

na
l S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rs
, A

m
er

ic
an

 C
ou

nc
il 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Co

m
pa

ni
es

, 
an

d 
Am

er
ic

an
 S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
s.

 A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
 

Pa
ge

 5
0 

of
 7

0 

Pr
op

os
al

 w
ith

in
 3

0 
da

ys
, t

he
n 

ei
th

er
 O

w
ne

r 
or

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r 

m
ay

 a
t 

an
y 

tim
e 

th
er

ea
ft

er
 

Ch
an

ge
 P

ro
po

sa
l i

s 
de

em
ed

 d
en

ie
d,

 t
he

re
by

 c
om

m
en

ci
ng

 t
he

 t
im

e 
fo

r 
ap

pe
al

 o
f 

th
e 

de
ni

al
 u

nd
er

 A
rt

ic
le

 1
2.

 

5.
 

Bi
nd

in
g 

De
ci

sio
n

un
le

ss
 O

w
ne

r o
r C

on
tr

ac
to

r a
pp

ea
ls

 th
e 

de
ci

si
on

 b
y 

fil
in

g 
a 

Cl
ai

m
 u

nd
er

 A
rt

ic
le

 1
2.

 

C.
 

Re
so

lu
tio

n 
of

 C
er

ta
in

 C
ha

ng
e 

Pr
op

os
al

s:
 If

 t
he

 C
ha

ng
e 

Pr
op

os
al

 d
oe

s 
no

t i
nv

ol
ve

 th
e 

de
si

gn
 

(a
s 

se
t f

or
th

 in
 th

e 
Dr

aw
in

gs
, S

pe
ci

fic
at

io
ns

, o
r o

th
er

w
is

e)
, t

he
 a

cc
ep

ta
bi

lit
y 

of
 th

e 
W

or
k,

 o
r 

ot
he

r 
en

gi
ne

er
in

g 
or

 t
ec

hn
ic

al
 m

at
te

rs
, t

he
n 

En
gi

ne
er

 w
ill

 n
ot

ify
 t

he
 p

ar
tie

s 
in

 w
rit

in
g 

th
at

 
th

e 
En

gi
ne

er
 is

 u
na

bl
e 

to
 re

so
lv

e 
th

e 
Ch

an
ge

 P
ro

po
sa

l. 
Fo

r p
ur

po
se

s 
of

 fu
rt

he
r r

es
ol

ut
io

n 
of

 
su

ch
 a

 C
ha

ng
e 

Pr
op

os
al

, s
uc

h 
no

tic
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

de
em

ed
 a

 d
en

ia
l, 

an
d 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 m

ay
 c

ho
os

e 
to

 
se

ek
 re

so
lu

tio
n 

un
de

r t
he

 te
rm

s o
f A

rt
ic

le
 1

2.
 

D
. 

Po
st

-C
om

pl
et

io
n:

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r 

sh
al

l n
ot

 s
ub

m
it 

an
y 

Ch
an

ge
 P

ro
po

sa
ls

 a
ft

er
 E

ng
in

ee
r 

iss
ue

s 
a 

w
rit

te
n 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
n 

of
 fi

na
l p

ay
m

en
t p

ur
su

an
t t

o 
Pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

15
.0

6.
B.

 

11
.1

0 
N

ot
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 S
ur

et
y 

A.
 

If 
th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 o
f a

ny
 b

on
d 

re
qu

ire
 n

ot
ic

e 
to

 b
e 

gi
ve

n 
to

 a
 su

re
ty

 o
f a

ny
 c

ha
ng

e 
af

fe
ct

in
g 

th
e 

ge
ne

ra
l s

co
pe

 o
f t

he
 W

or
k 

or
 t

he
 p

ro
vi

sio
ns

 o
f t

he
 C

on
tr

ac
t D

oc
um

en
ts

 (i
nc

lu
di

ng
, b

ut
 n

ot
 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y.
 T

he
 a

m
ou

nt
 o

f e
ac

h 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 b
on

d 
w

ill
 b

e 
ad

ju
st

ed
 t

o 
re

fle
ct

 t
he

 e
ffe

ct
 o

f 
an

y 
su

ch
 c

ha
ng

e.
 

AR
TI

CL
E 

12
CL

A
IM

S 

12
.0

1 
Cl

ai
m

s 

A.
 

Cl
ai

m
s 

Pr
oc

es
s:

 T
he

 f
ol

lo
w

in
g 

di
sp

ut
es

 b
et

w
ee

n 
O

w
ne

r 
an

d 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 a
re

 s
ub

je
ct

 t
o 

th
e 

Cl
ai

m
s p

ro
ce

ss
 se

t f
or

th
 in

 th
is 

ar
tic

le
: 

1.
 

 d
ec

is
io

ns
 re

ga
rd

in
g 

Ch
an

ge
 P

ro
po

sa
ls

; 

2.
 

O
w

ne
r d

em
an

ds
 fo

r 
ad

ju
st

m
en

ts
 in

 th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 P
ric

e 
or

 C
on

tr
ac

t T
im

es
, o

r o
th

er
 re

lie
f 

un
de

r t
he

 C
on

tr
ac

t D
oc

um
en

ts
; 

3.
 

D
isp

ut
es

 th
at

 E
ng

in
ee

r h
as

 b
ee

n 
un

ab
le

 to
 a

dd
re

ss
 b

ec
au

se
 th

ey
 d

o 
no

t i
nv

ol
ve

 th
e 

de
sig

n 
(a

s 
se

t f
or

th
 in

 th
e 

D
ra

w
in

gs
, S

pe
ci

fic
at

io
ns

, o
r o

th
er

w
ise

), 
th

e 
ac

ce
pt

ab
ili

ty
 o

f t
he

 W
or

k,
 

or
 o

th
er

 e
ng

in
ee

rin
g 

or
 te

ch
ni

ca
l m

at
te

rs
; a

nd
 

4.
 

Su
bj

ec
t 

to
 t

he
 w

ai
ve

r 
pr

ov
isi

on
s 

of
 P

ar
ag

ra
ph

 1
5.

07
, a

ny
 d

is
pu

te
 a

ris
in

g 
af

te
r 

En
gi

ne
er

 
ha

s i
ss

ue
d 

a 
w

rit
te

n 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 
of

 fi
na

l p
ay

m
en

t p
ur

su
an

t t
o 

Pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
15

.0
6.

B.
 

B.
 

Su
bm

itt
al

 o
f C

la
im

: T
he

 p
ar

ty
 s

ub
m

itt
in

g 
a 

Cl
ai

m
 sh

al
l d

el
iv

er
 it

 d
ire

ct
ly

 to
 th

e 
ot

he
r p

ar
ty

 to
 

th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 p
ro

m
pt

ly
 (b

ut
 in

 n
o 

ev
en

t l
at

er
 th

an
 3

0 
da

ys
) a

fte
r t

he
 s

ta
rt

 o
f t

he
 e

ve
nt

 g
iv

in
g 

ris
e 

th
er

et
o;

 in
 th

e 
ca

se
 o

f a
pp

ea
ls

 re
ga

rd
in

g 
Ch

an
ge

 P
ro

po
sa

ls 
w

ith
in

 3
0 

da
ys

 o
f t

he
 d

ec
is

io
n 

un
de

r a
pp

ea
l. 

Th
e 

pa
rt

y 
su

bm
itt

in
g 

th
e 

Cl
ai

m
 sh

al
l a

lso
 fu

rn
ish

 a
 c

op
y 

to
 th

e 
En

gi
ne

er
, f

or
 it

s 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
on

ly
. T

he
 re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

to
 s

ub
st

an
tia

te
 a

 C
la

im
 r

es
ts

 w
ith

 t
he

 p
ar

ty
 m

ak
in

g 
th

e 
Cl

ai
m

. I
n 

th
e 

ca
se

 o
f 

a 
Cl

ai
m

 b
y 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 s

ee
ki

ng
 a

n 
in

cr
ea

se
 in

 t
he

 C
on

tr
ac

t 
Ti

m
es

 o
r 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 P
ric

e,
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r 
sh

al
l 

ce
rt

ify
 t

ha
t 

th
e 

Cl
ai

m
 i

s 
m

ad
e 

in
 g

oo
d 

fa
ith

, 
th

at
 t

he
 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
da

ta
 a

re
 a

cc
ur

at
e 

an
d 

co
m

pl
et

e,
 a

nd
 th

at
 to

 th
e 

 

EJ
CD

C®
 C

-7
00

, S
ta

nd
ar

d 
G

en
er

al
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 
Co

py
rig

ht
©

 2
01

8 
N

at
io

na
l S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rs
, A

m
er

ic
an

 C
ou

nc
il 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Co

m
pa

ni
es

, 
an

d 
Am

er
ic

an
 S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
s.

 A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
 

Pa
ge

 5
1 

of
 7

0 

an
d 

be
lie

f 
th

e 
am

ou
nt

 o
f 

tim
e 

or
 m

on
ey

 r
eq

ue
st

ed
 a

cc
ur

at
el

y 
re

fle
ct

s 
th

e 
fu

ll 
am

ou
nt

 t
o 

w
hi

ch
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r i
s e

nt
itl

ed
. 

C.
 

Re
vi

ew
 a

nd
 R

es
ol

ut
io

n:
 T

he
 p

ar
ty

 r
ec

ei
vi

ng
 a

 C
la

im
 s

ha
ll 

re
vi

ew
 it

 t
ho

ro
ug

hl
y,

 g
iv

in
g 

fu
ll 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

n 
to

 i
ts

 m
er

its
. 

Th
e 

tw
o 

pa
rt

ie
s 

sh
al

l 
se

ek
 t

o 
re

so
lv

e 
th

e 
Cl

ai
m

 t
hr

ou
gh

 t
he

 
ex

ch
an

ge
 o

f 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
an

d 
di

re
ct

 n
eg

ot
ia

tio
ns

. 
Th

e 
pa

rt
ie

s 
m

ay
 e

xt
en

d 
th

e 
tim

e 
fo

r 
re

so
lv

in
g 

th
e 

Cl
ai

m
 b

y 
m

ut
ua

l a
gr

ee
m

en
t. 

Al
l a

ct
io

ns
 ta

ke
n 

on
 a

 C
la

im
 w

ill
 b

e 
st

at
ed

 in
 w

rit
in

g 
an

d 
su

bm
itt

ed
 to

 th
e 

ot
he

r p
ar

ty
, w

ith
 a

 c
op

y 
to

 E
ng

in
ee

r. 

D
. 

M
ed

ia
tio

n 

1.
 

At
 a

ny
 t

im
e 

af
te

r 
in

iti
at

io
n 

of
 a

 C
la

im
, O

w
ne

r 
an

d 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 m
ay

 m
ut

ua
lly

 a
gr

ee
 t

o 
m

ed
ia

tio
n 

of
 t

he
 u

nd
er

ly
in

g 
di

sp
ut

e.
 T

he
 a

gr
ee

m
en

t 
to

 m
ed

ia
te

 w
ill

 s
ta

y 
th

e 
Cl

ai
m

 
su

bm
itt

al
 a

nd
 re

sp
on

se
 p

ro
ce

ss
. 

2.
 

If 
O

w
ne

r 
an

d 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 a
gr

ee
 t

o 
m

ed
ia

tio
n,

 t
he

n 
af

te
r 

60
 d

ay
s 

fr
om

 s
uc

h 
ag

re
em

en
t, 

ei
th

er
 O

w
ne

r 
or

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r 

m
ay

 u
ni

la
te

ra
lly

 t
er

m
in

at
e 

th
e 

m
ed

ia
tio

n 
pr

oc
es

s,
 a

nd
 t

he
 

Cl
ai

m
 s

ub
m

itt
al

 a
nd

 d
ec

isi
on

 p
ro

ce
ss

 w
ill

 re
su

m
e 

as
 o

f t
he

 d
at

e 
of

 th
e 

te
rm

in
at

io
n.

 If
 th

e 
m

ed
ia

tio
n 

pr
oc

ee
ds

 b
ut

 is
 u

ns
uc

ce
ss

fu
l i

n 
re

so
lv

in
g 

th
e 

di
sp

ut
e,

 th
e 

Cl
ai

m
 su

bm
itt

al
 a

nd
 

de
ci

si
on

 p
ro

ce
ss

 w
ill

 r
es

um
e 

as
 o

f 
th

e 
da

te
 o

f 
th

e 
co

nc
lu

sio
n 

of
 t

he
 m

ed
ia

tio
n,

 a
s 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
m

ed
ia

to
r. 

3.
 

O
w

ne
r a

nd
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r s
ha

ll 
ea

ch
 p

ay
 o

ne
-

 

E.
 

Pa
rt

ia
l A

pp
ro

va
l: 

If 
th

e 
pa

rt
y 

re
ce

iv
in

g 
a 

Cl
ai

m
 a

pp
ro

ve
s t

he
 C

la
im

 in
 p

ar
t a

nd
 d

en
ie

s i
t i

n 
pa

rt
, 

su
ch

 a
ct

io
n 

w
ill

 b
e 

fin
al

 a
nd

 b
in

di
ng

 u
nl

es
s 

w
ith

in
 3

0 
da

ys
 o

f 
su

ch
 a

ct
io

n 
th

e 
ot

he
r 

pa
rt

y 
in

vo
ke

s 
th

e 
pr

oc
ed

ur
e 

se
t f

or
th

 in
 A

rt
ic

le
 1

7 
fo

r f
in

al
 re

so
lu

tio
n 

of
 d

isp
ut

es
. 

F.
 

D
en

ia
l o

f C
la

im
: I

f e
ffo

rt
s 

to
 re

so
lv

e 
a 

Cl
ai

m
 a

re
 n

ot
 s

uc
ce

ss
fu

l, 
th

e 
pa

rt
y 

re
ce

iv
in

g 
th

e 
Cl

ai
m

 
m

ay
 d

en
y 

it 
by

 g
iv

in
g 

w
rit

te
n 

no
tic

e 
of

 d
en

ia
l t

o 
th

e 
ot

he
r 

pa
rt

y.
 If

 th
e 

re
ce

iv
in

g 
pa

rt
y 

do
es

 
no

t t
ak

e 
ac

tio
n 

on
 th

e 
Cl

ai
m

 w
ith

in
 9

0 
da

ys
, t

he
n 

ei
th

er
 O

w
ne

r o
r C

on
tr

ac
to

r m
ay

 a
t a

ny
 ti

m
e 

th
er

ea
ft

er
 s

ub
m

it 
a 

le
tt

er
 t

o 
th

e 
ot

he
r 

pa
rt

y 
in

di
ca

tin
g 

th
at

 a
s 

a 
re

su
lt 

of
 t

he
 in

ac
tio

n,
 t

he
 

Cl
ai

m
 is

 d
ee

m
ed

 d
en

ie
d,

 th
er

eb
y 

co
m

m
en

ci
ng

 th
e 

tim
e 

fo
r 

ap
pe

al
 o

f t
he

 d
en

ia
l. 

A 
de

ni
al

 o
f 

th
e 

Cl
ai

m
 w

ill
 b

e 
fin

al
 a

nd
 b

in
di

ng
 u

nl
es

s 
w

ith
in

 3
0 

da
ys

 o
f t

he
 d

en
ia

l t
he

 o
th

er
 p

ar
ty

 in
vo

ke
s 

th
e 

pr
oc

ed
ur

e 
se

t f
or

th
 in

 A
rt

ic
le

 1
7 

fo
r t

he
 fi

na
l r

es
ol

ut
io

n 
of

 d
is

pu
te

s.
 

G
. 

Fi
na

l a
nd

 B
in

di
ng

 R
es

ul
ts

: I
f t

he
 p

ar
tie

s r
ea

ch
 a

 m
ut

ua
l a

gr
ee

m
en

t r
eg

ar
di

ng
 a

 C
la

im
, w

he
th

er
 

th
ro

ug
h 

ap
pr

ov
al

 o
f t

he
 C

la
im

, d
ire

ct
 n

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
, m

ed
ia

tio
n,

 o
r o

th
er

w
ise

; o
r i

f a
 C

la
im

 is
 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 in
 p

ar
t 

an
d 

de
ni

ed
 in

 p
ar

t, 
or

 d
en

ie
d 

in
 f

ul
l, 

an
d 

su
ch

 a
ct

io
ns

 b
ec

om
e 

fin
al

 a
nd

 
bi

nd
in

g;
 th

en
 t

he
 r

es
ul

ts
 o

f t
he

 a
gr

ee
m

en
t 

or
 a

ct
io

n 
on

 t
he

 C
la

im
 w

ill
 b

e 
in

co
rp

or
at

ed
 in

 a
 

Ch
an

ge
 O

rd
er

 o
r o

th
er

 w
rit

te
n 

do
cu

m
en

t t
o 

th
e 

ex
te

nt
 th

ey
 a

ffe
ct

 th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 th

e 
W

or
k,

 th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 T
im

es
, o

r t
he

 C
on

tr
ac

t P
ric

e.
 

AR
TI

CL
E 

13
CO

ST
 O

F 
TH

E 
W

O
RK

; A
LL

O
W

AN
CE

S;
 U

N
IT

 P
RI

CE
 W

O
RK

 

13
.0

1 
Co

st
 o

f t
he

 W
or

k 

A.
 

Pu
rp

os
es

 fo
r 

De
te

rm
in

at
io

n 
of

 C
os

t o
f t

he
 W

or
k:

 T
he

 t
er

m
 C

os
t o

f t
he

 W
or

k 
m

ea
ns

 th
e 

su
m

 
of

 a
ll 

co
st

s 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

fo
r 

th
e 

pr
op

er
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 o

f 
th

e 
W

or
k 

at
 is

su
e,

 a
s 

fu
rt

he
r 

de
fin

ed
 

be
lo

w
. T

he
 p

ro
vi

si
on

s 
of

 th
is 

Pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
13

.0
1 

ar
e 

us
ed

 fo
r t

w
o 

di
st

in
ct

 p
ur

po
se

s:
 

1.
 

To
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
Co

st
 o

f t
he

 W
or

k 
w

he
n 

Co
st

 o
f t

he
 W

or
k 

is 
a 

co
m

po
ne

nt
 o

f t
he

 C
on

tr
ac

t 
Pr

ic
e,

 u
nd

er
 c

os
t-

pl
us

-fe
e,

 ti
m

e-
an

d-
m

at
er

ia
ls,

 o
r o

th
er

 c
os

t-
ba

se
d 

te
rm

s;
 o

r 



 

EJ
CD

C®
 C

-7
00

, S
ta

nd
ar

d 
G

en
er

al
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 
Co

py
rig

ht
©

 2
01

8 
N

at
io

na
l S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rs
, A

m
er

ic
an

 C
ou

nc
il 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Co

m
pa

ni
es

, 
an

d 
Am

er
ic

an
 S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
s.

 A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
 

Pa
ge

 5
2 

of
 7

0 

2.
 

W
he

n 
ne

ed
ed

 to
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
th

e 
va

lu
e 

of
 a

 C
ha

ng
e 

O
rd

er
, C

ha
ng

e 
Pr

op
os

al
, C

la
im

, s
et

-o
ff,

 
or

 o
th

er
 a

dj
us

tm
en

t 
in

 C
on

tr
ac

t 
Pr

ic
e.

 W
he

n 
th

e 
va

lu
e 

of
 a

ny
 s

uc
h 

ad
ju

st
m

en
t 

is
 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
ba

si
s 

of
 C

os
t 

of
 t

he
 W

or
k,

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r 

is
 e

nt
itl

ed
 o

nl
y 

to
 t

ho
se

 
ad

di
tio

na
l o

r 
in

cr
em

en
ta

l c
os

ts
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

be
ca

us
e 

of
 th

e 
ch

an
ge

 in
 th

e 
W

or
k 

or
 b

ec
au

se
 

of
 th

e 
ev

en
t g

iv
in

g 
ris

e 
to

 th
e 

ad
ju

st
m

en
t. 

B.
 

Co
st

s 
In

cl
ud

ed
: E

xc
ep

t a
s o

th
er

w
ise

 m
ay

 b
e 

ag
re

ed
 to

 in
 w

rit
in

g 
by

 O
w

ne
r, 

co
st

s 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 
th

e 
Co

st
 o

f 
th

e 
W

or
k 

w
ill

 b
e 

in
 a

m
ou

nt
s 

no
 h

ig
he

r 
th

an
 t

ho
se

 c
om

m
on

ly
 in

cu
rr

ed
 in

 t
he

 
lo

ca
lit

y 
of

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t, 

w
ill

 n
ot

 in
cl

ud
e 

an
y 

of
 th

e 
co

st
s i

te
m

iz
ed

 in
 P

ar
ag

ra
ph

 1
3.

01
.C

, a
nd

 w
ill

 
in

cl
ud

e 
on

ly
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

ite
m

s:
 

1.
 

Pa
yr

ol
l c

os
ts

 fo
r e

m
pl

oy
ee

s i
n 

th
e 

di
re

ct
 e

m
pl

oy
 o

f C
on

tr
ac

to
r i

n 
th

e 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 o

f t
he

 
W

or
k 

un
de

r 
sc

he
du

le
s 

of
 jo

b 
cl

as
sif

ic
at

io
ns

 a
gr

ee
d 

up
on

 b
y 

O
w

ne
r 

an
d 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 in

 
ad

va
nc

e 
of

 
th

e 
su

bj
ec

t 
W

or
k.

 
Su

ch
 

em
pl

oy
ee

s 
in

cl
ud

e,
 

w
ith

ou
t 

lim
ita

tio
n,

 
su

pe
rin

te
nd

en
ts

, f
or

em
en

, s
af

et
y 

m
an

ag
er

s,
 sa

fe
ty

 re
pr

es
en

ta
tiv

es
, a

nd
 o

th
er

 p
er

so
nn

el
 

em
pl

oy
ed

 fu
ll 

tim
e 

on
 th

e 
W

or
k.

 P
ay

ro
ll 

co
st

s 
fo

r e
m

pl
oy

ee
s 

no
t 

em
pl

oy
ed

 fu
ll 

tim
e 

on
 

th
e 

W
or

k 
w

ill
 b

e 
ap

po
rt

io
ne

d 
on

 th
e 

ba
sis

 o
f t

he
ir 

tim
e 

sp
en

t o
n 

th
e 

W
or

k.
 P

ay
ro

ll 
co

st
s 

in
cl

ud
e,

 b
ut

 a
re

 n
ot

 li
m

ite
d 

to
, s

al
ar

ie
s a

nd
 w

ag
es

 p
lu

s 
th

e 
co

st
 o

f f
rin

ge
 b

en
ef

its
, w

hi
ch

 

co
m

pe
ns

at
io

n,
 h

ea
lth

 a
nd

 re
tir

em
en

t b
en

ef
its

, s
ic

k 
le

av
e,

 a
nd

 v
ac

at
io

n 
an

d 
ho

lid
ay

 p
ay

 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 th
er

et
o.

 T
he

 e
xp

en
se

s 
of

 p
er

fo
rm

in
g 

W
or

k 
ou

ts
id

e 
of

 r
eg

ul
ar

 w
or

ki
ng

 h
ou

rs
, 

on
 S

at
ur

da
y,

 S
un

da
y,

 o
r 

le
ga

l 
ho

lid
ay

s,
 w

ill
 b

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 i

n 
th

e 
ab

ov
e 

to
 t

he
 e

xt
en

t 
au

th
or

iz
ed

 b
y 

O
w

ne
r. 

2.
 

Co
st

 o
f a

ll 
m

at
er

ia
ls

 a
nd

 e
qu

ip
m

en
t 

fu
rn

ish
ed

 a
nd

 in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 in
 t

he
 W

or
k,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 

co
nn

ec
tio

n 
th

er
ew

ith
. 

Al
l c

as
h 

di
sc

ou
nt

s 
ac

cr
ue

 t
o 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 u

nl
es

s 
O

w
ne

r 
de

po
si

ts
 

fu
nd

s 
w

ith
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r 
w

ith
 w

hi
ch

 t
o 

m
ak

e 
pa

ym
en

ts
, i

n 
w

hi
ch

 c
as

e 
th

e 
ca

sh
 d

is
co

un
ts

 
w

ill
 a

cc
ru

e 
to

 O
w

ne
r. 

Al
l t

ra
de

 d
is

co
un

ts
, r

eb
at

es
, a

nd
 r

ef
un

ds
 a

nd
 r

et
ur

ns
 fr

om
 s

al
e 

of
 

su
rp

lu
s 

m
at

er
ia

ls 
an

d 
eq

ui
pm

en
t 

w
ill

 a
cc

ru
e 

to
 O

w
ne

r, 
an

d 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 s
ha

ll 
m

ak
e 

pr
ov

isi
on

s s
o 

th
at

 th
ey

 m
ay

 b
e 

ob
ta

in
ed

. 

3.
 

Pa
ym

en
ts

 m
ad

e 
by

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r t

o 
Su

bc
on

tr
ac

to
rs

 fo
r W

or
k 

pe
rf

or
m

ed
 b

y 
Su

bc
on

tr
ac

to
rs

. 
If 

re
qu

ire
d 

by
 O

w
ne

r, 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 s
ha

ll 
ob

ta
in

 c
om

pe
tit

iv
e 

bi
ds

 f
ro

m
 s

ub
co

nt
ra

ct
or

s 
ac

ce
pt

ab
le

 to
 O

w
ne

r a
nd

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r a

nd
 sh

al
l d

el
iv

er
 su

ch
 b

id
s t

o 
O

w
ne

r, 
w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 th
en

 
de

te
rm

in
e,

 w
ith

 t
he

 a
dv

ic
e 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
r, 

w
hi

ch
 b

id
s,

 if
 a

ny
, 

w
ill

 b
e 

ac
ce

pt
ab

le
. 

If 
an

y 
su

bc
on

tr
ac

t p
ro

vi
de

s t
ha

t t
he

 S
ub

co
nt

ra
ct

or
 is

 to
 b

e 
pa

id
 o

n 
th

e 
ba

sis
 o

f C
os

t o
f t

he
 W

or
k 

 W
or

k 
an

d 
fe

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
de

te
rm

in
ed

 in
 th

e 
sa

m
e 

 1
3.

01
. 

4.
 

Co
st

s 
of

 s
pe

ci
al

 c
on

su
lta

nt
s 

(in
cl

ud
in

g 
bu

t 
no

t 
lim

ite
d 

to
 e

ng
in

ee
rs

, a
rc

hi
te

ct
s,

 t
es

tin
g 

la
bo

ra
to

rie
s,

 s
ur

ve
yo

rs
, a

tt
or

ne
ys

, a
nd

 a
cc

ou
nt

an
ts

) 
em

pl
oy

ed
 o

r 
re

ta
in

ed
 fo

r 
se

rv
ic

es
 

sp
ec

ifi
ca

lly
 re

la
te

d 
to

 th
e 

W
or

k.
 

5.
 

O
th

er
 c

os
ts

 c
on

si
st

in
g 

of
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g:

 

a.
 

Th
e 

pr
op

or
tio

n 
of

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 t

ra
ns

po
rt

at
io

n,
 t

ra
ve

l, 
an

d 
su

bs
is

te
nc

e 
ex

pe
ns

es
 o

f 
rg

e 
of

 d
ut

ie
s c

on
ne

ct
ed

 w
ith

 th
e 

W
or

k.
 

b.
 

Co
st

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

an
d 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

, o
f a

ll m
at

er
ia

ls
, s

up
pl

ie
s,

 e
qu

ip
m

en
t, 

m
ac

hi
ne

ry
, 

ap
pl

ia
nc

es
, 

of
fic

e,
 a

nd
 t

em
po

ra
ry

 f
ac

ili
tie

s 
at

 t
he

 S
ite

, 
w

hi
ch

 a
re

 

 

EJ
CD

C®
 C

-7
00

, S
ta

nd
ar

d 
G

en
er

al
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 
Co

py
rig

ht
©

 2
01

8 
N

at
io

na
l S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rs
, A

m
er

ic
an

 C
ou

nc
il 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Co

m
pa

ni
es

, 
an

d 
Am

er
ic

an
 S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
s.

 A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
 

Pa
ge

 5
3 

of
 7

0 

co
ns

um
ed

 in
 th

e 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 o

f t
he

 W
or

k,
 a

nd
 co

st
, l

es
s m

ar
ke

t v
al

ue
, o

f s
uc

h 
ite

m
s 

us
ed

 b
ut

 n
ot

 c
on

su
m

ed
 w

hi
ch

 re
m

ai
n 

th
e 

pr
op

er
ty

 o
f C

on
tr

ac
to

r. 

1)
 

In
 e

st
ab

lis
hi

ng
 i

nc
lu

de
d 

co
st

s 
fo

r 
m

at
er

ia
ls

 s
uc

h 
as

 s
ca

ffo
ld

in
g,

 p
la

tin
g,

 o
r 

sh
ee

tin
g,

 c
on

si
de

ra
tio

n 
w

ill
 b

e 
gi

ve
n 

to
 t

he
 a

ct
ua

l o
r 

th
e 

es
tim

at
ed

 li
fe

 o
f 

th
e 

m
at

er
ia

l f
or

 u
se

 o
n 

ot
he

r p
ro

je
ct

s;
 o

r r
en

ta
l r

at
es

 m
ay

 b
e 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

on
 th

e 
ba

si
s 

of
 p

ur
ch

as
e 

or
 s

al
va

ge
 v

al
ue

 o
f s

uc
h 

ite
m

s,
 w

hi
ch

ev
er

 is
 le

ss
. C

on
tr

ac
to

r w
ill

 n
ot

 
be

 e
lig

ib
le

 f
or

 c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
fo

r 
su

ch
 i

te
m

s 
in

 a
n 

am
ou

nt
 t

ha
t 

ex
ce

ed
s 

th
e 

pu
rc

ha
se

 c
os

t o
f s

uc
h 

ite
m

. 

c.
 

Co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

Eq
ui

pm
en

t R
en

ta
l 

1)
 

Re
nt

al
s 

of
 a

ll 
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
eq

ui
pm

en
t 

an
d 

m
ac

hi
ne

ry
, a

nd
 t

he
 p

ar
ts

 t
he

re
of

, i
n 

ac
co

rd
an

ce
 w

ith
 re

nt
al

 a
gr

ee
m

en
ts

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
by

 O
w

ne
r a

s t
o 

pr
ic

e 
(in

cl
ud

in
g 

an
y 

su
rc

ha
rg

e 
or

 s
pe

ci
al

 r
at

es
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

 t
o 

ov
er

tim
e 

us
e 

of
 t

he
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

eq
ui

pm
en

t 
or

 m
ac

hi
ne

ry
), 

an
d 

th
e 

co
st

s 
of

 t
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n,

 lo
ad

in
g,

 u
nl

oa
di

ng
, 

as
se

m
bl

y,
 d

ism
an

tli
ng

, a
nd

 re
m

ov
al

 th
er

eo
f. 

Al
l s

uc
h 

co
st

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 t
he

 t
er

m
s 

of
 s

ai
d 

re
nt

al
 a

gr
ee

m
en

ts
. T

he
 r

en
ta

l o
f 

an
y 

su
ch

 e
qu

ip
m

en
t, 

m
ac

hi
ne

ry
, o

r p
ar

ts
 m

us
t c

ea
se

 w
he

n 
th

e 
us

e 
th

er
eo

f i
s 

no
 lo

ng
er

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 fo

r 
th

e 
W

or
k.

 

2)
 

Co
st

s f
or

 e
qu

ip
m

en
t a

nd
 m

ac
hi

ne
ry

 o
w

ne
d 

by
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r o
r a

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r-

re
la

te
d 

en
tit

y 
w

ill
 b

e 
pa

id
 a

t 
a 

ra
te

 s
ho

w
n 

fo
r s

uc
h 

eq
ui

pm
en

t 
in

 th
e 

eq
ui

pm
en

t r
en

ta
l 

ra
te

 b
oo

k 
sp

ec
ifi

ed
 i

n 
th

e 
Su

pp
le

m
en

ta
ry

 C
on

di
tio

ns
. 

An
 h

ou
rly

 r
at

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
co

m
pu

te
d 

by
 d

iv
id

in
g 

th
e 

m
on

th
ly

 r
at

es
 b

y 
17

6.
 T

he
se

 c
om

pu
te

d 
ra

te
s 

w
ill

 
in

cl
ud

e 
al

l o
pe

ra
tin

g 
co

st
s.

 

3)
 

W
ith

 r
es

pe
ct

 t
o 

W
or

k 
th

at
 is

 t
he

 r
es

ul
t 

of
 a

 C
ha

ng
e 

O
rd

er
, C

ha
ng

e 
Pr

op
os

al
, 

Cl
ai

m
, s

et
-

co
st

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
ba

se
d 

on
 t

he
 t

im
e 

th
e 

eq
ui

pm
en

t 
or

 m
ac

hi
ne

ry
 is

 in
 u

se
 o

n 
th

e 
ch

an
ge

d 
W

or
k 

an
d 

th
e 

co
st

s 
of

 t
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n,

 lo
ad

in
g,

 u
nl

oa
di

ng
, 

as
se

m
bl

y,
 

di
sm

an
tli

ng
, a

nd
 r

em
ov

al
 w

he
n 

di
re

ct
ly

 a
tt

rib
ut

ab
le

 t
o 

th
e 

ch
an

ge
d 

W
or

k.
 T

he
 

co
st

 o
f a

ny
 su

ch
 e

qu
ip

m
en

t o
r m

ac
hi

ne
ry

, o
r p

ar
ts

 th
er

eo
f, 

m
us

t c
ea

se
 to

 a
cc

ru
e 

w
he

n 
th

e 
us

e 
th

er
eo

f i
s 

no
 lo

ng
er

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 fo

r t
he

 c
ha

ng
ed

 W
or

k.
 

d.
 

Sa
le

s,
 c

on
su

m
er

, 
us

e,
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 s
im

ila
r 

ta
xe

s 
re

la
te

d 
to

 t
he

 W
or

k,
 a

nd
 f

or
 w

hi
ch

 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 is
 li

ab
le

, a
s 

im
po

se
d 

by
 L

aw
s 

an
d 

Re
gu

la
tio

ns
. 

e.
 

De
po

si
ts

 lo
st

 fo
r 

ca
us

es
 o

th
er

 t
ha

n 
ne

gl
ig

en
ce

 o
f C

on
tr

ac
to

r, 
an

y 
Su

bc
on

tr
ac

to
r, 

or
 

an
yo

ne
 d

ire
ct

ly
 o

r i
nd

ire
ct

ly
 e

m
pl

oy
ed

 b
y 

an
y 

of
 th

em
 o

r f
or

 w
ho

se
 a

ct
s 

an
y 

of
 th

em
 

m
ay

 b
e 

lia
bl

e,
 a

nd
 ro

ya
lty

 p
ay

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 fe

es
 fo

r p
er

m
its

 a
nd

 li
ce

ns
es

. 

f. 
Lo

ss
es

 a
nd

 d
am

ag
es

 (
an

d 
re

la
te

d 
ex

pe
ns

es
) 

ca
us

ed
 b

y 
da

m
ag

e 
to

 t
he

 W
or

k,
 n

ot
 

co
m

pe
ns

at
ed

 b
y 

in
su

ra
nc

e 
or

 o
th

er
w

is
e,

 s
us

ta
in

ed
 b

y 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 in
 c

on
ne

ct
io

n 
w

ith
 

th
e 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 o
f 

th
e 

W
or

k 
(e

xc
ep

t 
lo

ss
es

 a
nd

 d
am

ag
es

 w
ith

in
 t

he
 d

ed
uc

tib
le

 

Pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
6.

04
), 

pr
ov

id
ed

 su
ch

 lo
ss

es
 a

nd
 d

am
ag

es
 h

av
e 

re
su

lte
d 

fr
om

 c
au

se
s o

th
er

 
th

an
 th

e 
ne

gl
ig

en
ce

 o
f C

on
tr

ac
to

r, 
an

y 
Su

bc
on

tr
ac

to
r, 

or
 a

ny
on

e 
di

re
ct

ly
 o

r i
nd

ire
ct

ly
 

em
pl

oy
ed

 b
y 

an
y 

of
 th

em
 o

r 
fo

r 
w

ho
se

 a
ct

s 
an

y 
of

 th
em

 m
ay

 b
e 

lia
bl

e.
 S

uc
h 

lo
ss

es
 

in
cl

ud
e 

se
tt

le
m

en
ts

 m
ad

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
w

rit
te

n 
co

ns
en

t a
nd

 a
pp

ro
va

l o
f O

w
ne

r. 
N

o 
su

ch
 

lo
ss

es
, 

da
m

ag
es

, 
an

d 
ex

pe
ns

es
 w

ill
 b

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 i

n 
th

e 
Co

st
 o

f 
th

e 
W

or
k 

fo
r 

th
e 

 



 

EJ
CD

C®
 C

-7
00

, S
ta

nd
ar

d 
G

en
er

al
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 
Co

py
rig

ht
©

 2
01

8 
N

at
io

na
l S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rs
, A

m
er

ic
an

 C
ou

nc
il 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Co

m
pa

ni
es

, 
an

d 
Am

er
ic

an
 S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
s.

 A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
 

Pa
ge

 5
4 

of
 7

0 

g.
 

Th
e 

co
st

 o
f u

til
iti

es
, f

ue
l, 

an
d 

sa
ni

ta
ry

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s a
t t

he
 S

ite
. 

h.
 

M
in

or
 e

xp
en

se
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

se
rv

ic
e 

at
 t

he
 S

ite
, 

ex
pr

es
s 

an
d 

co
ur

ie
r 

se
rv

ic
es

, a
nd

 si
m

ila
r p

et
ty

 c
as

h 
ite

m
s i

n 
co

nn
ec

tio
n 

w
ith

 th
e 

W
or

k.
 

i. 
Th

e 
co

st
s 

of
 p

re
m

iu
m

s 
fo

r a
ll 

bo
nd

s a
nd

 in
su

ra
nc

e 
th

at
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r i
s 

re
qu

ire
d 

by
 th

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 D

oc
um

en
ts

 to
 p

ur
ch

as
e 

an
d 

m
ai

nt
ai

n.
 

C.
 

Co
st

s E
xc

lu
de

d:
 T

he
 te

rm
 C

os
t o

f t
he

 W
or

k 
do

es
 n

ot
 in

cl
ud

e 
an

y 
of

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
ite

m
s:

 

1.
 

ge
ne

ra
l 

m
an

ag
er

s,
 e

ng
in

ee
rs

, 
ar

ch
ite

ct
s,

 e
st

im
at

or
s,

 a
tt

or
ne

ys
, 

au
di

to
rs

, a
cc

ou
nt

an
ts

, 
pu

rc
ha

si
ng

 a
nd

 c
on

tr
ac

tin
g 

ag
en

ts
, e

xp
ed

ite
rs

, t
im

ek
ee

pe
rs

, c
le

rk
s,

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 p

er
so

nn
el

 

fo
r g

en
er

al
 a

dm
in

is
tr

at
io

n 
of

 th
e 

W
or

k 
an

d 
no

t s
pe

ci
fic

al
ly

 in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

e 
ag

re
ed

 u
po

n 
sc

he
du

le
 o

f j
ob

 c
la

ss
ifi

ca
tio

ns
 r

ef
er

re
d 

to
 in

 P
ar

ag
ra

ph
 1

3.
01

.B
.1

 o
r 

sp
ec

ifi
ca

lly
 c

ov
er

ed
 

by
 P

ar
ag

ra
ph

 1
3.

01
.B

.4
. T

he
 p

ay
ro

ll 
co

st
s 

an
d 

ot
he

r c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
ex

cl
ud

ed
 h

er
e 

ar
e 

to
 

 

2.
 

Th
e 

co
st

 o
f p

ur
ch

as
in

g,
 re

nt
in

g,
 o

r f
ur

ni
sh

in
g 

sm
al

l t
oo

ls 
an

d 
ha

nd
 to

ol
s.

 

3.
 

Si
te

. 

4.
 

em
pl

oy
ed

 fo
r t

he
 W

or
k 

an
d 

ch
ar

ge
s a

ga
in

st
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r f
or

 d
el

in
qu

en
t p

ay
m

en
ts

. 

5.
 

Co
st

s 
du

e 
to

 t
he

 n
eg

lig
en

ce
 o

f 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

, 
an

y 
Su

bc
on

tr
ac

to
r, 

or
 a

ny
on

e 
di

re
ct

ly
 o

r 
in

di
re

ct
ly

 e
m

pl
oy

ed
 b

y 
an

y 
of

 th
em

 o
r f

or
 w

ho
se

 a
ct

s a
ny

 o
f t

he
m

 m
ay

 b
e 

lia
bl

e,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

bu
t n

ot
 li

m
ite

d 
to

, t
he

 c
or

re
ct

io
n 

of
 d

ef
ec

tiv
e 

W
or

k,
 d

isp
os

al
 o

f m
at

er
ia

ls
 o

r e
qu

ip
m

en
t 

w
ro

ng
ly

 s
up

pl
ie

d,
 a

nd
 m

ak
in

g 
go

od
 a

ny
 d

am
ag

e 
to

 p
ro

pe
rt

y.
 

6.
 

Ex
pe

ns
es

 in
cu

rr
ed

 in
 p

re
pa

rin
g 

an
d 

ad
va

nc
in

g 
Cl

ai
m

s.
 

7.
 

O
th

er
 o

ve
rh

ea
d 

or
 g

en
er

al
 e

xp
en

se
 c

os
ts

 o
f 

an
y 

ki
nd

 a
nd

 t
he

 c
os

ts
 o

f 
an

y 
ite

m
 n

ot
 

sp
ec

ifi
ca

lly
 a

nd
 e

xp
re

ss
ly

 in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 P

ar
ag

ra
ph

 1
3.

01
.B

. 

D
. 

 

1.
 

W
he

n 
th

e 
W

or
k 

as
 a

 w
ho

le
 is

 p
er

fo
rm

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
ba

si
s o

f c
os

t-
pl

us
-a

-fe
e,

 th
en

: 

a.
 

D
at

e 
of

 th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 w
ill

 b
e 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 a

s 
se

t f
or

th
 in

 th
e 

Ag
re

em
en

t. 

b.
 

fo
r 

an
y 

W
or

k 
co

ve
re

d 
by

 a
 C

ha
ng

e 
O

rd
er

, C
ha

ng
e 

Pr
op

os
al

, C
la

im
, s

et
-o

ff
, o

r 
ot

he
r 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 a

s f
ol

lo
w

s:
 

1)
 

W
he

n 
th

e 
fe

e 
fo

r 
th

e 
W

or
k 

as
 a

 w
ho

le
 is

 a
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 th
e 

Co
st

 o
f t

he
 W

or
k,

 
th

e 
fe

e 
w

ill
 a

ut
om

at
ic

al
ly

 a
dj

us
t a

s 
th

e 
Co

st
 o

f t
he

 W
or

k 
ch

an
ge

s.
 

2)
 

W
he

n 
th

e 
fe

e 
fo

r t
he

 W
or

k 
as

 a
 w

ho
le

 is
 a

 fi
xe

d 
fe

e,
 th

e 
fe

e 
fo

r a
ny

 a
dd

iti
on

s 
or

 
de

le
tio

ns
 w

ill
 b

e 
de

te
rm

in
ed

 in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 P

ar
ag

ra
ph

 1
1.

07
.C

.2
. 

2.
 

W
he

n 
th

e 
W

or
k 

as
 a

 w
ho

le
 is

 p
er

fo
rm

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
ba

sis
 o

f a
 s

tip
ul

at
ed

 s
um

, o
r 

an
y 

ot
he

r 
ba

si
s o

th
er

 th
an

 co
st

-p
lu

s-
a-

 

EJ
CD

C®
 C

-7
00

, S
ta

nd
ar

d 
G

en
er

al
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 
Co

py
rig

ht
©

 2
01

8 
N

at
io

na
l S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rs
, A

m
er

ic
an

 C
ou

nc
il 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Co

m
pa

ni
es

, 
an

d 
Am

er
ic

an
 S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
s.

 A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
 

Pa
ge

 5
5 

of
 7

0 

O
rd

er
, C

ha
ng

e 
Pr

op
os

al
, C

la
im

, s
et

-o
ff

, o
r o

th
er

 a
dj

us
tm

en
t i

n 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 P

ric
e 

on
 th

e 
ba

si
s 

of
 C

os
t o

f t
he

 W
or

k 
w

ill
 b

e 
de

te
rm

in
ed

 in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 P

ar
ag

ra
ph

 1
1.

07
.C

.2
. 

E.
 

D
oc

um
en

ta
tio

n 
an

d 
Au

di
t: 

W
he

ne
ve

r 
th

e 
Co

st
 o

f 
th

e 
W

or
k 

fo
r 

an
y 

pu
rp

os
e 

is 
to

 b
e 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 p

ur
su

an
t t

o 
th

is 
Ar

tic
le

 1
3,

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r a

nd
 p

er
tin

en
t S

ub
co

nt
ra

ct
or

s w
ill

 e
st

ab
lis

h 
an

d 
m

ai
nt

ai
n 

re
co

rd
s o

f t
he

 co
st

s i
n 

ac
co

rd
an

ce
 w

ith
 g

en
er

al
ly

 a
cc

ep
te

d 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

pr
ac

tic
es

. 
Su

bj
ec

t 
to

 p
rio

r 
w

rit
te

n 
no

tic
e,

 O
w

ne
r 

w
ill

 b
e 

af
fo

rd
ed

 r
ea

so
na

bl
e 

ac
ce

ss
, 

du
rin

g 
no

rm
al

 
bu

sin
es

s 
ho

ur
s,

 t
o 

al
l C

on
tr

ac
to

dr
aw

in
gs

, r
ec

ei
pt

s,
 v

ou
ch

er
s,

 m
em

or
an

da
, a

nd
 s

im
ila

r 
da

ta
 r

el
at

in
g 

to
 th

e 
Co

st
 o

f t
he

 W
or

k 

af
te

r t
he

 fi
na

l p
ay

m
en

t b
y 

O
w

ne
r. 

Pe
rt

in
en

t S
ub

co
nt

ra
ct

or
s w

ill
 a

ffo
rd

 su
ch

 a
cc

es
s t

o 
O

w
ne

r, 
an

d 
pr

es
er

ve
 s

uc
h 

do
cu

m
en

ts
, t

o 
th

e 
sa

m
e 

ex
te

nt
 re

qu
ire

d 
of

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r. 

13
.0

2 
Al

lo
w

an
ce

s 

A.
 

It 
is

 u
nd

er
st

oo
d 

th
at

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r h

as
 in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 P
ric

e 
al

l a
llo

w
an

ce
s s

o 
na

m
ed

 in
 

th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 D
oc

um
en

ts
 a

nd
 sh

al
l c

au
se

 th
e 

W
or

k 
so

 c
ov

er
ed

 to
 b

e 
pe

rf
or

m
ed

 fo
r s

uc
h 

su
m

s 
an

d 
by

 su
ch

 p
er

so
ns

 o
r e

nt
iti

es
 a

s 
m

ay
 b

e 
ac

ce
pt

ab
le

 to
 O

w
ne

r a
nd

 E
ng

in
ee

r. 

B.
 

Ca
sh

 A
llo

w
an

ce
s:

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r a

gr
ee

s 
th

at
: 

1.
 

th
e 

ca
sh

 a
llo

w
an

ce
s 

in
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

co
st

 t
o 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 (l

es
s 

an
y 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 tr

ad
e 

di
sc

ou
nt

s)
 

of
 m

at
er

ia
ls 

an
d 

eq
ui

pm
en

t 
re

qu
ire

d 
by

 th
e 

al
lo

w
an

ce
s 

to
 b

e 
de

liv
er

ed
 a

t t
he

 S
ite

, a
nd

 
al

l a
pp

lic
ab

le
 ta

xe
s;

 a
nd

 

2.
 

ve
rh

ea
d,

 
pr

of
it,

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 e

xp
en

se
s 

co
nt

em
pl

at
ed

 fo
r t

he
 c

as
h 

al
lo

w
an

ce
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 
th

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 P

ric
e 

an
d 

no
t i

n 
th

e 
al

lo
w

an
ce

s,
 a

nd
 n

o 
de

m
an

d 
fo

r a
dd

iti
on

al
 p

ay
m

en
t f

or
 

an
y 

of
 th

e 
fo

re
go

in
g 

w
ill

 b
e 

va
lid

. 

C.
 

: C
on

t
if 

an
y,

 is
 fo

r t
he

 so
le

 u
se

 o
f O

w
ne

r t
o 

co
ve

r u
na

nt
ic

ip
at

ed
 c

os
ts

. 

D
. 

Pr
io

r 
to

 f
in

al
 p

ay
m

en
t, 

an
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 C

ha
ng

e 
O

rd
er

 w
ill

 b
e 

is
su

ed
 a

s 
re

co
m

m
en

de
d 

by
 

En
gi

ne
er

 to
 re

fle
ct

 a
ct

ua
l a

m
ou

nt
s 

du
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 fo

r W
or

k 
co

ve
re

d 
by

 a
llo

w
an

ce
s,

 a
nd

 th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 P
ric

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
co

rr
es

po
nd

in
gl

y 
ad

ju
st

ed
. 

13
.0

3 
U

ni
t P

ric
e 

W
or

k 

A.
 

W
he

re
 th

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 D

oc
um

en
ts

 p
ro

vi
de

 th
at

 a
ll 

or
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 W
or

k 
is

 to
 b

e 
U

ni
t P

ric
e 

W
or

k,
 

in
iti

al
ly

 th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 P
ric

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
de

em
ed

 to
 in

cl
ud

e 
fo

r a
ll 

U
ni

t P
ric

e 
W

or
k 

an
 a

m
ou

nt
 e

qu
al

 
to

 th
e 

su
m

 o
f t

he
 u

ni
t p

ric
e 

fo
r e

ac
h 

se
pa

ra
te

ly
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

ite
m

 o
f U

ni
t P

ric
e 

W
or

k 
tim

es
 th

e 
es

tim
at

ed
 q

ua
nt

ity
 o

f e
ac

h 
ite

m
 a

s i
nd

ic
at

ed
 in

 th
e 

Ag
re

em
en

t. 

B.
 

Th
e 

es
tim

at
ed

 q
ua

nt
iti

es
 o

f i
te

m
s 

of
 U

ni
t P

ric
e 

W
or

k 
ar

e 
no

t 
gu

ar
an

te
ed

 a
nd

 a
re

 s
ol

el
y 

fo
r 

th
e 

pu
rp

os
e 

of
 c

om
pa

ris
on

 o
f 

Bi
ds

 a
nd

 d
et

er
m

in
in

g 
an

 in
iti

al
 C

on
tr

ac
t 

Pr
ic

e.
 P

ay
m

en
ts

 t
o 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 fo

r U
ni

t P
ric

e 
W

or
k 

w
ill

 b
e 

ba
se

d 
on

 a
ct

ua
l q

ua
nt

iti
es

. 

C.
 

Ea
ch

 u
ni

t p
ric

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
de

em
ed

 to
 in

cl
ud

e 
an

 a
m

ou
nt

 co
ns

id
er

ed
 b

y 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 to
 b

e 
ad

eq
ua

te
 

 

D
. 

En
gi

ne
er

 w
ill

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

th
e 

ac
tu

al
 q

ua
nt

iti
es

 a
nd

 cl
as

sif
ic

at
io

ns
 o

f U
ni

t P
ric

e 
W

or
k 

pe
rf

or
m

ed
 

by
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
. 

En
gi

ne
er

 
w

ill
 

re
de

te
rm

in
at

io
ns

 
on

 
su

ch
 

m
at

te
rs

 
be

fo
re

 
re

nd
er

in
g 

a 
w

rit
te

n 
de

ci
si

on
 

th
er

eo
n 

(b
y 



 

EJ
CD

C®
 C

-7
00

, S
ta

nd
ar

d 
G

en
er

al
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 
Co

py
rig

ht
©

 2
01

8 
N

at
io

na
l S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rs
, A

m
er

ic
an

 C
ou

nc
il 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Co

m
pa

ni
es

, 
an

d 
Am

er
ic

an
 S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
s.

 A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
 

Pa
ge

 5
6 

of
 7

0 

th
er

eo
n 

w
ill

 b
e 

fin
al

 a
nd

 b
in

di
ng

 (e
xc

ep
t 

as
 m

od
ifi

ed
 b

y 
En

gi
ne

er
 to

 r
ef

le
ct

 c
ha

ng
ed

 fa
ct

ua
l 

co
nd

iti
on

s 
or

 m
or

e 
ac

cu
ra

te
 d

at
a)

 u
po

n 
O

w
ne

r a
nd

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r, 

an
d 

th
e 

fin
al

 a
dj

us
tm

en
t o

f 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 P

ric
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

se
t f

or
th

 in
 a

 C
ha

ng
e 

O
rd

er
, s

ub
je

ct
 to

 th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 o

f t
he

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
pa

ra
gr

ap
h.

 

E.
 

Ad
ju

st
m

en
ts

 in
 U

ni
t P

ric
e 

1.
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 o

r O
w

ne
r s

ha
ll 

be
 e

nt
itl

ed
 to

 a
n 

ad
ju

st
m

en
t 

in
 th

e 
un

it 
pr

ic
e 

w
ith

 re
sp

ec
t t

o 
an

 it
em

 o
f U

ni
t P

ric
e 

W
or

k 
if:

 

a.
 

th
e 

qu
an

tit
y 

of
 th

e 
ite

m
 o

f U
ni

t P
ric

e 
W

or
k 

pe
rf

or
m

ed
 b

y 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 d
iff

er
s m

at
er

ia
lly

 
an

d 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

ly
 f

ro
m

 t
he

 e
st

im
at

ed
 q

ua
nt

ity
 o

f 
su

ch
 i

te
m

 i
nd

ic
at

ed
 i

n 
th

e 
Ag

re
em

en
t; 

an
d 

b.
 

m
at

er
ia

lly
 a

nd
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

tly
 a

s a
 re

su
lt 

of
 th

e 
qu

an
tit

y 
ch

an
ge

. 

2.
 

Th
e 

ad
ju

st
m

en
t i

n 
un

it 
pr

ic
e 

w
ill

 a
cc

ou
nt

 fo
r a

nd
 b

e 
co

or
di

na
te

d 
w

ith
 a

ny
 re

la
te

d 
ch

an
ge

s 

W
or

k,
 s

uc
h 

th
at

 th
e 

re
su

lti
ng

 o
ve

ra
ll 

ch
an

ge
 in

 C
on

tr
ac

t P
ric

e 
is

 e
qu

ita
bl

e 
to

 O
w

ne
r a

nd
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
. 

3.
 

Ad
ju

st
ed

 u
ni

t p
ric

es
 w

ill
 a

pp
ly

 to
 a

ll 
un

its
 o

f t
ha

t i
te

m
. 

AR
TI

CL
E 

14
TE

ST
S 

A
N

D 
IN

SP
EC

TI
O

N
S;

 C
O

RR
EC

TI
O

N
, R

EM
O

VA
L,

 O
R 

AC
CE

PT
AN

CE
 O

F 
D

EF
EC

TI
VE

 W
O

RK
 

14
.0

1 
Ac

ce
ss

 to
 W

or
k 

A.
 

O
w

ne
r, 

En
gi

ne
er

, 
th

ei
r 

co
ns

ul
ta

nt
s 

an
d 

ot
he

r 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tiv
es

 a
nd

 p
er

so
nn

el
 o

f 
O

w
ne

r, 
in

de
pe

nd
en

t t
es

tin
g 

la
bo

ra
to

rie
s,

 a
nd

 a
ut

ho
rit

ie
s 

ha
vi

ng
 ju

ris
di

ct
io

n 
ha

ve
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 th
e 

Si
te

 
an

d 
th

e 
W

or
k 

at
 re

as
on

ab
le

 t
im

es
 fo

r t
he

ir 
ob

se
rv

at
io

n,
 in

sp
ec

tio
n,

 a
nd

 te
st

in
g.

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r 

sh
al

l p
ro

vi
de

 th
em

 p
ro

pe
r a

nd
 sa

fe
 co

nd
iti

on
s f

or
 su

ch
 a

cc
es

s a
nd

 a
dv

is
e 

th
em

 o
f C

on
tr

ac
sa

fe
ty

 p
ro

ce
du

re
s a

nd
 p

ro
gr

am
s s

o 
th

at
 th

ey
 m

ay
 co

m
pl

y 
w

ith
 su

ch
 p

ro
ce

du
re

s a
nd

 p
ro

gr
am

s 
as

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
. 

14
.0

2 
Te

st
s, 

In
sp

ec
tio

ns
, a

nd
 A

pp
ro

va
ls 

A.
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 s

ha
ll 

gi
ve

 E
ng

in
ee

r 
tim

el
y 

no
tic

e 
of

 r
ea

di
ne

ss
 o

f 
th

e 
W

or
k 

(o
r 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

pa
rt

s 
th

er
eo

f) 
fo

r a
ll 

re
qu

ire
d 

in
sp

ec
tio

ns
 a

nd
 te

st
s,

 a
nd

 sh
al

l c
oo

pe
ra

te
 w

ith
 in

sp
ec

tio
n 

an
d 

te
st

in
g 

pe
rs

on
ne

l t
o 

fa
ci

lit
at

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
in

sp
ec

tio
ns

 a
nd

 te
st

s.
 

B.
 

O
w

ne
r s

ha
ll 

re
ta

in
 a

nd
 p

ay
 fo

r t
he

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
of

 a
n 

in
de

pe
nd

en
t i

ns
pe

ct
or

, t
es

tin
g 

la
bo

ra
to

ry
, 

or
 o

th
er

 q
ua

lif
ie

d 
in

di
vi

du
al

 o
r e

nt
ity

 to
 p

er
fo

rm
 a

ll 
in

sp
ec

tio
ns

 a
nd

 te
st

s 
ex

pr
es

sl
y 

re
qu

ire
d 

by
 th

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 D

oc
um

en
ts

 to
 b

e 
fu

rn
is

he
d 

an
d 

pa
id

 fo
r b

y 
O

w
ne

r, 
ex

ce
pt

 th
at

 co
st

s i
nc

ur
re

d 
in

 c
on

ne
ct

io
n 

w
ith

 te
st

s o
r i

ns
pe

ct
io

ns
 o

f c
ov

er
ed

 W
or

k 
w

ill
 b

e 
go

ve
rn

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
pr

ov
isi

on
s o

f 
Pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

14
.0

5.
 

C.
 

If 
La

w
s o

r R
eg

ul
at

io
ns

 o
f a

ny
 p

ub
lic

 b
od

y h
av

in
g 

ju
ris

di
ct

io
n 

re
qu

ire
 a

ny
 W

or
k 

(o
r p

ar
t t

he
re

of
) 

sp
ec

ifi
ca

lly
 to

 b
e 

in
sp

ec
te

d,
 t

es
te

d,
 o

r 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 b

y 
an

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
 o

r o
th

er
 re

pr
es

en
ta

tiv
e 

of
 

su
ch

 p
ub

lic
 b

od
y,

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r s

ha
ll 

as
su

m
e 

fu
ll 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
fo

r a
rr

an
gi

ng
 a

nd
 o

bt
ai

ni
ng

 su
ch

 
in

sp
ec

tio
ns

, t
es

ts
, o

r 
ap

pr
ov

al
s, 

pa
y 

al
l c

os
ts

 in
 c

on
ne

ct
io

n 
th

er
ew

ith
, a

nd
 fu

rn
ish

 E
ng

in
ee

r 
th

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
ce

rt
ifi

ca
te

s o
f i

ns
pe

ct
io

n 
or

 a
pp

ro
va

l. 

 

EJ
CD

C®
 C

-7
00

, S
ta

nd
ar

d 
G

en
er

al
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 
Co

py
rig

ht
©

 2
01

8 
N

at
io

na
l S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rs
, A

m
er

ic
an

 C
ou

nc
il 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Co

m
pa

ni
es

, 
an

d 
Am

er
ic

an
 S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
s.

 A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
 

Pa
ge

 5
7 

of
 7

0 

D
. 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 s

ha
ll 

be
 r

es
po

ns
ib

le
 fo

r 
ar

ra
ng

in
g,

 o
bt

ai
ni

ng
, a

nd
 p

ay
in

g 
fo

r 
al

l i
ns

pe
ct

io
ns

 a
nd

 
te

st
s r

eq
ui

re
d:

 

1.
 

by
 

th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 
Do

cu
m

en
ts

, 
un

le
ss

 
th

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 

D
oc

um
en

ts
 

ex
pr

es
sly

 
al

lo
ca

te
 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
fo

r a
 sp

ec
ifi

c 
in

sp
ec

tio
n 

or
 te

st
 to

 O
w

ne
r;

 

2.
 

 
eq

ui
pm

en
t 

to
 

be
 

in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 in
 th

e 
W

or
k;

 

3.
 

by
 m

an
uf

ac
tu

re
rs

 o
f e

qu
ip

m
en

t f
ur

ni
sh

ed
 u

nd
er

 th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 D
oc

um
en

ts
; 

4.
 

fo
r t

es
tin

g,
 a

dj
us

tin
g,

 a
nd

 b
al

an
ci

ng
 o

f m
ec

ha
ni

ca
l, 

el
ec

tr
ic

al
, a

nd
 o

th
er

 e
qu

ip
m

en
t t

o 
be

 
in

co
rp

or
at

ed
 in

to
 th

e 
W

or
k;

 a
nd

 

5.
 

fo
r 

ac
ce

pt
an

ce
 o

f m
at

er
ia

ls
, m

ix
 d

es
ig

ns
, o

r 
eq

ui
pm

en
t 

su
bm

itt
ed

 fo
r 

ap
pr

ov
al

 p
rio

r 
to

 
 

Su
ch

 in
sp

ec
tio

ns
 a

nd
 te

st
s w

ill
 b

e 
pe

rf
or

m
ed

 b
y 

in
de

pe
nd

en
t i

ns
pe

ct
or

s,
 te

st
in

g 
la

bo
ra

to
rie

s, 
or

 o
th

er
 q

ua
lif

ie
d 

in
di

vi
du

al
s o

r e
nt

iti
es

 a
cc

ep
ta

bl
e 

to
 O

w
ne

r a
nd

 E
ng

in
ee

r. 

E.
 

If 
th

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 D

oc
um

en
ts

 r
eq

ui
re

 t
he

 W
or

k 
(o

r 
pa

rt
 t

he
re

of
) 

to
 b

e 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 b

y 
O

w
ne

r, 
En

gi
ne

er
, 

or
 a

no
th

er
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
in

di
vi

du
al

 o
r 

en
tit

y,
 t

he
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 s

ha
ll 

as
su

m
e 

fu
ll 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
fo

r a
rr

an
gi

ng
 a

nd
 o

bt
ai

ni
ng

 su
ch

 a
pp

ro
va

ls
. 

F.
 

If 
an

y 
W

or
k 

(o
r t

he
 w

or
k 

of
 o

th
er

s)
 th

at
 is

 to
 b

e 
in

sp
ec

te
d,

 te
st

ed
, o

r a
pp

ro
ve

d 
is 

co
ve

re
d 

by
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 w

ith
ou

t 
w

rit
te

n 
co

nc
ur

re
nc

e 
of

 E
ng

in
ee

r, 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 s
ha

ll,
 i

f 
re

qu
es

te
d 

by
 

En
gi

ne
er

, u
nc

ov
er

 su
ch

 W

sa
m

e 
an

d 
En

gi
ne

er
 h

ad
 n

ot
 a

ct
ed

 w
ith

 re
as

on
ab

le
 p

ro
m

pt
ne

ss
 in

 re
sp

on
se

 to
 su

ch
 n

ot
ic

e.
 

14
.0

3 
D

ef
ec

tiv
e 

W
or

k 

A.
 

 

B.
 

: E
ng

in
ee

r h
as

 th
e 

au
th

or
ity

 to
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
w

he
th

er
 W

or
k 

is 
de

fe
ct

iv
e,

 a
nd

 
to

 re
je

ct
 d

ef
ec

tiv
e 

W
or

k.
 

C.
 

N
ot

ic
e 

of
 D

ef
ec

ts
: P

ro
m

pt
 w

rit
te

n 
no

tic
e 

of
 a

ll 
de

fe
ct

iv
e 

W
or

k 
of

 w
hi

ch
 O

w
ne

r 
or

 E
ng

in
ee

r 
ha

s a
ct

ua
l k

no
w

le
dg

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
gi

ve
n 

to
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r. 

D
. 

Co
rr

ec
tio

n,
 o

r R
em

ov
al

 a
nd

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t: 
Pr

om
pt

ly
 a

ft
er

 re
ce

ip
t o

f w
rit

te
n 

no
tic

e 
of

 d
ef

ec
tiv

e 
W

or
k,

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r s

ha
ll 

co
rr

ec
t a

ll 
su

ch
 d

ef
ec

tiv
e 

W
or

k,
 w

he
th

er
 o

r n
ot

 fa
br

ic
at

ed
, i

ns
ta

lle
d,

 
or

 co
m

pl
et

ed
, o

r, 
if 

En
gi

ne
er

 h
as

 re
je

ct
ed

 th
e 

de
fe

ct
iv

e 
W

or
k,

 re
m

ov
e 

it 
fr

om
 th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t a
nd

 
re

pl
ac

e 
it 

w
ith

 W
or

k 
th

at
 is

 n
ot

 d
ef

ec
tiv

e.
 

E.
 

Pr
es

er
va

tio
n 

of
 W

ar
ra

nt
ie

s:
 W

he
n 

co
rr

ec
tin

g 
de

fe
ct

iv
e 

W
or

k,
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r s
ha

ll 
ta

ke
 n

o 
ac

tio
n 

W
or

k.
 

F.
 

Co
st

s 
an

d 
D

am
ag

es
: I

n 
ad

di
tio

n 
to

 it
s c

or
re

ct
io

n,
 re

m
ov

al
, a

nd
 re

pl
ac

em
en

t o
bl

ig
at

io
ns

 w
ith

 
re

sp
ec

t t
o 

de
fe

ct
iv

e 
W

or
k,

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r s

ha
ll 

pa
y 

al
l c

la
im

s,
 c

os
ts

, l
os

se
s,

 a
nd

 d
am

ag
es

 a
ris

in
g 

ou
t o

f o
r r

el
at

in
g 

to
 d

ef
ec

tiv
e 

W
or

k,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

bu
t 

no
t l

im
ite

d 
to

 th
e 

co
st

 o
f t

he
 in

sp
ec

tio
n,

 
te

st
in

g,
 c

or
re

ct
io

n,
 r

em
ov

al
, r

ep
la

ce
m

en
t, 

or
 r

ec
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
of

 s
uc

h 
de

fe
ct

iv
e 

W
or

k,
 f

in
es

 
le

vi
ed

 a
ga

in
st

 O
w

ne
r 

by
 g

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l a

ut
ho

rit
ie

s 
be

ca
us

e 
th

e 
W

or
k 

is 
de

fe
ct

iv
e,

 a
nd

 t
he

 
co

st
s 

of
 re

pa
ir 

or
 re

pl
ac

em
en

t o
f w

or
k 

of
 o

th
er

s r
es

ul
tin

g 
fr

om
 d

ef
ec

tiv
e 

W
or

k.
 P

rio
r t

o 
fin

al
 

pa
ym

en
t, 

if 
O

w
ne

r a
nd

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r a

re
 u

na
bl

e 
to

 a
gr

ee
 a

s t
o 

th
e 

m
ea

su
re

 o
f s

uc
h 

cl
ai

m
s,

 co
st

s,
 



 

EJ
CD

C®
 C

-7
00

, S
ta

nd
ar

d 
G

en
er

al
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 
Co

py
rig

ht
©

 2
01

8 
N

at
io

na
l S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rs
, A

m
er

ic
an

 C
ou

nc
il 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Co

m
pa

ni
es

, 
an

d 
Am

er
ic

an
 S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
s.

 A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
 

Pa
ge

 5
8 

of
 7

0 

lo
ss

es
, a

nd
 d

am
ag

es
 r

es
ul

tin
g 

fr
om

 d
ef

ec
tiv

e 
W

or
k,

 t
he

n 
O

w
ne

r 
m

ay
 im

po
se

 a
 r

ea
so

na
bl

e 
se

t-
of

f a
ga

in
st

 p
ay

m
en

ts
 d

ue
 u

nd
er

 A
rt

ic
le

 1
5.

 

14
.0

4 
Ac

ce
pt

an
ce

 o
f D

ef
ec

tiv
e 

W
or

k 

A.
 

If,
 in

st
ea

d 
of

 r
eq

ui
rin

g 
co

rr
ec

tio
n 

or
 r

em
ov

al
 a

nd
 r

ep
la

ce
m

en
t 

of
 d

ef
ec

tiv
e 

W
or

k,
 O

w
ne

r 
pr

ef
er

s 
to

 a
cc

ep
t 

it,
 O

w
ne

r 
m

ay
 d

o 
so

 (
su

bj
ec

t, 
if 

su
ch

 a
cc

ep
ta

nc
e 

oc
cu

rs
 p

rio
r 

to
 f

in
al

 

in
te

nt
 a

nd
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

 e
ng

in
ee

rin
g 

pr
in

ci
pl

es
, a

nd
 w

ill
 n

ot
 e

nd
an

ge
r p

ub
lic

 sa
fe

ty
). 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 

de
te

rm
in

at
io

n 
to

 a
cc

ep
t 

su
ch

 d
ef

ec
tiv

e 
W

or
k 

(s
uc

h 
co

st
s 

to
 b

e 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 b

y 
En

gi
ne

er
 a

s 
to

 
re

as
on

ab
le

ne
ss

), 
an

d 
fo

r t
he

 d
im

in
is

he
d 

va
lu

e 
of

 th
e 

W
or

k 
to

 th
e 

ex
te

nt
 n

ot
 o

th
er

w
is

e 
pa

id
 

by
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r. 
If 

an
y 

su
ch

 a
cc

ep
ta

nc
e 

oc
cu

rs
 p

rio
r t

o 
fin

al
 p

ay
m

en
t, 

th
e 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
re

vi
sio

ns
 

in
 th

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 D

oc
um

en
ts

 w
ith

 re
sp

ec
t t

o 
th

e 
W

or
k 

w
ill

 b
e 

in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 in
 a

 C
ha

ng
e 

O
rd

er
. 

If 
th

e 
pa

rt
ie

s 
ar

e 
un

ab
le

 t
o 

ag
re

e 
as

 t
o 

th
e 

de
cr

ea
se

 in
 t

he
 C

on
tr

ac
t 

Pr
ic

e,
 r

ef
le

ct
in

g 
th

e 
di

m
in

is
he

d 
va

lu
e 

of
 W

or
k 

so
 a

cc
ep

te
d,

 th
en

 O
w

ne
r m

ay
 im

po
se

 a
 re

as
on

ab
le

 s
et

-o
ff

 a
ga

in
st

 
pa

ym
en

ts
 d

ue
 u

nd
er

 A
rt

ic
le

 1
5.

 I
f 

th
e 

ac
ce

pt
an

ce
 o

f 
de

fe
ct

iv
e 

W
or

k 
oc

cu
rs

 a
ft

er
 f

in
al

 
pa

ym
en

t, 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 s
ha

ll 
pa

y 
an

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 a
m

ou
nt

 to
 O

w
ne

r.
 

14
.0

5 
U

nc
ov

er
in

g 
W

or
k 

A.
 

En
gi

ne
er

 h
as

 th
e 

au
th

or
ity

 t
o 

re
qu

ire
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 in
sp

ec
tio

n 
or

 te
st

in
g 

of
 th

e 
W

or
k,

 w
he

th
er

 
or

 n
ot

 th
e 

W
or

k 
is 

fa
br

ic
at

ed
, i

ns
ta

lle
d,

 o
r c

om
pl

et
ed

. 

B.
 

If 
an

y 
W

or
k 

is
 c

ov
er

ed
 c

on
tr

ar
y 

to
 t

he
 w

rit
te

n 
re

qu
es

t o
f E

ng
in

ee
r, 

th
en

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r 

sh
al

l, 
if 

 

C.
 

If 
En

gi
ne

er
 c

on
si

de
rs

 it
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 o
r a

dv
isa

bl
e 

th
at

 c
ov

er
ed

 W
or

k 
be

 o
bs

er
ve

d 
by

 E
ng

in
ee

r o
r 

or
 o

th
er

w
is

e 
m

ak
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
fo

r o
bs

er
va

tio
n,

 in
sp

ec
tio

n,
 o

r t
es

tin
g 

as
 E

ng
in

ee
r m

ay
 re

qu
ire

, 
th

at
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 t
he

 W
or

k 
in

 q
ue

st
io

n,
 a

nd
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

ll 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

la
bo

r, 
m

at
er

ia
l, 

an
d 

eq
ui

pm
en

t. 

1.
 

If 
it 

is 
fo

un
d 

th
at

 th
e 

un
co

ve
re

d 
W

or
k 

is 
de

fe
ct

iv
e,

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r s

ha
ll 

be
 re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
fo

r a
ll 

cl
ai

m
s,

 co
st

s,
 lo

ss
es

, a
nd

 d
am

ag
es

 a
ris

in
g 

ou
t o

f o
r r

el
at

in
g 

to
 su

ch
 u

nc
ov

er
in

g,
 e

xp
os

ur
e,

 
ob

se
rv

at
io

n,
 in

sp
ec

tio
n,

 a
nd

 t
es

tin
g,

 a
nd

 o
f s

at
is

fa
ct

or
y 

re
pl

ac
em

en
t 

or
 r

ec
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
(in

cl
ud

in
g 

bu
t 

no
t 

lim
ite

d 
to

 a
ll 

co
st

s 
of

 r
ep

ai
r 

or
 r

ep
la

ce
m

en
t 

of
 w

or
k 

of
 o

th
er

s)
; a

nd
 

itl
ed

 t
o 

im
po

se
 a

 re
as

on
ab

le
 se

t-
of

f a
ga

in
st

 p
ay

m
en

ts
 d

ue
 u

nd
er

 A
rt

ic
le

 1
5.

 

2.
 

If 
th

e 
un

co
ve

re
d 

W
or

k 
is

 n
ot

 f
ou

nd
 t

o 
be

 d
ef

ec
tiv

e,
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r 
sh

al
l 

be
 a

llo
w

ed
 a

n 
in

cr
ea

se
 in

 th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 P
ric

e 
or

 a
n 

ex
te

ns
io

n 
of

 th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 T
im

es
, d

ire
ct

ly
 a

tt
rib

ut
ab

le
 

to
 

su
ch

 
un

co
ve

rin
g,

 e
xp

os
ur

e,
 o

bs
er

va
tio

n,
 i

ns
pe

ct
io

n,
 

te
st

in
g,

 
re

pl
ac

em
en

t, 
an

d 
re

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n.

 If
 th

e 
pa

rt
ie

s a
re

 u
na

bl
e 

to
 a

gr
ee

 a
s t

o 
th

e 
am

ou
nt

 o
r e

xt
en

t t
he

re
of

, t
he

n 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 m
ay

 s
ub

m
it 

a 
Ch

an
ge

 P
ro

po
sa

l w
ith

in
 3

0 
da

ys
 o

f t
he

 d
et

er
m

in
at

io
n 

th
at

 th
e 

W
or

k 
is 

no
t d

ef
ec

tiv
e.

 

14
.0

6 
O

w
ne

r M
ay

 S
to

p 
th

e 
W

or
k 

A.
 

If 
th

e 
W

or
k 

is 
de

fe
ct

iv
e,

 o
r 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 f

ai
ls

 t
o 

su
pp

ly
 s

uf
fic

ie
nt

 s
ki

lle
d 

w
or

ke
rs

 o
r 

su
ita

bl
e 

m
at

er
ia

ls 
or

 e
qu

ip
m

en
t, 

or
 fa

ils
 to

 p
er

fo
rm

 th
e 

W
or

k 
in

 su
ch

 a
 w

ay
 th

at
 th

e 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 W
or

k 
w

ill
 co

nf
or

m
 to

 th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 D
oc

um
en

ts
, t

he
n 

O
w

ne
r m

ay
 o

rd
er

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r t

o 
st

op
 th

e 
W

or
k,

 

 

EJ
CD

C®
 C

-7
00

, S
ta

nd
ar

d 
G

en
er

al
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 
Co

py
rig

ht
©

 2
01

8 
N

at
io

na
l S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rs
, A

m
er

ic
an

 C
ou

nc
il 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Co

m
pa

ni
es

, 
an

d 
Am

er
ic

an
 S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
s.

 A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
 

Pa
ge

 5
9 

of
 7

0 

or
 a

ny
 p

or
tio

n 
th

er
eo

f, 
un

til
 th

e 
ca

us
e 

fo
r s

uc
h 

or
de

r h
as

 b
ee

n 
el

im
in

at
ed

; h
ow

ev
er

, t
hi

s r
ig

ht
 

of
 O

w
ne

r t
o 

st
op

 th
e 

W
or

k 
w

ill
 n

ot
 g

iv
e 

ris
e 

to
 a

ny
 d

ut
y 

on
 th

e 
pa

rt
 o

f O
w

ne
r t

o 
ex

er
ci

se
 th

is 
rig

ht
 fo

r 
th

e 
be

ne
fit

 o
f C

on
tr

ac
to

r, 
an

y 
Su

bc
on

tr
ac

to
r, 

an
y 

Su
pp

lie
r, 

an
y 

ot
he

r 
in

di
vi

du
al

 o
r 

en
tit

y,
 o

r a
ny

 s
ur

et
y 

fo
r, 

or
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

 o
r a

ge
nt

 o
f a

ny
 o

f t
he

m
. 

14
.0

7 
O

w
ne

r M
ay

 C
or

re
ct

 D
ef

ec
tiv

e 
W

or
k 

A.
 

If 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 f
ai

ls
 w

ith
in

 a
 r

ea
so

na
bl

e 
tim

e 
af

te
r 

w
rit

te
n 

no
tic

e 
fr

om
 E

ng
in

ee
r 

to
 c

or
re

ct
 

de
fe

ct
iv

e 
W

or
k,

 o
r 

to
 r

em
ov

e 
an

d 
re

pl
ac

e 
de

fe
ct

iv
e 

W
or

k 
as

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
by

 E
ng

in
ee

r, 
th

en
  

B.
 

In
 e

xe
rc

isi
ng

 t
he

 r
ig

ht
s 

an
d 

re
m

ed
ie

s 
un

de
r 

th
is

 P
ar

ag
ra

ph
 1

4.
07

, 
O

w
ne

r 
sh

al
l 

pr
oc

ee
d 

ex
pe

di
tio

us
ly

. 
In

 c
on

ne
ct

io
n 

w
ith

 s
uc

h 
co

rr
ec

tiv
e 

or
 r

em
ed

ia
l a

ct
io

n,
 O

w
ne

r 
m

ay
 e

xc
lu

de
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 fr

om
 a

ll 
or

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
 S

ite
, t

ak
e 

po
ss

es
sio

n 
of

 a
ll 

or
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 W
or

k 
an

d 
su

sp
en

d 

eq
ui

pm
en

t s
to

re
d 

at
 t

he
 S

ite
 o

r 
fo

r 
w

hi
ch

 O
w

ne
r 

ha
s 

pa
id

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r 

bu
t w

hi
ch

 a
re

 s
to

re
d 

pl
oy

ee
s, 

en
ab

le
 O

w
ne

r t
o 

ex
er

ci
se

 th
e 

rig
ht

s a
nd

 re
m

ed
ie

s 
un

de
r t

hi
s p

ar
ag

ra
ph

. 

C.
 

Al
l c

la
im

s,
 c

os
ts

, l
os

se
s,

 a
nd

 d
am

ag
es

 in
cu

rr
ed

 o
r s

us
ta

in
ed

 b
y 

O
w

ne
r i

n 
ex

er
ci

sin
g 

th
e 

rig
ht

s 
an

d 
re

m
ed

ie
s 

un
de

r 
th

is 
Pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

14
.0

7 
w

ill
 b

e 
ch

ar
ge

d 
ag

ai
ns

t 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 a
s 

se
t-

of
fs

 
ag

ai
ns

t 
pa

ym
en

ts
 d

ue
 u

nd
er

 A
rt

ic
le

 1
5.

 S
uc

h 
cl

ai
m

s,
 c

os
ts

, l
os

se
s 

an
d 

da
m

ag
es

 w
ill

 in
cl

ud
e 

bu
t 

no
t 

be
 l

im
ite

d 
to

 a
ll 

co
st

s 
of

 r
ep

ai
r, 

or
 r

ep
la

ce
m

en
t 

of
 w

or
k 

of
 o

th
er

s 
de

st
ro

ye
d 

or
 

 

D
. 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 s

ha
ll 

no
t b

e 
al

lo
w

ed
 a

n 
ex

te
ns

io
n 

of
 th

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 T

im
es

 b
ec

au
se

 o
f a

ny
 d

el
ay

 in
 

th
e 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 W

or
k 

at
tr

ib
ut

ab
le

 t
o 

th
e 

ex
er

ci
se

 b
y 

O
re

m
ed

ie
s u

nd
er

 th
is

 P
ar

ag
ra

ph
 1

4.
07

. 

AR
TI

CL
E 

15
PA

YM
EN

TS
 T

O
 C

O
N

TR
AC

TO
R;

 S
ET

-O
FF

S;
 C

O
M

PL
ET

IO
N

; C
O

RR
EC

TI
O

N
 P

ER
IO

D
 

15
.0

1 
Pr

og
re

ss
 P

ay
m

en
ts

 

A.
 

Ba
si

s 
fo

r P
ro

gr
es

s 
Pa

ym
en

ts
: T

he
 S

ch
ed

ul
e 

of
 V

al
ue

s 
es

ta
bl

ish
ed

 a
s 

pr
ov

id
ed

 in
 A

rt
ic

le
 2

 w
ill

 
se

rv
e 

as
 th

e 
ba

sis
 fo

r p
ro

gr
es

s 
pa

ym
en

ts
 a

nd
 w

ill
 b

e 
in

co
rp

or
at

ed
 in

to
 a

 fo
rm

 o
f A

pp
lic

at
io

n 
fo

r P
ay

m
en

t a
cc

ep
ta

bl
e 

to
 E

ng
in

ee
r. 

Pr
og

re
ss

 p
ay

m
en

ts
 fo

r U
ni

t P
ric

e 
W

or
k 

w
ill

 b
e 

ba
se

d 
on

 
th

e 
nu

m
be

r o
f u

ni
ts

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
pa

y 
pe

rio
d,

 a
s d

et
er

m
in

ed
 u

nd
er

 th
e 

pr
ov

isi
on

s 
of

 
Pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

13
.0

3.
 P

ro
gr

es
s 

pa
ym

en
ts

 fo
r c

os
t-

ba
se

d 
W

or
k 

w
ill

 b
e 

ba
se

d 
on

 C
os

t o
f t

he
 W

or
k 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 b

y 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

pa
y 

pe
rio

d.
 

B.
 

Ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 fo
r P

ay
m

en
ts

 

1.
 

At
 le

as
t 2

0 
da

ys
 b

ef
or

e 
th

e 
da

te
 e

st
ab

lis
he

d 
in

 th
e 

Ag
re

em
en

t f
or

 e
ac

h 
pr

og
re

ss
 p

ay
m

en
t 

(b
ut

 n
ot

 m
or

e 
of

te
n 

th
an

 o
nc

e 
a 

m
on

th
), 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 s

ha
ll 

su
bm

it 
to

 E
ng

in
ee

r f
or

 re
vi

ew
 

an
 A

pp
lic

at
io

n 
fo

r 
Pa

ym
en

t 
fil

le
d 

ou
t 

an
d 

si
gn

ed
 b

y 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 c
ov

er
in

g 
th

e 
W

or
k 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 a

s 
of

 t
he

 d
at

e 
of

 t
he

 A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

an
d 

ac
co

m
pa

ni
ed

 b
y 

su
ch

 s
up

po
rt

in
g 

do
cu

m
en

ta
tio

n 
as

 is
 re

qu
ire

d 
by

 th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 D
oc

um
en

ts
. 

2.
 

If 
pa

ym
en

t i
s r

eq
ue

st
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

ba
sis

 o
f m

at
er

ia
ls 

an
d 

eq
ui

pm
en

t n
ot

 in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 in
 th

e 
W

or
k 

bu
t 

de
liv

er
ed

 a
nd

 s
ui

ta
bl

y 
st

or
ed

 a
t 

th
e 

Si
te

 o
r 

at
 a

no
th

er
 lo

ca
tio

n 
ag

re
ed

 t
o 

in
 

w
rit

in
g,

 t
he

 A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

fo
r 

Pa
ym

en
t 

m
us

t 
al

so
 b

e 
ac

co
m

pa
ni

ed
 b

y:
 (

a)
 a

 b
ill

 o
f 

sa
le

, 
in

vo
ic

e,
 c

op
ie

s 
of

 s
ub

co
nt

ra
ct

 o
r 

pu
rc

ha
se

 o
rd

er
 p

ay
m

en
ts

, 
or

 o
th

er
 d

oc
um

en
ta

tio
n 



 

EJ
CD

C®
 C

-7
00

, S
ta

nd
ar

d 
G

en
er

al
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 
Co

py
rig

ht
©

 2
01

8 
N

at
io

na
l S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rs
, A

m
er

ic
an

 C
ou

nc
il 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Co

m
pa

ni
es

, 
an

d 
Am

er
ic

an
 S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
s.

 A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
 

Pa
ge

 6
0 

of
 7

0 

es
ta

bl
is

hi
ng

 fu
ll 

pa
ym

en
t b

y 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 fo
r t

he
 m

at
er

ia
ls

 a
nd

 e
qu

ip
m

en
t; 

(b
) a

t O
w

ne
r

re
qu

es
t, 

do
cu

m
en

ta
tio

n 
w

ar
ra

nt
in

g 
th

at
 

O
w

ne
r 

ha
s 

re
ce

iv
ed

 
th

e 
m

at
er

ia
ls

 
an

d 
eq

ui
pm

en
t f

re
e 

an
d 

cl
ea

r o
f a

ll 
Li

en
s;

 a
nd

 (c
) e

vi
de

nc
e 

th
at

 th
e 

m
at

er
ia

ls
 a

nd
 e

qu
ip

m
en

t 
ar

e 
co

ve
re

d 
by

 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 
pr

op
er

ty
 

in
su

ra
nc

e,
 

a 
w

ar
eh

ou
se

 
bo

nd
, 

or
 

ot
he

r 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 t

O
w

ne
r. 

3.
 

Be
gi

nn
in

g 
w

ith
 t

he
 s

ec
on

d 
Ap

pl
ic

at
io

n 
fo

r 
Pa

ym
en

t, 
ea

ch
 A

pp
lic

at
io

n 
m

us
t 

in
cl

ud
e 

an
 

af
fid

av
it 

of
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r s
ta

tin
g 

th
at

 a
ll 

pr
ev

io
us

 p
ro

gr
es

s p
ay

m
en

ts
 re

ce
iv

ed
 b

y 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 

Ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 fo
r P

ay
m

en
t. 

4.
 

Th
e 

am
ou

nt
 o

f r
et

ai
na

ge
 w

ith
 r

es
pe

ct
 to

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
pa

ym
en

ts
 w

ill
 b

e 
as

 s
tip

ul
at

ed
 in

 th
e 

Ag
re

em
en

t. 

C.
 

Re
vi

ew
 o

f A
pp

lic
at

io
ns

 

1.
 

En
gi

ne
er

 w
ill

, w
ith

in
 1

0 
da

ys
 a

ft
er

 re
ce

ip
t o

f e
ac

h 
Ap

pl
ic

at
io

n 
fo

r P
ay

m
en

t, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

ea
ch

 
re

su
bm

itt
al

, e
ith

er
 in

di
ca

te
 in

 w
rit

in
g 

a 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 
of

 p
ay

m
en

t 
an

d 
pr

es
en

t 
th

e 
Ap

pl
ic

at
io

n 
to

 O
w

ne
r, 

or
 r

et
ur

n 
th

e 
Ap

pl
ic

at
io

n 
to

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r 

in
di

ca
tin

g 
in

 w
rit

in
g 

En
gi

n
m

ay
 m

ak
e 

th
e 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
co

rr
ec

tio
ns

 a
nd

 re
su

bm
it 

th
e 

Ap
pl

ic
at

io
n.

 

2.
 

co
ns

tit
ut

e 
a 

re
pr

es
en

t

re
vi

ew
 o

f t
he

 A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

fo
r P

ay
m

en
t a

nd
 th

e 
ac

co
m

pa
ny

in
g 

da
ta

 a
nd

 sc
he

du
le

s,
 th

at
 to

 
th

e 
be

st
 o

f E
ng

i
 

a.
 

th
e 

W
or

k 
ha

s p
ro

gr
es

se
d 

to
 th

e 
po

in
t i

nd
ic

at
ed

; 

b.
 

th
e 

qu
al

ity
 o

f 
th

e 
W

or
k 

is
 g

en
er

al
ly

 i
n 

ac
co

rd
an

ce
 w

ith
 t

he
 C

on
tr

ac
t 

D
oc

um
en

ts
 

(s
ub

je
ct

 t
o 

an
 e

va
lu

at
io

n 
of

 t
he

 W
or

k 
as

 a
 f

un
ct

io
ni

ng
 w

ho
le

 p
rio

r 
to

 o
r 

up
on

 
Su

bs
ta

nt
ia

l C
om

pl
et

io
n,

 th
e 

re
su

lts
 o

f a
ny

 su
bs

eq
ue

nt
 te

st
s c

al
le

d 
fo

r i
n 

th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 
D

oc
um

en
ts

, a
 fi

na
l d

et
er

m
in

at
io

n 
of

 q
ua

nt
iti

es
 a

nd
 c

la
ss

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 fo
r U

ni
t P

ric
e 

W
or

k 
un

de
r P

ar
ag

ra
ph

 1
3.

03
, a

nd
 a

ny
 o

th
er

 q
ua

lif
ic

at
io

ns
 s

ta
te

d 
in

 th
e 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
n)

; 
an

d 

c.
 

 

3.
 

By
 r

ec
om

m
en

di
ng

 a
ny

 s
uc

h 
pa

ym
en

t 
En

gi
ne

er
 w

ill
 n

ot
 t

he
re

by
 b

e 
de

em
ed

 t
o 

ha
ve

 
re

pr
es

en
te

d 
th

at
: 

a.
 

in
sp

ec
tio

ns
 m

ad
e 

to
 c

he
ck

 t
he

 q
ua

lit
y 

or
 t

he
 q

ua
nt

ity
 o

f 
th

e 
W

or
k 

as
 it

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
pe

rf
or

m
ed

 h
av

e 
be

en
 e

xh
au

st
iv

e,
 e

xt
en

de
d 

to
 e

ve
ry

 a
sp

ec
t o

f t
he

 W
or

k 
in

 p
ro

gr
es

s, 
or

 in
vo

lv
ed

 d
et

ai
le

d 
in

sp
ec

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 W

or
k 

be
yo

nd
 th

e 
re

sp
on

sib
ili

tie
s 

sp
ec

ifi
ca

lly
 

as
si

gn
ed

 to
 E

ng
in

ee
r i

n 
th

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
; o

r 

b.
 

th
er

e 
m

ay
 n

ot
 b

e 
ot

he
r 

m
at

te
rs

 o
r 

is
su

es
 b

et
w

ee
n 

th
e 

pa
rt

ie
s 

th
at

 m
ig

ht
 e

nt
itl

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 to
 b

e 
pa

id
 a

dd
iti

on
al

ly
 b

y 
O

w
ne

r o
r e

nt
itl

e 
O

w
ne

r t
o 

w
ith

ho
ld

 p
ay

m
en

t t
o 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
. 

 

EJ
CD

C®
 C

-7
00

, S
ta

nd
ar

d 
G

en
er

al
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 
Co

py
rig

ht
©

 2
01

8 
N

at
io

na
l S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rs
, A

m
er

ic
an

 C
ou

nc
il 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Co

m
pa

ni
es

, 
an

d 
Am

er
ic

an
 S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
s.

 A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
 

Pa
ge

 6
1 

of
 7

0 

4.
 

im
po

se
 re

sp
on

sib
ili

ty
 o

n 
En

gi
ne

er
: 

a.
 

to
 su

pe
rv

is
e,

 d
ire

ct
, o

r c
on

tr
ol

 th
e 

W
or

k;
 

b.
 

fo
r 

th
e 

m
ea

ns
, m

et
ho

ds
, t

ec
hn

iq
ue

s,
 s

eq
ue

nc
es

, o
r 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 o

f 
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n,
 o

r 
th

e 
sa

fe
ty

 p
re

ca
ut

io
ns

 a
nd

 p
ro

gr
am

s i
nc

id
en

t t
he

re
to

; 

c.
 

 

d.
 

to
 m

ak
e 

an
y 

ex
am

in
at

io
n 

to
 a

sc
er

ta
in

 h
ow

 o
r f

or
 w

ha
t p

ur
po

se
s C

on
tr

ac
to

r h
as

 u
se

d 
th

e 
m

on
ey

 p
ai

d 
by

 O
w

ne
r; 

or
 

e.
 

to
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
th

at
 t

itl
e 

to
 a

ny
 o

f 
th

e 
W

or
k,

 m
at

er
ia

ls,
 o

r 
eq

ui
pm

en
t 

ha
s 

pa
ss

ed
 t

o 
O

w
ne

r f
re

e 
an

d 
cl

ea
r o

f a
ny

 L
ie

ns
. 

5.
 

En
gi

ne
er

 m
ay

 re
fu

se
 to

 re
co

m
m

en
d 

th
e 

w
ho

le
 o

r a
ny

 p
ar

t 
op

in
io

n,
 i

t 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

in
co

rr
ec

t 
to

 m
ak

e 
th

e 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 t
o 

O
w

ne
r 

st
at

ed
 i

n 
Pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

15
.0

1.
C.

2.
 

6.
 

En
gi

ne
er

 w
ill

 r
ec

om
m

en
d 

re
du

ct
io

ns
 i

n 
pa

ym
en

t 
(s

et
-

op
in

io
n 

to
 p

ro
te

ct
 O

w
ne

r f
ro

m
 lo

ss
 b

ec
au

se
: 

a.
 

th
e 

W
or

k 
is 

de
fe

ct
iv

e,
 re

qu
iri

ng
 c

or
re

ct
io

n 
or

 re
pl

ac
em

en
t; 

b.
 

th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 P
ric

e 
ha

s b
ee

n 
re

du
ce

d 
by

 C
ha

ng
e 

O
rd

er
s;

 

c.
 

O
w

ne
r 

ha
s 

be
en

 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 
co

rr
ec

t 
de

fe
ct

iv
e 

W
or

k 
in

 
ac

co
rd

an
ce

 
w

ith
 

Pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
14

.0
7,

 o
r h

as
 a

cc
ep

te
d 

de
fe

ct
iv

e 
W

or
k 

pu
rs

ua
nt

 to
 P

ar
ag

ra
ph

 1
4.

04
; 

d.
 

O
w

ne
r 

ha
s 

be
en

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 r
em

ov
e 

or
 r

em
ed

ia
te

 a
 H

az
ar

do
us

 E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l 
Co

nd
iti

on
 fo

r w
hi

ch
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r i
s r

es
po

ns
ib

le
; o

r 

e.
 

En
gi

ne
er

 h
as

 a
ct

ua
l k

no
w

le
dg

e 
of

 t
he

 o
cc

ur
re

nc
e 

of
 a

ny
 o

f 
th

e 
ev

en
ts

 t
ha

t 
w

ou
ld

 
co

ns
tit

ut
e 

a 
de

fa
ul

t b
y 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 a

nd
 th

er
ef

or
e 

ju
st

ify
 te

rm
in

at
io

n 
fo

r c
au

se
 u

nd
er

 
th

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 D

oc
um

en
ts

. 

D
. 

Pa
ym

en
t B

ec
om

es
 D

ue
 

1.
 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
n,

 th
e 

am
ou

nt
 re

co
m

m
en

de
d 

(s
ub

je
ct

 to
 a

ny
 O

w
ne

r s
et

-o
ff

s)
 w

ill
 b

ec
om

e 
du

e,
 a

nd
 w

he
n 

du
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

pa
id

 b
y 

O
w

ne
r t

o 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

. 

E.
 

Re
du

ct
io

ns
 in

 P
ay

m
en

t b
y 

O
w

ne
r 

1.
 

In
 a

dd
iti

on
 to

 a
ny

 re
du

ct
io

ns
 in

 p
ay

m
en

t (
se

t-
of

fs
) r

ec
om

m
en

de
d 

by
 E

ng
in

ee
r, 

O
w

ne
r i

s 
en

tit
le

d 
to

 im
po

se
 a

 se
t-

of
f a

ga
in

st
 p

ay
m

en
t b

as
ed

 o
n 

an
y 

of
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g:

 

a.
 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 o
r 

fu
rn

is
hi

ng
 o

f 
th

e 
W

or
k,

 o
r 

O
w

ne
r 

ha
s 

in
cu

rr
ed

 c
os

ts
, 

lo
ss

es
, 

or
 

g 
of

 th
e 

W
or

k,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

bu
t 

no
t l

im
ite

d 
to

 c
la

im
s,

 c
os

ts
, l

os
se

s,
 o

r d
am

ag
es

 fr
om

 w
or

kp
la

ce
 

in
ju

rie
s,

 a
dj

ac
en

t p
ro

pe
rt

y 
da

m
ag

e,
 n

on
-c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 L

aw
s 

an
d 

Re
gu

la
tio

ns
, a

nd
 

pa
te

nt
 in

fr
in

ge
m

en
t; 



 

EJ
CD

C®
 C

-7
00

, S
ta

nd
ar

d 
G

en
er

al
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 
Co

py
rig

ht
©

 2
01

8 
N

at
io

na
l S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rs
, A

m
er

ic
an

 C
ou

nc
il 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Co

m
pa

ni
es

, 
an

d 
Am

er
ic

an
 S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
s.

 A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
 

Pa
ge

 6
2 

of
 7

0 

b.
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 h

as
 fa

ile
d 

to
 ta

ke
 re

as
on

ab
le

 a
nd

 c
us

to
m

ar
y 

m
ea

su
re

s 
to

 a
vo

id
 d

am
ag

e,
 

de
la

y,
 d

is
ru

pt
io

n,
 a

nd
 in

te
rf

er
en

ce
 w

ith
 o

th
er

 w
or

k 
at

 o
r a

dj
ac

en
t t

o 
th

e 
Si

te
; 

c.
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 h

as
 fa

ile
d 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

nd
 m

ai
nt

ai
n 

re
qu

ire
d 

bo
nd

s o
r i

ns
ur

an
ce

; 

d.
 

O
w

ne
r 

ha
s 

be
en

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 r
em

ov
e 

or
 r

em
ed

ia
te

 a
 H

az
ar

do
us

 E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l 
Co

nd
iti

on
 fo

r w
hi

ch
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r i
s r

es
po

ns
ib

le
; 

e.
 

O
w

ne
r h

as
 in

cu
rr

ed
 e

xt
ra

 c
ha

rg
es

 o
r e

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
co

st
s 

re
la

te
d 

to
 s

ub
m

itt
al

 re
vi

ew
s,

 
ev

al
ua

tio
ns

 o
f 

pr
op

os
ed

 s
ub

st
itu

te
s,

 t
es

ts
 a

nd
 i

ns
pe

ct
io

ns
, 

or
 r

et
ur

n 
vi

si
ts

 t
o 

m
an

uf
ac

tu
rin

g 
or

 a
ss

em
bl

y 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s;

 

f. 
Th

e 
W

or
k 

is 
de

fe
ct

iv
e,

 re
qu

iri
ng

 c
or

re
ct

io
n 

or
 re

pl
ac

em
en

t; 

g.
 

O
w

ne
r 

ha
s 

be
en

 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 
co

rr
ec

t 
de

fe
ct

iv
e 

W
or

k 
in

 
ac

co
rd

an
ce

 
w

ith
 

Pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
14

.0
7,

 o
r h

as
 a

cc
ep

te
d 

de
fe

ct
iv

e 
W

or
k 

pu
rs

ua
nt

 to
 P

ar
ag

ra
ph

 1
4.

04
; 

h.
 

Th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 P
ric

e 
ha

s b
ee

n 
re

du
ce

d 
by

 C
ha

ng
e 

O
rd

er
s;

 

i. 
An

 e
ve

nt
 h

as
 o

cc
ur

re
d 

th
at

 w
ou

ld
 c

on
st

itu
te

 a
 d

ef
au

lt 
by

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r 

an
d 

th
er

ef
or

e 
ju

st
ify

 a
 te

rm
in

at
io

n 
fo

r c
au

se
; 

j. 
ac

hi
ev

e 
M

ile
st

on
es

, S
ub

st
an

tia
l C

om
pl

et
io

n,
 o

r f
in

al
 c

om
pl

et
io

n 
of

 th
e 

W
or

k;
 

k.
 

Li
en

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

fil
ed

 in
 c

on
ne

ct
io

n 
w

ith
 t

he
 W

or
k,

 e
xc

ep
t 

w
he

re
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r 
ha

s 
de

liv
er

ed
 a

 s
pe

ci
fic

 b
on

d 
sa

tis
fa

ct
or

y 
to

 O
w

ne
r 

to
 s

ec
ur

e 
th

e 
sa

tis
fa

ct
io

n 
an

d 
di

sc
ha

rg
e 

of
 s

uc
h 

Li
en

s;
 o

r 

l. 
O

th
er

 it
em

s e
nt

itl
e 

O
w

ne
r t

o 
a 

se
t-

of
f a

ga
in

st
 th

e 
am

ou
nt

 re
co

m
m

en
de

d.
 

2.
 

If 
O

w
ne

r 
im

po
se

s 
an

y 
se

t-
of

f a
ga

in
st

 p
ay

m
en

t, 
w

he
th

er
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

its
 o

w
n 

kn
ow

le
dg

e 
or

 
on

 t
he

 w
rit

te
n 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 o
f 

En
gi

ne
er

, 
O

w
ne

r 
w

ill
 g

iv
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 i

m
m

ed
ia

te
 

w
rit

te
n 

no
tic

e 
(w

ith
 a

 c
op

y 
to

 E
ng

in
ee

r)
 s

ta
tin

g 
th

e 
re

as
on

s 
fo

r 
su

ch
 a

ct
io

n 
an

d 
th

e 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
am

ou
nt

 o
f 

th
e 

re
du

ct
io

n,
 a

nd
 p

ro
m

pt
ly

 p
ay

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r 

an
y 

am
ou

nt
 r

em
ai

ni
ng

 
af

te
r 

de
du

ct
io

n 
of

 t
he

 a
m

ou
nt

 s
o 

w
ith

he
ld

. O
w

ne
r 

sh
al

l p
ro

m
pt

ly
 p

ay
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r 
th

e 
am

ou
nt

 s
o 

w
ith

he
ld

, o
r 

an
y 

ad
ju

st
m

en
t 

th
er

et
o 

ag
re

ed
 t

o 
by

 O
w

ne
r 

an
d 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
, i

f 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 re
m

ed
ie

s 
th

e 
re

as
on

s 
fo

r s
uc

h 
ac

tio
n.

 T
he

 re
du

ct
io

n 
im

po
se

d 
w

ill
 b

e 
bi

nd
in

g 
on

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r u

nl
es

s 
it 

du
ly

 s
ub

m
its

 a
 C

ha
ng

e 
Pr

op
os

al
 c

on
te

st
in

g 
th

e 
re

du
ct

io
n.

 

3.
 

f p
ay

m
en

t w
as

 n
ot

 ju
st

ifi
ed

, t
he

 
am

ou
nt

 w
ro

ng
fu

lly
 w

ith
he

ld
 w

ill
 b

e 
tr

ea
te

d 
as

 a
n 

am
ou

nt
 d

ue
 a

s 
de

te
rm

in
ed

 b
y 

Pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
15

.0
1.

D.
1 

an
d 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
in

te
re

st
 a

s p
ro

vi
de

d 
in

 th
e 

Ag
re

em
en

t. 

15
.0

2 
 

A.
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 w

ar
ra

nt
s a

nd
 g

ua
ra

nt
ee

s t
ha

t t
itl

e 
to

 a
ll 

W
or

k,
 m

at
er

ia
ls

, a
nd

 e
qu

ip
m

en
t f

ur
ni

sh
ed

 
un

de
r t

he
 C

on
tr

ac
t 

w
ill

 p
as

s 
to

 O
w

ne
r 

fr
ee

 a
nd

 c
le

ar
 o

f (
1)

 a
ll 

Li
en

s 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

tit
le

 d
ef

ec
ts

, 
an

d 
(2

) a
ll 

pa
te

nt
, l

ic
en

si
ng

, c
op

yr
ig

ht
, o

r 
ro

ya
lty

 o
bl

ig
at

io
ns

, n
o 

la
te

r t
ha

n 
7 

da
ys

 a
ft

er
 th

e 
tim

e 
of

 p
ay

m
en

t b
y 

O
w

ne
r. 

15
.0

3 
Su

bs
ta

nt
ia

l C
om

pl
et

io
n 

A.
 

W
he

n 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 co
ns

id
er

s t
he

 e
nt

ire
 W

or
k 

re
ad

y 
fo

r i
ts

 in
te

nd
ed

 u
se

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r s

ha
ll 

no
tif

y 
O

w
ne

r a
nd

 E
ng

in
ee

r i
n 

w
rit

in
g 

th
at

 th
e 

en
tir

e 
W

or
k 

is 
su

bs
ta

nt
ia

lly
 co

m
pl

et
e 

an
d 

re
qu

es
t t

ha
t 

En
gi

ne
er

 i
ss

ue
 a

 c
er

tif
ic

at
e 

of
 S

ub
st

an
tia

l C
om

pl
et

io
n.

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r 

sh
al

l 
at

 t
he

 s
am

e 
tim

e 

 

EJ
CD

C®
 C

-7
00

, S
ta

nd
ar

d 
G

en
er

al
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 
Co

py
rig

ht
©

 2
01

8 
N

at
io

na
l S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rs
, A

m
er

ic
an

 C
ou

nc
il 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Co

m
pa

ni
es

, 
an

d 
Am

er
ic

an
 S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
s.

 A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
 

Pa
ge

 6
3 

of
 7

0 

su
bm

it 
to

 O
w

ne
r a

nd
 E

ng
in

ee
r a

n 
in

iti
al

 d
ra

ft
 o

f p
un

ch
 li

st
 it

em
s t

o 
be

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 o

r c
or

re
ct

ed
 

be
fo

re
 fi

na
l p

ay
m

en
t. 

B.
 

, 
an

d 
En

gi
ne

er
 s

ha
ll 

m
ak

e 
an

 
in

sp
ec

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
W

or
k 

to
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
th

e 
st

at
us

 o
f c

om
pl

et
io

n.
 If

 E
ng

in
ee

r d
oe

s n
ot

 c
on

sid
er

 
th

e 
W

or
k 

su
bs

ta
nt

ia
lly

 c
om

pl
et

e,
 E

ng
in

ee
r w

ill
 n

ot
ify

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r i

n 
w

rit
in

g 
gi

vi
ng

 th
e 

re
as

on
s 

th
er

ef
or

. 

C.
 

If 
En

gi
ne

er
 c

on
si

de
rs

 t
he

 W
or

k 
su

bs
ta

nt
ia

lly
 c

om
pl

et
e,

 E
ng

in
ee

r 
w

ill
 d

el
iv

er
 t

o 
O

w
ne

r 
a 

pr
el

im
in

ar
y 

ce
rt

ifi
ca

te
 o

f 
Su

bs
ta

nt
ia

l 
Co

m
pl

et
io

n 
w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 f
ix

 t
he

 d
at

e 
of

 S
ub

st
an

tia
l 

Co
m

pl
et

io
n.

 E
ng

in
ee

r s
ha

ll 
at

ta
ch

 to
 th

e 
ce

rt
ifi

ca
te

 a
 p

un
ch

 li
st

 o
f i

te
m

s 
to

 b
e 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 o

r 
co

rr
ec

te
d 

be
fo

re
 f

in
al

 p
ay

m
en

t. 
O

w
ne

r 
sh

al
l h

av
e 

7 
da

ys
 a

ft
er

 r
ec

ei
pt

 o
f 

th
e 

pr
el

im
in

ar
y 

ce
rt

ifi
ca

te
 d

ur
in

g 
w

hi
ch

 t
o 

m
ak

e 
w

rit
te

n 
ob

je
ct

io
n 

to
 E

ng
in

ee
r 

as
 t

o 
an

y 
pr

ov
isi

on
s 

of
 t

he
 

ce
rt

ifi
ca

te
 o

r a
tt

ac
he

d 
pu

nc
h 

lis
t. 

If,
 a

ft
er

 c
on

si
de

rin
g 

th
e 

ob
je

ct
io

ns
 to

 th
e 

pr
ov

isi
on

s 
of

 th
e 

pr
el

im
in

ar
y 

ce
rt

ifi
ca

te
, 

En
gi

ne
er

 c
on

cl
ud

es
 t

ha
t 

th
e 

W
or

k 
is 

no
t 

su
bs

ta
nt

ia
lly

 c
om

pl
et

e,
 

En
gi

ne
er

 w
ill

, w
ith

in
 1

4 
da

ys
 a

ft
er

 s
ub

m
iss

io
n 

of
 th

e 
pr

el
im

in
ar

y 
ce

rt
ifi

ca
te

 to
 O

w
ne

r, 
no

tif
y 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 in

 w
rit

in
g 

th
at

 th
e 

W
or

k 
is

 n
ot

 su
bs

ta
nt

ia
lly

 co
m

pl
et

e,
 st

at
in

g 
th

e 
re

as
on

s t
he

re
fo

r. 
If 

O
w

ne
r 

do
es

 n
ot

 o
bj

ec
t 

to
 t

he
 p

ro
vi

sio
ns

 o
f 

th
e 

ce
rt

ifi
ca

te
, o

r 
if 

de
sp

ite
 c

on
si

de
ra

tio
n 

of
 

En
gi

ne
er

 w
ill

, 
w

ith
in

 s
ai

d 
14

 d
ay

s,
 e

xe
cu

te
 a

nd
 d

el
iv

er
 t

o 
O

w
ne

r 
an

d 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 a
 f

in
al

 
ce

rt
ifi

ca
te

 o
f S

ub
st

an
tia

l C
om

pl
et

io
n 

(w
ith

 a
 re

vi
se

d 
pu

nc
h 

lis
t o

f i
te

m
s 

to
 b

e 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 o
r 

co
rr

ec
te

d)
 r

ef
le

ct
in

g 
su

ch
 c

ha
ng

es
 f

ro
m

 t
he

 p
re

lim
in

ar
y 

ce
rt

ifi
ca

te
 a

s 
En

gi
ne

er
 b

el
ie

ve
s 

ju
st

ifi
ed

 a
ft

er
 c

on
sid

er
at

io
n 

of
 a

ny
 o

bj
ec

tio
ns

 fr
om

 O
w

ne
r. 

D
. 

At
 t

he
 t

im
e 

of
 r

ec
ei

pt
 o

f 
th

e 
pr

el
im

in
ar

y 
ce

rt
ifi

ca
te

 o
f 

Su
bs

ta
nt

ia
l C

om
pl

et
io

n,
 O

w
ne

r 
an

d 

Co
m

pl
et

io
n,

 re
vi

ew
 th

e 
b

ris
k 

co
ve

ra
ge

, 
an

d 
co

nf
irm

 t
he

 t
ra

ns
iti

on
 t

o 
co

ve
ra

ge
 o

f 
th

e 
W

or
k 

un
de

r 
a 

pe
rm

an
en

t 
pr

op
er

ty
 in

su
ra

nc
e 

po
lic

y 
he

ld
 b

y 
O

w
ne

r. 
U

nl
es

s 
O

w
ne

r 
an

d 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 a
gr

ee
 o

th
er

w
is

e 
in

 
w

rit
in

g,
 O

w
ne

r 
sh

al
l 

be
ar

 r
es

po
ns

ib
ili

ty
 f

or
 s

ec
ur

ity
, 

op
er

at
io

n,
 p

ro
te

ct
io

n 
of

 t
he

 W
or

k,
 

W
or

k.
 

E.
 

Af
te

r 
Su

bs
ta

nt
ia

l C
om

pl
et

io
n 

th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 s

ha
ll 

pr
om

pt
ly

 b
eg

in
 w

or
k 

on
 t

he
 p

un
ch

 li
st

 o
f 

ite
m

s 
to

 b
e 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 o

r 
co

rr
ec

te
d 

pr
io

r 
to

 fi
na

l p
ay

m
en

t. 
In

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 c
as

es
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r 
m

ay
 s

ub
m

it 
m

on
th

ly
 A

pp
lic

at
io

ns
 fo

r P
ay

m
en

t f
or

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 p

un
ch

 li
st

 it
em

s,
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

th
e 

pr
og

re
ss

 p
ay

m
en

t p
ro

ce
du

re
s 

se
t f

or
th

 a
bo

ve
. 

F.
 

O
w

ne
r s

ha
ll 

ha
ve

 th
e 

rig
ht

 to
 e

xc
lu

de
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r 
fr

om
 th

e 
Si

te
 a

ft
er

 th
e 

da
te

 o
f S

ub
st

an
tia

l 
Co

m
pl

et
io

n 
su

bj
ec

t 
to

 a
llo

w
in

g 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 r
ea

so
na

bl
e 

ac
ce

ss
 t

o 
re

m
ov

e 
its

 p
ro

pe
rt

y 
an

d 
co

m
pl

et
e 

or
 c

or
re

ct
 it

em
s o

n 
th

e 
pu

nc
h 

lis
t. 

15
.0

4 
Pa

rt
ia

l U
se

 o
r O

cc
up

an
cy

 

A.
 

Pr
io

r 
to

 S
ub

st
an

tia
l C

om
pl

et
io

n 
of

 a
ll 

th
e 

W
or

k,
 O

w
ne

r m
ay

 u
se

 o
r o

cc
up

y 
an

y 
su

bs
ta

nt
ia

lly
 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 W
or

k 
w

hi
ch

 h
as

 sp
ec

ifi
ca

lly
 b

ee
n 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
in

 th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 D
oc

um
en

ts
, 

or
 w

hi
ch

 O
w

ne
r, 

En
gi

ne
er

, a
nd

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r 

ag
re

e 
co

ns
tit

ut
es

 a
 s

ep
ar

at
el

y 
fu

nc
tio

ni
ng

 a
nd

 
us

ab
le

 p
ar

t 
of

 t
he

 W
or

k 
th

at
 c

an
 b

e 
us

ed
 b

y 
O

w
ne

r 
fo

r 
its

 i
nt

en
de

d 
pu

rp
os

e 
w

ith
ou

t 



 

EJ
CD

C®
 C

-7
00

, S
ta

nd
ar

d 
G

en
er

al
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 
Co

py
rig

ht
©

 2
01

8 
N

at
io

na
l S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rs
, A

m
er

ic
an

 C
ou

nc
il 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Co

m
pa

ni
es

, 
an

d 
Am

er
ic

an
 S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
s.

 A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
 

Pa
ge

 6
4 

of
 7

0 

to
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

co
nd

iti
on

s:
 

1.
 

At
 a

ny
 ti

m
e,

 O
w

ne
r m

ay
 re

qu
es

t i
n 

w
rit

in
g 

th
at

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r p

er
m

it 
O

w
ne

r t
o 

us
e 

or
 o

cc
up

y 
an

y 
su

ch
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 W
or

k 
th

at
 O

w
ne

r b
el

ie
ve

s 
to

 b
e 

su
bs

ta
nt

ia
lly

 c
om

pl
et

e.
 If

 a
nd

 w
he

n 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 a
gr

ee
s 

th
at

 s
uc

h 
pa

rt
 o

f 
th

e 
W

or
k 

is
 s

ub
st

an
tia

lly
 c

om
pl

et
e,

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r, 

O
w

ne
r, 

an
d 

En
gi

ne
er

 w
ill

 fo
llo

w
 th

e 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 o
f P

ar
ag

ra
ph

 1
5.

03
.A

 th
ro

ug
h 

15
.0

3.
E 

fo
r 

th
at

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
 W

or
k.

 

2.
 

At
 a

ny
 t

im
e,

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r 

m
ay

 n
ot

ify
 O

w
ne

r 
an

d 
En

gi
ne

er
 i

n 
w

rit
in

g 
th

at
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r 
co

ns
id

er
s a

ny
 su

ch
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 W
or

k 
su

bs
ta

nt
ia

lly
 c

om
pl

et
e 

an
d 

re
qu

es
t E

ng
in

ee
r t

o 
is

su
e 

a 
ce

rt
ifi

ca
te

 o
f S

ub
st

an
tia

l C
om

pl
et

io
n 

fo
r t

ha
t p

ar
t o

f t
he

 W
or

k.
 

3.
 

W
ith

in
 a

 re
as

on
ab

le
 ti

m
e 

af
te

r e
ith

er
 su

ch
 re

qu
es

t, 
O

w
ne

r, 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

, a
nd

 E
ng

in
ee

r s
ha

ll 
m

ak
e 

an
 in

sp
ec

tio
n 

of
 t

ha
t 

pa
rt

 o
f 

th
e 

W
or

k 
to

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

its
 s

ta
tu

s 
of

 c
om

pl
et

io
n.

 If
 

En
gi

ne
er

 d
oe

s 
no

t c
on

si
de

r t
ha

t p
ar

t o
f t

he
 W

or
k 

to
 b

e 
su

bs
ta

nt
ia

lly
 c

om
pl

et
e,

 E
ng

in
ee

r 
w

ill
 n

ot
ify

 O
w

ne
r 

an
d 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 i

n 
w

rit
in

g 
gi

vi
ng

 t
he

 r
ea

so
ns

 t
he

re
fo

r. 
If 

En
gi

ne
er

 
co

ns
id

er
s 

th
at

 p
ar

t 
of

 t
he

 W
or

k 
to

 b
e 

su
bs

ta
nt

ia
lly

 c
om

pl
et

e,
 t

he
 p

ro
vi

si
on

s 
of

 
Pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

15
.0

3 
w

ill
 a

pp
ly

 w
ith

 re
sp

ec
t t

o 
ce

rt
ifi

ca
tio

n 
of

 S
ub

st
an

tia
l C

om
pl

et
io

n 
of

 th
at

 
pa

rt
 o

f t
he

 W
or

k 
an

d 
th

e 
di

vi
si

on
 o

f r
es

po
ns

ib
ili

ty
 in

 re
sp

ec
t t

he
re

of
 a

nd
 a

cc
es

s 
th

er
et

o.
 

4.
 

N
o 

us
e 

or
 o

cc
up

an
cy

 o
r 

se
pa

ra
te

 o
pe

ra
tio

n 
of

 p
ar

t 
of

 t
he

 W
or

k 
m

ay
 o

cc
ur

 p
rio

r 
to

 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 t

he
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

 o
f 

Pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
pr

op
er

ty
 in

su
ra

nc
e.

 

15
.0

5 
Fi

na
l I

ns
pe

ct
io

n 

A.
 

U
po

n 
w

rit
te

n 
no

tic
e 

fr
om

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r 

th
at

 t
he

 e
nt

ire
 W

or
k 

or
 a

n 
ag

re
ed

 p
or

tio
n 

th
er

eo
f i

s 
co

m
pl

et
e,

 E
ng

in
ee

r w
ill

 p
ro

m
pt

ly
 m

ak
e 

a 
fin

al
 in

sp
ec

tio
n 

w
ith

 O
w

ne
r a

nd
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r a
nd

 w
ill

 
no

tif
y 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 in

 w
rit

in
g 

of
 a

ll 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

s i
n 

w
hi

ch
 th

is
 in

sp
ec

tio
n 

re
ve

al
s t

ha
t t

he
 W

or
k,

 o
r 

ag
re

ed
 p

or
tio

n 
th

er
eo

f, 
is

 in
co

m
pl

et
e 

or
 d

ef
ec

tiv
e.

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r 

sh
al

l i
m

m
ed

ia
te

ly
 t

ak
e 

su
ch

 
m

ea
su

re
s a

s a
re

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 to

 c
om

pl
et

e 
su

ch
 W

or
k 

or
 re

m
ed

y 
su

ch
 d

ef
ic

ie
nc

ie
s.

 

15
.0

6 
Fi

na
l P

ay
m

en
t 

A.
 

Ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

fo
r P

ay
m

en
t 

1.
 

Af
te

r C
on

tr
ac

to
r 

ha
s,

 in
 th

e 
op

in
io

n 
of

 E
ng

in
ee

r, 
sa

tis
fa

ct
or

ily
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 a
ll 

co
rr

ec
tio

ns
 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

fin
al

 in
sp

ec
tio

n 
an

d 
ha

s 
de

liv
er

ed
, i

n 
ac

co
rd

an
ce

 w
ith

 th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 
D

oc
um

en
ts

, a
ll 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 a
nd

 o
pe

ra
tin

g 
in

st
ru

ct
io

ns
, s

ch
ed

ul
es

, g
ua

ra
nt

ee
s,

 b
on

ds
, 

ce
rt

ifi
ca

te
s 

or
 o

th
er

 e
vi

de
nc

e 
of

 in
su

ra
nc

e,
 c

er
tif

ic
at

es
 o

f i
ns

pe
ct

io
n,

 a
nn

ot
at

ed
 r

ec
or

d 
do

cu
m

en
ts

 (a
s 

pr
ov

id
ed

 in
 P

ar
ag

ra
ph

 7
.1

2)
, a

nd
 o

th
er

 d
oc

um
en

ts
, C

on
tr

ac
to

r m
ay

 m
ak

e 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n 
fo

r f
in

al
 p

ay
m

en
t. 

2.
 

Th
e 

fin
al

 A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

fo
r P

ay
m

en
t m

us
t b

e 
ac

co
m

pa
ni

ed
 (e

xc
ep

t a
s 

pr
ev

io
us

ly
 d

el
iv

er
ed

) 
by

: 

a.
 

al
l d

oc
um

en
ta

tio
n 

ca
lle

d 
fo

r i
n 

th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 D
oc

um
en

ts
; 

b.
 

co
ns

en
t o

f t
he

 su
re

ty
, i

f a
ny

, t
o 

fin
al

 p
ay

m
en

t; 

c.
 

sa
tis

fa
ct

or
y e

vi
de

nc
e 

th
at

 a
ll 

tit
le

 is
su

es
 h

av
e 

be
en

 re
so

lv
ed

 su
ch

 th
at

 ti
tle

 to
 a

ll 
W

or
k,

 
m

at
er

ia
ls,

 a
nd

 e
qu

ip
m

en
t h

as
 p

as
se

d 
to

 O
w

ne
r 

fr
ee

 a
nd

 c
le

ar
 o

f a
ny

 L
ie

ns
 o

r 
ot

he
r 

tit
le

 d
ef

ec
ts

, o
r w

ill
 s

o 
pa

ss
 u

po
n 

fin
al

 p
ay

m
en

t. 

 

EJ
CD

C®
 C

-7
00

, S
ta

nd
ar

d 
G

en
er

al
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 
Co

py
rig

ht
©

 2
01

8 
N

at
io

na
l S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rs
, A

m
er

ic
an

 C
ou

nc
il 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Co

m
pa

ni
es

, 
an

d 
Am

er
ic

an
 S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
s.

 A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
 

Pa
ge

 6
5 

of
 7

0 

d.
 

a 
lis

t o
f a

ll 
du

ly
 p

en
di

ng
 C

ha
ng

e 
Pr

op
os

al
s a

nd
 C

la
im

s;
 a

nd
 

e.
 

co
m

pl
et

e 
an

d 
le

ga
lly

 e
ffe

ct
iv

e 
re

le
as

es
 o

r w
ai

ve
rs

 (s
at

isf
ac

to
ry

 to
 O

w
ne

r)
 o

f a
ll 

Li
en

 
rig

ht
s 

ar
is

in
g 

ou
t o

f t
he

 W
or

k,
 a

nd
 o

f L
ie

ns
 fi

le
d 

in
 c

on
ne

ct
io

n 
w

ith
 th

e 
W

or
k.

 

3.
 

In
 lie

u 
of

 th
e 

re
le

as
es

 o
r w

ai
ve

rs
 o

f L
ie

ns
 sp

ec
ifi

ed
 in

 P
ar

ag
ra

ph
 1

5.
06

.A
.2

 a
nd

 a
s a

pp
ro

ve
d 

by
 O

w
ne

r, 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 m
ay

 fu
rn

is
h 

re
ce

ip
ts

 o
r r

el
ea

se
s i

n 
fu

ll 
an

d 
an

 a
ffi

da
vi

t o
f C

on
tr

ac
to

r 
th

at
: (

a)
 th

e 
re

le
as

es
 a

nd
 re

ce
ip

ts
 in

cl
ud

e 
al

l l
ab

or
, s

er
vi

ce
s,

 m
at

er
ia

l, 
an

d 
eq

ui
pm

en
t f

or
 

w
hi

ch
 a

 L
ie

n 
co

ul
d 

be
 fi

le
d;

 a
nd

 (b
) a

ll 
pa

yr
ol

ls,
 m

at
er

ia
l a

nd
 e

qu
ip

m
en

t b
ill

s,
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 
in

de
bt

ed
ne

ss
 co

nn
ec

te
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

W
or

k f
or

 w
hi

ch
 O

w
ne

r m
ig

ht
 in

 a
ny

 w
ay

 b
e 

re
sp

on
si

bl
e,

 
or

 w
hi

ch
 m

ig
ht

 in
 a

ny
 w

ay
 re

su
lt 

in
 li

en
s o

r o
th

er
 b

ur
de

ns
 o

n 
O

w
ne

r's
 p

ro
pe

rt
y,

 h
av

e 
be

en
 

pa
id

 o
r o

th
er

w
ise

 sa
tis

fie
d.

 If
 a

ny
 S

ub
co

nt
ra

ct
or

 o
r S

up
pl

ie
r f

ai
ls 

to
 fu

rn
is

h 
su

ch
 a

 re
le

as
e 

or
 re

ce
ip

t i
n 

fu
ll,

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r m

ay
 fu

rn
is

h 
a 

bo
nd

 o
r o

th
er

 c
ol

la
te

ra
l s

at
isf

ac
to

ry
 to

 O
w

ne
r 

to
 i

nd
em

ni
fy

 O
w

ne
r 

ag
ai

ns
t 

an
y 

Li
en

, 
or

 O
w

ne
r 

at
 it

s 
op

tio
n 

m
ay

 i
ss

ue
 j

oi
nt

 c
he

ck
s 

pa
ya

bl
e 

to
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r a
nd

 sp
ec

ifi
ed

 S
ub

co
nt

ra
ct

or
s 

an
d 

Su
pp

lie
rs

. 

B.
 

: I
f, 

on
 t

he
 b

as
is 

of
 

re
vi

ew
 o

f t
he

 fi
na

l A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

fo
r P

ay
m

en
t a

nd
 a

cc
om

pa
ny

in
g 

do
cu

m
en

ta
tio

n 
as

 re
qu

ire
d 

by
 

th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 D
oc

um
en

ts
, 

En
gi

ne
er

 i
s 

sa
tis

fie
d 

th
at

 t
he

 W
or

k 
ha

s 
be

en
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 a
nd

 
 w

ill
, w

ith
in

 1
0 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
n 

of
 fi

na
l p

ay
m

en
t 

an
d 

pr
es

en
t 

th
e 

fin
al

 A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

fo
r 

Pa
ym

en
t 

to
 O

w
ne

r 
fo

r 
pa

ym
en

t. 
Su

ch
 r

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

n 
w

ill
 a

cc
ou

nt
 f

or
 a

ny
 s

et
-o

ffs
 a

ga
in

st
 p

ay
m

en
t 

th
at

 a
re

 

re
sp

ec
t t

o 
pr

og
re

ss
 p

ay
m

en
ts

. O
th

er
w

is
e,

 E
ng

in
ee

r w
ill

 re
tu

rn
 th

e 
Ap

pl
ic

at
io

n 
fo

r P
ay

m
en

t t
o 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
, i

nd
ic

at
in

g 
in

 w
rit

in
g 

th
e 

re
as

on
s 

fo
r 

re
fu

sin
g 

to
 r

ec
om

m
en

d 
fin

al
 p

ay
m

en
t, 

in
 

w
hi

ch
 c

as
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 sh

al
l m

ak
e 

th
e 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
co

rr
ec

tio
ns

 a
nd

 re
su

bm
it 

th
e 

Ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

fo
r 

Pa
ym

en
t. 

C.
 

N
ot

ic
e 

of
 A

cc
ep

ta
bi

lit
y:

 In
 su

pp
or

t o
f i

ts
 re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 
of

 p
ay

m
en

t o
f t

he
 fi

na
l A

pp
lic

at
io

n 
fo

r P
ay

m
en

t, 
En

gi
ne

er
 w

ill
 a

ls
o 

gi
ve

 w
rit

te
n 

no
tic

e 
to

 O
w

ne
r a

nd
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r t
ha

t t
he

 W
or

k 
is 

ac
ce

pt
ab

le
, 

su
bj

ec
t 

to
 

st
at

ed
 

lim
ita

tio
ns

 
in

 
th

e 
no

tic
e 

an
d 

to
 

th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 

of
 

Pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
15

.0
7.

 

D
. 

Co
m

pl
et

io
n 

of
 W

or
k:

 T
he

 W
or

k 
is 

co
m

pl
et

e 
(s

ub
je

ct
 to

 s
ur

vi
vi

ng
 o

bl
ig

at
io

ns
) w

he
n 

it 
is 

re
ad

y 

an
d 

is
su

an
ce

 o
f n

ot
ic

e 
of

 th
e 

ac
ce

pt
ab

ili
ty

 o
f t

he
 W

or
k.

 

E.
 

Fi
na

l P
ay

m
en

t B
ec

om
es

 D
ue

: U
po

n 
re

ce
ip

t f
ro

m
 E

ng
in

ee
r o

f t
he

 fi
na

l A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

fo
r P

ay
m

en
t 

an
d 

ac
co

m
pa

ny
in

g 
do

cu
m

en
ta

tio
n,

 O
w

ne
r s

ha
ll 

se
t o

ff 
ag

ai
ns

t t
he

 a
m

ou
nt

 re
co

m
m

en
de

d 
by

 
En

gi
ne

er
 f

or
 f

in
al

 p
ay

m
en

t 
an

y 
fu

rt
he

r 
su

m
 t

o 
w

hi
ch

 O
w

ne
r 

is 
en

tit
le

d,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

bu
t 

no
t 

lim
ite

d 
to

 s
et

-o
ffs

 fo
r 

liq
ui

da
te

d 
da

m
ag

es
 a

nd
 s

et
-o

ffs
 a

llo
w

ed
 u

nd
er

 t
he

 p
ro

vi
sio

ns
 o

f t
hi

s 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 w

ith
 r

es
pe

ct
 t

o 
pr

og
re

ss
 p

ay
m

en
ts

. O
w

ne
r 

sh
al

l p
ay

 t
he

 r
es

ul
tin

g 
ba

la
nc

e 
du

e 
to

 

En
gi

ne
er

. 

15
.0

7 
W

ai
ve

r o
f C

la
im

s 

A.
 

By
 m

ak
in

g 
fin

al
 p

ay
m

en
t, 

O
w

ne
r 

w
ai

ve
s 

its
 c

la
im

 o
r 

rig
ht

 t
o 

liq
ui

da
te

d 
da

m
ag

es
 o

r 
ot

he
r 

da
m

ag
es

 f
or

 la
te

 c
om

pl
et

io
n 

by
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r, 
ex

ce
pt

 a
s 

se
t 

fo
rt

h 
in

 a
n 

ou
ts

ta
nd

in
g 

Cl
ai

m
, 



 

EJ
CD

C®
 C

-7
00

, S
ta

nd
ar

d 
G

en
er

al
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 
Co

py
rig

ht
©

 2
01

8 
N

at
io

na
l S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rs
, A

m
er

ic
an

 C
ou

nc
il 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Co

m
pa

ni
es

, 
an

d 
Am

er
ic

an
 S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
s.

 A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
 

Pa
ge

 6
6 

of
 7

0 

ap
pe

al
 u

nd
er

 th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 o

f A
rt

ic
le

 1
7,

 s
et

-o
ff

, o
r e

xp
re

ss
 r

es
er

va
tio

n 
of

 ri
gh

ts
 b

y 
O

w
ne

r. 
O

w
ne

r r
es

er
ve

s a
ll 

ot
he

r c
la

im
s o

r r
ig

ht
s 

af
te

r f
in

al
 p

ay
m

en
t. 

B.
 

Th
e 

ac
ce

pt
an

ce
 o

f f
in

al
 p

ay
m

en
t 

by
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r 
w

ill
 c

on
st

itu
te

 a
 w

ai
ve

r 
by

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r 

of
 a

ll 
cl

ai
m

s 
an

d 
rig

ht
s 

ag
ai

ns
t 

O
w

ne
r 

ot
he

r 
th

an
 t

ho
se

 p
en

di
ng

 m
at

te
rs

 t
ha

t 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

du
ly

 
su

bm
itt

ed
 a

s 
a 

Cl
ai

m
, o

r a
pp

ea
le

d 
un

de
r t

he
 p

ro
vi

si
on

s o
f A

rt
ic

le
 1

7.
 

15
.0

8 
Co

rr
ec

tio
n 

Pe
rio

d 

A.
 

If 
w

ith
in

 o
ne

 y
ea

r a
ft

er
 th

e 
da

te
 o

f S
ub

st
an

tia
l C

om
pl

et
io

n 
(o

r s
uc

h 
lo

ng
er

 p
er

io
d 

of
 ti

m
e 

as
 

m
ay

 b
e 

pr
es

cr
ib

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
Su

pp
le

m
en

ta
ry

 C
on

di
tio

ns
 o

r 
th

e 
te

rm
s 

of
 a

ny
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

 s
pe

ci
al

 
gu

ar
an

te
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

by
 th

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 D

oc
um

en
ts

), 
O

w
ne

r g
iv

es
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r w
rit

te
n 

no
tic

e 
th

at
 

Si
te

 o
r 

ad
ja

ce
nt

 a
re

as
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

fo
un

d 
to

 b
e 

de
fe

ct
iv

e,
 t

he
n 

af
te

r 
re

ce
ip

t 
of

 s
uc

h 
no

tic
e 

of
 

w
rit

te
n 

in
st

ru
ct

io
ns

: 

1.
 

co
rr

ec
t t

he
 d

ef
ec

tiv
e 

re
pa

irs
 to

 th
e 

Si
te

 o
r s

uc
h 

ad
ja

ce
nt

 a
re

as
; 

2.
 

co
rr

ec
t s

uc
h 

de
fe

ct
iv

e 
W

or
k;

 

3.
 

re
m

ov
e 

th
e 

de
fe

ct
iv

e 
W

or
k 

fr
om

 t
he

 P
ro

je
ct

 a
nd

 r
ep

la
ce

 i
t 

w
ith

 W
or

k 
th

at
 i

s 
no

t 
de

fe
ct

iv
e,

 if
 th

e 
de

fe
ct

iv
e 

W
or

k 
ha

s b
ee

n 
re

je
ct

ed
 b

y 
O

w
ne

r, 
an

d 

4.
 

sa
tis

fa
ct

or
ily

 c
or

re
ct

 o
r r

ep
ai

r o
r r

em
ov

e 
an

d 
re

pl
ac

e 
an

y 
da

m
ag

e 
to

 o
th

er
 W

or
k,

 to
 th

e 
w

or
k 

of
 o

th
er

s,
 o

r t
o 

ot
he

r l
an

d 
or

 a
re

as
 re

su
lti

ng
 fr

om
 th

e 
co

rr
ec

tiv
e 

m
ea

su
re

s.
 

B.
 

O
w

ne
r s

ha
ll 

gi
ve

 a
ny

 s
uc

h 
no

tic
e 

of
 d

ef
ec

t w
ith

in
 6

0 
da

ys
 o

f t
he

 d
isc

ov
er

y 
th

at
 su

ch
 W

or
k 

or
 

re
pa

irs
 i

s 
de

fe
ct

iv
e.

 I
f 

su
ch

 n
ot

ic
e 

is
 g

iv
en

 w
ith

in
 s

uc
h 

60
 d

ay
s 

bu
t 

af
te

r 
th

e 
en

d 
of

 t
he

 
co

rr
ec

tio
n 

pe
rio

d,
 

th
e 

no
tic

e 
w

ill
 

be
 

de
em

ed
 

a 
no

tic
e 

of
 

de
fe

ct
iv

e 
W

or
k 

un
de

r 
Pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

7.
17

.B
. 

C.
 

If,
 a

ft
er

 r
ec

ei
pt

 o
f 

a 
no

tic
e 

of
 d

ef
ec

t 
w

ith
in

 6
0 

da
ys

 a
nd

 w
ith

in
 t

he
 c

or
re

ct
io

n 
pe

rio
d,

 
in

st
ru

ct
io

ns
, o

r i
n 

an
 

em
er

ge
nc

y 
w

he
re

 d
el

ay
 w

ou
ld

 c
au

se
 s

er
io

us
 r

is
k 

of
 lo

ss
 o

r 
da

m
ag

e,
 O

w
ne

r 
m

ay
 h

av
e 

th
e 

de
fe

ct
iv

e 
W

or
k 

co
rr

ec
te

d 
or

 re
pa

ire
d 

or
 m

ay
 h

av
e 

th
e 

re
je

ct
ed

 W
or

k 
re

m
ov

ed
 a

nd
 re

pl
ac

ed
. 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 s

ha
ll 

pa
y 

al
l c

os
ts

, l
os

se
s,

 a
nd

 d
am

ag
es

 (i
nc

lu
di

ng
 b

ut
 n

ot
 li

m
ite

d 
to

 a
ll 

fe
es

 a
nd

 
ch

ar
ge

s o
f e

ng
in

ee
rs

, a
rc

hi
te

ct
s,

 a
tt

or
ne

ys
, a

nd
 o

th
er

 p
ro

fe
ss

io
na

ls 
an

d 
al

l c
ou

rt
 o

r a
rb

itr
at

io
n 

or
 o

th
er

 d
isp

ut
e 

re
so

lu
tio

n 
co

st
s)

 a
ris

in
g 

ou
t o

f o
r r

el
at

in
g 

to
 su

ch
 c

or
re

ct
io

n 
or

 re
pa

ir 
or

 su
ch

 
re

m
ov

al
 a

nd
 r

ep
la

ce
m

en
t (

in
cl

ud
in

g 
bu

t n
ot

 li
m

ite
d 

to
 a

ll 
co

st
s 

of
 r

ep
ai

r o
r 

re
pl

ac
em

en
t 

of
 

in
vo

ic
e 

fr
om

 O
w

ne
r 

w
ill

 b
e 

de
em

ed
 t

he
 s

ta
rt

 o
f 

an
 e

ve
nt

 g
iv

in
g 

ris
e 

to
 a

 C
la

im
 u

nd
er

 
Pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

12
.0

1.
B,

 s
uc

h 
th

at
 a

ny
 re

la
te

d 
Cl

ai
m

 m
us

t b
e 

br
ou

gh
t w

ith
in

 3
0 

da
ys

 o
f t

he
 fa

ilu
re

 
to

 p
ay

. 

D
. 

In
 sp

ec
ia

l c
irc

um
st

an
ce

s w
he

re
 a

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
 it

em
 o

f e
qu

ip
m

en
t i

s p
la

ce
d 

in
 c

on
tin

uo
us

 se
rv

ic
e 

be
fo

re
 S

ub
st

an
tia

l C
om

pl
et

io
n 

of
 a

ll 
th

e 
W

or
k,

 th
e 

co
rr

ec
tio

n 
pe

rio
d 

fo
r t

ha
t i

te
m

 m
ay

 s
ta

rt
 

to
 ru

n 
fr

om
 a

n 
ea

rli
er

 d
at

e 
if 

so
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

in
 th

e 
Sp

ec
ifi

ca
tio

ns
. 

E.
 

W
he

re
 d

ef
ec

tiv
e 

W
or

k 
(a

nd
 d

am
ag

e 
to

 o
th

er
 W

or
k 

re
su

lti
ng

 th
er

ef
ro

m
) h

as
 b

ee
n 

co
rr

ec
te

d 
or

 re
m

ov
ed

 a
nd

 re
pl

ac
ed

 u
nd

er
 th

is 
pa

ra
gr

ap
h,

 th
e 

co
rr

ec
tio

n 
pe

rio
d 

he
re

un
de

r w
ith

 re
sp

ec
t 

to
 s

uc
h 

W
or

k 
w

ill
 b

e 
ex

te
nd

ed
 fo

r a
n 

ad
di

tio
na

l p
er

io
d 

of
 o

ne
 y

ea
r a

ft
er

 s
uc

h 
co

rr
ec

tio
n 

or
 

re
m

ov
al

 a
nd

 re
pl

ac
em

en
t h

as
 b

ee
n 

sa
tis

fa
ct

or
ily

 c
om

pl
et

ed
. 

 

EJ
CD

C®
 C

-7
00

, S
ta

nd
ar

d 
G

en
er

al
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 
Co

py
rig

ht
©

 2
01

8 
N

at
io

na
l S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rs
, A

m
er

ic
an

 C
ou

nc
il 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Co

m
pa

ni
es

, 
an

d 
Am

er
ic

an
 S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
s.

 A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
 

Pa
ge

 6
7 

of
 7

0 

F.
 

on
s 

an
d 

w
ar

ra
nt

ie
s. 

Th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 o

f t
hi

s 
pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

ar
e 

no
t t

o 
be

 c
on

st
ru

ed
 a

s 
a 

su
bs

tit
ut

e 
fo

r, 
or

 a
 

w
ai

ve
r o

f, 
th

e 
pr

ov
isi

on
s o

f a
ny

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 st

at
ut

e 
of

 li
m

ita
tio

n 
or

 re
po

se
. 

AR
TI

CL
E 

16
SU

SP
EN

SI
O

N
 O

F 
W

O
RK

 A
N

D
 T

ER
M

IN
AT

IO
N

 

16
.0

1 
O

w
ne

r M
ay

 S
us

pe
nd

 W
or

k 

A.
 

At
 a

ny
 t

im
e 

an
d 

w
ith

ou
t 

ca
us

e,
 O

w
ne

r 
m

ay
 s

us
pe

nd
 th

e 
W

or
k 

or
 a

ny
 p

or
tio

n 
th

er
eo

f f
or

 a
 

pe
rio

d 
of

 n
ot

 m
or

e 
th

an
 9

0 
co

ns
ec

ut
iv

e 
da

ys
 b

y 
w

rit
te

n 
no

tic
e 

to
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r 
an

d 
En

gi
ne

er
. 

Su
ch

 n
ot

ic
e 

w
ill

 fi
x t

he
 d

at
e 

on
 w

hi
ch

 W
or

k 
w

ill
 b

e 
re

su
m

ed
. C

on
tr

ac
to

r s
ha

ll 
re

su
m

e 
th

e 
W

or
k 

on
 th

e 
da

te
 s

o 
fix

ed
. C

on
tr

ac
to

r s
ha

ll 
be

 e
nt

itl
ed

 to
 a

n 
ad

ju
st

m
en

t i
n 

th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 P
ric

e 
or

 a
n 

ex
te

ns
io

n 
of

 t
he

 C
on

tr
ac

t 
Ti

m
es

 d
ire

ct
ly

 a
tt

rib
ut

ab
le

 t
o 

an
y 

su
ch

 s
us

pe
ns

io
n.

 A
ny

 C
ha

ng
e 

Pr
op

os
al

 s
ee

ki
ng

 s
uc

h 
ad

ju
st

m
en

ts
 m

us
t 

be
 s

ub
m

itt
ed

 n
o 

la
te

r 
th

an
 3

0 
da

ys
 a

ft
er

 t
he

 d
at

e 
fix

ed
 fo

r r
es

um
pt

io
n 

of
 W

or
k.

 

16
.0

2 
O

w
ne

r M
ay

 T
er

m
in

at
e 

fo
r C

au
se

 

A.
 

Th
e 

oc
cu

rr
en

ce
 o

f 
an

y 
on

e 
or

 m
or

e 
of

 t
he

 f
ol

lo
w

in
g 

ev
en

ts
 w

ill
 c

on
st

itu
te

 a
 d

ef
au

lt 
by

 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 a
nd

 ju
st

ify
 te

rm
in

at
io

n 
fo

r c
au

se
: 

1.
 

si
st

en
t 

fa
ilu

re
 t

o 
pe

rf
or

m
 t

he
 W

or
k 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 t

he
 C

on
tr

ac
t 

D
oc

um
en

ts
 (i

nc
lu

di
ng

, b
ut

 n
ot

 li
m

ite
d 

to
, f

ai
lu

re
 t

o 
su

pp
ly

 s
uf

fic
ie

nt
 s

ki
lle

d 
w

or
ke

rs
 o

r 
su

ita
bl

e 
m

at
er

ia
ls 

or
 e

qu
ip

m
en

t, 
or

 fa
ilu

re
 to

 a
dh

er
e 

to
 th

e 
Pr

og
re

ss
 S

ch
ed

ul
e)

; 

2.
 

Fa
ilu

re
 o

f 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 t
o 

pe
rf

or
m

 o
r 

ot
he

rw
ise

 t
o 

co
m

pl
y 

w
ith

 a
 m

at
er

ia
l t

er
m

 o
f 

th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 D
oc

um
en

ts
; 

3.
 

 

4.
 

 

B.
 

If 
on

e 
or

 m
or

e 
of

 t
he

 e
ve

nt
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
in

 P
ar

ag
ra

ph
 1

6.
02

.A
 o

cc
ur

s,
 t

he
n 

af
te

r 
gi

vi
ng

 

th
at

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r i

s i
n 

de
fa

ul
t a

nd
 te

rm
in

at
io

n 
of

 th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

, O
w

ne
r m

ay
 p

ro
ce

ed
 to

: 

1.
 

de
cl

ar
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 to

 b
e 

in
 d

ef
au

lt,
 a

nd
 g

iv
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 (a

nd
 a

ny
 s

ur
et

y)
 w

rit
te

n 
no

tic
e 

th
at

 th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 is
 te

rm
in

at
ed

; a
nd

 

2.
 

en
fo

rc
e 

th
e 

rig
ht

s a
va

ila
bl

e 
to

 O
w

ne
r u

nd
er

 a
ny

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 b

on
d.

 

C.
 

Su
bj

ec
t 

to
 t

he
 t

er
m

s 
an

d 
op

er
at

io
n 

of
 a

ny
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 b
on

d,
 i

f 
O

w
ne

r 
ha

s 
te

rm
in

at
ed

 t
he

 C
on

tr
ac

t 
fo

r 
ca

us
e,

 O
w

ne
r 

m
ay

 e
xc

lu
de

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r 

fr
om

 t
he

 S
ite

, 
ta

ke
 

po
ss

es
sio

n 
of

 th
e 

W
or

k,
 in

co
rp

or
at

e 
in

 th
e 

W
or

k 
al

l m
at

er
ia

ls 
an

d 
eq

ui
pm

en
t 

st
or

ed
 a

t 
th

e 
Si

te
 o

r 
fo

r w
hi

ch
 O

w
ne

r 
ha

s 
pa

id
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r b
ut

 w
hi

ch
 a

re
 s

to
re

d 
el

se
w

he
re

, a
nd

 c
om

pl
et

e 
th

e 
W

or
k 

as
 O

w
ne

r m
ay

 d
ee

m
 e

xp
ed

ie
nt

. 

D
. 

O
w

ne
r 

m
ay

 n
ot

 p
ro

ce
ed

 w
ith

 t
er

m
in

at
io

n 
of

 t
he

 C
on

tr
ac

t 
un

de
r 

Pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
16

.0
2.

B 
if 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 w

ith
in

 7
 d

ay
s o

f r
ec

ei
pt

 o
f n

ot
ic

e 
of

 in
te

nt
 to

 te
rm

in
at

e 
be

gi
ns

 to
 co

rr
ec

t i
ts

 fa
ilu

re
 

to
 p

er
fo

rm
 a

nd
 p

ro
ce

ed
s d

ili
ge

nt
ly

 to
 c

ur
e 

su
ch

 fa
ilu

re
. 

E.
 

If 
O

w
ne

r 
pr

oc
ee

ds
 a

s 
pr

ov
id

ed
 i

n 
Pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

16
.0

2.
B,

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r 

sh
al

l 
no

t 
be

 e
nt

itl
ed

 t
o 

re
ce

iv
e 

an
y 

fu
rt

he
r 

pa
ym

en
t 

un
til

 t
he

 W
or

k 
is 

co
m

pl
et

ed
. 

If 
th

e 
un

pa
id

 b
al

an
ce

 o
f 

th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 P
ric

e 
ex

ce
ed

s 
th

e 
co

st
 t

o 
co

m
pl

et
e 

th
e 

W
or

k,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

al
l r

el
at

ed
 c

la
im

s,
 c

os
ts

, 
lo

ss
es

, a
nd

 d
am

ag
es

 (i
nc

lu
di

ng
 b

ut
 n

ot
 li

m
ite

d 
to

 a
ll 

fe
es

 a
nd

 ch
ar

ge
s o

f e
ng

in
ee

rs
, a

rc
hi

te
ct

s,
 



 

EJ
CD

C®
 C

-7
00

, S
ta

nd
ar

d 
G

en
er

al
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 
Co

py
rig

ht
©

 2
01

8 
N

at
io

na
l S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rs
, A

m
er

ic
an

 C
ou

nc
il 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Co

m
pa

ni
es

, 
an

d 
Am

er
ic

an
 S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
s.

 A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
 

Pa
ge

 6
8 

of
 7

0 

at
to

rn
ey

s,
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 p
ro

fe
ss

io
na

ls)
 s

us
ta

in
ed

 b
y 

O
w

ne
r, 

su
ch

 e
xc

es
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

pa
id

 t
o 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
. I

f t
he

 c
os

t t
o 

co
m

pl
et

e 
th

e 
W

or
k 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
su

ch
 re

la
te

d 
cl

ai
m

s,
 c

os
ts

, l
os

se
s,

 a
nd

 
da

m
ag

es
 e

xc
ee

ds
 s

uc
h 

un
pa

id
 b

al
an

ce
, C

on
tr

ac
to

r 
sh

al
l p

ay
 t

he
 d

iff
er

en
ce

 t
o 

O
w

ne
r. 

Su
ch

 
cl

ai
m

s,
 co

st
s,

 lo
ss

es
, a

nd
 d

am
ag

es
 in

cu
rr

ed
 b

y 
O

w
ne

r w
ill

 b
e 

re
vi

ew
ed

 b
y 

En
gi

ne
er

 a
s t

o 
th

ei
r 

re
as

on
ab

le
ne

ss
 a

nd
, w

he
n 

so
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

by
 E

ng
in

ee
r, 

in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 in
 a

 C
ha

ng
e 

O
rd

er
. W

he
n 

ex
er

ci
sin

g 
an

y 
rig

ht
s o

r r
em

ed
ie

s u
nd

er
 th

is
 p

ar
ag

ra
ph

, O
w

ne
r s

ha
ll 

no
t b

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 o
bt

ai
n 

th
e 

lo
w

es
t p

ric
e 

fo
r t

he
 W

or
k 

pe
rf

or
m

ed
. 

F.
 

af
fe

ct
 a

ny
 r

ig
ht

s 
or

 r
em

ed
ie

s 
of

 O
w

ne
r 

ag
ai

ns
t 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 t

he
n 

ex
ist

in
g 

or
 w

hi
ch

 m
ay

 
th

er
ea

ft
er

 a
cc

ru
e,

 o
r a

ny
 ri

gh
ts

 o
r r

em
ed

ie
s o

f O
w

ne
r a

ga
in

st
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r o
r a

ny
 su

re
ty

 u
nd

er
 

an
y 

pa
ym

en
t b

on
d 

or
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 b

on
d.

 A
ny

 re
te

nt
io

n 
or

 p
ay

m
en

t o
f m

on
ey

 d
ue

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r 

by
 O

w
ne

r w
ill

 n
ot

 re
le

as
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 fr

om
 li

ab
ili

ty
. 

G
. 

If 
an

d 
to

 th
e 

ex
te

nt
 th

at
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r h
as

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
a 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 b
on

d 
un

de
r 

th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 

of
 P

ar
ag

ra
ph

 6
.0

1.
A,

 th
e 

pr
ov

isi
on

s 
of

 th
at

 b
on

d 
w

ill
 g

ov
er

n 
ov

er
 a

ny
 in

co
ns

ist
en

t p
ro

vi
si

on
s 

of
 P

ar
ag

ra
ph

s 1
6.

02
.B

 a
nd

 1
6.

02
.D

. 

16
.0

3 
O

w
ne

r M
ay

 T
er

m
in

at
e 

fo
r C

on
ve

ni
en

ce
 

A.
 

 a
nd

 
w

ith
ou

t 
pr

ej
ud

ic
e 

to
 a

ny
 o

th
er

 r
ig

ht
 o

r 
re

m
ed

y 
of

 O
w

ne
r, 

te
rm

in
at

e 
th

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
. I

n 
su

ch
 

ca
se

, C
on

tr
ac

to
r s

ha
ll 

be
 p

ai
d 

fo
r (

w
ith

ou
t d

up
lic

at
io

n 
of

 a
ny

 it
em

s)
: 

1.
 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 a

nd
 a

cc
ep

ta
bl

e 
W

or
k 

ex
ec

ut
ed

 in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 t

he
 C

on
tr

ac
t 

Do
cu

m
en

ts
 

pr
io

r t
o 

th
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
da

te
 o

f t
er

m
in

at
io

n,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

fa
ir 

an
d 

re
as

on
ab

le
 su

m
s f

or
 o

ve
rh

ea
d 

an
d 

pr
of

it 
on

 su
ch

 W
or

k;
 

2.
 

ex
pe

ns
es

 su
st

ai
ne

d 
pr

io
r t

o 
th

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

da
te

 o
f t

er
m

in
at

io
n 

in
 p

er
fo

rm
in

g 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

nd
 

fu
rn

ish
in

g 
la

bo
r, 

m
at

er
ia

ls,
 o

r 
eq

ui
pm

en
t 

as
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

by
 t

he
 C

on
tr

ac
t 

D
oc

um
en

ts
 i

n 
co

nn
ec

tio
n 

w
ith

 u
nc

om
pl

et
ed

 W
or

k,
 p

lu
s 

fa
ir 

an
d 

re
as

on
ab

le
 s

um
s 

fo
r 

ov
er

he
ad

 a
nd

 
pr

of
it 

on
 su

ch
 e

xp
en

se
s;

 a
nd

 

3.
 

ot
he

r r
ea

so
na

bl
e 

ex
pe

ns
es

 d
ire

ct
ly

 a
tt

rib
ut

ab
le

 to
 te

rm
in

at
io

n,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

co
st

s 
in

cu
rr

ed
 

to
 p

re
pa

re
 a

 te
rm

in
at

io
n 

fo
r c

on
ve

ni
en

ce
 c

os
t p

ro
po

sa
l. 

B.
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 s

ha
ll 

no
t b

e 
pa

id
 fo

r 
an

y 
lo

ss
 o

f a
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

 p
ro

fit
s 

or
 r

ev
en

ue
, p

os
t-

te
rm

in
at

io
n 

ov
er

he
ad

 c
os

ts
, o

r o
th

er
 e

co
no

m
ic

 lo
ss

 a
ris

in
g 

ou
t o

f o
r r

es
ul

tin
g 

fr
om

 s
uc

h 
te

rm
in

at
io

n.
 

16
.0

4 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 M
ay

 S
to

p 
W

or
k 

or
 T

er
m

in
at

e 

A.
 

If,
 t

hr
ou

gh
 n

o 
ac

t 
or

 f
au

lt 
of

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r, 

(1
) 

th
e 

W
or

k 
is

 s
us

pe
nd

ed
 f

or
 m

or
e 

th
an

 9
0 

co
ns

ec
ut

iv
e 

da
ys

 b
y 

O
w

ne
r 

or
 u

nd
er

 a
n 

or
de

r 
of

 c
ou

rt
 o

r 
ot

he
r 

pu
bl

ic
 a

ut
ho

rit
y,

 o
r 

(2
) 

En
gi

ne
er

 fa
ils

 to
 a

ct
 o

n 
an

y 
Ap

pl
ic

at
io

n 
fo

r P
ay

m
en

t w
ith

in
 3

0 
da

ys
 a

ft
er

 it
 is

 su
bm

itt
ed

, o
r (

3)
 

O
w

ne
r 

fa
ils

 f
or

 3
0 

da
ys

 t
o 

pa
y 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 a

ny
 s

um
 f

in
al

ly
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 t

o 
be

 d
ue

, 
th

en
 

En
gi

ne
er

 d
o 

no
t r

em
ed

y 
su

ch
 s

us
pe

ns
io

n 
or

 fa
ilu

re
 w

ith
in

 t
ha

t t
im

e,
 te

rm
in

at
e 

th
e 

co
nt

ra
ct

 
an

d 
re

co
ve

r f
ro

m
 O

w
ne

r p
ay

m
en

t o
n 

th
e 

sa
m

e 
te

rm
s 

as
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

in
 P

ar
ag

ra
ph

 1
6.

03
. 

B.
 

In
 li

eu
 o

f 
te

rm
in

at
in

g 
th

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 a

nd
 w

ith
ou

t 
pr

ej
ud

ic
e 

to
 a

ny
 o

th
er

 r
ig

ht
 o

r 
re

m
ed

y,
 if

 
En

gi
ne

er
 h

as
 fa

ile
d 

to
 a

ct
 o

n 
an

 A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

fo
r P

ay
m

en
t w

ith
in

 3
0 

da
ys

 a
ft

er
 it

 is
 su

bm
itt

ed
, 

or
 O

w
ne

r 
ha

s 
fa

ile
d 

fo
r 

30
 d

ay
s 

to
 p

ay
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r 
an

y 
su

m
 f

in
al

ly
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 t

o 
be

 d
ue

, 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 m
ay

, 
7 

da
ys

 a
ft

er
 w

rit
te

n 
no

tic
e 

to
 O

w
ne

r 
an

d 
En

gi
ne

er
, 

st
op

 t
he

 W
or

k 
un

til
 

pa
ym

en
t 

is 
m

ad
e 

of
 a

ll 
su

ch
 a

m
ou

nt
s 

du
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
in

te
re

st
 t

he
re

on
. 

Th
e 

 

EJ
CD

C®
 C

-7
00

, S
ta

nd
ar

d 
G

en
er

al
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 
Co

py
rig

ht
©

 2
01

8 
N

at
io

na
l S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rs
, A

m
er

ic
an

 C
ou

nc
il 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Co

m
pa

ni
es

, 
an

d 
Am

er
ic

an
 S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
s.

 A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
 

Pa
ge

 6
9 

of
 7

0 

pr
ov

isi
on

s 
of

 t
hi

s 
pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

ar
e 

no
t 

in
te

nd
ed

 t
o 

pr
ec

lu
de

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r 

fr
om

 s
ub

m
itt

in
g 

a 
Ch

an
ge

 P
ro

po
sa

l f
or

 a
n 

ad
ju

st
m

en
t 

in
 C

on
tr

ac
t 

Pr
ic

e 
or

 C
on

tr
ac

t 
Ti

m
es

 o
r 

ot
he

rw
is

e 
fo

r 
ex

pe
ns

es
 o

r d
am

ag
e 

di
re

ct
ly

 a
tt

r
th

is
 p

ar
ag

ra
ph

. 

AR
TI

CL
E 

17
FI

N
A

L 
RE

SO
LU

TI
O

N
 O

F 
D

IS
PU

TE
S 

17
.0

1 
M

et
ho

ds
 a

nd
 P

ro
ce

du
re

s 

A.
 

D
isp

ut
es

 S
ub

je
ct

 t
o 

Fi
na

l 
Re

so
lu

tio
n:

 T
he

 f
ol

lo
w

in
g 

di
sp

ut
ed

 m
at

te
rs

 a
re

 s
ub

je
ct

 t
o 

fin
al

 
re

so
lu

tio
n 

un
de

r t
he

 p
ro

vi
sio

ns
 o

f t
hi

s a
rt

ic
le

: 

1.
 

A 
tim

el
y 

ap
pe

al
 o

f a
n 

ap
pr

ov
al

 in
 p

ar
t a

nd
 d

en
ia

l i
n 

pa
rt

 o
f a

 C
la

im
, o

r o
f a

 d
en

ia
l i

n 
fu

ll,
 

pu
rs

ua
nt

 to
 A

rt
ic

le
 1

2;
 a

nd
 

2.
 

D
is

pu
te

s 
be

tw
ee

n 
O

w
ne

r a
nd

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r c

on
ce

rn
in

g 
th

e 
W

or
k,

 o
r o

bl
ig

at
io

ns
 u

nd
er

 th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 D
oc

um
en

ts
, t

ha
t a

ris
e 

af
te

r f
in

al
 p

ay
m

en
t h

as
 b

ee
n 

m
ad

e.
 

B.
 

Fi
na

l R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

of
 D

is
pu

te
s:

 F
or

 a
ny

 d
isp

ut
e 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
re

so
lu

tio
n 

un
de

r t
hi

s a
rt

ic
le

, O
w

ne
r o

r 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 m
ay

: 

1.
 

el
ec

t 
in

 
w

rit
in

g 
to

 
in

vo
ke

 
th

e 
di

sp
ut

e 
re

so
lu

tio
n 

pr
oc

es
s 

pr
ov

id
ed

 
fo

r 
in

 
th

e 
Su

pp
le

m
en

ta
ry

 C
on

di
tio

ns
; 

2.
 

ag
re

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
ot

he
r 

pa
rt

y 
to

 s
ub

m
it 

th
e 

di
sp

ut
e 

to
 a

no
th

er
 d

is
pu

te
 r

es
ol

ut
io

n 
pr

oc
es

s;
 

or
 

3.
 

if 
no

 d
isp

ut
e 

re
so

lu
tio

n 
pr

oc
es

s 
is 

pr
ov

id
ed

 f
or

 i
n 

th
e 

Su
pp

le
m

en
ta

ry
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
r 

m
ut

ua
lly

 a
gr

ee
d 

to
, g

iv
e 

w
rit

te
n 

no
tic

e 
to

 t
he

 o
th

er
 p

ar
ty

 o
f 

th
e 

in
te

nt
 t

o 
su

bm
it 

th
e 

di
sp

ut
e 

to
 a

 c
ou

rt
 o

f c
om

pe
te

nt
 ju

ris
di

ct
io

n.
 

AR
TI

CL
E 

18
M

IS
CE

LL
AN

EO
U

S 

18
.0

1 
G

iv
in

g 
N

ot
ic

e 

A.
 

W
he

ne
ve

r 
an

y 
pr

ov
isi

on
 o

f 
th

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 r

eq
ui

re
s 

th
e 

gi
vi

ng
 o

f 
w

rit
te

n 
no

tic
e 

to
 O

w
ne

r, 
En

gi
ne

er
, o

r C
on

tr
ac

to
r, 

it 
w

ill
 b

e 
de

em
ed

 to
 h

av
e 

be
en

 v
al

id
ly

 g
iv

en
 o

nl
y 

if 
de

liv
er

ed
: 

1.
 

bu
sin

es
s;

 

2.
 

 

3.
 

by
 e

-m
ai

-
lin

e.
 

18
.0

2 
Co

m
pu

ta
tio

n 
of

 T
im

es
 

A.
 

W
he

n 
an

y 
pe

rio
d 

of
 ti

m
e 

is
 re

fe
rr

ed
 to

 in
 th

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 b

y 
da

ys
, i

t w
ill

 b
e 

co
m

pu
te

d 
to

 e
xc

lu
de

 
th

e 
fir

st
 a

nd
 in

cl
ud

e 
th

e 
la

st
 d

ay
 o

f s
uc

h 
pe

rio
d.

 If
 th

e 
la

st
 d

ay
 o

f a
ny

 s
uc

h 
pe

rio
d 

fa
lls

 o
n 

a 
Sa

tu
rd

ay
 o

r S
un

da
y 

or
 o

n 
a 

da
y 

m
ad

e 
a 

le
ga

l h
ol

id
ay

 b
y 

th
e 

la
w

 o
f t

he
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

 ju
ris

di
ct

io
n,

 
su

ch
 d

ay
 w

ill
 b

e 
om

itt
ed

 fr
om

 th
e 

co
m

pu
ta

tio
n.

 



 

EJ
CD

C®
 C

-7
00

, S
ta

nd
ar

d 
G

en
er

al
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 
Co

py
rig

ht
©

 2
01

8 
N

at
io

na
l S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rs
, A

m
er

ic
an

 C
ou

nc
il 

of
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Co

m
pa

ni
es

, 
an

d 
Am

er
ic

an
 S

oc
ie

ty
 o

f C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
s.

 A
ll 

rig
ht

s r
es

er
ve

d.
 

Pa
ge

 7
0 

of
 7

0 

18
.0

3 
Cu

m
ul

at
iv

e 
Re

m
ed

ie
s 

A.
 

Th
e 

du
tie

s a
nd

 o
bl

ig
at

io
ns

 im
po

se
d 

by
 th

es
e 

G
en

er
al

 C
on

di
tio

ns
 a

nd
 th

e 
rig

ht
s a

nd
 re

m
ed

ie
s 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
he

re
un

de
r 

to
 th

e 
pa

rt
ie

s 
he

re
to

 a
re

 in
 a

dd
iti

on
 to

, a
nd

 a
re

 n
ot

 to
 b

e 
co

ns
tr

ue
d 

in
 

an
y 

w
ay

 a
s 

a 
lim

ita
tio

n 
of

, a
ny

 ri
gh

ts
 a

nd
 re

m
ed

ie
s 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 a
ny

 o
r a

ll 
of

 th
em

 w
hi

ch
 a

re
 

ot
he

rw
is

e 
im

po
se

d 
or

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
by

 L
aw

s o
r R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
, b

y 
sp

ec
ia

l w
ar

ra
nt

y 
or

 g
ua

ra
nt

ee
, o

r 
by

 o
th

er
 p

ro
vi

si
on

s 
of

 th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. T
he

 p
ro

vi
sio

ns
 o

f t
hi

s 
pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

w
ill

 b
e 

as
 e

ffe
ct

iv
e 

as
 if

 
re

pe
at

ed
 s

pe
ci

fic
al

ly
 in

 t
he

 C
on

tr
ac

t 
Do

cu
m

en
ts

 in
 c

on
ne

ct
io

n 
w

ith
 e

ac
h 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
 d

ut
y,

 
ob

lig
at

io
n,

 ri
gh

t, 
an

d 
re

m
ed

y 
to

 w
hi

ch
 th

ey
 a

pp
ly

. 

18
.0

4 
Li

m
ita

tio
n 

of
 D

am
ag

es
 

A.
 

W
ith

 re
sp

ec
t t

o 
an

y 
an

d 
al

l C
ha

ng
e 

Pr
op

os
al

s,
 C

la
im

s,
 d

isp
ut

es
 su

bj
ec

t t
o 

fin
al

 re
so

lu
tio

n,
 a

nd
 

ot
he

r 
m

at
te

rs
 a

t 
iss

ue
, 

ne
ith

er
 O

w
ne

r 
no

r 
En

gi
ne

er
, 

no
r 

an
y 

of
 t

he
ir 

of
fic

er
s,

 d
ire

ct
or

s,
 

m
em

be
rs

, 
pa

rt
ne

rs
, 

em
pl

oy
ee

s,
 a

ge
nt

s,
 c

on
su

lta
nt

s,
 o

r 
su

bc
on

tr
ac

to
rs

, 
sh

al
l b

e 
lia

bl
e 

to
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 f

or
 a

ny
 c

la
im

s,
 c

os
ts

, 
lo

ss
es

, 
or

 d
am

ag
es

 s
us

ta
in

ed
 b

y 
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

 o
n 

or
 i

n 
co

nn
ec

tio
n 

w
ith

 a
ny

 o
th

er
 p

ro
je

ct
 o

r a
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

 p
ro

je
ct

. 

18
.0

5 
N

o 
W

ai
ve

r 

A.
 

-e
nf

or
ce

m
en

t o
f a

ny
 p

ro
vi

sio
n 

w
ill

 n
ot

 c
on

st
itu

te
 a

 w
ai

ve
r o

f t
ha

t p
ro

vi
sio

n,
 n

or
 

w
ill

 it
 a

ffe
ct

 th
e 

en
fo

rc
ea

bi
lit

y 
of

 th
at

 p
ro

vi
sio

n 
or

 o
f t

he
 re

m
ai

nd
er

 o
f t

hi
s C

on
tr

ac
t.

 

18
.0

6 
Su

rv
iv

al
 o

f O
bl

ig
at

io
ns

 

A.
 

Al
l r

ep
re

se
nt

at
io

ns
, i

nd
em

ni
fic

at
io

ns
, w

ar
ra

nt
ie

s,
 a

nd
 g

ua
ra

nt
ee

s 
m

ad
e 

in
, r

eq
ui

re
d 

by
, o

r 
gi

ve
n 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
, a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
al

l c
on

tin
ui

ng
 o

bl
ig

at
io

ns
 in

di
ca

te
d 

in
 th

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
, w

ill
 s

ur
vi

ve
 fi

na
l p

ay
m

en
t, 

co
m

pl
et

io
n,

 a
nd

 a
cc

ep
ta

nc
e 

of
 th

e 
W

or
k 

or
 te

rm
in

at
io

n 
of

 th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 o
r o

f t
he

 se
rv

ic
es

 o
f C

on
tr

ac
to

r.
 

18
.0

7 
Co

nt
ro

lli
ng

 L
aw

 

A.
 

Th
is 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 is
 to

 b
e 

go
ve

rn
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

la
w

 o
f t

he
 st

at
e 

in
 w

hi
ch

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t i

s 
lo

ca
te

d.
 

18
.0

8 
As

sig
nm

en
t o

f C
on

tr
ac

t 

A.
 

U
nl

es
s 

ex
pr

es
sly

 a
gr

ee
d 

to
 e

ls
ew

he
re

 i
n 

th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

, 
no

 a
ss

ig
nm

en
t 

by
 a

 p
ar

ty
 t

o 
th

is 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 o

f a
ny

 r
ig

ht
s 

un
de

r 
or

 in
te

re
st

s 
in

 t
he

 C
on

tr
ac

t 
w

ill
 b

e 
bi

nd
in

g 
on

 t
he

 o
th

er
 p

ar
ty

 
w

ith
ou

t t
he

 w
rit

te
n 

co
ns

en
t 

of
 t

he
 p

ar
ty

 s
ou

gh
t 

to
 b

e 
bo

un
d;

 a
nd

, s
pe

ci
fic

al
ly

 b
ut

 w
ith

ou
t 

lim
ita

tio
n,

 m
on

ey
 th

at
 m

ay
 b

ec
om

e 
du

e 
an

d 
m

on
ey

 th
at

 is
 d

ue
 m

ay
 n

ot
 b

e 
as

sig
ne

d 
w

ith
ou

t 
su

ch
 c

on
se

nt
 (e

xc
ep

t t
o 

th
e 

ex
te

nt
 th

at
 th

e 
ef

fe
ct

 o
f t

hi
s 

re
st

ric
tio

n 
m

ay
 b

e 
lim

ite
d 

by
 la

w
), 

an
d 

un
le

ss
 s

pe
ci

fic
al

ly
 s

ta
te

d 
to

 t
he

 c
on

tr
ar

y 
in

 a
ny

 w
rit

te
n 

co
ns

en
t 

to
 a

n 
as

sig
nm

en
t, 

no
 

as
si

gn
m

en
t 

w
ill

 r
el

ea
se

 o
r 

di
sc

ha
rg

e 
th

e 
as

si
gn

or
 fr

om
 a

ny
 d

ut
y 

or
 r

es
po

ns
ib

ili
ty

 u
nd

er
 t

he
 

Co
nt

ra
ct

. 

18
.0

9 
Su

cc
es

so
rs

 a
nd

 A
ss

ig
ns

 

A.
 

O
w

ne
r a

nd
 C

on
tr

ac
to

r e
ac

h 
bi

nd
s 

its
el

f, 
its

 s
uc

ce
ss

or
s,

 a
ss

ig
ns

, a
nd

 le
ga

l r
ep

re
se

nt
at

iv
es

 to
 

th
e 

ot
he

r 
pa

rt
y 

he
re

to
, 

its
 s

uc
ce

ss
or

s,
 a

ss
ig

ns
, 

an
d 

le
ga

l r
ep

re
se

nt
at

iv
es

 in
 r

es
pe

ct
 t

o 
al

l 
co

ve
na

nt
s,

 a
gr

ee
m

en
ts

, a
nd

 o
bl

ig
at

io
ns

 c
on

ta
in

ed
 in

 th
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 D
oc

um
en

ts
. 

18
.1

0 
H

ea
di

ng
s 

A.
 

Ar
tic

le
 a

nd
 p

ar
ag

ra
ph

 h
ea

di
ng

s a
re

 in
se

rt
ed

 fo
r c

on
ve

ni
en

ce
 o

nl
y 

an
d 

do
 n

ot
 c

on
st

itu
te

 p
ar

ts
 

of
 th

es
e 

Ge
ne

ra
l C

on
di

tio
ns

. 



 SUPPLEMENTARY GENERAL CONDITIONS 



SUPPLEMENTARY GENERAL CONDITIONS 



69 

 

SUPPLEMENTARY GENERAL CONDITIONS  

 

The following Supplementary Conditions modify, change, delete from or add to the Standard 

General Conditions of the Construction Contract EJCDC (C-700, 2013 Edition).  Where any 

Article of the General Conditions is modified, or any Paragraph, Subparagraph or Clause thereof is 

modified or deleted by these supplements, the unaltered provisions of that Article, Paragraph, 

Subparagraph or Clause shall remain in effect. 

 

1. Article 6 - BONDS AND INSURANCE 

 

 A. Add the following to paragraph 6.01.C: All bonds shall be written through 

companies rated with A.M. Best rating of A or better. 

 

 B. The limits of liability for insurance required by paragraph 6.03 of the General 

Conditions shall provide coverage for not less than the following amounts or greater 

where required by Laws and Regulations: 

 

  1. Workers’ Compensation, and related coverages under paragraphs 6.03.A of the 

General Conditions: 

 

 a. State:       Statutory 

 b. Applicable Federal     Statutory 

 (e.g., Longshoremen’s)  

 c. Employer’s Liability     $500,000 

 

 2. Contractor’s General Liability under paragraphs 6.03.B of the General 

Conditions which shall include completed operations and product liability 

coverages and eliminate the exclusion with respect to property under the care, 

custody, and control of the Contractor: 

 

 a. General Aggregate     $2,000,000 

 b. Products - Completed  

 Operations Aggregate     $1,000,000 

 c. Personal and Advertising Injury   $1,000,000 

 d. Each Occurrence (Bodily Injury 

 and Property Damage)    

 $1,000,000 

 e. Property Damage liability 

 insurance will provide Explosion, 

 Collapse, and Underground 

 coverages where applicable.    $1,000,000 

 f. Excess or Umbrella Liability  

 1) General Aggregate    $1,000,000 

 2) Each Occurrence    $1,000,000 

 g. Contractor shall name the Owner as an additional insured. 

 



 

70 

 

 3. Automobile Liability under paragraph 6.03.D of the General Conditions: 

 

 a. Combined Single Limit of     $1,000,000 

  

 C. The CONTRACTOR shall purchase, maintain, and pay for the insurance required 

by this Paragraph 6.05. 

 

 D. Add the following as item 6.08: 

 

 The CONTRACTOR, its subcontractors, if any, and all employers working under 

this Contract are subject to Oregon Workers' Compensation Law, and shall comply with 

ORS 656.017, which requires them to provide workers compensation coverage for all their 

subject workers.  

 

2. Article 7 - CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES 

 

A. Amend 7.04 “Or Equals” to note approval of an “Or Equal” may only be requested 

prior to the Bid as defined in the instruction to bidders.  Following the expiration of 

the time to submit an “Or Equal”, replacement of any specified component shall be 

considered under the requirements for a substitute as defined in 7.05 of the General 

Conditions. 

 

 B. Add the following sentence the end of item 7.17 A: 

 

  The Warranty and Guarantee period shall extend for one (1) year following FINAL 

acceptance by the OWNER. 

 

3. Article 15 - PAYMENTS TO CONTRACTOR 

 

 A. Modify the first sentence of item 15.01.B.1. to read that each application for 

payment shall be submitted 30 days prior to the date established in the Agreement 

for each progress payment. 

 

 B. Delete 15.01.D and insert: 

 

   Within thirty days after receipt of each Application for Payment, the amount 

recommended will (subject to the provisions of the last sentence of paragraph 

15.01.E) become due and when due, will be paid by OWNER to CONTRACTOR. 

 

 C. Add 15.06.A.2.f:  

 

   The Application for Final Payment shall also include CONTRACTOR'S Affidavit 

of Payment of Debts and Claims. 

 

 

 

 



 

71 

 

4. Add the following: 

 

 Article 19. STATE OF OREGON PUBLIC CONTRACT REQUIREMENTS 

 

19.01 In accordance with ORS 279C.505(1) the CONTRACTOR shall: 

 

A. Make payment promptly, as due, to all persons supplying to such CONTRACTOR 

labor or material for the prosecution of the Work provided for in this Agreement. 

 

  B. Pay all contributions or amounts due the Industrial Accident Fund from such 

CONTRACTOR or Subcontractor incurred in the performance of this Agreement. 

 

C. Not permit any lien or claim to be filed or prosecuted against the OWNER on 

account of any labor or material furnished. 

 

  D. Pay to the Department of Revenue all sums withheld from employees pursuant to 

ORS 316.167. 

 

 19.02 Contractor shall demonstrate that an employee drug testing program is in place 

(ORS 279C.505(2)). 

 

 19.03 In accordance with ORS 279C.510(1) the Contractor shall salvage or recycle 

construction and demolition debris if feasible and cost effective. 

 

 19.04 In accordance with ORS279C.515(1) if the Contractor fails, neglects or refuses to 

pay promptly a person’s claim for labor or services that the person provides to the 

contractor or a subcontractor in connection with the public improvement contract as 

the claim becomes due, the OWNER may pay the amount of the claim to the person 

that provides the labor or services and charge the amount of the payment against 

funds due or to become due the contractor by reason of the contract. 

 

 19.05 In accordance with ORS 279C.515(2) if the Contractor or a first-tier subcontractor 

fails, neglects or refuses to pay a person that provides labor or materials in 

connection with the public improvement contract within 30 days after receiving 

payment from the contracting agency or a contractor, the contractor or first-tier 

subcontractor owes the person the amount due plus interest charges that begin at the 

end of the 10-day period within which payment is due under ORS 279C.580 (4) and 

that end upon final payment, unless payment is subject to a good faith dispute as 

defined in ORS 279C.580. The rate of interest on the amount due is nine percent per 

annum. The amount of interest may not be waived. 

 

 19.06 In accordance with ORS 279C.515(3) if the Contractor or a subcontractor fails, 

neglects or refuses to pay a person that provides labor or materials in connection 

with the public improvement contract, the person may file a complaint with the 

Construction Contractors Board, unless payment is subject to a good faith dispute as 

defined in ORS 279C.580. 

 



 

72 

 

 19.07 In accordance with ORS 279C.520 a person may not be employed for more than 10 

hours in any one day, or 40 hours in any one week, except in cases of necessity, 

emergency or when the public policy absolutely requires it, and in such cases, 

except in cases of contracts for personal services as defined in ORS 279C.100, the 

employee shall be paid at least time and a half pay: 

 

A. For all overtime in excess of eight hours in any one day or 40 hours in any 

one week when the work week is five consecutive days, Monday through 

Friday; or 

 

B. For all overtime in excess of 10 hours in any one day or 40 hours in any one 

week when the work week is four consecutive days, Monday through 

Friday; and 

 

C. For all work performed on Saturday and on any legal holiday specified in 

ORS 279C.540. 

 

An employer must give notice in writing to employees who work on a public 

contract, either at the time of hire or before commencement of work on the contract, 

or by posting a notice in a location frequented by employees, of the number of 

hours per day and days per week that the employees may be required to work. 

 

 19.08 In accordance with 279C.530 the contractor shall promptly, as due, make payment 

to any person, co-partnership, association or corporation furnishing medical, 

surgical and hospital care services or other needed care and attention, incident to 

sickness or injury, to the employees of the contractor, of all sums that the contractor 

agrees to pay for the services and all moneys and sums that the contractor collected 

or deducted from the wages of employees under any law, contract or agreement for 

the purpose of providing or paying for the services. All subject employers working 

under the contract must be either employers that will comply with ORS 656.017 or 

employers that are exempt under ORS 656.126.  Contractor shall ensure that each of 

its subcontractors complies with these requirements. 

 

 19.09 In accordance with ORS 279C.545, any worker employed by the contractor shall be 

foreclosed from the right to collect for any overtime provided in ORS 279C.540 

unless a claim for payment is filed with the Contractor within 90 days from the 

completion of the contract, providing the Contractor has (1) caused a circular 

clearly printed in boldfaced 12-point type and containing a copy of this section to 

be posted in a prominent place alongside the door of the timekeeper’s office or in a 

similar place that is readily available and freely visible to workers employed on the 

work, and (2) maintained the circular continuously posted from the inception to the 

completion of the contract on which workers are or have been employed. 

 

 19.10 The Contractor shall comply with the requirements of ORS 279C.570 as they apply 

including prompt payment policy, progress payments and rate of interest. 

 

  



 

73 

 

 19.11 The Contractor shall comply with the provisions of ORS 279C.580 as they apply 

with regard to Contractor’s relation with subcontractors, including that the 

Contractor is required to include in each subcontract entered into with a first-tier 

subcontractor, including a material supplier, for the purpose of performing a 

construction contract: 

 

A.  A payment clause obligating the Contractor to pay the first-tier 

subcontractor for satisfactory performance under its subcontract within 10 

days out of amounts the OWNER pays to the Contractor under the public 

improvement contract; 

 

B. A clause that requires the Contractor to provide a first-tier subcontractor 

with a standard form for application for payment. 

 

C. A clause that requires the Contractor to use the standard form and 

administrative procedures for payment for the entire term of the subcontract. 

 

E. An interest penalty clause conforming with ORS 279C.580(3)(b). 

 

 19.12 The Contractor shall comply with the provisions of ORS 279C.605 as they apply 

with regard to notice of claims. 

 

 19.13 This public works contract is subject to the requirements of the Oregon Prevailing 

Wage Rates. In accordance with 279C.830 Contractor shall comply with the 

existing state prevailing rate of wage that must be paid to workers in each trade or 

occupation required for the public works employed in the performance of the 

contract either by the Contractor or subcontractor or other person doing or 

contracting to do the whole or any part of the work contemplated by the contract. 

Workers shall be paid not less than the specified minimum hourly rate of wage. 

  

 19.14 The OWNER will pay the required fee to the Commissioner of the Bureau of Labor 

and Industries as provided in ORS 279C.825 (1), under the administrative rule of 

the commissioner. 

 

 19.15 The Contractor and every subcontractor must have a public works bond filed with 

the Construction Contractors Board before starting work on the project, unless 

exempt under ORS 279C.836 (7) or (8).  Contractor shall also include in every 

subcontract a provision requiring the subcontractor to have a public works bond 

filed with the Construction Contractors Board before starting work on the project, 

unless exempt under ORS 279C.836 (7) or (8).  

  

 19.16 By Submission of a bid the Contractor certifies compliance with the Oregon tax 

laws in accordance with ORS 305.385. 

 

  



 

74 

 

5. Add the following: 

 

 Article 20.  FEDERAL, STATE AND LOCAL STATUTES  

 

 20.01 CONTRACTOR is responsible for compliance with State and Federal safety and 

health acts, ORS 654.001 et. seq., and 29 USC 651 et. seq., and the regulations 

promulgated thereunder. 

 

 20.02 The CONTRACTOR shall comply with all federal, state and local laws, 

regulations, executive orders and ordinances applicable to the work under this 

agreement. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, CONTRACTOR  

expressly agrees to comply with (i) Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964; (ii) 

Section V of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973; (iii) the Americans with Disabilities 

Act of 1990 and ORS 659A.142; (iv) all regulations and administrative rules 

established pursuant to the foregoing laws; (v) all other applicable requirements of 

federal and state civil rights and rehabilitation statutes, rules and regulations; and 

(vi) the environmental laws and regulations enacted by appropriate public agencies. 

 

An employer must give notice in writing to employees who work on a public contract, 

either at the time of hire or before commencement of work on the contract, or by posting a 

notice in a location frequented by employees, of the number of hours per day and days per 

week that the employees may be required to work. 

  



 PREVAILING WAGE RATE FORMS 



PREVAILING WAGE RATE FORMS 



 

75 

 

PREVAILING WAGE RATES FOR PUBLIC WORKS CONSTRUCTION 

 

This project is subject to the State of OREGON BOLI Prevailing Wage Rates, effective as of the 

date of the publication soliciting bids, which are in corporate by reference. 

 

The current Prevailing Wage Rate Book is available online and can be viewed and printed in its 

entirety at:  http://www.oregon.gov.            

  

http://egov.oregon.gov/BOLI/WHD/PWR/Jan2012/1-1-12_Rate_Book.pdf


 

76 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

     This Page Intentionally Left Blank   



 TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS 



TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS 



 DIVISION 1 - GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 



DIVISION 1 - GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 



 

01000 - 1 

 SECTION 01000 

 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

 

 

PART 1  -  GENERAL 

 

1.01 SUMMARY OF WORK 

 

 A.  The CONTRACTOR shall furnish all labor, material and equipment necessary to 

complete the Work in all respects as shown on the plans and/or as specified herein 

and under the terms of the Contract. 

 

 B.  The work in this Contract is as described in the Notice to Contractors, Contract 

for Construction and the Bid Proposal. 

 

1.02 GENERAL CONSTRUCTION 

 

 A.  The intent of the Contract Documents is to ensure the systematic implementation 

of construction with a minimum of public inconvenience. The CONTRACTOR 

shall coordinate his work to minimize any inconvenience to private property 

owners. 

 

 B.  The CONTRACTOR shall have on the job, at all times, a qualified superintendent 

as his agent, who is capable of reading and understanding the Contract 

Documents and is thoroughly experienced in the type of work being performed. 

The Superintendent shall be responsible for the progress of construction and the 

CONTRACTOR'S operations. 

 

 C.  The CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for cooperation with other utilities and 

any other contractors which might be employed by the OWNER on the project. 

 

 D.  The CONTRACTOR is responsible for maintenance of all streets, roads and 

construction sites within which Work is done until final acceptance of the Work 

by the OWNER. The CONTRACTOR shall pay all costs of modifying existing 

utility systems to meet specific construction needs, if required. 

 

 E.  The CONTRACTOR shall perform the Work in accordance with the plans, 

specifications and Contract terms except as modified in writing by the 

ENGINEER. He shall perform all work determined by the ENGINEER as 

necessary to properly prosecute and complete the project. 

 

 F.  The CONTRACTOR is responsible for controlling stormwater, mud, debris and 

the disposition of construction related materials. These substances shall be 

positively prevented from entering the storm or sanitary sewer system. Clean up 

resulting from the improper handling of these substances will be the 

CONTRACTOR’S responsibility. 



 

01000 - 2 

 G.  Conflicts in the contract documents shall be resolved based on the following 

priority: 

 

  1. Design Drawings  

  2. Technical Specifications  

  3. Supplementary General Conditions 

  4. General Conditions 

 

1.03 CONSTRUCTION LAYOUT  

 

 A. The Work exact limits will be located in the field by the OWNER or the 

ENGINEER.  

 

 B.  The CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for replacement of all permanent 

reference points, stakes, monuments and property corners if they are disturbed by 

the construction. Recorded boundary markers shall be replaced by a Registered 

Professional Land Surveyor. No permanent, recorded boundary markers shall be 

removed or disturbed without authorization of the ENGINEER. 

 

1.04 WARRANTY 

 

The CONTRACTOR shall make all necessary repairs and replacements to remedy in a 

manner satisfactory to and at no cost to the OWNER, any and all defects, breaks, or 

failures of the work occurring within ONE (1) YEAR FOLLOWING THE DATE OF 

FINAL ACCEPTANCE of the work due to faulty or inadequate materials or 

workmanship, and for damage caused by settling, washing or slipping when such damage 

or disturbance is caused, in whole or in part, from activities of the CONTRACTOR in 

performing the duties and obligations under this contract.  When such defects or damage 

occur within the time period described hereinbefore, in any part of the surface or 

subsurface work done under the contract, or in any adjacent surface or subsurface 

improvement not included in the work under the contract, the CONTRACTOR shall 

repair the same and the one-year maintenance period required shall, with relation to such 

required repair, be extended one year from the date of completion of such repair. 

 

1.05 CONTRACTOR RESPONSIBILITY 

 

 A. The CONTRACTOR shall be fully informed on all Federal and State laws and all 

local laws, ordinances and regulations of bodies having jurisdiction or authority or 

which in any way might affect the conduct of the Work. 

 

 B. The CONTRACTOR shall indemnify and protect the OWNER and ENGINEER 

against any claim or liability arising from a violation of any law, ordinance or 

regulation by himself, any subcontractor or employee of the CONTRACTOR or 

subcontractor. 

 



 

01000 - 3 

 C. The CONTRACTOR shall obtain and pay for all licenses and permits and shall be 

responsible for all fees, taxes or payments required for the lawful and due 

performance of the Work, except as defined herein.  

 

 D. The CONTRACTOR shall be solely responsible for any trespass on adjacent 

properties or injury thereto, resulting from his operations. All private property 

damaged by his operations shall be fully restored to preconstruction conditions. 

 

 E. Public safety and convenience shall be paramount in the CONTRACTOR'S 

operations and shall be provided for in a satisfactory manner. All laws, rules, 

ordinances, and regulations shall be strictly adhered to by the CONTRACTOR. 

The CONTRACTOR shall perform his operations so as to minimize public and 

commercial inconvenience. 

 

 F. Wherever and whenever a possible public hazardous situation shall occur, the 

CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for whatever signing, barricades or other 

safety precautions are necessary to protect the public and employees on the 

project. 

 

 G. No explosive shall be stored, handled or used on the project without the 

authorization of the ENGINEER. No unlicensed or unqualified person shall 

handle or use explosives, and any damage resulting from the use of explosives 

shall be the CONTRACTOR'S responsibility. 

 

 H. All approved uses of explosives shall be accomplished with utmost care in order 

to not endanger life or property. The CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for 

notification of adjacent property owners, utility companies and others having 

property or facilities in proximity to the site. Sufficient advance notice shall be 

given to allow nearby property to be properly protected from damage. 

 

1.06 UTILITIES COORDINATION 

 

 A. All coordination with utilities, including but not limited to water, sewer, power, 

gas, television, telegraph, and telephone, shall be accomplished by the 

CONTRACTOR prior to any construction. No extra costs for damages or delay 

will be approved as a result of the CONTRACTOR'S failure to contact utilities or 

to arrange sufficient time for private utility infrastructure construction. 

 

 B. Locations of underground utilities if shown on the plans are approximate only.  

The CONTRACTOR is responsible for determining the exact location with the 

assistance of the utility companies and to properly account for the possible 

interference of utilities property with his operations. 

 

 C. In the event of an interruption of utilities service by his operations, the 

CONTRACTOR is solely responsible for repair costs and/or penalties accrued as 

a result of the interruptions. All planned interruptions of service shall be 

coordinated with the OWNER and operators and kept to a minimum. 



 

01000 - 4 

 

 D. The CONTRACTOR must follow the rules adopted by the Oregon Utility 

Notification Center. These rules are set forth in OAR 952-001-0010 through OAR 

952-001-0090. Copies of the rules may be obtained by calling the Center at 503-

232-1987 or 1-800-332-2344 or 811  

 

1.07 TRAFFIC CONTROL AND PUBLIC NOTIFICATION: 

 

A. The CONTRACTOR shall provide adequate signing and flaggers to ensure the 

work zone is properly identified in compliance with the current edition of the 

Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices.  

 

B. A detailed traffic control plan shall be supplied to the OWNER at the 

preconstruction meeting.  The plan shall include any proposed road closures 

and/or detour routes. Detour routes must be properly signed and pre-approved by 

the OWNER. The CONTRACTOR shall coordinate with the City and with 

ODOT on all traffic control impacts on all streets as a result of the work and 

obtain approval/concurrence as needed. Provide advance warning signs as 

required. A means of emergency access must be maintained at all times in all 

work zones. 

       

 C. Where, in the opinion of the ENGINEER, the CONTRACTOR has not provided 

suitable signs, barricades, warning lights, flag men or other suitable traffic control 

measures or services, or where the CONTRACTOR has not obtained suitable 

approvals or given proper notice as may be required in these documents or by the 

ENGINEER, the ENGINEER may stop that portion of the project and require the 

CONTRACTOR to immediately take steps to bring his work within compliance. 

 

 D. The CONTRACTOR is responsible for notification of all impacted properties 

fronting on the project prior to starting work.  Notification shall include the 

location of work and the times when work will be performed, stating time of day 

and the date of street closure, if needed.  The Contractor shall prepare the notice 

and secure approval of the ENGINEER prior to distributing to the neighborhood. 

Contractor shall also notify the agencies/ companies listed below a minimum of 

one week prior to the start of the Work: 

 

   Fire Department 

   Police Department 

   Transit Agencies 

   School Bus Services 

   Garbage Collection Service 

   Post Office 

 

 

 

 

 



 

01000 - 5 

 

1.08  SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS: 

 

 A. The CONTRACTOR shall provide continuous access to all local residents/ 

businesses, postal deliveries as well as emergency traffic. Under no circumstances 

may access to any residents/ businesses be blocked without prearranged approval. 

This closure time should be kept as short as possible. 

 

 B. If the CONTRACTOR or their subcontractors do not possess a current City 

Business License and one is required by the City, they will be required to obtain 

one from the OWNER before the start of their work. 

 

 C. The CONTRACTOR shall confine the work at any one time to a limited reach of 

the project to minimize inconvenience to the residents and businesses.  

  

 

 D. The CONTRACTOR shall inventory, provide and install all manhole risers, 

cleanout risers, valve box adjustments and any miscellaneous structures that 

require adjustment to the new post-overlay asphalt grades.  

 

        

 ** END OF SECTION ** 

 

 

 

             

    

    

 

 

     

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

 



 

 

01500 - 1 

SECTION 01500 

CONTRACTOR FACILITIES 

AND TEMPORARY CONTROLS 

 

 

PART 1 - GENERAL 

 

1.01 WATER 

 

If water is used from fire hydrants, the CONTRACTOR shall coordinate with the 

OWNER and maintain adequate cross connection control. 

 

1.02 SANITARY FACILITIES  

 

The CONTRACTOR shall provide, as a minimum, portable outside sanitary facilities for 

the use of the CONTRACTOR’S personnel.  

 

1.03 CLEANUP 

 

All cleanup and site restoration shall be accomplished concurrently with construction.  

The CONTRACTOR shall ensure that no construction debris, excess excavation, 

materials, or other waste is left on the site. 

 

1.04 NOISE CONTROL 

 

Construction involving noisy operations shall be restricted to the hours between 7:00 AM 

and 8:00 PM as much as possible. Noisy operations shall be scheduled to minimize their 

duration. 

 

 

 **END OF SECTION** 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 This Page Intentionally Left Blank 



 

 

01600-1 

 SECTION 01600 

 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT 
 
PART 1 - GENERAL 
 
1.01 SUMMARY 
 

A. The CONTRACTOR will be compensated for all work based on the unit price or lump 
sum price as listed in the bid proposal on an “installed complete” basis. The 
CONTRACTOR is expected to protect, remove, temporarily or permanently relocate 
and replace such items as signs, barricades, mailboxes, etc. as being incidental to the 
work. Those work items are called for on the plans and not specifically listed in the 
bid proposal shall be considered incidental to the listed bid items. No extra payment 
will be made for attending to such incidental items. 

 
1.02 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT. The contract price and payment thereof shall constitute 

full compensation for all work incidental to the completion of the project in accordance with 
the plans and specifications. Measurement and payment will be in accordance with the Bid 
Proposal as follows: 

 
BASIC BID: 

A.1 Mobilization 

 
1.  Payment.  Payment includes the costs associated with mobilization to perform the 
work and includes bonding and insurance, equipment move-in, Contractor’s office and 
utility hookup if applicable, and miscellaneous start-up costs. This payment item also 
includes all labor, equipment and material for work which is listed in the specifications 
and shown on the Contract Drawings and not specifically listed with other items of the 
Bid Schedule. All costs for secondary mobilization and demobilization shall be 
incidental.    

 
2.  Measurement.  This item will be paid per lump sum and may be invoiced upon 
initiation of the work and equipment has been moved in. Then the total contract 
amount will be paid. 
 

A.2 Temporary Protection and Direction of Traffic 
 

1.  Payment.  Payment includes all labor, equipment and material necessary for all 
costs not covered by other specific pay items in the bid proposal for furnishing, 
maintaining and removing traffic control devices and temporary signs required by the 
contract and as ordered by the Engineer. Payment includes providing and 
implementing a traffic control or detour plan as required by the Engineer, City and 
ODOT.   

 
2.  Measurement.  Payment shall be made per lump sum at the bid unit price. 
  
 
 



 

 

01600-2 

A.3 Sawcut AC and Concrete  
 

1.  Payment.  Payment includes all labor, equipment, and materials necessary to mark 
and sawcut concrete and asphalt concrete pavement. No reimbursement will be made 
for sawcuts not approved by the Engineer, or for recutting required to repair damaged 
cut edges. 

 
2.  Measurement.  Payment shall be made per lineal feet of sawcut at the bid unit price 
regardless of the depth. 
 

A.4 Common Excavation 

 

1.  Payment.  Payment includes all labor, equipment, and materials necessary to 
excavate for the proposed roadway, curb, gutter, and sidewalk areas. Payment shall 
include all site preparation activities, including all necessary demolition to complete 
the proposed improvements, including but not limited to removal of existing AC, 
curbs, driveways, sidewalks, base rock in landscape areas and any other required items 
or structures within the project limits. Payment shall include costs for the removal of 
all demolition and excess excavation materials to an approved disposal location in 
conformance with local, state, and federal regulations.   

 
2.  Measurement.  Payment shall be made per in-place cubic yard at the bid unit price. 

 
B.1 1"-0" Crushed Rock Base  

 
1.  Payment. The payment for this item shall include furnishing, placing, and 
compacting 12" of crushed rock base in currently non-improved roadway areas that 
are designated to receive an overlay and to raise the sidewalk on Watts Ave to the 
appropriate grade.  (This pay item does not include the leveling rock required under 
the curb, sidewalks, and driveways, which are each paid under each separate bid item.) 

 
2.  Measurement. Payment shall be made per the cubic yard compacted in place at the 
bid unit price for 12" depth of base rock. 

 
B.2  2"Dense Mix AC Pavement 

 
1. Payment. The payment for asphalt concrete pavement shall include furnishing, 
placing, and compacting the asphalt concrete for the overlay, and also includes trench 
patching, miscellaneous soft spot repairs, paving behind the driveways if  shown, and 
adjusting existing structures to finish grade. Payment shall also include furnishing and 
placing asphalt for tack coat along existing edges of the curb and structures, and the 
tack coat for the AC overlay.  

 
2. Measurement.  Payment shall be made per the ton at the bid unit price. 

  



 

 

01600-3 

 
B.3 2"Dense Mix AC Pavement  

 
1. Payment. The payment for asphalt concrete pavement shall include furnishing, 
placing, and compacting the asphalt concrete for the 2" base layer in areas of project 
where the roads are widened.    

 
2. Measurement.  Payment shall be made per the ton at the bid unit price. 

 
B.4 Geotextile Fabric 

 
  1.  Payment. The payment for geotextile fabric includes the cost of furnishing all 

labor, materials, and equipment to install geotextile fabric prior to placement of top 
lift of AC. 

 
2.  Measurement. Payment will be made per square yard at the bid unit price. 
 

B.5  Minor Manhole Adjustment   

  

1. Payment.  Payment includes all labor, material, and equipment to supply and install 
manhole adjustment rings, or other means to adjust to the manholes to finished 
pavement elevation prior to the AC overlay. 

 
2.  Measurement.  Payment shall be made per each at the bid unit price. 

 

**END OF SECTION**   

  



 

 

01600-4 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 



 

01700 - 1 

 SECTION 01700 

 PROJECT CLOSEOUT 

 

 

PART 1 -  GENERAL 

 

1.01 FINAL CLEANUP 

 

Prior to final acceptance the CONTRACTOR shall clean, remove all refused and unused 

materials resulting from the work activities within the project limits. 

 

1.02 FINAL SUBMITTAL 

 

 Prior to final acceptance, the CONTRACTOR shall provide: 

 

1. A letter stating that all work has been substantially completed in accordance with 

these plans and specifications, and requesting final inspection. 

 

2.   Redlined as-constructed plans. 

      

 3. Consent of Surety to Final Payment. 

 

 4. Contractor’s Affidavit of Payment of Debts and Claims. 

 

 5. Contractor’s Affidavit of Release of Liens. 

 

 6. Final invoicing. 

 

1.03 WARRANTY   

 

 The warranty period shall be 12 months from the date of final acceptance by the 

OWNER.  

 

 

 ** END OF SECTION ** 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 This Page Intentionally Left Blank 



 DIVISION 2 - SITEWORK 



DIVISION 2 - SITEWORK 



 

 

02100 - 1 

 SECTION 02100 

 SITE PREPARATION 

 

 

PART 1 - GENERAL  

 

1.01 DESCRIPTION 

 

This section includes labor, materials, equipments and provisions for demolition and 

disposal of all objectionable material and related work necessary to prepare the site for 

construction operations. All work shall be in conformance with 2021 ODOT/APWA 

Standard Specifications for Construction. except as modified herein. 

 

1.02 COORDINATION 

 

 A. The CONTRACTOR shall coordinate his operations with affected property 

owners and utilities likely to be impacted by construction.  A partial listing of 

agencies and utilities follows: 

 

1. City of Oakridge Public Works Department,  

 Mr. Robeart Chrisman (541) 954-3121  

2. Lane Electrical Cooperative: (541) 484-1151 

3. One Call Notification Center; Phone (800) 332-2344 

   

 B. The CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for coordinating his activities with 

impacted utilities, property owners and any other adjacent contractors.  No 

additional costs are allowed for delays resulting from a lack of such coordination 

by the CONTRACTOR. 

 

1.03 PROPERTY PROTECTION 

 

 A. All structures, utilities, and properties, whether inside or outside the project limits, 

shall be protected from damage or interruption by the CONTRACTOR'S 

activities.  Responsibility for safety and protection of buildings near or in the 

project limits are the CONTRACTOR'S.  The CONTRACTOR shall repair or 

replace damaged structures, utilities, and/or properties to the satisfaction of the 

OWNER. 

 

 B. The location of underground utilities; power, telephone, cable, gas, etc., if shown 

on the Design Drawings are approximate.  The actual locations may vary from 

those shown. The CONTRACTOR is responsible for verifying all utility 

locations.  No extra costs are allowed for delays resulting from utility conflicts for 

which the CONTRACTOR is responsible.  On questions regarding the disposition 

of existing utilities, improvements or buildings, the CONTRACTOR shall contact 

the ENGINEER for advisement. 

 



 

 

02100 - 2 

PART 2 - PRODUCTS (NOT USED) 

 

 

PART 3 - EXECUTION 

 

3.01 DEMOLITION 

 

 A. Demolition will be as shown on the Drawings or as directed.  

 

 B. Pavement to be removed shall be saw cut in straight clean lines.  

 

3.02 DISPOSAL OF WASTE MATERIAL 

 

Demolished and waste material shall be disposed of off-site by the CONTRACTOR in 

accordance with all federal, state, and local regulations 

 

 **END OF SECTION** 



 

02200 - 1 

 SECTION 02200 

 EARTHWORK 

PART 1 - GENERAL 

        

1.01 DESCRIPTION 

 

This section includes all labor, materials, equipment, and methods to be used to perform 

all excavation, foundation preparation, backfilling, slope stabilization, roadway 

embankment and compaction required as shown on the Drawings in conformance with 

2018 ODOT/APWA Standard Specifications for Construction. 

            

PART 2  -  PRODUCTS  

 

2.01 FOUNDATION MATERIAL 

 

Foundation material shall be native material except where ground water or other adverse 

conditions exist, which in the opinion of the ENGINEER, cannot support the structure 

or pipe.  In those conditions, foundation material shall be select backfill. 

 

2.02 BEDDING AND PIPE ZONE MATERIAL 

 

The pipe bedding and pipe zone material shall be crushed rock with a maximum size of  

1-1/2", uniformly graded from coarse to fine. The materials shall predominate in the fine 

sizes and shall present no isolated points which would cause fracture or damage to the 

pipe. All materials shall be in conformance with 2018 ODOT/APWA Standard 

Specifications for Construction and shall be subject to the ENGINEER’s approval. 

 

2.03     NATIVE BACKFILL 

 

Acceptable native backfill shall be material, which is free of organic materials, non-

plastic (no clay), reasonably evenly graded and capable of being compacted with 100% of 

the material passing a 1" screen. 

 

2.04 SELECT BACKFILL 

 

All select backfill shall be crushed rock with a maximum size of 1-1/2", uniformly graded 

from coarse to fine, complying with the requirements of the 2018 ODOT/APWA 

Standard Specifications for Construction. All materials shall be subject to the 

ENGINEER’s approval. 

 

PART 3  -  EXECUTION 

 

3.01 GENERAL 

 

 A. The CONTRACTOR shall perform all excavation of every description and of 

whatever materials encountered to the depth indicated on the Drawings or as 

specified below. 



 

02200 - 2 

3.02 PREPARATION  

 

A. As specified in Section 02100, Site Preparation, clearing and grubbing shall be 

completed, and existing pavement and base rock shall be removed, prior to 

excavating soils. 

 

 B. Erosion Control 

 

  1. The CONTRACTOR is responsible for developing and maintaining an 

erosion control plan to prevent the transport of soil off-site via wind or 

rain for the duration of the project. The erosion control measures shall 

remain in place until all vegetation is established. 

   

2. Best Management Practices shall be utilized to control runoff at the site 

and to protect existing and proposed storm drain facilities. These methods 

include but are not limited to: bio bags, silt fences, berms, stockpile 

covers, gravel construction entrances, etc. Erosion control measures shall 

be in conformance with local, state, and federal regulations. 

 

 3. Temporary erosion control measures shall be provided until the placement 

of permanent features and/or the establishment of permanent measures. 

The temporary erosion control measures shall include ground cover or 

other acceptable means of all disturbed areas caused by the 

CONTRACTOR’S activities if there is a potential for runoff into the storm 

system. Temporary erosion control measures shall be in conformance with 

local, state, and federal regulations.  

 

3.03 COMMON EXCAVATION 

 

 A. Excavations shall be classified as either common or rock excavation. 

 

 B. Common excavation is defined as the removal of all material which is not 

classified as rock excavation. 

 

 C. The limits of excavation shall be kept to a minimum. 

 

 D. The CONTRACTOR shall take necessary precautions to prevent damage to 

adjacent structures or utilities. 

 

 E. Sheeting and shoring may be necessary or may be required by regulatory 

authorities in accordance with safety laws. 

 

 F. CONTRACTOR shall also make provisions to prevent soil or water intrusion into 

the pipelines prior to completion of installation. 

 

 

 



 

02200 - 3 

3.04 EMBANKMENT CONSTRUCTION 

 

 A. Embankment construction shall include preparation of the areas upon which 

embankments are to be placed as shown on the construction plans. Placement of 

fill materials to be performed after the area receiving fill has been stripped from 

all organic and foreign material. 

 

 B. The CONTRACTOR shall place embankments and fills in horizontal layers of 12 

- 18 inches maximum depth and compact each layer to a minimum of 95% of 

maximum density per AASHTO T-180 standards or approved equivalent. 

 

3.05 ROCK EXCAVATION 

 

A. Rock excavation is defined as a method of removal and not a geological 

formation, and includes removal of solid material, that in the opinion of the 

ENGINEER, cannot be removed by nominal 60,000-pound excavating equipment 

available to the CONTRACTOR in common use for the type of project 

undertaken, AND requires for its removal drilling and blasting, wedging, 

sledging, barring, or breaking up with additional powered equipment. 

         

No material that can be removed with a power-operated excavator of 60,000- 

pound capacity with rip tooth or similar attachment will be defined as rock 

excavation.  

 

 B.   Boulder removal may be classified as open trench rock removal if at least one 

dimension of the removed boulder is greater than six (6) feet. Concrete and 

reinforced concrete pipes, structures, thrust blocks or fill required to be removed 

or demolished will not be considered rock excavation. 

  

C. Limits of payment for rock excavation shall be in-place cubic yard defined as a 

maximum of pipe outside diameter plus 30" in width, from the observed level of 

rock to a trench invert 6" below the pipe invert in depth, and length defined by the 

extent of the rock. Boulder excavation will be based on the volume of the 

boulders removed. 

 

3.06 PIPE TRENCHES 

 

A. It is the intent of these specifications that the excavation and/or trench width at the 

surface of the ground be kept to a minimum necessary to install the pipe in a safe 

manner. In all cases, excavations or trenches must be of sufficient width to allow 

for shoring, if required, and permit proper joining of the pipe and backfilling of 

material along the sides of the pipe. The CONTRACTOR shall exercise special 

care when construction is adjacent to existing structures to avoid damage.  

 

 B. The length of the trench excavated shall always be kept to a minimum. In normal 

cases, the open trench length shall not exceed 200 feet. 

 



 

02200 - 4 

C. The CONTRACTOR shall excavate the trench to the lines and grades shown or as 

established by the ENGINEER, with proper allowance for the pipe thickness, pipe 

bedding and foundation stabilization as required. The subgrade upon which the 

bedding is to be placed shall be firm, undisturbed, and true to grade. If the trench 

is over-excavated, the CONTRACTOR shall restore it to grade with pipe bedding 

material and compact material as specified for bedding, all at no expense to the 

OWNER. 

 

3.07 FOUNDATIONS 

 

A. When, in the judgement of the ENGINEER, the existing material in the 

excavation is unsuitable for support, the CONTRACTOR shall excavate below 

grade, as directed in writing.  The CONTRACTOR shall backfill the excavation 

to subgrade with foundation material and compact in layers not exceeding six 

inches deep.  The foundation material in the trench shall be compacted by 

machine operated pneumatic or mechanical tampers. Compaction shall be 

approved by the ENGINEER. Unsuitable foundation material shall be disposed of 

at an approved site. 

 

 B. No unsuitable material has been identified on-site.  Any foundation material 

required will be paid under a negotiated change order, if required. 

 

3.08 DEWATERING 

 

 A. Removal and disposal of storm water from the excavation shall be the 

responsibility of the CONTRACTOR as approved by the ENGINEER. Such 

approval shall not imply any liability of the ENGINEER or OWNER for damage 

or extra costs incurred by the CONTRACTOR in handling or disposing of storm 

or runoff surface water.  

 

B. Groundwater  

 

  1. Contractor shall perform dewatering as needed to complete the 

construction.  Costs for dewatering activities shall be considered incidental 

to the contract. 

 

  2. Water generated from dewatering activities shall be properly disposed of 

in accordance with the requirements of local, state, and federal 

regulations. 

 

3.09 HANDLING EXCAVATED MATERIAL 

 

All excavated material not required for backfilling or embankment on-site shall be 

promptly removed and disposed off-site by the CONTRACTOR in accordance with 

governing regulations. 

 



 

02200 - 5 

3.10 PIPE BEDDING AND ZONE MATERIAL 

 

 A. Pipe bedding consists of leveling the bottom of the trench or the top of the 

foundation material and placing bedding material to the horizontal centerline of 

the pipe. Bedding material shall be as specified hereinbefore and as shown on the 

plan and placed in at least two lifts. Place the first lift to provide the minimum 

depth of bedding material as shown in the Contract Drawings before the pipe is 

installed.  The CONTRACTOR shall spread the bedding smoothly to proper grade 

so that the pipe is uniformly supported along the barrel and excavate bell holes at 

each joint to permit proper assembly and inspection of the entire joint. Bedding 

under the pipe shall provide a firm, unyielding support along the entire pipe 

length. Particular attention must be given to the area from the flow line to the 

horizontal centerline of the pipe to insure that firm support is obtained to prevent 

any lateral movement of the pipe during the final backfilling of the pipe zone. 

Pipe bedding shall be placed the full width of the trench and shall be a minimum 

of 6 inches in compacted depth below the pipe. 

 

B. The CONTRACTOR shall place the specified pipe zone material carefully around 

the pipe.  The CONTRACTOR shall prevent pipe from movement either 

horizontally or vertically during placement and compaction of pipe zone material. 

The pipe zone material shall be a minimum of 12 inches in compacted depth 

above the pipe. 

 

3.11 BACKFILLING 

 

 A. The CONTRACTOR shall take reasonable precautions to prevent any native 

backfill material from becoming saturated beyond the critical moisture limits. 

 

 B. Take all necessary precautions to protect the structure or pipe from any damage, 

movement or shifting. Take special care when compacting materials adjacent to 

existing structures to avoid damage. 

 

 C. Trench backfill shall be select material in all areas under sidewalks and AC 

surfacing or in areas identified for structural fill. 

 

 D. All excavations and trenches shall be backfilled in maximum 12 - 18 inch lifts to 

the densities described below. 

 

  1. Native backfill material shall be compacted to a minimum 90% of 

maximum density as determined by AASHTO T-180. Backfill shall 

terminate below finish grade to allow for placement of top soil.  

 

  2. Select backfill material shall be compacted to a minimum 95% of 

maximum density as determined by AASHTO T-180. Backfill shall 

terminate below finish grade to allow for placement of AC or concrete. 

 



 

02200 - 6 

3.12 TESTING 

 

A. The OWNER may employ an independent testing company to determine moisture 

content and in-place density of soils by any one or combination of the following 

test methods:  

 

   Moisture-density curve AASHTO T-180 (ASTM D-1557) 

 

   In-place density 

   by nuclear methods  AASHTO T-238 (ASTM D-2922) 

 

   Moisture content  

   by nuclear methods  AASHTO T-239 (ASTM D-3017) 

 

 B. The frequency of testing will be adequate to assure the ENGINEER of 

compliance with the contract requirements. 

 

 C. The CONTRACTOR shall cooperate with testing efforts by leveling small test 

areas designated by the ENGINEER and shall backfill test areas, all at the 

CONTRACTOR's sole expense. 

 

D. The OWNER will be responsible for the proctor and all passing test costs. Any 

work showing noncompliance with test standards shall be repaired or replaced 

and retested at CONTRACTOR’S expense until in compliance with specified 

standards. 

 

 

 

 **END OF SECTION** 

 

 

 

 

 



02500 - 1 

 SECTION 02500 

 PAVING AND SURFACING 

 

PART 1 - GENERAL 

 

1.01 DESCRIPTION 

 

A. This section covers the work and materials for furnishing labor, materials, 

equipment to install asphaltic concrete surfaces, crack sealing, pavement grinding, 

pavement striping, existing utility structures adjustments, fabric and Portland 

Cement products. All work shall be in conformance of 2021 ODOT/APWA 

Standard Specifications for Construction. 

 

B. Asphalt cement material price escalation/ de-escalation adjustments will not be in 

effect during the life of this contract. All costs will be paid at the bid unit prices 

per ton of asphalt. 

  

1.02 QUALITY ASSURANCE 

 

Work provided under this section shall conform to 2021 ODOT/APWA Standard 

Specifications for Construction, unless noted otherwise here in. 

         

PART 2 - PRODUCTS 

 

2.01 BASE COURSE MATERIAL 

 

Base course material shall be crushed rock aggregate with a maximum size of 1" minus, 

uniformly graded from coarse to fine. All materials shall comply with section 02630.10 

of the 2021 ODOT/APWA Standard Specifications for Construction. 

 

2.02 ASPHALT CONCRETE PAVEMENT 

 

Asphalt Concrete shall be ½" Asphalt Concrete Pavement complying with the 

requirements of section 00745 of the 2021 ODOT/APWA Standard Specifications for 

Construction. The mix shall be level 2 or 3 Performance Grade (PG), 64-22 binder.  

 

2.03 ASPHALT TACK COATING 

 

 A. Asphalt tack coating for overlays shall be Cationic slow to medium setting, low 

viscosity complying with the requirements of the 2021 ODOT/APWA Standard 

Specifications for Construction, section 00730. 

 

 B. Sealant coat for fabric placement shall be level 2 Performance Grade (PG), 64-22 

binder asphalt cement additives conforming with the requirements of the 2021 

ODOT/APWA Standard Specifications for Construction, section 00745.    

 



02500 - 2 

2.04 GEOTEXTILE FABRIC 

 

A. Geotextile fabric for asphalt overlays shall be Petromat Number 4599 by Amoco 

Fabrics and Fibers Company, Mirafi Mirapave 400 produced by Mirafi Products, 

Geotex 381 Pave Dry produced by SI Corporation, Terra Tex OL by Hanes Geo 

Components or approved equal. 

 

B. Geotextile fabric for subgrade shall be Tencate Mirafi 180N, 500X, Propex 

Geotex 801, US Fabrics US 205NW, or approved equal. 

 

PART 3 - EXECUTION 

 

3.01 BASE COURSE MATERIAL 

 

All base and leveling courses material shall be compacted to a minimum density of 95% 

maximum density as determined by AASHTO T-180 and installed in accordance with the 

requirements of the 2021 ODOT/APWA Standard Specifications for Construction. 

 

3.02 ASPHALT CONCRETE PAVEMENT 

 

A. Preparation, placement, and testing shall comply with the 2021 ODOT/APWA 

Standard Specifications for Construction, Sections 00744 and 00745.  Asphalt 

Concrete Pavement and Asphalt Concrete Pavement - Statistical Acceptance. 

 

 B. Mixture shall be machine laid, as practicable, by experienced workman on a 

compacted crushed rock base. Special care shall be taken to avoid segregation of 

materials and to maintain specified grades, thickness, and smoothness. 

 

C. All valve boxes, manhole frames, catch basin gratings and other utility 

appurtenances located within paved areas shall be set or raised to finish grade, 

unless otherwise noted. All surfaces shall be tack coated prior to paving. 

 

 D. The final surface shall be smooth, true to grade, free draining and free of all 

surface defects. 

 

 E. Repairs to cut or damaged asphaltic concrete surfaces shall be repaired as follows: 

 

  1. All AC surfaces at the match lines shall all be saw cut.  All edges shall be 

sealed and sanded upon completion.  

 

  2. Unless directed otherwise by the ENGINEER, the new pavement shall 

have the same plan grade as the pavement that existed prior to 

construction. 

 

3. Patches must be diamond cut and paved to conform to adjacent existing 

pavement and provide a smooth continuous surface.  



02500 - 3 

 F. Scheduling- The CONTRACTOR shall schedule the construction activity to 

provide a minimum of 10 days notice to the OWNER, and accomplish all work 

within the specified performance period. 

 

 G. The exact limits of pavement removal shall be determined in the field by the 

OWNER. The CONTRACTOR shall cut the pavement to the depth of removal 

around the perimeter of the area to be removed. Cuts shall be made with a power 

saw or other approved methods that leaves a straight and vertical face. 

  

 H. After cutting, existing pavement shall be excavated as required. Any damage to 

adjoining pavement or the underlying base course, as a result of either the cutting 

or removal operation, will be repaired by the CONTRACTOR at no cost to the 

OWNER. 

 

 I.  Excavate and dispose all existing asphalt and base course in a permitted waste 

disposal site. Disposal must be according to federal, state and local regulations. 

  

 

 J. Place an engineered geotextile fabric material over the entire excavated area prior 

to the placement of the base course. Base course material shall be as described 

above in section 2.01 and compacted as per section 3.01.  

 

K.  Before replacement of the asphalt surface, apply a tack coat to all vertical surfaces 

of the existing pavement and allow the tack coat to cure. Compact the newly 

replaced asphalt surface with a vibratory compactor, either by hand or by rolling 

to achieve a smooth, uniform surface level with the adjoining pavement. 

 

3.03 ASPHALT TACK COATING 

 

The asphalt tack coating binder for overlays shall be applied with a pressure distributor at  

rate of 0.05 to 0.10 gallons per square yard to ensure bonding between the existing 

asphalt and the new asphalt. 

 

3.04 GEOTEXTILE FABRIC 

 

All geotextile fabric material shall be laid straight along the subgrade stabilization 

allowing 6-inches minimum overlap over each fabric panel. 

  

3.05 SIGN POSTS 

 

All sign heights and locations shall conform to the requirements of the 2021 

ODOT/APWA Standard Specifications for Construction and the Manual on Uniform 

Traffic Control Devices, latest edition and shall be inspected by the City.  

 

 

 **END OF SECTION** 



02500 - 4 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 



 PLAN DRAWINGS 



PLAN DRAWINGS 



C1
COVER SHEET OF

CITY OF OAKRIDGE
2021 STREET OVERLAY - BERRY STREET & GARDEN ROAD

OAKRIDGE
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

7
OF

D
IG

IT
A

L 
SI

G
N

A
TU

R
E

CITY OF OAKRIDGE

LANE COUNTY, OREGON

2021 STREET OVERLAY - BERRY STREET &

APRIL 2021
PROJECT

LOCATION CITY OF OAKRIDGE
BRYAN CUTCHEN

ROBEART CHRISMAN

CITY ADMINISTRATOR

PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

ATTENTION:  OREGON LAW REQUIRES YOU TO FOLLOW
RULES ADOPTED BY THE OREGON UTILITY NOTIFICATION

CENTER.  THOSE RULES ARE SET FORTH IN OAR 952-001-0010
THROUGH OAR 952-001-0090.  YOU MAY OBTAIN COPIES OF

THESE RULES BY CALLING THE CENTER.
(NOTE:  THE TELEPHONE NUMBER FOR THE OREGON UTILITY

NOTIFICATION CENTER IS (503) 232-1987)  OR 811 OR
1-800-332-2344

CALL BEFORE YOU DIG

197

20

O R E G O N
101

20 5

126

97

101

26

26

26

84

97

30

126
242

20

58

CITY OF OAKRIDGE

SHEET INDEX:

C1 COVER SHEET

C2 BERRY STREET EXISTING CONDITIONS PLAN

C3 BERRY STREET OVERLAY PLAN

C4 BERRY STREET CONSTRUCTION DETAILS

C5 GARDEN STREET EXISTING CONDITIONS PLAN

C6 GARDEN STREET OVERLAY PLAN

C7 GARDEN STREET CONSTRUCTION DETAILS

⅊

℄

CONTRACTOR TO PROTECT EXISTING POWER,
TELEPHONE/TELECOMMUNICATION LINES &

COORDINATE RELOCATION OF ANY LINES
THAT ARE IN CONFLICT WITH THE

CONSTRUCTION WITH APPROPRIATE AGENCY

PROJECT
SITER

A
IN

B
O

W
 R

D

LEGEND

R
O

C
K

 R
D

O
A

K
R

ID
G

E
 M

O
B

IL
E

H
O

M
E

 P
A

R
K

FAIRY GLEN DR

BERRY STREET

WILLAMETTE RIVER

GARDEN ROAD 

CLINE STREET

RIVERVIEW STREET

PROJECT
SITE

BAIN STREET

G
A

R
D

E
N

 R
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
P/N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D/B

AutoCAD SHX Text
D/S

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAD#

AutoCAD SHX Text
EPH

AutoCAD SHX Text
JST

AutoCAD SHX Text
1747-C1-C4

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACCORDINGLY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADJUST SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ORIGINAL DRAWING.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BAR IS ONE INCH ON

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS SHOWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISED BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSULTING ENGINEERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURRAN-McLEOD, INC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHONE (503) 684-3478

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORTLAND, OREGON 97223

AutoCAD SHX Text
6655 S.W. HAMPTON ST., SUITE 210

AutoCAD SHX Text
1747

AutoCAD SHX Text
APRIL 2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
OREGON

AutoCAD SHX Text
73539PE

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXPIRES: %%U 06/30/2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
J

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
,

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
P/N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D/B

AutoCAD SHX Text
D/S

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAD#

AutoCAD SHX Text
Hood River

AutoCAD SHX Text
Madras

AutoCAD SHX Text
The Dalles

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
P a c i f i c        O c e a n 

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
42

AutoCAD SHX Text
Lincoln City

AutoCAD SHX Text
Depoe Bay

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
Newport

AutoCAD SHX Text
Eugene

AutoCAD SHX Text
Albany

AutoCAD SHX Text
Roseburg

AutoCAD SHX Text
Bend

AutoCAD SHX Text
Tillamook

AutoCAD SHX Text
Cannon Beach

AutoCAD SHX Text
99W

AutoCAD SHX Text
Salem

AutoCAD SHX Text
Portland

AutoCAD SHX Text
Mt. Hood

AutoCAD SHX Text
35

AutoCAD SHX Text
Prineville

AutoCAD SHX Text
Columbia

AutoCAD SHX Text
River

AutoCAD SHX Text
Astoria

AutoCAD SHX Text
Estacada

AutoCAD SHX Text
224

AutoCAD SHX Text
Rockaway Beach

AutoCAD SHX Text
Boring

AutoCAD SHX Text
Toledo

AutoCAD SHX Text
Odell

AutoCAD SHX Text
Gov.Camp

AutoCAD SHX Text
Zigzag

AutoCAD SHX Text
Canby

AutoCAD SHX Text
99E

AutoCAD SHX Text
Arch Cape

AutoCAD SHX Text
Crescent

AutoCAD SHX Text
Goshen

AutoCAD SHX Text
OakRidge

AutoCAD SHX Text
Reedsport

AutoCAD SHX Text
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text
Florence

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.T.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE ( ) ) CENTER LINE ( ) ) EASEMENT LINE EXISTING STORM CULVERT EXISTING UNDERGROUND  COMM./FIBER OPTIC LINE EXISTING GAS LINE EXISTING SANITARY SEWER EXISTING STORM EXISTING WATER LINE EXISTING OVERHEAD POWER LINE EXISTING FENCE EXISTING TELEPHONE EXISTING POWER POLE EXISTING GUY ANCHOR EXISTING TELEPHONE JBOX EXISTING CONTOURS EXISTING TREE EXISTING MAILBOX EXISTING EDGE OF  GRAVEL/PAVEMENT EXISTING WATER VALVE (WV) EXISTING WATER METER (WM) EXISTING FIRE HYDRANT EXISTING ASPHALT NEW 2" A.C. OVERLAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
FO

AutoCAD SHX Text
FO

AutoCAD SHX Text
168

AutoCAD SHX Text
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
MB

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM



C2
EXISTING CONDITIONS PLAN

BERRY STREET OF

CITY OF OAKRIDGE
2021 STREET OVERLAY - BERRY STREET & GARDEN ROAD

OAKRIDGE
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

7
OF

D
IG

IT
A

L 
SI

G
N

A
TU

R
E

1
- -

STA 0+00 - STA 5+00
BERRY ST. - EXISTING CONDITIONS 

2
- -

STA 5+00 - STA 7+49
BERRY ST. - EXISTING CONDITIONS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" BLOCK  WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAILBOXES

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB RIM AT FL = 1129.16' 

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM MH RIM = 1129.67' 18" OUT TO S = 1123.23' 12"? IN FROM SE = 1125.73' 16" IN FROM E = 1123.20' 18" IN FROM N = 1123.24' 10" IN FROM NW = 1125.42'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB RIM AT FL = 1129.41' 10" OUT TO SE = 1125.42' SUMP = 1124.92'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN MH RIM = 1129.74' 24"? OUT TO S = 1120.73' 20"? IN FROM E = 1122.56' 8"? IN FROM N = 1121.73'

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM MH RIM = 1129.97' 10" OUT TO S = 1126.81' SUMP = 1126.16'

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM MH RIM = 1129.575' 16" OUT TO W = 1123.60' 8" IN FROM N = 1125.91' 8" IN FROM S = 1125.91' BAFFLE RIM = 1125.62'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB INLET = 1129.34'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN MH RIM = 1130.70' 20" OUT TO W = 1123.61' 20" IN FROM E = 1123.67' 8" IN FROM N = 1124.28'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN MH RIM = 1131.98' 20" OUT TO SW = 1124.15' 20" IN FROM E = 1124.19' 4" IN FROM N = 1127.83'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN MH RIM = 1132.04' 20" OUT TO W = 1123.78' 20" IN FROM NE = 1123.88'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB RIM AT FL= 1129.35' 10" OUT TO W = 1126.59' SUMP = 1125.97'

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
TL 3100

AutoCAD SHX Text
TL 3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
TL 1200

AutoCAD SHX Text
TL 1100

AutoCAD SHX Text
TL 1003 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TL 1002

AutoCAD SHX Text
TL 1001

AutoCAD SHX Text
TL 1300

AutoCAD SHX Text
TL 3002

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN MH RIM = 1136.93' 20" OUT TO W = 1130.06' 16" IN FROM SE = 1130.16' 10" IN FROM NE = 1130.97'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN MH RIM = 1135.11'

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUTTER DRAIN RESTING ON TOP OF FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TL 1001

AutoCAD SHX Text
TL 900 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TL 800  

AutoCAD SHX Text
TL 1004 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TL 500 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TL 1401 

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
P/N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D/B

AutoCAD SHX Text
D/S

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAD#

AutoCAD SHX Text
EPH

AutoCAD SHX Text
JST

AutoCAD SHX Text
1747-C1-C4

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACCORDINGLY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADJUST SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ORIGINAL DRAWING.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BAR IS ONE INCH ON

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS SHOWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISED BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSULTING ENGINEERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURRAN-McLEOD, INC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHONE (503) 684-3478

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORTLAND, OREGON 97223

AutoCAD SHX Text
6655 S.W. HAMPTON ST., SUITE 210

AutoCAD SHX Text
1747

AutoCAD SHX Text
APRIL 2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
OREGON

AutoCAD SHX Text
73539PE

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXPIRES: %%U 06/30/2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
J

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
,

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
P/N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D/B

AutoCAD SHX Text
D/S

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAD#

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAINBOW RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
BERRY ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROCK RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
BERRY ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1" =  20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE DETAIL 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE DETAIL 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1" =  20'



OF

CITY OF OAKRIDGE
2021 STREET OVERLAY - BERRY STREET & GARDEN ROAD

OAKRIDGE
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

7
OF

D
IG

IT
A

L 
SI

G
N

A
TU

R
E

1
- -

STA 0+00 - STA 5+00
BERRY ST. - PLAN          

2
- -

STA 5+00 - STA 7+49
BERRY ST. - PLAN   

LEGEND

C3
BERRY STREET OVERLAY PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
TL 3100

AutoCAD SHX Text
TL 3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
TL 1200

AutoCAD SHX Text
TL 1100

AutoCAD SHX Text
TL 1003 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TL 1002

AutoCAD SHX Text
TL 1001

AutoCAD SHX Text
TL 1300

AutoCAD SHX Text
TL 3002

AutoCAD SHX Text
TL 5800

AutoCAD SHX Text
TL 1500  

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
TL 1001

AutoCAD SHX Text
TL 900 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TL 800  

AutoCAD SHX Text
TL 1004 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TL 500 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TL 1401 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE DETAIL 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACCORDINGLY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADJUST SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ORIGINAL DRAWING.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BAR IS ONE INCH ON

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS SHOWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISED BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSULTING ENGINEERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURRAN-McLEOD, INC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHONE (503) 684-3478

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORTLAND, OREGON 97223

AutoCAD SHX Text
6655 S.W. HAMPTON ST., SUITE 210

AutoCAD SHX Text
1747

AutoCAD SHX Text
APRIL 2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
OREGON

AutoCAD SHX Text
73539PE

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXPIRES: %%U 06/30/2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
J

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
,

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
P/N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D/B

AutoCAD SHX Text
D/S

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAD#

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1" =  20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1" =  20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAINBOW RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
BERRY ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
STA 1+19, BEGIN STREET IMPROVEMENTS, SAW CUT TO MATCH EXISTING ASPHALT. SAW CUT AND OVERLAY TO MATCH EXISTING ASPHALT DRIVEWAY GRADE. PROTECT EXISTING CATCH BASINS, DRYWELLS AND SANITARY MANHOLES. MAKE MINOR RIM ADJUSTMENTS AT FINISHED GRADE AS REQUIRED. STA 7+40, END STREET IMPROVEMENTS, SAW CUT TO MATCH EXISTING ASPHALT. INSTALL FABRIC ON EXISTING AC PAVEMENT. INSTALL 2" OVERLAY AS SHOWN ON PLANS AND MATCH EXISTING GRADES.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSTRUCTION NOTES:

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW 2" AC OVERLAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA NEW OVERLAY = 12,000 SF±

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE DETAIL 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
BERRY ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROCK RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
P/N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D/B

AutoCAD SHX Text
D/S

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAD#

AutoCAD SHX Text
JST

AutoCAD SHX Text
JHH

AutoCAD SHX Text
1747-C1-C4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAW CUT TO MATCH EX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAW CUT = 224 LF±

AutoCAD SHX Text
5



C4
BERRY STREET CONSTRUCTION DETAILS OF

CITY OF OAKRIDGE
2021 STREET OVERLAY - BERRY STREET & GARDEN ROAD

OAKRIDGE
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

7
OF

D
IG

IT
A

L 
SI

G
N

A
TU

R
E

1
. .

STA: 0+00 TO 0+40
NW BERRY STREET - STREET SECTION

2
. .

STA: 0+40 TO 7+49
NW BERRY STREET - STREET SECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING CURB WITH DIRT SHOULDER

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING R-O-W

AutoCAD SHX Text
 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING R-O-W

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING CURB WITH DIRT SHOULDER

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLACE GEOTEXTILE FABRIC, TACK COAT. THEN PLACE 2" OF  " DENSE MIX OVERLAY 12" DENSE MIX OVERLAY ON ENTIRE TRAVEL LENGTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
2%%% SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2%%% SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING DIRT SHOULDER

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING R-O-W

AutoCAD SHX Text
 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING R-O-W

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING DIRT SHOULDER

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLACE GEOTEXTILE FABRIC, TACK COAT. THEN PLACE 2" OF  " DENSE MIX OVERLAY 12" DENSE MIX OVERLAY ON ENTIRE TRAVEL LENGTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
2%%% SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2%%% SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
P/N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D/B

AutoCAD SHX Text
D/S

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAD#

AutoCAD SHX Text
EPH

AutoCAD SHX Text
JST

AutoCAD SHX Text
1747-C1-C4

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACCORDINGLY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADJUST SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ORIGINAL DRAWING.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BAR IS ONE INCH ON

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS SHOWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISED BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSULTING ENGINEERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURRAN-McLEOD, INC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHONE (503) 684-3478

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORTLAND, OREGON 97223

AutoCAD SHX Text
6655 S.W. HAMPTON ST., SUITE 210

AutoCAD SHX Text
1747

AutoCAD SHX Text
APRIL 2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
OREGON

AutoCAD SHX Text
73539PE

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXPIRES: %%U 06/30/2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
J

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
,

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
P/N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D/B

AutoCAD SHX Text
D/S

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAD#

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE



1

. .

STA 0+00 - STA 3+50 

GARDEN RD. - EXISTING CONDITIONS

SCALE: 1" = 20'

SE
E 

A
BO

V
E

SE
E 

BE
LO

W

OF

CITY OF OAKRIDGE
2021 STREET OVERLAY - BERRY STREET & GARDEN ROAD

OAKRIDGE
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

7
OF

D
IG

IT
A

L 
SI

G
N

A
TU

R
E C5

GARDEN ROAD
EXISTING CONDITIONS PLAN

2

. .

STA 3+50 - STA 6+06

GARDEN RD. - EXISTING CONDITIONS

SCALE: 1" = 20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAILBOXES

AutoCAD SHX Text
MB

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' WIRE FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"MAPLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN MH RIM 1122.74 IE IN (N) 1111.94 IE OUT (W) 1111.84

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM MH RIM 1122.57 IE IN (W) 1114.87 IE IN (N) 1113.32  IE OUT (S) 1113.22 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB RIM 1121.72 IE (N/S) 1120.32

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN MH RIM 1122.12 IE IN (E) 1115.57 IE OUT (S) 1115.47

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN MH RIM 1121.85 IE IN (E) 1115.60 IE IN (N) 1115.30  IE OUT (W) 1115.05 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN MH RIM 1121.47 IE IN (E) 1114.47 IE IN (S) 1109.12  IE OUT (W) 1108.92 

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM MH RIM 1121.31 IE IN (NW) 1114.31 IE IN (W) 1112.31 IE IN (E) 1112.01 IE OUT (S) 1111.91

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM MH RIM 1121.77 IE IN (N) 1112.27 IE OUT (W) 1112.17

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" WHITE  STRIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN MH RIM 1122.74 IE IN (N) 1111.94 IE OUT (W) 1111.84

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACCORDINGLY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADJUST SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ORIGINAL DRAWING.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BAR IS ONE INCH ON

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS SHOWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISED BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSULTING ENGINEERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURRAN-McLEOD, INC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHONE (503) 684-3478

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORTLAND, OREGON 97223

AutoCAD SHX Text
6655 S.W. HAMPTON ST., SUITE 210

AutoCAD SHX Text
1747

AutoCAD SHX Text
APRIL 2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
OREGON

AutoCAD SHX Text
73539PE

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXPIRES: %%U 06/30/2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
J

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
,

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
P/N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D/B

AutoCAD SHX Text
D/S

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAD#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
P/N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D/B

AutoCAD SHX Text
D/S

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAD#

AutoCAD SHX Text
EPH

AutoCAD SHX Text
JST/JHH

AutoCAD SHX Text
1729-C1-C3

AutoCAD SHX Text
GARDEN RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
GARDEN RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
BAIN ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIVERVIEW ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
GARDEN RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLINE ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLINE ST



SE
E 

A
BO

V
E

SE
E 

BE
LO

W

OF

CITY OF OAKRIDGE
2021 STREET OVERLAY - BERRY STREET & GARDEN ROAD

OAKRIDGE
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

7
OF

D
IG

IT
A

L 
SI

G
N

A
TU

R
E C6

GARDEN ROAD
PROPOSED OVERLAY PLAN

1

. .

STA 0+00 - STA 3+50

GARDEN RD. - OVERLAY PLAN

SCALE: 1" = 20'

2

. .

STA 3+50 - STA 6+06

GARDEN RD. - OVERLAY PLAN

SCALE: 1" = 20'

LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
MB

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"MAPLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACCORDINGLY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADJUST SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ORIGINAL DRAWING.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BAR IS ONE INCH ON

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS SHOWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISED BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSULTING ENGINEERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURRAN-McLEOD, INC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHONE (503) 684-3478

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORTLAND, OREGON 97223

AutoCAD SHX Text
6655 S.W. HAMPTON ST., SUITE 210

AutoCAD SHX Text
1747

AutoCAD SHX Text
APRIL 2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
OREGON

AutoCAD SHX Text
73539PE

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXPIRES: %%U 06/30/2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
J

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
,

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
P/N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D/B

AutoCAD SHX Text
D/S

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAD#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
P/N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D/B

AutoCAD SHX Text
D/S

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAD#

AutoCAD SHX Text
EPH

AutoCAD SHX Text
JST/JHH

AutoCAD SHX Text
1729-C1-C3

AutoCAD SHX Text
STA 0+20, BEGIN STREET IMPROVEMENTS, SAW CUT TO MATCH EXISTING ASPHALT. SAW CUT TO MATCH EXISTING ASPHALT DRIVEWAY GRADE. PROTECT EXISTING DRYWELLS AND SANITARY MANHOLES. MAKE MINOR RIM ADJUSTMENTS AT FINISHED GRADE AS REQUIRED. STA 6+06, END STREET IMPROVEMENTS, SAW CUT TO MATCH EXISTING ASPHALT. INSTALL FABRIC ON EXISTING AC PAVEMENT. INSTALL 2" OVERLAY AS SHOWN ON PLANS AND MATCH EXISTING GRADES.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSTRUCTION NOTES:

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW 2" AC OVERLAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA NEW OVERLAY = 15,850 SF±

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
GARDEN RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
BAIN ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIVERVIEW ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
GARDEN RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAW CUT TO MATCH EX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAW CUT = 180 LF±

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLINE ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
5



OF

CITY OF OAKRIDGE
2021 STREET OVERLAY - BERRY STREET & GARDEN ROAD

OAKRIDGE
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

7
OF

D
IG

IT
A

L 
SI

G
N

A
TU

R
E C7

GARDEN ROAD CONSTRUCTION DETAILS

1

. .

STA 0+00 - STA 3+50

GARDEN RD. - STREET SECTION

SCALE: NTS

2

. .

STA 3+50 - STA 6+06

GARDEN RD. - STREET SECTION

SCALE: NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING DIRT SHOULDER

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING R-O-W

AutoCAD SHX Text
 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING R-O-W

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING DIRT SHOULDER

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLACE GEOTEXTILE FABRIC, TACK COAT. THEN PLACE 2" OF  " DENSE MIX OVERLAY 12" DENSE MIX OVERLAY ON ENTIRE TRAVEL LENGTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
2%%% SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2%%% SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING CURB WITH DIRT SHOULDER

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING R-O-W

AutoCAD SHX Text
 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING R-O-W

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING CURB WITH DIRT SHOULDER

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLACE GEOTEXTILE FABRIC, TACK COAT. THEN PLACE 2" OF  " DENSE MIX OVERLAY 12" DENSE MIX OVERLAY ON ENTIRE TRAVEL LENGTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
2%%% SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2%%% SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACCORDINGLY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADJUST SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ORIGINAL DRAWING.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BAR IS ONE INCH ON

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS SHOWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISED BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSULTING ENGINEERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURRAN-McLEOD, INC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHONE (503) 684-3478

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORTLAND, OREGON 97223

AutoCAD SHX Text
6655 S.W. HAMPTON ST., SUITE 210

AutoCAD SHX Text
1747

AutoCAD SHX Text
APRIL 2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
OREGON

AutoCAD SHX Text
73539PE

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXPIRES: %%U 06/30/2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
J

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
,

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
P/N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D/B

AutoCAD SHX Text
D/S

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAD#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
P/N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D/B

AutoCAD SHX Text
D/S

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAD#

AutoCAD SHX Text
EPH

AutoCAD SHX Text
JST/JHH

AutoCAD SHX Text
1729-C1-C3





   

 
 
 
 
                                          
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ISSUE: To place the recently procured speed feedback signs on OR-58, an intergovernmental 
agreement is required to define the terms of the agreement and the responsibilities of both 
parties.  
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: None. 
 
 
OPTIONS: (1) Approve the Intergovernmental Agreement. 
                   (2) Disapprove the Intergovernmental Agreement.   
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends option (1)  
 
 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION: I move we approve / disapprove the Intergovernmental Agreement 
with Oregon Department of Transportation concerning speed feedback signs.      
 

Business of the City Council 
City of Oakridge, Oregon 

June 3, 2021 
 

Agenda Title:  Speed Advisory Sign 
Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) 
between the City of Oakridge and Oregon 
Department of Transportation 

 

 

Proposed Council Action: A motion from 
the floor to approve. 

Agenda Item No: 10.5 
 
Exhibit: (1) IGA 
                
 
Agenda Bill Author: Bryan Cutchen 
City Administrator: Bryan Cutchen 























   

 
 
 
 
                                          
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ISSUE: The Cities of Eugene and Springfield, in partnership with Lane Transit District, are 
applying for funding for the Franklin Boulevard project through the Federal Rebuilding 
American Infrastructure with Sustainability and Equity (RAISE, formerly BUILD) grant program. 
 
They have asked for support from smaller city jurisdictions throughout Lane County. The letter 
of support, exhibit (1), includes Cottage Grove, Oakridge, Creswell, Veneta, and Florence as 
signatories. Exhibit (2) provides an overview of the project.  
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: None. 
 
 
OPTIONS: (1) Approve signing the letter of support. 
                   (2) Disapprove signing the letter of support.   
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends option (1).  
 
 
 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION: I move we approve / disapprove signing on to the letter of support 
for the RAISE application being submitted by Eugene-Springfield-LTD for Franklin Boulevard 
improvements.     
 

Business of the City Council 
City of Oakridge, Oregon 

June 3, 2021 
 

Agenda Title:  RAISE Application Letter of 
Support 
 

 

 

Proposed Council Action: A motion from 
the floor to approve. 

Agenda Item No: 10.6 
 
Exhibit: (1) Letter of Support 
               (2) Project Overview                  
 
Agenda Bill Author: Bryan Cutchen 
City Administrator: Bryan Cutchen 



   
 

   
 

Month Day, 2021 

Attn: Honorable Pete Buttigieg 
Secretary of Transportation 
US Department of Transportation 
1200 New Jersey Avenue SE 
Washington, DC 20590 
 

RE: Franklin Boulevard Project RAISE Application 

 

Secretary Buttigieg: 

On behalf of the Cities of Cottage Grove, Oakridge, Creswell, Veneta, and Florence in rural Lane 

County, Oregon, we urge you to fund the RAISE application from the Cities of Eugene and Springfield to 

reconstruct Franklin Boulevard. Investing in the Franklin Boulevard project will help support the 

economic vitality of smaller cities throughout Lane County, Oregon. All of the small cities throughout 

our region from the Oregon Coast to the Cascade Mountains are accessible to and from the Franklin 

Boulevard corridor by way of Oregon Highway Route 126 and U.S. Interstate 5.   

We eagerly await the benefits our surrounding rural areas will see from the economic prosperity made 

possible by the needed public investment in the Franklin Boulevard project. Many smaller cities 

throughout Lane County will benefit from the good paying jobs, educational opportunities, and 

regional services that have developed and will continue to develop along Franklin Boulevard. Some of 

our residents are contractors on infrastructure projects, which include privately and publicly funded 

developments underway and envisioned along Franklin Boulevard. People who work these critical jobs, 

students, and a notable proportion of other commuters in our cities, rely on transportation networks 

that function well to get them to the heart of the Eugene-Springfield metro area safely and on time. 

As the timber industry has evolved and harvesting decreased, smaller cities throughout rural Lane 

County are investing in tourism as a leading economic strategy and focusing on supporting small 

businesses to grow and be successful. Upgrades to Franklin Boulevard will further enhance access to 

Hayward Field and the Matt Knight Arena and build upon the region’s ability to host ever increasing 

nationally and internationally significant events, including the U.S. Olympic Track and Field Trials that 

typically draw tens of thousands of visitors daily. Tourists have the opportunity to visit smaller cities 

and explore our recreational offerings within an hour’s drive while enjoying local shops, breweries, 

wineries, and lodging.  

This corridor also provides access to Bushnell University, Lane Community College, the University of 

Oregon and UO’s Knight Science Campus.  Many rural students, faculty and residents benefit from 

these educational opportunities that enhance and enrich our region.  

Veneta is home to the Oregon Country Fair, which typically draws 45,000 attendees. Florence, 

Oregon’s Coastal Playground, hosts the Rhododendron Festival and sees bicycle tourists from around 

the globe pedaling the Pacific Coast. Local residents and recreational cyclists enjoy treats made from 

local ingredients at the Creswell Bakery, which truly embodies the city’s identity as “The Friendly City.” 



   
 

Oakridge is a year-round recreational paradise located in the foothills of the Cascade Mountains and is 

home to internationally renowned mountain bike trails. Oakridge is located at the start of the West 

Cascade National Scenic Byway. Cottage Grove is home to the Covered Bridges Scenic Bikeway, which 

features historic bridges along a 36-mile, family-friendly bike route. The iconic Willamette River that 

runs along Franklin Boulevard connects many of our rural Lane County communities with our shared 

interest in enhancing recreation and tourism while protecting our natural scenic resources. 

Our cities have already supported the initial phase of reconstructing Franklin Boulevard, which was 

completed in 2018, by prioritizing $6,000,000 in ODOT Enhance Program state funds and $625,000 in 

ODOT ConnectOregon lottery revenue funds through our roles on the Lane Area Commission on 

Transportation. Rural communities throughout the surrounding areas in Oregon will benefit from 

federal investments in the Franklin Boulevard project. Please consider our recommendation to support 

this transformative project and award a RAISE grant to the Eugene-Springfield, Oregon region.  

 

Sincerely, 

 

   

Jeff Gowing, Mayor  Kathy Holston, Mayor  Amy Knudsen, Mayor 

City of Cottage Grove  City of Oakridge   City of Creswell 

 

 

    

 

   

Keith Weiss, Mayor  Joe Henry, Mayor 

City of Veneta   City of Florence 

 

 



Franklin Boulevard Transformation
Catalyzing a corridor through innovation and investments

Eugene’s Central Connector

Addressing Needs to Support the Vision
A transformation is underway for Franklin Boulevard, a central gateway to both Eugene and Springfield, Oregon, 
the state’s second largest metro area. Franklin Boulevard provides access to significant redevelopment potential 
along its prime riverfront property in the heart of the metro area. The corridor functions as a major east-west 
arterial linking local markets by way of Springfield’s and Eugene’s downtowns and national markets by way of I-5; 
serving transit-oriented development; providing multi-modal access to higher education; and fronting the region’s 
largest, shovel-ready, shovel-worthy mixed-use and employment sites.

At its core, this project cares for our people by caring for our places through design solutions. Investment will 
transform a deteriorating highway into a modern, complete street, increase the number of people who can move 
through the corridor and improve safety for all modes of travel. This project will overcome Franklin’s crumbling 
condition as a barrier to travel and socioeconomic-related mobility. All who depend on Franklin Boulevard must 
be able to get to where they need to go in a reliable way—both safely and on time. Boosting economic recovery 
with publicly supported infrastructure that our residents and businesses rely on is as crucial as ever. The project’s 
climate-smart investments will ultimately result in an economically resilient, healthy place for years to come.

Contact Information 
Ethan Nelson, City of Eugene, 541-682-524, enelson@eugene-or.gov
Niel Laudati, City of Springfield, 541-221-3686, nlaudati@springfield-or.gov  
Tom Boyatt, City of Springfield, 541-556-0187, tboyatt@springfield-or.gov 
Catherine Beal, Smith Dawson & Andrews, 202-835-0740, catherineb@sda-inc.com 
Brett Garson, Smith Dawson & Andrews, 202-835-0740, brettg@sda-inc.com

Phase 1 Completed $14,000,000 
Phase 2
Local Funding Sources $8,700,000 
Remaining Need for Phase 2 $34,800,000 
TOTAL for Phase 2 $43,500,000 
Remaining Phase(s) After Phase 2
Local Funding Sources* $2,800,000
Remaining Need to Complete Project $55,840,000
TOTAL for Remaining Phase(s) $58,640,000

TOTAL Project $116,140,000 

Project Status
Franklin Boulevard Phase 1 improvements in the Glenwood area of Springfield were completed within budget 
and four months ahead of schedule. The entire length of Franklin Boulevard east of I-5 has an approved  
Categorical Exclusion under the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA), and final design is underway for  
Phase 2. West of I-5, the project has a preferred solution determined with NEPA documentation underway.

Capital Funding Plan
With at least $11,500,000 secured from local and State sources, the Cities of Eugene and Springfield are looking 
to close the final funding gap through Federal funding. 

Eugene’s certification as a Local Public Agency by the Oregon Department of Transportation and Springfield’s 
progress toward this certification informs these numbers and will streamline the delivery of local Federal  
Highway Administration projects. The Cities of Eugene and Springfield are committed to equity in contracting and 
have met the Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) goal of 3% for all work completed on the project to date 
and will continue to do so in the future. 

*Currently working to identify additional local sources for remaining phases



Investing in Our Workforce & Community Assets 
Franklin Boulevard sits in a prime location to complement and enhance context-sensitive 
redevelopment. It links several Urban Renewal districts, directly traverses two Opportunity 
Zones and is anchored by two more, which total nearly eight square miles. These economic 
development tools and redesign of the corridor will spur job creation and opportunities for those 
16,000 people who live and work in the three Opportunity Zones. Several large-scale projects 
over the past decade along or near Franklin Boulevard, estimated at more than half a billion 
dollars, have spurred jobs, opened homes, and activated the edges of the street. By building 
a safer, multi-modal, more accessible street, investors can continue to grow the area with 
confidence and complement the successes of other projects that have been completed,  
are underway, or are planned.

• 959 and 2125 Franklin Housing Complexes

• Phil and Penny Knight Campus for Accelerating Scientific Impact

• Hayward Field

• Tru by Hilton, Fairfield Inn and Suites by Marriott, and Candlewood Suites Hotels

• Romania Building (planned public-private partnership)

Downtown Eugene  
Opportunity Zone

Glenwood 
Opportunity Zone

Knight Campus at the 
University of Oregon

Traffic Innovations

EmX Expansion

Hayward Field at the 
University of Oregon

Hilton, Marriott and 
Candlewood Hotels

Romania Building

E U G E N E

S P R I N G F I E L D

Glenwood Indoor 
Track and Event Center

FR ANKLIN BOULEVARD FR ANKLIN BOULEVARD 

Riverfront Opportunity Zone

Thoughtful Innovations in Design & 
Transit Technology
Franklin Boulevard continues to transform into the most innovative 
corridor in the Eugene-Springfield metro area, from the Phil and Penny 
Knight Campus for Accelerating Scientific Impact which is creating 
STEM jobs for our communities; to bus rapid transit (BRT) connecting 
Eugene’s and Springfield’s downtowns; to innovative urban street 
design throughout the corridor, a portion of which has already been 
constructed in Springfield to improve street performance. Modern 
upgrades will increase the safety and traffic flow of intersections 
(including reducing idling or wait times) for people walking, riding  
the bus, biking or driving.

Lane Transit District’s (LTD’s) BRT system, the Emerald Express (EmX), 
uses innovative traveler information systems including real time 
schedule/arrival information for passengers at stations. EmX is the 
backbone of LTD’s system and has reached capacity at 13,000 riders a 
day. A portion of the project will double-track the EmX route, which will 
ensure our transit system will function to its full potential and capacity. 
Signals at intersections will also be timed to prioritize transit.

Downtown Springfield
Opportunity Zone

Completed Franklin 
Boulevard Phase 1

99

126

Equity & Climate
A transformed Franklin Boulevard will improve the quality of life for residents of the  
Eugene-Springfield area and surrounding rural communities, while implementing  
policies and actions from the Cities’ transportation system plans, long-range land use plans, and the  
Climate Action Plan—including a goal to triple the percentage of trips made on foot, by bicycle, and by transit. 
Converting four-lane signalized intersections to two-lane roundabouts allows for the reallocation of space to 
include separated bicycle and pedestrian facilities and an additional lane for bus rapid transit (BRT), increasing 
its frequency of service. Facilitating a shift to active transportation and reducing intersection idling times will 
reduce air pollution by reducing fossil fuel use and emissions.

By increasing transportation choices for those who need them most, this project will provide more lifestyle 
and economic freedom. Choices will increase access to goods, services, and the education and employment 
opportunities that are tied with socioeconomic mobility. 

Transportation is the second highest household cost in the area behind housing. Reducing transportation 
costs and personal automobile dependency, especially for low- and moderate-income families, will free 
up income for housing and other essential living expenses, provide affordable access to jobs, and offer 
convenience to services in nearby mixed-use areas. Properties along the corridor fall within a half-mile walking 
distance of the BRT system, and once the road is reconstructed will connect to the regional bicycle network, 
creating more affordable transportation options in the corridor. 

I-5



   

 
 
 
 
                                          
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ISSUE: The city council approved an alcohol permit for the Gravel Grinders organization on April 
15, 2021 for an event being held June 24, 2021. They are renting the entire Greenwaters Park. 
The event organizer desires to stay an additional day and would like to extend their alcohol 
permit to cover the 25th of June.  
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: An additional $1,000 of rental revenue. 
 
 
OPTIONS: (1) Approve the alcohol permit extension. 
                   (2) Disapprove the alcohol permit extension.   
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends option (1).  
 
 
 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION: I move we approve / disapprove extending the alcohol permit for 
the Gravel Grinder event to include June 25, 2021.     
 

Business of the City Council 
City of Oakridge, Oregon 

June 3, 2021 
 

Agenda Title:  Greenwaters Park Alcohol 
Permit Extension Request 
 

 

 

Proposed Council Action: A motion from 
the floor to approve. 

Agenda Item No: 10.7 
 
Exhibit: (1) Original Permit Request 
                              
 
Agenda Bill Author: Bryan Cutchen 
City Administrator: Bryan Cutchen 



05/03/2021









   

 
 
 
 
                                          
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ISSUE: The city contract for dispatch services for police, fire and public works expires on June 
30, 2021. Lane County has submitted a contract for renewal. The contract term has been 
extended to two years. There is a cost adjustment of 3% each year.   
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: $248,442.40. 
 
 
OPTIONS: (1) Approve the Lane County Contract for dispatch services. 
                   (2) Disapprove the Lane County Contract for dispatch services.   
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends option (1).  
 
 
 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION: I move we approve / disapprove the Lane County contract for 
dispatch services for fiscal years 2022 and 2023.      
 

Business of the City Council 
City of Oakridge, Oregon 

June 3, 2021 
 

Agenda Title:  Lane County Dispatch FY22-
23 Dispatch Contract Approval 
 

 

 

Proposed Council Action: A motion from 
the floor to approve. 

Agenda Item No: 10.8 
 
Exhibit: (1) Dispatch Contract 
                              
 
Agenda Bill Author: Bryan Cutchen 
City Administrator: Bryan Cutchen 



 
LC Contract Form A-2, Intergovernmental Agreement, rev. 12/01/2020 1 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (IGA) (LC Contract Form A-2, 2021) 

DISPATCHING SERVICES TO CITY OF OAKRIDGE POLICE, FIRE, AND EMS 

This Agreement is entered into by and between Lane County, a political subdivision of the State of Oregon 
(“County”), on behalf of the Lane County Sheriff’s Office, and City of Oakridge (“City”), on behalf of 
Oakridge Police, Fire and EMS, an Oregon unit of local government, each a “party,” and referred to 
collectively in this Agreement as "the parties.” County and City agree as follows: 

1. RECITALS 
1.1 ORS 190.010 and the Lane County Home Rule Charter provide that units of local government 

may enter into agreements for the performance of any or all functions and activities that a party 
to the agreements, its officers, or agents, have authority to perform. 

1.2 City desires to continue the partnership with County for Dispatch Services for Oakridge Police, 
Fire, and EMS. 

1.3 County is willing to provide Dispatch Services to City. 
1.4 Parties to this Agreement must perform the Work in a manner consistent with the offers and 

statements in Exhibits A and B.  

2. SCOPE OF AGREEMENT 
2.1 County will: 

2.1.1 provide dispatching services to City’s Police, Fire, and EMS services, and dispatch 
services to Oakridge and Westfir Public Works after business hours, as described in 
Exhibit A 

2.1.2 assume administrative functions for court warrants, as described in Exhibit A 
2.1.3 provide access to designated staff for certain systems and software, as described in 

Exhibit A 
2.1.4 provide initial training as necessary for software programs and other systems, as 

described in Exhibit A. 
2.2 City will: 

2.2.1 work within County’s guidelines to assure officer safety, as described in Exhibit B.   
2.2.2 acquire, maintain, repair, and be responsible for licensing, radio equipment, technician 

work and transmissions, as described in Exhibit B. 
2.2.3 communicate with County on all levels of coverage and functions associated with 

administrative, technical, and security, as described in Exhibit B.   
2.2.4 follow County’s policies regarding computer usage and access, as stated in Attachments 

1 and 2. 

3. DOCUMENTS FORMING THE AGREEMENT 
3.1 The Agreement. The Agreement consists of this document and all exhibits and attachments   

listed below, which are incorporated into this Agreement by this reference. 
3.2 Exhibits and Attachments. With this document, the following exhibits and attachments are 

incorporated into the Agreement: 
• Exhibit A   County Scope of Work 
• Exhibit B   City Scope of Work 
• Attachment 1   Third Party Remote Access Agreement Requirements 
• Attachment 2   Lane County Administrative Procedures Manual (“APM”) 

4. CONSIDERATION AND PAYMENT 
4.1 County’s Payment Obligations.  County will: 

4.1.1 invoice City quarterly for payments, with statements sent at the end of September, 
December, March and June each year. 

4.1.2 allow thirty (30) days for payments after invoicing. 
4.1.3 increase annual payments by three percent (3%) each new year, as of July 1st. 



 
LC Contract Form A-2, Intergovernmental Agreement, rev. 12/01/2020 2 

 
4.2 City’s Payment Obligations.  City will: 

4.2.1    agree to pay an amount of One Hundred Twenty-Two Thousand Three Hundred 
    Eighty-Five Dollars and Forty-Two Cents ($122,385.42) the initial year July 1, 2021 to 

June 30, 2022.  
4.2.2    agree to pay an amount of One Hundred Twenty-Six Thousand Fifty-Six Dollars and   
    Ninety-Eight Cents ($126,056.98) for dispatch services July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2023. 
4.2.3    pay within thirty (30) days upon receipt of County’s quarterly invoices, as described in  
    Section 4(4.1, 4.1.1).     
 

5. EFFECTIVE DATE AND DURATION 
5.1 Effective Date. Upon the signature of all parties, this Agreement is effective July 1, 2021. 
5.2 Duration. Unless extended or terminated earlier in accordance with its terms, this Agreement 

will continue for a two-year term, and will terminate June 30, 2023. However, such expiration 
shall not extinguish or prejudice either party's right to enforce this Agreement with respect to 
any breach or default in performance which has not been cured. 

6. AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES AND NOTICE. Each of the parties designates the following 
individuals as its authorized representative for administration of this Agreement. Either party may 
designate a new authorized representative by written notice to the other.    
   
6.1   County's Authorized Representative.           6.2  Agency's Authorized Representative.  
        Jonna Hill, Support Services Manager                    Bryan Cutchen, City Administrator 
        125 E 8th Avenue          76435 Ash Street 
        Eugene, OR  97401                       Oakridge, OR  97463 
        Phone: 541-682-6689                       Phone: 541-782-2258 

                Email: jonna.hill@lanecountyor.gov                     Email: cityadministrator@ci.oakridge.or.us  
 

Any notice, demand, consent, approval, or other communication to be given under this Agreement must 
be in writing and provided by email addressed to the party’s authorized representative, except as 
provided below in this section. However, if, in either party’s discretion, email is not the most 
appropriate method for providing notice, then notice may be provided by personal delivery; certified 
mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested; or nationally recognized overnight courier. The 
effective date of notice shall be: for notice by email, the date and time sent if sent between the hours of 
8 am and 5 pm, otherwise effective at 8am the following Business Day; for notice delivered in person, 
the date and time of delivery; for notice by U.S. mail, three days after the date of certification; and for 
notice by overnight courier, the next business day after deposit with the courier. If no representative is 
identified in this section, notice may be given to the person executing the Agreement on behalf of that 
party below. 

7. SPECIAL CONDITIONS 
7.1 Compliance with Coronavirus Guidelines, Laws, Rules, and Orders. The novel coronavirus 

(“COVID-19”) has been declared a worldwide pandemic by the World Health Organization. 
COVID-19 is extremely contagious and believed to spread mainly from person-to-person 
contact. Each of the parties is and must remain familiar with the Centers for Disease Control 
Prevention guidelines and with federal, state, and local laws, rules, and orders regarding COVID-
19 throughout the term of this Agreement. Each of the parties acknowledges that it understands 
the circumstances regarding COVID-19, and in carrying out its obligations under this 
Agreement, each will take all necessary precautions, including those set out in the guidelines, 
laws, rules and orders described in this paragraph. The parties agree that they have anticipated 
the costs of compliance with the present guidelines, rules, laws, and orders in establishing their 
obligations under this Agreement, and that no claim will be made by either party for such 

mailto:jonna.hill@lanecountyor.gov


 
LC Contract Form A-2, Intergovernmental Agreement, rev. 12/01/2020 3 

compliance. However, in the event that after the effective date of this Agreement the referenced 
COVID-19 guidelines, laws, rules, and orders are changed in such a way as to adversely affect 
the parties’ carrying out of their obligations under this Agreement, either party so affected must 
give notice to the other party of any potential need to modify the Agreement to accommodate or 
respond to such changes in the guidelines, laws, rules, and orders. 

8. INDEMNIFICATION. To the extent permitted by the Oregon Constitution, and to the extent 
permitted by the Oregon Tort Claims Act, each party agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless 
the other party and its officers, employees, and agents from and against all damages, losses and 
expenses, including but not limited to attorney fees and costs related to litigation, and to defend all 
claims, proceedings, lawsuits, and judgments arising out of or resulting from the indemnifying party’s 
negligence in the performance of or failure to perform under this Agreement. 

9. PUBLIC BODY STATUS. In providing the services specified in this Agreement (and any associated 
services) both parties are public bodies and maintain their public body status as specified in ORS 
30.260.  Both parties understand and acknowledge that each retains all immunities and privileges 
granted them by the Oregon Tort Claims Act (ORS 30.260 through 30.295) and any and all other 
statutory rights granted as a result of their status as local public bodies. 

10. MODIFICATION AND TERMINATION. 
10.1 Modification. No modification or amendment to this Agreement will bind either party unless in 

writing and signed by both parties. 
10.2 Termination. The parties may jointly agree to terminate this Agreement at any time by written 

agreement. 
10.3 Non-Appropriation. Each of the parties certifies that it has sufficient funds currently authorized 

for expenditure to finance the costs of this Agreement for the period within the current budget; 
however, the parties understand and agree that, if a party does not appropriate funds for the next 
succeeding fiscal year to continue payments otherwise required by the Agreement, this 
Agreement will terminate at the end of the last fiscal year for which payments have been 
appropriated. The non-appropriating party will notify the other party of such non-appropriation 
not later than 30 days before the beginning of the year within which funds are not appropriated. 
Upon termination pursuant to this clause, neither party will have a further obligation for 
payments beyond the termination date. 

11. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
11.1 Disputes. The parties are required to exert every effort to cooperatively resolve any 

disagreements that may arise under this Agreement. This may be done at any management level, 
including at a level higher than the persons directly responsible for administration of the 
Agreement. In the event that the parties alone are unable to resolve any conflict under this 
Agreement, they are encouraged to resolve their differences through mediation or other 
cooperative dispute resolution process. 

11.2 Waiver. Failure of either party to enforce any provision of the Agreement does not constitute a 
waiver or relinquishment by the party of the right to such performance in the future nor of the 
right to enforce that or any other provision of this Agreement. 

11.3 Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is declared by a court to be illegal or in conflict 
with any law, the validity of the remaining terms and provisions are not affected; and the rights 
and obligations of the parties are to be construed and enforced as if the Agreement did not contain 
the particular provision held to be invalid. 

11.4 Governing Law, Forum, and Venue. All matters in dispute between the parties to this 
Agreement arising from or relating to the Agreement, including without limitation alleged tort 
or violation, are governed by, construed, and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State 
of Oregon without regard to principles of conflict of laws. This section does not constitute a 
waiver by County of any form of defense or immunity, whether governmental immunity or 
otherwise, from any claim or from the jurisdiction of any court. All disputes and litigation arising 



 
LC Contract Form A-2, Intergovernmental Agreement, rev. 12/01/2020 4 

out of this Agreement will be decided by the state or federal courts of Oregon. Venue for all 
disputes and litigation will be in Lane County, Oregon. 

11.5 Time is of the Essence. The parties agree that time is of the essence with respect to all provisions 
of this Agreement. 

11.6 No Third-Party Beneficiaries. County and City are the only parties to this Agreement and are 
the only parties entitled to enforce its terms. Nothing in this Agreement gives or may be 
construed to give or provide any benefit or right to third persons, either directly or indirectly,  
that is greater than the rights and benefits enjoyed by the general public, unless that party is 
identified by name in this Agreement. 

11.7 Headings. The headings and captions in this Agreement are for reference and identification 
purposes only and may not be used to construe the meaning or to interpret the Agreement. 

11.8 Force Majeure. Neither party will be held responsible for delay or default due to force majeure 
acts, events, or occurrences, including but not limited to fires, riots, wars, and epidemics, unless 
such delay or default could have been avoided by the exercise of reasonable care, prudence, 
foresight, and diligence by that party. 

11.9 Multiple Counterparts. This Agreement and any subsequent amendments may be executed in 
several counterparts, facsimile or otherwise, all of which when taken together will constitute one 
agreement binding on all parties, notwithstanding that all parties are not signatories to the same 
counterpart. Each copy of this Agreement and any amendments so executed will constitute an 
original. 

11.10 Merger. This Agreement contains the entire agreement of County and City with respect to the 
subject matter of this Agreement, and supersedes all prior negotiations, agreements and 
understandings. 

11.11 Compliance with Law, ADA. County and Agency agree to comply with all federal, state and 
local laws applicable to the parties or the subject matter of this Agreement. During the 
performance of this Agreement, the parties will comply with all applicable provisions of the 
Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, 42 USC Section 12101 et seq., and Section 504 of the 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
LC Contract Form A-2, Intergovernmental Agreement, rev. 12/01/2020 5 

SIGNATURE PAGE: 
 
EACH PARTY, BY EXECUTION OF THIS AGREEMENT, HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGES THAT 
IT HAS READ THIS AGREEMENT, UNDERSTANDS IT, AND AGREES TO BE BOUND BY ITS 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS. 
 
CITY:  COUNTY: 
 
CITY OF OAKRIDGE LANE COUNTY 
 
 
 
By:    By:    
           Steve Mokrohisky 
 
Title:    Title:  Administrator  
 
Date:    Date:    
 
Address:  Lane County, Public Service Building 
  125 E. 8th Avenue 
  Eugene, Oregon 97401 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
By: _________________________________             By: _______________________________ 
                       Clifton G. Harrold 
 
Title: ________________________________            Title: Sheriff_________________________ 
 
 
Date: ________________________________            Date: _______________________________ 



 
 

 EXHIBIT A – COUNTY SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 

Lane County, on Behalf of the Sheriff’s Office (“County”) 
City of Oakridge, on behalf of the Police, Fire, and EMS (“City”) 

 
County will be responsible for the following services: 

1. Dispatch Calls for Services in mutually agreed upon coverage area for City.  

2. Dispatch Oakridge and Westfir Public Works after business hours for emergency call-outs. 

3. Answer incoming administrative phone lines for City from 5:00 p.m. to 8:00 a.m., Monday through Thursday, 
all day Friday, Saturday and Sunday, and all major holidays. City staff will answer and respond to incoming 
administrative lines during regular business hours.  

4. Answer incoming administrative phone lines for City 24 hours a day upon request. Depending upon 
availability of County staff, eighty (80) hours of coverage will be provided as part of the contract. Beyond the 
80-hour limit, there will be an additional hourly rate of Sixty-Nine Dollars and Thirty-Five Cents ($69.35) for 
administrative phone line coverage. 

5. Acquire and maintain all necessary Department of Public Safety Standards and Training (“DPSST”) 
certifications for emergency call taking and emergency medical dispatching.   

6. Confirm and locate warrants for City officers at time of contact to include teletypes and all required 
documentation.  

7. Provide administrative pages for City, such as staff requests and training announcements. 

8. Handle after-hours administrative message functions on behalf of City, to include providing calls-for-service 
information upon request.  

9. County Jail Records assumes all administrative functions for all City warrants from all courts. This function 
will include data entry, confirmation, and clearance/cancellation responsibilities. All necessary paperwork 
will be forwarded back to the appropriate court by County Jail Records on behalf of City. This administrative 
function is completely related to the warrant itself and the handling of the warrant. Any investigative 
questions or any liability that arises from the issuance of City warrants shall remain the responsibility of City. 
All Law Enforcement Data Systems (“LEDS”) warrant entries will be done under County’s Originating 
Agency Identification Number (“ORI”) assigned to County Jail Records (ORO20013C).  County also 
assumes LEDS validation functions for City warrants. 

10. County has provided Remote Access CAD to designated City supervisory staff to check call and officer 
activity.  This access is internet/web portal based and is being provided to City on city-owned computer 
assets.  Other than to maintain the web portal, authorize permissions and troubleshoot portal access issues, 
County is not responsible for any equipment or equipment maintenance costs associated with this access. 
County reserves the right to terminate this arrangement should any security issues be articulated by County’s 
CAD vendor and/or Lane County Technology Services.  City is also responsible for assuring the computer 
remotely accessing County CAD is in a Criminal Justice Information System (“CJIS”)-secure environment 
and that the computer hosting Remote Access CAD is in no way visible or accessible to the public.  County 
reserves the right to do a site inspection to verify these circumstances for CJIS compliance and/or auditing 
purposes. 

 
 
 
 



         EXHIBIT B – CITY SCOPE OF WORK 
 

Lane County, on Behalf of the Sheriff’s Office (“County”) 
City of Oakridge, on Behalf of the Police, Fire, and EMS (“City”) 

 
City of Oakridge is responsible for the following: 

Responsibility in three primary areas:   

A. Officer Safety 
B. Radio/Technical Specifications 
C. Required Communication 

A. OFFICER SAFETY: 

1. Exclusively appoint the County’s Dispatch to handle all City calls for service and communicate calls for 
service to their responders.  

2. Immediately notify County Dispatch by phone if City routes any officer(s) to a call for service or response to 
a specific location.   

 
B. RADIO/TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS: 

1. Acquire all proper Federal Communications Commission (“FCC”) licensing. At no time will County be 
responsible for any failure to maintain FCC compliance. 

2. Should City institute any frequency or transmission change without providing a minimum of seventy-two (72) 
hours weekday notice and County is required to callout their Radio Technician to accommodate this change, 
City will reimburse County for all overtime costs associated with that callout.  This notice is necessary to 
ensure that the change does not negatively impact County’s ability to receive or transmit.  

3. Maintain radios in working condition. In the event of an after-hour radio repair callout necessitated by 
transmission/reception problems between City units and County dispatch, County has authority to call the 
following resources in the following order for any needed repairs.  It is the responsibility of City to ensure the 
most updated information is available.  If the first choice (A) is not available, the second choice (B) will be 
contacted, then choice (C):  

A. Daniel Plata – Volunteer Oakridge Radio Technician 
Phone: 541-968-8952 
Email: coyote.comm@hotmail.com                      

  
B. County Radio Technician, if available or County’s after-hours Radio Technician Contractor. In the 

event the County Radio Technician and or the County contractor respond to a call out the hourly 
contract rates will apply for the services provided. Note that the County Radio Technician’s ability to 
respond is limited due to regularly scheduled duties.  

C. Day Wireless 

When County calls the above resources on behalf of City, then City will be responsible for all charges related 
to such repairs.  
 

4. In order to provide a backup for local channel failure, County will give City access to the Oakridge 
conventional/legacy radio channels – 1E/2E/SAR Yellow.   In the event of an emergency or special operation, 
City must vacate County’s conventional channels immediately upon request by County.  In such a case, City 
will revert to their local radio system. 



5. County bears no responsibility for costs incurred by City for contracting for vendor services without 
consulting County regarding compatibility and connectivity to County systems. 

C. REQUIRED COMMUNICATION  

1. Provide no less than a seventy-two (72) hour advance notice for administrative phone line coverage pertaining 
to all anticipated events (i.e. vacations, training, seminars, etc.) – this advance notice excludes unanticipated 
events (i.e. sick time, emergency matters, etc.). 
 

2. Notify County within forty-eight (48) hours of staff changes relating to the City Administrator, Chief of 
Police, and/or Fire Chief (i.e. dismissal, resignation, termination, etc.). If there is a staff replacement, 
replacement contact information must be provided to County within the specific time frame. 
 

3. City must notify County immediately of any policy or procedural change that would affect the way County 
handles their dispatch responsibilities.   An example for City PD would be a change in response 
protocols.  An example for City Fire would be the initiation or change in a mutual aid agreement. Failure to 
make notification within eight (8) hours including weekends of any such change will absolve County of any 
liability for not adhering to the involved protocol change. 
 

4. Pursuant to the Criminal Justice Information Services (“CJIS”) Security Policy, City must immediately notify 
County when an officer terminates, their computer access becomes revoked, or City becomes aware of a CJIS 
violation. County reserves the right to terminate provision of CJIS information without notice if County is 
aware of any such breach. All City personnel must be appropriately LEDS and or CJIS trained and certified.  
Should the clearance or certification status of any City staff member be deactivated and/or suspended, City 
will immediately notify the County Support Services Manager, or in their absence, the Dispatch Supervisor.  

 

D.  COMPUTER CONNECTIONS/REMOTE ACCESS/SECURITY REQUIREMENTS 

1. It is the policy of  County that all third parties, such as City personnel, who are given access to County’s 
computer network, which includes access to County’s Remote Access Computer Aided Dispatch (“CAD”), 
must agree to follow Lane County’s Administrative Procedures Manual (“APM”) Computer Use Policy 
(APM, Chapter 1/Section 22).  Any third party must also be able to demonstrate compliance with the related 
County policies.  This includes staying current on all patches on equipment being used for remote access to 
County’s Remote Access CAD.  Additionally, City will be subject to password management auditing, user 
access auditing or other auditing as could be required for a CJIS or other regulatory audit.  

 
2. No personally-owned equipment will be used to access County’s Remote Access CAD.  All equipment used 

for that purpose must be the property of City. 
 

3. City supervisory staff accessing County Remote Access CAD will be required to sign Lane County 
Technology Service’s Third Party Requirements/User Acknowledgement form.  City staff using remote 
access will also acknowledge receipt of Lane County Administrative Procedures Manual/Chapter 1, Section 
22 – Use of County Computer and Communication Resources.  This document is being provided solely as it 
applies to City’s remote access to the County network for purposes of accessing Remote Access CAD.  It in 
no way applies to any other aspect of City’s business. 

 
4.    City will be responsible for all upkeep, maintenance, and troubleshooting that is required due solely to city- 
       owned equipment or internet connection issues. 



Attachment 1 

 

Third Party Remote Access Agreement Requirements for Lane County Sheriff’s Office (“LCSO”) 
Remote Access CAD: 

 

1. Secure remote access must be strictly controlled.  Control will be enforced via password 
authentication. 

 
2. At no time should any Oakridge Police Department user share his/her login with anyone. 

 
3. Non-standard hardware configurations on devices accessing the Lane County network via LCSO 

Remote Access CAD must be declared and approved by Lane County. 
 

4. All hosts that are connected to Lane County internal networks via remote access technologies 
must use the most up-to-date anti-virus software and be on current operating versions. 

 

I understand that this access and the work being conducted may be audited by Lane County or by a 
regulatory agency. 

I agree to abide by the terms of this remote access user agreement and acknowledge receipt of the Lane 
County APM, Chapter 1, Section 22, Use of County Computers and Communication Resources. 

 

 

Printed Name: _______________________________________________ 

 

Signature: __________________________________________________    Date: __________________ 

 



Chapter 1 
Section 22 

Chapter1Section22Issue6.docx 1 of 14 

ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURES 
MANUAL 

Chapter 1 
Section   22 
Issue 6 Date  12/18/2016 

SUBJECT:  USE OF COUNTY COMPUTER AND COMMUNICATION RESOURCES 

I. Purpose

The purpose of this procedure is to ensure that access to County Computer and
Communication Resources within Lane County is used appropriately and the use is
consistent with Oregon Public Records and Government Standards and Practices law,
Federal, State and Local Regulatory Compliance Requirements and to establish rules
governing such use of County Computer and Communication Resources.  The primary
objectives are to meet the County’s performance goals; to maintain the organization’s
credibility with our clients, the public, and to protect the integrity of the County’s
Computer and Communication Resources. Lane County reserves the right to review any
data, files, or communications created, sent, accessed, stored, or received on its
Computer and Communication Resources.

II. Scope

This procedure is applicable to all County departments and is administered in
accordance with the authority delegated to the County Administrator in Lane Code
2.110(4) (f) and Lane Manual 4.220.  Where any section, subsection, sentence, clause
or phrase of this procedure is found to conflict with both properly negotiated and
ratified collective bargaining unit contracts or with any state or federal law or
administrative rule, the terms of such contracts, laws, or rules prevail.  Exceptions will
take effect upon written approval of the County Administrator.  Individual Department
Directors may establish more strict procedures for their respective departments.

III. Amendment

This procedure may be amended by the County Administrator.

IV. Definitions

The following definitions apply throughout this procedure whether or not the terms are
capitalized.

County Computer and Communication Resources (“Communication Resources”):  All
forms of information technology that are acquired, purchased, leased, or licensed by

Attachment 2



Chapter 1 
Section 22 
 

Chapter1Section22Issue6.docx 2 of 14 

Lane County; accessed on or from Lane County's premises; accessed using County 
computer or communication equipment, or County-paid access methods; or used in a 
manner that identifies the individual with Lane County.  This includes, but is not 
limited to, e-mail, Internet, Intranet, County computer hardware and software, County 
wired and wireless Personal mobile devices such as, tablets computers, cellular 
telephones, and other wireless voice or data devices.  This definition does not include 
personal use of a personal computer communication device when connected to the 
public wireless network or when used as a stand-alone device. 
   
County Equipment:  All computers, laptops, desk phones, cellular phones, tablets, 
iPads, radios, etc. owned by Lane County and is used by employees in the course of 
County work. 
 
Data: Information in a form suitable for processing by a computer, such as the digital 
representation of text, numbers, graphic images, or sounds.  
 
Download:  To copy data (usually an entire file) from one location to another.  The 
term is often used to describe the process of copying a file from the Internet to one's 
own computer. 
 
E-Mail:  The transmission of text messages, memos, and reports from one email 
address to another. 

 
Internet:  The Internet is a global system of interconnected computer networks that use 
the standard Internet Protocol.  It is a network of networks that consists of millions of 
private, public, academic, business, and government networks, of local to global scope. 
 
Intranet:  An intranet is a computer network that use Internet Protocol technology to 
share information, operational systems, or computing services within an organization.  
The term is used in contrast to internet, a network between organizations, and instead 
refers to a network within an organization. 
 
Jailbreaking: To gain access to the operating system of (a smartphone, tablet, etc., 
especially an Apple device), usually in order to run modified or unauthorized software. 
 
User Account:  A network access account established for general access purposes, such 
as file permissions, timecards and email. 
 
Wired Telephones: Lane County’s telephone system, currently a land-line based 
system. 
 
Wireless Telephones:  Cellular telephones. 
 
Wi-Fi Enabled Devices: Wi-Fi is a popular technology that allows an electronic device 
to exchange data wirelessly (using radio waves) over a computer network, including 
high-speed Internet connections. 



Chapter 1 
Section 22 
 

Chapter1Section22Issue6.docx 3 of 14 

 
V. Ownership and Public Records. Communication Resources are provided and may be 

used only in the furtherance and conduct of County business. 
 

A. Public Records 
 
1. Except as provided by the Oregon Public Records Law exemptions, and unless 

otherwise specified, all software programs, documents, and data generated by 
or residing on the Communication Resources or generated by County 
employees or others at the direction of the County, and all Communication 
Resources are County property and public records.  

 
2. Employees should not expect personal privacy with respect to any of their 

activities using Communication Resources.  Under Oregon's Public Records 
law, there is no absolute right to privacy for any public record, which includes 
e-mail and other data; in fact, all County records are public records subject to 
limited confidentiality and disclosure exceptions. 

 
3. Subject to certain state or federal confidentiality laws, the County reserves the 

right to access and disclose without prior notice any data stored on 
Communication Resources, including but not limited to removable flash or 
external storage devices, or created storage media.  

 
4. Within limited exceptions under certain state or federal confidentiality laws, 

any data or telephone records may be accessed and reviewed at any time 
without prior notice by the Department Director, the County Administrator, 
the Information Services Director, County Counsel, or County Human 
Resources Manager.  Data or records may also be accessed and reviewed by 
Information Services or other assigned support staff in their role of providing 
support services.   
 

5. Retention of data.  Since County data is public record, it is subject to the same 
retention requirements as hard copy documents.  Data must be retained even if 
it is confidential, privileged, or otherwise exempt from disclosure under the 
Public Records Law unless state or federal law specifies otherwise.  
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_100/oar_166/166_300.htmlhttp://
arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_100/oar_166/166_300.html.The 
retention and disposition of public records is authorized by retention schedules 
issued by the Secretary of State Archives Division.  
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_100/oar_166/166_300.html 
Records may be retained either in hard copy or electronic format.  If a hard 
copy of the electronic data is printed, then the electronic version may be 
deleted.  One version must be kept according to the applicable retention 
schedule.  Questions about retention of electronic data (or other public 
records) should be directed first to the Department Director, then, if necessary 
to County Counsel. 

http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_100/oar_166/166_300.htmlhttp:/arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_100/oar_166/166_300.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_100/oar_166/166_300.htmlhttp:/arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_100/oar_166/166_300.html
http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_100/oar_166/166_300.html


Chapter 1 
Section 22 
 

Chapter1Section22Issue6.docx 4 of 14 

 
B. Exceptions to records requests 

 
1. The County may exercise any applicable privileges and objections to a public 

records or discovery request made for any County data contained in the 
Communication Resources or otherwise created or utilized in the furtherance 
of County business. 
 

2. An employee who wants the County to assert a privilege or objection under the 
Public Records law with respect to County data must notify the Department 
Director who will consult with County Counsel about the request.   

 
 
    
VI.  Guidelines.  The following guidelines are designed to assist employees in their use of 

Communication Resources.  
 

A. Communication Resources should be used as a tool for County business purposes.  
They are not to be used for personal pursuits while at work, unless permitted 
under Section VII.  

 
B. Users should not expect privacy; they should observe courtesy and good security 

practices.  There are a variety of ways data can be disclosed to people other than 
the intended recipient, including as a result of unauthorized access.  The intended 
recipient of data or voice communication can forward information to a third party 
without the creator’s knowledge; data communications sometimes are misdirected 
or disclosed to third parties due to human or system error.  Data can be disclosed 
in the course of maintaining the Communication Resources. 

 
C. E-mail may only be used in the conduct of county business except as allowed for 

personal use as defined in section VII. C. below.  If an employee receives an 
inappropriate e-mail, he or she should take appropriate steps to inform the sender 
to not send such e-mail, delete the message (subject to Oregon Public Record Act 
limitations) and not forward it.  The employee can contact the Information 
Services Department if assistance is needed.  

 
D. Employees should represent Lane County's best interests, with a prudent exercise 

of judgment in the use of Communication Resources.  This includes avoiding 
visiting improper Internet sites or taking part in non-business related discussion 
sites, such as chat rooms, blogs, newsgroups, and instant messaging.  When 
logged in from a site that is identifiable with Lane County, employees should 
avoid any communications or activities that could be construed as improper or 
that otherwise could harm Lane County's reputation. 

 
E. Employees should respect the rights of others. Employees must comply with all 

copyright laws when copying or distributing any copyrighted material.  It is 



Chapter 1 
Section 22 
 

Chapter1Section22Issue6.docx 5 of 14 

always wise to treat all material as copyright protected, unless the author has 
given his or her permission for the material to be redistributed. 

 
VII. Acceptable Use:   

 
A. County Business.  Communications Resources are provided for and may be used 

only in the furtherance and conduct of County business except as specified in 
section VII. C. below. Acceptable uses of Communications Resources include 
communication, data creation, and Internet activity that are in support of County-
budgeted programs and activities.  Examples of acceptable use in support of 
County activities include: 

 
1. Communication for County purposes with private sector, federal, state, or 

local government agencies, their committees, boards or commissions. 
 

2. The use of Internet search engines to research work-related topics. 
 

3. Any other administrative communications or activities that are in support of 
normal and accepted County programs. 

 
4. Communication for current position-related professional development, or 

other professional development approved by the Department Director, to 
increase knowledge of issues in a field or subfield of knowledge. 
 

B. Wireless Devices. The use of County-provided Wireless Telephones and Wi-Fi 
Enabled Devices is limited to work-related duties.  Employees may not use any 
such device for personal use, except when a personal call is related to official 
duties such as a meeting, which runs later than expected or a last minute change of 
schedule.  Incoming calls regarding family emergencies are also permitted.  The 
Oregon Government Standards and Practices Commission Advisory Opinion No. 
98A-1003 prohibits all other personal usage of County-provided cellular 
telephones; the same logic applies to Wi-Fi Enabled Devices that utilize network 
communications.  Only County owned devices or those with a County Stipend 
will have access to County systems and these devices will have Mobile Device 
Management  (MDM) installed on them by Lane County Information Services.   

 
1. The County may require that certain employees carry a Wireless Telephone or 

Wi-Fi Enabled Device for job related purposes. If so required, the County may 
assign a County-owned device and calling plan for the employee’s work-
related use.  
 

2. Alternatively, at the sole discretion of the Department Director and upon 
request of the employee, a monthly stipend as established by the County in 
LM 4.220 may be paid to the employee in lieu of being assigned the Wireless 
Telephone.   

 



Chapter 1 
Section 22 
 

Chapter1Section22Issue6.docx 6 of 14 

a. An employee requesting the stipend must sign an authorization form 
(Appendix A) and submit the form to the Department Director for 
approval.  Department Directors have full discretion to approve or 
deny such a request, but any approval must be consistent with budgeted 
resources. 
 

b. After the Department Director has approved the request, the form must 
be submitted to Financial Services. 

 
c. Personally-owned cell phones and Wi-Fi Enabled Devices used 

with a data stipend are subject to the following conditions: [LC1][LC2] 
 

i. The Wireless Telephone or Wi-Fi Enabled Device must be 
password protected with a minimum password length of 4 
characters.  This password must not be disabled so as to prevent 
unauthorized entry to the County email system. 
 

ii. The password must be changed at least every 90 days. 
 

iii. The device must require entry of this password after 10 minutes 
of inactivity. 

 
iv. It is mandatory the device should contain anti-virus software and  

you enable the firewall and encryption on these devices. 
 

v. County data placed on or created in the performance of duties for 
Lane County retained on these devices is discoverable in legal 
proceedings and are subject to public records requests.  This may 
require that you surrender your device long enough for others to 
obtain the information requested.[LC3]. 

 
vi. Employees shall not use these devices to house sensitive or 

confidential information.  If an exception is granted to this rule 
due to business need for storage or transmission of this type of 
information, you must use appropriate encryption 
technologies[LC4]. 

 
vii. If your device is lost or stolen, report the incident to the IS 

Department within 24 hours; IS can perform a remote wipe of all 
County data contained on the device if it still active and 
communicating on the network. 
 

viii. The Wireless Telephone or Wi-Fi Enabled Device will not be 
allowed to have direct network access to the County Intranet 
network.  Access to County Intranet will be through approved 
remote network access methods.  



Chapter 1 
Section 22 
 

Chapter1Section22Issue6.docx 7 of 14 

 
ix. The wireless device shall not be ‘rooted’ or ‘jailbroken’ at any 

time. This will result in immediate revocation of stipend 
privileges and the employee will be required to utilize a County 
owned device[LC5][LC6].  

 
C. Personal Use of[LC7]  County Equipment.  Personal use of Communication 

Resources that otherwise complies with this APM and that does not interfere with 
County business is permitted subject to the conditions stated below.  The 
Information Services Director, Department Director or the employee’s supervisor 
may cancel this personal use privilege.   
 
1. For the limited purpose of compliance with the state ethics rules 

(Government Standards and Practices Law and administrative rules); this 
personal use is considered part of an employee's compensation package.  

 
2. Personal use may not involve any prohibited activity under Section VIII 

described below. 
 
3. Personal use of the Internet on non-paid time (lunch break during regular 

work shift) is limited to a maximum of one (1) hour per week. 
  

Personal use of the County email program (i.e., Outlook) during County-paid 
work time is permitted up to one (1) hour per week. 

 
Personal use of other Communication Resources is not time limited, but must 
comply with all other aspects of this APM.  

 
4. Examples of acceptable personal use: 
 

a. Communication with family. 
 

b. Review of County sponsored benefit account information, such as life 
insurance, retirement accounts, flexible spending (Section 125 program), 
and health insurance.   

 
c. Use of Communication Resources, including County fax systems for 

submitting benefit forms or information.  
  

d. Access of educational resources for career development. 
 

e. Communications in support of community volunteer activities, such as 
school boards, and other non-profit organizations. 

 
f. Tracking personal appointments and contacts is permitted during paid 

time and is not subject to the hour limitation or lunch hour restriction.  



Chapter 1 
Section 22 
 

Chapter1Section22Issue6.docx 8 of 14 

However, employees should be aware that contacts and appointments 
could be subject to disclosure under a public records request.   

 
5. Department Directors may authorize individual exceptions to the timing of 

the personal use privilege under Section VII, C-3 above. 
 
VIII.  Unacceptable Use 
 

A. Prohibited Activities on County Equipment[LC8]. Employees are strictly prohibited 
from using Communication Resources in connection with any activities listed 
below.  While personal use is permitted by Subsection VII (C), it does not include 
or permit any of the prohibited activities listed below: 

 
Note:  the list below is illustrative of prohibited activities; however, if a 
prohibition exists in any applicable law, administrative rule, other administrative 
procedure or directive established within the employee's department, it is likewise 
applicable.   

  
1. Using Communication Resources to conduct personal business for 

private financial gain or avoidance of private financial loss at any time.  
 

2. Except for the purchase or sale of goods or services for County use when 
authorized by the Department Director, using Communication Resources 
to engage in any commerce, including the purchase or sale of any goods 
or services.   

 
3. Accessing personal Internet accounts, financial, trading, and personal 

travel accounts to perform a financial transaction.   
 

NOTE:  the prohibited uses described in Sections VIII (A) (1), (2) and (3) 
likely constitute a violation of the Oregon Code of Ethics and may result in 
civil liability for the employee.  See ORS Chapter 244. 
 
4. Accessing other personal Internet accounts, such as social media, unless 

this access is needed to manage or participate in approved Lane County 
social media sites for business purposes. 

 
5. Attempting to or circumventing, reducing, or defeating security or 

auditing systems of Communication Resources or those of any other 
organization without prior written authorization from the Information 
Services Director. 

 
6. Taking any action that attempts to or renders the user's computer 

equipment unusable or that interferes with another's use of 
Communication Resources. 

 



Chapter 1 
Section 22 
 

Chapter1Section22Issue6.docx 9 of 14 

7. Obtaining unauthorized access to any computer system. 
 

8. Using another individual's password.   
 
9. Using another individual’s account or identity without explicit 

documented authorization, unless approved by the Information Services 
Director, Department Director, County Counsel, or the County 
Administrator.  (Use of Outlook’s capability for granting and assigning 
delegates is allowed and provides necessary documentation.) 

 
10. Giving non-Lane County employees or other users not authorized by the 

Department and Information Services Director access to Communication 
Resources. 

 
11. Monitoring or intercepting the files or electronic communications of 

employees or third parties, unless this is approved by the Information 
Services Director, and one of the following: Department Director, 
County Counsel, or the County Administrator.  This prohibition does not 
apply to an authorized use of a particular software program (for instance, 
calendar management). 

 
12. Engaging in illegal, fraudulent, or malicious conduct, or conduct that 

causes someone else to suffer loss or harm. 
 

13. Downloading and installing software off the Internet without previous 
authorization from the Information Services Director.  [LC9]. 

 
i. Except as allowed under any software license any commercial 

software residing on the Communication Resources must have 
been purchased through an authorized vendor or otherwise 
lawfully obtained.  Except as otherwise allowed under the software 
license, and except for backup/archival purposes, software owned 
by Lane County or installed on the Communication Resources is 
covered under the copyright laws and may not be copied, 
duplicated, or installed on any other computer resource. 

ii. Copying or downloading any software from or onto the 
Communication Resources having the potential for bypassing or 
damaging the Communication Resources or the County systems’ 
security is prohibited.   

 
14. Soliciting, supporting, opposing, or promoting political or religious 

causes or beliefs. 
 

15. Using the Communication Resources in a manner that would constitute 
or might be construed by a reasonable person to constitute an 
endorsement of a specific commercial entity by Lane County. 



Chapter 1 
Section 22 
 

Chapter1Section22Issue6.docx 10 of 14 

 
16. Working on behalf of organizations or businesses without any 

professional or business affiliation with Lane County, or working on 
behalf of organizations or businesses with such affiliation but outside of 
the specific County business with them. 

 
17. Except as expressly authorized by the Department Director or the County 

Administrator as a matter of County concern, and except for 
communications in support of community volunteer activities as listed in 
Section VII, C, using the Communication Resources on behalf of non-
profit or charitable activity.  (Note:  the annual Charitable Giving 
campaign is so authorized.) 

 
18. Sending, receiving, or storing offensive, obscene, or defamatory data. 

 
19. Sending uninvited e-mail of a personal nature. 

 
20. Visiting or viewing pornographic Internet sites, downloading 

pornographic data from the Internet, sending or retrieving sexually 
explicit or offensive messages, cartoons or jokes, ethnic slurs, racial 
epithets or any other statement or image that might be construed as 
harassment, disparagement, libel, or discriminatory based on sex, race, 
sexual orientation, national origin, disability, or religious or political 
beliefs.  

 
21. Annoying or harassing other individuals, including any prohibited form 

of harassment. 
 

22. Distributing or storing chain letters, jokes, solicitations, junk mail, spam, 
offers to buy or sell goods, or other non-business material of a trivial or 
frivolous nature. 

 
23. Using Communication Resources to play games. 

 
24. Using Communication Resources in a manner that interferes with the 

productivity of another employee, co-workers, or the County 
Communication Resources. 

 
25. Use of any large bandwidth Communication Resource for personal use 

(i.e. streaming video) unless authorized by the Department Director. 
 

26. Connection of personally-owned devices to the County computer and 
Communication Resources, other than e-mail and calendaring through 
the cellular network or wireless devices through the public wireless 
connection, without authorization from the Information Services 
Department Director.  Personally-owned devices are not allowed to be 



Chapter 1 
Section 22 
 

Chapter1Section22Issue6.docx 11 of 14 

directly connected to the Lane County internal network through either a 
cable connection, a docking station, or through the County private 
wireless network. 

 
B. Departmental Authorization.  A Department Director may authorize a specific 

prohibited activity for a specific individual for legitimate County business 
purposes, except for activities that require the Information Services Director’s 
approval.  Such authorization must be in writing.   
 

C. Violation.  Employees violating the Lane Manual policy or this APM are subject 
to discipline, up to and including termination of employment.  Furthermore, 
employees using Communication Resources for defamatory, illegal, or fraudulent 
purposes also may be subject to civil liability and criminal prosecution. 

  



Chapter 1 
Section 22 
 

Chapter1Section22Issue6.docx 12 of 14 

IX.  County Telephone System 
 

A. Overview.  Within the current structure, Lane Council of Governments (LCOG) 
manages the telephone system and Lane County maintains policy control and 
approval authority.  Approval of changes is required both at the department level 
and County Administration level.  Departments will appoint telephone contact 
persons who are authorized to request telephone service and changes.  The named 
telephone coordinator will call the Help line to initiate service requests or 
changes. 
 

B. Unused Equipment.  Departments no longer requiring the use of specific 
telephones should request their removal.  The removal of unused telephones 
results in the following benefits to the departments: 

 
1. Station count and billing will be reduced appropriately. 

 
2. Cost of unused financed telephones will be allocated to all users. 

 
C. Moves, Changes, and Equipment Cost.   

 
1. Phones coming from unused stock used to fill an order will be billed to the 

new user at the financed cost of the equipment. 
 

2. If a department has an order for phones that cannot be taken from stock, the 
station equipment required will need to be charged to an operating budget.  
This will reduce on-going costs for that department as the cost of the station 
equipment will not be billed after purchase. 
 

D. Software Changes.  If a change is software only, LCOG will provide the requested 
service without seeking further approval.  These changes are paid for out of the 
Phone Management budget, not on a fee-for-service basis. 
 

E. Work Order Approval and Processing.  Work orders requiring technician time or 
additional equipment will be originated by LCOG after consultations with the 
department.  An estimate of cost will be applied and routed to the originating 
department for approval.  After department approval, County Administration will 
review, and if approved, the work will be performed and billed accordingly.  
Generally, time-frames for software moves and changes are 1 to 5 days; hardware 
changes 1 to 12 days; and line changes that involve the telephone company service 
10 to 15 days. 

 
F. Unauthorized Changes.  In order to preserve the integrity of the warranties on the 

telephone equipment and to avoid costly service and/or repair work, telephones, 
data adapters, and jacks must not be moved, removed, altered, installed or otherwise 
modified except by authorized telephone personnel.  

 



Chapter 1 
Section 22 
 

Chapter1Section22Issue6.docx 13 of 14 

X.  Password Procedure 
 

A. Overview.  Passwords are an important facet of computer security.  They are the 
first line of defense for all Lane County user accounts.  Lane County employees 
are responsible for taking the correct steps, as outlined below, to select and secure 
their passwords. 

 
B. Purpose.  The purpose of this procedure is to establish a County Wide password 

policy for employees accessing the Lane County Communications Resources that 
require passwords. 

 
C. Password Requirements and Limitations 

 
1. Employees must not use the same password for Lane County accounts as for 

other Non-Lane County access (e.g., personal ISP account, option trading, 
benefits, etc.). 

 
2. Employees must not write down passwords, or store passwords on-line 

without Information Services approved encryption software. 
 
3. Employees must not share passwords with anyone, including administrative 

assistants or co-workers.  All passwords are to be treated as sensitive, 
confidential Lane County information. 

 
a. Do not reveal a password over the phone to anyone. 

 
b. Do not reveal a password in an email message. 

 
c. Do not reveal a password to your supervisor. 

 
d. Do not talk about a password in front of others. 

 
e. Do not hint at the form of a password (e.g., my dogs name, street 

address, etc.). 
 

f. Do not reveal a password on security forms or polls. 
 

g. Do not share a password with family members. 
 

h. Do not reveal a password to a co-worker while on vacation. 
 

i. If someone demands a password, refer them to this document or have 
them call the LCIS Help Desk. 

 
j. Do not use the “Remember Password” feature of applications (e.g., 

Outlook, Internet Explorer). 



Chapter 1 
Section 22 
 

Chapter1Section22Issue6.docx 14 of 14 

 
4. Passwords should not have any of the following characteristics: 
 

a. The words “Lane County” or any derivation. 
 

b. Birthdays and other personal information such as addresses, and phone 
numbers. 

 
c. Word or number patterns like aaaccc, qwerty, zyxwvuts, 123321, etc. 

 
d. Contain spaces in the password. 

 
5. With the exception of Wi-Fi-enabled devices, passwords must have the 

following characteristics: 
 
a. Be a minimum of 14 characters. 

 
b. Be required to be changed at least every 90 days. 

 
c. Not be similar to or the same as any of the past ten (10) passwords. 

 
d. Not be changed more frequently than every one (1) day. 

 
6. Security Incident reporting. 

 
If an account or password is suspected to have been compromised, report the 
incident to the LCIS Help Desk. 

 
X.  Interpretation and Implementation 
 

Any questions relative to the intent or application of this procedure should be directed 
to the Information Services Director, who is delegated the responsibility to interpret and 
implement this procedure. 

 
 

Approved:                                                             12/18/2016                                     
   County Administrator Effective Date 
  

LCGADLJ
County Administrator



Chapter 1 
Section 22 
 

Chapter1Section22Issue6.docx 15 of 14 

 APPENDIX A - Use of Employee-Owned Wireless Telephone for 
County Business 

 
 
As a Lane County employee, I have been authorized to carry a county-provided wireless telephone for job related 
purposes.  I make this request to receive a monthly stipend for use of my personal wireless phone in lieu of being 
assigned a county-owned wireless phone.   
 
In accordance with APM Chapter 1, Section 22, I agree to use my own wireless phone for County business 
according to the job requirements assigned by my supervisor or director and I agree to the following: 

 The County may publish my personal wireless number and/or e-mail address as needed. 
 I am responsible for acquiring a cellular telephone and calling plan and maintaining active service at all 

times while receiving the stipend.  I am also responsible for any service and maintenance cost for my own 
phone.  The County is not responsible for replacement cost of lost, stolen, or damaged phones. 

 My supervisor or director may establish call availability requirements.  Job related calls should be 
responded to in a timely manner and personal calls during assigned duty periods should be kept to a 
minimum. 

 The stipend will be paid monthly through the payroll system and is considered taxable income and as such 
will be subject to standard payroll taxes.  The initial stipend rates are: basic cell service $35.00 per month; 
basic Internet service $35.00 per month; cell and Internet service combination $70.00 per month.  The rates 
are subject to change based on a review of costs of services. 

 Records of calls made or received on my wireless phone for which the stipend is received may be subject to 
public records laws. 

 Managers may review call logs and Internet logs for verification of valid County business use. 
 Approval of the stipend and/or assignment of a wireless telephone are at the sole discretion of the County, 

and the County reserves the right to modify or discontinue such practice at any time for any reason.  
 I understand that I must notify the Department Director and Financial Services if, at any time while 

receiving the stipend, service is disconnected for any reason, in which case the stipend will also cease. 
 I understand that this stipend may be revoked or modified at any time for any reason. 
 I further understand that a new request and approval must be submitted each July 1.  Failure to submit a 

request and approval to Financial Services will result in no payment of a stipend. 
 
ACCEPTANCE: Date: ____________ 
 
Action (Check One): Start:  _____  Stop:  _____  Continue: _____ 
 
Choose Service: Cell: _____  Internet: _____  Cell & Internet: _____ 
 
_________________  __________  _____________  _________________ 
Print Name   Employee ID  Phone Number Signature 
 
________________________ _________________________ _________________ 
Supervisor/Manager   Department Director (Required) HR Labor Code 
 



   

 
 
 
 
                                          
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ISSUE: Considering the proposed police/fire/EMS fee being contemplated in the FY 21-22 
budget discussion, the staff would recommend the following adjustments to the water rate 
should the proposal be adopted.   
 

1) Remove the $2.37 being charged to the base rate for public safety.   
2) Waive the CPI increase of 1.7% scheduled for July 1, 2021 for one year.  
3) Reduce rate by $0.60 as determined by the recent debt coverage analysis.   

 
This adjusted rate will be included in the FY22 Schedule of Fees on the agenda for June 17, 2021 
for city council approval.   
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: As described in Finance Director brief 
 
 
OPTIONS: N/A 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: N/A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION: N/A 
 

Business of the City Council 
City of Oakridge, Oregon 

June 3, 2021 
 

Agenda Title:  Water Rate Adjustment 
 

 

 

 

Proposed Council Action: A motion from 
the floor to approve. 

Agenda Item No: 10.9 
 
Exhibit: None.  
                              
 
Agenda Bill Author: Eric Kytola 
City Administrator: Bryan Cutchen 



Osprey Disc Golf Course Upgrade/Expansion Proposal

OBJECTIVE - Add two more holes to an already established four hole disc golf course
in Osprey Park for a grand total of six holes.

GOALS -

1. Design a two hole expansion that accommodates introductory levels of play and is
attractive to more advanced players and the general public.

2. Construct the expansion on the course grounds so that it is relatively free of physical
endangerments and obstructions.

3. Establish a six hole course inline with PDGA (Professional Disc Golf Association)
approved tee pads, fairways, and targets that are consistent with one another.

4. Construct the two hole expansion so that it doesn’t burden the City of Oakridge
financially.

5. Showcase the natural beauty of the Oakridge area through disc golf recreation.

SOLUTIONS -

1. The new holes, five and six, will challenge a beginner player with more distance than
the original four holes, but will be well within an ‘encouraging range’ set by disc golf
course design guidelines for introductory players. In addition, it will be more attractive to
intermediate and advanced players due to more holes to play and the increased
distance.

2. Osprey Park’s topography allows for ease of access due to its flat, unobstructed
ground and open field space concept free of thick brush and steep elevation. In fact,
Osprey Park’s disc golf design accommodates ADA (Americans with Disabilities Act)
access on the entire course. These two hole additions would consistently follow these
principles. Moreover, the two hole expansion maintains safe distance from bordering
park neighborhood homes (well within park limits) and preserves the overall ‘course flow
(i.e. each hole connects seamlessly with the next one so that the course begins and
ends in similar proximity).’



3. The Oakridge Disc Golf Club will construct the two new holes congruent with the rest
of the course by furnishing like earthen tee pads, log round tee signs, and PDGA
approved baskets.

4. The Oakridge Disc Golf Club will pay for and install two new baskets, establish the
new earthen tee pads, and acquire/carve/install tee signs for the course expansion.

5. Osprey Park is located alongside the Middle Fork of the Willamette River. Having
passive recreation, such as disc golf, within the park highlights this natural wonder.

Respectfully,
Jason Nehmer, Oakridge Disc Golf Club President
Osprey Disc Golf Course Upgrade/Expansion Map attached below.



   1 

  
 
 
 
                                          
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ISSUE:  The city has received a citizen application for committees: 
 
Name   Committee   Vacancies/Seats Term 
Ms. Wanda Burnell RTMP    1 / 7   1 year 
      OEDAC    4 / 7   3 year 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
OPTIONS:  1. Appoint applicant.  
                    2. Do not appoint applicant.   
 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  The staff recommends option 1.   
 
 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  I move that we appoint [name] to serve on the Oakridge 
[committee] for a term of three years.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Business of the City Council 
City of Oakridge, Oregon 

June 3, 2021 
 

Agenda Title: Consider appointment of a 
citizen to a committee. 
 
 
Proposed Council Action:  A motion from 
the floor to appoint applicant into vacant 
position(s).  
 
 

 

Agenda Item No:  15.1 
 
Exhibits: (1) Submitted Application  
 
 
Agenda Bill Author: Bryan Cutchen 
City Administrator: Bryan Cutchen 






	Agenda
	Volunteer Policy Manual
	Volunteer Application and Placement Form
	Volunteer Waiver
	8.1 Consent Agenda
	9.1 Volunteer Program Approval
	10.1 Westfir Fire IGA
	IGA

	10.2 Street Closure
	10.3 Fee Waiver
	10.4 Intent to Award Approval
	Intent to Award
	RFP

	Plans & Specs - Oakridge 2021 Street Overlay.pdf
	Blank Page
	Combined Plans.pdf
	C1
	Sheets and Views
	C1


	C2
	Sheets and Views
	C2


	C3
	Sheets and Views
	C3


	C4
	Sheets and Views
	C4


	C5
	Sheets and Views
	C5
	C01
	CD01
	CE01
	G01
	plot
	blocks
	layers



	C6
	Sheets and Views
	C6
	C01
	CD01
	CE01
	G01
	plot
	blocks
	layers



	C7
	Sheets and Views
	C7
	C01
	CD01
	CE01
	G01
	plot
	blocks
	layers





	Oakridge Dispatch Contract FY22.pdf
	Attachment 2_LC APM_Chapter1,Sec22.pdf
	ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURES
	MANUAL


	10.5 Speed Feedback Signs
	IGA

	10.6 Letter of Support
	Draft Letter
	Project Overview

	10.7 Alcohol Permit Extension
	Application

	10.8 Dispatch IGA
	IGA

	10.9 Water Rate Adjustment
	11.1.1 Osprey Park Proposal
	15.1 Committee Appointment
	Application




